
 
 
 
 
 
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 

September 21, 2020 



Six Mile Creek 
 Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 
October 16, 2020 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Board of Supervisors Meeting of the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District will be held Wednesday, October 21, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. via Zoom.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 II. Audience Comments 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the August 19, 2020 Meeting and September 16, 2020 

Special meeting 
 IV. Consideration of Resolution 2021-01, Declaring Assessments 
 V. Consideration of Resolution 2021-02, Setting a Public Hearing 
 VI. Consideration of Resolution 2021-03, Bond Delegation Resolution 
 VII. Ratification of Construction Agreement with Avid Trails, LLC 
 VIII. Consideration of Avid Trails Change Order 
 IX. Consideration of Construction Related Matters 
  A. Notice of Request for Proposals for Construction Services (TrailMark 

Phases 9A, 9B & 9C) 
  B. Evaluation Criteria 
 X. Consideration of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines 

& Frank 
 XI. Other Business 
 XII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
  B. Engineer  
   1. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 45 (Ph 9B Construction 

Documents-Collector Road & Pump Station)  
   2. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 46 (Proposal Documents and 

RFP Process for Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C) 
   3. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 47 (Phase 10 Construction 

Documents) 
   4. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 48 (Phase 11 Construction 

Documents) 



   5. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 49 (Phase 12 Construction 
Documents) 

   6. Ratification of Requisitions 27-29 (2020 Bond Series) 
   7. Consideration of Requisitions 30-43 (2020 Bond Series) 
   8. Consideration of Requisition 25-26 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount 

(Phase 6) 
   9. Consideration of Requisitions 4-5 (Phase 9 Bond Series-Developer 

Funded) 
   10. Ratification of Change Order No. 4 – Trailmark Phase 1 
  C. Manager  
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager - Report 
 XIII. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 XIV. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2020 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
  C. Check Register 
  D. Funding Request  
   1.  No. 8 – FY 2020 
   2. No. 9 – FY 2020 
   3. No. 10 – FY 2021 
   4. No. 1 – FY 2021 
 XV. Next Scheduled Meeting – November 23, 2020 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 XVI. Adjournment 
 
Enclosed for your review is a copy of the minutes from the August 19, 2020 meeting and 
the September 16, 2020 special meeting.  
 
The fourth order of business is consideration of Resolution 2021-01, which is enclosed 
for your review. 
 
The fifth order of business is consideration of Resolution 2021-02, which is enclosed for 
your review. 
 
The sixth order of business is consideration of Resolution 2021-03, which is enclosed for 
your review. 
 
The seventh order of business is ratification of construction agreement with Avid Trails, 
LLC, which is enclosed for your review. 
 
The eighth order of business is consideration of Avid Trails change order, which is 
enclosed for your review. 
 
The ninth order of business is consideration of construction related matters.  Enclosed is a 
copy of the items as outlined above. 
 



The tenth order of business is consideration of audit engagement letter, which is enclosed 
for your review. 
 
Enclosed under the Engineer’s report are the items as outlined above.   
 
Enclosed is a copy of the Operations & Amenities report. 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the financial reports as outlined above. 
 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature, and any additional support material will be 
presented and discussed at the meeting.  I look forward to seeing you at the meeting and 
in the meantime if you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James Oliver 
James Oliver 
District Manager 
 
cc:  Wes Haber Scott Wild   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
Wednesday   
October 21, 2020 www.SixMileCreekCDD.com 
2:00 p.m.  
  
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the August 19, 2020 Meeting and September 16, 2020 Special 

meeting 
 
 IV. Consideration of Resolution 2021-01, Declaring Assessments 
 
 V. Consideration of Resolution 2021-02, Setting a Public Hearing 
 
 VI. Consideration of Resolution 2021-03, Bond Delegation Resolution 
 
 VII. Ratification of Construction Agreement with Avid Trails, LLC 
 
 VIII. Consideration of Avid Trails Change Order 
 
 IX. Consideration of Construction Related Matters 
  A. Notice of Request for Proposals for Construction Services (TrailMark Phases 9A, 

9B & 9C) 
 
  B. Evaluation Criteria 
 
 X. Consideration of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & 

Frank 
 
 XI. Other Business 
 
 XII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
   
  B. Engineer  
   1. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 45 (Ph 9B Construction Documents-

Collector Road & Pump Station)  
 
   2. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 46 (Proposal Documents and RFP 

Process for Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C) 



 
   3. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 47 (Phase 10 Construction 

Documents) 
 
   4. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 48 (Phase 11 Construction 

Documents) 
 
   5. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 49 (Phase 12 Construction 

Documents) 
 
   6. Ratification of Requisitions 27-29 (2020 Bond Series) 
 
   7. Consideration of Requisitions 30-43 (2020 Bond Series) 
 
   8. Consideration of Requisition 25-26 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6) 
 
   9. Consideration of Requisitions 4-5 (Phase 9 Bond Series-Developer Funded) 
 
   10. Ratification of Change Order No. 4 – Trailmark Phase 1 
  
  C. Manager  
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager - Report 
 
 XIII. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
 XIV. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2020 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
  D. Funding Request  
   1.  No. 8 – FY 2020 
 
   2. No. 9 – FY 2020 
 
   3. No. 10 – FY 2021 
 
   4. No. 1 – FY 2021 
  
 XV. Next Scheduled Meeting – November 23, 2020 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
 XVI. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 



    
MINUTES OF MEETING 

SIX MILE CREEK  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. via Zoom. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Gregg Kern Chairman 
  Blake Weatherly Supervisor 
  Mike Veazey Supervisor 
  Rose Bock Supervisor 
   
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber District Counsel   
 Lynzi Chambers Evergreen 
 Zach Brecht District Engineer  
 David Freeman Evergreen  
 Alex Boyer Evergreen  
 Todd Moseley Evergreen  
 Katie Wyble Evergreen  
 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 
 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.      

 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 
 There being none, the next item followed.  

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Affidavit of Publication  
 Mr. Oliver noted that there was a public hearing today to consider the FY21 budget, and 

as required by statute they provided notice of that in the St. Augustine Record on July 22nd and 

July 29th. They also sent mailed notices to property owners.  

 

 

 



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the June 18, 2020 
Meeting 

 The Board had no changes or corrections to the June 18, 2020 meeting minutes.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Minutes of the June 18, 2020 Meeting were approved.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Actions Related to Issuance of 
Series 2020 Bonds, Resolution 2020-18  

 Mr. Haber noted that the Board had issued the Series 2020 bonds. The resolution 

formally ratifies the execution of the documents and the issuance of the bonds.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-18 Ratifying the Actions Related to 
Issuance of Series 2020 Bonds was approved.  

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2019 Audit Report  
 Mr. Oliver noted that the FY19 audit was completed by Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & 

Frank. Mr. Oliver reviewed the audit for the Board which was an exhibit in the agenda package. 

The auditor did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that they consider to be material 

weaknesses. The Board had no questions on the audit report. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Kern with all in favor 
the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit Report was accepted.  

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for  
  Fiscal Year 2021  

A. Consideration of Resolution 2020-19 Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 

 Mr. Oliver reviewed the budget for Fiscal Year 2021. He noted that the total revenues to 

fund the budget they will go from $998,000 to $996,000 so they budget for FY21 was essentially 

the same as the previous budget. Mr. Oliver noted that the unit count for FY21 increased from 

692 to 788 lots, and the debt assessment goes from a net of $790 to $900 and a gross of $840 to 

$957.  

 



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

3 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Opening the Public Hearing was approved.  

  

 Mr. Oliver asked for public comments on the budget. Hearing none, he asked for a 

motion to close the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Closing the Public Hearing was approved.  

 

 Mr. Haber stated that the sent notices advertising the budget hearing and the assessment 

hearing. He reviewed Resolution 2020-19 for the Board and noted that the resolution formally 

adopts the budgets and appropriates the funds for the budgets. He noted that the resolution in the 

Board’s agenda package would need to be updated to identify the debt service fund for the Series 

2020 bonds. The Board had no questions on the resolution.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-19 Relating to the Annual Appropriations 
and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 subject to adding 
the Series 2020 Debt Service Fund was approved.  

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2020-20, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying 
an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021 

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to open the public hearing regarding O&M assessments.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Opening the Public Hearing was approved.  

  

 Mr. Oliver asked for public comments regarding O&M assessments. A resident asked if 

there were more houses in the area, if the O&M would eventually stay the same or go down 

potentially. Mr. Oliver noted that after this year, they will create a build out module that will 

allow them to forecast what the future O&M costs will be and compare that to the assessments 

that will be allocated among the platted lots. Mr. Oliver stated that they believed the price would 

peak and then eventually decrease because there will be so many platted lots. Hearing no more 

comments, Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to close the public hearing.  



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

4 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
Closing the Public Hearing was approved.  

 
 Mr. Haber noted that the resolution formally levies the assessments that will secure the 

budget and it certifies the collection of debt assessments.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-20, Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021 was approved.  

 

C. Consideration of Funding Agreement for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 
 Mr. Haber noted that this Agreement is for a contribution that the developer makes 

because of the difference between the total amount of assessments and the amount of the budget 

that is necessary to be funded. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Kern with all in favor 
the Funding Agreement for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 was approved.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Agreement Regarding 
Mitigation Credits  

 Mr. Brecht reviewed the agreement. It has been executed and the Board was being asked 

to ratify the agreement. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Agreement Regarding Mitigation Credits was ratified.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Contract with Carlton 
Construction for Construction Manager at 
Risk Services  

 Mr. Haber noted that the Board had previously approved the process for the award of a 

contract for the construction of a new amenity facility in the East Parcel. Mr. Haber negotiated a 

contract with the top ranked proposer, Carlton Construction. The contract had two phases, a 

design phase and a construction phase. The contract being ratified by the Board was the design 

phase.  

 



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

5 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Contract with Carlton Construction for Construction 
Manager at Risk Services was ratified. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Work Authorization with 
Basham and Lucas for Entry and Phase 1 
Common Area  

 Mr. Haber noted that this was for design services for the amenity center and common 

areas in the East Parcel.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Work Authorization with Basham and Lucas for Entry 
and Phase 1 Common Area was ratified. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal from Clary & 
Associates for Phase 9  

 Mr. Brecht noted that this was for the work to be completed by Clary to do sketch and 

legals for seven conservation easements on buffers and wetlands that are within the limits of the 

Phase 9 portion of the project that is currently being permitted.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the Proposal from Clary & Associates for Phase 9 was approved. 

 

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal for Future Kayak 
Launch  

 Mr. Oliver presented the proposal from Dock Medics of Florida, LLC. Mr. Brecht 

reviewed the proposal for the Board and noted that the total for the expansion was $11,950. The 

Board had no questions on the proposal.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Proposal for Future Kayak Launch was approved. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal from Sterling 
Specialties, Inc for Dog Park Fence 

 Mr. Brecht reviewed the proposal for the dog park fence from Sterling Specialties. The 

dog park is planned to be located north of the current amenity facility. The proposal totaled 



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

6 

$49,500.  Mr. Brecht clarified that this is being proposed as a Capital Improvement Project under 

the Master Infrastructure Improvements contemplated in the Series 2020 bond issuance.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Veazey with all in 
favor the Proposal from Sterling Specialties, Inc. for Dog Park 
Fence was approved. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

 Mr. Haber had nothing further to report to the Board.  

 

B. Engineer 

i. Ratification of Requisition 263-264 (2016 A/B Bond Account) 

ii. Consideration of Requisition 265-266 (2016 A/B Bond Account) 

iii. Ratification of Requisition 23 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount Phase 6 Only) 

iv. Consideration of Requisition 24 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount Phase 6 Only) 

v. Ratification of Requisition 15-17 (2020 Bond Series) 

vi. Consideration of Requisitions 18-26 (2020 Bond Series) 

vii. Consideration of Developer Funded Requisitions – Phase 9 Bond Account  

viii. Consideration of Change Orders 1-3 (TrailMark Phase 1) 

 Mr. Brecht reviewed the above requisitions for the Board. Mr. Brecht noted that on 

TrailMark East Parcel on Application 4 and 5 Vallencourt was listed twice, and they were 

already signed and approved. Those were taken off the approved line, and Requisitions #20 and 

#21 were removed from the “To Be Approved” line. Mr. Oliver noted that the Board was 

ratifying requisitions that had previously been processed, they were approving requisitions that 

had not been processed.  

 Mr. Brecht noted that the total to be approved for the 2020 Bond Series after taking out 

requisitions was $20,948.78. The total summary of everything being ratified and approved was 

$2,869,431.99. 



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

7 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Requisitions previously processed subject to changes 
noted on the record were ratified.  
 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Requisitions not previously processed subject to changes 
noted on the record were approved.  

 
 Mr. Brecht review three change orders for the Board.  

• Change Order 1 – Vallencourt Construction for Phase 1 East Parcel totaling 

$13,777.63 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Change Order 1 was approved.  

 

• Change Order 2 - Vallencourt Construction for Phase 1 East Parcel totaling 

$131,674.74 (credit) 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
Change Order 2 was approved.  

 
 

• Change Order 3 - Vallencourt Construction for Phase 1 East Parcel totaling 

$120,133.20  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor Change Order 3 was approved.  

 
 

C. Manager – Discussion of Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 

 Mr. Oliver noted that the Board would continue to meet on a bimonthly schedule with 

meetings in October, December, February, April, June and August.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 was 
approved.  



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

8 

D. Operations & Amenities  
1. Report 

 Mr. Gilbert reviewed completed facility items that were assessed and completed since the 

previous Board meeting. Alex Boyer was introduced as the new facility manager at Six Mile 

Creek. Mr. Boyer reviewed items that he had noticed since joining as the facility manager. He 

would have a detailed report for the next Board meeting. Mr. Boyer noted that the fitness lease 

expires November 2020 and he will bring more details about that to the October Board meeting. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Authorization of Repair of Fitness Equipment and for 
Chairman to Work with Alex to review costs of repair versus 
replacement was approved.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the Authorization of Not to Exceed of $5,000 for Replacement of 
Pool Furniture as Needed and Chairman to Work with Lynzi for 
Purchase Decisions was approved.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
Authorization of Water Fitness Classes and Counsel to Review 
Agreement was approved.  

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors’ Requests and Audience 
Comments 

 There were no Supervisor requests. Audience comments included when the dog park 

would be open. Mr. Brecht noted that the dog park proposal was approved during the meeting 

and they were likely a few weeks out from starting and then completing that install, it would be 

completed before the end of the year.  

 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of July 31, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for 

the Period Ending July 31, 2020 
B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
C. Approval of Check Register 

 Mr. Oliver presented the balance sheet and income statement, the assessment receipt 

schedule and the check register.  

 



August 19, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

9 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the Check Register was approved.  

 

EIGHTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 10/21/2020 at 2:00 
p.m. 

 The next meeting is October 21st, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. at the World Golf Village 

Renaissance Resort, which is subject to change based on COVID-related restrictions. 

 

NINETEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Weatherly with all in 
favor the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
________________________     _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 



    
MINUTES OF MEETING 

SIX MILE CREEK  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. via Zoom. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Gregg Kern Chairman 
  Mike Taylor Vice Chairman 
  Mike Veazey Supervisor 
  Rose Bock Supervisor 
   
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber District Counsel   
 Lynzi Chambers Evergreen 
 Zach Brecht District Engineer  
 David Freeman Evergreen  
 Alex Boyen 
 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 
 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.      

 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 
 There being none, the next item followed.  

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2020-21 
Directing the Chairman and District Staff to 
File a Petition to Amend the District’s 
Boundaries 

 Mr. Oliver noted that the discussion for the meeting would be about bringing a parcel 

within the District boundaries into the CDD. Mr. Haber reviewed Resolution 2020-21 and the 

Boundary Amendment Funding Agreement that the Board would be asked to approve. He noted 

that the parcel of property was approximately 6 acres that is entirely located in the CDD’s 

boundaries, but is presently excluded from the CDD boundary. Since that property is not in the 

CDD’s boundary, they are not able to assess that property.  



September 16, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

2 

 Mr. Haber noted that upon the Board’s adoption of the resolution, his office will work 

with the Chairman and District staff to put together a petition. That petition will be filed with the 

Florida Land and Water Judicatory Commission, a public hearing will be held by the Board of 

Supervisors, and a determination will be made as to whether the boundary can be amended to 

add the 6 acre parcel for purposes of further development.  

 Mr. Oliver asked for any comments or questions from residents. A resident asked how 

many homes were planned for the 6 acres, and Mr. Brecht answered that it allows for an extra 21 

or 31 lots to be planned for that area.  

 Mr. Haber also noted that the resolution specifies that Chairman and District are 

authorized to proceed with the preparation and filing of a petition to amend the District’s 

boundary. It authorizes both the Chairman and Mr. Haber’s firm to serve as agents for the 

District with respect to the Boundary Amendment. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor seconded by Mr. Kern with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-21 Directing the Chairman and District 
Staff to File a Petition to Amend the District’s Boundaries was 
approved.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Boundary Amendment 
Funding Agreement with Six Mile 
Investment Group, LLC   

 Mr. Haber noted that because adding the property is the Developer’s request, the 

agreement specifically provides that all costs associated with the Boundary Amendment will be 

covered by the developer and will not be paid out of the CDD’s general fund.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the Boundary Amendment Funding Agreement with Six Mile 
Investment Group, LLC was approved.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 



September 16, 2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

3 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors’ Requests and Audience 
Comments 

 Audience comments included the planned use of amenity facilities and existing facilities 

by residents of Reverie. Mr. Haber noted that the way the methodology and assessments are 

applied, states that the residents of Reverie are going to pay the equal proportion of their O&M 

so they will have access to all of the amenities and facilities. He noted that they do plan to build 

their own amenity facility, which they would likely use more often.  

 A resident asked about the maintenance of alleyways and fixing the potholes on CDD 

property and the locations of the incoming parcel, which Mr. Haber and Mr. Brecht would look 

into. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 10/21/2020 at 2:00 
p.m. 

 The next meeting is October 21st, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. at the World Golf Village 

Renaissance Resort, which is subject to change based on COVID-related restrictions. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Kern with all in favor 
the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
________________________     _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2021-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT DECLARING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS TO 
SECURE ITS 2020 AREA 3, PHASE 1 BONDS; INDICATING 
THE LOCATION, NATURE AND ESTIMATED COST OF 
THOSE IMPROVEMENTS WHOSE COST IS TO BE 
DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING 
THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING 
THE MANNER IN WHICH SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
SHALL BE MADE; PROVIDING WHEN SUCH SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE PAID; DESIGNATING LANDS 
UPON WHICH THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE 
LEVIED; PROVIDING FOR AN ASSESSMENT PLAT; 
ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; AND 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) was established 

by Rule 42GGG-1 of the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission, pursuant to the 
Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended 
(the “Act”), and is validly existing under the constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, of 

planning, financing, acquiring, constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain 
infrastructure, including roadways, stormwater management systems, water and sewer systems, 
landscape and hardscape improvements, recreation improvements and other infrastructure within or 
without the boundaries of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in July 2007, the District issued its $47,820,000 in aggregate principal amount of 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “Original Bonds”), to finance the design, construction, and/or 
acquisition of the 2007 Project (as hereinafter defined) necessitated by development within the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements and facilities financed, in part, by the Original 
Bonds are more specifically described and identified in the District’s Improvement Plan for the 
Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds dated December 1, 2006 (the “Master Project Report”), as 
supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007 (the “2007 Project Report”), adopted and confirmed by the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions 2007-12, 2007-13, 2007-18, and 2007-24 (collectively 
the “Original Assessment Resolutions”), the District imposed special assessments (the “Original 
Assessments”) on developable real property within the boundaries of the District that specially 



benefits from the improvements more particularly described in the Master Project Report and the  
2007 Project Report as described in the Series 2007 Assessment Resolutions and as set forth in the 
District’s Special Assessment Master Methodology Report dated March 30, 2007 (the “Master 
Assessment Report”), as supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report, Final Numbers dated June 28, 2007 (the “First Supplemental Assessment 
Report”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the adoption of the Original Assessment Resolutions resulted in the imposition of 
a master lien against all the property benefitting from the improvements described in the Master 
Project Report, as amended (the “Master Assessment Lien”) within the District’s boundaries; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2014, the District adopted Resolution 2015-03, which authorized 
the bifurcation of the Original Bonds (the “Bifurcation Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bifurcation Resolution, (i) a portion of the Original Bonds in the 
principal amount of $3,140,000 were exchanged for $3,140,000 in principal amount of the District’s 
Series 2014A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the “Series 2014A Bonds”); and (ii) a portion 
of the Original Bonds in the principal amount of $42,700,000 were exchanged for $42,700,000 in 
principal amount of the District’s Series 2007 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the “Series 
2007 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2014A Bonds, the “Bifurcated Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Bifurcation, on October 15, 2014 the District also adopted 
Resolution 2015-04 (the “Bifurcation Assessment Resolution”), adopting the Second Supplemental 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital Improvement Bonds Series 2014A and 
Series 2007 dated October 15, 2014 (the “Bifurcation Assessment Report”), which created two 
separate assessment areas, the Series 2014A Assessment Area and the Series 2007 Assessment Area, 
for the purpose of securing the Series 2014A Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds respectively (the 
“Bifurcation Assessments”); and     
 
 WHEREAS, Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, the primary owner of lands within the 
District (the “Landowner”) and the Owners of the Bifurcated Bonds determined that it was in their 
best interest to refund the Series 2014A Bonds with the issuance of the $3,165,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (the 
“2015 Refunding Bonds”), and, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds, to 
restructure the Bifurcation Assessments in order to secure debt service for both the 2015 Refunding 
Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds; and  

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the restructure 

of the Bifurcation Assessments, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) adopted 
Resolutions 2015-13 and 2015-19, which levied the assessments restructuring the Bifurcated 
Assessments (the “Restructured Assessments”) and ratified and approved the completed and on-
going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, 
equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master 
Project Report, the 2007 Project Report and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2014 Capital Improvements dated November 12, 2014 
(the  “2015 Project Report”);  

 



WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the Restructured Assessments and the issuance of 
the 2015 Refunding Bonds, the District approved its Final Special Assessment Methodology Report 
for the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the Remaining 2007 Bonds dated November 14, 2014 (the 
“Refunding Report”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined 

that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,315,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A and its $6,720,000 Six 
Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B 
to finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements (collectively 
the “2016 Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied 
and allocated assessments to secure the 2016 Bonds (the “2016 Assessments”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 

2016-07, which levied the 2016 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed and on-going 
undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project 
Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report and the Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2016 Capital Improvements dated 
April 12, 2016 (the “2016 Project Report”);  

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2016 Assessments and the issuance of the 2016 

Bonds, the District approved its Final Numbers Special Assessment Methodology Report for the 
Series 2016A and 2016B Capital Improvement Bonds dated April 22, 2016 (the “2016 Assessment 
Report”); and  

 
WHEREAS,  the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds 

determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $10,620,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Assessment 
Area 2, Phase 2) and its $3,980,000 Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) to refund certain portions 
of the Series 2016 Bonds and finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the 
Improvements (collectively the “2017 Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master 
Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2017 Bonds (the “2017 
Assessments”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2017 Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 

2017-16, which levied the 2017 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed and on-going 
undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project 
Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report and the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2017 Capital 
Improvements dated October 27, 2017 (the “2017 Project Report”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2017 Assessments and the issuance of the 2017 

Bonds, the District approved its Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 



2017A and 2017B Capital Improvement Bonds Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2) dated November 14, 
2017 (the “2017 Assessment Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined 
that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,020,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) to refund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and finance the 
acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements (the “2020 Area 2, Phase 
3A Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied and 
allocated assessments to secure the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Bonds (the “2020 Area 2, Phase 3A 
Assessments”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Bonds, the Board 

adopted Resolution 2020-09, which levied the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Assessments and ratified and 
approved the completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, 
enlarging or extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 
Project Report and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s 
Report for Series 2020 Capital Improvements dated June 2, 2020 (the “2020 Area 2, Phase 3A 
Project Report”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Assessments and the 

issuance of the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Bonds, the District approved its Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital 
Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) dated June 
12, 2020 (the “2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Assessment Report”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, at the time that the District issued its 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Bonds, it was 
contemplating the simultaneous issuance of bonds to be secured by assessments levied against 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 and, as a result, some of the assessment resolutions related to the 2020 
Area 2, Phase 3A Bonds, namely Resolutions 2020-06, 2020-07 and 2020-09 (the “Initial 2020 
Assessment Resolutions”) make reference to assessments levied over both Assessment Area 2, Phase 
3A and Assessment Area 3, Phase 1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Bonds are secured by assessments levied against only 
Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A lands; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to rescind, repeal, and replace all portions of the Initial 2020 
Assessment Resolutions as they relate to Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 with the terms of this 
Resolution, the resolution setting the public hearing, and the resolution equalizing and levying the 
assessments securing the 2020 Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds, and any supplements thereto; and 
 
  WHEREAS, all other portions of the Initial 2020 Assessment Resolutions shall remain in full 
force and effect and shall not be impacted by this Resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Project Report has been updated and revised as 



reflected in the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report for 
Series 2020 Capital Improvements dated October 8, 2020 (the “2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report” 
and together with the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 
2016 Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, and the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Project Report, the 
“Improvements”), all of which are attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A and incorporated herein 
by reference, which Improvements, are the same type of Improvements on which the Restructured 
Assessments were based, and which Improvements, and the nature and specificity thereof, are more 
particularly described in the Engineer’s Reports attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A; and  
 

WHEREAS, District and the Landowner have determined that it is in their best interests for the 
District issue a new series of bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of an additional 
portion of the Improvements as described in more detail in the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report 
(the “2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds”) and accordingly to confirm the levy of the Master Assessment 
Lien and levy and allocate assessments to secure the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proceeds of the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds will be used in part to finance, 

acquire or construct improvements for Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 of the development;  
 
WHEREAS, the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds will be secured by the “2020 Area 3, Phase 1 

Assessments”;  
 
WHEREAS, the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments make up a portion of the Master 

Assessment Lien; however, in light of the bifurcation and refunding and subsequent bond issuances 
described herein, the District has chosen to adopt resolutions declaring assessments and to hold 
public hearings in connection with the levy and allocation of assessments securing the 2020 Area 3, 
Phase 1 Bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to ratify and approve the completed and on-going 

undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the Improvements described in Composite Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to pay the cost of the Improvements 
through the levy of special assessments pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the levy and allocation of the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments and the issuance 
of the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds shall not impact the validity or enforceability of the Restructured 
Assessments securing the 2015 Refunding Bonds, the 2016 Assessments securing the 2016 Bonds, 
the 2017 Assessments securing the 2017 Bonds or the 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Assessments securing 
the 2020 Area 2, Phase3A Bonds, except to the extent that the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments are 
repealed from the Initial 2020 Assessment Resolutions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District is empowered by Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, to 
finance, fund, plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, equip, operate, and 
maintain the Improvements and to impose, levy and collect the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments; 
and 

 



  WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that benefits have accrued and will continue to 
accrue to the property improved, the amount of those benefits, and that special assessments will be 
made in proportion to the benefits received as set forth in the District’s Master Assessment Report, 
First Supplemental Assessment Report, Bifurcation Assessment Report, Refunding Report, 2016 
Assessment Report, 2017 Assessment Report, 2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Report and Preliminary 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2020 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated October 6, 2020 (the “2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessment 
Report”), all of which are attached hereto as Composite Exhibit B and incorporated herein by 
reference, and on file at Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 
World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District Records Office”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Resolution shall serve as the “resolution required to declare special 
assessments” contemplated by section 170.03, Florida Statutes, for the assessment lien levied on all 
benefitting property within the District that comprises the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments to be 
levied will not exceed the benefits to the property improved. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1. The recitals as stated above are true and correct and by this reference are 

incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution.  
 
Section 2.  The 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments shall be levied to defray the cost of a 

portion of the Improvements described in the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report. 
 

Section 3. The nature and general location of, and plans and specifications for, the 
Improvements are described in Composite Exhibit A, and are on file at the District Records Office. 
 Composite Exhibit B is also on file and available for public inspection at the same location during 
normal business hours. 
 

Section 4. The total estimated cost of the Improvements is $156,326,750, a portion of 
which includes $10,636,998 for the infrastructure described in the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Project 
Report (hereinafter, referred to as the “Estimated Cost”). 
 

Section 5. The 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments will collectively defray approximately 
$14,495,000 which includes the Estimated Cost described in the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Project 
Report, plus financing-related costs, capitalized interest, debt service reserve and contingency   The 
lien for the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments will be allocated to the property identified in the 2020 
Area 3, Phase 1 Assessment Report. Notwithstanding the levy of the Master Assessment Lien, 
should the District issue additional bonds for the purpose of funding additional portions of the 
Improvements, and seek to levy and allocate assessments to secure such bonds, the District shall 
adopt additional resolutions declaring assessments as contemplated by section 170.03, Florida 
Statutes and conduct a public hearing on such assessments.      



 
Section 6. The manner in which the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments shall be 

apportioned and paid is set forth in Composite Exhibit B. 
 

Section 7. The 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments shall be levied within the District, on 
all lots and lands adjoining and contiguous or bounding and abutting upon such improvements or 
specially benefitted thereby and further designated by the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessment Report. 
 

Section 8. There is on file, at the District Records Office, an assessment plat showing the 
area to be assessed, with certain plans and specifications describing the Improvements and the 
Estimated Cost of the Improvements, all of which shall be open to inspection by the public during 
normal business hours. 
 

Section 9. Commencing with the years in which the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments 
are certified for collection, the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments shall be paid in not more than 
thirty (30) annual installments or the maximum period of time permitted by law then in effect.  The 
2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments may be payable at the same time and in the same manner as are 
ad-valorem taxes and collected pursuant to Chapter 197, Florida Statutes; provided, however, that in 
the event the uniform non ad-valorem assessment method of collecting the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 
Assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if determined by the District to be in its 
best interest, the 2020 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by 
law.  The decision to collect special assessments by any particular method – e.g., by direct bill or on 
the tax roll – does not mean that such a method will be used to collect special assessments in future 
years, and the District reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any 
given year, regardless of past practices. 
 

Section 10. The District Manager has caused to be made a preliminary assessment roll, in 
accordance with the method of assessment described in Composite Exhibit B hereto, which shows 
the lots and lands assessed, the amount of benefit to and the assessment against each lot or parcel of 
land and the number of annual installments into which the assessment may be divided, which is 
hereby adopted and approved as the District’s preliminary assessment roll. 

 
 Section 11. The Board shall adopt a subsequent resolution to fix a time and place at which 
the owners of property to be assessed or any other persons interested therein may appear before the 
Board and be heard as to the propriety and advisability of the assessments or the making of the 
Improvements, the cost thereof, the manner of payment therefor, or the amount thereof to be 
assessed against each property as improved. 
 

Section 12. The District Manager is hereby directed to cause this resolution to be 
published twice (once a week for two (2) weeks) in a newspaper of general circulation within St. 
Johns County, Florida, and to provide such other notice as may be required by law or desired in the 
best interests of the District. 
 

Section 13. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage. 
 

 



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of October, 2020. 
 
 
Attest:      SIX MILE CREEK 
      COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

_____________________________  _______________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
Composite Exhibit A: Engineer’s Reports 
Composite Exhibit B: Assessment Reports 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEERS REPORT
For

SERIES 2020 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Prepared for

Board of Supervisors
Six Mile Creek

Community Development District

Prepared by

14775 Old St. Augustine Road
Jacksonville, Florida 32258

904-642-8990

E 19-215                                                                                                 October 8, 2020

ETm 
En9land· Thim:, & millczr,lnc . 
VISION • EXPERIENCE• RESULTS 



October 8, 2020

Mr. Gregg Kern
Chairman, Board of Supervisors
Six Mile Community Development District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida  32092

Reference: Supplemental Addendum to the Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006

Dear Mr. Kern:

Pursuant to your request, England, Thims & Miller, Inc. has prepared the enclosed report in an effort to provide
information regarding the anticipated capital improvements to be funded in the year 2020.  This report is a supplement to
the adopted Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, and the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports
dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016, June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017 and June 3, 2020.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments regarding this report.

Sincerely,

ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC.

Scott A. Wild, P.E.
Executive Vice President/Shareholder

SAW/shb

Enclosures

www.etminc.com 
tel 904-642-8990 • fax 904-646-9485 

14775 Old St. Augustine Road• Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

ENGINEERS• PLANNERS• SURVEYORS• GIS • LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
• • Jacksonville • Lake Mary• Palm Coast 

England-Thim) & mlllC!r, Inc. CA-00002584 LC-0000316 



Page 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Six Mile Creek Community Development District (The “Six Mile Creek CDD” or the
“District”) is a 1,282 ± acre community development district located in St. Johns County, Florida.
(Refer to Plate 1, location map).  The land within the District consists of a parcel within the Saint
Johns DRI, referred to herein as the “South Tract”.  The authorized land uses within the District
include residential development as well as substantial open space and recreational amenities.  The
full development within the Six Mile Creek CDD boundaries is anticipated to include
approximately:

TYPE Acreage
Acres

Residential
Units

Residential 773± 2278
Amenity Village 7±
Community Park 30±
Neighborhood Parks System 17±
Wetlands 357±
Upland Buffer 98±
TOTALS 1282± 2278

(Refer to Plate 2 for the map of the District boundaries and Plate 3 for legal description of the District.)

In anticipation of development within its boundaries, on March 30, 2007 the District adopted its
Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, describing master and neighborhood infrastructure
improvements the District intended to finance (or advance finance), construct, install and/or
acquire within and adjacent to the boundaries of the District.  Subsequently, the District adopted
the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016,
June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017 and June 3, 2020.  The purpose of this report is to supplement the
existing Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports in an effort to identify
infrastructure improvements that will be funded in whole or part with proceeds from the issuance
of the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 related to the next phase of development within the
District.1 The anticipated costs to construct and/or install the Series 2020 Project are set forth in
Tables 1A, 1B and 1C.

The unit distributions for previous assessment areas are as follows:

Assessment Area 1 Assessment Area 2 (Phase 1) Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2)
43’ lots 27 43’ lots 160 43’ lots   69
53’lots 25 53’ lots   63 53’ lots 216
63’lots 81 70’ lots   21 63’ lots   34
70’ lots 19 80’ lots   61 70’ lots     8
Total  Lots      152 Total Lots             305 80’ lots   74

Total Lots 401
Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3A)
43’ Lots 57
53’ Lots 62
63’ Lots 62
Total Lots 181

1 The District anticipates that it will issue additional series of bonds in the future to fund the construction,
acquisition and installation of portions of the Improvement Plan not funded by the Series 2007, Series 2016, Series
2017 and Series 2020 Bonds.



Page 2

The anticipated unit distribution for the Series 2020 Bonds is as follows:

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2020 Bonds
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1)

2020 Bonds
(Series 2020 Project)

Lot Size (Feet) Number
43 76
53 74
63 45

TOTAL 195

The unit distribution for the remaining district lands has not yet been determined.

In comparison with the Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the Master and
Neighborhood Infrastructure costs have been updated to present the estimated cost for the Series
2020 Project.

Plate 4 depicts the limits and area for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1).  It also depicts the currently
anticipated lot mix and total unit count for and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1).  Plate 5 provides the
legal description for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1).

The limits of Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2 and 3) are also depicted on Plate 4, together with the
existing lot mix and total unit count within Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2 and 3).

______________________

2 Proposed unit mix includes proposed lots within lands being added to the District under a proposed boundary
amendment being completed at this time.



t:\2019\19-215\landdev\supplemental engineers report-2019\revised supplemental report 10.8.20\4 - background.docx

1

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The following sections of this report describe those Master Infrastructure Improvements that benefit Assessment
Area 2, Phases 1 through 3A and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) Project areas.  These include transportation and
miscellaneous other improvements, such as common area landscape/hardscape and a master lift station.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain master transportation facilities
necessary for development within the District boundaries.  These improvements have been designed and will be
constructed to St. Johns County standards.  Landscaping and irrigation of completed roadways will be operated
and maintained by the District, although the roadways themselves will be owned and maintained by St. Johns
County.

This total proposed improvement includes approximately 14,200 linear feet of two-lane urban section roadway,
with appropriate turn lanes (“Loop Road”).  The portion of Loop Road included in the Series 2020 Project is
approximately 1,750 linear feet of two-lane urban section roadway within Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1).  The
Loop Road improvements are depicted on Plate 8.

MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS

Utility Improvements
The Six Mile Creek CDD financed, designed and constructed certain water utility infrastructure necessary for
development within the District boundaries.  These improvements were designed and constructed to St. Johns
County standards, and are owned and maintained by St. Johns County. It is anticipated that the cost of construction
for these improvements will be partially reimbursed to the District through the utility agreement described below.

In accordance with the Six Mile Creek Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reimbursement Agreement adopted
January 29, 1999 (“Agreement”), St. Johns County will reimburse the cost of construction of the transmission
components of the water and sewer facilities located within and adjacent to the Six Mile Creek CDD.  This
reimbursement will be paid from one-third of the connection fees collected by St. Johns County at the time
connection fees are paid.  The reimbursement for a completed portion of the infrastructure must be completed
within a 12-year period following the construction of the improvement.  It is anticipated that $4,311,421 (of which
$558,905 has been received to date) of the master utility infrastructure cost will be reimbursed to the District
through this Agreement and that the District will use the funds to construct additional portions of the
improvements described in the Improvement Plan.

Common Area Landscape/Hardscape
The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain common area landscape and
hardscape improvements to benefit the development within the District boundaries.  These improvements will be
designed and constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District.
Landscaping will be installed continuously along the length of the Loop Road and within other areas of the
District.  These improvements also include soft costs for all common area improvements.



t:\2019\19-215\landdev\supplemental engineers report-2019\revised supplemental report 10.8.20\4 - background.docx

2

BASIS OF COST ESTIMATE FOR
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The following is the basis for the infrastructure cost estimates:

Ø Water and Sewer Facilities have been designed in accordance with SJCUD and FDEP standards.

Ø The stormwater management system has been designed per SJRWMD and SJC standards.

Ø The engineering, permitting, construction inspection and other soft cost fees have been included in the
estimated cost.

Ø Cost estimates contained in this report are based upon year 2019 dollars.

Ø Costs have been included for street lighting and electrical conduit on all roadways in accordance with
FPL standards for the Series 2020 Project.

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The Series 2020 Project includes the cost of the neighborhood infrastructure improvements for 195 single family
units in Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1), as depicted on Plate 4.

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance certain infrastructure improvements for each neighborhood
within the District boundaries.  The improvements include complete construction of the basic infrastructure for
each neighborhood, including but not limited to: clearing and grubbing, earthwork, water and sewer underground
utility construction, drainage, stormwater management, grassing, sodding, underground electrical conduit and
neighborhood street lighting.

The cost estimate for the roadways included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements is based upon curb
and gutter section roadways with variable pavement widths, within variable width rights-of-way.  The clearing,
grubbing and earthwork estimates include all work necessary for the complete right-of-way area, and include
utility easements for underground electrical conduit for roadway street lighting.  Disturbed areas within the rights-
of-way, which are outside of the paved areas, will be sodded and/or seeded and grassed in order to provide erosion
and sediment control in accordance with St. Johns County standards.

Stormwater management cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements provide for the
attenuation and treatment of stormwater runoff from the project roadways in accordance with St. Johns River
Water Management District and St. Johns County standards.  Costs include detention pond construction, outfall
control structures, and any site fill required to provide a complete stormwater management system.

Water and sewer cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements consist of the
underground water transmission system, wastewater (sewer) collection system, and lift station serving the
development.  Costs include piping, manholes, valves, services, and all appurtenances required in order to
construct the system in accordance with St. Johns County Utility Department, and Florida Department of
Environmental Protection standards.

The neighborhood infrastructure improvements have been designed and will be constructed to St. Johns County,
St. Johns County Utility Department, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, and St. Johns River Water
Management District standards.  Roadways shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County in Assessment
Area 3 (Phase 1).  Water and sewer facilities shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County Utility
Department.  The neighborhood street lighting shall be owned and operated by the District, and the electrical cost
to operate it is presently expected to be paid by the District.  The District shall maintain stormwater management
improvements.



t:\2019\19-215\landdev\supplemental engineers report-2019\revised supplemental report 10.8.20\4 - background.docx

3

TABLE 1A
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Improvement Description Estimated
Costs

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE

       Loop Road $1,054,272
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $1,205,000
Traffic Signal $350,000

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE
Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains $1,297,494
Stormwater Management $902,494
Neighborhood Roadways $4,327,494
Street Lighting $197,750
Water Distribution System $652,494
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $650,000

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $10,636,998

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS PERMIT STATUS

Regulatory permits necessary for construction of infrastructure improvements within Assessment Area 3 (Phase
1) have either been applied for or received.  The current status of the regulatory permits is reflected in Exhibit
A.  It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons that would prohibit the implementation of the plans
presented herein and that all permits/approvals not already issued but are necessary for the Series 2020 Project
should be obtained in the ordinary course of development.



EXHIBIT"A" 

PERMIT 

STATUS 

- -

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) 
10/8/2020 

Item# Permit Agency File Number/ Permit Description Grantor Grantee Issue Data Expiration Data Number 

1 ACOE N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A 

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

3 SJRWMD In Progress Consumptive Use Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

4 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval st. Johns County Six Mile Creek COD Pending 

5 FDEP In Progress Water DlstrlbuUon System Permit FDEP Six MIia Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

6 FDEP In Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 



t:\2019\19-215\landdev\supplemental engineers report-2019\revised supplemental report 10.8.20\4 - background.docx

4

APPENDIX
Description

Plate No.

1 Location Map

2 District Boundary Map

3 Legal Description – District Boundary

4 Master Site Plan

5 – 5A Legal Description – Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1)

6 Transportation Improvement – Loop Road (Series 2020 Project)

7 Typical Cross-Section – Loop Road (2-Lane)

8 Sanitary Sewer Lift Stations and Forcemains

8A Sanitary Sewer Forcemains (Series 2020 Project)

9 Stormwater Management Plan

9A Stormwater Management Plan (Series 2020 Project)

10 Neighborhood Roadways

10A Neighborhood Roadways (Series 2020 Project)

11 Street Lighting

11A Street Lighting (Series 2020 Project)

12 Water Distribution System

12A Water Distribution System (Series 2020 Project)

13 Sanitary Sewer Collection System

13A Sanitary Sewer Collection System (Series 2020 Project)



PROJECT
SITE

LOCATION MAP
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

England• Thim) 
======= - & millczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPEARCHITECTS 
1111a. ~ 14775 St. Augustine Road 
@"§.§ ~ ~~ Jacksonville, Florida 32258 
~,,:jjfff:ifff!;. ::ii:.':...~ Certificate of Author ization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

-111.L 

.ilk. 

-111.L 

0 

I 

~--r- } 
I __ I 

I I 

'.._____J 

Cree 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
3000 6000 

I ;_1 __ _ 
12000 

I cliL --

___ JI/a. , VV \. l 
,,: -

_JI SIMO 
-IW,_ IS 

S!)(Mllt M 
...... 

Ntc 

""'-
Jll,. -.,, 

-·n 
_..,., ----'\ ~-✓-.~- -CT: 

'"-I -
"') ....JIik.. 

JI/. 

ETM. NO. 19 - 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1'' = 6,000' 

PLATE NO: 



DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

OUTPARCEL NOT TO 
BE INCLUDED IN CDD) 
OWNER: RICHARD A. 

AND VELMA HORTON 
ADDRESS: 5405 S.R. 16 

ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1500 3000 

England• Thim) 
======= - & millczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPEARCHITECTS 
1111a. ~ 14775 St. Augustine Road 
@"§.§ ~ ~~ Jacksonv ill e, Florida 32258 
~,,:jjfff:ifff!;. ::ii:.':...~ Certificate of Authori zation No: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

6000 

w 

s2·w 

4:2e·w 
s·s2•w 
o· 
·30' 16"W 
00' 
3·oo·w 
o· 
·45' 57•w ,· 

1282.14 ACRES 
(CDD AREA) R- 2392.01' 

?z 14'28'3Q" 
L-=604.31' 
T- 303.7r 
CH•6◊2 .70' 
B=S05-08'51"w 

+-,I 
+-,I 

Q) 

u 
0 

o__ 

Bakersville 

ETM. NO. 19 - 2 15 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1'' = 3,000' 

PLATE NO: 2 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District

A part of Sections 31 and 38, Township 6 South, Range 28 East, together with a part of Sections
6, 38 and 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, being more
particularly described as follows: for a Point of Reference, commence at the intersection of the
Southerly line of said section 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, with the Westerly
right-of-way line of County road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot right-of-way as now established): thence
North 71°03'40" West, along the said South line of section 41, a distance of 1065.59 feet to the
Point of Beginning; thence continue North 71°03'40" West, along the Southerly line of said
section 41, a distance of 3030.75 feet; thence North 60°13'49" West, continuing along said
section line, a distance of 1734.02 feet to the common corner to Sections 41, 5 and 6; thence
South 03°24'47" East, along the Easterly line of said section 6, a distance of 3052.10 feet; thence
South 03°20'35" East, along the Easterly line of said section 38, a distance of 2086.25 feet;
thence North 86°59'59" West, a distance of 863.15 feet to the waters of Six Mile Creek; thence
North 46°05'12' West, along the waters of said Six Mile Creek, a distance of 1430.00 feet;
thence North 45°06'48" West, along the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of 1973.08 feet;
thence North 15°52'42" West, along the waters of said Six Mile Creek, a distance of 639.84 feet;
thence North 07°08'17" East, a distance of 540.00 feet to a point in the division line between
section 6 and 38; thence North 89°07'35" West, along said division line, a distance of 540.00
feet; thence North 01°20'11" West, along the Westerly line of the North 28 acres of the
Northeast one quarter and Northwest one quarter of said section Six, a distance of 2665.80 feet
to a point in said Six Mile Creek; thence with the waters of said Six Mile Creek, the following
fourteen (14) courses: course no. 1) North 21°46'57" West, a distance of 115.71 feet; course no.
2) North 04°03'00" West, a distance of 471.70 feet; course no. 3) North 15°30'16" West, a
distance of 530.00 feet; course no. 4) North 74°15'52" West, a distance of 160.00 feet; course
no. 5) North 31°54'28" West, a distance of 147.65 feet; course no. 6) North 14°54'52" West, a
distance of 655.70 feet; course no. 7) North 58°35'33" West, a distance of 336.17 feet; course
no. 8) North 38°53'09" West, a distance of 291.63 feet; course no. 9) North 07°47'32" East, a
distance of 480.55 feet; course no. 10) North 31°04'47" West, a distance of 88.74 feet; course
no. 11) North 20°38'46" East, a distance of 219.13 feet; course no. 12) North 32°56'28" West, a
distance of 141.49 feet; course no. 13) North 08°25'22" East, a distance of 515.92 feet; course
no. 14) North 15°06'25" West, a distance of 651.10 feet; thence North 77°45'24" East, leaving
the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of 2251.55 feet; thence South 40°06'20" East, a distance
of 3560.03 feet; thence South 85°45'56" East, a distance of 4260.63 feet to a point in the
division line between said section 38 and section 37; thence South 01°06'48" East, along said
Westerly line of section 37, a distance of 258.39 feet to the Southwest corner of said section 37;
thence South 89°40'57" East, along the South line of said section 37, a distance of 1179.79 feet
to the Northwest corner of a 30.00 foot wide drainage easement, as recorded in deed book 182,
page 133; thence South 37°05'42" East, a distance of 930.18 feet; thence South 12°23'05" West,
along a line parallel with and lying 50.00 foot Westerly of when measured at right angles to the
Westerly right-of-way line of state road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot right-of-way as now established),
a distance of 1482.90 feet to the point of curve, concave Easterly, having a radius of 2392.01
feet; thence Southwesterly, continuing along said parallel line and along the arc of said curve, an

arc distance of 604.31 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing of South 05°08'51"
West and a chord distance of 602.70 feet to the point of tangency of said curve; thence South
02°05'24" East, continuing along said parallel line, a distance of 868.99 feet; thence South
87°54'35" West, leaving said parallel line, a distance of 944.62 feet; thence South 02°05'25"
East, a distance of 759.38 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 1288.95 acres more or less.

Less and except those lands as described in Official Records Book 250, page 693 of the Public
Records of said County, being more particularly described as follows: beginning at the
Southeast corner of the Northeast quarter (NE1/4) of the Northwest quarter (NW1/4) of sec. 6,
Township 7 South, Range 28 East; thence run North 420 feet to a stake, thence run West 330
feet to a stake, thence run South 420 feet to a stake, thence run East 330 feet to Point of
Beginning; containing three (3) acres more or less and being a part of the property conveyed by
Gordon Ferreira and wife to john y. Smith by deed dated October 25, 1899, and recorded in
deed record n3, page 133, St. Johns County Records.
Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Northeast quarter (NE1/4) of the Northwest quarter
(NW1/4) of section 6, Township 7 South, Range 28 East; thence run West 330 feet to a stake,
thence run South 10 chains to a stake, thence run East 330 feet to a stake, thence run North 10
chains to a Point of Beginning; containing four (4) acres more or less, and being part of the
property conveyed by r. I. Knowles to john y. Smith by deed dated April 16, 1888, and recorded
in deed record "ll", page 675, St. Johns County Records. (6.80 acres more or less or 296,208
square feet more or less).

Total area = 1288.95 - 6.80 = 1282.15 acres

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - DISTRICT BOUNDARY
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

En9land • Thim) ETM. NO. 19-215 

- -&fflillczr,lnc. DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 - - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS - - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
N/A - ..- 14775 St. Augustine Rood SCALE: 

~~S~~~ Jacksonville, Florido 32258 ~== =,,'=,.~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
Phone No. (90'\l 642-8990 PLATE NO: 3 Fox No. (904) 46-9485 



ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 1)
43' Lots (160)
63' Lots (63)
70' Lots (21)
80' Lots (61)

Total Lots (305)

ASSESSMENT AREA 1
43' Lots (27)
52' Lots (25)
63' Lots (81)
70' Lots (19)

Total Lots (152)

LEGEND:

ASSESSMENT AREA 1 (152.20 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 1) (112.68 Ac.)

2007 ASSESSMENT AREA (550.90 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 2) (158.31 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 2)
43' Lots (69)
53' Lots (216)
63' Lots (34)
70' Lots (8)
80' Lots (74)

Total Lots (401)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3) (272.30 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3A)
43' Lots (57)
53' Lots (62)
63' Lots (62)

Total Lots (181)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3B)
43' Lots (87)
53' Lots (71)
63' Lots (39)

Total Lots (197)

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3C)
43' Lots (80)
53' Lots (62)
63' Lots (34)

Total Lots (176)

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1) (89.62 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1)
43' Lots (76)
53' Lots (74)
63' Lots (45)

Total Lots (195)

MASTER SITE PLAN
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 1) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 3 (PHASE 1) 

England• Thim) 
~~ _ & fflillczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
111111. ~ 14775 St. August ine Road 
&~S5.~~ Jackso nvill e, Florida 3225 8 
~,,:jjfff:ifff!;. ::ii:.':...~ Certifi cate of Aut horiza ti on No.: 2584 

Phon e No. (904 ) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

SSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3C) 

SSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 38) 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19- 2 15 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 4 



A portion of Section 6, and Section 38, Jose Papy Grant, all lying in Township 7 South, Range
28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, also being portion of the plat of whisper creek phase 4, unit d
as recorded in map book 83, pages 59 through 69 (inclusive) of the Public Records of St. Johns
County, Florida and also being a portion of the plat of whisper creek phase 5 unit b as recorded
in map book 93, pages 1 through 8 (inclusive) of said Public Records and being more
particularly described as follows:

For a Point of Reference, commence at the Southeast corner of the plat of Whisper Creek Phase
4 Unit D, as recorded in map book 83, pages 59 through 69 (inclusive), also being the Southwest
corner of the plat of whisper creek phase 5 unit b, as recorded in map book 93, pages 1 through
8 (inclusive) all of the Public Records of St. Johns County, Florida; thence South 67°55'56"
West, along the Southeast line thereof, a distance of 460.78 feet to the Point of Beginning.
Thence North 21°55'30" West, a distance of 113.51 feet to a point on the South line of tract no.
7, as shown on the said plat of Whisper Creek Phase 4 Unit D; thence Northeasterly along said
South line, the following 11 Courses and distances: Course 1) thence North 73°55'15" East, a
distance of 64.55 feet; Course 2) thence North 78°01'17" East, a distance of 34.06 feet; Course
3) thence North 74°24'30" East, a distance of 43.00 feet; Course 4) thence North 71°03'31" East,
a distance of 53.57 feet; Course 5) thence North 63°19'13" East, a distance of 38.92 feet; Course
6) thence North 72°00'55" East, a distance of 38.74 feet; Course 7) thence North 45°03'38" East,
a distance of 38.98 feet; Course 8) thence North 83°06'21" East, a distance of 21.59 feet; Course
9) thence North 62°51'26" East, a distance of 65.80 feet; Course 10) thence North 60°41'54"
East, a distance of 39.90 feet; Course 11) thence South 86°01'16" East, a distance of 66.32 feet
to a point on the East line of the said plat of Whisper Creek Phase 4 Unit D, also being the West
line of said plat of whisper creek phase 5 unit b; thence South 74°07'15" East, a distance of
345.04 feet; thence South 37°22'51" East, a distance of 185.81 feet; thence South 60°53'56"
East, a distance of 666.95 feet; thence South 78°58'59" East, a distance of 1147.41 feet; thence
South 19°29'28" East, a distance of 757.57 feet; thence South 68°02'59" West, a distance of
287.92 feet; thence South 81°26'35" West, a distance of 166.70 feet; thence South 88°47'16"
West, a distance of 532.60 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave Northwesterly
and having a radius of 45.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of
65.49 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 40°58'13" West,
59.86 feet to the point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of
355.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 115.03 feet, said curve
being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 73°22'56" West, 114.53 feet to the
point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 40.00 feet; thence
Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 43.90 feet, said curve being subtended by a
chord bearing and distance of North 84°27'30" West, 41.73 feet to the end of said curve; thence
South 35°22'29" West, a distance of 553.04 feet; thence South 67°16'16" West, a distance of
46.97 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly and having a radius of
25.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 6.82 feet, said curve
being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 59°27'15" West, 6.80 feet to the point
of tangency; thence South 51°38'14" West, a distance of 37.18 feet to the point of curvature of a

curve concave Southeasterly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the
arc of said curve, a distance of 5.01 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and
distance of South 45°53'56" West, 5.00 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 40°09'39"
West, a distance of 38.61 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Easterly and having a
radius of 25.00 feet; thence Southerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 27.52 feet, said
curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 08°37'24" West, 26.15 feet to
the point of tangency; thence South 22°54'52" East, a distance of 25.55 feet; thence South
17°33'58" West, a distance of 36.53 feet; thence South 47°45'02" West, a distance of 27.29 feet;
thence South 63°42'55" West, a distance of 34.54 feet; thence South 46°22'23" West, a distance
of 38.45 feet; thence South 62°04'45" West, a distance of 26.87 feet to the point of curvature of
a curve concave Southeasterly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the
arc of said curve, a distance of 18.34 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and
distance of South 41°03'40" West, 17.93 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 20°02'35"
West, a distance of 18.19 feet; thence South 50°35'22" West, a distance of 87.92 feet to the
point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 429.37 feet; thence
Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 330.13 feet, said curve being subtended by a
chord bearing and distance of South 69°27'13" West, 322.06 feet to the point of tangency;
thence North 88°31'13" West, a distance of 119.10 feet; thence North 75°59'31" West, a
distance of 47.23 feet; thence North 69°09'18" West, a distance of 118.71 feet to the beginning
of a non-tangent curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Westerly
along the arc of said curve, a distance of 19.80 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord
bearing and distance of North 74°55'52" West, 19.29 feet to the point of tangency; thence South
82°22'47" West, a distance of 40.15 feet; thence North 72°54'11" West, a distance of 30.00 feet;
thence North 72°31'12" West, a distance of 18.42 feet; thence North 43°39'23" West, a distance
of 23.45 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 25.00
feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 25.83 feet, said curve being
subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 73°15'23" West, 24.70 feet to the point of
tangency; thence South 77°08'36" West, a distance of 24.40 feet; thence South 78°02'58" West,
a distance of 38.04 feet; thence South 60°59'52" West, a distance of 6.82 feet; thence North
77°15'19" West, a distance of 75.98 feet; thence North 55°18'57" West, a distance of 48.47 feet;
thence North 52°51'17" West, a distance of 18.62 feet; thence North 25°26'04" West, a distance
of 24.38 feet; thence North 19°17'11" West, a distance of 84.11 feet; thence North 20°46'21"
West, a distance of 92.03 feet; thence North 04°36'29" West, a distance of 2.38 feet; thence
North 04°06'34" West, a distance of 73.63 feet; thence North 03°24'02" East, a distance of
105.31 feet; thence North 15°07'18" East, a distance of 141.79 feet; thence North 13°56'34"
East, a distance of 105.27 feet; thence North 07°47'33" East, a distance of 102.70 feet; thence
North 03°50'15" West, a distance of 39.70 feet; thence North 38°38'37" East, a distance of 24.79
feet; thence North 44°39'11" East, a distance of 23.86 feet; thence North 74°29'59" East, a
distance of 26.81 feet; thence North 71°44'17" East, a distance of 32.21 feet; thence North
87°02'40" East, a distance of 21.27 feet; thence South 67°54'57" East, a distance of 31.61 feet to
the point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence
Easterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 61.64 feet, said curve being subtended by a
chord bearing and distance of North 76°45'52" East, 57.81 feet to the point of tangency; thence

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ETM. NO. 19 215 En9land • Thim) 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION -ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1) 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 - _ & fflillczr ,Inc. - - ENGINEERS· PLANNERS 

SCALE: N/A 
- - SURVEYORS - IANDSCAPEARCHllECTS 
...,. .- 14775 St, Augustine Road 
=:.;;;-.=.,;;;;=.,:::.""=---::;;; Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

PLATE NO: 5 
~-== '5.,'S,.~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
• • Phone No. (90~ 642 8990 

Fox No. (904) 46 9485 



North 41°26'40" East, a distance of 16.30 feet; thence North 82°15'05" East, a distance of 14.27
feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Northwesterly and having a radius of 50.00
feet; thence Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 29.05 feet, said curve being
subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 65°36'23" East, 28.64 feet to the point of
tangency; thence North 48°57'42" East, a distance of 25.84 feet; thence North 65°59'43" East, a
distance of 28.26 feet; thence North 59°00'04" East, a distance of 28.42 feet; thence North
63°51'02" East, a distance of 121.28 feet; thence South 87°12'07" East, a distance of 50.99 feet
to the point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence
Easterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 13.96 feet, said curve being subtended by a
chord bearing and distance of North 76°47'55" East, 13.78 feet to the point of tangency; thence
North 60°47'57" East, a distance of 28.47 feet; thence North 79°16'50" East, a distance of 18.38
feet; thence North 10°43'10" West, a distance of 20.69 feet to a point on the South line of those
lands as described in Official Records Book 4666, page 1496 of said Public Records of St. Johns
County; thence North 88°46'23" East, along the South line thereof, a distance of 31.91 feet to
the Southeast corner thereof; thence North 01°13'37" West, along the East line thereof, a
distance of 1080.00 feet to the Northeast corner thereof; thence South 88°46'23" West, along the
North line thereof, a distance of 330.00 feet to the Northwest corner thereof; thence South
01°13'37" East, along the West line thereof, a distance of 920.47 feet; thence North 84°12'55"
West, departing last said West line, a distance of 32.10 feet to the point of curvature of a curve
concave Southerly and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said
curve, a distance of 31.57 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of
South 77°41'56" West, 31.04 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 59°36'48" West, a
distance of 41.54 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly and having a
radius of 50.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 19.11 feet,
said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 48°39'57" West, 18.99 feet
to the point of tangency; thence South 37°43'06" West, a distance of 16.86 feet; thence North
89°16'00" West, a distance of 25.95 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southerly
and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of
16.36 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 81°21'27" West,
16.29 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 71°58'54" West, a distance of 31.29 feet;
thence North 81°44'44" West, a distance of 19.38 feet; thence North 80°27'42" West, a distance
of 52.47 feet; thence North 62°23'06" West, a distance of 31.72 feet; thence North 33°58'28"
West, a distance of 7.85 feet; thence North 29°43'10" East, a distance of 38.19 feet to the point
of curvature of a curve concave Westerly and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence Northerly
along the arc of said curve, a distance of 29.52 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord
bearing and distance of North 12°48'24" East, 29.09 feet to the point of tangency; thence North
04°06'22" West, a distance of 106.98 feet; thence North 05°54'55" West, a distance of 131.86
feet; thence North 03°36'23" West, a distance of 136.60 feet; thence North 05°56'34" East, a
distance of 130.37 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Westerly and having a
radius of 50.00 feet; thence Northerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 15.73 feet, said
curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 03°04'05" West, 15.66 feet to
the point of tangency; thence North 12°04'45" West, a distance of 121.83 feet; thence North
05°02'28" West, a distance of 147.80 feet; thence North 01°41'11" West, a distance of 63.95
feet; thence North 20°24'01" East, a distance of 43.65 feet; thence North 11°38'18" East, a

distance of 19.58 feet; thence North 21°55'30" West, a distance of 155.38 feet to a point on the
aforementioned Southeasterly line of Whisper Creek Phase 4 Unit D and the Point of Beginning.

The above described lands contain 89.62 acres, more or less.

Less and except any portion of those lands as described in Official Records Book 4666, page
1496 of the Public Records of St. Johns County.

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ETM. NO. 19 215 En9land • Thim) 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION -ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1) 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 - _ & fflillczr ,Inc. - - ENGINEERS· PLANNERS 

SCALE: N/A 
- - SURVEYORS - IANDSCAPEARCHllECTS 
...,. .- 14775 St, Augustine Road 
=:.;;;-.=.,;;;;=.,:::.""=---::;;; Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

PLATE NO: 5A 
~-== '5.,'S,.~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
• • Phone No. (90~ 642 8990 

Fox No. (904) 46 9485 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT - LOOP ROAD
(SERIES 2020 PROJECT)

====England• Thim) 
_ & mill<?r ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS· PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPEARCHITECTS 
--. ... 14775 St. August ine Road 
~~~~~~ Jacksonville , Flor ida 32258 ~="= :=":..~ Certifi cate of Aut horiz at ion No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646 - 9485 

(.. 

0 
t?'2Z3 DENOTES SERIES 2020 

PROJECT LOOP ROAD 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 500 1000 2000 

ETM NO. 19-215 

DA TE: OCTOBER 8 , 2020 

SCALE: 7'' = 1,000 ' 

PLATE NO: 6 



TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION
LOOP ROAD (2-LANE)

TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION - LOOP ROAD (2-LANE)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

EXISTING GRADE 

En9land • Thim) 
_ & fflillczr ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS · PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS · LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
~ ~ 14775 St. August ine Road 
~~S~~~ Jacksonville , Flor ida 32258 ~=-= =.':...~ Certifi cate of Aut horiz at ion No: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646 - 9485 

5' SJCUD 

EASEMENT 

R/W LINE 

SEED AND 
MULCH 

2.0'~GAS 

4.5' 

WATERMAIN 

80' R/W 

16" SOD 
STRIP 

R/W LINE 

SEED AND 
MULCH 

----18" STD. CURB----:c-t.l.f-------.c...c..'--------t 
24.0' PAVEMENT 36.5' 

12.0' q_ 12.0' 8' CONC. OR ASPHALT 
MUL Tl-PURPOSE PA TH 
(LOCATION MAY VARY) 2.0% 

---- -- -..., ___ ,,,,,,, r4'.T.7.T68'43'A<rKK-"4-'6.T,T,T.T"'"'"""'-""""¥« 

UNDERDRAIN 
(AS REQUIRED) 

2.5' 

UNDERDRAIN (TYP.) 

(AS REQUIRED) 

N.T.S. 

0---FORCEMAIN 
5' TO 31.5' 

AS APPLICABLE) 

10' FPL 
EASEMENT 

EXISTING 
GRADE 

FILL AT 2: 1 MAXIMUM 
SLOPE TO EXISTING 
GRADE (SEED AND 
MULCH SIDE SLOPES 
AND ALL DISTURBED 
AREAS) 

ETM NO. 19-215 

DA TE: OCTOBER 8 , 2020 

SCALE: NTS 

PLATE NO: 7 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

NOTE: LABELED LIFT STATIONS 
HA VE NOT YET BEEN CONSTRUCTED 

0 

L.S. 
NO. 2 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

l DENOTES SERIES 2020 
PROJECT FORCEMAIN 

0 

2 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

~~ En9land • Thim) 
-&fflillczr,lnc. 

ETM NO. 19-215 

SANITARY SEWER FORCEMAINS {SERIES 2020 PROJECT) ..,__DA-TE-: -- OC_TO_BE_R _8 ,- 2-02-0 ----11 

- - ENGINEERS- PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS- LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
~ ~ 14775 St. August ine Rood 
~~S~~~ Jacksonville , Flor ido 32258 ~===-=..~ Cert ifi cate of Aut hor izat ion No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646 - 9485 

SCALE: 1'' = 2,000 ' 

PLATE NO: SA 



STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

England• Thim) 
~~ - & mill<?r ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS -LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;,~~= j~:~;on5v~ile~u(l~~i~~e 3~3ii ~===:.~ Cert ific ate of Aut hori zat ion No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904 ) 642 - 8990 
Fa x No. (904) 646 - 9485 

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
FACILTY 
DENOTES OUTFALL 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 

ETM. NO. 19- 215 

4000 

DATE OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1" = 2,000 ' 

PLATE NO: 9 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

England• Thim) 

====== - & millC?r,lnc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;.~~= j~:;;on5v~ile~u(l~~i~~e 3~;ii ~===:.~ Certificate of Authorizat ion No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fa x No. (904) 646 - 9485 

~-_, DENOTES SERIES 2020 PROJECT 
STORMWA TER MANAGEMENT F ACIUTY 

DENOTES SERIES SERIES 2020 
PROJECT OUTFALL 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 

ETM. NO. 19 - 215 

4000 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN (SERIES 2020 PROJECT) 
DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 9A 



NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

En9land · T him) ===== &millC?r,lnc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;.~~= j~:~;on5v~i1/ u(l~~i~~e 3~;ii ~== ::=..~ Ce rtifi cate o f Auth o rization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904 ) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

- DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19- 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 10 



NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS (SERIES 2020 PROJECT)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

~~ England • Thim) 
- &millC?r,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;.~~=-j~~;:on5v\i1/ u(l~~i~~e 3~;ii ~===:~=~ .. ~ Cer tifica t e o f Auth or iza tion No.:2584 

Phone No. (904 ) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

- DENOTES SERIES 2020 PROJECT 
NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 

ETM. NO. 19 - 215 

4000 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 1 OA 



STREET LIGHTING
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

• DENOTES APPROXIMATE STREET LIGHT LOCATION FOR 
STREET LIGHTS NOT YET INSTALLED 

England• Thim) 
- • millC?r,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHllECTS :.-~~=-j~:::on5v\i1e~u(l~~i~~e 3~3ii ~===-=...~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19 - 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 11 



STREET LIGHTING (SERIES 2020 PROJECT)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

• DENOTES APPROXIMATE SERIES 2020 
PROJECT STREET LIGHT LOCATION 

~~England• Thim) 
- & millC?r ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS -PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS -LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;,~~= j~:;;on5v~i1/u(l~~i~~e 3~3ii 
-:r,=:==.:.~ Cert ifi cate of Authorizat ion No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904 ) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19- 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 202 0 

SCALE: 1" = 2,00 0 ' 

PLATE NO: 11A 



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
WATER MAIN 

==== England• Thim) 
- &millC?r,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~=- j~~;:on5v~i1/u(l~~i~~e 3~3ii ~===-=...~ Certificate of Author izat ion No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19 - 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 12 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES SERIES 2020 
PROJECT WATER MAIN 0 

~~England• Thim) 
- &millC?r ,Inc. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (SERIES 2020 PROJECT) 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS -LANDSCAPE ARCHllECTS ;,~~= j~:~;on5v\i1e~u(l~~i~~e 3~3ii 
-:r,==, :::.,:.~ Certifi ca t e of Auth or izati on No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fa x No. (904) 646 - 9485 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19- 215 

DATE OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 12A 



SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
SANITARY SEWER 

England· Thim) 
==== &millC?r,lnc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~=- j~~;;on5v~i1/u(l~~i~~e 3~;ii ~====-..~ Certificate of Author izat ion No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904) 642 - 8990 
Fox No. (904) 646 - 9485 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19 - 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 13 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOlES SERIES 2020 
PROJECT SANITARY SEWER 

0 

England• Thim) 

====== - & millC?r ,Inc. SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM (SERIES 2020 PROJECT) 
- - ENGINEERS- PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS :-s5.= j~:;;o n5v~ile~u(l~~i~~e 3~~ii ~==='=...~ Cert ifi cate of Aut hor ization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904 ) 642 - 8990 
Fa x No. (90 4) 646 - 9485 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19- 215 

DATE: OCTOBER 8, 202 0 

SCALE: 1" = 2, 000 ' 

PLATE NO: 13A 



                            
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

 
Preliminary Special Assessment Methodology Report for 

the Series 2020 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) 

  
 

                                    October 6, 2020 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   2 

 
 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 

 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Executive Summary ......................................................................  3 
1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits ........................................ 5          
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology .................. 5
           

 
2.0 The Series 2020 Special Assessment Bonds 

2.1 Development Plan Overview ....................................................... 6  
2.3      Bond Description              …………………………………………… 6 
 
 

3.0 Assessment Allocation 
3.1 Structure .......................................................................................... 6  
3.2 Assessment Allocation ................................................................... 7          
 
 

4.0 True Up Mechanism     .............................................................................. 8         
  

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls     .......................................................................... 8         
        ........................................................................................................... 
            ..................................................................................................  
6.0 Appendix 
 
            Table 1   Development Program       ……………………………………10 
            Table 2   Series 2020 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds  ..…….11 
            Table 3   Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2020 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds …. …………..……..12 
            Table 4   Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2020 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds with Annexed 
                           Lands               ………………………………… …………..……..13 
 
            Table 5   Assessment Roll Series 2020 Capital Improvement  

Revenue Bonds   …………………………….. …………………14       
 
  
Attachment Assessment Area 3 - Legal description Phase  



   3 

 1.0 Introduction 
        

1.1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 The District 

 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the “District”), 
a local unit of special-purpose government, was established 
by rule number 42GGG-1 adopted by the Florida Land and 
Water Adjudicatory Commission on March 7, 2007. The District 
encompasses approximately 1,282.15 acres of land located 
within the unincorporated area of St. Johns County, Florida, 
and was established for the purpose of, among other things, 
financing and managing the acquisition, construction, 
maintenance and operation of major infrastructure necessary 
for development to occur within the District. 
 
The TrailMark development located within the District is a 
master planned, amenitized, residential community. The 
planned development will include approximately 2,278 
residential units composed of single-family, patio and 
townhomes along with multi-family housing. 
 
1.1.2 Assessment Areas 
 
The District has created three (3) separate Assessment Areas to 
carry out its financing program. Additional Areas may be 
created over time.   
 
Assessment Area 1, consists of approximately 153 acres and 
has been developed into 152 residential lots, all of which have 
been platted.  
 
Assessment Area 2 consists of approximately 545 acres and is 
planned for 1,185 residential lots.  Assessment Area 2 is being 
developed in 3 Phases:  305 lots in Phase 1, 401 lots in Phase 2 
and 503 lots in Phase 3.  
 
 
Assessment Area 3 (also referred to as the 2007 Assessment 
Area) consists of approximately 550 acres and Phase 1 is 
planned for 170 single family units on approximately 89.62 
acres. Other areas lands within Assessment Areas 3 will be 
developed in the future.   



   4 

 
The District is in the process of annexing approximately 6.80 
acres into the District that is planned for 24 single family units. 
These annexed lands would be included in Assessment Area 3 
and as such this report would be supplemented when upon 
such annexation to include such lands. 
 
 
1.1.3 The 2007, 2016, 2017 and 2020 Bonds 
 

                        The District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted the 
Improvement Plan for the Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds 
dated December 1, 2006 (the “CIP”), as supplemented by the 
District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007, the Supplemental 
Engineers Report for 2014 Capital Improvements dated 
November 12, 2014, the Supplemental Engineers Report for the 
Series 2016 Capital Improvements (“2016 Engineers Report”)  
dated March 16, 2016 and the supplemental Engineers Report 
for the Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated June 5, 2017 
(collectively, the Engineer’s Report”), which describe the 
public infrastructure improvements financed in part by the 
District’s issuance of Bonds secured by special assessments 
levied on the lands within the District (the “CIP”). 

 
The District has previously issued its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “2007 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A (the “2016A 
Bonds”), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2017A 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the “2017A Bonds”) and its 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B 
(Assessment area 2, Phase 2)(the “2017B Bonds”) to finance 
portions of the CIP. For the Series 2020 Bonds an additional 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report dated September 22, 2020 for 
the Series 2020 Capital Improvements (“2020 Engineer’s 
Report”) describes the  project , which will be partially funded 
by the 2020 Bonds which 2020 Bonds are secured by the District 
Lands within Assessment Area 3 Phase 1 (“2020 Project”).  

 
                      The Board has previously adopted Resolutions 2007-12, 2007-13 

and 2007-18 (collectively the “Master Assessment Resolutions”) 
and approved its Special Assessment Master Methodology 
Report dated March 30, 2007 (the “Master Assessment 
Report”).  Together, the Master Assessment Resolutions and the 



   5 

Master Assessment Report levied a master assessment lien 
across all developable property within the District based on the 
benefit derived from the CIP (the “Master Assessment Lien”).  

 
                      In connection with the issuance of the 2007 Bonds, the Board 

adopted Resolution 2007-24 (the “2007 Assessment 
Resolution”) and approved its Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report Final Numbers dated June 
28, 2007 (the “2007 Assessment Report”).  The Series 2007 
Assessment Resolution and the Series 2007 Supplemental 
Assessment Report provided for the manner in which a portion 
of the Master Assessment Lien would be allocated to secure 
the 2007 Bond. 
 
A detailed estimated Sources and Uses of funds for the Phase 
1 Bonds is contained in Table 2.  

 
 

1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits 
 

Improvements undertaken by the District as described in the 
CIP create special and peculiar benefits, different in kind and 
degree than general benefits, for properties within its borders 
as well as general benefits to the public at large.  

 
As contained in the Master Assessment Report the benefit from 
the CIP was based upon $131,449,000 of construction costs for 
the system of improvements. The 2014 Engineer’s Report 
estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP, in part 
because it describes additional improvements. Because the 
CIP is a system of improvements, the additional improvements 
increase the overall benefit to all developable lands within the 
District. Notwithstanding the additional improvements 
described in the 2014 Engineer’s Report, the benefit findings 
and methodology contained in the Master Methodology 
report still apply and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

 
Special Assessments under Florida law, to be valid, must meet 
two requirements. The first requirement is that the properties 
assessed must receive a special benefit from the 
improvements paid for by the assessments. The second 



   6 

requirement is that the assessments must be fairly and 
reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. 
 
Florida law provides for a wide application of special 
assessments that meet these two characteristics of special 
assessments.  
 

 
2.0 The Series 2020 Special Assessment Bonds 
 
                      

2.1 Development Plan - Overview 
 

The Developer of the property within the District has defined 
the land uses for the property. The land uses are described in 
in Table 1 (Appendix) (“Development Plan”) associated with 
the Phase 1 Bonds. The Development Plan may change 
dependent upon future market conditions. The lands securing 
the 2020 Bonds are referred to as Phase 1 planned for 170 lots. 
If the planned annexation of 6.80 acres and 24 single family 
units takes place, then the District will spread the lien of the 
special Assessments securing the 2020 bonds upon such lands 
in accordance with this Report and the Master Report. 
 

2.2 Bond Description 
 

The 2020 Bonds are anticipated to be issued with a thirty-year 
term and an anticipated interest rate of 5.00%. Interest is 
capitalized for 36 months and the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
(“DSRF”) is equal to the annual Maximum Annual Debt Service 
(“MADS”) of $942,942 net of discount and collection costs. 
 
The 2020 Bonds are anticipated to be issued at a par amount 
of $14,495,000. See estimated bond terms on Table 2. 
 

 
 
3.0 Assessment Allocation 
 

3.1      Structure 
 

The debt required to finance the CIP is allocated to the 
benefited lands within the District consistent with the Master 
Assessment Report. As noted above, the 2014 Engineer’s 



   7 

Report estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP 
increasing the overall benefit to all developable lands within 
the District. The Assessment Area 3 Phase 1 Project costs are 
estimated at $10,636,998. The Series 2020 Bonds will provide for 
construction funds in the approximate amount of $10,636,998 
for the Assessment Area 3 Phase 1 Project.  
 

  
3.2 Assessment Allocation 

 
Based upon the CIP, the District’s assessment consultant and 
underwriter determined the amount of bonds required to fund 
the infrastructure costs. 
 
The CIP consists of roadway improvements, potable water, 
wastewater, landscaping, monumentation, signage and 
community recreation improvements that benefit all lands 
within the District. The CIP consists of a system of improvements 
that benefits all developable property equally. The 2007 Bonds 
were issued to finance a portion of the acquisition and 
construction of the 2007 Improvement Plan, which comprises a 
portion of the CIP.  The 2020 Bonds are being issued to fund a 
portion of the 2020 Project, which makes up an additional 
portion of the CIP. As with the 2020 Bonds, it is anticipated that 
future bond issues will occur to finance future projects 
associated with the remaining CIP.   

 
 
Assessments securing the 2020 Bonds are levied on the   89.62 
gross undeveloped acres in Phase 1.  As land is developed and 
platted, the 2020 Assessments will be allocated on a first 
platted basis to developed and platted lots with an 
identifiable folio number. The 2020 Bonds are expected to be 
allocated to and fully absorbed by the 170 lots in Phase 1 as 
contained on Table 3.  
 
The District is contemplating the annexing of 6.80 acres that 
are planned for 24 single family units into the District. If the 
annexation takes place, then this report will be supplemented 
to include such lands and the planned 24 single family units. If 
the annexation does not occur, then it is anticipated that the 
Developer will prepay a portion of the debt on each of the 170 
lots. Alternatively, the developer may not make such 
prepayments and the assessment amounts per lot remain 



   8 

unchanged. Such prepayment amounts have not been 
established at this time. 
 
 

 
4.0 True – Up Mechanism  

 
In order to assure that the District’s debt will not build up on 
unsold acres, and to assure that the requirements that the non-
ad valorem assessments will be constitutionally lienable on the 
property will continue to be met, the District shall determine the 
following. 
 
To assure that there will always be sufficient development 
potential in the undivided property to assure payment of debt 
service after a plat or site plan approval, the following test will 
be applied. The test is that the par debt per acre remaining on 
the unplatted land within Assessment Area 3 Phase 1 is never 
allowed to increase above its maximum per acre level.  
 
The 2020 Bonds are anticipated to be issued at par for 
$14,495,000. Phase1, planned for 170 units as contained on 
Table 1, is 89.62 acres. The maximum debt per acre is $161,738 
for the 2020 Bonds. Therefore, at the time of platting, if only a 
portion of the parcel is platted, then the remaining unplatted 
developable acres within the parcel cannot exceed a per 
acre debt of $161,738. If the remaining developable acres 
have debt in excess of $161,738 per acre, a true-up payment 
will be due upon platting or site plan approval. If the entire 
parcel is platted and the assignment of debt to the platted lots 
is not sufficient to absorb the total debt a true-up payment will 
be due upon platting or site plan approval.  
 

 
 

 
5.0 Final Assessment Rolls 

 
Final assessment rolls reflecting the allocation of special 
assessments securing repayment of the 2020 Bonds are 
attached hereto as the lands to be developed into the 170 lots 
in Phase 1. The lands remaining in the 029010-0000 folio after 
the adjustment for the 170 lots will secure the 2007 Bonds and 
the remaining 2016B Bonds. The Series 2007 debt will remain 



   9 

solely on the lands within Assessment Area 3, which are the 
lands outside of Assessment Areas 1 and 2 other than Phase 1 
of Assessment Area 3. As previously noted, If the planned 
annexation of 6.80 acres and 24 single family units takes place, 
then the District will spread the lien of the special Assessments 
securing the 2020 bonds to such lands in accordance with this 
Report and the Master Report. Table 4 provides for the Par 
Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2020 which includes 
the annexed lands and additional 24 development units. 
 



                          Table 1          Table 1
                  Six Mile Creek Community Development District
 Development Program Capital Improvement Renue Bonds Series 2020
                                (Assessment Area 3 , Phase 1)

Land Use 2020 Units

Single Family 
Residential:

Phase 1
43' lot 52

53' lot 73

63' lot 45

Sub Total
170

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



                                    Table 2
                         Six Mile Creek Community Development District
                       Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2020
           (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) - Sources and Uses of Funds

Sources: 2020

Bond Proceeds - Par Amount $14,495,000
  Original Issue Discount

Total Sources of Funds $14,495,000

Uses:

Construction Funds $10,636,998
Debt Service Reserve Fund MADS (1) $942,942
Interest Reserve $2,174,250
Cost of Issuance $740,810

Total Uses of Funds $14,495,000

Average Coupon Interest Rate 5.00%

Term 30 years

CAPI period 36 months

(1) Net of maximum early payment discount and collection costs.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



                       Table 3
         Six Mile Creek Community Development District
  Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations - Series 2020 

  Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Land Use 2020 Bond 2020 Bond 2020 Bond
 Par Total  Net per Unit Total  Gross per Unit

Single Family Debt per Unit Par Debt Annual  Annual Net Annual
Residential: No. of Units  2020 Bond  2020 Bond Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service (1)

43' lot 52 $69,206 $3,598,712 $4,502 $234,104 $4,789

53' lot 73 $85,272 $6,224,863 $5,547 $404,931 $5,901

63' lot 45 $103,809 $4,671,425 $6,753 $303,907 $7,184

Total 170 $14,495,000 $942,942

(1) Include 4% provision for early payment discount and 2% collection costs for St Johns County.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



                       Table 4
         Six Mile Creek Community Development District
  Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations - Series 2020 

  Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds
       Including Annexed Lands

Land Use 2020 Bond 2020 Bond 2020 Bond
 Par Total  Net per Unit Total  Gross per Unit

Single Family Debt per Unit Par Debt Annual  Annual Net Annual
Residential: No. of Units  2020 Bond  2020 Bond Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service (1)

43' lot 76 $62,092 $4,718,982 $4,039 $306,984 $4,297

53' lot 73 $76,505 $5,584,833 $4,977 $363,310 $5,294

63' lot 45 $93,137 $4,191,184 $6,059 $272,649 $6,445

Total 194 $14,495,000 $942,942

(1) Include 4% provision for early payment discount and 2% collection costs for St Johns County.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



                   Table 5Table 5
           Six Mile Creek Community Development District
  Assessment Roll Series 2020 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

                         Annual Assessments

2020 2020 2020 2020
Gross Asmnt Net Asmnt Total Net Bond Debt Total 2020

Account # Owner Lot Type Asmnt Units Per Unit (2) Per Unit Assessments Per Unit Bond Debt

029010-0000 (1) 43' 52 $4,789 $4,502 $234,104 $69,206 $3,598,712

029010-0000 (1) 53' 73 $5,901 $5,547 $404,931 $85,272 $6,224,863

029010-0000 (1) 63' 45 $7,184 $6,753 $303,907 $103,809 $4,671,425

Phase 3 170 $942,942 $14,495,000

(1) Owner is   

(2) Gross assessment per unit includes 4% for early payment discount and 2% for St Johns County collection costs.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



A PORTION OF SECTION 6, AND SECTION 38, JOSE PAPY GRANT, ALL LYING IN TOWNSHIP 7 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, ALSO BEING PORTION OF THE PLAT OF 
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4, UNIT D AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 83, PAGES 59 THROUGH 69 
(INCLUSIVE) OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA AND ALSO BEING A 
PORTION OF THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 5 UNIT B AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 93, 
PAGES 1 THROUGH 8 (INCLUSIVE) OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
FOR A POINT OF REFERENCE, COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE PLAT OF 
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT D, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 83, PAGES 59 THROUGH 69 
(INCLUSIVE), ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 5 
UNIT B, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 93, PAGES 1 THROUGH 8 (INCLUSIVE) ALL OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 67°55'56" WEST, ALONG THE 
SOUTHEAST LINE THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 460.78 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. THENCE 
NORTH 21°55'30" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 113.51 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
TRACT NO. 7, AS SHOWN ON THE SAID PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT D; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, THE FOLLOWING 11 COURSES AND DISTANCES: 
COURSE 1) THENCE NORTH 73°55'15" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 64.55 FEET; COURSE 2) THENCE 
NORTH 78°01'17" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 34.06 FEET; COURSE 3) THENCE NORTH 74°24'30" 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 43.00 FEET; COURSE 4) THENCE NORTH 71°03'31" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
53.57 FEET; COURSE 5) THENCE NORTH 63°19'13" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 38.92 FEET; COURSE 6) 
THENCE NORTH 72°00'55" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 38.74 FEET; COURSE 7) THENCE NORTH 
45°03'38" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 38.98 FEET; COURSE 8) THENCE NORTH 83°06'21" EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 21.59 FEET; COURSE 9) THENCE NORTH 62°51'26" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.80 
FEET; COURSE 10) THENCE NORTH 60°41'54" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 39.90 FEET; COURSE 11) 
THENCE SOUTH 86°01'16" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 66.32 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF 
THE SAID PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT D, ALSO BEING THE WEST LINE OF SAID PLAT 
OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 5 UNIT B; THENCE SOUTH 74°07'15" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 345.04 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 37°22'51" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 185.81 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 60°53'56" 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 666.95 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 78°58'59" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1147.41 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 19°29'28" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 757.57 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 68°02'59" 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 287.92 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 81°26'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 166.70 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°47'16" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 532.60 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A 
NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 45.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 65.49 FEET, SAID 
CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 40°58'13" WEST, 
59.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY AND 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 355.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A 
DISTANCE OF 115.03 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 73°22'56" WEST, 114.53 FEET TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF 
A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY 
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 43.90 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 84°27'30" WEST, 41.73 FEET TO THE END OF 
SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 35°22'29" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 553.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 



67°16'16" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 46.97 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 6.82 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY 
A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 59°27'15" WEST, 6.80 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 51°38'14" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 37.18 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 5.01 FEET, SAID 
CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 45°53'56" WEST, 
5.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 40°09'39" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 38.61 
FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 27.52 
FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 
08°37'24" WEST, 26.15 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 22°54'52" EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 25.55 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 17°33'58" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 36.53 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 47°45'02" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 27.29 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 63°42'55" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 34.54 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 46°22'23" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 38.45 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 62°04'45" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 26.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 18.34 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 41°03'40" WEST, 17.93 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 20°02'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 18.19 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
50°35'22" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 87.92 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 429.37 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 330.13 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 69°27'13" WEST, 322.06 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; 
THENCE NORTH 88°31'13" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 119.10 FEET; THENCE NORTH 75°59'31" 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 47.23 FEET; THENCE NORTH 69°09'18" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 118.71 
FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY AND HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 
19.80 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 
74°55'52" WEST, 19.29 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 82°22'47" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 40.15 FEET; THENCE NORTH 72°54'11" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 72°31'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 18.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 43°39'23" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 23.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY 
AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A 
DISTANCE OF 25.83 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF NORTH 73°15'23" WEST, 24.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 
77°08'36" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 24.40 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 78°02'58" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
38.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 60°59'52" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 6.82 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
77°15'19" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 75.98 FEET; THENCE NORTH 55°18'57" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
48.47 FEET; THENCE NORTH 52°51'17" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 18.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
25°26'04" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 24.38 FEET; THENCE NORTH 19°17'11" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
84.11 FEET; THENCE NORTH 20°46'21" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 92.03 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
04°36'29" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2.38 FEET; THENCE NORTH 04°06'34" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 



73.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 03°24'02" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 105.31 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
15°07'18" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 141.79 FEET; THENCE NORTH 13°56'34" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
105.27 FEET; THENCE NORTH 07°47'33" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 102.70 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
03°50'15" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 39.70 FEET; THENCE NORTH 38°38'37" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
24.79 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°39'11" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 23.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
74°29'59" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 26.81 FEET; THENCE NORTH 71°44'17" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
32.21 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°02'40" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 21.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
67°54'57" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 31.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 61.64 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 76°45'52" EAST, 57.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; 
THENCE NORTH 41°26'40" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 16.30 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82°15'05" EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 14.27 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 29.05 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 65°36'23" EAST, 28.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; 
THENCE NORTH 48°57'42" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 25.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 65°59'43" EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 28.26 FEET; THENCE NORTH 59°00'04" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 28.42 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 63°51'02" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 121.28 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°12'07" EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 50.99 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY 
AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A 
DISTANCE OF 13.96 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF NORTH 76°47'55" EAST, 13.78 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE NORTH 60°47'57" 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 28.47 FEET; THENCE NORTH 79°16'50" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 18.38 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 10°43'10" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 20.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THOSE LANDS AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 4666, PAGE 1496 OF SAID PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE NORTH 88°46'23" EAST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 31.91 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 
01°13'37" WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1080.00 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH 88°46'23" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE 
THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 330.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH 
01°13'37" EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 920.47 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
84°12'55" WEST, DEPARTING LAST SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 32.10 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; 
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 31.57 FEET, SAID CURVE 
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 77°41'56" WEST, 31.04 
FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE THENCE SOUTH 59°36'48" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
41.54 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY AND 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A 
DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF SOUTH 48°39'57" WEST, 18.99 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 
37°43'06" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 16.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°16'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
25.95 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY AND HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 



16.36 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 
81°21'27" WEST, 16.29 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 71°58'54" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 31.29 FEET; THENCE NORTH 81°44'44" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 19.38 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 80°27'42" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 52.47 FEET; THENCE NORTH 62°23'06" WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 31.72 FEET; THENCE NORTH 33°58'28" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 7.85 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 29°43'10" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 38.19 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE WESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 29.52 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 12°48'24" EAST, 29.09 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; 
THENCE NORTH 04°06'22" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 106.98 FEET; THENCE NORTH 05°54'55" 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 131.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 03°36'23" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 136.60 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 05°56'34" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 130.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE  WESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE 
NORTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A DISTANCE OF 15.73 FEET, SAID CURVE BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 03°04'05" WEST, 15.66 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE NORTH 12°04'45" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 121.83 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 05°02'28" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 147.80 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°41'11" 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 63.95 FEET; THENCE NORTH 20°24'01" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 43.65 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 11°38'18" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 19.58 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°55'30" WEST, 
A DISTANCE OF 155.38 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF 
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT D AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED LANDS CONTAIN 89.62 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
LESS AND EXCEPT ANY PORTION OF THOSE LANDS AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
4666, PAGE 1496 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2021-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON 
_____________, 2020, AT __________ __.M., AT 
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, 
LOCATED AT 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 
114, WORLD GOLF VILLAGE, ST. AUGUSTINE, 
FLORIDA 32092, FOR THE PURPOSE OF HEARING 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON IMPOSING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS ON CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE DISTRICT GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS THE 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTERS 
170, 190, AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (“Board”) previously adopted Resolution 2021-01, entitled  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
DECLARING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS TO 
SECURE ITS 2020 BONDS; INDICATING THE 
LOCATION, NATURE AND ESTIMATED COST OF 
THOSE IMPROVEMENTS WHOSE COST IS TO BE 
DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; 
PROVIDING THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE DEFRAYED BY THE 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE 
MANNER IN WHICH SUCH SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE MADE; PROVIDING 
WHEN SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE 
PAID; DESIGNATING LANDS UPON WHICH THE 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE LEVIED; 
PROVIDING FOR AN ASSESSMENT PLAT; 
ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT 
ROLL; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF 
THIS RESOLUTION. 
 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Resolution 2021-01, a preliminary assessment roll 
has been prepared and all other conditions precedent set forth in Chapters 170 and 190, 
Florida Statutes, to the holding of the aforementioned public hearing have been satisfied, 
and the roll and related documents are available for public inspection at Governmental 



Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District Records Office”). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE 
CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. There is hereby declared a public hearing to be held at _________ 
_.m., on _____________, 2020, at Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092, for the purpose of 
hearing comment and objections to the proposed special assessment program for 
community improvements as identified in the preliminary assessment roll, a copy of 
which is on file.  Affected parties may appear at that hearing or submit their comments in 
writing prior to the meeting to the office of the District Manager, Governmental 
Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32092. 
      
 SECTION 2. Notice of said hearing shall be advertised in accordance with 
Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, and the District Manager is hereby 
authorized and directed to place said notice in a newspaper of general circulation within 
St. Johns County (by two publications one week apart with the last publication at least 
one week prior to the date of the hearing established herein).  The District Manager shall 
file a publisher’s affidavit with the District Secretary verifying such publication of notice.  
The District Manager is further authorized and directed to give thirty (30) days written 
notice by mail of the time and place of this hearing to the owners of all property to be 
assessed and include in such notice the amount of the assessment for each such property 
owner, a description of the areas to be improved and notice that information concerning 
all assessments may be ascertained at the District Records Office.  The District Manager 
shall file proof of such mailing by affidavit with the District Secretary. 
 
 SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage. 
  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of October, 2020. 
 
 
Attest:      SIX MILE CREEK 
      COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairman, Board of Supervisors 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

54952725;1 

RESOLUTION 2021-03 

A RESOLUTION OF SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTING ITS RESOLUTION 2007-14 BY 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ITS SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020 (ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 1) IN 
AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT EXCEEDING $6,500,000 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF ACQUIRING AND CONSTRUCTING 
ASSESSABLE IMPROVEMENTS; DELEGATING TO THE CHAIRMAN 
OR VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE 
PROVISIONS HEREOF, THE AUTHORITY TO AWARD THE SALE OF 
SUCH BONDS TO FMSBONDS, INC. BY EXECUTING AND 
DELIVERING TO SUCH UNDERWRITER A BOND PURCHASE 
CONTRACT AND APPROVING THE FORM THEREOF; APPROVING 
THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN EIGHTH 
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE; APPROVING U.S. BANK 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION AS THE TRUSTEE, BOND REGISTRAR 
AND PAYING AGENT FOR SUCH BONDS; MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS; APPROVING THE FORM OF SUCH BONDS; APPROVING 
THE FORM OF THE PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM AND AUTHORIZING THE USE BY THE 
UNDERWRITER OF THE PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM AND THE LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM 
AND THE EXECUTION OF THE LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM; APPROVING THE FORM OF THE CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS 
OF THE DISTRICT AND OTHERS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS REQUIRED 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF 
SAID BONDS; PROVIDING CERTAIN OTHER DETAILS WITH 
RESPECT TO SAID BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the “District”) is 
authorized by Florida Statutes, Chapter 190 (the “Act”) to issue its bonds for the purpose of 
acquiring and constructing assessable improvements all as provided in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized by the Act to make payments of principal, interest, 
and premium, if any, with respect to its bonds by levying and collecting special assessments on 
property located within the District and specially benefited by the assessable improvements to be 
financed with certain proceeds of its bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the District pursuant to its Resolution 2007-14 (the “Bond Resolution”) 
authorized the issuance of its not exceeding $171,000,000 principal amount of its special 
assessment revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) in separate series for the purposes set forth in said Bond 
Resolution and approved the form of the Master Indenture (hereinafter defined) in substantially 
the form attached to the Bond Resolution; and 



 

 2 
54952725;1 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No 2007-21, adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on May 17, 2007, the District has previously issued and sold $47,820,000 of its Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the 
“Original 2007 Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture and a First Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2007 (the “Original First Supplemental Indenture”), from the District 
to the Trustee, in order to secure the issuance of the Original 2007 Bonds and to set forth the terms 
of the Original 2007 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Indenture and an Amended and Restated First 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of November 20, 2014 (the “Amended and Restated First 
Supplemental Indenture”), the District bifurcated the Original 2007 Bonds into two series of 
Bonds, consisting of its Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A (the “2014A Bonds”) and the balance of the Original 2007 Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2015-11 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on November 19, 2014 (the “2014 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Second Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2015, the District 
issued its $3,165,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Assessment Area 1) (the “2015 
Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of refunding the 2014A 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-06 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on April 5, 2016 (the “2016 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Third Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2016, the District 
issued its $7,315,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A (Assessment Area 2) (the “2016A Bonds”) 
as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a portion of the 
Capital Improvement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2016 Authorizing Resolution and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2016, the District 
also issued its $6,720,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B (Assessment Area 2) (the “2016B 
Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a portion of 
the Capital Improvement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-12 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on July 19, 2017 (the “2017 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2017, the District 
issued its $10,620,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017A Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture, for the purpose of financing a 
portion of the Capital Improvement Plan; and 



 

 3 
54952725;1 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2017 Authorizing Resolution and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Sixth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2017, the District 
also issued its $3,980,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017B Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a 
portion of the Capital Improvement Plan and refunding a portion of the 2016B Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-08 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on January 15, 2020 and the Master Indenture, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020, the District issued its $7,020,000 principal 
amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement and Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) (the “Phase 3A Bonds”) as an issue 
of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a portion of the Capital 
Improvement Plan and refunding a portion of the 2016B Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the District now desires to supplement the Bond Resolution, to authorize the 
issuance of and award the sale of its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 
(Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the “Phase 1 Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount not 
exceeding $6,500,000, to approve the Supplemental Indenture (hereinafter defined) and to provide 
for various other matters relating to the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) has received from 
FMSbonds, Inc. (the “Underwriter”) a proposal in the form of a Bond Purchase Contract (the 
“Contract”) for the purchase of the Phase 1 Bonds and the Board has determined that acceptance 
of such proposal and the sale of the Phase 1 Bonds to the Underwriter is in the best interest of the 
District for the reasons hereafter indicated; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Definitions.  All words and phrases used herein in capitalized form, unless 
otherwise defined herein, shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Indenture (hereinafter 
defined). 

SECTION 2.  Authorization.  There is hereby authorized to be issued the Phase 1 Bonds 
in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding $6,500,000.  The Phase 1 Bonds shall be issued 
under, and secured by the Master Indenture as supplemented by that Eighth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture (the “Supplemental Indenture”) by and between the District and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”) (the Master Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture are 
referred to collectively as the “Indenture”).  The proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds shall be used for 
the purposes set forth in the Supplemental Indenture and the Limited Offering Memorandum 
(hereinafter defined). 

SECTION 3.  Approval of Supplemental Indentures.  The Supplemental Indenture is 
hereby approved in substantially the form set forth as part of Exhibit A hereto and the Chairman 
or the Vice Chairman of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
Supplemental Indenture on behalf of and in the name of the District and the Secretary or any 



 

 4 
54952725;1 

Assistant Secretary of the Board is hereby authorized to attest such execution, with such additions 
and deletions therein as may be made and approved by the Chairman or the Vice Chairman 
executing the same, such execution to be conclusive evidence of such approval.  The Trustee is 
hereby approved to serve as Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent under the Supplemental 
Indenture. 

SECTION 4.  Negotiated Sale.  The Board hereby determines that a negotiated sale of the 
Phase 1 Bonds to the Underwriter is in the best interest of the District because of prevailing market 
conditions, because delays caused by soliciting competitive bids could adversely affect the 
District’s ability to issue and deliver the Phase 1 Bonds at presently favorable interest rates, and 
because the nature of the security for the Phase 1 Bonds and the sources of payment of debt service 
on the Phase 1 Bonds require the participation of an underwriter in structuring the bond issue. 

SECTION 5.  Contract Approved.  The Board hereby approves the Contract submitted 
by the Underwriter in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B hereto.  The Chairman or Vice 
Chairman of the Board is hereby authorized to execute the Contract and to deliver the Contract to 
the Underwriter with such changes, amendments, modifications, omissions and additions as may 
be approved by the executing Chairman or Vice Chairman; provided that (i) the aggregate principal 
amount of the Phase 1 Bonds shall not exceed $6,500,000; (ii) the arbitrage yield on the Phase 1 
Bonds will not exceed four and one-half percent (4.50%) per annum; (iii) the Underwriter’s 
discount shall not exceed two percent (2%) of the principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds; and (iv) 
the final maturity of the Phase 1 Bonds shall be no later than the maximum term permitted by the 
Act.  If the Phase 1 Bonds are subject to optional redemption, the first optional call date and the 
redemption price shall be determined by the Chairman or Vice Chairman on or before the Bond 
Purchase Contract is executed by the District. 

SECTION 6.  Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and Limited Offering 
Memorandum. The District hereby approves the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum”) and authorizes its distribution and use by the Underwriter in connection with the 
offering for the sale of the Phase 1 Bonds. If between the date hereof and the mailing of the 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum it is necessary to make insertions, modifications and 
changes to the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, the Chairman or Vice Chairman is 
hereby authorized to approve such insertions, changes and modifications, and, the Chairman or 
Vice Chairman is hereby authorized to deem the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum 
“final” within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“Rule”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, in the form as mailed and in furtherance 
thereof to execute a certificate evidencing same.  The preparation of a final Limited Offering 
Memorandum is hereby approved and the Chairman or Vice Chairman is hereby authorized to 
execute such final Limited Offering Memorandum to be dated the date of the award of the Phase 
1 Bonds and, upon such award, to deliver the same to the Underwriter for use by it in connection 
with the sale and distribution of the Phase 1 Bonds.  The Limited Offering Memorandum shall be 
substantially in the form of the final Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, with such 
changes as shall be approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman as necessary to conform to the 
details of the Phase 1 Bonds and such other insertions, modifications and changes as may be 
approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman.  The execution and delivery of the Limited Offering 
Memorandum by the Chairman shall constitute evidence of the approval thereof.  The District 



 

 5 
54952725;1 

hereby authorizes the use of the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and the Limited 
Offering Memorandum and the information contained therein in connection with the offering and 
sale of the Phase 1 Bonds.  

SECTION 7.  Form of Phase 1 Bonds.  The Phase 1 Bonds shall be in substantially the 
form as set forth in the exhibit to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture, with such additions, deletions 
and other changes thereto as the officials of the Board executing the Phase 1 Bonds shall approve, 
such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Phase 1 Bonds (by manual or 
facsimile signature) by such officials.  The Board hereby authorizes and approves the use of a 
facsimile of the District seal on the Phase 1 Bonds. 

SECTION 8.  Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement (the “Disclosure Document”) relating to the Phase 1 Bonds in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit D is hereby approved.  Government Management Services, LLC, is 
hereby approved as the Dissemination Agent under the Disclosure Document.  The Chairman or 
Vice Chairman and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary are hereby authorized to execute on 
behalf of the District the Disclosure Document in substantially the form attached hereto, with such 
additions, deletions, and other changes as may be necessitated by applicable law, this Resolution 
and the Contract as such officers may approve (such approval to be conclusively evidenced by 
their execution of the Disclosure Document). 

SECTION 9.  Application of Phase 1 Bonds Proceeds.  Proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds, 
shall be applied as provided in the Supplemental Indenture. 

SECTION 10.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby found and determined that all official acts of 
this Board concerning and relating to the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, 
including but not limited to adoption of this Resolution, were taken in open meetings of the 
members of the Board and all deliberations of the members of the Board that resulted in such 
official acts were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements 
including, but not limited to, the requirement of Florida Statutes, Section 286.011. 

SECTION 11.  Other Actions.  The Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Secretary, any 
Assistant Secretary and the District Manager of the District, and any authorized designee thereof 
(collectively, the “District Officers”), Akerman LLP, as Bond Counsel, Hopping Green & Sams, 
the District’s Counsel, and any other consultant or experts retained by the District, are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance 
and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds and the consummation of all transactions in connection 
therewith.  The District Officers are hereby authorized and directed to execute all necessary or 
desirable certificates, documents, papers, and agreements necessary to the undertaking and 
fulfillment of all transactions referred to in or contemplated by the Indenture, the Preliminary 
Limited Offering Memorandum, the Limited Offering Memorandum, this Resolution, the 
Disclosure Document and the Contract. 

SECTION 12.  Other Agreements.  The District hereby authorizes and approves the 
execution and delivery by the District Officers of such completion agreements, acquisition 
agreements, assessment true-up agreements, collateral assignments of contract rights and other 
agreements and instruments, between the District and the owners of lands within the District as 



 

 6 
54952725;1 

shall be necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds 
and the consummation of all transactions in connection therewith.  Such agreements shall be in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting or on file with the Secretary, or subsequently 
prepared and approved by District Counsel, with such changes therein as shall be approved by the 
District Officers executing or accepting delivery of the same, with such execution or acceptance 
to constitute conclusive evidence of such officer’s approval and the District’s approval of any 
changes therein. 

SECTION 13.  Approval of Prior Actions.  All actions taken to date by the members of 
the Board and the officers, agents, and employees of the District in furtherance of the issuance of 
the Phase 1 Bonds are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified. 

SECTION 14.  Inconsistent Resolutions and Motions.  All prior resolutions of the Board 
inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution are hereby modified, supplemented and 
amended to conform with the provisions herein contained and, except as so modified, 
supplemented and amended hereby, shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 15.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this Resolution 
shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the 
remainder of this Resolution would have been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of 
such section, paragraph, clause or provision. 

SECTION 16.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
its adoption. 

ADOPTED this 21st day of October, 2020. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
By:_________________________________ 

Chairman 
[SEAL] 
Attest: 
 
By:____________________________________ 
           Secretary 
 
 
Exhibits 
A-Supplemental Indenture 
B-Bond Purchase Contract 
C-Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum 
D-Disclosure Document 



 

51035811;9 

 
__________________________________ 

 
EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE 

__________________________________ 

BETWEEN 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

AND 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
As Trustee 

_______________________________ 
 

Dated as of December 1, 2020 
_______________________________ 

Authorizing and Securing 
 

$__________ 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS 
SERIES 2020 (ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 1) 



 

  
51035811;9 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS 
SECTION 1.01 Definitions .........................................................................................5 

ARTICLE II AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND PROVISIONS OF PHASE 1 BONDS 
SECTION 2.01 Authorization of Phase 1 Bonds; Book-Entry Only Form ...........9 
SECTION 2.02 Terms ................................................................................................10 
SECTION 2.03 Dating; Interest Accrual ..................................................................10 
SECTION 2.04 Denominations ..................................................................................11 
SECTION 2.05 Paying Agent.....................................................................................11 
SECTION 2.06 Bond Registrar .................................................................................11 
SECTION 2.07 Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Phase 1 Bonds .....................11 

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF PHASE 1 BONDS 
SECTION 3.01 Bonds Subject to Redemption .........................................................13 
SECTION 3.02 Notice of Redemption ......................................................................13 
SECTION 3.03 Prepayment By Cancellation of Bonds Permitted ........................13 

ARTICLE IV CONFIRMATION OF ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF 
ACCOUNTS AND OPERATION THEREOF 

SECTION 4.01 Establishment of Accounts. .............................................................14 
SECTION 4.02 Use of Phase 1 Bond Proceeds .........................................................14 
SECTION 4.03 Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account. ...........................15 
SECTION 4.04 Phase 1 Reserve Account. ................................................................15 
SECTION 4.05 Amortization Installments. ..............................................................16 
SECTION 4.06 Tax Covenants and Rebate Accounts .............................................17 
SECTION 4.07 Phase 1 Revenue Account in Revenue Fund; Application of 

Revenues and Investment Earnings. ..............................................17 

ARTICLE V ASSESSMENT COVENANTS AND PROVISIONS 
SECTION 5.01 Additional Covenant Regarding Phase 1 Assessments .................20 
SECTION 5.02 Collection of Assessments ................................................................20 
SECTION 5.03 Additional Matters Relating to Delinquent Assessments. ............20 
SECTION 5.04 Additional Matters Relating to Phase 1 Assessments and 

Assessment Proceedings ..................................................................21 
SECTION 5.05 Provisions relating to Bankruptcy or Insolvency of Taxpayer. ...21 

ARTICLE VI LIMITATION ON ADDITIONAL BONDS 
SECTION 6.01 Limitation on Additional Bonds .....................................................25 

ARTICLE VII CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE 
SECTION 7.01 Acceptance by Trustee .....................................................................26 
SECTION 7.02 Limitation of Trustee’s Responsibility ...........................................26 
SECTION 7.03 Trustee’s Duties ................................................................................26 



 

51035811;9 

SECTION 7.04 Brokerage Confirmations. ...............................................................26 
SECTION 7.05 Patriot Act of Requirements of Trustee. ........................................26 

ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
SECTION 8.01 Amendment of Master Indenture ...................................................27 
SECTION 8.02 Additional Matters Relating to Events of Default ........................27 
SECTION 8.03 Confirmation of Master Indenture .................................................28 
SECTION 8.04 Assignment of Collateral Assignment. ...........................................28 
SECTION 8.05 Continuing Disclosure Agreement ..................................................28 
SECTION 8.06 Amendments .....................................................................................28 
SECTION 8.07 Counterparts ....................................................................................28 
SECTION 8.08 Appendices and Exhibits .................................................................28 
SECTION 8.09 No Rights Conferred on Others ......................................................28 
 
 
 



 

  
51035811;9 

THIS EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE (the “Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture”), dated as of December 1, 2020, between Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the “Issuer” or the “District”), a local unit of special-purpose government organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Florida, and U.S. Bank National Association, a national 
banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, 
as successor trustee to Regions Bank (said banking association and any bank or trust company 
becoming successor trustee under this Eighth Supplemental Indenture being hereinafter referred 
to as the “Trustee”); 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government duly organized and 
existing under the provisions of the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose, among other things, of 
financing and managing the acquisition and construction, maintenance, and operation of the major 
infrastructure within and without the boundaries of the premises to be governed by the District; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District has entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2007 
(the “Master Indenture”) with the Trustee to secure the issuance of its Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, issuable in one or more series from 
time to time; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2007-14, adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the 
District (the “Governing Body”) on March 30, 2007 (as supplemented by the Award Resolution 
hereinafter defined, the “Bond Resolution”), the District authorized the issuance, sale and delivery 
of not to exceed $171,000,000 of its Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds (the “Bonds”), to be issued in one or more Series of Bonds from 
time to time as authorized under the Master Indenture, which Bonds were validated by final 
judgment of the Circuit Court of St. Johns County, Florida on May 16, 2007; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the District duly adopted Resolution No. 2007-12, on 
March 30, 2007, providing for the acquisition, construction and installation of assessable capital 
improvements (the “Capital Improvement Program”), providing estimated Costs of the Capital 
Improvement Program, defining assessable property to be benefited by the Capital Improvement 
Program, defining the portion of the Costs of the Capital Improvement Program with respect to 
which Assessments will be imposed and the manner in which such Assessments shall be levied 
against such benefited property within the District, directing the preparation of an assessment roll, 
and, stating the intent of the District to issue Bonds of the District secured by such Assessments to 
finance the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Capital Improvement 
Program (the “Preliminary Assessment Resolution”) and the Governing Body of the District duly 
adopted Resolution No. 2007-18, on June 21, 2007, following a public hearing conducted in 
accordance with the Act, to fix and establish the Assessments on the benefited property 
(collectively, the “Assessment Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No 2007-21, adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on May 17, 2007 (the “2007 Award Resolution”), the District authorized the issuance, sale 

----------



 

 2 
51035811;9 

and delivery of $52,000,000 of its Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “Original 2007 Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under 
the Master Indenture and authorized a First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2007 (the 
“Original First Supplemental Indenture”), from the District to the Trustee, in order to secure the 
issuance of the Original 2007 Bonds and to set forth the terms of the Original 2007 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Indenture and an Amended and Restated First 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of November 20, 2014 (the “Amended and Restated First 
Supplemental Indenture”) the District bifurcated the Original 2007 Bonds into two series of Bonds, 
consisting of its Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2014A (the “2014A Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $3,140,000 and 
the balance of the Original 2007 Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $42,700,000; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2015-11 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on November 19, 2014 (the “2014 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Second Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2015, the District 
issued its $3,165,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Assessment Area 1) (the “2015 
Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of refunding the 2014A 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-06 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on April 5, 2016 (the “2016 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Third Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2016, the District 
issued its $7,315,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A (Assessment Area 2) (the “2016A Bonds”) 
as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a portion of the 
Capital Improvement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2016 Authorizing Resolution and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2016, the District 
also issued its $6,720,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B (Assessment Area 2) (the “2016B 
Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a portion of 
the Capital Improvement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-12 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on July 19, 2017 (the “2017 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2017, the District 
issued its $10,620,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017A Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture, for the purpose of financing a 
portion of the Capital Improvement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2017 Authorizing Resolution and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by a Sixth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2017, the District 
also issued its $3,980,000 initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 



 

 3 
51035811;9 

District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017B Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a 
portion of the Capital Improvement Plan and refunding a portion of the 2016B Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-08 adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on January 15, 2020 and the Master Indenture, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020, the District issued its $7,020,000 principal 
amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement and Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) (the “Phase 3A Bonds”) as an issue 
of Bonds under the Master Indenture for the purpose of financing a portion of the Capital 
Improvement Plan and refunding a portion of the 2016B Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-__ adopted by the Governing Body of the 
District on October __, 2020 (the “2020 Authorizing Resolution”) and the Master Indenture, as 
supplemented by this Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the District also authorized the 
issuance of $_________ initial principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the 
“Phase 1 Bonds”) as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture, and has authorized the 
execution and delivery of this Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture to secure the issuance of the 
Phase 1 Bonds and to set forth the terms of the Phase 1 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the District will apply the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds to: (i) finance a 
portion of the Cost of acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of a portion of the 
Capital Improvement Program (hereinafter the “Phase 1 Project”); (ii) pay interest on the Phase 1 
Bonds through November 1, 20__; (iii) pay certain costs associated with the issuance of the Phase 
1 Bonds; and (iv) fund the Phase 1 Reserve Account as herein provided; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds and of this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture have been duly authorized by the Governing Body of the District and all 
things necessary to make the Phase 1 Bonds, when executed by the District and authenticated by 
the Trustee, valid and binding legal obligations of the District and to make this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture a valid and binding agreement and, together with the Master Indenture, a 
valid and binding lien on the Phase 1 Trust Estate (as defined below, which is a “Series Trust 
Estate” for purposes of the Master Indenture) have been done; 

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THIS EIGHTH 
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE WITNESSETH: 

That the District, in consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the 
trusts hereby created, the mutual covenants herein contained, the purchase and acceptance of the 
Phase 1 Bonds by the purchaser or purchasers thereof, and other good and valuable consideration, 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to further secure the payment of the 
principal and Redemption Price of, and interest on, all Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding from time to 
time, according to their tenor and effect, and such other payments required to be made under the 
Master Indenture or hereunder, and to further secure the observance and performance by the 
District of all the covenants, expressed or implied in the Master Indenture, in this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture and in the Phase 1 Bonds: (a) has executed and delivered this Eighth 



 

 4 
51035811;9 

Supplemental Indenture and (b) does hereby, in confirmation of the Master Indenture, grant, 
bargain, sell, convey, transfer, assign and pledge unto the Trustee, and unto its successors in the 
trusts under the Master Indenture, and to them and their successors and assigns forever, all right, 
title and interest of the District, in, to and under, subject to the terms and conditions of the Master 
Indenture, as amended hereby, and the provisions of the Master Indenture pertaining to the 
application thereof for or to the purposes and on the terms set forth in the Master Indenture as 
amended hereby the revenues derived by the District from the Phase 1 Assessments pledged to the 
Phase 1 Bonds (the “Phase 1 Pledged Revenues”) and the Funds and Accounts established for the 
Phase 1 Bonds, including, without limitation, the Phase 1 Reserve Account (except for the Phase 
1 Rebate Account) established by the Master Indenture as amended hereby (the “Phase 1 Pledged 
Funds and Accounts”) (collectively, the “Phase 1 Trust Estate”); 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all the same by the Indenture granted, bargained, sold, 
conveyed, transferred, assigned and pledged, or agreed or intended so to be, to the Trustee and its 
successors in said trust and to it and its assigns forever; 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, except as in each such case may otherwise be provided in 
the Indenture, in the case of the Phase 1 Bonds upon the terms and trusts in the Indenture set forth 
for the equal and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all and singular the present and 
future Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds issued or to be issued under and secured by the Phase 1 Trust 
Estate under this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, without preference, priority or distinction as to 
lien or otherwise, of any one Phase 1 Bond over any other Phase 1 Bond by reason of priority in 
their issue, sale or execution; 

PROVIDED FURTHER HOWEVER, that if the District, its successors or assigns, shall 
well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, or make due provision for the payment of the principal and 
Redemption Price of the Phase 1 Bonds or any Phase 1 Bond of a particular maturity issued, 
secured and Outstanding under this Eighth Supplemental Indenture and the interest due or to 
become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentioned in the Phase 1 Bonds and this 
Eighth Supplemental Indenture, according to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall well 
and truly keep, perform and observe all the covenants and conditions pursuant to the terms of the 
Indenture to be kept, performed and observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee 
all sums of money due or to become due to it in accordance with the terms and provisions of the 
Indenture, then upon such final payments, this Eighth Supplemental Indenture and the rights 
hereby granted shall cease and terminate, with respect to all Phase 1 Bonds or any Phase 1 Bond 
of a particular maturity, otherwise this Eighth Supplemental Indenture shall remain in full force 
and effect; 

THIS EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE FURTHER WITNESSETH, 
and it is expressly declared, that all Phase 1 Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, 
authenticated and delivered and all of the rights and property pledged to the payment thereof are 
to be dealt with and disposed of under, upon and subject to the terms, conditions, stipulations, 
covenants, agreements, trusts, uses and purposes as in the Indenture expressed, and the District has 
agreed and covenanted, and does hereby agree and covenant, with the Trustee and with the 
respective Owners, from time to time, of the Phase 1 Bonds, as follows: 

 



 

 5 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 Definitions.  All terms used herein that are defined in the recitals 
hereto are used with the same meaning herein unless the context clearly requires otherwise. All 
terms used herein that are defined in the Master Indenture are used with the same meaning herein 
(including the use of such terms in the recitals hereto and the granting clauses hereof) unless (i) 
expressly given a different meaning herein or (ii) the context clearly requires otherwise. In 
addition, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the following terms used herein shall have 
the following meanings: 

“Authorized Denomination” shall mean, with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, on the date of 
issuance, in the denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof, provided, however, if 
any initial beneficial owner of Phase 1 Bonds does not purchase at least $100,000 of the Phase 1 
Bonds at the time of initial delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, such beneficial owner must execute and 
deliver to the District and the Underwriter on the date of delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds the investor 
letter in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C or otherwise establish to the satisfaction of the 
Underwriter that such beneficial owner is an “accredited investor,” as described in Rule 501(a) 
under Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

“Bond Depository” shall mean the securities depository from time to time under Section 
2.01 hereof, which may be the District. 

“Bond Participants” shall mean those broker-dealers, banks and other financial institutions 
from time to time for which the Bond Depository holds Phase 1 Bonds as securities depository. 

“Capital Improvement Program” shall mean the program of assessable capital 
improvements established by the District in the Assessment Proceedings described in the Master 
Indenture, as amended from time to time, a portion of which comprises the Phase 1 Project. 

“Capitalized Interest” shall mean interest due or to become due on the Phase 1 Bonds, 
which will be paid, from the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

“Collateral Assignment” shall mean that certain Collateral Assignment and Assumption of 
Development Rights Relating to the Phase 1 Project and dated as of December __, 2020 between 
the District and the Landowner, as amended from time to time.  

“Completion Agreement” shall mean the Agreement Between the Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District and Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Regarding the 
Completion of Certain Improvements, dated April 29, 2016, as such agreement may be 
supplemented with respect to the Phase 1 Project and modified from time to time. 

“Connection Fees” shall mean amounts received by the District from St. Johns County, 
Florida (the “County”) as the result of repayment of connection fees or impact fees received by 
the County in respect of transmission components of water and sewer facilities financed by the 
District as a part of the Capital Improvement Program. 



 

 6 
51035811;9 

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” shall mean the continuing disclosure agreement for 
the benefit of the owners of the Phase 1 Bonds, to be entered into among the District, the 
Landowner and Government Management Services, Inc., as dissemination agent, and for limited 
purposes, agreed to and acknowledged by the Trustee, dated December __, 2020 in connection 
with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds.   

“DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its 
successors and assigns. 

“Government Obligations” shall mean direct obligations of, or obligations the payment of 
principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America. 

“Indenture” shall mean the Master Indenture, as amended and supplemented by this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture. 

“Interest Payment Date” shall mean each May 1 and November 1, commencing May 1, 
2021. 

“Landowner” shall mean Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC. 

“Master Indenture” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2007 from 
the District to the Trustee, as previously amended and supplemented. 

“Nominee” shall mean the nominee of the Bond Depository, which may be the Bond 
Depository, as determined from time to time pursuant to this Eighth Supplemental Indenture. 

“Phase 1 Assessment Area” shall mean the properties described on Exhibit A hereto.  

“Phase 1 Assessments” shall mean the Assessments on the tax parcels identified on the tax 
roll attached as Exhibit A and corresponding to the Phase 1 Bonds. 

“Phase 1 Assessment Principal” shall mean the principal portion of the Phase 1 
Assessments. 

“Phase 1 Assessment Proceedings” shall mean the proceedings of the District with respect 
to the establishment, levy and collection of the Phase 1 Assessments, including, but not limited to 
Resolutions No. 2020-__, 2020-__ and 2020-__, adopted by the Governing Body of the District, 
and any supplemental proceedings undertaken by the District with respect to the Phase 1 
Assessments. 

“Phase 1 Bonds” shall mean $__________ Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1). 

“Phase 1 Investment Obligations” shall mean the investments described on Exhibit E 
hereto. 

“Phase 1 Pledged Revenues” shall mean all revenues received by the District from the 
Phase 1 Assessments, including, without limitation, amounts received from any foreclosure 



 

 7 
51035811;9 

proceeding for the enforcement of collection of such Phase 1 Assessments or from the issuance 
and sale of tax certificates with respect to such Phase 1 Assessments; provided, however, that 
Phase 1 Pledged Revenues shall not include (A) any moneys transferred to the Phase 1 Rebate 
Fund, or investment earnings thereon and (B) “special assessments” levied and collected by the 
District under Section 190.022 of the Act for maintenance purposes or “maintenance special 
assessments” levied and collected by the District under Section 190.021(3) of the Act (it being 
expressly understood that the lien and pledge of the Indenture shall not apply to any of the moneys 
described in the foregoing clauses (A) and (B) of this proviso). 

“Phase 1 Prepayment Principal” shall mean the excess amount of Phase 1 Assessment 
Principal received by the District over the Phase 1 Assessment Principal included in an Phase 1 
Assessment appearing on any outstanding and unpaid tax bill, whether or not mandated to be 
prepaid in accordance with the Phase 1 Assessment Proceedings. Anything herein or in the 
Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the term Phase 1 Prepayment Principal shall not mean 
the proceeds of any Refunding Bonds or other borrowing of the District. 

“Phase 1 Project” shall mean the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, equipping and installation of certain infrastructure improvements consisting of 
roadway improvements, stormwater management facilities, entry and landscape improvements, 
community recreation facilities, water and sewer facilities, wetland mitigation and off-site 
improvements pursuant to the Act for the special benefit of the District Lands, which comprise a 
portion of the Capital Improvement Program, as described in the Six Mile Creek CDD 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2020 Capital Improvements, prepared by England 
Timms & Miller, Inc., as District Engineer, and adopted by the District on ____________, 2020, 
as such improvements may be modified from time to time by the District Engineer in an Engineer’s 
Report approved by the District. 

“Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement” shall mean (i) initially, an amount equal to the 
maximum annual Debt Service Requirement for the Phase 1 Bonds and (ii) upon satisfaction of 
the Reserve Account Release Conditions, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the maximum 
annual Debt Service Requirement for the Phase 1 Bonds.  Such maximum annual Debt Service 
Requirement shall be re-determined by the Trustee upon any optional prepayment by the owner of 
a lot or parcel of land of a Phase 1 Special Assessment against such lot or parcel as provided in 
Section 4.03(a).  Any excess in the Phase 1 Debt Service Reserve Account as a result of satisfaction 
of the Reserve Account Release Conditions shall be deposited into the Phase 1 Acquisition and 
Construction Account. The District or the District Manager, on behalf of the District, shall provide 
written notice to the Trustee when the Reserve Account Release Conditions have been satisfied, 
upon which notice the Trustee may conclusively rely. The Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement 
is initially $___________. 

“Phase 3A Bonds” shall mean $_________ Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, 
Phase 3A), to be issued as fully registered bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Master 
Indenture and a Seventh Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020, between the 
District and the Trustee, which Phase 3A Bonds are separate and apart from the Phase 1 Bonds 
and are not issued under or secured by this Eighth Supplemental Indenture.  



 

 8 
51035811;9 

“Quarterly Redemption Date” shall mean each February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 
1. 

“Redemption Date” shall mean, in the event that the Phase 1 Bonds are to be redeemed in 
part, each Quarterly Redemption Date, or, in the event that the Phase 1 Bonds are to be redeemed 
in full, any date. 

“Reserve Account Release Conditions” shall mean (i) all of the single-family residential 
lots planned for the Phase 1 Assessment Area are developed and platted as certified in writing by 
the Consulting Engineer; (ii) all of the platted single-family residential lots within the Phase 1 
Assessment Area have closed with homebuilders; and (iii) no Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing with respect to any outstanding Phase 1 Bonds. 

“Substantially Absorbed” shall mean the date on which a principal amount of the Phase 1 
Special Assessments equaling seventy five percent (75%) of the then-Outstanding principal 
amount of the Series 2020 Bonds are levied on tax parcels within the Issuer with respect to which 
a certificate of occupancy has been issued for a structure thereon. 

The words “hereof”, “herein”, “hereto”, “hereby”, and “hereunder” (except in the forms of 
Phase 1 Bonds), refer to the entire Indenture. 

Every “request”, “requisition”, “order”, “demand”, “application”, “notice”, “statement”, 
“certificate”, “consent”, or similar action hereunder by the District shall, unless the form or 
execution thereof is otherwise specifically provided, be in writing signed by a Responsible Officer 
of the District. 

All words and terms importing the singular number shall, where the context requires, 
import the plural number and vice versa.   

[End of Article I] 



 

 9 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND PROVISIONS OF PHASE 1 BONDS 

SECTION 2.01 Authorization of Phase 1 Bonds; Book-Entry Only Form. The Phase 
1 Bonds are hereby authorized to be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $__________ for 
the purposes enumerated in the recitals hereto to be designated “Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 1)”.  The Phase 1 Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth as Exhibit B to this 
Eighth Supplemental Indenture. Each Phase 1 Bond shall bear the designation “2020-R” and shall 
be numbered consecutively from 1 upwards.  

(a) The Phase 1 Bonds shall be a separate Series for all purposes under the Master 
Indenture, including but not limited to, determining requisite percentages for consent or control by 
Owners and consents to amendments and the occurrence of defaults and Events of Default.  The 
Phase 1 Bonds shall be secured by the Phase 1 Trust Estate. The Phase 1 Bonds are not cross 
defaulted with any other Series of Bonds issued under the Master Trust Indenture. 

(b) The Phase 1 Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single 
certificated fully registered Bond for each Series and maturity thereof.  Upon initial issuance, the 
ownership of each such Phase 1 Bonds shall be registered in the registration books kept by the 
Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, the initial Bond Depository.  
Except as provided in this Section 2.01, all of the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds shall be registered 
in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee of 
DTC. 

(c) With respect to Phase 1 Bonds registered in the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, the District, the Trustee, the Bond 
Registrar and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation to any such Bond 
Participant or to any indirect Bond Participant.  Without limiting the immediately preceding 
sentence, the District, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent shall have no 
responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or 
any Bond Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Phase 1 Bonds, (ii) the delivery 
to any Bond Participant or any other person other than an Owner, as shown in the registration 
books kept by the Bond Registrar, of any notice with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, including any 
notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Bond Participant or any other person, other than 
an Owner, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, of any amount with 
respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Phase 1 Bonds.  The District, the Trustee, 
the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name each 
Phase 1 Bond is registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar as the absolute 
owner of such Phase 1 Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium and interest with 
respect to such Phase 1 Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters 
with respect to such Phase 1 Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such 
Phase 1 Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective 
Owners, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, or their respective attorneys 
duly authorized in writing, as provided herein and all such payments shall be valid and effective 



 

 10 
51035811;9 

to fully satisfy and discharge the District’s obligations with respect to payment of principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No 
person other than an Owner, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, shall 
receive a certificated Phase 1 Bond evidencing the obligation of the District to make payments of 
principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to the provisions hereof.  Upon delivery by DTC 
to the District of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new Nominee 
in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions herein with respect to Record Dates, the 
words “Cede & Co.” in this Eighth Supplemental Indenture shall refer to such new Nominee of 
DTC; and upon receipt of such a notice the District shall promptly deliver a copy of the same to 
the Trustee, Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent. 

Upon receipt by the Trustee or the District of written notice from DTC: (i) confirming that 
DTC has received written notice from the District to the effect that a continuation of the 
requirement that all of the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds be registered in the registration books kept 
by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, is not in the best interest 
of the Beneficial Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds or (ii) to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling 
to discharge its responsibilities and no substitute Bond Depository willing to undertake the 
functions of DTC hereunder can be found which is willing and able to undertake such functions 
upon reasonable and customary terms, the Phase 1 Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being 
registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as 
Nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or names Owners transferring or 
exchanging the Phase 1 Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

SECTION 2.02 Terms.  The Phase 1 Bonds shall be issued as Term Bonds, shall 
bear interest at the fixed interest rates per annum and shall mature in the amounts and on the dates 
set forth below   

 

Principal Amount Interest Rate Maturity Date CUSIP 

    

    

    

    

 
SECTION 2.03 Dating; Interest Accrual. Each Phase 1 Bond shall be dated the date 

of delivery thereof. Each Phase 1 Bond also shall bear its date of authentication. Each Phase 1 
Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid next 
preceding the date of its authentication, unless the date of its authentication: (i) is an Interest 
Payment Date to which interest on such Phase 1 Bond has been paid, in which event such Phase 1 
Bond shall bear interest from its date of authentication; or (ii) is prior to the first Interest Payment 
Date for the Phase 1 Bonds, in which event, such Phase 1 Bond shall bear interest from its date.  
Interest on the Phase 1 Bonds shall be due and payable on each May 1 and November 1, 
commencing May 1, 2021, and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 
months. 



 

 11 
51035811;9 

SECTION 2.04 Denominations. The Phase 1 Bonds shall be issued in Authorized 
Denominations.  

SECTION 2.05 Paying Agent. The District appoints the Trustee as Paying Agent for 
the Phase 1 Bonds. 

SECTION 2.06 Bond Registrar. The District appoints the Trustee as Bond Registrar 
for the Phase 1 Bonds. 

SECTION 2.07 Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Phase 1 Bonds. The Phase 1 
Bonds shall be executed by the District for delivery to the Trustee and thereupon shall be 
authenticated by the Trustee and delivered to the District or upon its order, but only upon the 
further receipt by the Trustee of: 

(i) Certified copies of the Phase 1 Assessment Proceedings. 

(ii) Executed copies of the Master Indenture and this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture. 

(iii) A Bond Counsel opinion to the effect that: (A) the District has the right and 
power under the Act as amended to the date of such opinion to authorize, execute and 
deliver this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, that it has been duly and lawfully 
authorized, executed and delivered by the District, is in full force and effect and is valid 
and binding upon the District and enforceable in accordance with its terms; (B) the 
Master Indenture, as amended and supplemented by this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture, creates the valid pledge which it purports to create of the Phase 1 Trust Estate 
to secure the Phase 1 Bonds, all in the manner and to the extent provided in the Master 
Indenture and this Eighth Supplemental Indenture; (C) the Phase 1 Bonds are valid, 
binding, special obligations of the District, enforceable in accordance with their terms 
and the terms of the Indenture and this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, subject to 
bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and 
entitled to the benefits of the Act as amended to the date of such opinion, and the Phase 
1 Bonds have been duly and validly authorized and issued in accordance with law and 
the Master Indenture and this Eighth Supplemental Indenture; and (D) interest on the 
Phase 1 Bonds is excludible from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

(iv) The District Counsel opinion required by Section 207 of the Master 
Indenture. 

(v) A certificate of an Authorized Officer to the effect that, upon the 
authentication and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, the District will not be in default in 
the performance of the terms and provisions of the Master Indenture or this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds. 

(vi) An Engineers’ Certificate or Engineers’ Certificates certifying as to the 
accuracy of the information set forth in the District Engineer’s Report regarding the 
Phase 1 Project. 



 

 12 
51035811;9 

(vii) A copy of the final judgment of validation together with a certificate of no 
appeal. 

(viii) Such other documents, instruments, certificates and opinions as Bond 
Counsel shall reasonably require in order to render its opinion under (iii) above or as 
the Trustee may require to effect the delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds.  The delivery by 
Bond Counsel of its opinion under (iii) above shall be conclusive evidence of the 
satisfaction of the foregoing condition. 

Payment to the Trustee of the net proceeds from the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds shall be 
conclusive evidence that the purchasers of the Phase 1 Bonds are satisfied that the foregoing 
conditions have been met. 

[End of Article II] 

  



 

 13 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF PHASE 1 BONDS 

SECTION 3.01 Bonds Subject to Redemption. The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity as provided in the form thereof set forth as Exhibit B to this Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture.  Interest on Phase 1 Bonds which are called for redemption shall be paid 
on the Redemption Date from the Phase 1 Interest Account or from the Phase 1 Revenue Account 
to the extent monies in the Phase 1 Interest Account are insufficient for such purpose. 

SECTION 3.02 Notice of Redemption.  When required to redeem Phase 1 Bonds 
under any provision of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture or directed to redeem Phase 1 Bonds 
by the District, the Trustee shall give or cause to be given to Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds to be 
redeemed notice of the redemption, as set forth in Section 302 of the Master Indenture, provided 
that if at the time of mailing of notice of an optional redemption or purchase, the District shall not 
have deposited with the Trustee or Paying Agent moneys sufficient to redeem or purchase all the 
Phase 1 Bonds called for redemption or purchase, such notice shall state that the redemption is 
conditional and is subject to the deposit of the redemption or purchase moneys with the Trustee or 
Paying Agent, as the case may be, not later than the opening of business on the redemption or 
purchase date, and such notice shall be of no effect unless such moneys are so deposited. 

SECTION 3.03 Prepayment By Cancellation of Bonds Permitted.  Any landowner 
or any Person, on behalf of such landowner, may deliver to the District or the Trustee Phase 1 
Bonds purchased or otherwise acquired in the open market for cancellation, or may arrange for the 
purchase of Phase 1 Bonds by the Trustee at a purchase price at or below the par amount thereof, 
with funds provided by the landowner in an a mount equal to such purchase price, whereupon the 
Trustee shall cancel the Phase 1 Bonds so delivered or purchased  and such cancellation of Phase 
1 Bonds shall be treated as an optional prepayment of the Phase 1 Assessments, in an amount equal 
to the principal amount and accrued interest of Phase 1 Bonds so surrendered or purchased and 
cancelled. The lien of the Phase 1 Assessments shall be reduced to reflect such prepayment.  The 
landowner may designate the specific lots or parcels owned by such landowner to which such 
prepayment shall apply and the amount prepaid with respect to each lot or parcel.  The 
Amortization Installments with respect to Phase 1 Bonds remaining Outstanding shall be adjusted 
as provided in Section 4.05 hereof. 

[End of Article III] 

  



 

 14 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE IV 
 

CONFIRMATION OF ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF 
ACCOUNTS AND OPERATION THEREOF  

SECTION 4.01 Establishment of Accounts. 

(a) There are hereby established in the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee (i) Phase 
1 Debt Service Account and therein a Phase 1 Principal Account, a Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account, 
a Phase 1 Interest Account and a Phase 1 Capitalized Interest Account; and (ii) a Phase 1 
Redemption Account and therein a Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount and a Phase 1 Optional 
Redemption Subaccount; 

(b) There is hereby established within the Reserve Fund held by the Trustee a Phase 1 
Reserve Account, which shall be held for the benefit of all of the Phase 1 Bonds, without 
distinction and without privilege or priority of one Phase 1 Bond over another; 

(c) There is hereby established within the Revenue Fund held by the Trustee a Phase 1 
Revenue Account; 

(d) There is hereby established within the Rebate Fund held by the Trustee a Phase 1 
Rebate Account; and.  

(e) There is hereby established within the Acquisition and Construction Fund held by 
the Trustee a Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account and a Phase 1 Cost of Issuance 
Account. 

SECTION 4.02 Use of Phase 1 Bond Proceeds. Following the Trustee’s receipt of 
the items set forth in Section 207 of the Master Indenture and Section 2.07 hereof, the net proceeds 
of sale of the Phase 1 Bonds, $_________ (par amount of the Phase 1 Bonds less an original issue 
discount of $_________ and an underwriter’s discount of $________), shall be delivered to the 
Trustee by the District and be applied as follows: 

(a) $___________ representing Capitalized Interest shall be deposited in the Phase 1 
Capitalized Interest Subaccount of the Phase 1 Interest Account of the Debt Service Fund, 

(b) $___________ (which is an amount equal to the initial Phase 1 Reserve Account 
Requirement in respect of the Phase 1 Bonds) shall be deposited in the Phase 1 Reserve Account 
of the Reserve Fund, 

(c)  $___________ shall be deposited in the Phase 1 Costs of Issuance Account of the 
Acquisition and Construction Fund to be applied to costs of issuance as directed in writing by the 
District, and  

(d) $___________ constituting all remaining proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds, shall be 
deposited in the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition and 
Construction Fund. 



 

 15 
51035811;9 

SECTION 4.03 Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account. (a)  Amounts 
deposited to the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account shall be applied to Costs of the 
Phase 1 Project in accordance with Article IV of the Master Indenture. 

(b) [No amounts shall be disbursed from the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction 
Account until the Consulting Engineer has certified in writing to the District and the Trustee that 
the following permits have been obtained with respect to the Phase 1 Project:  (i) from the St. Johns 
River Water Management District, the environmental resource permit, and (ii) from St. Johns 
County, Florida, construction plan approval.  If the Consulting Engineer has not provided such 
certification by December 1, 2021, the Phase I Project shall be deemed to not be able to be 
completed in a sound and economical manner within a reasonable period of time, December 2, 
2021 shall be the Date of Completion (as provided in clause (ii) of the definition of such term in 
the Master Indenture), and the funds in the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account shall be 
transferred to the Phase 1 Redemption Account for application to the extraordinary mandatory 
redemption of the Phase 1 Bonds on April 1, 2021 pursuant to clause (c) of the mandatory 
redemption provision set forth in the form of Bond attached hereto.] 

(c) [Except as provided in the preceding Subsection 4.03(b),] the District shall not 
declare that the Date of Completion of the Phase 1 Project has occurred until after the Reserve 
Account Release Conditions have been satisfied, and all moneys transferred from the Phase 1 Debt 
Service Reserve Account to the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account have been 
expended or the Consulting Engineer has certified in writing to the District and the Trustee that 
such amount is in excess of what is needed to complete the Phase 1 Project. The Trustee shall have 
no obligation to inquire if Reserve Account Release Conditions have occurred and, in the absence 
of notice from the District, the Trustee may assume that the Reserve Account Release Conditions 
have not occurred. 

SECTION 4.04 Phase 1 Reserve Account.  (a)  Except as otherwise provided in this 
Section 4.04 or in the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account shall 
be used only for the purpose of making payments into the Phase 1 Interest Account, the Phase 1 
Principal Account and the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account to pay Debt Service on the Phase 1 
Bonds, when due, without privilege or priority of one Phase 1 Bond over another, to the extent the 
moneys on deposit in such Accounts and available therefor are insufficient and for no other 
purpose. Such Account shall consist only of cash and Phase 1 Investment Obligations. The Phase 
1 Reserve Account is held solely for the benefit of, and as security for, the Phase 1 Bonds and 
amounts therein shall not be available or be used for the purpose of making any payments with 
respect to any other Bonds. 

(b) On each December 15, March 15, June 15 and September 15 (or, if such date is not 
a Business Day, on the Business Day preceding such day), the Trustee shall determine the amount 
on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account and transfer any excess therein above the Phase 1 
Reserve Account Requirement (other than as a result of optional prepayment of a Phase 1 
Assessment which shall be applied as provided in the succeeding paragraph or as a result of 
investment earnings which shall be deposited into the Phase 1 Revenue Account as required by 
Section 510 of the Master Indenture), to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 
Redemption Account for the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Phase 1 Bonds.  



 

 16 
51035811;9 

(c) On each December 15, March 15, June 15 and September 15 (or, if such date is not 
a Business Day, on the Business Day preceding such day), in the event that the amount of proceeds 
of the Phase 1 Bonds on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account exceeds the Phase 1 Reserve 
Account Requirement due to a decrease in the amount of Phase 1 Bonds that will be outstanding 
as a result of an optional prepayment by the owner of a lot or parcel of land of a Phase 1 Assessment 
against such lot or parcel, such excess shall be transferred to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount 
of the Phase 1 Redemption Account, (and the District shall include such excess as a credit against 
the Phase 1 Prepayment Principal otherwise required to be made by the owner of such lot or parcel) 
to be used for the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Phase 1 Bonds. 

(d) On the date of prepayment of a Phase 1 Assessment by cancellation of Phase 1 
Bonds pursuant to Section 3.03 hereof, in the event that the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 
Reserve Account exceeds the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement due to a decrease in the 
amount of Phase 1 Bonds that will be outstanding as a result of such prepayment by such Phase 1 
Assessment, such excess shall be transferred to the Phase 1 Prepayment Account of the Phase 1 
Redemption Account, (and the District shall include such excess as a credit against the Phase 1 
Prepayment Principal otherwise required to be made by the owner of such lot or parcel) to be used 
for the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Phase 1 Bonds. 

(e) Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, on the 
earliest date on which there is on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account sufficient monies, taking 
into account other monies available therefor, to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Phase 1 
Bonds, together with accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Phase 1 Bonds to 
the earliest date of redemption permitted therein and herein, then the Trustee shall transfer the 
amount on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account into the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount in the 
Phase 1 Redemption Account to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds on the 
earliest date permitted for redemption therein and herein. 

(f) The District shall give the Trustee notice when the Reserve Account Release 
Conditions have been satisfied. The Trustee shall have no obligation to inquire if Reserve Account 
Release Conditions have occurred and, in the absence of notice from the District, the Trustee may 
assume that the Reserve Account Release Conditions have not occurred. 

SECTION 4.05 Amortization Installments.  

(a) The Amortization Installments established for the Phase 1 Bonds shall be as set 
forth in the forms of Bonds attached hereto. 

(b) Upon any redemption of Phase 1 Bonds (other than Phase 1 Bonds redeemed in 
accordance with scheduled Amortization Installments) and upon any cancellation of Phase 1 
Bonds upon surrender to the Trustee (including any surrender pursuant to Section 3.03 hereof), the 
District shall cause to be recalculated and delivered to the Trustee revised Amortization 
Installments recalculated so as to amortize the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds in substantially equal 
annual installments of principal and interest (subject to rounding to Authorized Denominations of 
principal) over the remaining term of the Phase 1 Bonds. 



 

 17 
51035811;9 

SECTION 4.06 Tax Covenants and Rebate Accounts.  The District shall comply 
with the agreements, covenants and instructions set forth in the Tax Certificate executed by the 
District simultaneously herewith, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit C hereto, as amended and 
supplemented from time to time in accordance with their respective terms. 

SECTION 4.07 Phase 1 Revenue Account in Revenue Fund; Application of 
Revenues and Investment Earnings. 

(a) The District shall deposit into Phase 1 Revenue Account the amounts required to 
be deposited therein in accordance with the provisions of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture; 
provided, however, that Connection Fees may be deposited at the written direction of the District 
to the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account, the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the 
Phase 1 Redemption Account, the Phase 1 Principal Account or the Phase 1 Interest Account, in 
such amounts as shall be directed by the District and applied by the Trustee for the purposes of 
such Account or Subaccount.  The Phase 1 Revenue Account shall be held by the Trustee separate 
and apart from all other Funds and Accounts held under the Indenture and from all other moneys 
of the Trustee and for the sole benefit of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

(b) The District shall deposit all revenues received by the District from the Phase 1 
Assessments with the Trustee immediately upon receipt together with a written accounting setting 
forth the amounts of such Phase 1 Assessments which are in the following categories which shall 
be deposited by the Trustee into the Funds and Accounts established hereunder as follows: 

(i) Phase 1 Prepayment Principal, which shall be deposited into the Phase 1 
Prepayment Subaccount in the Redemption Account; and 

(ii) all other revenues from the Phase 1 Assessment, which shall be deposited 
into the Phase 1 Revenue Account. 

Moneys other than Phase 1 Assessments received by the Trustee in respect of the Phase 1 
Assessments or Phase 1 Bonds shall, at the written direction of the District, be deposited into the 
Phase 1 Optional Redemption Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption Account and used to pay 
the principal of and premium, if any, on Phase 1 Bonds called or to be called for optional 
redemption at the written direction of the District in accordance with the provisions for optional 
redemption of Phase 1 Bonds as set forth in the form of Phase 1 Bonds attached hereto. 

(c) On the forty-fifth (45th) day preceding each Quarterly Redemption Date (or if such 
date is not a Business Day, on the Business Day next preceding such date), the Trustee shall 
determine the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption 
Account, and, if the balance therein is greater than zero, shall transfer (but only after transferring 
sufficient amounts as directed in writing by the Issuer to make the transfers required by Section 
4.07(e) below and confirming that such transfer will not result in a deficiency in any of the transfers 
required by Section 4.07(d) FIRST through FOURTH below) from the Phase 1 Revenue Account 
for deposit into the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount, an amount sufficient to increase the amount 
on deposit therein to an integral multiple of $5,000, and, shall thereupon give notice and cause the 
extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Phase 1 Bonds on the next succeeding Quarterly 
Redemption Date in the maximum aggregate principal amount for which moneys are then on 



 

 18 
51035811;9 

deposit in the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount in accordance with the provisions for extraordinary 
redemption of such Series of Phase 1 Bonds set forth in the form of Phase 1 Bond attached hereto, 
Section 3.01 hereof, and Article III of the Master Indenture. The Trustee is hereby authorized and 
directed to withdraw from the corresponding Interest Account, the amount of interest accrued or 
to accrue on Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed to the Quarterly Redemption Date therefor. 

(d) On each May 1 or November 1 (or if such May 1 or November 1 is not a Business 
Day, on, the Business Day preceding such May 1 or November 1), commencing May 1, 2021 the 
Trustee shall then transfer amounts on deposit in the Phase 1 Revenue Account to the Funds and 
Accounts designated below in the following amounts and in the following order of priority: 

FIRST, to the Phase 1 Interest Account of the Debt Service Fund, an amount equal to the 
amount of interest payable on all Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding on such May 1 or November 1, 
less any other amount already on deposit in the Phase 1 Interest Account not previously credited 
(including amounts transferred from the Phase 1 Capitalized Interest Account pursuant to Section 
505 of the Master Indenture); 

SECOND, to the Phase 1 Principal Account, the amount, if any, equal to the difference 
between the principal all Phase 1 Bonds due on such May 1 or November 1 and the amount already 
on deposit in the Phase 1 Principal Account not previously credited; 

THIRD, to the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account, the amount, if any, equal to the difference 
between the Amortization Installments of all Phase 1 Bonds subject to mandatory sinking fund 
redemption on such May 1 or November 1, and the amount already on deposit in the Phase 1 
Sinking Fund Account not previously credited; and 

FOURTH, to the Phase 1 Reserve Account, the maximum amount which will not cause the 
balance therein to exceed the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement. 

In addition, at any time the Phase 1 Bonds are subject to redemption on a date which is not 
a May 1 or November 1 Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall be authorized to transfer to the 
Phase 1 Interest Account, the amount necessary to pay interest on the Phase 1 Bonds subject to 
redemption on such date. 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, it shall not, a fortiori, constitute an Event 
of Default hereunder if the full amount of the foregoing deposits are not made due to an 
insufficiency of funds therefor. 

(e) On any date required by the Tax Certificate, the District shall give the Trustee 
written direction, and the Trustee shall, transfer from the Phase 1 Revenue Account to the Rebate 
Account established for the Phase 1 Bonds in the Rebate Fund in accordance with the Master 
Indenture, the amount due and owing to the United States, which amount shall be paid, to the 
United States, when due, in accordance with such Tax Certificate. 

(f) After making the transfers described above, the Trustee shall retain any excess in 
the Phase 1 Revenue Account or, at the written direction of the District, shall  transfer to the District 
the balance on deposit in the Phase 1 Revenue Account on November 2 of any year to be used for 
any lawful District purpose; provided, however, that on the date of such proposed transfer the 



 

 19 
51035811;9 

amount on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account shall be equal to the Phase 1 Reserve Account 
Requirement, and, provided further, that the Trustee shall not have actual knowledge of an Event 
of Default under the Master Indenture or hereunder relating to any of the Phase 1 Bonds, including 
the payment of Trustee’s fees and expenses then due. 

(g) Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, 
amounts in all of the Funds and Accounts held as security for the Phase 1 Bonds shall be invested 
only in Phase 1 Investment Obligations, and all earnings thereon shall be deposited, as realized, to 
the Phase 1 Revenue Account and applied for the purposes of such Account. 

 [End of Article IV] 
 
  



 

 20 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE V 
 

ASSESSMENT COVENANTS AND PROVISIONS 

SECTION 5.01 Additional Covenant Regarding Phase 1 Assessments . In addition, 
and not in limitation of, the covenants contained elsewhere in this Eighth Supplemental Indenture 
and in the Master Indenture, the District covenants to comply with the terms of the proceedings 
heretofore adopted with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments, including the assessment 
methodology reports, prepared by Government Management Services, Inc. (collectively, the 
“Assessment Methodology Reports”), and to levy the Phase 1 Assessments and any required true 
up payments as set forth in the Assessment Methodology Reports, in such manner as will generate 
funds sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds, when due. 

SECTION 5.02 Collection of Assessments.  Pursuant to Section 9.04 of the Master 
Trust Indenture and subject to the District entering into a Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
Agreement, Phase 1 Assessments levied on platted lots and pledged hereunder to secure the Phase 
1 Bonds will be collected pursuant to the uniform method for the levy, collection and enforcement 
of special assessments afforded by Sections 197.3631, 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes, 
as amended, provided, however, that notwithstanding Section 9.04 or Section 9.05 of the Master 
Indenture, the District may, and shall at the written direction of the Majority Owners, collect Phase 
1 Assessments on any lands as to which there are delinquent Phase 1 Assessments by foreclosure 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 170.10, Florida Statutes, in the same method now or hereafter 
provided by law for the foreclosure of mortgages on real estate, or pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 173, Florida Statutes, and Sections 190.026 and 170.10, Florida Statutes, or otherwise as 
provided by law. 

SECTION 5.03 Additional Matters Relating to Delinquent Assessments.  

(a) Notwithstanding anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary, the 
following provisions shall apply with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments and Phase 1 Bonds:  If 
any property shall be offered for sale at a foreclosure sale for the nonpayment of any Phase 1 
Assessments, and no person or persons shall purchase such property for an amount equal to the 
full amount due on the Phase 1 Assessments (principal, interest, penalties and costs, plus attorneys’ 
fees, if any), the District, after receiving the written consent of the Trustee, acting at the direction 
of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, specifying whether the District is to 
take title to the property in its corporate name or in the name of a special purpose entity, may 
purchase the property for an amount less than or equal to the balance due on the Phase 1 
Assessments (principal, interest, penalties and costs, plus attorneys’ fees, if any), from any legally 
available funds of the District or by credit bidding any final foreclosure judgment and the District 
shall receive in its corporate name or in the name of a special-purpose entity title to the property 
for the benefit of the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds and the District, in its proportionate share, to 
the extent that operation and maintenance assessments were also subject to the foreclosure 
resulting in such foreclosure sale.  The District, either through its own actions, or actions caused 
to be taken by the District through the Trustee (acting at the written direction of the Majority 
Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding and being indemnified to its satisfaction), shall have 
the power to and shall lease or sell such property, and deposit all of the net proceeds of any such 
lease or sale into the Phase 1 Revenue Account (less the proportionate amount the District may be 



 

 21 
51035811;9 

due from the foreclosure of any operation and maintenance assessments).  The District, either 
through its own actions, or actions caused to be taken by the District through the Trustee (acting 
at the written direction of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding and being 
indemnified to its satisfaction), agrees that it shall, after being provided assurances satisfactory to 
it of payment of its fees, costs and expenses for doing so, be required to take the measures provided 
by law for listing for sale of property acquired by it as trustee for the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds 
within sixty (60) days after the receipt of the request therefor signed by the Trustee, acting at the 
written direction of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding.  The District may pay 
costs associated with any actions taken by the District or the Trustee pursuant to this paragraph 
from any moneys legally available for such purpose held under the Indenture, provided such action 
does not adversely impact the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Phase 1 Bonds.   

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the Master Indenture, the 
District acknowledges and agrees that (i) upon failure of any property owner to pay when due any 
installment of Phase 1 Assessments that are billed directly by the District, that the entire Phase 1 
Assessments levied on the property for which such installment of Phase 1 Assessments is due and 
unpaid, with interest and penalties thereon, shall immediately become due and payable as provided 
by applicable law and, with the written consent of the Trustee, acting at the direction of the 
Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, the District shall promptly, but in any event 
within one hundred twenty (120) days of the receipt of such consent, cause to be brought the 
necessary legal proceedings for the foreclosure of liens of the delinquent Phase 1 Assessments, 
including interest and penalties and (ii) unless some alternative resolution to such proceedings is 
agreed to with the Trustee and Majority Owners’ consent, the foreclosure proceedings shall be 
prosecuted to a sale and conveyance of the property involved in said proceedings as now provided 
by law in suits to foreclose mortgages. 

(c) For the avoidance of doubt and notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the 
Trustee shall only be required to act under this Section 5.03 to the extent it receives timely written 
directions upon which it may conclusively rely from the Majority Owners and has been 
indemnified to its satisfaction.  

SECTION 5.04 Additional Matters Relating to Phase 1 Assessments and 
Assessment Proceedings.  The District covenants and agrees that upon the occurrence and 
continuance of an Event of Default with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, it will take such actions to 
enforce the remedial provisions of the Indenture, the provisions for the collection of delinquent 
Phase 1 Assessments that are directly billed and collected by the District, and the provisions for 
the foreclosure of liens of delinquent Phase 1 Assessments that are directly billed and collected by 
the District, all in a manner consistent with the Master Indenture and this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture, unless otherwise directed by the Majority Owners.  All Phase 1 Assessments that are 
billed and collected directly by the District shall be due and payable by the applicable landowner 
no later than thirty (30) days prior to each Interest Payment Date and shall become delinquent 
thereafter.   

SECTION 5.05 Provisions relating to Bankruptcy or Insolvency of Taxpayer. 

(a) The provisions of this Section 5.05 shall be applicable both before and after the 
commencement, whether voluntary or involuntary, of any case, proceeding or other action by or 



 

 22 
51035811;9 

against any owner of any tax parcel subject to at least eight percent (8%) of the Phase 1 
Assessments pledged to the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding (an “Insolvent Taxpayer”) under any 
existing or future law of any jurisdiction relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or relief of debtors (a “Proceeding”). 

(b) The District acknowledges and agrees that, although the Phase 1 Bonds were issued 
by the District, the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds are categorically the party with the ultimate 
financial stake in the transaction and, consequently, the party with a vested and pecuniary interest 
in a Proceeding.  In the event of any Proceeding involving an Insolvent Taxpayer: 

(i) the District hereby agrees that it shall seek to secure the written consent of 
the Trustee, acting at the direction of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds 
Outstanding, prior to making any election, giving any consent, commencing any action 
or filing any motion, claim, obligation, notice or application or in taking any other 
action or position in any Proceedings or in any action related to a Proceeding that 
affects, either directly or indirectly, the Phase 1 Assessments relating to the Phase 1 
Bonds Outstanding, the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds or any rights of the Trustee under 
the Indenture (provided, however, Trustee shall be deemed to have consented, on behalf 
of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, to the proposed action if the 
District does not receive a written response from the Trustee within thirty (30) days 
following receipt by the Trustee of the written request for consent); 

(ii) the District hereby agrees that it shall not make any election, give any 
consent, commence any action or file any motion, claim, obligation, notice or 
application or take any other action or position in any Proceeding or in any action 
related to a Proceeding that affects, either directly or indirectly, the Phase 1 
Assessments relating to the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding 
or any rights of the Trustee under the Indenture that are inconsistent with any written 
consent received (or deemed received) from the Trustee; 

(iii) the District hereby agrees that it shall seek the written consent of the Trustee 
prior to filing and voting in any such Proceeding (provided, however, Trustee shall be 
deemed to have consented, on behalf of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds 
Outstanding, to the proposed action if the District does not receive a written response 
from the Trustee within thirty (30) days following receipt by the Trustee of the written 
request for consent); 

(iv) the Trustee shall have the right, by interpleader or otherwise, to seek or 
oppose any relief in any such Proceeding that the District, as claimant with respect to 
the Phase 1 Assessments relating to the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding would have the 
right to pursue, and, if the Trustee chooses to exercise any such rights, the District shall 
not oppose the Trustee in seeking to exercise any and all rights and taking any and all 
actions available to the District in connection with any Proceeding of any Insolvent 
Taxpayer, including without limitation, the right to file and/or prosecute and/or defend 
any claims and proofs of claims, to vote to accept or reject a plan, to seek dismissal of 
the Proceeding, to seek stay relief to commence or continue foreclosure or pursue any 
other available remedies as to the Phase 1 Assessments relating the Phase 1 Bonds 



 

 23 
51035811;9 

Outstanding, to seek substantive consolidation, to seek to shorten the Insolvent 
Taxpayer’s exclusivity periods or to oppose any motion to extend such exclusivity 
periods, to oppose any motion for use of cash collateral or for authority to obtain 
financing, to oppose any sale procedures motion or any sale motion, to propose a 
competing plan of reorganization or liquidation, or to make any election under Section 
1111(b) of the Bankruptcy Code; and 

(v) The District shall not challenge the validity or amount of any claim 
submitted in good faith in such Proceeding by the Trustee or any valuations of the lands 
owned by any Insolvent Taxpayer submitted in good faith by the Trustee in such 
Proceedings or take any other action in such Proceedings, which is adverse to Trustee’s 
enforcement or the District’s claim and rights with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments 
relating to the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding or receipt of adequate protection (as that 
term is defined in the Bankruptcy Code).  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the District agrees that the Trustee shall have the right (i) to file a proof of 
claim with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments pledged to the Phase 1 Bonds 
Outstanding, (ii) to deliver to the District a copy thereof, together with evidence of the 
filing with the appropriate court or other authority, and (iii) to defend any objection 
filed to said proof of claim. 

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of the immediately preceding paragraphs, nothing 
in this Section shall preclude the District from becoming a party to a Proceeding in order to enforce 
a claim for operation and maintenance Assessments, and the District shall be free to pursue such 
claim in such manner as it shall deem appropriate in its sole and absolute discretion.  Any actions 
taken by the District in pursuance of its claim for operation and maintenance Assessments in any 
Proceeding shall not be considered an action adverse or inconsistent with the Trustee’s rights or 
consents with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments relating to the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding 
whether such claim is pursued by the District or the Trustee; provided, however, that the District 
shall not oppose any relief sought by the Trustee under the authority granted to the Trustee in 
clause (b)(iv) above. 

(d) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Trustee shall only act in 
connection with a Proceeding upon timely written direction of the Majority Owners, upon which 
the Trustee may conclusively rely, together with indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee sufficient to 
cover any fees, costs and expenses (including attorney’s fees, costs and expenses) of the Trustee 
or that may be incurred by the Trustee in connections with such Proceeding.  The Trustee shall 
have no liability for any failure to act with respect to any Proceeding if it does not receive such 
written direction and indemnity in a sufficiently timely manner in order for the Trustee to meet 
any deadline, applicable to such Proceeding and the Trustee shall be entitled to all of the rights 
and protections granted to it under Article XI of the Master Indenture regardless of whether there 
exists an Event of Default.  The District shall notify a Responsible Officer of the Trustee in writing 
(the “Bankruptcy Notice”) within 10 business days from the day it obtains knowledge of any 
Proceeding.  In addition to giving notice of the Proceeding in reasonable detail, the Bankruptcy 
Notice shall also specifically reference this Section 5.05(d).  In the event that the Trustee receives 
any moneys as the result of a Proceeding, the Trustee shall first reimburse any of its outstanding 
fees and/or the fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Proceedings (including 



 

 24 
51035811;9 

attorney’s fees, costs and expenses) prior to otherwise distributing such moneys. from the Majority 
Owners and has been indemnified to its satisfaction. 

[End of Article V] 
  



 

 25 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE VI 
 

LIMITATION ON ADDITIONAL BONDS 

SECTION 6.01 Limitation on Additional Bonds. (a)   Other than Bonds issued to 
refund a portion of Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, the issuance of which as determined by the District 
results in present value debt service savings, the District shall not issue or incur any debt payable 
in whole or in part from the Phase 1 Pledged Revenues other than the Phase 1 Bonds. 

(b) So long as there are any Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, the District shall not issue any 
Bonds or other debt obligations (the “Additional Bonds”), secured by Assessments on the Phase 1 
Assessment Area without the written consent of the Majority Owners until the Phase 1 Special 
Assessments have been Substantially Absorbed. 

(c) The provisions of the preceding Subsection (b) shall not apply to any Bonds or 
other debt obligations secured by Assessments on properties other than the Phase 1 Assessment 
Area. Further, notwithstanding such restriction, the District may issue Bonds secured by 
Assessments on Phase 1 Assessment Area for the health, safety, welfare or repairs for Phase 1 
Assessment Area.  

(d) Prior to the delivery of any such Additional Bonds or other debt obligations, the 
District will deliver a written certificate from the District Manager to the Trustee on which it may 
conclusively rely that all of the applicable conditions set forth above have been met. 

[End of Article VI] 
  



 

 26 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE VII 
 

CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE 

 
SECTION 7.01 Acceptance by Trustee. The Trustee accepts the trusts declared and 

provided in this Eighth Supplemental Indenture and agrees to perform such trusts upon the terms 
and conditions set forth in the Indenture. 

SECTION 7.02 Limitation of Trustee’s Responsibility. The Trustee shall not be 
responsible in any manner for the due execution of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture by the 
District or for the recitals contained herein, all of which are made solely by the District. 

SECTION 7.03 Trustee’s Duties. Nothing contained herein shall limit the rights, 
benefits, privileges, protection and entitlements inuring to the Trustee under the Master Indenture, 
including, particularly, Article VI thereof. 

SECTION 7.04 Brokerage Confirmations. The District acknowledges that to the 
extent regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency or other applicable regulatory entity grant 
the District the right to receive individual confirmations of security transactions at no additional 
cost, as they occur, the District specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent 
permitted by law.  The Trustee will furnish the District periodic cash transaction statements that 
include detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee hereunder. 

SECTION 7.05 Patriot Act of Requirements of Trustee. To help the government 
fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial 
institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that identified each person who opens an 
account.  For a non-individual person such as business entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity, 
the Trustee will ask for documentation to verify such non-individual person’s formation and 
existence as a legal entity.  The Trustee may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, 
identification and authorization documents from individuals claiming authority to represent the 
entity or other relevant documentation. 

 
[End of Article V] 

 
  



 

 27 
51035811;9 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
SECTION 8.01 Amendment of Master Indenture. Anything herein or in the Master 

Indenture to contrary notwithstanding, the District agrees that Chapter 170.10, Florida Statutes 
provides that in the event an installment of a directly collected Phase 1 Assessment is not paid 
when due, the balance of the installments of such Phase 1 Assessment shall immediately become 
due and payable and the District shall commence foreclosure proceedings against the property 
subject to the lien of such delinquent Phase 1 Assessment.  The District covenants and agrees to 
enforce the provision of Chapter 170.10, Florida Statutes, against the owner or owners of any tax 
parcel subject to a delinquent directly collected Phase 1 Assessment if so directed in writing by 
the Owners of more than fifty percent (50%) (the “Majority Owners”) of the Outstanding Phase 1 
Bonds. 

Subject to this Section 8.01, the provisions of Sections 903 through 906 of the Master 
Indenture shall apply to the enforcement of any such remedial actions with respect to a delinquent 
Phase 1 Assessment, including the ability of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds to direct 
proceedings and to direct application of the proceeds of any foreclosure of the Phase 1 Assessments 
notwithstanding that the existence of such delinquent Phase 1 Assessment may not constitute a 
default or an Event of Default in accordance with the provisions of Section 1002 of the Master 
Indenture. 

SECTION 8.02 Additional Matters Relating to Events of Default.  In addition to the 
events set forth in Section 901 of the Master Indenture, each of the following events shall be an 
Event of Default with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
the Master Indenture, and references in the Master Indenture and herein to an Event of Default 
with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds shall include the following events: 

(a) Any portion of the Phase 1 Assessments pledged to the Phase 1 Bonds shall have 
become delinquent and, as the result thereof, the Indenture authorizes the Trustee to withdraw 
funds in an amount greater than twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount on deposit in Phase 1 
Reserve Account to pay the Debt Service Requirements on the Phase 1 Bonds (regardless of 
whether the Trustee does or does not actually withdraw such funds from the  Phase 1 Reserve 
Account to pay the Debt Service Requirements on the Phase 1 Bonds) (the foregoing being referred 
to as a “Reserve Account Event”) unless within sixty (60) days from the Reserve Account Event 
the District has either (i) replenished the amounts, if any, withdrawn from the Phase 1 Reserve 
Account or (ii) the portion of the delinquent Phase 1 Assessments giving rise to the Reserve 
Account Event are paid and are no longer delinquent Phase 1 Assessments; and 

(b) More than fifteen percent (15%) of the operation and maintenance assessments that 
are directly billed by the District and levied by the District on tax parcels subject to the Phase 1 
Assessments are not paid by the date such are due and payable and such default continues for sixty 
(60) days after the date when due.  The District shall give written notice to the Trustee of the 
occurrence of the events set forth in this paragraph (b) not later than 10 days after the end of the 



 

 28 
51035811;9 

sixty day period referred to in the preceding sentence.  The Trustee shall not be deemed to have 
knowledge of the occurrence of such an Event of Default absent notice thereof from the District.  

Further, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Master Indenture, references in the 
Master Indenture to “the Owners of not less than 51% of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds 
the Outstanding” shall mean, with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, the Owners of not less than a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding.  

SECTION 8.03 Confirmation of Master Indenture.  As supplemented and amended 
by this Eighth Supplemental Indenture, the Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed, and 
this Eighth Supplemental Indenture shall be read, taken and construed as a part of the Master 
Indenture so that all of the rights, remedies, terms, conditions, covenants and agreements of the 
Master Indenture, except insofar as modified herein, shall apply and remain in full force and effect 
with respect to this Eighth Supplemental Indenture and to the Phase 1 Bonds issued hereunder. 

SECTION 8.04 Assignment of Collateral Assignment.  The District may assign its 
rights under the Collateral Assignment to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners, from time to 
time, of the Phase 1 Bonds.  Such assignment shall not be considered an assumption by the Trustee 
of any obligations thereunder. 

SECTION 8.05 Continuing Disclosure Agreement. Contemporaneously with the 
original execution and delivery of Phase 1 Bonds, the District will execute and deliver a Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement in order to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated 
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. The District covenants and agrees to comply with 
the provisions of such Continuing Disclosure Agreement; however, as set forth therein, failure to 
so comply shall not constitute an Event of Default hereunder; but, instead shall be enforceable by 
mandamus, injunction or any other means of specific performance. 

SECTION 8.06 Amendments.  Any amendments to this Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture shall be made pursuant to the provisions for amendment contained in the Master 
Indenture. 

SECTION 8.07 Counterparts.  This Eighth Supplemental Indenture may be executed 
in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original; 
but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 

SECTION 8.08 Appendices and Exhibits.  Any and all schedules, appendices or 
exhibits referred to in and attached to this Eighth Supplemental Indenture are hereby incorporated 
herein and made a part of this Eighth Supplemental Indenture for all purposes. 

SECTION 8.09 No Rights Conferred on Others.  Nothing herein contained shall 
confer any right upon any Person other than the parties hereto and the Owners of the Phase 1 
Bonds. 

[End of Article VII] 
  



 

 29 
51035811;9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Six Mile Creek Community Development District has caused 
this Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture to be executed by the Chairman of its Board of 
Supervisors and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and attested by the Secretary of its Board 
of Supervisors and U.S. Bank National Association has caused this Eighth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture to be executed by one of its Vice Presidents all as of the day and year first above written. 

 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

[SEAL] 

Attest:       By:      
Gregg Kern 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

__________________________________ 
 James Perry 

Secretary, Board of Supervisors 
 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
AS TRUSTEE, PAYING AGENT AND 
REGISTRAR 

 
By:  

Stacey Johnson 
Vice President



 

 A-1 
51035811;9 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Phase 1 Assessment Area 
 

The tax parcels listed on Table 5 of the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Final 
Numbers Special Assessment Methodology Report dated October __, 2020 prepared by 
Government Management Services, Inc., a copy of which is included in the transcript of 
proceedings relating to the Phase 1 Bonds, but only those parcels so listed and shown as subject to 
the Phase 1 Assessments. 
 

 



 

 B-1-1 
51035811;9 

EXHIBIT B-1 
 

[FORM OF BOND] 
RA-1 $______ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2020 

 (ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 1) 
 

Interest 
Rate   

Maturity 
Date   

 
Dated Date 

 
CUSIP 

           ___% November 1, 20__ December __, 2020  
 
REGISTERED OWNER:    CEDE & CO.  

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:  

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a community 
development district duly established and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the 
“District”), for value received, hereby promises to pay (but only out of the sources hereinafter 
mentioned) to the registered Owner set forth above, or registered assigns, on the maturity date 
shown hereon, unless this Bond shall have been called for redemption in whole or in part and 
payment of the Redemption Price (as defined in the Indenture mentioned hereinafter) shall have 
been duly made or provided for, the principal amount shown above and to pay (but only out of the 
sources hereinafter mentioned) interest on the outstanding principal amount hereof from the most 
recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for, or, if no interest has 
been paid, from the Dated Date shown above on May 1 and November 1 of each year (each, an 
“Interest Payment Date”), commencing on May 1, 2021, until payment of said principal sum has 
been made or provided for, at the rate per annum set forth above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if any Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day (as defined in the Indenture hereinafter 
mentioned), then all amounts due on such Interest Payment Date shall be payable on the first 
Business Day succeeding such Interest Payment Date, but shall be deemed paid on such Interest 
Payment Date. The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest 
Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture (as hereinafter defined), be paid to the registered 
Owner hereof at the close of business on the regular record date for such interest, which shall be 
the fifteenth (15th) day of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date, or, if 
such day is not a Business Day on the Business Day immediately preceding such day; provided, 
however, that on or after the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default under clause (a) 
of Section 902 of the Master Indenture (hereinafter defined), the payment of interest and principal 
or Redemption Price or Amortization Installments shall be made by the Paying Agent (hereinafter 
defined) to such person, who, on a special record date which is fixed by the Trustee, which shall 
be not more than fifteen (15) and not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of such proposed 
payment, appears on the registration books of the Bond Registrar as the registered Owner of this 



 

 B-1-2 
51035811;9 

Bond. Except as required by the rules of DTC, any payment of principal, Maturity Amount or 
Redemption Price shall be made only upon presentation hereof at the designated corporate trust 
office of designated corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National Association located in Orlando, 
Florida as paying agent, or any alternate or successor paying agent (collectively, the “Paying 
Agent”). Payment of interest shall be made by check or draft (or by wire transfer to the registered 
Owner set forth above if such Owner requests such method of payment in writing on or prior to 
the regular record date for the respective interest payment to such account as shall be specified in 
such request, but only if the registered Owner set forth above owns not less than $1,000,000 in 
aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds, as defined below). Interest on this Bond will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. 

NEITHER THIS BOND NOR THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, PAYABLE 
HEREON SHALL CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR GENERAL 
INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE CONSTITUTION 
AND LAWS OF FLORIDA. THIS BOND AND THE SERIES OF WHICH IT IS A PART AND 
THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, PAYABLE HEREON AND THEREON DO NOT 
CONSTITUTE EITHER A PLEDGE OF THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT 
OR A LIEN UPON ANY PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OTHER THAN AS PROVIDED IN 
THE MASTER INDENTURE OR IN THE SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE AUTHORIZING 
THE ISSUANCE OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS. NO OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON SHALL 
EVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY AD VALOREM TAXING 
POWER OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY OR 
GOVERNMENTAL BODY TO PAY DEBT SERVICE OR TO PAY ANY OTHER AMOUNTS 
REQUIRED TO BE PAID PURSUANT TO THE MASTER INDENTURE, THE 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, OR THE PHASE 1 BONDS. RATHER, DEBT SERVICE 
AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE PAID PURSUANT TO THE MASTER 
INDENTURE, THE SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, OR THE PHASE 1 BONDS, SHALL BE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, AND SHALL BE SECURED SOLELY BY, THE PHASE 1 
PLEDGED REVENUES AND THE PHASE 1 PLEDGED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
PLEDGED TO THE PHASE 1 BONDS, ALL AS PROVIDED HEREIN, IN THE MASTER 
INDENTURE AND IN THE EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE. 

This Bond is one of an authorized series of Bonds of Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (the “District”), a community development district duly created, organized 
and existing under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the Uniform Community Development District 
Act of 1980), as amended (the “Act”) designated as “Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1)” (the 
“Phase 1 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of $__________ of like date, tenor and effect, 
except as to maturity date, interest rate and number, issued by the District to (i) finance a portion 
of the Cost of acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of a portion of the District’s 
Capital Improvement Program; (ii) refund certain outstanding debt of the District; (iii) pay interest 
on the Phase 1 Bonds through November 1, 20__, (iv) pay certain costs associated with the 
issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds; and (v) fund a Phase 1 Reserve Account for the Phase 1 Bonds.  

The Phase 1 Bonds are issued under authority of the laws and Constitution of the State of 
Florida, including particularly the Act, and are issued under, and are secured and governed by, a 
Master Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2007 (the “Master Indenture”), by and between the 



 

 B-1-3 
51035811;9 

District and the Trustee and an Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2020 
(the “Eighth Supplemental Indenture”), each by and between the District and the Trustee (the 
Master Indenture and the Eighth Supplemental Indenture together are referred to herein as the 
“Indenture”).  Reference is hereby made to the Indenture for the provisions, among others, with 
respect to the custody and application of the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds, the collection and 
disposition of revenues and the funds charged with and pledged to the payment of the principal, 
Maturity Amount and Redemption Price of, and the interest on, the Phase 1 Bonds, the nature and 
extent of the security thereby created, the covenants of the District with respect to the levy and 
collection of Assessments (as defined in the Indenture), the terms and conditions under which the 
Phase 1 Bonds are or may be issued, the rights, duties, obligations and immunities of the District 
and the Trustee under the Indenture and the rights of the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds, and, by the 
acceptance of this Phase 1 Bond, the Owner hereof assents to all of the provisions of the Indenture. 
The Phase 1 Bonds are equally and ratably secured by the Phase 1 Trust Estate, without preference 
or priority of one Phase 1 Bond over another. The Indenture does not authorize the issuance of any 
additional Bonds ranking on a parity with the Phase 1 Bonds as to the lien and pledge of the Phase 
1 Trust Estate, other than certain refunding Bonds. 

It is expressly agreed by the owner of this Bond that such owner shall never have the right 
to require or compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the District, St. Johns  County, 
Florida (the “County”), the State, or any other political subdivision thereof, or taxation in any form 
of any real or personal property of the District, the County, the State or any other political 
subdivision thereof, for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond 
or the making of any other sinking fund and other payments provided for in the Indenture, except 
for Phase 1 Assessments to be assessed and levied by the District as set forth in the Indenture. 

The Phase 1 Bonds are issuable only as registered bonds without coupons in current interest 
form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (an “Authorized Denomination”); 
provided, however, if any initial beneficial owner of Phase 1 Bonds does not purchase at least 
$100,000 of the Phase 1 Bonds at the time of initial delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, such beneficial 
owner must execute and deliver to the District and the Underwriter on the date of delivery of the 
Phase 1 Bonds the investor letter in the form attached to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture as 
Exhibit C or otherwise establish to the satisfaction of the Underwriter that such beneficial owner 
is an “accredited investor,” as described in Rule 501(a) under Regulation D of the Securities Act 
of 1933, as amended. This Bond is transferable by the registered Owner hereof or his duly 
authorized attorney at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee in Orlando, Florida, as 
Bond Registrar (the “Bond Registrar”), upon surrender of this Bond, accompanied by a duly 
executed instrument of transfer in form and with guaranty of signature reasonably satisfactory to 
the Bond Registrar, subject to such reasonable regulations as the District or the Bond Registrar 
may prescribe, and upon payment of any taxes or other governmental charges incident to such 
transfer. Upon any such transfer a new Phase 1 Bond or Bonds, in the same aggregate principal 
amount as the Phase 1 Bond or Bonds transferred, will be issued to the transferee. At the corporate 
trust office of the Bond Registrar in Orlando, Florida, in the manner and subject to the limitations 
and conditions provided in the Master Indenture and without cost, except for any tax or other 
governmental charge, Phase 1 Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount 
of Phase 1 Bonds of the same maturity, of Authorized Denominations and bearing interest at the 
same rate or rates. 



 

 B-1-4 
51035811;9 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the District 
in whole or in part on any date on or after November 1, 20__ (less than all Phase 1 Bonds to be 
selected by lot) at the Redemption Price of equal to the par amount thereof, together with accrued 
interest to the date of redemption.  

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption 
in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking 
Fund Account established under the Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable 
Amortization Installments (as defined in the Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth below: 

Year 
(November 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

 $ 
  
  
  
*  

____________ 
* Maturity. 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption 
in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking 
Fund Account established under the Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable 
Amortization Installments (as defined in the Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth below: 

Year 
(November 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

 $ 
  
  
  
*  

____________ 
* Maturity. 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption 
in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking 
Fund Account established under the Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable 
Amortization Installments (as defined in the Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth below: 



 

 B-1-5 
51035811;9 

Year 
(November 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

 $ 
  
  
  
*  

____________ 
* Maturity. 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption 
in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking 
Fund Account established under the Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable 
Amortization Installments (as defined in the Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth below: 

Year 
(November 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

 $ 
  
  
  
*  

____________ 
* Maturity. 

Upon any redemption of Phase 1 Bonds (other than Phase 1 Bonds redeemed in accordance 
with scheduled Amortization Installments) and upon any cancellation of Phase 1 Bonds upon 
surrender to the Trustee (including any surrender pursuant to the Indenture), the District shall cause 
to be recalculated and delivered to the Trustee revised Amortization Installments recalculated so 
as to amortize the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds in substantially equal annual installments of 
principal and interest (subject to rounding to Authorized Denominations of principal) over the 
remaining term of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity, 
in whole on any date or in part on any February 1, May 1, August 1 or November 1, in the manner 
determined by the Bond Registrar, at the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount 
thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption, if and to the 
extent that any one or more of the following shall have occurred: 

(a) from Phase 1 Prepayment Principal (as defined in the Indenture) and 
Connection Fees (as defined in the Indenture) deposited into the Phase 1 Prepayment 
Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption Account;  

(b) on or after the Completion Date of the Phase 1 Project, by application of 
moneys remaining in the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition 



 

 B-1-6 
51035811;9 

and Construction Fund not reserved by the Issuer for the payment of any remaining part of 
the Cost of the Phase 1 Project, all of which shall be transferred to the Phase 1 Redemption 
Account of the Debt Service Fund and credited toward extinguishment of the Phase 1 
Assessments and applied toward the redemption of the Phase 1 Bonds, in accordance with 
the manner it has credited such excess moneys toward extinguishment of Phase 1 
Assessments, which the Issuer shall describe to the Trustee in writing; or 

(c) from amounts transferred to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the 
Phase 1 Redemption Account resulting from a reduction in the Phase 1 Reserve Account 
Requirement as provided for in the Indenture, and, on the date on which the amount on 
deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account, together with other moneys available therefor, are 
sufficient to pay and redeem all of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding, including accrued 
interest thereon. 

If less than all of the Phase 1 Bonds shall be called for redemption, the particular Phase 1 
Bonds or portions of Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Registrar as 
provided in the Indenture. 

Notice of each redemption of Phase 1 Bonds is required to be mailed by the Bond Registrar, 
postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption 
date to each registered Owner of Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed at the address of such registered 
Owner recorded on the bond register maintained by the Bond Registrar. On the date designated for 
redemption, notice having been given and money for the payment of the Redemption Price being 
held by the Paying Agent, all as provided in the Indenture, the Phase 1 Bonds or such portions 
thereof so called for redemption shall become and be due and payable at the Redemption Price 
provided for the redemption of such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof on such date, interest 
on such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, 
such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to be entitled to 
any benefit or security under the Indenture and the Owners thereof shall have no rights in respect 
of such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption except to receive payments 
of the Redemption Price thereof so held by the Paying Agent. Further notice of redemption shall 
be given by the Bond Registrar to certain registered securities depositories and information 
services as set forth in the Indenture, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all 
or any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for 
redemption if notice thereof is given as above prescribed. 

This Bond shall be issued initially pursuant to a book-entry-only system administered by 
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which shall act as securities 
depository for the Phase 1 Bonds, with no physical distribution of Phase 1 Bonds to be made.  Any 
provisions of the Indenture or this Bond requiring physical delivery of Phase 1 Bonds shall, under 
the book-entry-only system, be deemed to be satisfied by a notation on the records maintained by 
DTC of ownership interests of its participants (“DTC Participants”) and other institutions that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a DTC Participant, either directly or indirectly 
(“Indirect Participants”).  DTC Participants and Indirect Participants will be responsible for 
maintaining records with respect to the beneficial ownership interests of individual purchasers of 
the Phase 1 Bonds (“Beneficial Owners”). 



 

 B-1-7 
51035811;9 

This Phase 1 Bond shall initially be issued in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC, 
and so long as this Bond is held in book-entry-only form Cede & Co. shall be considered the 
registered owner for all purposes hereof, including the payment of the principal of and interest on 
this Bond.  Payment to DTC Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC.  Payments by DTC 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to 
individual Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of DTC Participants and Indirect 
Participants and not of DTC, the District or the Trustee. 

The District shall keep books for the registration of the Phase 1 Bonds at the designated 
corporate trust office of the Registrar in Orlando, Florida.  Except when registration of the Phase 
1 Bonds is being maintained pursuant to a book-entry-only system, the Phase 1 Bonds may be 
transferred or exchanged by the registered owner thereof in person or by his attorney duly 
authorized in writing only upon the books of the District kept by the Registrar and only upon 
surrender thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly 
executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  In all cases in which the privilege 
of transferring or exchanging Phase 1 Bonds is exercised, the District shall execute and the Trustee 
or such other authenticating agent as may be appointed by the Trustee under the Indenture shall 
authenticate and deliver a new Phase 1 Bond or Phase 1 Bonds in authorized form and in like 
aggregate principal amount in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.  There shall be no 
charge for any such exchange or transfer of Phase 1 Bonds, but the District may require payment 
of a sum sufficient to pay any tax, fee or other governmental charge imposed.  Neither the District 
nor the Registrar shall be required (a) to transfer or exchange Phase 1 Bonds for a period of 15 
days next preceding any selection of Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed or thereafter until after the 
mailing of any notice of redemption; or (b) to transfer or exchange any Phase 1 Bond called for 
redemption in whole or in part. 

The District, the Trustee, the Paying Agent and the Registrar may deem and treat the person 
in whose name any Phase 1 Bond shall be registered upon the books kept by the Registrar as the 
absolute owner thereof (whether or not such Phase 1 Bond shall be overdue and notwithstanding 
any notation of ownership or other writing thereon made by anyone other than the District, the 
Trustee, the Paying Agent or the Registrar) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account 
of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Phase 1 Bond as the same becomes due, 
and for all other purposes.  All such payments so made to any such registered owner or upon his 
order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Phase 1 Bond to 
the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the District, the Trustee, the Paying Agent, nor 
the Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

The owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the Indenture or to 
institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action with respect to any event of 
default under the Indenture or to institute, appear in or defend any suit or other proceeding with 
respect thereto, except as provided in the Indenture. 

In certain events, on the conditions, in the manner and with the effect set forth in the 
Indenture, the principal of all the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding under the Indenture may become 
and may be declared due and payable before the stated maturities thereof, with the interest accrued 
thereon. 



 

 B-1-8 
51035811;9 

Modifications or alterations of the Master Indenture or of any indenture supplemental 
thereto may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances permitted by the Master Indenture. 

Any moneys held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the payment and discharge 
of any Phase 1 Bond which remain unclaimed for six (6) years after the date when such Phase 1 
Bond has become due and payable, either at its stated maturity dates or by call for earlier 
redemption, if such moneys were held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent at such date, or for six 
(6) years after the date of deposit of such moneys if deposited with the Trustee or Paying Agent 
after the date when such Phase 1 Bond became due and payable, shall be paid to the District, and 
thereupon and thereafter no claimant shall have any rights against the Paying Agent to or in respect 
of such moneys. 

If the District deposits or causes to be deposited with the Trustee cash or Federal Securities 
(as defined in the Indenture) sufficient to pay the principal or redemption price of any Phase 1 
Bonds becoming due at maturity or by call for redemption in the manner set forth in the Indenture, 
together with the interest accrued to the due date, the lien of the Phase 1 Bonds as to the Phase 1 
Trust Estate shall be discharged, except for the rights of the Owners thereof with respect to the 
funds so deposited as provided in the Indenture. 

This Bond shall have all the qualities and incidents, including negotiability, of investment 
securities within the meaning and for all the purposes of the Uniform Commercial Code of the 
State of Florida. 

This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Florida shall govern its 
construction. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to 
happen, and to be performed, precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond exist, have happened 
and have been performed in regular and due form and time as required by the laws and Constitution 
of the State of Florida applicable thereto, including particularly the Act, and that the issuance of 
this Bond, and of the issue of the Phase 1 Bonds of which this Bond is one, is in full compliance 
with all constitutional and statutory limitations or provisions.  This Bond shall not be valid or 
become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under the Indenture 
until it shall have been authenticated by execution of the Trustee, or such other authenticating 
agent as may be appointed by the Trustee under the Indenture, of the certificate of authentication 
endorsed hereon. 



 

 B-1-9 
51035811;9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT has caused this Bond to be signed by the manual signature of the Chairman of its Board 
of Supervisors and a facsimile of its seal to be imprinted hereon, and attested by the manual 
signature of the Secretary of its Board of Supervisors, all as of the date hereof. 

Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District 
 
 
By:  

Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
(SEAL) 

Attest: 

By:_____________________________ 
      Secretary 
      Board of Supervisors 



 

 B-1-10 
51035811;9 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond is one of the Phase 1 Bonds delivered pursuant to the within mentioned 
Indenture. 

 
Date of Authentication: __________________ 

U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee 

By:  
Authorized Officer 



 

 B-1-11 
51035811;9 

STATEMENT OF VALIDATION 

This Bond is one of a series of Bonds which were validated by judgment of the Circuit 
Court of the Fourth Judicial Circuit of Florida, in and for St. Johns County, Florida, rendered on 
the 16th day of May, 2007. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
___________________________ 
 Chairman 



 

 B-1-12 
51035811;9 

ABBREVIATIONS 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the within Bond, shall be 
construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations. 

TEN COM as tenants in common 
TEN ENT as tenants by the entireties 
JT TEN as joint tenants with the right of survivorship and not as tenants in common 

UNIFORM GIFT MIN ACT -                 Custodian                  
(Cust)    (Minor) 

under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act                 
(State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 
**************************** 

ASSIGNMENT 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
___________________________________ the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby 
irrevocably constitutes and appoints _________________________________, attorney to transfer 
the said Bond on the books of the District, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: 

Social Security Number or 
Employer Identification 
Number of Transferee: 

Signature guaranteed: 

NOTICE: The assignor’s signature to this Assignment must correspond with the name as it 
appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular without alteration or any 
change whatever. 



 

 C-1 
51035811;9 

EXHIBIT C 
 

[TAX CERTIFICATE AND TAX COVENANTS] 
 
 
 
 



 

 D-1 
51035811;9 

 
EXHIBIT D 

FORM OF INVESTOR LETTER 
 

[Date] 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
c/o Government Management Services, LLC  
St. Augustine, Florida 
 
FMSbonds, Inc. 
North Miami Beach, Florida 
 

Re: $__________ Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1)  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned is authorized to sign this letter [on behalf of Name of Non-Individual 
Investor], as the beneficial owner (the “Investor”) of $______ of the above-referenced Bonds 
maturing on November 1, ________, bearing interest at the rate of ___% per annum and CUSIP 
#________ (herein, the “Investor Bonds”).   

The undersigned acknowledges that the Bonds were issued by the Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital (the “District”) for the purpose of providing a portion 
of the funds necessary to re-finance the acquisition and construction of certain public infrastructure 
described in the Offering Document referred to below and to pay for costs of issuance.  The 
undersigned further acknowledges that the Bonds, which include the Investor Bonds, are secured 
under that certain Master Trust Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2007 (the “Master Indenture”) and 
an Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2020 (“Seventh Supplement 
Indenture” and, collectively with the Master Indenture, the “Indenture”), between the District and 
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), which creates a security interest in the 
trust estate described therein (the “Security”) for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds. 

In connection with the purchase of the Investor Bonds by the Investor, the Investor hereby 
makes the following representations upon which you may rely: 

1. The Investor has authority to purchase the Investor Bonds and to execute this letter, 
any other instruments and documents required to be executed by the Investor in connection with 
the purchase of the Investor Bonds. 

2. The Investor meets the criteria of an “accredited investor” as described in one or 
more of the categories derived from Rule 501(a) under Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended (the “Securities Act”) summarized below, and therefore, has sufficient knowledge and 
experience in financial and business matters, including purchase and ownership of municipal and 
other tax-exempt obligations including those which are not rated or credit-enhanced, to be able to 



 

 D-2 
51035811;9 

evaluate the risks and merits of the investment represented by the Bonds.  Please check the 
appropriate box below to indicate the type of accredited investor: 

q a bank, insurance company, registered investment company, business 
development company, or small business investment company; 

q an employee benefit plan, within the meaning of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act, if a bank, insurance company, or registered investment adviser makes 
the investment decisions, or if the plan has total assets in excess of $5 million; 

q a charitable organization, corporation, or partnership with assets exceeding 
$5 million; 

q a business in which all the equity owners are “accredited investors”; 

q a natural person who has individual net worth, or joint net worth with the 
person’s spouse, that exceeds $1 million at the time of the purchase, excluding the value 
of the primary residence of such person, except that mortgage indebtedness on the primary 
residence shall not be included as a liability; 

q a natural person with income exceeding $200,000 in each of the two most 
recent years or joint income with a spouse exceeding $300,000 for those years and a 
reasonable expectation of the same income level in the current year; or 

q a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specified 
purpose of acquiring the Investor Bonds whose purchase is directed by a sophisticated 
person.  

3. The Investor Bonds are being acquired by the Investor for investment and not with 
a present view to, or for resale in connection with, any distribution of the Bonds. 

4. The Investor has been supplied with an (electronic) copy of the Limited Offering 
Memorandum dated November __, 2020 of the District and relating to the Bonds (the “Offering 
Document”) and has reviewed the Offering Document and represents that such Offering Document 
has provided full and meaningful disclosure in order for the Investor to make an informed decision 
to invest in the Investor Bonds. 



 

 D-3 
51035811;9 

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to such 
terms in the Indenture. 

Very truly yours, 

[Name], [Type of Entity] 

By:      
Name:      
Title:      
Date:      
 
Or 
 
       
[Name], an Individual 

 
 
 



 

 E-1 
51035811;9 

EXHIBIT E 
Phase 1 Investment Obligations 

 
 

“Phase 1 Investment Obligations” shall mean and include any of the following securities 
with respect to the investment of moneys under the Eighth Supplemental Indenture, if and to the 
extent that such securities are legal investments for funds of the District: 

(i) Government Obligations; 

(ii) obligations of any of the following agencies: Government National Mortgage 
Association (including participation certificates issued by such association); Fannie Mae 
(including participation certificates issued by such entity); Federal Home Loan Banks; Federal 
Farm Credit Banks; Tennessee Valley Authority; Farmers Home Administration; Student Loan 
Marketing Association; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other similar governmental 
sponsored entities; 

(iii) Money market deposit accounts, time deposits, and certificates of deposits issued 
by commercial banks, savings and loan associations or mutual savings banks whose short-term 
obligations are rated, at the time of purchase, in one of the two highest rating categories, without 
regard to gradation, by Moody's and S & P; 

(iv) commercial paper rated in the top two rating category by both Moody’s and S&P 
at the time of purchase; 

(v) municipal securities issued by any state or commonwealth of the United States or 
political subdivision thereof or constituted authority thereof including, but not limited to, 
municipal corporations, school districts and other special districts and rated A- or higher by 
Moody’s, Fitch or S&P at the time of purchase; 

(vi) both (A) shares of a diversified open-end management investment company (as 
defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940) or a regulated investment company (as defined 
in Section 851(a) of the Code) that is a money market fund that is rated in the highest rating 
category for money market funds by both Moody’s and S&P, including those shares offered or 
sponsored by the Trustee Bank, and (B) shares of money market mutual funds, including those 
funds offered or sponsored by the Trustee Bank, that invest only in Government Obligations and 
obligations of any of the following agencies: Government National Mortgage Association 
(including participation certificates issued by such association); Fannie Mae (including 
participation certificates issued by such entity); Federal Home Loan Banks; Federal Farm Credit 
Banks; Tennessee Valley Authority; Farmers Home Administration; Student Loan Marketing 
Association; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and repurchase agreements secured by 
such obligations, which funds are rated in the highest categories for such funds by both Moody’s 
and S&P; 

(vii) repurchase agreements, which will be collateralized at the onset of the repurchase 
agreement of at least 103% marked to market weekly by the repurchase agreement provider with 
collateral with a domestic or foreign bank or corporation (other than life or property casualty 



 

 E-2 
51035811;9 

insurance company) the long-term debt of which, or, in the case of a financial guaranty insurance 
company, claims paying ability, of the guarantor is rated at least “AA” by S&P and “Aa” by 
Moody’s provided that the repurchase agreement shall provide that if during its term the provider’s 
rating by either S&P or Moody’s falls below “AA-” or “Aa3,” respectively, the provider shall 
immediately notify the Trustee and the provider shall at its option, within ten (10) calendar days 
of receipt of publication of such downgrade, either (A) maintain collateral at levels, sufficient to 
maintain an “AA” rated investment from S&P and an “Aa” rated investment from Moody’s, or (B) 
repurchase all collateral and terminate the repurchase agreement.  Further, if the provider’s rating 
by either S&P or Moody’s falls below “A-” or “A3,” respectively, the provider must at the 
direction by the District to the Trustee, within ten (10) calendar days, either (1) maintain collateral 
at levels sufficient to maintain an “AA” rated investment from S&P and an “Aa” rated investment 
from Moody’s, or (2) repurchase all Collateral and terminate the repurchase agreement without 
penalty.  In the event the repurchase agreement provider has not satisfied the above conditions 
within ten (10) calendar days of the date such conditions apply, then the repurchase agreement 
shall provide that the Trustee shall be entitled to, and upon becoming aware of such event, the 
Trustee shall withdraw the entire amount invested plus accrued interest within two (2) Business 
Days.  Any repurchase agreement entered into pursuant to this Eighth Supplemental Indenture 
shall contain the following additional provisions: 

1) Failure to maintain the requisite collateral percentage will require the 
District or the Trustee to liquidate the collateral as provided above; 

2) The Holder of the Collateral, as hereinafter defined, shall have possession 
of the collateral or the collateral shall have been transferred to the Holder of the Collateral, 
in accordance with applicable state and federal laws (other than by means of entries on the 
transferor’s books); 

3) The repurchase agreement shall state and an opinion of Counsel in form and 
in substance satisfactory to the Trustee shall be rendered that the Holder of the Collateral 
has a perfected first priority security interest in the collateral, any substituted collateral and 
all proceeds thereof (in the case of bearer securities, this means the Holder of the Collateral 
is in possession); 

4) The repurchase agreement shall be a “repurchase agreement” as defined in 
the United States Bankruptcy Code and, if the provider is a domestic bank, a “qualified 
financial contract” as defined in the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and 
Enforcement Act of 1989 (“FIRREA”) and such bank is subject to FIRREA; 

5) The repurchase transaction shall be in the form of a written agreement, and 
such agreement shall require the provider to give written notice to the Trustee of any 
change in its long-term debt rating; 

6) The District or its designee shall represent that it has no knowledge of any 
fraud involved in the repurchase transaction; 

7) The District and the Trustee shall receive the opinion of Counsel (which 
opinion shall be addressed to the District and the Trustee and shall be in form and substance 



 

 E-3 
51035811;9 

satisfactory to the Trustee) that such repurchase agreement complies with the terms of this 
section and is legal, valid, binding and enforceable upon the provider in accordance with 
its terms; 

8) The term of the repurchase agreement shall be no longer than ten years; 

9) The interest with respect to the repurchase transaction shall be payable at 
the times and in the amounts necessary in order to make funds available when required 
under this Eighth Supplemental Indenture. 

10) The repurchase agreement shall provide that the Trustee may withdraw 
funds without penalty at any time, or from time to time, for any purpose permitted or 
required under this Eighth Supplemental Indenture; 

11) Any repurchase agreement shall provide that a perfected security interest in 
such investments is created for the benefit of the beneficial owners under the Uniform 
Commercial Code of Florida, or book-entry procedures prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et 
seq. or 31 C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. are created for the benefit of the beneficial owners; and 

12) The collateral delivered or transferred to the District, the Trustee, or a third-
party acceptable to, and acting solely as agent for, the Trustee (the “Holder of the 
Collateral”) shall be delivered and transferred in compliance with applicable state and 
federal laws (other than by means of entries on provider’s books) free and clear of any 
third-party liens or claims pursuant to a custodial agreement subject to the prior written 
approval of the majority of the Holders and the Trustee.  The custodial agreement shall 
provide that the Trustee must have disposition or control over the collateral of the 
repurchase agreement, irrespective of an event of default by the provider of such 
repurchase agreement. 

If such investments are held by a third-party, they shall be held as agent for the benefit of 
the Trustee as fiduciary for the beneficial owners and not as agent for the bank serving as Trustee 
in its commercial capacity or any other party and shall be segregated from securities owned 
generally by such third party or bank; 

(viii) investment agreements with a bank, insurance company or other financial 
institution, or the subsidiary of a bank, insurance company or other financial institution if the 
parent guarantees the investment agreement, which bank, insurance company, financial institution 
or parent has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation (or claims-paying ability) rated 
in the highest short-term rating category by Moody’s or S&P (if the term of such agreement does 
not exceed 365 calendar days), or has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation (or 
claims paying ability) rated by Aa2 or better by Moody’s and AA or better by S&P or Fitch, 
respectively (if the term of such agreement is more than 365 calendar days) or is the lead bank of 
a parent bank holding company with an uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed obligation of the 
aforesaid ratings, provided: 

1) interest is paid on any date interest is due on the Phase 1 Bonds (not more 
frequently than quarterly) at a fixed rate (subject to adjustments for yield restrictions 
required by the Code) during the entire term of the agreement; 



 

 E-4 
51035811;9 

2) moneys invested thereunder may be withdrawn without penalty, premium, 
or charge upon not more than two Business Days’ notice unless otherwise specified in a 
Supplemental Indenture; 

3) the same guaranteed interest rate will be paid on any future deposits made 
to restore the account to its required amount; and 

4) the Trustee receives an opinion of counsel that such agreement is an 
enforceable obligation of such insurance company, bank, financial institution or parent; 

5) in the event of a suspension, withdrawal, or downgrade below Aa3, AA- or 
AA- by Moody’s, S&P or Fitch, respectively, the provider shall notify the Trustee within 
five (5) calendar days of such downgrade event and the provider shall at its option, within 
ten (10) Business Days after notice is given to the Trustee take any one of the following 
actions: 

6) collateralize the agreement at levels, sufficient to maintain an “AA” rated 
investment from S&P or Fitch and an “Aa2” from Moody’s with a market to market 
approach, or 

7) assign the agreement to another provider, as long as the minimum rating 
criteria of “AA” rated investment from S&P or Fitch and an “Aa2” from Moody’s with a 
market to market approach; or 

8) have the agreement guaranteed by a provider which results in a minimum 
rating criteria of an “AA” rated investment from S&P or Fitch and an “Aa2” from Moody’s 
with a market to market approach; or 

9) repay all amounts due and owing under the agreement. 

10) In the event the provider has not satisfied any one of the above conditions 
within three (3) Business Days of the date such conditions apply, then the agreement shall 
provide that the Trustee shall be entitled to withdraw the entire amount invested plus 
accrued interest without penalty or premium. 

(ix) bonds, notes and other debt obligations of any corporation organized under the laws 
of the United States, any state or organized territory of the United States or the District of 
Columbia, if such obligations are, at the time of purchase, rated A- or better by at least two (2) of 
the following rating agencies:  Moody’s, S&P or Fitch or AA- or better by either S&P, Moody’s 
or Fitch;  

(x) the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund as described in Florida Statutes, 
Section 218.405 or the corresponding provisions of subsequent laws provided that such fund, at 
the time of purchase, is rated at least “AA” by S&P (without regard to gradation) or at least “Aa” 
by Moody’s (without regard to gradation); and 

(xi) other investments permitted by Florida law and directed by the District. 



 

 E-5 
51035811;9 

A certificate of an Authorized Officer directing any investment enumerated above shall 
constitute a representation by the District (upon which the Trustee may conclusively rely) that such 
investment is permitted under this Eighth Supplemental Indenture.   



1 
 

 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 
 

$_________ 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 1) 
 
 
 

BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT 

_________, 2020 

Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
St. Johns County, Florida 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

FMSbonds, Inc. (the "Underwriter") offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Contract (the "Purchase 
Contract") with the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the "District"). The District is 
located entirely within unincorporated St. Johns County, Florida (the "County"). This offer of the 
Underwriter shall, unless accepted by the District, acting through its Board of Supervisors (the "Board"), 
expire at [4:00] P.M. prevailing time within the jurisdiction of the District on the date hereof, unless 
previously withdrawn or extended in writing by the Underwriter. This Purchase Contract shall be binding 
upon the District and the Underwriter upon execution and delivery. Any capitalized word not defined herein 
shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum (as hereinafter 
defined). In conformance with Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, as amended, the Underwriter hereby 
delivers to the District the Disclosure and Truth-In-Bonding Statements attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

1. Purchase and Sale. Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the 
representations, warranties and agreements set forth herein, the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from 
the District, and the District hereby agrees to sell and deliver to the Underwriter, all (but not less than all) 
of the District's $_________ Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the "Phase 1 Bonds"). The Phase 1 Bonds shall 
be dated their date of delivery and shall mature on the dates, shall bear interest at the rates, and shall be 
subject to redemption prior to maturity, all as provided in Exhibit B attached hereto.  

The purchase price for the Phase 1 Bonds shall be $_________ (representing the $_________ 
aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds, [plus/less net original issue premium/discount of 
$_________ and] and less an underwriter's discount of $_________). Payment of the purchase price and 
delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds and the other actions contemplated hereby to take place at the time of such 
payment and delivery are hereinafter referred to as the "Closing." 

2. The Phase 1 Bonds. The Phase 1 Bonds are to be issued by the District, a local unit of 
special-purpose government of the State of Florida (the "State") created pursuant to the Uniform 
Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended, any successor 
statute thereto, the Florida Constitution, and other applicable provisions of law (collectively, the "Act"), 
and by Rule 42GGG-1, Florida Administrative Code (the "Establishment Rule"). The Phase 1 Bonds are 
being issued pursuant to the Act and secured pursuant to the provisions of a Master Trust Indenture dated 

DRAFT-1 
GrayRobinson, P.A. 

October 16, 2020 



2 
 

as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master Indenture") and a Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of 
_________ 1, 2020 (the "Eighth Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Master Indenture, the 
"Indenture"), each by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), and by Resolution No. 2007-14 and Resolution No. 2021-___ adopted by the Board on March 
30, 2007, and October 21, 2020, respectively (collectively, the "Bond Resolution"). Prior to and as a 
condition of the delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, the Phase 1 Assessments constituting the Pledged Revenues 
for the Phase 1 Bonds, will be levied by the District on those lands within the District specially benefited 
by the Phase 1 Project (as such terms are defined in the Indenture). 

3. Limited Offering; Establishment of Issue Price. It shall be a condition to the District's 
obligation to sell and to deliver the Phase 1 Bonds to the Underwriter, and to the Underwriter's obligation 
to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Phase 1 Bonds, that the entire principal amount of the Phase 
1 Bonds be issued, sold and delivered by the District and purchased, accepted and paid for by the 
Underwriter at the Closing and that the District and the Underwriter receive the opinions, documents and 
certificates described in Section 8(c) hereof. 

(a) The Underwriter agrees to assist the District in establishing the issue price of the 
Phase 1 Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the District at Closing an "issue price" or similar 
certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, in the form 
reasonably satisfactory to Bond Counsel, with such modifications as may be appropriate or 
necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, the District and Bond Counsel, to 
accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the 
public of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

(b) Except as otherwise set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, the District will treat 
the first price at which 10% of each maturity of the Phase 1 Bonds (the "10% test") is sold to the 
public as the issue price of that maturity (if different interest rates apply within a maturity, each 
separate CUSIP number within that maturity will be subject to the 10% test). At or promptly after 
the execution of this Purchase Contract, the Underwriter shall report to the District the price or 
prices at which it has sold to the public each maturity of the Phase 1 Bonds. If at that time the 10% 
test has not been satisfied as to any maturity of the Phase 1 Bonds, the Underwriter agrees to 
promptly report to the District the prices at which it sells the unsold Phase 1 Bonds of that maturity 
to the public. That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the Closing Date (as defined 
below) has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Phase 1 Bonds of that maturity 
or until all Phase 1 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. 

(c) The Underwriter confirms that it has offered the Phase 1 Bonds to the public on or 
before the date of this Purchase Contract at the offering price or prices (the "initial offering price"), 
or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, except as otherwise 
set forth therein. Exhibit B also sets forth, as of the date of this Purchase Contract, the maturities, 
if any, of the Phase 1 Bonds for which the 10% test has not been satisfied and for which the District 
and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply, which will 
allow the District to treat the initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as of the sale 
date as the issue price of that maturity (the "hold-the-offering-price rule"). So long as the hold-the-
offering-price rule remains applicable to any maturity of the Phase 1 Bonds, the Underwriter will 
neither offer nor sell unsold Phase 1 Bonds of that maturity to any person at a price that is higher 
than the initial offering price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and ending on 
the earlier of the following: 

(1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or 



3 
 

(2) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that maturity 
of Phase 1 Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to 
the public. 

The Underwriter shall promptly advise the District when it has sold 10% of that maturity 
of the Phase 1 Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the 
public, if that occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date. 

(d) The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Phase 1 Bonds to any person that 
is a related party to the Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this 
Section. Further, for purposes of this Section: 

(1) "public" means any person other than an underwriter or a related party, 
and 

(2) a purchaser of any of the Phase 1 Bonds is a "related party" to an 
underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at 
least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both 
entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) 
more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both 
entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) 
more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation 
or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a 
corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the 
applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and  

(3) "sale date" means the date of execution of this Purchase Contract is 
executed by all parties. 

4. Use of Documents. Prior to the date hereof, the District has caused to be prepared and has 
provided to the Underwriter a Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum dated _________, 2020 (such 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, including the cover pages and all appendices thereto, and any 
amendments and supplements thereto that may be authorized by the District for use with respect to the 
Phase 1 Bonds, being herein collectively called the "Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum") of the 
District related to the Phase 1 Bonds that the District has deemed final as of its date, except for certain 
permitted omissions (the "Permitted Omissions"), as contemplated by Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission ("Rule 15c2-12" or the "Rule") in connection with the limited offering of the Phase 
1 Bonds. The Underwriter has reviewed the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum prior to the 
execution of this Purchase Contract. The District has, prior to the date hereof, authorized the Preliminary 
Limited Offering Memorandum to be circulated and used by the Underwriter in connection with the limited 
offering of the Phase 1 Bonds. The District shall deliver or cause to be delivered, at its expense, to the 
Underwriter within seven (7) business days after the date hereof but not later than three (3) days prior to 
the Closing Date (as defined below) and in sufficient time to allow the Underwriter to comply with all 
requirements of the Rule and all applicable securities laws and the rules of the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB"), a final Limited Offering Memorandum dated _________, 2020 (such 
Limited Offering Memorandum, including the cover pages and all appendices thereto, and any amendments 
and supplements thereto that may be authorized by the District for use with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds 
being herein collectively called the "Limited Offering Memorandum" and, together with the Preliminary 
Limited Offering Memorandum, the "Limited Offering Memoranda"). The District hereby ratifies and 
approves the circulation and use of the Limited Offering Memoranda by the Underwriter.  



4 
 

5. Definitions. For purposes hereof, (a) this Purchase Contract, the Indenture, the Phase 1 
Bonds, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be dated as of the Closing Date, by and among the District, 
Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Developer"), and 
Governmental Management Services, LLC, as dissemination agent (the "Dissemination Agent"), in 
substantially the form attached to the Limited Offering Memorandum as APPENDIX F thereto (the 
"Disclosure Agreement") and the DTC Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations entered into by the District, 
are referred to herein collectively as the "Financing Documents," and (b) the Completion Agreement by 
and between the District and the Developer dated as of the Closing Date (the "Completion Agreement"), 
the Acquisition Agreement (Phase 1 Bonds) by and between the District and the Developer dated as of the 
Closing Date (the "Acquisition Agreement"), the Collateral Assignment and Assumption of Development 
and Contract Rights Relating to the Phase 1 Project in recordable form by and between the District and the 
Developer dated as of the Closing Date (the "Collateral Assignment"), the True-Up Agreement (Phase 1 
Bonds) in recordable form by and between the District and the Developer dated as of the Closing Date (the 
"True-Up Agreement") and the Declaration of Consent in recordable form by the Developer dated as of the 
Closing Date (the "Declaration"), are collectively referred to herein as the "Ancillary Agreements." 

6. Representations, Warranties and Agreements. The District hereby represents, warrants 
and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Board is the governing body of the District and the District is and will be on 
the Closing Date duly organized and validly existing as a unit of special-purpose government 
created pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, including, without limitation, the Act; 

(b) The District has full legal right, power and authority to: (i) adopt the Bond 
Resolution and the Assessment Resolutions; (ii) enter into the Financing Documents and Ancillary 
Agreements to which it is a party; (iii) sell, issue and deliver the Phase 1 Bonds to the Underwriter 
as provided herein; (iv) apply the proceeds of the sale of the Phase 1 Bonds for the purposes 
described in the Limited Offering Memorandum; (v) acknowledge and authorize the use of the 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and acknowledge and authorize the use and execution 
of the Limited Offering Memorandum; and (vi) carry out and consummate the transactions 
contemplated by the Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolutions, the Financing Documents, the 
Ancillary Agreements and the Limited Offering Memoranda, including but not limited to entering 
into the Collection Agreement to provide for the collection of the Phase 1 Assessments using the 
Uniform Method of collection in accordance with the Indenture. The District has complied, and on 
the Closing Date will be in compliance in all material respects, with the terms of the Act and with 
the obligations on its part contained in the Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolutions, the 
Financing Documents, the Ancillary Agreements to which it is a party and the Phase 1 Bonds; 

(c) At meetings of the Board that were or will be duly called and noticed and at which 
a quorum was or will be present and acting throughout, the Board has duly adopted the Bond 
Resolution and will, prior to the delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, have adopted all of the Assessment 
Resolutions, and the same are and will be in full force and effect and have not been and will not be 
supplemented, amended, modified or repealed, except as set forth therein. By all necessary official 
Board action, the District has duly authorized and approved the use and delivery of the Preliminary 
Limited Offering Memorandum and the execution and delivery of the Financing Documents, the 
Ancillary Agreements, the Phase 1 Bonds and the Limited Offering Memorandum, has duly 
authorized and approved the performance by the District of the obligations on its part contained in 
the Financing Documents, the Ancillary Agreements and the Phase 1 Bonds and the consummation 
by it of all other transactions contemplated by this Purchase Contract and the Preliminary Limited 
Offering Memorandum in connection with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds. Upon execution and 
delivery by the District and the Trustee (and assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery 



5 
 

of the Indenture by the Trustee), the Indenture will constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation 
of the District, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject only to applicable bankruptcy, 
insolvency, and similar laws affecting creditors' rights and subject, as to enforceability, to general 
principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at 
law). Upon execution by the District and the other parties thereto (and assuming the due 
authorization, execution and delivery of such agreements by the other parties thereto), the 
Financing Documents and the Ancillary Agreements will constitute the legal, valid and binding 
obligations of the District, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, subject only to 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws affecting creditors' rights and subject, as to 
enforceability, to general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a 
proceeding in equity or at law); 

(d) The District is not in material breach of or material default under any applicable 
provision of the Act or any applicable constitutional provision or statute or, to the best of its 
knowledge, administrative regulation of the State or the United States of America or any applicable 
judgment or decree, or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement, or other 
material instrument to which the District is a party or to which the District or any of its property or 
assets is otherwise subject, and to the best of its knowledge, no event has occurred and is continuing 
which with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material default 
or material event of default under any such instrument; and the execution and delivery of the Phase 
1 Bonds, the Financing Documents, the Ancillary Agreements and the Limited Offering 
Memorandum, the delivery of the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and the adoption of 
the Bond Resolution and the Assessment Resolutions (once all of the Assessment Resolutions are 
adopted), and compliance with the provisions on the District's part contained therein, will not 
conflict with or constitute a material breach of or material default under any applicable 
constitutional provision, or law, or, to the best of its knowledge, any administrative regulation, 
judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement, or other instrument 
to which the District is a party or to which the District or any of its property or assets is otherwise 
subject, nor will any such execution, delivery, adoption, or compliance result in the creation or 
imposition of any lien, charge, or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever 
upon any of the property or assets of the District or under the terms of any such law, regulation or 
instrument, except as provided by the Assessment Resolutions, the Phase 1 Bonds and the 
Indenture. To the best of its knowledge, no event has occurred which, with the lapse of time or the 
giving of notice, or both, would constitute an event of default (as therein defined) under the Phase 
1 Bonds, the Ancillary Agreements or the Financing Documents; 

(e) All authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and orders of any 
governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the 
matters which are required for the due authorization by, or which would constitute a condition 
precedent to, or the absence of which would materially adversely affect, the due performance by 
the District of its obligations, to issue the Phase 1 Bonds, or under the Phase 1 Bonds, the Bond 
Resolution, the Assessment Resolutions, the Financing Documents or the Ancillary Agreements 
have been duly obtained, except for such approvals, consents and orders as may be required under 
the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in connection with the offering and sale of the Phase 1 
Bonds; 

(f) The descriptions of the Phase 1 Bonds, the Financing Documents, the Ancillary 
Agreements and the Phase 1 Project, to the extent referred to in the Limited Offering Memoranda, 
conform in all material respects to the Phase 1 Bonds, the Financing Documents, the Ancillary 
Agreements and the Phase 1 Project, respectively; 



6 
 

(g) The Phase 1 Bonds, when issued, executed and delivered in accordance with the 
Indenture and when delivered to and paid for by the Underwriter at the Closing in accordance with 
the provisions of this Purchase Contract, will be validly issued and outstanding obligations of the 
District, entitled to the benefits of the Indenture and upon such issuance, execution and delivery of 
the Phase 1 Bonds, the Indenture will provide, for the benefit of the holders from time to time of 
the Phase 1 Bonds, a legally valid and binding pledge of and first lien on the Phase 1 Pledged 
Revenues. On the Closing Date, all conditions precedent to the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds set 
forth in the Indenture will have been complied with or fulfilled; 

(h) There is no claim, action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in 
equity, before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, pending or, to its best 
knowledge, threatened against the District: (i) contesting the corporate existence or powers of the 
Board or the titles of the respective officers of the Board to their respective offices; (ii) affecting or 
seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds or the 
application of the proceeds of the sale thereof for the purposes described in the Limited Offering 
Memorandum, or the collection of Phase 1 Assessments, or the pledge of and lien on the Phase 1 
Pledged Revenues pursuant to the Indenture; (iii) contesting or affecting specifically as to the 
District the validity or enforceability of the Act or any action of the District in any respect relating 
to the authorization for the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds, or the authorization of the Phase 1 
Project, the Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolutions, the Financing Documents and the 
Ancillary Agreements to which the District is a party, or the application of the proceeds of the 
Phase 1 Bonds for the purposes set forth in the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum; (iv) 
contesting the federal tax status of the Phase 1 Bonds; or (v) contesting the completeness or 
accuracy of the Limited Offering Memoranda or any supplement or amendment thereto; 

(i) To the extent applicable, the District will furnish such information, execute such 
instruments and take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter as the Underwriter may 
reasonably request in order to: (i) qualify the Phase 1 Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky 
or other securities laws and regulations of such states and other jurisdictions of the United States 
as the Underwriter may designate; and (ii) determine the eligibility of the Phase 1 Bonds for 
investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and the District will use its best 
efforts to continue such qualifications in effect so long as required for the initial limited offering 
and distribution of the Phase 1 Bonds; provided, however, that the District shall not be required to 
execute a general or special consent to service of process or to qualify to do business in connection 
with any such qualification or determination in any jurisdiction or register as a broker/dealer; 

(j) As of its date (unless an event occurs of the nature described in paragraph (1) of 
this Section 6) and at all times subsequent thereto, up to and including the Closing Date, the 
statements and information contained in the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum (other 
than Permitted Omissions) and in the Limited Offering Memorandum are and will be accurate in 
all material respects for the purposes for which their use is authorized and do not and will not 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make 
the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading; provided, however, that no representation is made concerning information contained 
in the Limited Offering Memoranda under the captions "DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 
BONDS – Book-Entry Only System," "THE DEVELOPMENT," "THE DEVELOPER," "TAX 
MATTERS," "SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT," "LITIGATION – The Developer" and 
"UNDERWRITING"; 

(k) If the Limited Offering Memorandum is supplemented or amended pursuant to 
subsection (1) of this Section 6, at the time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless 



7 
 

subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such paragraph) at all times subsequent 
thereto up to and including the Closing Date, the Limited Offering Memorandum as so 
supplemented or amended will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that no representation is made 
concerning information contained in the Limited Offering Memoranda Memorandum under the 
captions "DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – Book-Entry Only System," "THE 
DEVELOPMENT,"  "THE DEVELOPER," "TAX MATTERS," "SUITABILITY FOR 
INVESTMENT," "LITIGATION – The Developer" and "UNDERWRITING"; 

(l) If, between the date of this Purchase Contract and the earlier of (i) date that is 
ninety (90) days from the end of the "Underwriting Period" as defined in Rule 15c2-12 or (ii) the 
time when the Limited Offering Memorandum is available to any person from the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board's Electronic Municipal Market Access System (but in no event less 
than twenty-five (25) days following the end of the Underwriting Period), any event shall occur, of 
which the District has actual knowledge, which might or would cause the Limited Offering 
Memorandum, as then supplemented or amended, to contain any untrue statement of a material fact 
or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the District shall notify the 
Underwriter thereof, and, if in the opinion of the Underwriter such event requires the preparation 
and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Limited Offering Memorandum, the District 
will at its expense supplement or amend the Limited Offering Memorandum in a form and in a 
manner approved by the Underwriter. The end of the Underwriting Period shall be the next business 
day after the Closing Date; 

(m) Since its inception, there has been no material adverse change in the properties, 
businesses, results of operations, prospects, management or financial or other condition of the 
District, except as disclosed in the Limited Offering Memoranda, and the District has not incurred 
liabilities that would materially adversely affect its ability to discharge its obligations under the 
Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolutions, the Phase 1 Bonds, the Financing Documents or the 
Ancillary Agreements, direct or contingent, other than as set forth in or contemplated by the 
Limited Offering Memoranda; 

(n) Except as disclosed in the Limited Offering Memoranda, the District is not now in 
default and has not been in default at any time after December 31, 1975 in the payment of the 
principal of or the interest on any governmental security issued or guaranteed by it which would 
require the disclosure pursuant to Section 517.051, Florida Statutes or Rule 69W-400.003 of the 
Florida Department of Financial Services; 

(o) Except as disclosed in the Limited Offering Memoranda, the District has never 
failed to comply in any material respect with any continuing disclosure obligations previously 
undertaken by the District in accordance with the continuing disclosure requirements of the Rule; 

(p) Any certificate signed by any official of the District and delivered to the 
Underwriter will be deemed to be a representation by the District to the Underwriter as to the 
statements made therein; and 

(q) From the date of this Purchase Contract through the Closing Date, the District will 
not issue any bonds (other than the Phase 1 Bonds), notes or other obligations payable from the 
Phase 1 Pledged Revenues. 



8 
 

7. Closing. At 10:00 a.m. prevailing time on _________, 2020 (the "Closing Date") or at such 
later time as may be mutually agreed upon by the District and the Underwriter, the District will deliver or 
cause to be delivered to the Underwriter the Phase 1 Bonds in definitive book-entry-only form, duly 
executed and authenticated, together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned, and, subject to the 
terms and conditions hereof, the Underwriter will accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of the 
Phase 1 Bonds as set forth in Section 1 hereof, in federal or other immediately available funds to the order 
of the District. Delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds as aforesaid shall be made pursuant to the FAST system of 
delivery of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or at such other place as may be 
mutually agreed upon by the District and the Underwriter. The Phase 1 Bonds shall be typewritten, shall be 
prepared and delivered as fully registered bonds in book-entry-only form, with one bond for each maturity, 
registered in the name of Cede & Co. and shall be made available to the Underwriter at least one (1) business 
day before the Closing Date for purposes of inspection and packaging, unless otherwise agreed by the 
District and the Underwriter. 

8. Closing Conditions. The Underwriter has entered into this Purchase Contract in reliance 
upon the representations, warranties and agreements of the District contained herein, and in reliance upon 
the representations, warranties and agreements to be contained in the documents and instruments to be 
delivered on the Closing Date and upon the performance by the District of its obligations hereunder, both 
as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date. Accordingly, the Underwriter's obligations under this 
Purchase Contract are conditioned upon the performance by the District of its obligations to be performed 
hereunder and under such documents and instruments at or prior to the Closing Date, and are also subject 
to the following additional conditions: 

(a) The representations and warranties of the District contained herein shall be true, 
complete and correct, on the date hereof and on and as of the Closing Date, as if made on the 
Closing Date; 

(b) At the time of the Closing, the Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolutions, the 
Phase 1 Bonds, the Ancillary Agreements and the Financing Documents shall each be in full force 
and effect in accordance with their respective terms and the Bond Resolution, the Assessment 
Resolutions, the Indenture and the Limited Offering Memoranda shall not have been supplemented, 
amended, modified or repealed, except in any such case as may have been agreed to by the 
Underwriter; 

(c) At or prior to the Closing Date, the Underwriter and the District shall have received 
each of the following: 

(1) The Limited Offering Memorandum and each supplement or amendment, 
if any, thereto, executed on behalf of the District by the Chairperson of the Board or such 
other authorized member of the Board; 

(2) A copy of each of the Bond Resolution and the Assessment Resolutions 
certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Board under seal as having been 
duly adopted by the Board of the District and as being in full force and effect; 

(3) An executed copy of each of the Financing Documents and the Ancillary 
Agreements in form acceptable to the Underwriter and its counsel; 

(4) The opinion, dated as of the Closing Date and addressed to the District, of 
Akerman LLP, Bond Counsel, in the form included in the Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum as APPENDIX B, together with letters of such counsel, dated as of the 



9 
 

Closing Date and addressed to the Underwriter and Trustee, to the effect that the foregoing 
opinion addressed to the District may be relied upon by the Underwriter and Trustee to the 
same extent as if such opinion were addressed to them; 

(5) The supplemental opinion, dated as of the Closing Date and addressed to 
the District and the Underwriter, of Akerman LLP, Bond Counsel, in the form annexed as 
Exhibit C hereto; 

(6) The opinion, dated as of the Closing Date and addressed to the District, 
the Underwriter and the Trustee of Hopping Green & Sams, P.A., counsel to the District, 
in the form annexed as Exhibit D hereto or in form and substance otherwise acceptable to 
the Underwriter and its counsel; 

(7) The opinion, dated as of the Closing Date and addressed to the District, 
the Trustee and the Underwriter of Feldman & Mahoney, P.A., counsel to the Developer, 
in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriter and its counsel; 

(8) An opinion, dated as of the Closing Date and addressed to the Underwriter, 
Underwriter's Counsel, the District and Bond Counsel, of counsel to the Trustee, in form 
and substance acceptable to Bond Counsel, Underwriter, Underwriter's Counsel, and the 
District; 

(9) A customary authorization and incumbency certificate, dated as of the 
Closing Date, signed by authorized officers of the Trustee; 

(10) Certificate of Developer dated as of the Closing Date, in the form annexed 
as Exhibit E hereto, or otherwise in form and substance satisfactory to Bond Counsel, the 
Underwriter, Underwriter's counsel and counsel to the District. 

(11) A copy of the Establishment Rule; 

(12) A certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, signed by the Chairperson or 
Vice-Chairperson and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Board, setting forth 
that:  (i) each of the representations of the District contained herein was true and accurate 
in all material respects on the date when made, has been true and accurate in all material 
respects at all times since, and continues to be true and accurate in all material respects on 
the Closing Date as if made on such date; (ii) the District has performed all obligations to 
be performed hereunder as of the Closing Date; (iii) except as disclosed in the Limited 
Offering Memoranda, the District has never been in default as to principal or interest with 
respect to any obligation issued or guaranteed by the District; (iv) the District agrees to 
take all reasonable action necessary to use the Uniform Method as the means of collecting 
the Phase 1 Assessments, as described in the Indenture; and (v) the Limited Offering 
Memorandum (other than the information under the captions "DESCRIPTION OF THE 
PHASE 1 BONDS – Book-Entry Only System," "THE DEVELOPMENT,"  "THE 
DEVELOPER," "TAX MATTERS," "SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT," 
"LITIGATION – The Developer" and "UNDERWRITING," as to which no view need be 
expressed) as of its date, and as of the date hereof, does not contain any untrue statement 
of a material fact or omits to state a material fact which should be included therein for the 
purposes for which the Limited Offering Memoranda is to be used, or which is necessary 
in order to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading; 



10 
 

(13) A customary signature and no litigation certificate, dated as of the Closing 
Date, signed on behalf of the District by the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson and Secretary 
or an Assistant Secretary of the Board in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriter 
and Underwriter's Counsel; 

(14) Evidence of compliance by the District with the requirements of Section 
189.051, Florida Statutes; 

(15) Executed copies of the District's certification as to arbitrage and other 
matters relative to the tax status of the Phase 1 Bonds under Section 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and a copy of the District's Post Issuance Policies and 
Procedures; 

(16) Executed copy of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G relating to the 
Phase 1 Bonds; 

(17) A certificate of the District's consulting engineer, dated as of the Closing 
Date, in the form annexed as Exhibit F hereto or otherwise in form and substance 
acceptable to Underwriter and Underwriter's Counsel; 

(18) A certificate of the District Manager and Methodology Consultant in the 
form annexed as Exhibit G hereto or otherwise in form and substance acceptable to 
Underwriter and Underwriter's Counsel; 

(19) Such additional documents as may be required by the Indenture to be 
delivered as a condition precedent to the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds; 

(20) Evidence of compliance by the District with the requirements of Section 
215.84, Florida Statutes; 

(21) A certified copy of the final judgment of the Circuit Court in and for St. 
Johns County, Florida, validating the issuance of Bonds pursuant to the Master Indenture 
and the certificate of no-appeal; 

(22) Certified copies of the "Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan" dated 
December 1, 2006, the "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 2007 Capital 
Improvements" adopted on May 25, 2007, the "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 
2015 Capital Improvements" adopted on November 19, 2014, the "Supplemental 
Engineer's Report for Series 2016 Capital Improvements" adopted on March 16, 2016, the 
"Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 2017 Capital Improvements" adopted on October 
27, 2017, as supplemented by that certain "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the Series 
2020 Capital Improvements" dated June 2, 2020, "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 
2020 Capital Improvements" dated October 8, 2020," prepared by England Thims & Miller 
(the "District Engineer"); 

(23) A certificate of the District whereby the District has deemed the 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum final as of its date, except for Permitted 
Omissions, as contemplated by Rule 15c2-12 in connection with the limited offering of the 
Phase 1 Bonds; 



11 
 

(24) A copy of the Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for 
the Series 2020 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1)  dated 
_________, 2020 and prepared by Governmental Management Services, LLC; 

(25) Acknowledgments in recordable form by all mortgage holder(s) on lands 
within Phase 1, if any, as to the superior lien of the Phase 1 Assessments, in form and 
substance acceptable to Underwriter and Underwriter's Counsel; 

(26) A Declaration of Consent to Jurisdiction of Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District and to Imposition of Special Assessments executed and delivered by 
the Developer and any other entity owning any land in Phase 1 as of the Closing Date with 
respect to all real property owned by such entity(ies) within the District which is subject to 
the Phase 1 Assessments in recordable form and otherwise in form and substance 
acceptable to the Underwriter and Underwriter's Counsel and counsel to the District; 

(27) A certificate of the Dissemination Agent (i) acknowledging its agreement 
to serve as the initial Dissemination Agent for the District with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds 
and undertake the obligations of the Dissemination Agent as set forth in the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement and (ii) representing that the Dissemination Agent is aware of the 
continuing disclosure requirements set forth in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and 
Rule 15c2-12, (iii) that it has policies and procedures in place to ensure its compliance with 
its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and (iv) covenanting to comply 
with the District's continuing disclosure undertakings entered into pursuant to Rule 15c2-
12 at all times in the future; and  

(28) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other 
documents as the Underwriter, Underwriter's Counsel, Bond Counsel or counsel to the 
District may reasonably request to evidence the truth and accuracy, as of the date hereof 
and as of the Closing Date, of the District's representations and warranties contained herein 
and of the statements and information contained in the Limited Offering Memoranda and 
the due performance or satisfaction by the District and the Developer on or prior to the 
Closing of all the agreements then to be performed and conditions then to be satisfied by 
each. 

If the District shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriter to 
purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for the Phase 1 Bonds contained in this Purchase Contract (unless 
waived by the Underwriter in its sole discretion), or if the obligations of the Underwriter to purchase, to 
accept delivery of and to pay for the Phase 1 Bonds shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this 
Purchase Contract, this Purchase Contract shall terminate and neither the Underwriter nor the District shall 
be under any further obligation hereunder, except that the respective obligations of the District and the 
Underwriter set forth in Section 10 hereof shall continue in full force and effect. 

9. Termination. The Underwriter shall have the right to terminate its obligations under this 
Purchase Contract to purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for the Phase 1 Bonds by notifying the 
District of its election to do so if, after the execution hereof and prior to the Closing: (i) legislation shall 
have been introduced in or enacted by the Congress of the United States or enacted by the State, or 
legislation pending in the Congress of the United States shall have been amended, or legislation shall have 
been recommended to the Congress of the United States or otherwise endorsed for passage (by press release, 
other form of notice or otherwise) by the President of the United States, the Treasury Department of the 
United States, the Internal Revenue Service or the Chairperson or ranking minority member of the 
Committee on Finance of the United States Senate or the Committee on Ways and Means of the United 



12 
 

States House of Representatives, or legislation shall have been proposed for consideration by either such 
committee, by any member thereof, or legislation shall have been favorably reported for passage to either 
House of Congress of the United States by a committee of such House to which such legislation has been 
referred for consideration, or a decision shall have been rendered by a court of the United States or the 
State, including the Tax Court of the United States, or a ruling shall have been made or a regulation shall 
have been proposed or made or a press release or other form of notice shall have been issued by the Treasury 
Department of the United States, or the Internal Revenue Service or other federal or State authority, with 
respect to federal or State taxation upon revenues or other income of the general character to be derived by 
the District or by any similar body, or upon interest on obligations of the general character of the Phase 1 
Bonds, which may have the purpose or effect, directly or indirectly, of materially and adversely affecting 
the tax status of the District, its property or income, its securities (including the Phase 1 Bonds) or the 
interest thereon, or any tax exemption granted or authorized by the State or, which in the reasonable opinion 
of the Underwriter, affects materially and adversely the market for the Phase 1 Bonds, or the market price 
generally of obligations of the general character of the Phase 1 Bonds; (ii) the District or the Developer has, 
without the prior written consent of the Underwriter, offered or issued any bonds, notes or other obligations 
for borrowed money, or incurred any material liabilities, direct or contingent, or there has been an adverse 
change of a material nature in the financial position, results of operations or condition, financial or 
otherwise, of the District, the Developer or any Builder, other than in the ordinary course of its business; 
(iii) any event shall have occurred or shall exist which, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, would 
or might cause the information contained in the Limited Offering Memorandum, as then supplemented or 
amended, to contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be 
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading; or (iv) the District fails to adopt the Assessment Resolutions or fails to 
perform any action to be performed by it in connection with the levy of the Phase 1 Assessments. 

10. Expenses. 

(a) The District agrees to pay, and the Underwriter shall not be obligated to pay, any 
expenses incident to the performance of the District's obligations hereunder, including, but not 
limited to:  (i) the cost of the preparation and distribution of the Indenture; (ii) the cost of the 
preparation and printing, if applicable, of the Limited Offering Memoranda and any supplements 
thereto, together with a reasonable number of copies which the Underwriter may request; (iii) the 
cost of registering the Phase 1 Bonds in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, which will 
act as securities depository for such Bonds; (iv) the fees and disbursements of counsel to the 
District, the District Manager, the Dissemination Agent, Bond Counsel, Underwriter's Counsel, the 
District's methodology consultant, the District Engineer, the Trustee, Trustee's Counsel and any 
other experts or consultants retained by the District; and (v) the cost of recording in the Official 
Records of the County any Financing Documents, Ancillary Agreements or other documents or 
certificates that are required to be recorded pursuant to the terms of this Purchase Contract. It is 
anticipated that such expenses shall be paid from the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds. The District 
shall record all documents required to be provided in recordable form hereunder within five 
business days after the Closing Date, which obligation shall survive the Closing. 

(b) The Underwriter agrees to pay all advertising expenses in connection with the 
Phase 1 Bonds, if any. 

11. No Advisory or Fiduciary Role. The District acknowledges and agrees that (i) the 
purchase and sale of the Phase 1 Bonds pursuant to this Agreement is an arm's-length commercial 
transaction between the District and the Underwriter, (ii) in connection with such transaction and with the 
discussions, undertakings and procedures leading up to such transaction, the Underwriter is and has been 
acting solely as a principal and not as an advisor (including, without limitation, a Municipal Advisor (as 



13 
 

such term is defined in Section 975(e) of the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection 
Act)), agent or fiduciary of the District, (iii) the Underwriter has not assumed an advisory or fiduciary 
responsibility in favor of the District with respect to the limited offering of the Phase 1 Bonds or the 
discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto (whether or not the Underwriter, or any affiliate 
of the Underwriter, has provided any services or is currently providing other services to the District on other 
matters) or any other obligation to the District, and the Underwriter has no obligation to the District with 
respect to the limited offering contemplated hereby except the obligations expressly set forth in this 
Agreement, (iv) the Underwriter has financial and other interests that differ from those of the District, (v) 
the District has consulted with its own legal and financial advisors to the extent it deemed appropriate in 
connection with the offering of the Bonds, and (vi) the Underwriter has provided to the District prior 
disclosures under Rule G-17 of the MSRB, which have been received by the District. 

12. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the District under this Purchase 
Contract may be given by delivering the same in writing to Governmental Management Services, LLC, 475 
West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092, and any notice or other 
communication to be given to the Underwriter under this Purchase Contract may be given by delivering the 
same in writing to FMSbonds, Inc., 20660 W. Dixie Highway, North Miami Beach, Florida 33180, 
Attention: Jon Kessler. 

13. Parties in Interest; Survival of Representations. This Purchase Contract is made solely 
for the benefit of the District and the Underwriter (including the successors or assigns of the Underwriter) 
and no other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. All of the District's 
representations, warranties and agreements contained in this Purchase Contract shall remain operative and 
in full force and effect and survive the closing on the Phase 1 Bonds, regardless of: (i) any investigations 
made by or on behalf of the Underwriter and (ii) delivery of and payment for the Phase 1 Bonds pursuant 
to this Purchase Contract. 

14. Effectiveness. This Purchase Contract shall become effective upon the execution by the 
appropriate officials of the District and shall be valid and enforceable at the time of such acceptance. To 
the extent of any conflict between the provisions of this Purchase Contract and any prior contract between 
the parties hereto, the provisions of this Purchase Contract shall govern. 

15. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Purchase Contract are inserted for 
convenience only and shall not be deemed to be a part hereof. 

16. Amendment. No modification, alteration or amendment to this Purchase Contract shall be 
binding upon any party until such modification, alteration or amendment is reduced to writing and executed 
by all parties hereto. 

17. Governing Law. This Purchase Contract shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State. 

  



14 
 

18. Counterparts; Facsimile. This Purchase Contract may be signed in any number of 
counterparts with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were signatures upon the same 
instrument. Facsimile and pdf signatures shall be deemed originals. 

[Signature page follows] 

  



15 
 

 

 Very truly yours, 

 FMSBONDS, INC. 

By:    
Theodore A. Swinarski,  

         Senior Vice President - Trading 
 

 
 
Accepted and agreed to this 
____ day of _______________, 2020. 

 

 SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

By:    
Gregg F. Kern,  
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 



 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

DISCLOSURE AND TRUTH-IN-BONDING STATEMENT 

_________, 2020 

Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
St. Johns County, Florida 

Re: $_________ Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the "Phase 1 Bonds")  

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Pursuant to Chapter 218.385, Florida Statutes, and with respect to the issuance of the Phase 1 
Bonds, FMSbonds, Inc. (the "Underwriter"), pursuant to a Bond Purchase Contract dated _________, 2020 
(the "Bond Purchase Contract"), between the Underwriter and Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District"), furnishes the following disclosures to the District (all capitalized terms used and 
not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Bond Purchase Contract): 

1. The total underwriting discount paid to the Underwriter pursuant to the Bond Purchase 
Contract for the Phase 1 Bonds is approximately $_____ per $1,000.00 or $_________.  

2. The names, addresses and estimated amounts of compensation of any person who is not 
regularly employed by, or not a partner or officer of, the Underwriter, bank, banker, or 
financial consultant or advisor and who enters into an understanding with either the District 
or the Underwriter, or both, for any paid or promised compensation or valuable 
consideration directly, expressly or impliedly, to act solely as an intermediary between the 
District and the Underwriter for the purposes of influencing any transaction in the purchase 
of the Phase 1 Bonds are:  None. 

3. The nature and estimated amounts of expenses to be incurred by the Underwriter in 
connection with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds are set forth in Schedule I attached 
hereto. 

4. The management fee charged by the Underwriter is: $0/$1,000 or $0. 

5. Any other fee, bonus or other compensation estimated to be paid by the Underwriter in 
connection with the Phase 1 Bonds to any person not regularly employed or retained by 
the Underwriter in connection with the Phase 1 Bonds is as follows: None. GrayRobinson, 
P.A. has been retained as counsel to the Underwriter and will be compensated by the 
District from the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds.  

7. The name and address of the Underwriter is: 

FMSbonds, Inc. 
20660 W. Dixie Highway 
North Miami Beach, Florida 33180 
 



 

A-2 
 

The District is proposing to issue $_________ aggregate amount of the Phase 1 Bonds to: (i) finance 
a portion of the Cost of acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of a portion of the Phase 1 
Project; (ii) pay interest on the Phase 1 Bonds through November 1, 20___, (iii) pay certain costs associated 
with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds; and (iv) fund the Phase 1 Reserve Account as provided in the 
Indenture.  

The debt evidenced by the Phase 1 Bonds is expected to be repaid over a period of approximately 
___________ (___) years and ____________ (___) months. At the net interest cost of _________%, total 
interest paid over the life of the Phase 1 Bonds will be $_________. 

The sources of repayment for the Phase 1 Bonds are the revenues received by the District from the 
Phase 1 Assessments imposed and collected by the District. Based solely upon the assumptions set forth in 
the paragraphs above, the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds will result in $_________ (representing the average 
annual debt service payments due on the Phase 1 Bonds) of the Phase 1 Assessment revenues not being 
available to the District on an annual basis to finance other services of the District; provided however, that 
in the event that the Phase 1 Bonds were not issued, the District would not be entitled to impose and collect 
the Phase 1 Assessments in the amount of the principal of and interest to be paid on the Phase 1 Bonds. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]  



 

A-3 
 

[Signature page to Disclosure and Truth in Bonding Statement] 

 

 
 
 

Sincerely, 

FMSBONDS, INC. 

By:    
       Theodore A. Swinarski,  
       Senior Vice President - Trading 
 

 

  



 

A-4 
 

SCHEDULE I 

 
Expenses for the Phase 1 Bonds: 

Expense Amount 
DALCOMP  
Clearance  
CUSIP  
DTC  
FINRA/SIPC  
MSRB  
Electronic Orders  
TOTAL:  
  

 
 
 



 

B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

TERMS OF BONDS 

1. Purchase Price for the Phase 1 Bonds:  $_________ (representing the $_________ aggregate 
principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds, [plus/less net original issue premium/discount of 
$_________ and] less an underwriter's discount of $_________). 

2. Principal Amounts, Maturities, Interest Rates and Prices: 

Phase 1 Bonds 
Amount Maturity Date Rate Price 

    
    
    
    

 
 

The Underwriter has offered the Phase 1 Bonds to the public on or before the date of this Purchase 
Contract at the initial offering prices set forth herein and has sold at least 10% of each maturity of the Phase 
1 Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than such initial offering prices[, except for the following 
maturities: _______]. 

3. Redemption Provisions: 

Optional Redemption 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the District in whole 
or in part on any date on or after November 1, 20___ (less than all Phase 1 Bonds to be selected by lot) at 
the Redemption Price equal to the par amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20___ are subject to mandatory redemption in part 
by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 

Year Principal Amount 
 $ 
  
  
  
*  

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 



 

B-2 
 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20___ are subject to mandatory redemption in part 
by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 

Year Principal Amount 
 $ 
  
  
  
  
*  

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20___ are subject to mandatory redemption in part 
by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 

Year Principal Amount 
 $ 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
*  

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20___ are subject to mandatory redemption in part 
by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 



 

B-3 
 

Year Principal Amount 
 $ 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
*  

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 

Upon any redemption of Phase 1 Bonds (other than Phase 1 Bonds redeemed in accordance with 
scheduled Amortization Installments) and upon any cancellation of Phase 1 Bonds upon surrender to the 
Trustee (including any surrender pursuant to the Indenture), the District shall cause to be recalculated and 
delivered to the Trustee revised Amortization Installments recalculated so as to amortize the Outstanding 
Phase 1 Bonds in substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest (subject to rounding to 
Authorized Denominations of principal) over the remaining term of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity, in whole 
on any date or in part on any Quarterly Redemption Date (defined in the Indenture as each February 1, May 
1, August 1 and November 1), in the manner determined by the Bond Registrar at the Redemption Price of 
100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption, if and to the extent that any one or more of the following shall have occurred: 

(a) from Phase 1 Prepayment Principal (as defined in the Indenture) and Connection 
Fees (as defined in the Indenture) deposited into the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 
1 Redemption Account;  

(b) on or after the Completion Date of the Phase 1 Project, by application of moneys 
remaining in the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition and 
Construction Fund not reserved by the District for the payment of any remaining part of the Cost 
of the Phase 1 Project, all of which shall be transferred to the Phase 1 Redemption Account of the 
Debt Service Fund and credited toward extinguishment of the Phase 1 Assessments and applied 
toward the redemption of the Phase 1 Bonds, in accordance with the manner it has credited such 
excess moneys toward extinguishment of Phase 1 Assessments, which the District shall describe to 
the Trustee in writing; or 

(c) from amounts transferred to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 
Redemption Account resulting from a reduction in the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement as 
provided for in the Indenture, and, on the date on which the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 
Reserve Account, together with other moneys available therefor, are sufficient to pay and redeem 
all of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding, including accrued interest thereon. 

If less than all of the Phase 1 Bonds shall be called for redemption, the particular Phase 1 Bonds or 
portions of Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Registrar as provided in the 
Indenture. 



 

C-1 
 

EXHIBIT C 

BOND COUNSEL'S SUPPLEMENTAL OPINION 

_________, 2020 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
St. Johns County, Florida 

FMSbonds, Inc. 
North Miami Beach, Florida 

Re: $_________ Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1)  

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as Bond Counsel to the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the 
"District"), a community development district established and existing pursuant to Chapter 190 of the 
Florida Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), in connection with the issuance by the District of its $_________ 
original aggregate principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the "Phase 1 Bonds"). In such 
capacity, we have rendered our final approving opinion (the "Opinion") of even date herewith relating to 
the Phase 1 Bonds. The Phase 1 Bonds are secured pursuant to that certain Master Trust Indenture, dated 
July 1, 2007 (the "Master Indenture") by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
trustee (the "Trustee"), as successor to Regions Bank, as supplemented and amended by that certain Eighth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of _________ 1, 2020 (the "Eighth Supplemental Indenture" and 
together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture") by and between the District and the Trustee.  

In connection with the rendering of the Opinion, we have reviewed records of the acts taken by the 
District in connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds, were present at various 
meetings and participated in various discussions in connection therewith and have reviewed such other 
documents, records and other instruments as we deem necessary to deliver this opinion. 

The District has entered into a Bond Purchase Contract dated _________, 2020 (the "Purchase 
Contract"), for the purchase of the Phase 1 Bonds. Capitalized words used, but not defined, herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Purchase Contract.  

Based upon the forgoing, we are of the opinion that: 

1. The sale of the Phase 1 Bonds by the District is not subject to the registration requirements 
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), pursuant to the exemption provided in 
Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act.  

 
2. The Indenture is exempt from qualification pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as 

amended.  
 
3. The information in the Limited Offering Memoranda under the captions 

"INTRODUCTION," "DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS," "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE 
OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS," "and "APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER INDENTURE 
AND PROPOSED FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE," insofar as such statements constitute 



 

C-2 
 

descriptions of the Phase 1 Bonds and the Indenture, are accurate as to the matters set forth or documents 
described therein, and the information under the captions "TAX MATTERS" and "AGREEMENT BY THE 
STATE," insofar as such information purports to describe or summarize certain provisions of the laws of 
the State of Florida (the "State") and the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"), is accurate as to the matters set forth therein.    

 
This letter is furnished by us as Bond Counsel. No attorney-client relationship has existed or exists 

between our firm and FMSbonds, Inc. (the "Underwriter") in connection with the Phase 1 Bonds or by 
virtue of this letter. This letter is delivered to the Underwriter solely for its benefit as Underwriter and may 
not be used, circulated, quoted or otherwise referred to or relied upon by the Underwriter for any other 
purpose or by any other person other than the addressee hereto. This letter is not intended to, and may not 
be, relied upon by holders of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Very truly yours, 



 

D-1 
 

EXHIBIT D 

ISSUER'S COUNSEL'S OPINION 

_________, 2020 

 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
St. Johns County, Florida 

FMSbonds, Inc. 
North Miami Beach, Florida 

U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee  
Orlando, Florida 
(solely for reliance upon Sections C.1., C.2. and C.3) 

 
Re: $_________ Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1)  
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

We serve as counsel to the Six Mile Creek Community Development District ("District"), a local 
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida, in connection 
with the sale by the District of its $_________ Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the "Bonds"). This letter is 
delivered to you pursuant to Section 207(iii) of the Master Indenture (defined below), Section 2.07 of the 
Supplemental Trust Indenture (defined below), and Section 8(c)(6) of the Bond Purchase Contract 
(referenced below), and is effective as of the date first written above. Each capitalized term not otherwise 
defined herein has the meaning given it to it in the Indenture (defined herein). 

 
A. DOCUMENTS EXAMINED 

 
In rendering the opinions set forth below, we have examined and/or relied upon the following 

documents and have made such examination of law as we have deemed necessary or appropriate: 

1. Rule 42GGG-1, of the Florida Administrative Code adopted by the Florida Land and Water 
Adjudicatory Commission effective March 7, 2007 ("Establishment Rule");  

2. the Master Trust Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2007 ("Master Indenture"), as 
supplemented with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds by the Eighth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture, dated as of _________ 1, 2020 ("Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture"), and 
the Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture together with the Master Indenture, 
"Indentures"), each by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
trustee ("Trustee"); 

3. Resolutions Nos. 2007-14 and 2021-___ adopted by the District on March 30, 2007, and 
October 21, 2020, respectively (collectively, "Bond Resolution");  

4. the "Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan" dated December 1, 2006, the "Supplemental 
Engineer's Report for the 2007 Capital Improvements" adopted on May 25, 2007, the 
"Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 2015 Capital Improvements" adopted on 



 

D-2 
 

November 19, 2014, "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 2016 Capital Improvements" 
adopted on March 16, 2016, the "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 2017 Capital 
Improvements" adopted on October 27, 2017, as supplemented by that certain 
"Supplemental Engineer's Report for the Series 2020 Capital Improvements" dated June 2, 
2020, as supplemented by that certain "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the Series 2020 
Capital Improvements" dated October 8, 2020  (collectively, "Engineer's Report"), which 
describes among other things, the "Phase 1 Project";   

5. Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2020 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated _________, 2020 
(collectively, "Assessment Methodology"); 

6. Resolution Nos. 2017-06, 2018-02 and 2020-__ (collectively, "Assessment Resolution"), 
establishing the debt service special assessments ("Debt Assessments") securing the 
Bonds; 

7. the Final Judgment issued on May 16, 2007 by the Circuit Court for the Seventh Judicial 
Circuit in and for Flagler, Putnam, St. Johns and Volusia Counties, Florida, in Case No. 
CA07-0435, and Certificate of No Appeal issued on June 18, 2007;  

8. the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum dated _________, 2020 ("PLOM") and 
Limited Offering Memorandum dated _________, 2020 ("LOM"); 

9. certain certifications by FMSbonds, Inc. ("Underwriter"), as underwriter to the sale of the 
Bonds;  

10. certain certifications of England Thims & Miller, Inc., as District Engineer;  

11. certain certifications of Governmental Management Services, LLC, as District Manager 
and Assessment Consultant;  

12. general and closing certificate of the District; 

13. an opinion of Akerman LLP ("Bond Counsel") issued to the District in connection with 
the sale and issuance of the Bonds;  

14. an opinion of Holland & Knight LLP ("Trustee Counsel") issued to the District and 
Underwriter in connection with the sale and issuance of the Bonds;  

15. an opinion of Feldman & Mahoney, P.A., counsel to the Developer (defined herein), issued 
to the District and the Underwriter in connection with the sale and issuance of the Bonds;  

16. the following agreements ("Bond Agreements"): 

(a) the Continuing Disclosure Agreement dated _________, 2020, by and among the 
District, Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC ("Developer") and Governmental 
Management Services, LLC;  

(b) the Bond Purchase Contract between Underwriter and the District and dated 
_________, 2020 ("BPA");  

(c) the Acquisition Agreement (Phase 1 Bonds) between the District and the Developer 
and dated _________, 2020;  

(d) the Completion Agreement between the District and the Developer dated _________, 
2020; 

(e) the Agreement between the District and the Developer regarding the True-Up and 
Payment of Phase 1 Assessments dated _________, 2020; and 



 

D-3 
 

(f) the Collateral Assignment and Assumption Agreement (Phase 1 Bonds) between the 
District and the Developer and dated _________, 2020; and 

17. such other documents as we have deemed necessary or appropriate in rendering the 
opinions set forth below. 

We have also attended various meetings of the District and have participated in conferences from 
time to time with representatives of the District, the District Engineer, the District Manager and Assessment 
Consultant, the Underwriter, Bond Counsel, counsel to the Underwriter, the Developer, counsel to the 
Developer, and others relative to the Limited Offering Memorandum and the related documents described 
herein. 

B. RELIANCE  

This opinion is solely for the benefit of the (i) District; (ii) the Underwriter; and (iii) the Trustee; 
however, the Trustee may only rely on this opinion for the limited purposes of the opinions stated in 
Sections C.1, C.2 and C.3. This opinion may not be relied on by any other party or for any other purpose 
without our prior written consent.  

C. OPINIONS 

Based on the foregoing, and subject to the qualifications and assumptions set forth herein, we are 
of the opinion that: 

 
1. Authority – Under the Florida Constitution and laws of the State, the District has been duly 

established and validly exists as a local unit of special purpose government and a community development 
district under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the "Act"), with such powers as set forth in the Act, and with 
good, right and lawful authority: (a) to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the 
Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolution, the Indentures, the Bonds and the Bond Agreements; (b) to 
issue the Bonds for the purposes for which they are issued; (c) to impose, levy, collect and enforce the Debt 
Assessments and pledge the Pledged Revenues to secure the Bonds as provided in the Indentures; (d) to 
adopt the Bond Resolution and the Assessment Resolution; and (e) to perform its obligations under the 
terms and conditions of the Bond Resolution, the Assessment Resolution, the Bond Agreements, the Bonds 
and the Indentures. 

2. Assessments – The proceedings by the District with respect to the Debt Assessments have 
been in accordance with Florida law. The District has taken all action necessary to levy and impose the 
Debt Assessments as set forth in the Assessment Resolution, Assessment Methodology, and/or other 
applicable documents. The Debt Assessments constitute legal, valid, binding and enforceable first liens 
upon the property against which such Debt Assessments are assessed, co-equal with the lien of all state, 
county, district and municipal taxes and assessments, and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles and 
claims, until paid.  

3. Agreements – The (a) Bond Resolution, (b) Assessment Resolution, (c) Bonds, (d) 
Indentures, and (d) Bond Agreements (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery of documents 
(c) – (d) listed herein by any other parties thereto) have been duly and validly authorized, executed and 
delivered by the District, have been duly approved and adopted and/or issued by the District, are in full 
force and effect, constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the District, and are enforceable against 
the District in accordance with their respective terms. All conditions prescribed in the Indentures as 
precedent to the issuance of the Bonds have been fulfilled. 



 

D-4 
 

4. Validation – The Bonds have been validated by a final judgment of the Circuit Court in 
and for Flagler, Putnam, St. Johns and Volusia Counties, Florida, of which no timely appeal was filed. 

5. Governmental Approvals –  All necessary consents, approvals, waivers or other actions by 
or filings with any governmental authority or other entity that are required for: (a) the adoption of the Bond 
Resolution and the Assessment Resolution; (b) the issuance, sale, execution and delivery of the Bonds upon 
the terms set forth in the BPA, PLOM, and LOM; (c) the execution and delivery of the Indentures and Bond 
Agreements; and (d) the performance by the District of the transactions required hereby, have been duly 
obtained or made and are in full force and effect. 

6.  PLOM and LOM – The District has duly authorized the execution, delivery and 
distribution by the Underwriter of the PLOM and LOM. To our knowledge, and based upon our review of 
the PLOM and LOM and without having undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, 
completeness or fairness of the statements contained in the PLOM and LOM, and as of the date of their 
respective issuances, and the date hereof, nothing has come to our attention which would lead us to believe 
that the PLOM and LOM contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading, provided however that the opinions stated herein extend only to the following 
provisions of the PLOM and LOM:  "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 
1 BONDS – Prepayment of Phase 1 Assessments," "ENFORCEMENT OF ASSESSMENT 
COLLECTIONS," "THE DISTRICT" (excluding the subcaption "The District Manager and Other 
Consultants"), "ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS," 
"THE DEVELOPMENT – Developer Agreements" (solely as it relates to a description of such agreements), 
"AGREEMENT BY THE STATE," "LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT," "LITIGATION – The District," 
"CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" (excluding information related to the Developer), "VALIDATION," and 
"AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL," and further provided however that the opinions stated herein do 
not extend to any  statements that constitute descriptions of the Bonds or the Indentures.  No information 
or opinion is offered as to any remaining provisions of the PLOM or LOM. 

7. Litigation – To the best of our knowledge, and based on inquiry of the District's Registered 
Agent for service of process and the fact that we have not been served with notice, there is no litigation 
pending or threatened against the District:  (a) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the 
Bonds or the application of the proceeds thereof, or the imposition, levy or collection of the Debt 
Assessments or the Pledged Revenues pledged for the payment of the debt service on the Bonds; (b) 
contesting or affecting the authority for the authority for the Debt Assessments, the authority for the 
issuance of the Bonds or the validity or enforceability of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Bond Agreements 
or the transactions contemplated thereunder; (c) contesting or affecting the establishment or existence of 
the District or any of its Supervisors, officers or employees, its assets, property or condition, financial or 
otherwise, or contesting or affecting any of the powers of the District, including its power to enter into the 
Indenture or the Bond Agreements, or its power to determine, assess, levy, collect and pledge the Debt 
Assessments for the payment of the debt service on the Bonds; or (d) specifically contesting the exclusion 
from federal gross income of interest on the Bonds. 

8. Compliance with Laws – To the best of our knowledge, the District is not, in any manner 
material to the issuance of the Bonds or the Debt Assessments, in breach of or default under any applicable 
provision of the Act or constitutional provision, statute, or administrative regulation of the State or the 
United States, or to the best of our knowledge, any applicable judgment or decree, any loan agreement, 
indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement (including the Bond Agreements and Indentures), or any other 
material instrument to which the District is a party or to which the District or any of its property or assets 
is otherwise subject, and to the best of our knowledge, no event has occurred and is continuing which with 
the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material default or event of default 



 

D-5 
 

by the District under any such instrument; provided, however, that no opinion is expressed as to compliance 
with any state or federal tax or securities laws. 

9. Authority to Undertake the Phase 1 Project - The District has good right and lawful 
authority under the Act to undertake, finance, acquire, construct, own, and operate the Phase 1 Project, 
subject to obtaining such licenses, orders or other authorizations as are, at the date of such opinion, required 
to be obtained from any agency or regulatory body. 

D. CERTAIN ASSUMPTIONS  

In rendering the foregoing opinions, we have assumed the following: (1) that all public records, 
certifications, agreements and other documents examined by us that have been executed or certified by 
public officials acting within the scope of their official capacities are authentic, truthful and accurate; (2) 
that copies of such public records, certifications, agreements, and other documents furnished to us are 
authentic and conform to the originals; (3) that all signatures on executed public records, certifications, 
agreements and other documents are genuine; and (4) that all public records, certifications, agreements and 
other documents have been properly authorized and are binding on each of the other parties thereto.  
 

E. CERTAIN QUALIFICATIONS 

The foregoing opinions are subject to the following qualifications: 

1. The opinions or statements expressed above are based solely on the existing laws of Florida 
and the United States of America in effective at the time of issuance of the Bonds.  Accordingly, we express 
no opinion nor make any statement regarding the effect or application of the laws of the federal government, 
or any other state or other jurisdiction.  

 
2. Our opinion as to enforceability of any document is subject to limitations imposed by 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation, readjustment of debt, or similar laws, 
including any changes in the Internal Revenue Code ("Code"), relating to or affecting creditors' rights 
generally and general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a 
proceeding in equity or at law), and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, including the 
fact that specific performance and other equitable remedies are granted only in the discretion of a court.  

 
3. Nothing herein shall be construed as an opinion regarding the possible applicability of state 

securities or "blue sky" laws or federal securities laws, as to which no opinion is expressed.  
 
4. We further express no opinion as to the necessity for an interest rate waiver under Florida 

law, or the applicability of any provision or section of the Code. 
 
5. We express no opinion and make no representations with regard to financial information 

or statistical data. We express no opinion as to compliance with any state or federal tax laws.  
 
6. We have not reviewed, and therefore express no opinion, regarding any land use, real 

property or other related items, including but not limited to whether the Developer is able to convey good 
and marketable title to any particular real property or interest therein and related to the Phase 1 Project. 

 
7. With respect to any of the opinions set forth in this letter which are based on or qualified 

by the phrase "to our knowledge," the words "to our knowledge" signify that, in the course of our 
representation of the District, no facts have come to our attention that would give us actual knowledge that 
any such opinions or other matters are not accurate. Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, we have 



 

D-6 
 

not undertaken any independent investigation to determine the existence or absence of any such facts, and 
no inference as to our knowledge of the existence of such facts should be drawn from the fact of our 
representation of District. 

 
8. The opinions set forth herein are based on factual representations made to us as of the date 

hereof. We assume no duty to update or supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that 
may thereafter come to our attention, or to reflect any changes in law that may thereafter occur or become 
effective. Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of a particular result, and are not binding on the courts 
or any other entity; rather, our opinions represent our professional judgment based on our review of existing 
law, and in reliance on the representations and covenants that we deem relevant to such opinions. 

Very truly yours, 
 
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS P.A. 

 
 

____________________________________ 
For the Firm 

 
 
 



 

E-1 
 

 
EXHIBIT E 

 
CERTIFICATE OF DEVELOPER 

Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Developer"), 
DOES HEREBY CERTIFY, that: 

1. This Certificate of the Developer is furnished pursuant to Section 8(c)(10) of the Bond 
Purchase Contract dated _________, 2020 (the "Purchase Contract") between Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (the "District") and FMSbonds, Inc. (the "Underwriter") relating to the sale by the 
District of its $_________ original aggregate principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the "Bonds"). 
Capitalized terms used, but not defined, herein shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the Purchase 
Contract. 

2. The Developer is a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Delaware and qualified to transact business in the State of Florida. 

3. Representatives of the Developer have provided information to the District to be used in 
connection with the offering by the District of its Bonds, pursuant to a Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum dated _________, 2020 and the Limited Offering Memorandum, dated _________, 2020, 
including the appendices attached thereto (collectively, the "Limited Offering Memoranda").  

4. The Declaration of Consent dated _________, 2020 executed by the Developer and to be 
recorded in the public records of St. Johns County, Florida (the "Declaration of Consent"), constitutes a 
valid and binding obligation of the Developer, enforceable against the Developer in accordance with its 
terms. 

5. The Developer has reviewed and approved the information contained in the Limited 
Offering Memoranda under the captions "THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE PHASE 1 
PROJECT," "THE DEVELOPMENT," "THE DEVELOPER," "BONDOWNERS' RISKS" (as it relates to 
the Developer and the Development), "LITIGATION – The Developer" and "CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE" (as it relates to the Developer) and warrants and represents that such information did not 
as of their respective dates, and does not as of the date hereof, contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. In addition, the Developer is not aware of any other 
information in the Limited Offering Memoranda that contains an untrue statement of a material fact or 
omits to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. 

6. The Developer represents and warrants that it has complied with and will continue to 
comply with Chapter 190.048, Florida Statutes, as amended.  

7. As of the date hereof, there has been no material adverse change in the business, properties, 
assets or financial condition of the Developer which has not been disclosed in the Limited Offering 
Memoranda. 

8. The Developer hereby represents that it owns all of the land in the District that will be 
subject to the Phase 1 Assessments, and hereby consents to the levy of the Phase 1 Assessments on the 



 

E-2 
 

lands in the District owned by the Developer. The levy of the Phase 1 Assessments on the lands in the 
District will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any agreement, mortgage, lien or 
other instrument to which the Developer is a party or to which its property or assets are subject. 

9. The Developer has not made an assignment for the benefit of creditors, filed a petition in 
bankruptcy, petitioned or applied to any tribunal for the appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustee 
or commenced any proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, 
dissolution or liquidation law or statute of any jurisdiction. The Developer has not indicated its consent to, 
or approval of, or failed to object timely to, any petition in bankruptcy, application or proceeding or order 
for relief or the appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustee. 

10. The Developer acknowledges that the Phase 1 Bonds have the debt service requirements 
set forth in the Limited Offering Memorandum and that the Phase 1 Assessments will be levied by the 
District at times, and in amounts sufficient, to enable the District to pay debt service on the Phase 1 Bonds 
when due.   

11. To the best of the Developer's knowledge, the Developer is not in default under any other 
resolution, ordinance, agreement or indenture, mortgage, lease, deed of trust, note or other instrument to 
which the Developer is subject or by which the Developer or its properties are or may be bound, which 
would have a material adverse effect on the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the 
Financing Documents, Ancillary Documents or on the Development and is not delinquent in the payment 
of all ad valorem, federal and state taxes associated with the Development.   

12. There is no action, suit or proceedings at law or in equity by or before any court or public 
board or body pending or, solely to the best of the Developer's knowledge, threatened against the Developer 
(or any basis therefor) (a) seeking to restrain or enjoin the execution or delivery of Financing Documents, 
Declaration of Consent and/or Ancillary Documents to which the Developer is a party, (b) contesting or 
affecting the validity or enforceability of the Financing Documents, Declaration of Consent and/or 
Ancillary Documents, or any and all such other agreements or documents as may be required to be executed, 
or the transactions contemplated thereunder, (c) contesting or affecting the establishment or existence, of 
the Developer, or of the Developer's business, assets, property or conditions, financial or otherwise, or 
contesting or affecting any of the powers of the Developer, or (d) that would have a material and adverse 
effect upon the ability of the Developer to (i) complete the development of the Phase 1 Assessment Area 
within the District as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda, (ii) pay the Phase 1 Assessments, or 
(iii) perform its various obligations as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda.   

13. To the best of the Developer's knowledge after due inquiry, the Developer is in compliance 
in all material respects with all provisions of applicable law in all material matters relating to the Phase 1 
Assessment Area and the Phase 1 Project as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda, including 
applying for all necessary permits. Except as otherwise described in the Limited Offering Memoranda, (a) 
the Phase 1 Assessment Area are zoned and properly designated for their intended use; (b) all government 
permits other than certain permits, which permits are expected to be received as needed, have been received; 
(c) the Developer is not aware of any default of any zoning condition, permit or development agreement 
which would adversely affect the Developer's ability to complete or cause the completion of development 
of the Phase 1 Assessment Area as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda and all appendices 
thereto; and (d) there is no reason to believe that any permits, consents and licenses required to complete 
the development of the Phase 1 Assessment Area and the Phase 1 Project as described in the Offering 
Memoranda will not be obtained as required. 

14. The Developer acknowledges that it will have no rights under Chapter 170, Florida 
Statutes, as amended, to prepay, without interest, the Phase 1 Assessments imposed on lands in the District 



 

E-3 
 

owned by the Developer within thirty (30) days following completion of the Phase 1 Project and acceptance 
thereof by the District. 

 
15. Except as disclosed in the Limited Offering Memoranda, the Developer has never failed in 

the last five years to comply with its continuing disclosure obligations entered in connection with SEC Rule 
15c2-12. 

16. The Developer is not in default of any obligations to pay special assessments and the 
Developer is not insolvent.  

Dated:  _________, 2020.  

 

 
 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company  
 
 
By:    
Print Name:_______________________________ 
Title:  

 
 
 
 



 

F-1 
 

EXHIBIT F 

CERTIFICATE OF ENGINEER 

 

ENGLAND THIMS & MILLER, INC. (the "Engineers"), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY, that: 

1. This certificate is furnished pursuant to Section 8(c)(17) of the Bond Purchase Contract 
dated _________, 2020 (the "Purchase Contract"), by and between Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (the "District") and FMSbonds, Inc. with respect to the $_________ Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 1) (the "Bonds"). Capitalized terms used, but not defined, herein shall have the meaning assigned 
thereto in the Purchase Contract or the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum dated _________, 2020 
and the Limited Offering Memorandum, dated _________, 2020, including the appendices attached thereto, 
relating to the Bonds (collectively, the "Limited Offering Memoranda"), as applicable. 

2. The Engineers have been retained by the District as consulting engineers. 

3. The plans and specifications for the Phase 1 Project (as described in the Limited Offering 
Memoranda) improvements were approved by all regulatory bodies required to approve them. All 
environmental and other regulatory permits or approvals required in connection with the construction of 
the Phase 1 Project have been obtained and all environmental and other regulatory permits or approvals 
required in connection with the development of the Phase 1 Assessment Area have either been obtained or 
are reasonably expected to be obtained in the ordinary course. 

4. The Engineers prepared the reports entitled "Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan" 
dated December 1, 2006, and the "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the 2015 Capital Improvements" 
adopted on November 19, 2014, as supplemented by the "Supplemental Engineer's Report for the Series 
2020 Capital Improvements," dated June 2, 2020, as supplemented by the "Supplemental Engineer's Report 
for the Series 2020 Capital Improvements," dated October 8, 2020 (collectively referred to herein as the 
"Engineer's Report"). The Report was prepared in accordance with generally accepted engineering 
principles. The Supplemental Engineer's Report for the Series 2020 Capital Improvements is included as 
"APPENDIX C: ENGINEER'S REPORT" to the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and the 
Limited Offering Memorandum and a description of the Report and certain other information relating to 
the Phase 1 Project and the development of Phase 1 and are included in the Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum and the Limited Offering Memorandum under the captions "THE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE PHASE 1 PROJECT" and "THE DEVELOPMENT." The Report and 
said information are true and complete in all material respects, contain no untrue statement of a material 
fact, and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

5. The Engineers hereby consent to the inclusion of the Report as "APPENDIX C: 
ENGINEER'S REPORT" to the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and the Limited Offering 
Memorandum and to the references to the Engineers in the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum 
and the Limited Offering Memorandum. 

6. The price expected to be paid by the District, based on current construction cost estimates, 
to the Developer for any future acquisition of the improvements included within the Phase 1 Project does 
not exceed the lesser of the cost of the Phase 1 Project or the fair market value of the assets acquired by the 
District.  



 

F-2 
 

7. To the best of our knowledge, after due inquiry, the Developer is in compliance in all 
material respects with all provisions of applicable law in all material matters relating to the Developer and 
the Development as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda. Except as otherwise described in the 
Limited Offering Memoranda, (a) all government permits required in connection with the construction of 
the Phase 1 Project and the development of Phase 1 as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda have 
been received, or are reasonably expected to be obtained; (b) we are not aware of the any default of any 
zoning condition, land use permit or development agreement which would adversely affect the ability to 
complete development of the Phase 1 Project, the Phase 1 Assessment Area as described in the Limited 
Offering Memoranda and all appendices thereto; and (c) we have no actual knowledge and are not otherwise 
aware of any reason to believe that any permits, consents and licenses required to complete the Phase 1 
Project or the development of Phase 1 as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda will not be obtained 
in due course as required by the Developer, or any other person or entity, necessary for the development of 
the Phase 1 Project and the Phase 1 Assessment Area as described in the Limited Offering Memoranda and 
all appendices thereto. 

8. There is adequate water and sewer service capacity to serve the Phase 1 Assessment Area. 

Date: _________, 2020 

 ENGLAND THIMS & MILLER, INC. 
 
 
By:     
Print Name:_______________________________ 
Title:  

 
 



 

G-1 
 

EXHIBIT G 

CERTIFICATE OF DISTRICT MANAGER AND METHODOLOGY CONSULTANT  

 
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC ("Governmental Management 

Services"), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY: 

1. This certificate is furnished pursuant to Section 8(c)(18) of the Bond Purchase Contract 
dated _________, 2020 (the "Purchase Contract"), by and between Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (the "District") and FMSbonds, Inc. with respect to the $_________ Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 1) (the "Phase 1 Bonds"). Capitalized terms used, but not defined, herein shall have the meaning 
assigned thereto in the Purchase Contract or the Limited Offering Memoranda relating to the Phase 1 Bonds, 
as applicable. 

2. Governmental Management Services has acted as district manager and methodology 
consultant to the District in connection with the sale and issuance by the District of its Phase 1 Bonds and 
has participated in the preparation of the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum dated _________, 
2020 and the Limited Offering Memorandum, dated _________, 2020, including the appendices attached 
thereto (collectively, the "Limited Offering Memoranda"). 

3. In connection with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds, we have been retained by the District 
to prepare the Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2020 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1)  (the "Assessment Methodology"), which 
Assessment Methodology has been included as an appendix to the Limited Offering Memoranda. We 
hereby consent to the use of such Assessment Methodology in the Limited Offering Memoranda and 
consent to the references to us therein. 

4. As District Manager, nothing has come to our attention that would lead us to believe that 
the statements in the Limited Offering Memoranda, as they relate to the District, the Phase 1 Project, or any 
information provided by us, and the Assessment Methodology, as of their respective dates and as of this 
date, contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a material 
fact necessary to be stated therein in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. 

5. The information set forth in the Limited Offering Memoranda under the subcaptions "THE 
DISTRICT," "THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE PHASE 1 PROJECT," 
"ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS," "LITIGATION – 
The District," "CONTINGENT FEES," "EXPERTS," "FINANCIAL INFORMATION," "DISCLOSURE 
REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS," "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE," and in 
"APPENDIX D: ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY" and "APPENDIX E: DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS" did not as of the respective dates of the Limited Offering Memoranda and does not as of 
the date hereof contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

6. To the best of our knowledge, there has been no change which would materially adversely 
affect the assumptions made or the conclusions reached in the Assessment Methodology and the 
considerations and assumptions used in compiling the Assessment Methodology are reasonable. The 



 

G-2 
 

Assessment Methodology and the assessment methodology set forth therein were prepared in accordance 
with all applicable provisions of Florida law. 

7. As District Manager for the District, we are not aware of any litigation pending or, to the 
best of our knowledge, threatened against the District restraining or enjoining the issuance, sale, execution 
or delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Phase 1 Bonds or 
any proceedings of the District taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof, or the pledge or application 
of any moneys or security provided for the payment of the Phase 1 Bonds, or the existence or powers of the 
District. 

8. The benefit from the Phase 1 Project equals or exceeds the Phase 1 Assessments (the, 
"Assessments"), and such Assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated across all lands subject to such 
Assessments. Moreover, the assessments, as initially levied, and as may be reallocated from time to time 
as permitted by resolutions adopted by the District with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments, are sufficient 
to enable the District to pay the debt service on the Phase 1 Bonds, through the final maturity thereof. 

Dated: _________, 2020. 

 GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES, LLC, a Florida limited liability 
company 

By:    
Name:    
Title:    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM DATED _________, 2020 
 

NEW ISSUES - BOOK-ENTRY ONLY 
LIMITED OFFERING NOT RATED 
 

In the opinion of Akerman LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions, and assuming 
compliance by the District with the tax covenants described herein and the accuracy of certain representations included in the closing transcript 
for the Phase 1 Bonds (as hereinafter defined), interest on the Phase 1 Bonds is, under Section 103 of the Code (as hereinafter defined), excludable 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed 
on individuals. See "TAX MATTERS" herein. Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that the Phase 1 Bonds and interest thereon are not subject to 
taxation under the laws of the State of Florida except as to estate taxes and taxes imposed by Chapter 220, Florida Statutes, on interest, income or 
profits on debt obligations owned by corporations as defined in Chapter 220. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

 
$5,540,000* 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) 

 
Dated: Date of Delivery Due: As shown below 
 

The Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 
1) (the "Phase 1 Bonds") are being issued by the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the "District" or "Issuer") only in fully registered 
form, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof.  

 
The District is a local unit of special purpose government of the State of Florida, created pursuant to the Uniform Community 

Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), and by Rule 42GGG-1, Florida Administrative Code 
adopted by the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission (the "Commission") effective March 7, 2007, and is located within 
unincorporated St. Johns County, Florida (the "County"). The District was created for the purpose of delivering certain community development 
services and facilities for the benefit of District Lands (as hereinafter defined), and has previously determined to undertake in one or more stages, 
the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements and community facilities as set forth in the Act for the special benefit of certain District 
Lands. 

 
The Phase 1 Bonds will bear interest at the fixed rates set forth below, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 

30-day months, payable semi-annually on each May 1 and November 1, commencing May 1, 2021. The Phase 1 Bonds, when issued, will be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") of New York, New York. 
Purchases of beneficial interests in the Phase 1 Bonds will be made only in book-entry form. Accordingly, principal of and interest on the Phase 1 
Bonds will be paid from sources described below by U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee") directly to DTC as the registered 
owner thereof. Disbursements of such payments to the DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined) is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursements 
of such payments to the beneficial owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants (as hereinafter defined), as 
more fully described herein. Any purchaser of a beneficial interest in a Phase 1 Bond must maintain an account with a broker or dealer who is, or 
acts through, a DTC Participant to receive payment of the principal of and interest on such Phase 1 Bond. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE Phase 1 
Bonds - Book-Entry Only System" herein. 

The Phase 1 Bonds are being issued by the District pursuant to the Act, Resolution Nos. 2007-14 and 2021-___, adopted by the Board 
of Supervisors of the District (the "Board") on March 30, 2007, and October 21, 2020, respectively (collectively, the "Bond Resolution"), and a 
Master Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master Indenture"), by and between the District and the Trustee as successor to Regions Bank, 
as amended and supplemented with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds by a Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of _________ 1, 2020 (the 
"Eighth Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"), each by and between the District and the Trustee. 
Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. See "APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER 
INDENTURE AND PROPOSED FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE" herein. 

Proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds will be used for the purposes of providing funds to: (i) finance a portion of the Cost of acquisition, 
construction, installation and equipping of a portion of the Phase 1 Project (as defined herein); (ii) pay interest on the Phase 1 Bonds through 
November 1, 20___, (iii) pay certain costs associated with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds; and (iv) fund the Phase 1 Reserve Account as provided 
in the Indenture. See "CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE PHASE 1 PROJECT" and "ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF 
FUNDS" herein.  

The Phase 1 Bonds will be secured by a pledge of the Phase 1 Pledged Revenues and the Phase 1 Pledged Funds and Accounts. "Phase 
1 Pledged Revenues" shall mean all revenues received by the District from the Phase 1 Assessments, including, without limitation, amounts received 
from any foreclosure proceeding for the enforcement of collection of such Phase 1 Assessments or from the issuance and sale of tax certificates 
with respect to such Phase 1 Assessments; provided, however, that Phase 1 Pledged Revenues shall not include (A) any moneys transferred to the 
Phase 1 Rebate Fund, or investment earnings thereon and (B) "special assessments" levied and collected by the District under Section 190.022 of 
the Act for maintenance purposes or "maintenance special assessments" levied and collected by the District under Section 190.021(3) of the Act (it 
being expressly understood that the lien and pledge of the Indenture shall not apply to any of the moneys described in the foregoing clauses (A) 

T
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

a
ry

 L
im

it
e
d

 O
ff

e
ri

n
g

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
ta

in
e
d

 h
e
re

in
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

r 
a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t.
 U

n
d
e
r 

n
o

 c
ir

c
u

m
st

a
n

c
e
s 

sh
a
ll

 t
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

a
ry

 L
im

it
e
d

 O
ff

e
ri

n
g

 

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 c
o

n
st

it
u

te
 a

n
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 s

e
ll

 o
r 

a
 s

o
li

c
it

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

 o
ff

e
r 

to
 b

u
y

, 
n

o
r 

sh
a
ll

 t
h

e
re

 b
e
 a

n
y

 s
a
le

 o
f 

th
e
 P

h
a
se

 1
 B

o
n

d
s 

in
 a

n
y

 j
u

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 s
u

c
h

 o
ff

e
r,

 s
o

li
c
it

a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

sa
le

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

q
u

a
li

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 u
n

d
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
u

ri
ti

e
s 

la
w

s 
o

f 
su

c
h

 j
u

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

h
a
s 

d
e
e
m

e
d

 t
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

a
ry

 L
im

it
e
d

 O
ff

e
ri

n
g

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 "
fi

n
a
l,

" 
e
x

c
e
p

t 
fo

r 
p

e
rm

it
te

d
 o

m
is

si
o

n
s,

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
m

p
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

u
le

 1
5

c
2

-1
2

 p
ro

m
u

lg
a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

e
c
u

ri
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
.  

DRAFT-1 
GrayRobinson, P.A. 

October 16, 2020 



and (B) of this proviso). "Phase 1 Pledged Funds and Accounts" shall mean the Funds and Accounts established for the Phase 1 Bonds, including 
without limitation the Phase 1 Reserve Account (except for the Phase 1 Rebate Account) pursuant to the Indenture. See "SECURITY FOR AND 
SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS" herein. 
 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary mandatory redemption at the times, in the amounts 
and at the redemption prices as more fully described herein. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – Redemption Provisions" herein. 
 

NEITHER THE PHASE 1 BONDS, NOR THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, PAYABLE THEREON SHALL 
CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR GENERAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE 
CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF FLORIDA. THE PHASE 1 BONDS AND THE SERIES OF WHICH THEY ARE A PART, AND THE 
INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, PAYABLE THEREON DO NOT CONSTITUTE EITHER A PLEDGE OF THE FULL FAITH AND 
CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT OR A LIEN UPON ANY PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OTHER THAN AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS. NO OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON SHALL EVER HAVE THE RIGHT 
TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY AD VALOREM TAXING POWER OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY 
OR GOVERNMENTAL BODY TO PAY DEBT SERVICE OR TO PAY ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE PAID PURSUANT TO 
THE INDENTURE OR THE PHASE 1 BONDS. RATHER, DEBT SERVICE AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE PAID 
PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE PHASE 1 BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, AND SHALL BE SECURED 
SOLELY BY, THE PHASE 1 PLEDGED REVENUES AND THE PHASE 1 PLEDGED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS PLEDGED TO THE PHASE 
1 BONDS, ALL AS PROVIDED IN THE PHASE 1 BONDS AND THE INDENTURE. 

 
The Phase 1 Bonds involve a degree of risk (see "BONDOWNERS' RISKS" herein) and are not suitable for all investors (see 

"SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT" herein). The Underwriter named below is limiting this offering to "accredited investors" within 
the meaning of Chapter 517, Florida Statutes, and the rules of the Florida Department of Financial Services promulgated thereunder. The 
limitation of the initial offering to accredited investors does not denote restrictions on transfer in any secondary market for the Phase 1 
Bonds. The Phase 1 Bonds are not credit enhanced or rated and no application has been made for a rating with respect to the Phase 1 
Bonds.  

 
This cover page contains information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of the Phase 1 Bonds. Investors must read the entire 

Limited Offering Memorandum to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision. 
 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 
 

$_________ – ___% Phase 1 Term Bond due _______ 1, 20__, Yield ___%, Price ____ CUSIP #_________** 
$_________ – ___% Phase 1 Term Bond due _______ 1, 20__, Yield ___%, Price ____ CUSIP #_________** 
$_________ – ___% Phase 1 Term Bond due _______ 1, 20__, Yield ___%, Price ____ CUSIP #_________** 
$_________ – ___% Phase 1 Term Bond due _______ 1, 20__, Yield ___%, Price ____ CUSIP#_________** 

 
 

The initial sale of the Phase 1 Bonds is subject to certain conditions precedent, including, without limitation, receipt of the opinion of 
Akerman LLP, Jacksonville, Florida, Bond Counsel, as to the validity of the Phase 1 Bonds and the excludability of interest thereon from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the District by its counsel, Hopping Green & Sams, P.A., 
Tallahassee, Florida, for the Developer (as hereinafter defined) by its counsel, Feldman & Mahoney, P.A., Clearwater, Florida, and for the 
Underwriter by its counsel, GrayRobinson, P.A., Tampa, Florida. It is expected that the Phase 1 Bonds will be delivered in book-entry form through 
the facilities of DTC on or about _____, 2020. 
 

FMSbonds, Inc. 
 
Dated: _______, 2020 

_________________ 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
**The District is not responsible for the CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to their correctness. The CUSIP numbers are included 
solely for the convenience of the readers of this Limited Offering Memorandum.  

FMSbonds Inc. 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

Gregg F. Kern, Chairman* 
Michael Taylor, Vice Chair* 

Rose Bock, Assistant Secretary 
Mike Veazey, Assistant Secretary 

Blake Weatherly, Assistant Secretary* 
 

* Employee of an affiliate of the Developer 
 
 

DISTRICT MANAGER/METHODOLOGY CONSULTANT 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
St. Augustine, Florida 

DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 

Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
Tallahassee, Florida 

 
BOND COUNSEL 

 
Akerman LLP 

Jacksonville, Florida 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 

England Thims & Miller 
Jacksonville, Florida 



NO DEALER, BROKER, SALESPERSON OR OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN 
AUTHORIZED BY THE DISTRICT TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY 
REPRESENTATIONS, OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM, AND IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH OTHER INFORMATION OR 
REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED 
BY THE DISTRICT. THIS LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM DOES NOT 
CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY 
OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS AND THERE SHALL BE NO OFFER, SOLICITATION, OR SALE 
OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH IT IS 
UNLAWFUL FOR SUCH PERSON TO MAKE SUCH OFFER, SOLICITATION OR SALE.  

THE INFORMATION SET FORTH HEREIN HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM THE 
DEVELOPER (AS HEREINAFTER DEFINED), THE DISTRICT, PUBLIC DOCUMENTS, 
RECORDS AND OTHER SOURCES, WHICH SOURCES ARE BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE 
BUT WHICH INFORMATION IS NOT GUARANTEED AS TO ACCURACY OR 
COMPLETENESS BY, AND IS NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION OF, 
THE UNDERWRITER NAMED ON THE COVER PAGE OF THIS LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM. THE UNDERWRITER HAS REVIEWED THE INFORMATION IN THIS 
LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND AS PART OF, ITS 
RESPONSIBILITIES TO INVESTORS UNDER THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS AS 
APPLIED TO THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS TRANSACTION, BUT THE 
UNDERWRITER DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF 
SUCH INFORMATION. THE INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION HEREIN 
CONTAINED ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE AND NEITHER THE 
DELIVERY OF THIS LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM, NOR ANY SALE MADE 
HEREUNDER, SHALL, UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION 
THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE DISTRICT OR THE 
DEVELOPER OR IN THE STATUS OF THE DEVELOPMENT OR THE PHASE 1 PROJECT 
(AS SUCH TERMS ARE HEREINAFTER DEFINED) SINCE THE DATE HEREOF. 

THE PHASE 1 BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED, NOR HAS THE INDENTURE BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST 
INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON CERTAIN 
EXEMPTIONS SET FORTH IN SUCH ACTS. THE REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION OR 
EXEMPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE 
SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS OF ANY JURISDICTIONS WHEREIN THESE 
SECURITIES HAVE BEEN OR WILL BE REGISTERED, QUALIFIED OR EXEMPTED 
SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION THEREOF. NEITHER THE 
DISTRICT, THE COUNTY, THE STATE, NOR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS 
THEREOF HAVE GUARANTEED OR PASSED UPON THE MERITS OF THE PHASE 1 
BONDS, UPON THE PROBABILITY OF ANY EARNINGS THEREON OR UPON THE 
ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM. 

"FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS" ARE USED IN THIS DOCUMENT BY 
USING FORWARD LOOKING WORDS SUCH AS "MAY," "WILL," "SHOULD," 
"INTENDS," "EXPECTS," "BELIEVES," "ANTICIPATES," "ESTIMATES," OR OTHERS. 
THE READER IS CAUTIONED THAT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE 



SUBJECT TO A VARIETY OF UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL 
RESULTS TO DIFFER FROM THE PROJECTED RESULTS. THOSE RISKS AND 
UNCERTAINTIES INCLUDE GENERAL ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS CONDITIONS, 
CONDITIONS IN THE FINANCIAL MARKETS AND REAL ESTATE MARKET, THE 
DISTRICT'S COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS, AND VARIOUS OTHER FACTORS 
WHICH MAY BE BEYOND THE DISTRICT'S AND THE DEVELOPER'S CONTROL. 
BECAUSE THE DISTRICT AND THE DEVELOPER CANNOT PREDICT ALL FACTORS 
THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE DECISIONS, ACTIONS, EVENTS, OR FINANCIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES, WHAT ACTUALLY HAPPENS MAY BE DIFFERENT FROM WHAT 
IS INCLUDED IN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. 

THE ACHIEVEMENT OF CERTAIN RESULTS OR OTHER EXPECTATIONS 
CONTAINED IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS INVOLVE KNOWN AND 
UNKNOWN RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS WHICH MAY CAUSE 
ACTUAL RESULTS, PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS DESCRIBED TO BE 
MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM ANY FUTURE RESULTS, PERFORMANCE OR 
ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING 
STATEMENTS. THE DISTRICT AND THE DEVELOPER DO NOT PLAN TO ISSUE ANY 
UPDATES OR REVISIONS TO THOSE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IF OR 
WHEN ANY OF ITS EXPECTATIONS OR EVENTS, CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES 
ON WHICH SUCH STATEMENTS ARE BASED OCCUR, OTHER THAN AS DESCRIBED 
UNDER "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" HEREIN. 

THIS LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM IS BEING PROVIDED TO 
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT ON THE FOLLOWING 
WEBSITES: WWW.MUNIOS.COM AND WWW.EMMA.MSRB.ORG. THIS LIMITED 
OFFERING MEMORANDUM MAY BE RELIED UPON ONLY IF IT IS PRINTED IN ITS 
ENTIRETY DIRECTLY FROM EITHER OF SUCH WEBSITES. 

THIS PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM IS IN A FORM 
DEEMED FINAL BY THE DISTRICT FOR PURPOSES OF RULE 15C2-12 UNDER THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED, EXCEPT FOR CERTAIN 
INFORMATION PERMITTED TO BE OMITTED PURSUANT TO RULE 15C2-12(B)(1). 

 



i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
PAGE 

INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................................................... 1 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS ............................................................................................... 3 
General Description ................................................................................................................................ 3 
Redemption Provisions ........................................................................................................................... 4 
Book-Entry Only System ........................................................................................................................ 6 

SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS ........................................ 8 
General .................................................................................................................................................... 8 
Covenant to Levy the Phase 1 Assessments ........................................................................................... 9 
Prepayment of Phase 1 Assessments .................................................................................................... 10 
Additional Obligations .......................................................................................................................... 10 
Covenant Against Sale or Encumbrance .............................................................................................. 11 
Acquisition and Construction Account ................................................................................................. 11 
Reserve Account ................................................................................................................................... 11 
Application of the Pledged Revenues ................................................................................................... 13 
Investments ........................................................................................................................................... 15 
Indenture Provisions Relating to Bankruptcy of Landowners .............................................................. 15 
Events of Default and Remedies ........................................................................................................... 16 

ENFORCEMENT OF ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS .......................................................................... 18 
General .................................................................................................................................................. 18 
Direct Billing & Foreclosure Procedure ............................................................................................... 19 
Uniform Method Procedure .................................................................................................................. 19 

BONDOWNERS' RISKS ............................................................................................................................ 22 
Concentration of Land Ownership ........................................................................................................ 22 
Bankruptcy and Related Risks .............................................................................................................. 22 
Phase 1 Assessments Are Non-Recourse ............................................................................................. 23 
Regulatory and Environmental Risks ................................................................................................... 23 
Economic Conditions and Changes in Development Plans .................................................................. 24 
Other Taxes and Assessments .............................................................................................................. 24 
Limited Secondary Market for Phase 1 Bonds ..................................................................................... 25 
Inadequacy of Reserve Account ........................................................................................................... 25 
Legal Delays ......................................................................................................................................... 25 
IRS Examination and Audit Risk ......................................................................................................... 26 
Loss of Exemption from Securities Registration .................................................................................. 27 
Federal Tax Reform .............................................................................................................................. 28 
State Tax Reform .................................................................................................................................. 28 
Insufficient Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the Phase 1 Project or 

the Construction of Homes within the Phase 1 Assessment Area ................................................. 28 
COVID-19 and Related Matters ........................................................................................................... 29 
Cybersecurity ........................................................................................................................................ 29 
Prepayment and Redemption Risk ........................................................................................................ 29 
Payment of Phase 1 Assessments after Bank Foreclosure .................................................................... 30 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ................................................................................... 31 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................... 32 

THE DISTRICT .......................................................................................................................................... 33 



ii 

General Information .............................................................................................................................. 33 
Legal Powers and Authority ................................................................................................................. 33 
Board of Supervisors ............................................................................................................................ 34 
The District Manager and Other Consultants ....................................................................................... 35 
Outstanding Indebtedness and Prior [and Existing] Bond Defaults ..................................................... 35 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE PHASE 1 PROJECT ..................................................... 37 
Capital Improvement Plan .................................................................................................................... 37 
Assessment Areas ................................................................................................................................. 37 
The Phase 1 Project .............................................................................................................................. 38 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS ........................... 39 

THE DEVELOPMENT ............................................................................................................................... 41 
General .................................................................................................................................................. 41 
History of TrailMark ............................................................................................................................. 44 
Assessment Areas ................................................................................................................................. 44 
Update on Assessment Area 1 .............................................................................................................. 47 
Update on Assessment Area 2, Phase 1 ................................................................................................ 47 
Update on Assessment Area 2, Phase 2 ................................................................................................ 48 
Update on Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A ............................................................................................. 49 
Development Plan and Status for Phase 1 ............................................................................................ 49 
Development Finance Plan for Phase 1 ................................................................................................ 49 
Builder Contract .................................................................................................................................... 50 
Residential Product Offerings ............................................................................................................... 50 
Amenities .............................................................................................................................................. 50 
Development Approvals ....................................................................................................................... 50 
Utilities ................................................................................................................................................. 51 
Environmental ....................................................................................................................................... 51 
Taxes, Fees and Assessments ............................................................................................................... 51 
Education .............................................................................................................................................. 52 
Competition .......................................................................................................................................... 53 
Developer Agreements ......................................................................................................................... 53 

THE DEVELOPER ..................................................................................................................................... 53 

TAX MATTERS ......................................................................................................................................... 54 
General .................................................................................................................................................. 54 
[Original Issue Discount] ...................................................................................................................... 55 

AGREEMENT BY THE STATE ............................................................................................................... 56 

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT .............................................................................................................. 56 

SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT ......................................................................................................... 56 

ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES ........................................................................................................ 56 

LITIGATION .............................................................................................................................................. 57 
The District ........................................................................................................................................... 57 
The Developer ...................................................................................................................................... 57 

CONTINGENT FEES ................................................................................................................................. 57 

NO RATING ............................................................................................................................................... 57 

EXPERTS .................................................................................................................................................... 57 



iii 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................................. 58 

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS ............................................. 58 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE .................................................................................................................. 58 

UNDERWRITING ...................................................................................................................................... 59 

VALIDATION ............................................................................................................................................ 59 

LEGAL MATTERS .................................................................................................................................... 59 

MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................................................... 60 

AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL .................................................................................................... 61 
 
APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER INDENTURE AND PROPOSED FORM OF 

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE A-1 
 
APPENDIX B: PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL B-1 
 
APPENDIX C: ENGINEER'S REPORT C-1 
 
APPENDIX D: ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY D-1 
 
APPENDIX E: DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS E-1 
 
APPENDIX F: PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT F-1



1 
 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

 
$5,540,000* 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Limited Offering Memorandum is to set forth certain information in connection 
with the offering for sale by the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the "District" or 
"Issuer") of its $5,540,000* Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 
1) (the "Phase 1 Bonds").  

THE PHASE 1 BONDS ARE NOT A SUITABLE INVESTMENT FOR ALL INVESTORS. 
PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE STATE LAW, THE UNDERWRITER IS LIMITING THIS INITIAL 
OFFERING OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS TO ONLY ACCREDITED INVESTORS WITHIN THE 
MEANING OF THE RULES OF THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES. THE 
LIMITATION OF THE INITIAL OFFERING TO ACCREDITED INVESTORS DOES NOT DENOTE 
RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER IN ANY SECONDARY MARKET FOR THE PHASE 1 BONDS. 
POTENTIAL INVESTORS ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EVALUATING THE MERITS AND 
RISKS OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE PHASE 1 BONDS. SEE "BONDOWNERS' RISKS" AND 
"SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT" HEREIN.  

The District was created pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), and Rule 42GGG-1, Florida Administrative Code, 
adopted by the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission (the "Commission") effective March 7, 
2007. The District is located within unincorporated St. Johns County, Florida (the "County") and was 
created for the purpose of delivering certain community development services and facilities for the benefit 
of District Lands (as hereinafter defined). The District has previously determined to undertake, in one or 
more stages, the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements and community facilities as set 
forth in the Act for the special benefit of certain District Lands. The Act authorizes the District to issue 
bonds for the purpose of, among others, financing, funding, planning, establishing, acquiring, constructing 
or reconstructing, enlarging or extending, equipping water management, water supply, sewer and 
wastewater management, bridges or culverts, public roads, street lights and other basic infrastructure 
projects within or without the boundaries of the District as provided in the Act.  

The boundaries of the District include approximately 1,282 gross acres of land (the "District 
Lands") located in an unincorporated portion of the County. The District Lands are being developed as part 
of the 1,356-acre master planned residential community known as "TrailMark" (the "Development"). The 
Development is currently planned for approximately [1,724] single-family units and 554 active adult/age-
restricted units, together with associated recreational amenities and parks. See "THE DEVELOPMENT" 
herein for a summary of the current development status of the Development.  

The District has been divided into three separate Assessment Areas. Assessment Area 1 has been 
developed and platted and contains 152 residential lots. Assessment Area 2 consists of approximately 543 
acres and is planned for a total of 1,260 residential lots. Assessment Area 3 is being developed in three 
phases: Phase 1, which consists of 305 developed and platted residential lots, Phase 2, which is under 

 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



2 

development and planned for 401 lots (of which 331 have been developed and platted, as of October 2020), 
and Phase 3, which is being developed in sub-phases. Phases 3A, 3B and 3C are being developed as an 
active adult community containing 554 total units, with 181 lots planned for Phase 3A and Phases 3B, 3C 
and 3D of Assessment Area 2 to be developed at a future time. Assessment Area 3 [(also referred to as the 
2007 Assessment Area),] which consists of the District Lands outside of Assessment Areas 1 and 2, contains 
approximately [550] acres and will be developed in phases: Phase 1, which is planned for 171 lots, and the 
remaining lands, which are planned for development at a future time. See "THE DEVELOPMENT" herein 
for more information. 

The District previously issued its Original 2007 Bonds, its 2014A Bonds, its 2015 Bonds, its 2016A 
Bonds, its 2016B Bonds, its 2017A Bonds, its 2017B Bonds and its Phase 3A Bonds (each as defined 
herein) to finance and refinance portions of its Capital Improvement Plan (as defined herein). See "THE 
DISTRICT – Prior and Existing Bond Defaults" and "THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE 
PHASE 1 PROJECT" herein for more information regarding the District's Prior Bonds and the Capital 
Improvement Plan.  

Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Developer"), 
is the sole owner of the Phase 1 Lands. See "THE DEVELOPER" herein for more information regarding 
the Developer. The Developer has entered into contracts with [________]. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – 
Builder Contract" herein for more information. 

The Phase 1 Bonds are payable from and secured by the Phase 1 Pledged Revenues, which consist 
primarily of the revenues received by the District from the non-ad valorem special assessments (the "Phase 
1 Assessments"). The Phase 1 Assessments will be levied on all of the lands within Phase 1 of Assessment 
Area 3 (the "Phase 1 Assessment Area"). Initially, the Phase 1 Assessment Area consists of approximately 
89.62 acres planned for 171 single-family lots. In addition, the District has filed a petition to amend the 
District boundaries to include an approximately 6.8-acre parcel located adjacent to the District ("Additional 
Parcel"), which is planned to contain 24 single-family lots. Once the Additional Parcel is annexed into the 
District, it is expected that the District would amend the Assessment Proceedings to include the Additional 
Parcel within the Phase 1 Assessment Area and allocate a portion Phase 1 Assessments to the Additional 
Parcel, which would result in a decrease in the Phase 1 Assessment levels assigned to the land currently 
within the Phase 1 Assessment Area. Upon platting of the Phase 1 Assessment Area, the Phase 1 
Assessments will be allocated to the platted lots therein. See "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF 
PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS" and "ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE 
ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS" herein for more information.  

The Phase 1 Bonds are being issued by the District pursuant to the Act, Resolution Nos. 2007-14 
and 2021-___, adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the District (the "Board") on March 30, 2007, and 
October 21, 2020, respectively (collectively, the "Bond Resolution"), and a Master Trust Indenture dated 
as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master Indenture"), by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association 
(the "Trustee"), as successor to Regions Bank, as amended and supplemented with respect to the Phase 1 
Bonds by a Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of _________ 1, 2020 (the "Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture" and, together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"), each by and between the District and 
the Trustee. Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. 
See "APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER INDENTURE AND PROPOSED FORM OF 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE" attached hereto.  

Proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds will be used for the purposes of providing funds to: (i) finance a 
portion of the Cost of acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of a portion of the Phase 1 
Project; (ii) pay interest on the Phase 1 Bonds through November 1, 20__; (iii) pay certain costs associated 



3 

with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds; and (iv) fund the Phase 1 Reserve Account as provided in the Phase 
1 Indenture. See "ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS" herein. 

There follows in this Limited Offering Memorandum a brief description of the District, the 
Developer, the Development, the Phase 1 Assessment Area, the Phase 1 Project and summaries of the terms 
of the Phase 1 Bonds, the Indenture and certain provisions of the Act. All references herein to the Indenture, 
the Act or any other Florida Statute are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents and statute, 
and all references to the Phase 1 Bonds are qualified by reference to the definitive form thereof and the 
information with respect thereto contained in the Indenture. A copy of the Master Indenture and the 
proposed form of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture appear in APPENDIX A attached hereto.  

This Limited Offering Memorandum speaks only as of its date and the information contained herein 
is subject to change. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS 

General Description 

The Phase 1 Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in the 
denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. The Phase 1 Bonds will mature, subject to the 
redemption provisions set forth herein, on the dates and in the amounts set forth on the cover page hereof.  

The Phase 1 Bonds shall be dated the date of delivery. Interest on the Phase 1 Bonds shall be 
payable on each Interest Payment Date to maturity or prior redemption. "Interest Payment Date" means 
May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2021. Each Phase 1 Bond shall bear interest 
from the Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid next preceding the date of its authentication, 
unless the date of its authentication: (i) is an Interest Payment Date to which interest on such Phase 1 Bond 
has been paid, in which event such Phase 1 Bond shall bear interest from its date of authentication; or (ii) 
is prior to the first Interest Payment Date for the Phase 1 Bonds, in which event, such Phase 1 Bond shall 
bear interest from its date. Interest and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 
months. 

Upon initial issuance, the ownership of the Phase 1 Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede 
& Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), and purchases of 
beneficial interests in the Phase 1 Bonds will be made in book-entry only form. With respect to Phase 1 
Bonds registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., the 
District, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation to 
any such Bond Participant or to any indirect Bond Participant. Without limiting the immediately preceding 
sentence, the District, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or 
obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any Bond Participant with 
respect to any ownership interest in the Phase 1 Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any Bond Participant or any other 
person other than an Owner, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, of any notice 
with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Bond 
Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Phase 1 Bonds. 
The District, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in 
whose name each Phase 1 Bond is registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar as the 
absolute owner of such Phase 1 Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium and interest with 
respect to such Phase 1 Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect 
to such Phase 1 Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Phase 1 Bond, and for 
all other purposes whatsoever. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 



4 

the Phase 1 Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective Owners, as shown in the registration books 
kept by the Bond Registrar, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, as provided herein and 
all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the District's obligations with 
respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds to the extent of the 
sum or sums so paid. No person other than an Owner, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar, shall receive a certificated Phase 1 Bond evidencing the obligation of the District to make 
payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to the provisions hereof. Upon receipt by the 
Trustee or the District of written notice from DTC: (i) confirming that DTC has received written notice 
from the District to the effect that a continuation of the requirement that all of the Outstanding Phase 1 
Bonds be registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as 
Nominee of DTC, is not in the best interest of the Beneficial Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds or (ii) to the 
effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities and no substitute Bond Depository 
willing to undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can be found which is willing and able to undertake 
such functions upon reasonable and customary terms, the Phase 1 Bonds shall no longer be restricted to 
being registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee 
of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging the Phase 1 
Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions hereof. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 
BONDS – Book-Entry Only System" below.  

The Phase 1 Bonds will initially be sold only to "accredited investors" within the meaning under 
Chapter 517, Florida Statutes, as amended, and the rules of the Florida Department of Financial Services 
promulgated thereunder, although there is no limitation on resales of the Phase 1 Bonds. See 
"SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT" below. 

U.S. Bank National Association is initially serving as the Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent for 
the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Redemption Provisions 

Optional Redemption 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the District in whole 
or in part on any date on or after November 1, 20__ (less than all Phase 1 Bonds to be selected by lot) at 
the Redemption Price equal to the par amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption in part by 
the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 

Year Principal Amount 
  
  
  
*  



5 

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption in part by 
the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 

Year Principal Amount 
  
  
  
  
  
*  

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 

The Phase 1 Bonds maturing on November 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory redemption in part by 
the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from moneys in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account 
established under the Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments (as defined in the 
Master Indenture) at the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on November 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth 
below: 

Year Principal Amount 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
*  

_______________ 
*Maturity  
 

Upon any redemption of Phase 1 Bonds (other than Phase 1 Bonds redeemed in accordance with 
scheduled Amortization Installments) and upon any cancellation of Phase 1 Bonds upon surrender to the 
Trustee (including any surrender pursuant to the Indenture), the District shall cause to be recalculated and 
delivered to the Trustee revised Amortization Installments recalculated so as to amortize the Outstanding 
Phase 1 Bonds in substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest (subject to rounding to 
Authorized Denominations of principal) over the remaining term of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity, in whole 
on any date or in part on any Quarterly Redemption Date (defined in the Indenture as each February 1, May 



6 

1, August 1 and November 1), in the manner determined by the Bond Registrar at the Redemption Price of 
100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption, if and to the extent that any one or more of the following shall have occurred: 

(a) from Phase 1 Prepayment Principal (as defined in the Indenture) and Connection 
Fees (as defined in the Indenture) deposited into the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 
1 Redemption Account;  

(b) on or after the Completion Date of the Phase 1 Project, by application of moneys 
remaining in the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition and 
Construction Fund not reserved by the District for the payment of any remaining part of the Cost 
of the Phase 1 Project, all of which shall be transferred to the Phase 1 Redemption Account of the 
Debt Service Fund and credited toward extinguishment of the Phase 1 Assessments and applied 
toward the redemption of the Phase 1 Bonds, in accordance with the manner it has credited such 
excess moneys toward extinguishment of Phase 1 Assessments, which the District shall describe to 
the Trustee in writing; or 

(c) from amounts transferred to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 
Redemption Account resulting from a reduction in the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement as 
provided for in the Indenture, and, on the date on which the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 
Reserve Account, together with other moneys available therefor, are sufficient to pay and redeem 
all of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding, including accrued interest thereon. 

If less than all of the Phase 1 Bonds shall be called for redemption, the particular Phase 1 Bonds or 
portions of Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Registrar as provided in the 
Indenture. 

Notice of Redemption and of Purchase 

Notice of each redemption of Phase 1 Bonds is required to be mailed by the Bond Registrar, postage 
prepaid, not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption date to each 
registered Owner of Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed at the address of such registered Owner recorded on the 
bond register maintained by the Bond Registrar. On the date designated for redemption, notice having been 
given and money for the payment of the Redemption Price being held by the Paying Agent, all as provided 
in the Indenture, the Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption shall become and be 
due and payable at the Redemption Price provided for the redemption of such Phase 1 Bonds or such 
portions thereof on such date, interest on such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for 
redemption shall cease to accrue, such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption 
shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under the Indenture and the Owners thereof shall have 
no rights in respect of such Phase 1 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption except to 
receive payments of the Redemption Price thereof so held by the Paying Agent. Further notice of 
redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar to certain registered securities depositories and information 
services as set forth in the Indenture, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any 
portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice 
thereof is given as above prescribed.  

Book-Entry Only System 

The information in this caption concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained 
from DTC and neither the District nor the Underwriter make any representation or warranty or take any 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information.  



7 

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the 
Phase 1 Bonds. The Phase 1 Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of 
Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. One fully-registered Phase 1 Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the 
Phase 1 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under 
the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, 
a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York 
Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments 
(from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also 
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct 
Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust 
& Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC 
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others 
such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly 
or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules 
applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information 
about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Phase 1 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Phase 1 Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Phase 1 Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. 
Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the 
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through 
which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Phase 1 
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership 
interests in the Phase 1 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Phase 1 Bonds 
is discontinued.  

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Phase 1 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested 
by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Phase 1 Bonds with DTC and their registration 
in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. 
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds; DTC's records reflect only 
the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Phase 1 Bonds are credited, which may or 
may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping 
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements 



8 

as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Phase 1 Bonds may wish to take certain steps 
to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, such 
as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Phase 1 Bond documents. For example, 
Beneficial Owners of Phase 1 Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Phase 1 Bonds for 
their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial 
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices 
be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Phase 1 Bonds are being redeemed, 
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such Phase 1 
Bonds to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
the Phase 1 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI procedures. 
Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record 
date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts the Phase 1 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the 
Omnibus Proxy).  

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and interest payments on the Phase 1 Bonds will be made to 
Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's 
practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail 
information from the District or the Paying Agent on payable date in accordance with their respective 
holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of 
customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant 
and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Trustee, or the District, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and 
interest payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the District and/or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to 
the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds at any 
time by giving reasonable notice to the District or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that 
a successor depository is not obtained, Phase 1 Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry only transfers through DTC 
(or a successor securities depository). In that event, Phase 1 Bond certificates will be printed and delivered 
to DTC. 

SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS 

General 

NEITHER THE PHASE 1 BONDS, NOR THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, 
PAYABLE THEREON SHALL CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR GENERAL 
INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE CONSTITUTION AND 
LAWS OF FLORIDA. THE PHASE 1 BONDS AND THE SERIES OF WHICH THEY ARE A PART, 
AND THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, PAYABLE THEREON DO NOT CONSTITUTE 
EITHER A PLEDGE OF THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT OR A LIEN UPON 



9 

ANY PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OTHER THAN AS PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS. NO OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON 
SHALL EVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY AD VALOREM TAXING 
POWER OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY OR GOVERNMENTAL BODY 
TO PAY DEBT SERVICE OR TO PAY ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE PAID 
PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE PHASE 1 BONDS. RATHER, DEBT SERVICE AND 
ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE PAID PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE 
PHASE 1 BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, AND SHALL BE SECURED SOLELY BY, 
THE PHASE 1 PLEDGED REVENUES AND THE PHASE 1 PLEDGED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
PLEDGED TO THE PHASE 1 BONDS, ALL AS PROVIDED IN THE PHASE 1 BONDS AND THE 
INDENTURE. 

The Phase 1 Bonds will be secured by a pledge of the Phase 1 Pledged Revenues. "Phase 1 Pledged 
Revenues" shall mean all revenues received by the District from the Phase 1 Assessments, including, 
without limitation, amounts received from any foreclosure proceeding for the enforcement of collection of 
such Phase 1 Assessments or from the issuance and sale of tax certificates with respect to such Phase 1 
Assessments; provided, however, that Phase 1 Pledged Revenues shall not include (A) any moneys 
transferred to the Phase 1 Rebate Fund, or investment earnings thereon and (B) "special assessments" levied 
and collected by the District under Section 190.022 of the Act for maintenance purposes or "maintenance 
special assessments" levied and collected by the District under Section 190.021(3) of the Act (it being 
expressly understood that the lien and pledge of the Indenture shall not apply to any of the moneys described 
in the foregoing clauses (A) and (B) of this proviso).  

"Phase 1 Assessments" shall mean the Assessments on the tax parcels identified in the Eighth 
Supplemental Indenture and corresponding to the Phase 1 Bonds. "Assessments" shall mean all assessments 
levied and collected by or on behalf of the District pursuant to Section 190.022 of the Act as amended from 
time to time, together with the interest specified in the resolution adopted by the District, the interest 
specified in Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, as amended, if any such interest is collected by or on behalf of 
the District, and any applicable penalties collected by or on behalf of the District, together with any and all 
amounts received by the District from the sale of tax certificates or otherwise form the collection of 
Delinquent Assessments (as defined in the Indenture) and which are pledged to the Phase 1 Bonds pursuant 
to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture. Non-ad valorem assessments are not based on millage and are not 
taxes, but can become a lien against the homestead as permitted in Section 4, Article X of the Florida State 
Constitution. The Phase 1 Assessments will constitute liens against the Phase 1 Lands against which the 
Phase 1 Assessments are imposed. See "ENFORCEMENT OF ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS" herein.  

The Phase 1 Assessments are levied in an amount corresponding to the debt service on the Phase 1 
Bonds on the basis of benefit received as a result of the District's Capital Improvement Plan (as defined 
herein), including the Phase 1 Project. The Assessment Methodology (as hereinafter defined), which 
describes the methodology for allocating the Phase 1 Assessments to the assessable lands within the Phase 
1 Assessment Area is included as APPENDIX D attached hereto.  

Covenant to Levy the Phase 1 Assessments 

The District has covenanted to levy the Phase 1 Assessments at the times and in the amount 
sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds. If any Phase 1 Assessment shall be either 
in whole or in part annulled, vacated or set aside by the judgment of any court, or if the District shall be 
satisfied that any such Phase 1 Assessment is so irregular or defective that the same cannot be enforced or 
collected, or if the District shall have omitted to make such Phase 1 Assessment when it might have done 
so, the District has additionally covenanted to either (i) take all necessary steps to cause a new Phase 1 
Assessment to be made for the whole or any part of such improvement or against any property benefited 



10 

by such improvement, or (ii) in its sole discretion, make up the amount of such Phase 1 Assessment from 
legally available moneys, which moneys shall be deposited into the Phase 1 Revenue Account. In case such 
second Phase 1 Assessment shall be annulled, the District shall obtain and make other Phase 1 Assessments 
until a valid Phase 1 Assessment shall be made. 

Prepayment of Phase 1 Assessments 

Pursuant to the Assessment Proceedings, an owner of property subject to the Phase 1 Assessments 
may prepay the entire remaining balance of such Phase 1 Assessments, or a portion thereof, at any time if 
there is also paid, in addition to the prepaid principal balance of such Phase 1 Assessments, an amount equal 
to the interest that would otherwise be due on such prepaid amount on the next succeeding Quarterly 
Redemption Date for the Phase 1 Bonds, or, if prepaid during the forty-five (45) day period preceding such 
Quarterly Redemption Date, to the interest payment date following such next succeeding interest payment 
date.  

Pursuant to the Act, an owner of property subject to the levy of Phase 1 Assessments may pay the 
entire balance of the such Phase 1 Assessments remaining due, without interest, within thirty (30) days after 
the Phase 1 Project has been completed or acquired by the District, and the Board has adopted a resolution 
accepting the Phase 1 Project pursuant to Chapter 170.09, Florida Statutes. The Developer, as the sole 
owner of the property within Phase 1, will covenant to waive this right on behalf of itself and its successors 
and assigns in connection with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – 
Prepayment and Redemption Risk" herein. 

The Phase 1 Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as indicated under "DESCRIPTION 
OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – Redemption Provisions – Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption" from 
optional or required prepayments of Phase 1 Assessments by property owners.  

Additional Obligations 

In the Indenture, the District will covenant that, other than Bonds issued to refund a portion of 
Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, the issuance of which as determined by the District results in present value 
debt service savings, the District shall not issue or incur any debt payable in whole or in part from the Phase 
1 Pledged Revenues, other than the Phase 1 Bonds.  

So long as there are any Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, the District shall not issue any Bonds or other 
debt obligations (the "Additional Bonds"), secured by Assessments on the Phase 1 Assessment Area without 
the written consent of the Majority Owners until the Phase 1 Assessments have been Substantially 
Absorbed. "Substantially Absorbed" shall mean the date on which a principal amount of the Phase 1 
Assessments equaling seventy-five percent (75%) of the then-Outstanding principal amount of the Series 
2020 Bonds are levied on tax parcels within the District with respect to which a certificate of occupancy 
has been issued for a structure thereon 

The provisions of the preceding paragraph shall not apply to any Bonds or other debt obligations 
secured by Assessments on properties other than the Phase 1 Assessment Area. Further, notwithstanding 
such restriction, the District may issue Bonds secured by Assessments on the Phase 1 Assessment Area for 
the health, safety, welfare or repairs for Phase 1 Assessment Area.  

Prior to the delivery of any such Additional Bonds or other debt obligations, the District will deliver 
a written certificate from the District Manager to the Trustee on which it may conclusively rely that all of 
the applicable conditions set forth above have been met. 



11 

Subject to the limitations on Additional Bonds described above, the District and/or other public 
entities may impose taxes or other special assessments on the same properties encumbered by the Phase 1 
Assessments without the consent of the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds. The District expects to impose certain 
non-ad valorem special assessments called maintenance assessments, which are of equal dignity with the 
Phase 1 Assessments, on the same lands upon which the Phase 1 Assessments are imposed, to fund the 
maintenance and operation of the District. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Taxes, Assessments and Fees" 
and "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Other Taxes and Assessments" herein for more information. 

Covenant Against Sale or Encumbrance 

In the Master Indenture, the District covenanted that, except as otherwise permitted in the 
Indenture, it will not sell, lease or otherwise dispose of or encumber the Phase 1 Project or any part thereof. 
See "APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER INDENTURE AND PROPOSED FORM OF 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE" attached hereto for more information.  

Acquisition and Construction Account 

The Eighth Supplemental Indenture establishes a separate account within the Acquisition and 
Construction Fund designated as the "Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account." Proceeds of the 
Phase 1 Bonds shall be deposited into the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account in the amount set 
forth in the Eighth Supplemental Indenture.  

[No amounts shall be disbursed from the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account until the 
Consulting Engineer has certified in writing to the District and the Trustee that the following permits have 
been obtained with respect to the Phase 1 Project:  (i) from the St. Johns River Water Management District, 
the environmental resource permit, and (ii) from St. Johns County, Florida, construction plan approval.  If 
the Consulting Engineer has not provided such certification by December 1, 2021, the Phase I Project shall 
be deemed to not be able to be completed in a sound and economical manner within a reasonable period of 
time, December 2, 2021 shall be the Date of Completion (as provided in clause (ii) of the definition of such 
term in the Master Indenture), and the funds in the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account shall be 
transferred to the Phase 1 Redemption Account for application to the extraordinary mandatory redemption 
of the Phase 1 Bonds on April 1, 2021 pursuant to clause (c) of the mandatory redemption provision set 
forth herein and in the form of Bond attached to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture.] 

(c) [Except as provided in the preceding paragraph,] the District shall not declare that the Date 
of Completion of the Phase 1 Project has occurred until after the Reserve Account Release Conditions (as 
defined herein) have been satisfied, and all moneys transferred from the Phase 1 Debt Service Reserve 
Account to the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account have been expended or the Consulting 
Engineer has certified in writing to the District and the Trustee that such amount is in excess of what is 
needed to complete the Phase 1 Project. The Trustee shall have no obligation to inquire if Reserve Account 
Release Conditions have occurred and, in the absence of notice from the District, the Trustee may assume 
that the Reserve Account Release Conditions have not occurred. 

Reserve Account 

The Eighth Supplemental Indenture establishes a Phase 1 Reserve Account within the Reserve Fund 
for the Phase 1 Bonds. The Phase 1 Reserve Account will, at the time of delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, be 
funded from a portion of the net proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds in the amount of the Phase 1 Reserve 
Account Requirement. The "Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement" shall mean (i) initially, an amount 
equal to the maximum annual Debt Service Requirement for the Phase 1 Bonds and (ii) upon satisfaction 
of the Reserve Account Release Conditions, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the maximum annual 



12 

Debt Service Requirement for the Phase 1 Bonds. Such maximum annual Debt Service Requirement shall 
be re-determined by the Trustee upon any optional prepayment by the owner of a lot or parcel of land of a 
Phase 1 Assessment against such lot or parcel as provided in the Eighth Supplemental Indenture. Any excess 
in the Phase 1 Debt Service Reserve Account as a result of satisfaction of the Reserve Account Release 
Conditions shall be deposited into the Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account. The District or the 
District Manager, on behalf of the District, shall provide written notice to the Trustee when the Reserve 
Account Release Conditions have been satisfied, upon which notice the Trustee may conclusively rely. The 
Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement is initially $____________.  

"Reserve Account Release Conditions" shall mean (i) all of the single-family residential lots 
planned for the Phase 1 Assessment Area are developed and platted as certified in writing by the Consulting 
Engineer; (ii) all of the platted single-family residential lots within the Phase 1 Assessment Area have 
closed with homebuilders; and (iii) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing with respect to any 
outstanding Phase 1 Bonds.  

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account 
shall be used only for the purpose of making payments into the Phase 1 Interest Account, the Phase 1 
Principal Account and the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account to pay Debt Service on the Phase 1 Bonds when 
due, without privilege or priority of one Phase 1 Bond over another, to the extent the moneys on deposit in 
such Accounts and available therefor are insufficient and for no other purpose. Such Account shall consist 
only of cash and Phase 1 Investment Obligations. The Phase 1 Reserve Account is held solely for the benefit 
of, and as security for, the Phase 1 Bonds and amount therein shall not be available or be used for the 
purpose of making any payments with respect to any other Bonds.  

On each December 15, March 15, June 15 and September 15 (or, if such date is not a Business Day, 
on the Business Day next preceding such day), the Trustee shall determine the amount on deposit in the 
Phase 1 Reserve Account and transfer any excess therein above the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement 
(other than as a result of optional prepayment of a Phase 1 Assessment which shall be applied as provided 
in the succeeding paragraph or as a result of investment earnings which shall be deposited into the Phase 1 
Revenue Account as required by the Indenture), to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 
Redemption Account for the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Phase 1 Bonds in accordance with the 
Eighth Supplemental Indenture.  

On each December 15, March 15, June 15 and September 15 (or, if such date is not a Business Day, 
on the Business Day preceding such day), in the event that the amount of proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds on 
deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account exceeds the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement due to a 
decrease in the amount of Phase 1 Bonds that will be outstanding as a result of an optional prepayment by 
the owner of a lot or parcel of land of a Phase 1 Assessment against such lot or parcel, such excess shall be 
transferred to the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption Account (and the District 
shall include such excess as a credit against the Phase 1 Prepayment Principal otherwise required to be 
made by the owner of such lot or parcel) to be used for the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Phase 1 
Bonds. 

On the date of prepayment of a Phase 1 Assessment by cancellation of Phase 1 Bonds pursuant to 
the Indenture, in the event that the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account exceeds the Phase 1 
Reserve Account Requirement due to a decrease in the amount of Phase 1 Bonds that will be outstanding 
as a result of such prepayment by such Phase 1 Assessment, such excess shall be transferred to the Phase 1 
Prepayment Account of the Phase 1 Redemption Account (and the District shall include such excess as a 
credit against the Phase 1 Prepayment Principal otherwise required to be made by the owner of such lot or 
parcel) to be used for the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Phase 1 Bonds. 



13 

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, on the earliest date on which there is on 
deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account sufficient monies, taking into account other monies available 
therefor, to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, together with accrued interest and 
redemption premium, if any, on such Phase 1 Bonds to the earliest date of redemption permitted therein 
and in the Indenture, then the Trustee shall transfer the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account 
into the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount in the Phase 1 Redemption Account to pay and redeem all of the 
Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds on the earliest date permitted for redemption in the Indenture. 

The District shall give the Trustee notice when the Reserve Account Release Conditions have been 
satisfied. The Trustee shall have no obligation to inquire if the Reserve Account Release Conditions have 
occurred and, in the absence of notice from the District, the Trustee may assume that the Reserve Account 
Release Conditions have not occurred 

Application of the Pledged Revenues 

The Indenture establishes a "Phase 1 Revenue Account" within the Revenue Fund for the Phase 1 
Bonds. Pursuant to the Indenture, the District shall deposit into Phase 1 Revenue Account the amounts 
required to be deposited therein in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture; provided, however, that 
Connection Fees may be deposited at the written direction of the District to the Phase 1 Acquisition and 
Construction Account, the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption Account, the Phase 
1 Principal Account or the Phase 1 Interest Account, in such amounts as shall be directed by the District 
and applied by the Trustee for the purposes of such Account or Subaccount. The Phase 1 Revenue Account 
shall be held by the Trustee separate and apart from all other Funds and Accounts held under the Indenture 
and from all other moneys of the Trustee and for the sole benefit of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

The District shall deposit all revenues received by the District from the Phase 1 Assessments with 
the Trustee immediately upon receipt together with a written accounting setting forth the amounts of such 
Phase 1 Assessments which are in the following categories which shall be deposited by the Trustee into the 
Funds and Accounts established hereunder as follows: 

(i) Phase 1 Prepayment Principal, which shall be deposited into the Phase 1 
Prepayment Subaccount in the Redemption Account; and 

(ii) all other revenues from the Phase 1 Assessment, which shall be deposited into the 
Phase 1 Revenue Account. 

Moneys other than Phase 1 Assessments received by the Trustee in respect of the Phase 1 
Assessments or Phase 1 Bonds shall, at the written direction of the District, be deposited into the Phase 1 
Optional Redemption Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption Account and used to pay the principal of and 
premium, if any, on Phase 1 Bonds called or to be called for optional redemption at the written direction of 
the District in accordance with the provisions for optional redemption of Phase 1 Bonds as set forth in the 
form of Phase 1 Bonds attached to the Eighth Supplemental Indenture. 

On the forty-fifth (45th) day preceding each Quarterly Redemption Date (or if such date is not a 
Business Day, on the Business Day next preceding such date), the Trustee shall determine the amount on 
deposit in the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount of the Phase 1 Redemption Account, and, if the balance 
therein is greater than zero, shall transfer (but only after transferring sufficient amounts as directed in 
writing by the District to make the transfers required by the Eighth Supplemental Indenture and confirming 
that such transfer will not result in a deficiency in any of the transfers required by the sections below labeled 
the FIRST through FOURTH below) from the Phase 1 Revenue Account for deposit into the Phase 1 
Prepayment Subaccount, an amount sufficient to increase the amount on deposit therein to an integral 



14 

multiple of $5,000, and, shall thereupon give notice and cause the extraordinary mandatory redemption of 
the Phase 1 Bonds on the next succeeding Quarterly Redemption Date in the maximum aggregate principal 
amount for which moneys are then on deposit in the Phase 1 Prepayment Subaccount in accordance with 
the provisions for extraordinary redemption of the Phase 1 Bonds set forth in the Indenture. The Indenture 
authorizes and directs the Trustee to withdraw from the Phase 1 Interest Account, the amount of interest 
accrued or to accrue on Phase 1 Bonds to be redeemed to the Quarterly Redemption Date therefor. 

On each May 1 or November 1 (or if such May 1 or November 1 is not a Business Day, on, the 
Business Day preceding such May 1 or November 1), commencing May 1, 2021, the Trustee shall then 
transfer amounts on deposit in the Phase 1 Revenue Account to the Funds and Accounts designated below 
in the following amounts and in the following order of priority: 

FIRST, to the Phase 1 Interest Account of the Debt Service Fund, an amount equal to the amount 
of interest payable on all Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding on such May 1 or November 1, less any other 
amount already on deposit in the Phase 1 Interest Account not previously credited (including amounts 
transferred from the Phase 1 Capitalized Interest Account pursuant to the Indenture); 

SECOND, to the Phase 1 Principal Account, the amount, if any, equal to the difference between 
the principal all Phase 1 Bonds due on such May 1 or November 1 and the amount already on deposit in 
the Phase 1 Principal Account not previously credited; 

THIRD, to the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account, the amount, if any, equal to the difference between 
the Amortization Installments of all Phase 1 Bonds subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on such 
May 1 or November 1, and the amount already on deposit in the Phase 1 Sinking Fund Account not 
previously credited; and 

FOURTH, to the Phase 1 Reserve Account, the maximum amount which will not cause the balance 
therein to exceed the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement. 

In addition, at any time the Phase 1 Bonds are subject to redemption on a date which is not a May 
1 or November 1 Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall be authorized to transfer to the Phase 1 Interest 
Account, the amount necessary to pay interest on the Phase 1 Bonds subject to redemption on such date. 

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, it shall not, a fortiori, constitute an Event 
of Default under the Indenture if the full amount of the foregoing deposits are not made due to an 
insufficiency of funds therefor. 

On any date required by the Tax Certificate (as defined in the Indenture), the District shall give the 
Trustee written direction, and the Trustee shall transfer from the Phase 1 Revenue Account to the Rebate 
Account established for the Phase 1 Bonds in the Rebate Fund in accordance with the Master Indenture, the 
amount due and owing to the United States, which amount shall be paid, to the United States, when due, in 
accordance with such Tax Certificate. 

After making the transfers described above, the Trustee shall retain any excess in the Phase 1 
Revenue Account or, at the written direction of the District, shall transfer to the District the balance on 
deposit in the Phase 1 Revenue Account on November 2 of any year to be used for any lawful District 
purpose; provided, however, that on the date of such proposed transfer the amount on deposit in the Phase 
1 Reserve Account shall be equal to the Phase 1 Reserve Account Requirement, and, provided further, that 
the Trustee shall not have actual knowledge of an Event of Default under the Indenture relating to any of 
the Phase 1 Bonds, including the payment of Trustee's fees and expenses then due. 



15 

Investments 

Amounts in all of the Funds and Accounts held as security for the Phase 1 Bonds shall be invested 
only in Phase 1 Investment Obligations, and all earnings thereon shall be deposited, as realized, to the Phase 
1 Revenue Account, and applied for the purposes of such Account. The Trustee shall not be liable or 
responsible for any loss resulting from any investment or for failure to make an investment (except failure 
to make an investment in accordance with the written direction of an Authorized Officer) or for failure to 
achieve the maximum possible earnings in investments. The Trustee shall have no obligation to invest funds 
without written direction from an Authorized Officer. See "APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER 
INDENTURE AND PROPOSED FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE" attached hereto.  

Indenture Provisions Relating to Bankruptcy of Landowners  

The Indenture contains the following provisions which, pursuant to the Indenture, shall be 
applicable both before and after the commencement, whether voluntary or involuntary, of any case, 
proceeding or other action by or against any owner of any tax parcel subject to at least eight percent (8%) 
of the Phase 1 Assessments pledged to the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds (an "Insolvent Taxpayer") under any 
existing or future law of any jurisdiction relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, or relief of debtors (a "Proceeding"). 

The District will acknowledge and agree that, although the Phase 1 Bonds were issued by the 
District, the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds are categorically the party with the ultimate financial stake in the 
transaction and, consequently, the party with a vested and pecuniary interest in a Proceeding. In the event 
of any Proceeding involving an Insolvent Taxpayer, the District will agree in the Indenture that: 

(i) the District shall seek to secure the written consent of the Trustee, acting at the 
direction of the Majority Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding, prior to making any election, 
giving any consent, commencing any action or filing any motion, claim, obligation, notice or 
application or in taking any other action or position in any Proceedings or in any action related to 
a Proceeding that affects, either directly or indirectly, the Phase 1 Assessments relating to the 
Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, or any rights of the Trustee under the 
Indenture (provided, however, Trustee shall be deemed to have consented, on behalf of the Majority 
Owners of the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, to the proposed action if the District does not receive a 
written response from the Trustee within thirty (30) days following receipt by the Trustee of the 
written request for consent); 

(ii) the District shall not make any election, give any consent, commence any action 
or file any motion, claim, obligation, notice or application or take any other action or position in 
any Proceeding or in any action related to a Proceeding that affects, either directly or indirectly, the 
Phase 1 Assessments relating to the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, 
or any rights of the Trustee under the Indenture that are inconsistent with any written consent 
received (or deemed received) from the Trustee; 

(iii) the District shall seek the written consent of the Trustee prior to filing and voting 
in any such Proceeding (provided, however, Trustee shall be deemed to have consented, on behalf 
of the Majority Owners of the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, to the proposed action if the District 
does not receive a written response from the Trustee within thirty (30) days following receipt by 
the Trustee of the written request for consent); 

(iv) the Trustee shall have the right, by interpleader or otherwise, to seek or oppose any 
relief in any such Proceeding that the District, as claimant with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments 



16 

relating to the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, would have the right to pursue, and, if the Trustee 
chooses to exercise any such rights, the District shall not oppose the Trustee in seeking to exercise 
any and all rights and taking any and all actions available to the District in connection with any 
Proceeding of any Insolvent Taxpayer, including without limitation, the right to file and/or 
prosecute and/or defend any claims and proofs of claims, to vote to accept or reject a plan, to seek 
dismissal of the Proceeding, to seek stay relief to commence or continue foreclosure or pursue any 
other available remedies as to the Phase 1 Assessments relating the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, to 
seek substantive consolidation, to seek to shorten the Insolvent Taxpayer's exclusivity periods or 
to oppose any motion to extend such exclusivity periods, to oppose any motion for use of cash 
collateral or for authority to obtain financing, to oppose any sale procedures motion or any sale 
motion, to propose a competing plan of reorganization or liquidation, or to make any election under 
Section 1111(b) of the Bankruptcy Code; and 

(v) The District shall not challenge the validity or amount of any claim submitted in 
good faith in such Proceeding by the Trustee or any valuations of the lands owned by any Insolvent 
Taxpayer submitted in good faith by the Trustee in such Proceedings or take any other action in 
such Proceedings, which is adverse to Trustee's enforcement or the District's claim and rights with 
respect to the Phase 1 Assessments relating to the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, or receipt of 
adequate protection (as that term is defined in the Bankruptcy Code). Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the District will agree that the Trustee shall have the right (i) to file a 
proof of claim with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments relating to the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, 
(ii) to deliver to the District a copy thereof, together with evidence of the filing with the appropriate 
court or other authority, and (iii) to defend any objection filed to said proof of claim. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the immediately preceding paragraphs, nothing in the Indenture 
shall preclude the District from becoming a party to a Proceeding in order to enforce a claim for operation 
and maintenance Assessments, and the District shall be free to pursue such claim in such manner as it shall 
deem appropriate in its sole and absolute discretion. Any actions taken by the District in pursuance of its 
claim for operation and maintenance Assessments in any Proceeding shall not be considered an action 
adverse or inconsistent with the Trustee's rights or consents with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments relating 
to the Outstanding Phase 1 Bonds, whether such claim is pursued by the District or the Trustee; provided, 
however, that the District shall not oppose any relief sought by the Trustee under the authority granted to 
the Trustee in clause (iv) above. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Bankruptcy Risks" herein and 
"APPENDIX A: COPY OF MASTER INDENTURE AND FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE" 
for more information. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

Each of the following shall be an "Event of Default" under the Indenture, with respect to the Phase 
1 Bonds: 

(a) Any payment of Debt Service on the Phase 1 Bonds is not made when due; 

(b) The District shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations under 
the Indenture;  

(c) The District admits in writing its inability to pay debts generally as they become due, or 
files a petition in bankruptcy or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or consents to the 
appointment of a receiver or trustee for itself or for the whole or any part of the Phase 1 Project; 



17 

(d) The District is adjudged insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, or is adjudged a 
bankrupt on a petition in bankruptcy filed against the District, or an order, judgment or decree be entered 
by any court of competent jurisdiction appointing, without the consent of the District, a receiver or trustee 
of the District or of the whole or any part of its property and if the aforesaid adjudications, orders, judgments 
or decrees shall not be vacated or set aside or stayed within ninety (90) days from the date of entry thereof;  

(e)  The District shall file a petition or answer seeking reorganization or any arrangement under 
the Federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law or statute so the United States of America or any 
state thereof; 

(f) Under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent 
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the District's assets or any part thereof, and such custody or 
control shall not be terminated within ninety (90) days from the date of assumption of such custody or 
control;  

(g) The District shall default in the due and punctual performance of any of the material 
covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions in the Phase 1 Bonds or in the Indenture on the part of 
the District to be performed (other than a default in the payment of Debt Service on the Phase 1 Bonds 
when due, which is an Event of Default under subsection (a) above) and such default shall continue for 
thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such default and requiring the same to be remedied shall be 
given to the District by the Trustee or, if the Trustee is unwilling or unable to act, by Owners of not less 
than ten percent (10%) in aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding and affected 
by such default;  

(h) Any portion of the Phase 1 Assessments pledged to the Phase 1 Bonds shall have become 
delinquent and, as the result thereof, the Indenture authorizes the Trustee to withdraw funds in an amount 
greater than twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account to pay the 
Debt Service Requirements on the Phase 1 Bonds (regardless of whether the Trustee does or does not 
actually withdraw such funds from the Phase 1 Reserve Account to pay the Debt Service Requirements on 
the Phase 1 Bonds) (the foregoing being referred to as a "Reserve Account Event") unless within sixty (60) 
days from the Reserve Account Event the District has either (i) replenished the amounts, if any, withdrawn 
from the Phase 1 Reserve Account or (ii) the portion of the delinquent Phase 1 Assessments giving rise to 
the Reserve Account Event are paid and are no longer delinquent Phase 1 Assessments; or 

(i) More than fifteen percent (15%) of the operation and maintenance assessments that are 
directly billed by the District and levied by the District on tax parcels subject to the Phase 1 Assessments 
are not paid by the date such are due and payable and such default continues for sixty (60) days after the 
date when due. 

Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds, the 
Trustee shall, upon written direction of the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding, by a notice in writing to the District, declare the aggregate principal 
amount of all Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding (if not then due and payable) to be due and payable 
immediately and, upon such declaration, the same shall become and be immediately due and payable, 
anything in the Phase 1 Bonds or in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding; provided, however, that 
no such declaration of acceleration shall occur as a result of an Event of Default specified in clause (a) 
above in the case of Phase 1 Bonds secured by Phase 1 Assessments, except to the extent that the Phase 1 
Assessments have been accelerated and are currently due and payable in accordance with applicable law; 
and provided further, however that if at any time after the aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds 
then Outstanding shall have been so declared to be due and payable, and before the entry of final judgment 
or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of such default, or before the completion 



18 

of the enforcement of any other remedy under the Indenture, moneys shall have accumulated in the Phase 
1 Revenue Account sufficient to pay the principal of all matured Phase 1 Bonds and all arrears of interest, 
if any, upon all Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding (except the aggregate principal amount of any Phase 1 
Bonds then Outstanding that is only due because of a declaration under this paragraph, and except for the 
interest accrued on Phase 1 Bonds since the last Interest Payment Date), and all amounts then payable by 
the District under the Indenture shall have been paid or a sum sufficient to pay the same shall have been 
deposited with the Paying Agent, and every other default (other than a default in the payment of the 
aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds then Outstanding that is due only because of a declaration 
under this paragraph) shall have been remedied, then the Trustee or, if the Trustee is unable or unwilling to 
act, the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Phase 1 Bonds then 
Outstanding not then due except by virtue of a declaration under this section, may, by written notice to the 
District, rescind and annual such declaration and its consequences, but no such rescission or annulment 
shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair any right consequent thereon. 

The Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Phase 1 Bonds Outstanding 
shall, subject to the requirements of the Master Indenture, have the right, by an instrument in writing 
executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the method and place of conducting all remedial proceedings 
by the Trustee under the Master Indenture, subject to certain limitations set forth therein. 

ENFORCEMENT OF ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS 

General 

The primary source of payment for the Phase 1 Bonds is the collection of Phase 1 Assessments, 
imposed on certain lands in the District specially benefited by the Phase 1 Project, pursuant to the 
Assessment Proceedings. See "ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF 
ASSESSMENTS" herein and "APPENDIX D: ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY." 

The imposition, levy, and collection of Phase 1 Assessments must be done in compliance with the 
provisions of Florida law. Failure by the District, the St. Johns County Tax Collector ("Tax Collector") or 
the St. Johns County Property Appraiser ("Property Appraiser") to comply with such requirements could 
result in delay in the collection of, or the complete inability to collect, Phase 1 Assessments during any 
year. Such delays in the collection of Phase 1 Assessments, or complete inability to collect any Phase 1 
Assessments, would have a material adverse effect on the ability of the District to make full or punctual 
payment of the debt service requirements on the Phase 1 Bonds. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS." To the 
extent that landowners fail to pay the Phase 1 Assessments, delay payments, or are unable to pay the same, 
the successful pursuance of collection procedures available to the District is essential to continued payment 
of principal of and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds.  

For the Phase 1 Assessments to be valid, the Phase 1 Assessments must meet two requirements: (1) 
the benefit from the Phase 1 Project to the lands subject to such Phase 1 Assessments must exceed or equal 
the amount of such Phase 1 Assessments, and (2) the Phase 1 Assessments must be fairly and reasonably 
allocated across all such benefitted properties. The Methodology Consultant will certify that these 
requirements have been met with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments. In the event that the Phase 1 
Assessments are levied based on the assumptions that future contributions will be made, or that future 
assessments may be levied to secure future bond issuances, the Phase 1 Assessments may need to be 
reallocated in the event such contributions are not made and/or future assessments and bonds are not levied 
and issued. 

Pursuant to the Act and the Assessment Proceedings, the District may collect the Phase 1 
Assessments through a variety of methods. Initially, the District will directly collect the Phase 1 



19 

Assessments levied in lieu of the Uniform Method (as defined herein) with respect to any unplatted lots. 
See "ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS" herein and 
"APPENDIX D: ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY." As the lots securing the Phase 1 Assessments are 
platted, the Phase 1 Assessments will be added to the County tax roll and collected pursuant to the Uniform 
Method unless the timing for using the Uniform Method will not yet allow for using such method. The 
following is a description of certain statutory provisions relating to each of these collection methods. Such 
description is not intended to be exhaustive and is qualified in its entirety by reference to such statutes. 

Direct Billing & Foreclosure Procedure  

As noted above, and pursuant to Chapters 170 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, the District may 
directly levy, collect and enforce the Phase 1 Assessments. In this context, Section 170.10 of the Florida 
Statutes provides that upon the failure of any property owner to timely pay all or any part of the annual 
installment of principal and/or interest of a special assessment due, including the Phase 1 Assessments, the 
whole assessment, with the interest and penalties thereon, shall immediately become due and payable and 
subject to foreclosure. Generally stated, the governing body of the entity levying the special assessment, in 
this case the District, may foreclose by commencing a foreclosure proceeding in the same manner as the 
foreclosure of a real estate mortgage, or, alternatively, by commencing an action under Chapter 173, Florida 
Statutes, which relates to foreclosure of municipal tax and special assessment liens. Such proceedings are 
in rem, meaning that the action would be brought against the land, and not against the landowner. In light 
of the one-year tolling period required before the District may commence a foreclosure action under Chapter 
173, Florida Statutes, it is likely the District would commence an action to foreclose in the same manner as 
the foreclosure of a real estate mortgage rather than proceeding under Chapter 173, Florida Statutes.  

Enforcement of the obligation to pay Phase 1 Assessments and the ability to foreclose the lien of 
such Phase 1 Assessments upon the failure to pay such Phase 1 Assessments may not be readily available 
or may be limited because enforcement is dependent upon judicial action which is often subject to discretion 
and delay. Additionally, there is no guarantee that there will be demand for any foreclosed lands sufficient 
to repay the Phase 1 Assessments. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS" herein. 

Uniform Method Procedure 

Subject to certain conditions, and for platted lands (as described above), the District shall collect 
the Phase 1 Assessments using the Uniform Method. The Uniform Method of collection is available only 
in the event the District complies with statutory and regulatory requirements and enters into agreements 
with the Tax Collector and Property Appraiser providing for the Phase 1 Assessments to be levied and then 
collected in this manner.  

If the Uniform Method of collection is used, the Phase 1 Assessments will be collected together 
with County, school, special district, and other ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem assessments (together, 
"Taxes and Assessments"), all of which will appear on the tax bill (also referred to as a "tax notice") issued 
to each landowner in the District. The statutes relating to enforcement of Taxes and Assessments provide 
that such Taxes and Assessments become due and payable on November 1 of the year when assessed, or as 
soon thereafter as the certified tax roll is received by the Tax Collector, and constitute a lien upon the land 
from January 1 of such year until paid or barred by operation of law. Such taxes and assessments – including 
the Phase 1 Assessments – are to be billed, and landowners in the District are required to pay, all Taxes and 
Assessments without preference in payment of any particular increment of the tax bill, such as the increment 
owing for the Phase 1 Assessments.  

All Taxes and Assessments are payable at one time, except for partial payment schedules as may 
be provided by Florida law such as Sections 197.374 and 197.222, Florida Statutes. Partial payments made 

---



20 

pursuant to Sections 197.374 and 197.222, Florida Statutes, are distributed in equal proportion to all taxing 
districts and levying authorities applicable to that account. If a taxpayer does not make complete payment 
of the total amount, he or she cannot designate specific line items on his or her tax bill as deemed paid in 
full. Therefore, in the event the Phase 1 Assessments are to be collected pursuant to the Uniform Method, 
any failure to pay any one line item, would cause the Phase 1 Assessments to not be collected to that extent, 
which could have a significant adverse effect on the ability of the District to make full or punctual payment 
of the debt service requirements on the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Under the Uniform Method, if the Phase 1 Assessments are paid during November when due or 
during the following three months, the taxpayer is granted a variable discount equal to 4% in November 
and decreasing one percentage point per month to 1% in February. All unpaid Taxes and Assessments 
become delinquent on April 1 of the year following assessment.  

The Tax Collector is required to collect the Taxes and Assessments on the tax bill prior to April 1 
and, after that date, to institute statutory procedures upon delinquency to collect such Taxes and 
Assessments through the sale of "tax certificates," as discussed below. Delay in the mailing of tax notices 
to taxpayers may result in a delay throughout this process. Neither the District nor the Underwriter can give 
any assurance to the holders of the Phase 1 Bonds (1) that the past experience of the Tax Collector with 
regard to tax and special assessment delinquencies is applicable in any way to the Phase 1 Assessments, (2) 
that future landowners and taxpayers in the District will pay such Phase 1 Assessments, (3) that a market 
may exist in the future for tax certificates in the event of sale of such certificates for taxable units within 
the District, and (4) that the eventual sale of tax certificates for real property within the District, if any, will 
be for an amount sufficient to pay amounts due under the Assessment Proceedings to discharge the lien of 
the Phase 1 Assessments and all other liens that are coequal therewith. 

Collection of delinquent Phase 1 Assessments under the Uniform Method is, in essence, based upon 
the sale by the Tax Collector of "tax certificates" and remittance of the proceeds of such sale to the District 
for payment of the Phase 1 Assessments due. Prior to the sale of tax certificates, the landowner may bring 
current the delinquent Taxes and Assessments and cancel the tax certificate process by paying the total 
amount of delinquent Taxes and Assessments plus all applicable interest, costs and charges. If the 
landowner does not act, the Tax Collector is required to attempt to sell tax certificates by public bid to the 
person who pays the delinquent Taxes and Assessments owing, and any applicable interest, costs and 
charges, and who accepts the lowest interest rate per annum to be borne by the certificates (but not more 
than 18%).  

If there are no bidders, the tax certificate is issued to the County. The County is to hold, but not pay 
for, the tax certificate with respect to the property, bearing interest at the maximum legal rate of interest, 
which is currently 18%. The Tax Collector does not collect any money if tax certificates are issued, or 
struck off, to the County. The County may sell such certificates to the public at any time after issuance, but 
before a tax deed application is made, at the face amount thereof plus interest at the rate of not more than 
18% per annum, costs and charges. Proceeds from the sale of tax certificates are required to be used to pay 
Taxes and Assessments (including the Phase 1 Assessments), interest, costs and charges on the real property 
described in the certificate.  

Any tax certificate in the hands of a person other than the County may be redeemed and canceled, 
in whole or in part (under certain circumstances), at any time before a tax deed is issued (unless full payment 
for a tax deed is made to the clerk of court, including documentary stamps and recording fees), at a price 
equal to the face amount of the certificate or portion thereof together with all interest, costs, and charges 
due. Regardless of the interest rate actually borne by the certificates, persons redeeming tax certificates 
must pay a minimum interest rate of 5%, unless the rate borne by the certificates is zero percent. The 
proceeds of such a redemption are paid to the Tax Collector who transmits to the holder of the tax certificate 



21 

such proceeds less service charges, and the certificate is canceled. Redemption of tax certificates held by 
the County is effected by purchase of such certificates from the County, as described above. 

Any holder, other than the County, of a tax certificate that has not been redeemed has seven years 
from the date of issuance of the tax certificate during which to act against the land that is the subject of the 
tax certificate. After an initial period ending two years from April 1 of the year of issuance of a certificate, 
during which period actions against the land are held in abeyance to allow for sales and redemptions of tax 
certificates, and before the expiration of seven years from the date of issuance, the holder of a certificate 
may apply for a tax deed to the subject land. The applicant is required to pay to the Tax Collector at the 
time of application all amounts required to redeem or purchase all other outstanding tax certificates covering 
the land, plus interest, any omitted taxes or delinquent taxes and interest, and current taxes, if due (as well 
as any costs of resale, if applicable). If the County holds a tax certificate on property valued at $5,000 or 
more and has not succeeded in selling it, the County must apply for a tax deed two years after April 1 of 
the year of issuance of the certificate or as soon thereafter as is reasonable. The County pays costs and fees 
to the Tax Collector but not any amount to redeem any other outstanding certificates covering the land. 
Thereafter, the property is advertised for public sale. 

In any such public sale conducted by the Clerk of the Circuit Court, the private holder of the tax 
certificate who is seeking a tax deed for non-homestead property is deemed to submit a minimum bid equal 
to the amount required to redeem the tax certificate, charges for the cost of sale, including costs incurred 
for the service of notice required by statute, redemption of other tax certificates on the land, and all other 
costs to the applicant for the tax deed, plus interest thereon. In the case of homestead property, the minimum 
bid is also deemed to include, in addition to the amount of money required for the minimum bid on non-
homestead property, an amount equal to one-half of the latest assessed value of the homestead. If there are 
no higher bids, the holder receives title to the land, and the amounts paid for the certificate and in applying 
for a tax deed are credited toward the purchase price. The holder is also responsible for payment of any 
amounts included in the bid not already paid, including but not limited to, documentary stamp tax, recording 
fees, and, if property is homestead property, the moneys to cover the one-half value of the homestead. If 
there are other bids, the holder may enter the bidding. The highest bidder is awarded title to the land. The 
portion of proceeds of such sale needed to redeem the tax certificate, together with all subsequent unpaid 
taxes plus the costs and expenses of the application for deed, with interest on the total of such sums, are 
forwarded to the holder thereof or credited to such holder if such holder is the successful bidder. Excess 
proceeds are distributed first to satisfy governmental liens against the land and then to the former title holder 
of the property (less service charges), lienholder of record, mortgagees of record, vendees of recorded 
contracts for deeds, and other lienholders and any other person to whom the land was last assessed on the 
tax roll for the year in which the land was assessed, all as their interest may appear. If the property is 
purchased for an amount in excess of the statutory bid of the certificate holder, but such excess is not 
sufficient to pay all governmental liens of record, the excess shall be paid to each governmental unit pro 
rata. 

Except for certain governmental liens and certain restrictive covenants and restrictions, no right, 
interest, restriction or other covenant survives the issuance of a tax deed. Thus, for example, outstanding 
mortgages on property subject to a tax deed would be extinguished. 

If there are no bidders at the public sale, the clerk shall enter the land on a list entitled "lands 
available for taxes" and shall immediately notify the County Commission that the property is available. At 
any time within ninety (90) days from the date the property is placed on the list, the County may purchase 
the land for the opening bid, or may waive its rights to purchase the property. Thereafter, and without further 
notice or advertising, any person, the County or any other governmental unit may purchase the land by 
paying the amount of the opening bid. Ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem assessments accruing after 
the date of public sale do not require repetition of the bidding process but are added to the minimum bid. 



22 

Three years from the date the property was offered for sale, unsold lands escheat to the County in which 
they are located, free and clear, and all tax certificates and liens against the property are canceled and a 
deed is executed vesting title in the governing board of such County. 

There can be no guarantee that the Uniform Method will result in the payment of Phase 1 
Assessments. For example, the demand for tax certificates is dependent upon various factors, which include 
the rate of interest that can be earned by ownership of such certificates and the underlying value of the land 
that is the subject of such certificates and which may be subject to sale at the demand of the certificate 
holder. Therefore, the underlying market value of the property within the District may affect the demand 
for certificates and the successful collection of the Phase 1 Assessments, which are the primary source of 
payment of the Phase 1 Bonds. Additionally, legal proceedings under Federal bankruptcy law brought by 
or against a landowner who has not yet paid his or her property taxes or assessments would likely result in 
a delay in the sale of tax certificates. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS" herein. 

BONDOWNERS' RISKS 

There are certain risks inherent in an investment in bonds issued by a public authority or 
governmental body in the State and secured by special assessments. Certain of these risks are described in 
other sections of this Limited Offering Memorandum. Certain additional risks are associated with the Phase 
1 Bonds offered hereby and are set forth below. Prospective investors in the Phase 1 Bonds should have 
such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to be capable of evaluating the merits and 
risks of an investment in the Phase 1 Bonds and have the ability to bear the economic risks of such 
prospective investment, including a complete loss of such investment. This section does not purport to 
summarize all risks that may be associated with purchasing or owning the Phase 1 Bonds, and prospective 
purchasers are advised to read this Limited Offering Memorandum in its entirety for a more complete 
description of investment considerations relating to the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Concentration of Land Ownership 

As of the date of delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, the Developer owns all of the assessable lands 
within the Phase 1 Assessment Area, which are the lands that will initially be subject to the Phase 1 
Assessments securing the Phase 1 Bonds. Payment of the Phase 1 Assessments is primarily dependent upon 
their timely payment by the Developer and the other future landowners in the Phase 1 Assessment Area. 
Non-payment of the Phase 1 Assessments by any of the landowners could have a substantial adverse impact 
upon the District's ability to pay debt service on the Phase 1 Bonds. See "THE DEVELOPER" and 
"SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS" herein.  

Bankruptcy and Related Risks 

In the event of the institution of bankruptcy or similar proceedings with respect to the Developer 
or any other owner of benefited property, delays could occur in the payment of debt service on the Phase 1 
Bonds, as such bankruptcy could negatively impact the ability of: (i) the Developer and any other landowner 
to pay the Phase 1 Assessments; (ii) the Tax Collector to sell tax certificates in relation to such property 
with respect to the Phase 1 Assessments being collected pursuant to the Uniform Method; and (iii) the 
District to foreclose the lien of the Phase 1 Assessments not being collected pursuant to the Uniform 
Method. In addition, the remedies available to the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds under the Indenture are in 
many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under 
existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, the remedies specified by federal, state and 
local law and in the Indenture and the Phase 1 Bonds, including, without limitation, enforcement of the 
obligation to pay Phase 1 Assessments and the ability of the District to foreclose the lien of the Phase 1 
Assessments if not being collected pursuant to the Uniform Method, may not be readily available or may 



23 

be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds 
(including Bond Counsel's approving opinion) will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal 
instruments by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws 
affecting the rights of creditors enacted before or after such delivery. The inability, either partially or fully, 
to enforce remedies available with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds could have a material adverse impact on 
the interest of the Owners thereof. 

A 2011 bankruptcy court decision in Florida held that the governing body of a community 
development district, and not the bondholders or indenture trustee, was the creditor of the 
landowners/debtors in bankruptcy with respect to claims for special assessments, and thus only the district 
could vote to approve or disapprove a reorganization plan submitted by the debtors in the case. The district 
voted in favor of the plan. The governing body of the district was at that time elected by the landowners 
rather than qualified electors. Under the reorganization plan that was approved, a two-year moratorium was 
placed on the debtor landowners' payment of special assessments. As a result of this non-payment of 
assessments, debt service payments on the district's bonds were delayed for two years or longer. The 
Indenture provides for the delegation of certain rights from the District to the Trustee in the event of a 
bankruptcy or similar proceeding with respect to an "Insolvent Taxpayer." See "SECURITY FOR AND 
SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – Indenture Provisions Relating to Bankruptcy of 
Landowners." The District cannot express any view whether such delegation would be enforceable. 

Phase 1 Assessments Are Non-Recourse 

The principal security for the payment of the principal and interest on the Phase 1 Bonds is the 
timely collection of the Phase 1 Assessments. The Phase 1 Assessments do not constitute a personal 
indebtedness of the landowners of the land subject thereto, but are secured by a lien on such land. There is 
no assurance that the Developer or subsequent landowners will be able to pay the Phase 1 Assessments or 
that they will pay such Phase 1 Assessments even though financially able to do so. Neither the Developer 
nor any other subsequent landowners have any personal obligation to pay the Phase 1 Assessments. Neither 
the Developer nor any subsequent landowners are guarantors of payment of any Phase 1 Assessments, and 
the recourse for the failure of the Developer or any subsequent landowner to pay the Phase 1 Assessments 
is limited to the collection proceedings against the land subject to such unpaid Phase 1 Assessments, as 
described herein. Therefore the likelihood of collection of the Phase 1 Assessments may ultimately depend 
on the market value of the land subject to the Phase 1 Assessments. While the ability of the Developer or 
subsequent landowners to pay the Phase 1 Assessments is a relevant factor, the willingness of the Developer 
or subsequent landowners to pay the Phase 1 Assessments, which may also be affected by the value of the 
land subject to the Phase 1 Assessments, is also an important factor in the collection of Phase 1 Assessments. 
The failure of the Developer or subsequent landowners to pay the Phase 1 Assessments could render the 
District unable to collect delinquent Phase 1 Assessments, if any, and provided such delinquencies are 
significant, could negatively impact the ability of the District to make the full or punctual payment of debt 
service on the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Regulatory and Environmental Risks 

The development of the District Lands, including the Phase 1 Assessment Area, is subject to 
comprehensive federal, state and local regulations and future changes to such regulations. Approval is 
required from various public agencies in connection with, among other things, the design, nature and extent 
of planned improvements, both public and private, and construction of the infrastructure in accordance with 
applicable zoning, land use and environmental regulations. Although all such approvals required to date 
have been received and any further approvals are anticipated to be received as needed, failure to obtain any 
such approvals in a timely manner could delay or adversely affect the completion of the development of 
the District Lands. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Development Approvals" herein for more information.  



24 

The value of the land within the District, the success of the Development, the development of the 
Phase 1 Assessment Area, and the likelihood of timely payment of principal and interest on the Phase 1 
Bonds could be affected by environmental factors with respect to the land in the District. Should the land 
be contaminated by hazardous materials, this could materially and adversely affect the value of the land in 
the District, which could materially and adversely affect the success of the development of the lands within 
the District and the likelihood of the timely payment of the Phase 1 Bonds. The District has not performed, 
nor has the District requested that there be performed on its behalf, any independent assessment of the 
environmental conditions within the District. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Environmental" for 
information on environmental site assessments obtained or received. Nevertheless, it is possible that 
hazardous environmental conditions could exist within the District or in the vicinity of the District and that 
such conditions could have a material and adverse impact upon the value of the benefited lands within the 
District. No assurance can be given that unknown hazardous materials, protected animals or vegetative 
species, etc., do not currently exist or may not develop in the future, whether originating within the District 
or from surrounding property, and what effect such may have on the development or sale of the District 
Lands, including the Phase 1 Assessment Area. 

The value of the lands subject to the Phase 1 Assessments could also be adversely impacted by 
flooding or wind damage caused by hurricanes, tropical storms, or other catastrophic events. In addition to 
potential damage or destruction to any existing development or construction in or near the District, such 
catastrophic events could potentially render the District Lands unable to support future development. The 
occurrence of any such events could materially adversely impact the District's ability to pay principal and 
interest on the Phase 1 Bonds. The Phase 1 Bonds are not insured, and the District's casualty insurance 
policies do not insure against losses incurred on private lands within its boundaries. 

Economic Conditions and Changes in Development Plans 

The successful development of the District Lands, including the Phase 1 Assessment Area, and the 
sale of residential units therein, once such homes are built, may be affected by unforeseen changes in 
general economic conditions, fluctuations in the real estate market and other factors beyond the control of 
the Developer. Moreover, the Developer has the right to modify or change plans for development of the 
District Lands, including the Phase 1 Assessment Area, and the Development as a whole from time to time, 
including, without limitation, land use changes, changes in the overall land and phasing plans, and changes 
to the type, mix, size and number of units to be developed, and may seek in the future, in accordance with 
and subject to the provisions of the Act, to contract or expand the boundaries of the District.  

Other Taxes and Assessments 

The willingness and/or ability of an owner of benefited land to pay the Phase 1 Assessments could 
be affected by the existence of other taxes and assessments imposed upon such property by the District, the 
County or any other local special purpose or general purpose governmental entities. County, school, special 
district taxes and special assessments, and voter-approved ad valorem taxes levied to pay principal of and 
interest on debt, including the Phase 1 Assessments, collected pursuant to the Uniform Method are payable 
at one time. Public entities whose boundaries overlap those of the District could, without the consent of the 
owners of the land within the District, impose additional taxes on the property within the District. The 
District anticipates imposing operation and maintenance assessments encumbering the same property 
encumbered by the Phase 1 Assessments. In addition, lands within the District may also be subject to 
assessments by property owners' and homeowners' associations. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Taxes, Fees 
and Assessments" for additional information. 

Under Florida law, a landowner may contest the assessed valuation determined for its property that 
forms the basis of ad-valorem taxes such landowner must pay. During this contest period, the sale of a tax 



25 

certificate under the Uniform Method will be suspended. If the Phase 1 Assessments are being collected 
along with ad valorem taxes pursuant to the Uniform Method, tax certificates will not be sold with respect 
to such Phase 1 Assessment, even though the landowner is not contesting the amount of the Phase 1 
Assessment. However, Section 194.014, Florida Statutes, requires taxpayers challenging the assessed value 
of their property to pay all non-ad valorem taxes and at least 75% of their ad valorem taxes before they 
become delinquent. Likewise, taxpayers who challenge the denial of an exemption or classification or a 
determination that their improvements were substantially complete must pay all non-ad valorem 
assessments and the amount of ad valorem taxes that they admit in good faith to be owing. If a taxpayer 
fails to pay property taxes as set forth above, the Value Adjustment Board considering the taxpayer's 
challenge is required to deny such petition by written decision by April 20 of such year. 

Limited Secondary Market for Phase 1 Bonds 

The Phase 1 Bonds may not constitute a liquid investment, and there is no assurance that a liquid 
secondary market will exist for the Phase 1 Bonds in the event an Owner thereof determines to solicit 
purchasers for the Phase 1 Bonds. Even if a liquid secondary market exists, there can be no assurance as to 
the price for which the Phase 1 Bonds may be sold. Such price may be lower than that paid by the current 
Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds, depending on the progress of development of the Phase 1 Assessment Area 
and the Development as applicable, existing real estate and financial market conditions and other factors. 

Inadequacy of Reserve Account 

Some of the risk factors discussed herein, which, if materialized, would result in a delay in the 
collection of the Phase 1 Assessments, may not adversely affect the timely payment of debt service on the 
Phase 1 Bonds because of the Phase 1 Reserve Account. The ability of the Phase 1 Reserve Account to 
fund deficiencies caused by delinquencies in the Phase 1 Assessments is dependent on the amount, duration 
and frequency of such deficiencies. Moneys on deposit in the Phase 1 Reserve Account may be invested in 
certain obligations permitted under the Indenture. Fluctuations in interest rates and other market factors 
could affect the amount of moneys in the Phase 1 Reserve Account to make up deficiencies. If the District 
has difficulty in collecting the Phase 1 Assessments, the Phase 1 Reserve Account could be rapidly depleted 
and the ability of the District to pay debt service on the Phase 1 Bonds could be materially adversely 
affected. In addition, during an Event of Default under the Indenture, the Trustee may withdraw moneys 
from the Phase 1 Reserve Account and such other Funds, Accounts and subaccounts created under the 
Indenture to pay its extraordinary fees and expenses incurred in connection with such Event of Default. If 
in fact the Phase 1 Reserve Account is accessed for any purpose, the District does not have a designated 
revenue source for replenishing such account. Moreover, the District may not be permitted to re-assess real 
property then burdened by the Phase 1 Assessments in order to provide for the replenishment of the Phase 
1 Reserve Account. See "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – 
Reserve Account" herein for more information about the Phase 1 Reserve Account.  

Legal Delays  

If the District should commence a foreclosure action against a landowner for nonpayment of Phase 
1 Assessments that are not being collected pursuant to the Uniform Method, such landowner and/or its 
mortgagee(s) may raise affirmative defenses to such foreclosure action. Although the District expects that 
such affirmative defenses would likely be proven to be without merit, they could result in delays in 
completing the foreclosure action. In addition, the District is required under the Indenture to fund the costs 
of such foreclosure. It is possible that the District will not have sufficient funds and will be compelled to 
request the Holders of the Phase 1 Bonds to allow funds on deposit under the Indenture to be used to pay 
the costs of the foreclosure action. Under the Code, there are limitations on the amounts of proceeds from 
the Phase 1 Bonds that can be used for such purpose. 



26 

IRS Examination and Audit Risk 

The Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") routinely examines bonds issued by state and local 
governments, including bonds issued by community development districts. In 2016, the IRS concluded its 
lengthy examination of certain issues of bonds (for purposes of this subsection, the "Audited Bonds") issued 
by Village Center Community Development District (the "Village Center CDD"). During the course of the 
audit of the Audited Bonds, Village Center CDD received a ruling dated May 30, 2013, in the form of a 
non-precedential technical advice memorandum ("TAM") concluding that Village Center CDD is not a 
political subdivision for purposes of Section 103(a) of the Code because Village Center CDD was organized 
and operated to perpetuate private control and avoid indefinitely responsibility to an electorate, either 
directly or through another elected state or local government body. Such a conclusion could lead to the 
further conclusion that the interest on the Audited Bonds was not excludable from gross income of the 
owners of such bonds for federal income tax purposes. Village Center CDD received a second TAM dated 
June 17, 2015, which granted relief to Village Center CDD from retroactive application of the IRS's 
conclusion regarding its failure to qualify as a political subdivision. Prior to the conclusion of the audits, 
the Audited Bonds were all refunded with taxable bonds. The audit of the Audited Bonds that were issued 
for utility improvements were closed without change to the tax exempt status of those Audited Bonds on 
April 25, 2016, and the audit of the remainder of the Audited Bonds (which funded recreational amenity 
acquisitions from entities related to the principal landowner in the Village Center CDD) was closed on July 
14, 2016, without the IRS making a final determination that the interest on the Audited Bonds in question 
was required to be included in gross income. However, the IRS letter to the Village Center CDD with 
respect to this second set of Audited Bonds noted that the IRS found that the Village Center CDD was not 
a "proper issuer of tax-exempt bonds" and that those Audited Bonds were private-activity bonds that did 
not fall in any of the categories that qualify for tax-exemption. Although the TAMs and the letters to the 
Village Center CDD from the IRS referred to above are addressed to, and binding only on, the IRS and 
Village Center CDD in connection with the Audited Bonds, they reflect the audit position of the IRS, and 
there can be no assurance that the IRS would not commence additional audits of bonds issued by other 
community development districts raising issues similar to the issues raised in the case of the Audited Bonds 
based on the analysis set forth in the first TAM or on the related concerns addressed in the July 14, 2016 
letter to the Village Center CDD.  

On February 23, 2016, the IRS published proposed regulations designed to provide prospective 
guidance with respect to potential private business control of issuers by providing a new definition of 
political subdivision for purposes of determining whether an entity is an appropriate issuer of bonds the 
interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal tax purposes. The proposed regulations require 
that a political subdivision (i) have the power to exercise at least one sovereign power, (ii) be formed and 
operated for a governmental purpose, and (iii) have a governing body controlled by or have significant uses 
of its funds or assets otherwise controlled by a government unit with all three sovereign powers or by an 
electorate that is not controlled by an unreasonably small number of unrelated electors. On October 4, 2017, 
the Treasury Department ("Treasury") announced that it would withdraw the proposed regulations, stating 
that, "while Treasury and the IRS continue to study the legal issues relating to political subdivisions, 
Treasury and the IRS currently believe that these proposed regulations should be withdrawn in their 
entirety, and plan to publish a withdrawal of the proposed regulations shortly in the Federal Register. 
Treasury and the IRS may propose more targeted guidance in the future after further study of the relevant 
legal issues." Notice of withdrawal of the proposed regulations was published in the Federal Register on 
October 20, 2017. 

It has been reported that the IRS has closed audits of other community development districts in 
Florida with no change to such districts' bonds' tax-exempt status, but has advised such districts that such 
districts must have public electors within the timeframe established by the applicable state law or their 
bonds may be determined to be taxable retroactive to the date of issuance. Pursuant to the Act, general 



27 

elections are not held until the later of six years from the date of establishment of the community 
development district or the time at which there are at least 250 qualified electors in the district. The District, 
unlike Village Center CDD, was formed with the intent that it will contain a sufficient number of residents 
to allow for a transition to control by a general electorate. Currently, [all of the members of the Board of 
the District were elected by the landowners and none were elected by qualified electors]. The Developer 
will certify as to its expectations as to the timing of the transition of control of the Board of the District to 
qualified electors pursuant to the Act, and its expectations as to compliance with the Act by any members 
of the Board that it elects. Such certification by the Developer does not ensure that such certification shall 
be determinative of, or may influence the outcome of any audit by the IRS, or any appeal from such audit, 
that may result in an adverse ruling that the District is not a political subdivision for purposes of Section 
103(a) of the Code. Further, there can be no assurance that an audit by the IRS of the Phase 1 Bonds will 
not be commenced. The District has no reason to believe that any such audit will be commenced, or that 
any such audit, if commenced, would result in a conclusion of noncompliance with any applicable state or 
federal law.  

Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds are advised that, if the IRS does audit the Phase 1 Bonds, under its 
current procedures, at least during the early stages of an audit, the IRS will treat the District as the taxpayer, 
and the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds may have limited rights to participate in those proceedings. The 
commencement of such an audit could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Phase 1 Bonds 
until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome. In addition, in the event of an adverse 
determination by the IRS with respect to the tax-exempt status of interest on the Phase 1 Bonds, it is unlikely 
the District will have available revenues to enable it to contest such determination or enter into a voluntary 
financial settlement with the IRS. Further, an adverse determination by the IRS with respect to the tax-
exempt status of interest on the Phase 1 Bonds would adversely affect the availability of any secondary 
market for the Phase 1 Bonds. Should interest on the Phase 1 Bonds become includable in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes, not only will Owners of Phase 1 Bonds be required to pay income taxes on 
the interest received on such Phase 1 Bonds and related penalties, but because the interest rate on such 
Phase 1 Bonds will not be adequate to compensate Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds for the income taxes due 
on such interest, the value of the Phase 1 Bonds may decline. 

THE INDENTURE DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR ANY ADJUSTMENT IN THE INTEREST 
RATE ON THE PHASE 1 BONDS IN THE EVENT OF AN ADVERSE DETERMINATION BY THE 
IRS WITH RESPECT TO THE TAX-EXEMPT STATUS OF INTEREST ON THE PHASE 1 BONDS. 
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS SHOULD EVALUATE WHETHER THEY 
CAN OWN THE PHASE 1 BONDS IN THE EVENT THAT THE INTEREST ON THE PHASE 1 
BONDS BECOMES TAXABLE AND/OR THE DISTRICT IS EVER DETERMINED TO NOT BE A 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION FOR PURPOSES OF THE CODE AND/OR SECURITIES ACT (AS 
HEREINAFTER DEFINED). 

Loss of Exemption from Securities Registration 

Since the Phase 1 Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended (the "Securities Act"), or any state securities laws, because of the exemption for political 
subdivisions, if the District is ever deemed by the IRS, judicially or otherwise, not to be a political 
subdivision for purposes of the Code, it is possible that federal or state regulatory authorities could also 
determine that the District is not a political subdivision for purposes of the federal and state securities laws. 
Accordingly, the District and purchasers of Phase 1 Bonds may not be able to rely on the exemption from 
registration under the Securities Act relating to securities issued by political subdivisions. In that event, the 
Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds would need to ensure that subsequent transfers of the Phase 1 Bonds are made 
pursuant to a transaction that is not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act and 
applicable state securities laws. 



28 

Federal Tax Reform 

Various legislative proposals are mentioned from time to time by members of Congress of the 
United States of America and others concerning reform of the internal revenue (tax) laws of the United 
States. In addition, the IRS may, in the future, issue rulings that have the effect of challenging the 
interpretation of existing tax laws. Certain of these proposals and interpretations, if implemented or upheld, 
could have the effect of diminishing the value of obligations or states and their political subdivisions, such 
as the Phase 1 Bonds, by eliminating or changing the tax-exempt status of interest on such bonds. Whether 
any such proposals will ultimately become or be upheld as law, and if so, the effect such proposals could 
have upon the value of bonds such as the Phase 1 Bonds cannot be predicted. However, it is possible that 
any such law or interpretation could have a material and adverse effect upon the availability of a liquid 
secondary market and/or the value of the Phase 1 Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Phase 1 Bonds 
should consult their tax advisors as to the impact of any proposed or pending legislation as well as the 
impact of federal legislation enacted in December 2017. See also "TAX MATTERS." 

State Tax Reform 

It is impossible to predict what new proposals may be presented regarding tax reform and/or 
community development districts during upcoming legislative sessions, whether such new proposals or any 
previous proposals regarding the same will be adopted by the Florida Senate and House of Representatives 
and signed by the Governor, and, if adopted, the form thereof. On October 31, 2014, the Auditor General 
of the State released a 31-page report which requests legislative action to establish parameters on the amount 
of bonds a community development district may issue and provide additional oversight for community 
development district bonds. This report renews requests made by the Auditor General in 2011 that led to 
the Governor of the State issuing an Executive Order on January 11, 2012 (the "Executive Order") directing 
the Office of Policy and Budget in the Executive Office of the Governor ("OPB") to examine the role of 
special districts in the State. As of the date hereof, the OPB has not made any recommendations pursuant 
to the Executive Order nor has the Florida legislature passed any related legislation. It is impossible to 
predict with certainty the impact that any existing or future legislation will or may have on the security for 
the Phase 1 Bonds. It should be noted that Section 190.16(14) of the Act provides in pertinent part that "The 
state pledges to the holders of any bonds issued under the Act that it will not limit or alter the rights of the 
district to levy and collect the … assessments… and to fulfill the terms of any agreement made with the 
holders of such bonds … and that it will not impair the rights or remedies of such holders." 

Insufficient Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the Phase 1 Project or the 
Construction of Homes within the Phase 1 Assessment Area 

The cost to finish the Phase 1 Project will exceed the net proceeds from the Phase 1 Bonds. There 
can be no assurance, in the event the District does not have sufficient moneys on hand to complete the Phase 
1 Project, that the District will be able to raise, through the issuance of additional bonds or otherwise, the 
moneys necessary to complete the Phase 1 Project. Further, the Indenture sets forth certain limitations on 
the issuance of additional bonds. See "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 
1 BONDS – Additional Bonds" for more information.  

Although the Developer will agree to fund or cause to be funded the completion of the Phase 1 
Project regardless of the insufficiency of proceeds from the Phase 1 Bonds and will enter into a completion 
agreement with the District as evidence thereof, there can be no assurance that the Developer will have 
sufficient resources to do so. Such obligation of the Developer is an unsecured obligation. See "THE 
DEVELOPER" herein for more information. 



29 

Further, there is a possibility that, even if the Phase 1 Assessment Area is developed, homebuilders 
may not close on all or any of the lots therein, and such failure to close could negatively impact the 
construction of homes in the Phase 1 Assessment Area. Current and future builder contracts may be 
terminated by the homebuilders upon the occurrence or failure to occur of the conditions set forth therein. 
See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Builder Contract" herein for more information about the existing builder 
contract[s]. 

COVID-19 and Related Matters 

In addition to the general economic conditions discussed above, the timely and successful 
completion of the Development, the purchase of lots therein by homebuilders and the construction and sale 
to end users of residential units may be adversely impacted by the continued spread of the novel strain of 
coronavirus called COVID-19 or by other highly contagious or epidemic or pandemic diseases. The United 
States, the State and the County have all imposed certain health and public safety restrictions in response 
to COVID-19. The District cannot predict the duration of these restrictions or whether additional or new 
actions may be taken by government authorities including the State and/or the County, to contain or 
otherwise address the impact of the COVID-19 or similar outbreak.  

To date, the outbreak has resulted in severe impacts on global financial markets, unemployment 
levels and commerce generally. The District and the Developer cannot predict the duration of the current 
COVID-19 outbreak, and the ultimate impact the COVID-19 outbreak may have on the Development is 
unknown. It is possible that delays in lot purchases by the Builders, construction delays, delays in the receipt 
of permits or other government approvals, supply chain delays, delays in sales to end users or other delays 
could occur, or continue to occur, as applicable, as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak or other highly 
contagious or epidemic or pandemic diseases that adversely impact the Development. See also 
"BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Economic Conditions and Changes in Development Plans" and "Insufficient 
Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the Phase 1 Project or the Construction of Homes 
within the Phase 1 Assessment Area" herein. 

Cybersecurity 

The District relies on a technological environment to conduct its operations. The District, its agents 
and other third parties the District does business with or otherwise relies upon are subject to cyber threats 
including, but not limited to, hacking, viruses, malware and other attacks on computer and other sensitive 
digital networks and systems. Entities or individuals may attempt to gain unauthorized access to such 
parties' digital systems for the purposes of misappropriating assets or information or causing operational 
disruption and damage. No assurances can be given that any such attack(s) will not materially impact the 
operations or finances of the District, which could impact the timely payment of debt service on the Phase 
1 Bonds. 

Prepayment and Redemption Risk 

In addition to being subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemptions, the Phase 1 Bonds 
are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption as a result of prepayments of the Phase 1 Assessments 
by the Developer or subsequent owners of the property within Phase 1. Any such redemptions of the Phase 
1 Bonds would be at the principal amount of such Phase 1 Bonds being redeemed plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption. In such event, owners of the Phase 1 Bonds may not realize their anticipated rate of 
return on the Phase 1 Bonds and owners of any bonds sold at a premium may receive less than the price 
they paid for the Phase 1 Bonds. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – Redemption 
Provisions" and "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE PHASE 1 BONDS – 
Prepayment of Phase 1 Assessments" herein for more information. 



30 

Payment of Phase 1 Assessments after Bank Foreclosure 

In the event a bank forecloses on property because of a default on a mortgage in favor of such bank 
on any of the assessable lands within the District, and then the bank itself fails, the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"), as receiver, will then become the fee owner of such property. In such 
event, the FDIC will not, pursuant to its own rules and regulations, likely be liable to pay the Phase 1 
Assessments levied on such property. In addition, the District would require the consent of the FDIC prior 
to commencing a foreclosure action.  

 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]  



31 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

 
Source of Funds 
 

Phase 1 Bonds 

 Par Amount  $_________ 
(Original Issue Discount) _________ 

  
 Total Sources $_________ 
 
 

 

Use of Funds 
 

 

 Deposit to Phase 1 Acquisition and Construction Account $_________ 
 Deposit to Phase 1 Capitalized Interest Account(1) _________ 
 Deposit to Phase 1 Reserve Account _________ 
 Costs of Issuance, including Underwriter's Discount(2) _________ 
   
 Total Uses $_________ 

___________________ 
(1) Capitalized interest through ______ 1, 20__. 
(2) Costs of issuance includes, without limitation, legal fees and other costs associated with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds.  

 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 
 

 



32 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

The following table sets forth the scheduled debt service on the Phase 1 Bonds: 

Year Ended 
November 1 

 Total  
Debt Service Principal Interest 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Total    
 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

 
 
  



33 

THE DISTRICT 

General Information 

The District was established by Rule 42GGG-1, Florida Administrative Code adopted by the 
Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission (the "Commission") effective March 7, 2007, under the 
provisions of the Act. The District is located within unincorporated St. Johns County and its boundaries 
include approximately 1,282 gross acres of land (the "District Lands").* The District Lands are being 
developed as part of an approximately 1,356-acre master-planned residential community known as 
"TrailMark." See "THE DEVELOPMENT" herein for more information.  

Legal Powers and Authority 

The District is an independent unit of local government created pursuant to, and established in 
accordance with, the Act. The Act was enacted in 1980 to provide a uniform method for the establishment 
of independent districts to manage and finance basic community development services, including capital 
infrastructure required for community developments throughout the State of Florida. The Act provides legal 
authority for community development districts (such as the District) to finance the acquisition, construction, 
operation and maintenance of the major infrastructure for community development pursuant to its general 
law charter. The District is classified as an independent district under Chapter 189, Florida Statutes. 

Among other provisions, the Act gives the District's Board of Supervisors the authority to, among 
other things, (a) plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, equip, operate and 
maintain systems and facilities for, among other things: (i) water management and control for lands within 
the District and to connect any of such facilities with roads and bridges; (ii) water supply, sewer and waste-
water management, reclamation and reuse systems or any combination thereof and to construct and operate 
connecting intercept or outlet sewers and sewer mains and pipes and water mains, conduits, or pipelines in, 
along, and under any street, alley, highway, or other public place or ways, and to dispose of any effluent, 
residue, or other byproducts of such system or sewer system; (iii) District roads equal to or exceeding the 
specifications of the county in which such District roads are located and street lights, landscaping, 
hardscaping and undergrounding of electric utility lines; and (iv) with the consent of the local general-
purpose government within the jurisdiction of which the power is to be exercised, parks and facilities for 
indoor and outdoor recreational uses and security; (b) borrow money and issue bonds of the District; (c) 
impose and foreclose special assessments liens as provided in the Act; and (d) exercise all other powers, 
necessary, convenient, incidental or proper in connection with any of the powers or duties of the District 
stated in the Act. 

The Act does not empower the District to adopt and enforce any land use plans or zoning ordinances 
and the Act does not empower the District to grant building permits; these functions are to be performed 
by general purpose local governments having jurisdiction over the lands within the District. 

The Act exempts all property owned by the District from levy and sale by virtue of an execution 
and from judgment liens, but does not limit the right of any owner of lands of the District to pursue any 
remedy for enforcement of any lien or pledge of the District in connection with its bonds, including the 
Phase 1 Bonds. 

 
*  The District has filed a petition to amend the District boundaries to include an approximately 6.8-acre parcel 

located adjacent to the District ("Additional Parcel"). The Additional Parcel is planned to contain 24 single-family 
lots and would be located within Phase 1 of Assessment Area 3 of the District. See "THE DEVELOPMENT" 
herein for more information. 



34 

Board of Supervisors 
The Act provides that a five-member Board of Supervisors (the "Board") serves as the governing 

body of the District. Members of the Board (the "Supervisors") must be residents of the State and citizens 
of the United States. Initially, the Supervisors were appointed in the Rule establishing the District. Within 
90 days after formation of the District, an election was held pursuant to which new Supervisors were elected 
on an at-large basis by the owners of the property within the District. Ownership of land within the District 
entitles the owner to one vote per acre (with fractions thereof rounded upward to the nearest whole number). 
A Supervisor serves until expiration of his or her term and then until his or her successor is chosen and 
qualified. If, during a term of office, a vacancy occurs, the remaining Supervisors may fill the vacancy by 
an appointment of an interim Supervisor for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

The landowners in the District elect two Supervisors to four-year terms and three Supervisors to 
two-year terms at bi-annual elections. Thereafter, the elections will take place every two years on a date in 
November established by the Board. Upon the later of six years after the initial appointment of Supervisors 
and the year when the District next attains at least 250 qualified electors, two Supervisors whose terms are 
expiring will be elected by qualified electors of the District and one will be elected by the landowners. 
Thereafter, as described in more detail below, all Supervisors will be elected by qualified electors. A 
qualified elector is a registered voter in the County where the District is located who is at least eighteen 
years of age, a resident of the District and the State and a citizen of the United States. At the election where 
Supervisors are first elected by qualified electors, two Supervisors must be qualified electors and be elected 
by qualified electors, each elected to four-year terms. The seat of the remaining Supervisor whose term is 
expiring at such election shall be filled by a Supervisor who is elected by the landowners for a four-year 
term and who is not required to be a qualified elector. Thereafter, as terms expire, all Supervisors must be 
qualified electors and must be elected by qualified electors to serve staggered four-year terms. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time the Board proposes to exercise its ad valorem taxing 
power, prior to the exercise of such power, it shall call an election at which all Supervisors shall be qualified 
electors and shall be elected by qualified electors in the District. Elections subsequent to such decision shall 
be held in a manner such that the Supervisors will serve four-year terms with staggered expiration dates in 
the manner set forth in the Act.  

The Act provides that it shall not be an impermissible conflict of interest under Florida law 
governing public officials for a Supervisor to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a landowner or of 
any entity affiliated with a landowner. 

The current members of the Board and the expiration of the term of each member are set forth 
below:  

Name Title Term Expires 

Gregg F. Kern* Chairman November 2022 
Michael Taylor* Vice Chair November 2022 
Rose Bock Assistant Secretary November 2020 
Mike Veazey Assistant Secretary November 2020 
Blake Weatherly*/** Assistant Secretary November 2020 
   

*  Employee of an affiliate of the Developer. 
** Appointed by Board to fill a vacancy. 

 
A majority of the members of the Board constitutes a quorum for the purposes of conducting its 

business and exercising its powers and for all other purposes. Action taken by the District shall be upon a 



35 

vote of a majority of the members present unless general law or a rule of the District requires a greater 
number. All meetings of the Board are open to the public under Florida's open meeting or "Sunshine" law. 

The District Manager and Other Consultants 

The chief administrative official of the District is the District Manager (as hereinafter defined). The 
Act provides that a district manager has charge and supervision of the works of the District and is 
responsible for preserving and maintaining any improvement or facility constructed or erected pursuant to 
the provisions of the Act, for maintaining and operating the equipment owned by the District, and for 
performing such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.  

The District has retained Governmental Management Services, LLC, St. Augustine, Florida, to 
serve as its district manager ("District Manager"). The District Manager's office is located at 475 West 
Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092. 

The Act further authorizes the Board to hire such employees and agents as it deems necessary. 
Thus, the District has employed the services of Akerman LLP, Jacksonville, Florida, as Bond Counsel; 
England Thims & Miller, Jacksonville, Florida, as District Engineer; and Hopping Green & Sams, P.A., 
Tallahassee, Florida, as District Counsel. The Board has also retained the District Manager to serve as 
Methodology Consultant and prepare the Assessment Methodology and to serve as Dissemination Agent 
for the Phase 1 Bonds.  

Outstanding Indebtedness and Prior [and Existing] Bond Defaults 

The District previously issued its $47,820,000 Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the "Original 2007 Bonds") to fund the 2007 Project 
determined to be necessary to partially support the Development. Beginning in May 2009, the Original 
Developer (as defined herein), which was then owner of all of the District Lands, failed to pay the 2007 
Assessments securing the Original 2007 Bonds and did not pay any assessments thereafter. As a result 
thereof, the District defaulted under its obligation to pay principal and interest on the Original 2007 Bonds 
and remains in default.  

In July 2013, the Developer and its affiliates acquired the Original 2007 Bonds and the land subject 
to the 2007 Assessments securing the Original 2007 Bonds. On November 20, 2014, at the request of the 
Developer and with the consent of 100% of the beneficial owners of the Original 2007 Bonds, the District 
took the necessary actions under the Act to bifurcate the outstanding Original 2007 Bonds, then outstanding 
in the aggregate principal amount of $45,840,000, into the "2014A Bonds" in the aggregate principal 
amount of $3,140,000 and the "2007 Bonds" in the aggregate principal amount of $42,700,000. As part of 
the bifurcation, the District created two (2) separate and distinct assessment areas within the District to 
coincide with the Developer's current plan of development for the Development. The 2014A Bonds were 
secured by the 2014A Assessments levied against the lands in Assessment Area 1 of the District, and the 
2007 Bonds were secured by the 2007 Assessments levied against the remaining lands in the District.  

In April 2015, the District issued its Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 
(the "2015 Bonds") to currently refund the 2014A Bonds. The 2015 Bonds are secured by the 2015 
Assessments levied against the lands in Assessment Area 1. As of October 14, 2020, the 2015 Bonds are 
outstanding in the amount of $2,505,000.  

In April 2016, the District issued its (i) $7,315,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016A (the "2016A Bonds"), secured by the 2016A Assessments which have been allocated to 305 platted 
lots within Phase 1 of Assessment Area 2, and its (ii) $6,720,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 



36 

Series 2016B (the "2016B Bonds" and, together with the 2016A Bonds, the "2016 Bonds"), secured by the 
2016B Assessments levied against all of the lands in Assessment Area 2. In connection with the issuance 
of the 2016 Bonds, the holders of the 2007 Bonds tendered as a prepayment a portion of the 2007 Bonds in 
the amount of $24,520,000, corresponding to the 2007 Assessments previously levied against the lands in 
Assessment Area 2. As of October 14, 2020, the 2016A Bonds and the 2016B Bonds are outstanding in the 
amount of $6,155,000 and $2,360,000, respectively.  

In December 2017, the District issued its (i) $10,620,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the "2017A Bonds"), and its (ii) $3,980,000 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the "2017B Bonds" and, 
together with the 2017A Bonds, the "2017 Bonds"), which are secured by the 2017A Assessments and the 
2017B Assessments, respectively, levied against the lands within Phase 2 of Assessment Area 2. In 
connection with the issuance of the 2017 Bonds, the District redeemed a portion of the 2016B Bonds 
secured by the 2016B Assessments levied on Phase 2 of Assessment Area 2, which are planned for 401 
lots. As of October 14, 2020, the 2017A Bonds and the 2017B Bonds are outstanding in the amount of 
$10,450,000 and $1,070,000, respectively. 

In June 2020, the District issued its $7,020,000 Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) (the "Phase 3A Bonds"), which are secured by the 
Phase 3A Assessments, levied against the lands within Phase 3A of Assessment Area 2. In connection with 
the issuance of the Phase 3A Bonds, the District redeemed a portion of the 2016B Bonds secured by the 
2016B Assessments levied on Phase 3A of Assessment Area 2. As of October 14, 2020 the Phase 3A Bonds 
are outstanding in full. 

[UPDATE: The 2007 Bonds are outstanding in the principal amount of $650,000 as of October 14, 
2020 and are currently secured by the 2007 Assessments levied on the lands in Assessment Area 3; however, 
the District anticipates adopting a resolution releasing the lien securing the 2007 Bonds at its June 18, 2020 
meeting. The 2007 Bonds remain in default.] 

The lands subject to the Assessments that secure [the remaining 2007 Bonds,] the 2015 Bonds, the 
2016 Bonds, the 2017 Bonds and the Phase 3A Bonds (collectively, the "Prior Bonds") will therefore be 
separate and distinct from the lands within the Phase 1 Assessment Area, which will be subject only to the 
Phase 1 Assessments securing the Phase 1 Bonds. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Assessment Areas" for 
more information regarding the Assessment Areas. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]  



37 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND THE PHASE 1 PROJECT 

Capital Improvement Plan 

In 2007, the District adopted that certain Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan dated December 
1, 2006 (the "Original Improvement Plan"), and that certain Supplemental Engineer's Report for the Series 
2007 Capital Improvement dated May 25, 2007 (the "2007 Engineer's Report"), which described the portion 
of the Original Improvement Plan to be funded with the first issuance of District capital improvement bonds 
(the "Original 2007 Project"). The Original Improvement Plan included the construction or acquisition of 
(i) certain water utility infrastructure, (ii) transportation improvements including a new loop road within 
the District ("Loop Road"), (iii) landscaping, entry features and a guard house, and (iv) other neighborhood 
road improvements, street lighting, stormwater management systems, sanitary sewer systems (including lift 
stations and force mains), and a water distribution system to serve the District Lands. The District issued 
its Original 2007 Bonds in the aggregate original principal amount of $47,820,000 to fund the Original 
2007 Project. The District spent the majority of the Original 2007 Bonds proceeds on the Original 2007 
Project. 

On November 19, 2014, the District adopted that certain Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Supplemental Engineer's Report for 2015 Capital Improvements (the "2015 Engineer's Report"), 
setting forth the portions of the Original 2007 Project which had been completed to date, adding certain 
recreation improvements to the Original 2007 Project and describing the status of the permits for the 
improvements yet to be completed (collectively, the "Capital Improvement Plan").  

On March 16, 2016, the District adopted its Six Mile Creek CDD Supplemental Engineer's Report 
for Series 2016 Capital Improvements (the "2016 Engineer's Report"), describing the scope and estimated 
costs of the portion of the Capital Improvement Plan to be financed in part with the proceeds of the 2016 
Bonds (the "2016 Project").  

On October 27, 2017, the District adopted its Six Mile Creek CDD Supplemental Engineer's Report 
for Series 2017 Capital Improvements (the "2017 Engineer's Report"), describing the scope and estimated 
costs of the portion of the Capital Improvement Plan to be financed in part with the proceeds of the 2017 
Bonds (the "2017 Project").  

On June 2, 2020, the District adopted its Six Mile Creek CDD Supplemental Engineer's Report for 
Series 2020 Capital Improvements (the "Phase 3A Engineer's Report"), describing the scope and estimated 
costs of the portion of the Capital Improvement Plan to be financed in part with the proceeds of the Phase 
3A Bonds (the "Phase 3A Project"). 

The Supplemental Engineer's Report for [Series 2020] Capital Improvements, dated October 8, 
2020 (the "Phase 1 Engineer's Report") describes the scope and estimated costs of the portion of the Capital 
Improvement Plan that will be financed in part with the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds. See "– The Phase 
1 Project" herein. 

Assessment Areas 

The District has created separate Assessment Areas to coincide with the Developer's plan of 
development and to impose separate special assessment liens on such lands. Assessment Area 1, which is 
subject to the levy of the 2015 Assessments securing the 2015 Bonds, consists of approximately 152 acres 
and has been developed as 152 residential lots, all of which have been developed and platted. 



38 

Assessment Area 2, which consists of approximately 543 acres and is planned for approximately 
1,260 residential lots, is being developed in phases. Phase 1, which is subject to the levy of the 2016A 
Assessments and the 2016B Assessments, has been developed and platted and contains 305 residential lots. 
Phase 2, which is subject to the levy of the 2017A Assessments and the 2017B Assessments, is planned for 
401 lots, of which [331] have been developed and platted and [70] are permitted and not yet developed. 
Phase 3A, which is subject to the levy of the Phase 3A Assessments, is planned for which is planned for 
181 lots, of which [___] have been developed and platted and [__] are permitted and not yet developed.   
[Phases 3B, 3C and 3D will remain subject to the levy of the 2016B Assessments and are planned for 
development in the future.] 

Assessment Area 3, which encompasses the District Lands located outside of Assessment Area 1 
and Assessment Area 2 (also referred to as the "2007 Assessment Area"), consists of [approximately 550] 
acres and is planned for a total of approximately [747] lots. See "THE DEVELOPMENT" herein for more 
information. The Phase 1 Bonds will finance a portion of the infrastructure within Phase 1 of Assessment 
Area 3.* Other phases of Assessment Area 3 will be developed at a future time.  

The Phase 1 Project 

The "Phase 1 Project" consists of certain neighborhood infrastructure associated with the 
development of Phase 1 of Assessment Area 3, which is planned for [195] single-family lots.† The total 
cost of the Phase 1 Project is estimated at $10,636,998. The 2020 Engineer's Report sets forth the costs of 
the Phase 1 Project as follows: 

Improvement Description Estimated Cost 
  
Master Infrastructure (Assessment Area 3 - Phase 1) 
 Transportation (Loop Road) $ 1,054,272 
 Common Area Landscape/Hardscape 1,205,000 
 Traffic Signal  350,000 

Neighborhood Infrastructure (Assessment Area 3 - Phase 1) 
 Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains    1,297,494 
 Stormwater Management 902,494 
 Neighborhood Roadways 4,327,494 
 Street Lighting 197,750 
 Water Distribution System 652,494 
 Common Area Landscape/Hardscape 650,000 

Assessment Area 3 - Phase 1 Total: $10,636,998 
 

The net proceeds from the Phase 1 Bonds available to finance the Phase 1 Project costs are expected 
to be approximately $4.7 million.‡ See "THE DEVELOPMENT" for more information regarding the 
development work performed and the costs spent to date in connection with the Phase 1 Project. The 
Developer will enter into a completion agreement at the closing on the Phase 1 Bonds whereby the 

 
*  In addition to the land currently within Phase 1 of Assessment Area 3, the District has filed a petition to amend the 

District boundaries to include an approximately 6.8-acre parcel located adjacent to the District ("Additional Parcel"). 
The Additional Parcel is planned to contain 24 single-family lots located within Phase 1 of Assessment Area 3.  

†  Assumes that the District's boundaries are amended to include the Additional Parcel and its planned 24 lots. 

‡  Preliminary, subject to change. See "SECURITY FOR AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE 2020 BONDS – 
Acquisition and Construction Accounts – Phase 1 Bonds" herein for a discussion of certain development approval 
conditions that must be met prior to the disbursal of proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds. 



39 

Developer will agree to complete the Phase 1 Project not funded with proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds. See 
"BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Insufficient Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the Phase 
1Project or the Construction of Homes within the Phase 1 Assessment Area" and "THE DEVELOPMENT 
– Developer Agreements" herein. 

Land development associated with Phase 1 is scheduled to commence in the third quarter of 2020 
and is expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2021. See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Development 
Plan and Status" herein for more information. 

The District Engineer has indicated that all permits necessary to construct the Phase 1 Project have 
either been obtained or are expected to be obtained in the ordinary course. In addition to the 2020 Engineer's 
Report, please refer to "THE DEVELOPMENT – Development Approvals" herein for a more detailed 
description of the entitlement and permitting status of the Development. 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS 

The Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2020 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated October 8, 2020 (the "Assessment 
Methodology"), which supplements the Special Assessment Master Methodology Report dated March 30, 
2007, allocates the Phase 1 Assessments to the lands within the Phase 1 Assessment Area. The Assessment 
Methodology has been prepared by Governmental Management Services, LLC, St. Augustine, Florida (the 
"Methodology Consultant"). See "EXPERTS" herein for more information. The Assessment Methodology 
is included herein as APPENDIX D. Once the final terms of the Phase 1 Bonds are determined, the 
Assessment Methodology will be amended to reflect such final terms. Once levied and imposed, and subject 
to further allocation in accordance with the Assessment Methodology, the Phase 1 Assessments are first 
liens on the District Lands against which they are assessed until paid or barred by operation of law, co-
equal with one another and with other taxes and assessments levied by the District and other units of 
government. See "ENFORCEMENT OF ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS" herein.  

The Phase 1 Bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge of the Phase 1 Pledged Revenues, 
which consist primarily of the revenues received by the District from the Phase 1 Assessments. The District 
will initially impose the Phase 1 Assessments across all of the Phase 1 Assessment Area, which currently 
consist of approximately 89.62 gross undeveloped acres. As the Phase 1 Assessment Area is platted, the 
Phase 1 Assessments will be assigned on a first-platted first-assessed basis to all 171 single-family lots 
planned for the Phase 1 Assessment Area. In each case, the debt will be transferred from the acres to platted 
lots at the time parcels are platted or otherwise subdivided into platted units, in accordance with the 
Assessment Methodology. See "APPENDIX D: ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY" for more 
information, and see "THE DEVELOPMENT – Assessment Areas" for a map of the District depicting 
Assessment Area 3, including Phase 1.  

In addition to the land currently within the Phase 1 Assessment Area, the District has filed a petition 
to amend the District boundaries to include an approximately 6.8-acre parcel located adjacent to the District 
("Additional Parcel"). The Additional Parcel is planned to contain 24 single-family lots. Once the 
Additional Parcel is annexed into the District, it is expected that the District would amend the Assessment 
Proceedings to include the Additional Parcel within the Phase 1 Assessment Area and allocate a portion 
Phase 1 Assessments to the Additional Parcel, which would result in a decrease in the Phase 1 Assessment 
levels assigned to the land currently within the Phase 1 Assessment Area.  

The tables below set forth the estimated Phase 1 Assessments that, upon platting and absorption, 
will be levied and allocated to platted units in Phase 1 to pay debt service on the Phase 1 Bonds, and the 
par per unit for the Phase 1 Bonds, with the first table reflecting the Phase 1 Assessment levels without the 



40 

Additional Parcel and the second table reflecting the Phase 1 Assessment levels with the addition of the 
Additional Parcel. 

Without Additional Parcel 
Product 

Type 
# of Units 
Planned 

Phase 1 Total 
Par Per Unit* 

Annual Phase 1 
Assessments Per Unit* 

SF 43'  52 $26,451 $1,627 
SF 53'  74 $32,591 $2,004 
SF 63'  45 $39,676 $2,441 
Total 171   

___________________________ 
* Preliminary, subject to change. Annual Phase 1 Assessment levels shown assume collection via the Uniform Method and 

include estimated County collection costs and statutory early payment discounts. If Phase 1 Assessments are not allocated 
to the Additional Parcel, the Developer may prepay a portion of the Phase 1 Assessments to reduce assessment levels; 
however, the Developer is under no obligation to make such a prepayment and there can be no assurance that the 
Developer will elect to do so or what the amount of such prepayment would be. 

With Additional Parcel 
Product 

Type 
# of Units 
Planned 

Phase 1 Total 
Par Per Unit* 

Annual Phase 1 
Assessments Per Unit* 

SF 43' 76 $26,024 $1,460 
SF 53' 74 $29,069 $1,798 
SF 63' 45 $35,597 $2,189 
Total 195   

___________________________ 
* Preliminary, subject to change. Annual Phase 1 Assessment levels shown assume collection via the Uniform Method and 

include estimated County collection costs and statutory early payment discounts.  
 

The District currently levies assessments to cover its operation and administrative costs in the 
amount of approximately $[840] per single-family unit annually, but such amounts are subject to change. 
The land within the District has been and will continue to be subject to taxes and assessments imposed by 
taxing authorities other than the District. These taxes would be payable in addition to the Phase 1 
Assessments and any other assessments levied by the District. In addition, exclusive of voter-approved 
millages levied for general obligation bonds, as to which no limit applies, the County and the School Board 
of St. Johns County each levy ad valorem taxes upon the land in the District. The District has no control 
over the level of ad valorem taxes and/or special assessments levied by other taxing authorities. It is possible 
that in future years taxes levied by these other entities could be substantially higher than in the current year. 
See "THE DEVELOPMENT – Taxes, Fees and Assessments" for more information.  

For a map depicting the location of Assessment Area 3, including Phase 1, within the District, see 
"THE DEVELOPMENT – Assessment Areas" below. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

  



41 

The information appearing below under the captions "THE DEVELOPMENT" and "THE 
DEVELOPER" has been furnished by the Developer for inclusion in this Limited Offering Memorandum 
and, although believed to be reliable, such information has not been independently verified by Bond 
Counsel, the District or its counsel, or the Underwriter or its counsel, and no persons other than the 
Developer make any representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of such information 
supplied by them. The following information is provided by the Developer as a means for the prospective 
bondholders to understand the anticipated development plan and risks associated with the Development. 
The Developer is not guaranteeing payment of the Phase 1 Bonds or the Phase 1 Assessments. 

THE DEVELOPMENT 

General 

The TrailMark development ("Development") is an approximately 1,356-acre master planned 
residential community, currently anticipated to include 1,605 single-family and 554 active adult/age-
restricted units, together with associated recreational amenities and parks. The majority of the 
Development, consisting of approximately 1,282 acres, is within the District boundaries. The Development 
is located in an unincorporated area of the County, with its main entrance on TrailMark Drive at Pacetti 
Road (also known as County Road 13A), south of State Road 16. 

The Development is located in an area that provides easy access to schools, amenities and 
employment centers. Elementary and middle schools which have received grades of A from the State are 
located within approximately three miles of the Development. A commercial center, also located 
approximately three miles from the Development, includes a large grocery store, a free-standing pharmacy, 
restaurants and other related services. Historic St. Augustine, located approximately 14 miles from the 
Development, offers many cultural and entertainment options. In addition, the beaches of Ponte Vedra 
Beach and St. Augustine can be reached within a 30-minute drive. Several major employment centers are 
also located within a convenient 30-minute drive from the Development.  

The Development includes an on-site amenity center, trail system and canoe and kayak launch. Six 
Mile Creek, accessible from the Development by canoe or kayak, leads to the St. Johns River, with a local, 
iconic restaurant on the riverbank along the way.  

The Development is part of the Saint Johns Development of Regional Impact ("DRI"), which also 
encompasses World Golf Village. World Golf Village, located in the northwest quadrant of Interstate 95 
and International Golf Parkway, has as its centerpiece the World Golf Hall of Fame, together with 36 holes 
of golf, 1,200 hotel rooms, and five million square feet of office and commercial development. Among the 
improvements are a 300-room Renaissance Resort Hotel and the 80,000 square foot St. Johns County 
Convention Center. Also within the DRI is the King and the Bear golf community, providing additional 
golfing opportunities. 

Within the Development, as of October 5, 2020, 788 lots have been developed, 704 lots have been 
delivered to builders and 361 homes have been sold to homebuyers at an average sales price of [$320,000]. 
Builders in the Development include Dream Finders, Mastercraft, Richmond American, D.R. Horton, 
David Weekley, Landon, Providence Homes and Lennar. The Development achieved annual sales of 78 
homes in 2018, 159 homes in 2019 and [__] homes year to date as of [__________, 2020]. The 
Development achieved monthly sales of [UPDATE: 10 homes in March 2020, 14 homes in April 2020 and 
31 homes in May 2020].   

The Phase 1 Bonds will be secured by the Phase 1 Assessments levied against the land designated 
as Phase 1 of Assessment Area 3 within the District, which consists of approximately 89.62 acres and is 



42 

planned to contain 171 residential units (the "Phase 1 Assessment Area"). In addition, the District has filed 
a petition to amend the District boundaries to include the approximately 6.8-acre Additional Parcel, which 
is planned to contain 24 single-family lots and which, if the District's boundaries are amended, would be 
located within the Phase 1 Assessment Area. See "ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY AND THE 
ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS" herein. 

Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Developer"), 
is the developer and owner of the Phase 1 Lands. See "THE DEVELOPER" herein for more information. 
[Builder contracts to come.] 

Set forth below are aerial photographs showing the Development, including [the Phase 1 
Assessment Area and] the existing amenity area. 

[Insert photo of Phase 1 Assessment Area?]  
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]  



43 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 



44 

History of TrailMark 

The land constituting the Development was acquired in 2005 by Six Mile Creek Ventures, LLC 
(the "Original Developer"), for a purchase price of $62,500,000. The Original Developer is not affiliated 
with the Developer. Land development began in 2007 with the issuance of the Original 2007 Bonds. 
Substantial master infrastructure improvements were made as contemplated by the 2007 Engineer's Report 
and as further described in the 2015 Engineer's Report. 

In May 2009, the Original Developer failed to pay the assessments securing the Original 2007 
Bonds, resulting in a default in the payment of the Original 2007 Bonds. See "THE DISTRICT – 
Outstanding Indebtedness and Prior [and Existing] Bond Defaults" for more information. 

In July 2013, the Developer acquired all of the lands within the Development from the Original 
Developer, subject to the District's liens and liens of the County Tax Collector for 2009 through 2013 real 
property taxes. The Original 2007 Bonds were purchased by affiliates of the Developer in multiple 
transactions at various prices beginning in 2012 and ending in 2014. Through a combination of land and 
bond purchases, the Developer's total investment in acquiring the Development is approximately 
$27,000,000.  

In February 2020, the Developer acquired the lands in the Additional Parcel for a purchase price of 
[$185,000]. 

[None of the Developer's lands in the Phase 1 Assessment Area are subject to a mortgage.] 

Assessment Areas 

Three Assessment Areas have been created to facilitate development and financing of the District 
Lands:  

• Assessment Area 1 contains approximately 153 acres and consists of 152 fully developed and 
platted lots. Assessments levied on the lands in Assessment Area 1 secure the 2015 Bonds, 
currently outstanding in the principal amount of $2,505,000.  
 

• Assessment Area 2 contains approximately 545 acres and is being developed in three phases: 
 

o Phase 1 consists of 305 fully developed and platted lots. Assessments levied on the 
lands in Phase 1 of Assessment Area 2 secure the 2016A Bonds, currently outstanding 
in the principal amount of $6,155,000. [In addition, 73 lots in Phase 1 remain subject 
to the 2016B Assessments, which secure the 2016B Bonds, outstanding in the amount 
of $2,360,000.] The 2016B Assessments are also levied on the lands in Phases 3B, 3C 
and 3D of Assessment Area 2.  

o Phase 2 consists of [331] developed and platted lots and [70] permitted undeveloped 
lots, as of [October] 2020. Assessments levied on the lands in Phase 2 of Assessment 
Area 2 secure the 2017A Bonds, currently outstanding in the principal amount of 
$10,450,000. In addition, lots in Phase 2 are subject to the 2017B Assessments, which 
secure the 2017B Bonds, outstanding in the amount of $1,070,000.  

o Phase 3A is planned for 181 active adult lots. Assessments levied on the lands in Phase 
3A secure the Phase 3A Bonds, which are currently outstanding in the principal amount 
of $7,020,000.  



45 

o Phases 3B and 3C of Assessment Area 2 are planned for approximately 373 lots which 
will be developed in the future as part of the active-adult community. Phases 3B and 
3C are subject to the 2016B Assessments securing the 2016B Bonds. 

o Phase 3D of Assessment Area 2 is planned for development in the future. Phase 3D is 
also subject to the 2016B Assessments securing the 2016B Bonds. 

• Assessment Area 3 (also referred to as the 2007 Assessment Area)  contains approximately 550 
acres. Phase 1 is planned for 171 lots. Assessments levied on the lands in the Phase 1 
Assessment Area will secure the Phase 1 Bonds. Additional phases for Assessment Area 3 are 
planned for development in the future. [CONFIRM: The lands in Assessment Area 3 are 
currently subject to the 2007 Assessments securing the 2007 Bonds, which are outstanding in 
the amount of $650,000; however, the District anticipates adopting a resolution releasing the 
lien securing the 2007 Bonds at its June 18, 2020 meeting.] 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

 



46 
 

Set forth below is a map depicting Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 and Assessment Area 3 (including Phase 1). [UPDATE AS 
NEEDED AND TO LABEL ADDITIONAL PARCEL] 

 

LEGEND: 

A88ES811ENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

AIISE8811ENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

ASSESSIIENI' 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

AIISE8811ENT 
AREA3(PHASE 1) 

LJ ASSESSMENT AREA 1 (152.20Ac..) 

LJ ASSESSMENT AREA. 2 (PHASE 1) (112.68 Ac..) 

LJ ASSESSMENT AREA. 2 (PHASE 2) (158..31 Ac..) 

- ASSESSMENT ARl:A 2 (PHASE 3) (272..30 Ac..) 

LJ 2007 ASSESSMENT ARE.A.(550.90Ac..) 

- ASSESSMENT AREA. 3 (PHASE 1) (89.62 Ac..) 

ASSESSMEN T Ml£A 1 ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 1) 
43'Lots (27) 43'l.ot!: (160) 
52"Lols (25) 63'Lol s (63) 
63'Lots (81) 70'Lola (2 1) 
70'Lol• pg) 80'Lot a (61) 

Tocat l.Ctl (152) Total Lots (305) 

ASSESS MENT A.REA2 {'Ptw,e3A) 
Q'Lols (57) 
53'Lots (62) 
63'Lol• (62) 

Tocal LOIS (181) 

ASSESSMENT AA.EA 2 (PHASE 2) 
43' LDU (BD) 
53' Lot9 (216) 
63' Lota (3,t) 
70' Lot• (8) 
80'Lots (74) 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE I) 
43'Lota (76) 
53' Lots (74) 
63'Lots ('5 ) 

TocaJLota (195) 

Total Lots (-101) 

A.SSES$MENT AREA 2 fPHASE 38) ASSESSMEN T AREA 2 (PHA.SE 3C) 
43' l.cU (87} 43'Lots (80) 
53' LW (71) sno1s 162) 
63'Lot• (39) 63' Lota (3:4) 

Total Lots (197) TGUI LOIS (176) 

NT AREA 2 (PHASE 3A) 

ESSIIEHT AREA 2 (PHASE 3C) 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 



47 
 

The chart below summarizes the Assessments levied on and the status of development within 
Assessment Area 1 and Assessment Area 3, as of [____________, 2020], assuming issuance of the Phase 
1 Bonds. More detailed information on each Assessment Area, including builders, is set forth in the 
paragraphs below. 

 

Assessment 
Area 1 

Assessment Area 
2, Phase 1 

Assessment Area 
2, Phase 2 

Assessment Area 
2, Phase 3A 

Assessment 
Area 3, Phase 1 

Assessments 
2015 

Assessments 

2016A & B 

Assessments 

2017A & B 

Assessments 

Phase 3A 

Assessments 

Phase 1 

Assessments 

Lots Planned 152 305 401 181 195(1) 

Lots Developed 152 305 331 -- -- 

Lots Contracted 

with Builders 
152 305 401(2) 181 -- 

Lots Closed with 

Builders 
142 231 331 -- -- 

Homes Contracted 

with Homebuyers 

(not closed) 

3 13 21 -- -- 

Homes Closed with 

Homebuyers 
120 155 86 -- -- 

__________________________________ 
(1) Reflects 171 lots planned for the lands currently within the Phase 1 Assessment Area and assumes inclusion of 

the 24 lots planned for the Additional Parcel which is the subject of the District's pending boundary amendment 

petition. 

(2) Of the 401 lots contracted with Builders, 70 lots are under control by two (2) existing builders via rights of first 

offer (ROFO). 

 
Update on Assessment Area 1 

All 152 lots within Assessment Area 1 are developed and platted. As of October 5, 2020, 142 lots 
have closed with homebuilders and the remaining lots are under contract. As of October 5, 2020, 120 homes 
have closed with end users with an additional 3 under contract. D.R. Horton, Inc. – Jacksonville ("DR 
Horton") and Landon Homes, LLC ("Landon Homes") are the homebuilders for Assessment Area 1. Home 
prices have averaged approximately $350,000. 

Update on Assessment Area 2, Phase 1 

All 305 lots within Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 are developed and platted. There are five builders 
within Phase 1: D.R. Horton, Landon Homes, Weekley Homes, LLC ("Weekley"), Providence Construction 
Company ("Providence") and Mastercraft Builder Group, LLC ("Mastercraft").  

As of [October 5], 2020, D.R. Horton has purchased and closed on [63] lots. The base purchase 
price per lot is $77,000, subject to escalations. As of [October 5], 2020, D.R. Horton has entered into 
contracts with end users for the sale of [58] homes and has closed on all [58] homes. Approximately [58] 
homes have been constructed or are under construction to date. The average sale price per home is 
approximately $341,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020, Landon Homes has purchased and closed on [19] lots. The base purchase 
price per lot is $75,000, subject to escalations. As of [October 5], 2020, Landon Homes has entered into 
contracts with end users for the sale of [9] homes and has closed on [9] homes. Approximately [9] homes 



48 

have been constructed or are under construction to date. The average sale price per home is approximately 
$386,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020, Weekley has purchased and closed on [18] lots. The base purchase price 
per lot is $47,300, subject to escalations. As [October 5], 2020, Weekley has entered into contracts with 
end users for the sale of [15] homes and has closed on [15] homes, all of which have been constructed or 
are under construction. The average sale price per home is approximately $260,000.  

As of [October 5], 2020, Providence has purchased and closed on [56] lots. The base purchase price 
per lot is $47,300, subject to escalations. As of [October 5], 2020, Providence has entered into contracts to 
sell [55] homes to end users, with [55] closings. Approximately [55] homes have been constructed or are 
under construction as of [October 5], 2020. The average sale price per home is approximately $276,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020, Mastercraft has purchased and closed on [25] lots and has [15] additional 
lots under contract with quarterly takedowns of [4] lots per quarter expected. The base purchase price per 
lot is $80,000, subject to escalations. As of [October 5], 2020, Mastercraft has entered into contracts with 
end users for the sales of [20] homes and has closed on [12] homes, with approximately [12] homes having 
been constructed or under construction. The average sale price per home is approximately $480,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020 Dream Finders has purchased and closed on [53] lots and has [33] 
additional lots under contract. The base purchase price per lot is $47,300, subject to escalations. As of 
[October 5], 2020, Dream Finders has entered into contracts to sell [34] homes to end users with [17] 
closings. Approximately [17] homes have been constructed or are under construction as of [October 5], 
2020. The average sale price per home is approximately $284,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020, Drees Homes has entered into a contract to [23] lots. Lot prices start at 
$124,000 for 80' lots, subject to adjustment. The first closing of [10] lots occurred in [August] 2020, with 
the remaining lots to be sold in quarterly takedowns of three lots per quarter.  

Update on Assessment Area 2, Phase 2 

Assessment Area 2, Phase 2 is planned for a total of 401 lots, of which 331 have been developed 
and platted and 70 lots are permitted but not developed. There are three builders within Phase 2: Lennar 
Homes ("Lennar"), Dream Finders Homes ("Dream Finders") and Richmond American Homes ("Richmond 
American").  

As of [October 5], 2020, Lennar has purchased and closed on [120] lots. The base purchase price 
per lot is $54,325, subject to escalations. As of [October 5], 2020, Lennar has entered into contracts with 
end users for the sale of [47] homes and has closed on [36] homes. Approximately [36] homes have been 
constructed or are under construction to date. The average sale price per home is approximately $297,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020, Dream Finders has purchased and closed on [69] lots. The base purchase 
price per lot is $47,000, subject to escalations. As of [October 5], 2020, Dream Finders has entered into 
contracts with end users for the sale of [48] homes and has closed on [29] homes. Approximately [29] 
homes have been constructed or are under construction to date. The average sale price per home is 
approximately $281,000. 

As of [October 5], 2020, Richmond American has purchased and closed on [82] lots and has [48] 
additional lots under contract. The base purchase price per lot is $57,500, subject to escalations. As of 
[October 5], 2020, Richmond American has entered into contracts with end users for the sale of [32] homes 



49 

and has closed [11] homes. Approximately [32] homes have been constructed or are under construction. 
The average sale price per home is expected to be approximately $333,000. 

Update on Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A 

Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A is planned for a total of 181 lots, of which [___] have been developed 
and platted and [__] lots are permitted but not developed. The builder in Phase 3A is Dream Finders Homes 
("Dream Finders"). Dream Finders is scheduled to close on all 181 lots in the first quarter of 2021. 

Development Plan and Status for Phase 1 

The infrastructure associated with Assessment Area 3 is being constructed in phases. Phase 1 of 
Assessment Area 3 consists of certain parcel infrastructure improvements pertaining to 171 single-family 
residential lots. Land development is expected to commence in November 2020 and is expected to be 
completed by the fourth quarter of 2021, [at which time [__]  lots in Phase 1 will delivered to [______]. 
Vertical construction is expected to commence thereafter. The Developer anticipates that homes will be 
sold within Phase 1 to residential end users beginning in the [______] quarter of 20[__], with delivery of 
homes expected to begin by the [_______] quarter of 20[__] and continue at a rate of approximately [70] 
to [90] units per year until buildout. This anticipated absorption rate is based upon estimates and 
assumptions made by the Developer that are inherently uncertain, though considered reasonable by the 
Developer, and are subject to significant business, economic, and competitive uncertainties and 
contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond the control of the 
Developer. As a result, there can be no assurance such absorption rates will occur or be realized in the 
timeframes anticipated. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS ‒ Economic Conditions and Changes in 
Development Plans," "‒Insufficient Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the Phase 1 
Project or the Construction of Homes within the Phase 1 Assessment Area," and "‒COVID-19 Related 
Matters" and "THE DEVELOPMENT – Builder Contract" herein for more information. 

In addition to the current lands within the Phase 1 Assessment Area, the District is currently in the 
process of amending the District boundaries to include the approximately 6.8-acres Additional Parcel. The 
Additional Parcel is planned to contain 24 single-family lots and is expected to be designated as part of the 
Phase 1 Assessment Area. It is expected that the District will amend the Assessment Proceedings to spread 
the lien of the Phase 1 Assessments to include the lands in the Additional Parcel. See "ASSESSMENT 
METHODOLOGY AND THE ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS" herein for more information. 

Development Finance Plan for Phase 1 

The cost of the master infrastructure associated with the Phase 1 Assessment Area, which consists 
of the continuation of the loop road, common area landscaping and hardscaping and the neighborhood 
infrastructure, which consists of roadways, sanitary sewer, lift stations, force mains, stormwater 
management, street lighting, a water distribution system, and common area landscaping and hardscaping, 
is estimated to be $10,636,998.  

Development costs will be funded with the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds in the amount of 
approximately $4.7 million.* Costs not funded from proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds will be paid for by the 
Developer. The Developer will enter into a completion agreement to fund or caused to be funded the 
completion of the Phase 1 Project to the extent that net proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds are not sufficient 
therefor. See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Insufficient Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to 
Complete the Phase 1 Project or the Construction of Homes with the Phase 1 Assessment Area" herein.  



50 

Builder Contract 

The Developer is currently in negotiations with [existing buildings within the Development] for 
the purchase of lots within the Phase 1 Assessment Area. There can be no assurance that the Developer will 
enter into contracts with any or all of these builders or with respect to the terms of such contracts. See 
"BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Economic Conditions and Changes in Development Plans," "‒Insufficient 
Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the Phase 1 Project or the Construction of Homes 
within the Phase 1 Assessment Area" herein. 

None of the builders or other entities listed herein is guaranteeing payment of the Phase 1 Bonds 
or the Phase 1 Assessments. None of the entities listed herein, other than the Developer, has entered into 
any agreements in connection with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

Residential Product Offerings 

The following table reflects the Developer's current expectations for the neighborhood to be 
constructed in the Phase 1 Assessment Area, along with the estimated number of bedrooms and bathrooms, 
estimated square footage, and estimated home prices, all of which are subject to change:  

 
Product Type 

Estimated 
Square Footage 

Estimated 
Lot Prices 

Estimated 
Home Prices 

Single-Family 43' Lots 1,600 – 2,500 $55,000 $240,000 – $300,000 
Single-Family 53' Lots 2,000 – 2,600 $66,000 $260,000 – $350,000 
Single-Family 63' Lots 2,300 – 3,250 $78,000 $290,000 – $380,000 

 
Amenities 

An amenity center has been constructed in the District, which consists of fitness and information 
centers, a lakeside pavilion, swimming pool, multi-purpose courts, playground and play field, along with 
approximately 6,000 square feet of air conditioned space, and an additional approximately 3,750 square 
feet of outdoor under-roof building area (collectively, the "Original Amenity Center"). Additional amenity 
features may be constructed in the future based upon the status of development. Construction of the Original 
Amenity Center has been completed at a cost of approximately $4.34 million. None of the proceeds of the 
Phase 1 Bonds are expected to be used to fund the cost of constructing the Original Amenity Center. The 
Original Amenity Center is owned and operated by the District.  

In addition to the Original Amenity Center, Assessment Area 2 will contain an extensive amenity 
package designed to attract active-adult users. None of the proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds are expected to 
be used to fund the cost of constructing the Active Adult Amenity Center. Upon completion, the Active 
Adult Amenity Center will be owned and operated by the District. 

Development Approvals 

The Development is a portion of the approximately 6,300-acre St. Johns Development of Regional 
Impact ("DRI"), the development order for which was originally approved by the Board of County 
Commissioners of the County in 1991 and was most recently amended and restated in 2011 by Resolution 
No. 2011-335.* The DRI's buildout date is December 19, 2026. The Development is zoned in the County 

 
* [UPDATE? In December 2019, the Developer applied for a comprehensive plan amendment and a companion 

amendment to the DRI (i) to add an approximately 71-acre parcel to the DRI, (ii) to allow the conversion of certain 

uses within the DRI, (iii) to update the buildout date and (iv) to make certain other amendments to the DRI. The 



51 

as part of a Planned Unit Development ("PUD") encompassing approximately 4,329 acres, approved for 
development by Ordinance No. 1991-37, as most recently modified by Ordinance No. 2006-101. By private 
agreement with the master developer of the DRI and the PUD, and subsequent assignment to the Developer, 
TrailMark (often referred to in the DRI and the PUD as the "Six Mile Creek South Parcel") has been 
allocated the right to develop 1,678 single-family and 600 multi-family residential units, which provides 
for the development of Phase 1 to contain [171] lots as described herein. [DISCUSS ADDITIONAL 
PARCEL] 

[PERMIT STATUS TO COME.] The District Engineer will represent at the closing of the Phase 1 
Bonds that all permits that are necessary to complete the development of the Phase 1 Assessment Area have 
been received or are expected to be received in the ordinary course of development. See "APPENDIX C: 
ENGINEER'S REPORT" hereto for a complete list of permits received and pending and see also 
"BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Regulatory and Environmental Risks" herein. 

Utilities 

Potable water and sewer services will be provided by the County. The water and sewer 
infrastructure necessary for development of the District Lands, including Phase 1, will be constructed by 
the District but owned and maintained by the County. As described in the 2020 Engineer's Report, the 
District has entered into a water and sewer connection fee agreement with the County which provides a 
mechanism for reimbursement to the District of certain costs it incurs for the installation of the utility 
facilities. See "APPENDIX C: ENGINEER'S REPORT" for additional information. 

Electric service is being provided to the Development by Florida Power and Light. The Developer 
has entered into a bulk telecommunication marketing agreement with AT&T. TECO People's Gas provides 
natural gas service to the Development. 

Environmental 

A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment was performed on all of the lands within the District by 
Environmental Services, Inc. on February 26, 2015, which assessment revealed no recognized 
environmental conditions. [ADDITIONAL PARCEL TO COME] See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – 
Regulatory and Environmental Risks" herein for more information regarding potential environmental risks. 
See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Regulatory and Environmental Risks" herein for more information 
regarding potential environmental risks. 

Taxes, Fees and Assessments 

The District will initially impose the Phase 1 Assessments across all of the Phase 1 Assessment 
Area, which consists of approximately 89.62 gross acres. As the Phase 1 Lands are platted, the Phase 1 
Assessments will be allocated to platted and developed lots on a "first-platted first-assessed basis" to all 
171 lots planned for the Phase 1 Assessment Area, in accordance with the Assessment Methodology. If the 
Additional Parcel, which consists of approximately 6.8 acres and is planned to contain 24 single-family 
lots, is annexed into the District, it is expected that the District would amend the Assessment Proceedings 
to spread the lien of the Phase 1 Assessments to include the lands in the Additional Parcel, which would 

 
Developer will be applying for a companion PUD amendment, as well. The Developer can make no representations 

as to whether the amendments will be approved; however, the Developer does not expect the amendments, if approved, 

to adversely affect its ability to develop the lands within the Phase 1 Assessment Area as set forth herein.] 



52 

result in a net decrease in the Phase 1 Assessment levels assigned to the lands currently within the Phase 1 
Assessment Area.  

The tables below set forth the estimated Phase 1 Assessments that, upon platting and absorption, 
will be levied and allocated to platted units in the Phase 1 Assessment Area to pay debt service on the Phase 
1 Bonds, and the par per unit for the Phase 1 Bonds, with the first table reflecting the Phase 1 Assessment 
levels without the Additional Parcel and the second table reflecting the Phase 1 Assessment levels with the 
addition of the Additional Parcel. 

Without Additional Parcel 
Product 

Type 
# of Units 
Planned 

Phase 1 Total 
Par Per Unit* 

Annual Phase 1 
Assessments Per Unit* 

SF 43'  52 $26,451 $1,627 
SF 53'  74 $32,591 $2,004 
SF 63'  45 $39,676 $2,441 
Total 171   

___________________________ 
* Preliminary, subject to change. Annual Phase 1 Assessment levels shown assume collection via the Uniform Method and 

include estimated County collection costs and statutory early payment discounts. If Phase 1 Assessments are not allocated 
to the Additional Parcel, the Developer may prepay a portion of the Phase 1 Assessments to reduce assessment levels; 
however, the Developer is under no obligation to make such a prepayment and there can be no assurance that the 
Developer will elect to do so or what the amount of such prepayment would be. 

With Additional Parcel 
Product 

Type 
# of Units 
Planned 

Phase 1 Total 
Par Per Unit* 

Annual Phase 1 
Assessments Per Unit* 

SF 43'  76 $23,732 $1,460 
SF 53'  74 $29,240 $1,798 
SF 63'  45 $35,597 $2,189 
Total 195   

___________________________ 
* Preliminary, subject to change. Annual Phase 1 Assessment levels shown assume collection via the Uniform Method and 

include estimated County collection costs and statutory early payment discounts. 
 

In addition to the above, the District currently levies assessments to cover its operation and 
administrative costs in the amount of approximately $840 per single-family unit annually, but such amounts 
are subject to change. Each homeowner within the District is required to pay annual ad valorem and non-
ad valorem taxes, special district assessments including those of the District, and homeowners association 
assessments. Annual homeowners' association assessments are $75 per lot for calendar year 2020. The land 
within the District has been and is expected to continue to be subject to taxes and assessments imposed by 
taxing authorities other than the District. The County's millage rate for 2019 is 13.9565. These taxes would 
be payable in addition to the Phase 1 Assessments and any other assessments levied by the District. In 
addition, exclusive of voter approved millages levied for general obligation bonds, as to which no limit 
applies, the County and the School District of St. Johns County, Florida may each levy ad valorem taxes 
upon the land in the District. The District has no control over the level of ad valorem taxes and/or special 
assessments levied by other taxing authorities. It is possible that in future years taxes and/or assessments 
levied by these other entities could be substantially higher than in the current year. 

Education 

Children residing in the Development are expected to attend Mill Creek Academy, Pacetti Bay 
Middle School and Allen D Nease Senior High School, which are located approximately 4 miles, 3 miles 



53 

and 15 miles away from the Development, respectively, and which were each by the State in 2019 (the most 
recent year for which grades are available) as A. The St. Johns County School Board may change school 
boundaries from time to time and there is no requirement that students residing in the Development be 
permitted to attend the schools which are closest to the Development.  

Competition 

The Development is expected to compete with projects in the County market generally. The 
Developer believes the following projects will be the most direct competition for the Development: 
RiverTown, Samara Lakes and Murabella. In addition, there are other large-scale, highly-amenitized, 
master-planned communities located along U.S. Highway 1 over 10 miles from the Development to the 
east (such as Nocatee, Palencia and Las Calinas), which benefit from their relative proximity to the beaches. 
There is also a parcel along County Road 210 known as Shearwater that in the early stages of development 
and will likely serve as competition to the Development. This section does not purport to summarize all of 
the existing or planned communities in the area of the Development, but rather provide a description of 
those that the Developer feels pose primary competition to the Development. 

Developer Agreements 

As previously noted, the Developer will enter into a completion agreement that will obligate the 
Developer to complete any portions of the Phase 1 Project not funded with proceeds of the Phase 1 Bonds. 
See "BONDOWNERS' RISKS – Insufficient Resources or Other Factors Causing Failure to Complete the 
Phase 1 Project or the Construction of Homes within the Phase 1 Assessment Area" herein. 

In addition, the Developer will execute and deliver to the District a Collateral Assignment and 
Assumption of Development Rights (the "Collateral Assignment"), pursuant to which the Developer will 
collaterally assign to the District, to the extent assignable and to the extent that they are solely owned or 
controlled by the Developer, development rights relating the Phase 1 Project and the development of the 
Phase 1 Assessment Area. Notwithstanding such Collateral Assignment, in the event the District forecloses 
on the lands subject to the Phase 1 Assessments as a result of the Developer's or subsequent landowners' 
failure to pay such assessments, there is a risk that the District will not have all permits and entitlements 
necessary to complete the Phase 1 Project or the development of the Phase 1 Assessment Area.  

Finally, the Developer will also enter into a True-Up Agreement in connection with its obligations 
to pay true-up payments in the event that debt levels remaining on unplatted or re-platted lands in Phase 1 
increase above the maximum debt levels set forth in the Assessment Methodology. See "APPENDIX D: 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY" herein for additional information regarding the "true-up mechanism."  

SUCH OBLIGATIONS OF THE DEVELOPER ARE UNSECURED OBLIGATIONS, AND THE 
DEVELOPER IS A SPECIAL-PURPOSE ENTITY WHOSE ASSETS CONSIST PRIMARILY OF ITS 
INTERESTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT. SEE "THE DEVELOPER" HEREIN FOR MORE 
INFORMATION REGARDING THE DEVELOPER. 

THE DEVELOPER 

All of the land in the Phase 1 Assessment Area is owned by Six Mile Creek Investment Group, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Developer"). The Developer was formed in 2013 for 
purposes of acquiring the Development. The Developer's members are GreenPointe Ventures, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company ("GreenPointe"), and a series of mutual funds which are part of the 
Marathon Asset Management family of funds ("Marathon"). The Developer's manager is GreenPointe 



54 

Communities, LLC, a Florida limited liability company ("GreenPointe Communities"), an affiliate of 
GreenPointe. 

GreenPointe Communities was founded by Edward E. Burr in 2008 with a charge to create livable 
communities of lasting value that fit the needs of today's homebuyers. Prior to leading GreenPointe 
Communities, Burr founded the LandMar Group, LLC in 1987 and led the company's creation of master-
planned, award-winning communities in Florida and coastal Georgia. Under his leadership, LandMar 
acquired, designed, entitled and developed more than 30 master-planned communities and developments. 
GreenPointe Communities and each of its divisions are led by veterans of land and community 
development, homebuilding, lifestyle and amenities management, equity and debt financing, and 
infrastructure development. The GreenPointe Communities team's collective experience includes raising 
and investing more than $800 million to develop 100,000 acres of land, build 80,000 homesites and 
construct 30,000 homes. GreenPointe Communities and its affiliates currently own twelve (12) Florida 
communities being developed into approximately 10,500 homesites, including multifamily and 
condominium units, and several hundred acres of land entitled for multi-family residential, retail and office 
use. 

Founded in 1998, Marathon is a global credit manager with approximately $12.5 billion of capital 
under management, opportunistically investing in global credit markets. 

Neither GreenPointe nor Marathon has any liability, nor is either guaranteeing any of the 
Developer's obligations incurred in connection with the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

TAX MATTERS 

General 

In the opinion of Akerman LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and 
court decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain covenants and the accuracy of certain 
representations, (1) interest on the Phase 1 Bonds will be excludable from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes, (2) interest on the Phase 1 Bonds will not be an item of tax preference for purposes of the 
federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, (3) interest on the Phase 1 Bonds 
will be taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the federal 
alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations, and (4) the Phase 1 Bonds and the interest thereon 
will not be subject to taxation under the laws of the State, except estate taxes and taxes under Chapter 220, 
Florida Statutes, as amended, on interest, income or profits on debt obligations owned by corporations as 
defined therein. 

The above opinion on federal tax matters with respect to the Phase 1 Bonds will be based on and 
will assume the accuracy of certain representations and certifications of the District and the Developer, and 
compliance with certain covenants of the District to be contained in the transcript of proceedings and that 
are intended to evidence and assure the foregoing, including that the Phase 1 Bonds will be and will remain 
obligations, the interest on which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond 
Counsel will not independently verify the accuracy of those certifications and representations. Bond 
Counsel will express no opinion as to any other tax consequences regarding the Phase 1 Bonds. 

The Code prescribes a number of qualifications and conditions for the interest on state and local 
government obligations to be and to remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, 
some of which require future or continued compliance after issuance of the obligations in order for the 
interest to be and to continue to be so excludable from the date of issuance. Noncompliance with these 
requirements by the District may cause the interest on the Phase 1 Bonds to be included in gross income 



55 

for federal income tax purposes and thus to be subject to federal income tax retroactively to the date of 
issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds. The District has covenanted to take the actions required of it for the interest 
on the Phase 1 Bonds to be and to remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, 
and not to take any actions that would adversely affect that excludability.  

Except as described above, Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding the federal income tax 
consequences resulting from the ownership of, receipt of interest on, or disposition of the Phase 1 Bonds. 
Prospective purchasers of the Phase 1 Bonds should be aware that the ownership of the Phase 1 Bonds may 
result in other collateral federal tax consequences, including, without limitation, (i) the denial of a deduction 
for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Phase 1 Bonds or, in the case of 
a financial institution, that portion of an owner's interest expense allocable to interest on the Phase 1 Bonds; 
(ii) the reduction of the loss reserve deduction for property and casualty insurance companies by a 
percentage of certain items, including interest on the Phase 1 Bonds; (iii) the inclusion of interest on the 
Phase 1 Bonds in the earnings of certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States for 
purposes of a branch profits tax; (iv) the inclusion of interest on the Phase 1 Bonds in the passive income 
subject to federal income taxation of certain Subchapter S corporations with Subchapter C earnings and 
profits at the close of the taxable year; and (v) the inclusion of interest on the Phase 1 Bonds in the 
determination of the taxability of certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits to certain 
recipients of such benefits. The nature and extent of the other tax consequences described above will depend 
on the particular tax status and situation of each owner of the Phase 1 Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the 
Phase 1 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the impact of these other tax consequences. 

Bond Counsel's opinions will be based on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions 
are further based on factual representations made to Bond Counsel as of the date thereof. Bond Counsel 
assumes no duty to update or supplement its respective opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that 
may thereafter come to Bond Counsel's attention, or to reflect any changes in law that may thereafter occur 
or become effective. Moreover, the opinions of Bond Counsel are not guarantees of a particular result, and 
are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service or the courts; rather, such opinions represent Bond 
Counsel's professional judgment based on its review of existing law, and in reliance on the representations 
and covenants that it deems relevant to such opinions. 

From time to time, there are legislative proposals suggested, debated, introduced or pending in 
Congress that, if enacted into law, could alter or amend one or more of the federal tax matters described 
above including, without limitation, the excludability from gross income of interest on the Phase 1 Bonds, 
adversely affect the market price or marketability of the Phase 1 Bonds, or otherwise prevent the holders 
from realizing the full current benefit of the status of the interest thereon. It cannot be predicted whether or 
in what form any such proposal may be enacted, or whether, if enacted, any such proposal would apply to 
the Phase 1 Bonds. If enacted into law, such legislative proposals could affect the market price or 
marketability of the Phase 1 Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Phase 1 Bonds should consult their tax 
advisors as to the impact of any proposed or pending legislation. 

Purchasers of the Phase 1 Bonds at other than their original issuance at the respective prices 
indicated on the inside cover of this Limited Offering Memorandum should consult their own tax advisors 
regarding other tax considerations such as the consequences of market discount. 

[Original Issue Discount] 

[The Phase 1 Bonds (for purposes of this paragraph are referred to as the "Discount Bonds"), were 
offered and sold to the public at an original issue discount ("OID"). OID is the excess of the stated 
redemption price at maturity (the principal amount) over the "issue price" of a Discount Bond. The issue 
price of a Discount Bond is the initial offering price to the public (other than bond houses, brokers or similar 



56 

persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which a substantial amount of the Discount 
Bonds of the same maturity is sold pursuant to that offering. For federal income tax purposes, OID accrues 
to the owner of a Discount Bond over the period to maturity based on the constant yield method, 
compounded semiannually (or over a shorter permitted compounding interval selected by the owner). The 
portion of OID that accrues during the period of ownership of a Discount Bond, (i) is interest excludable 
from the owner's gross income for federal income tax purposes to the same extent, and subject to the same 
considerations discussed above, as other interest on the Phase 1 Bonds, and (ii) is added to the owner's tax 
basis for purposes of determining gain or loss on the maturity, redemption, prior sale or other disposition 
of that Discount Bond. A purchaser of a Discount Bond in the initial public offering at the price for that 
Discount Bond stated on the cover of this Limited Offering Memorandum who holds that Discount Bond 
to maturity will realize no gain or loss upon the retirement of that Discount Bond. 

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the determination for federal 
income tax purposes of the amount of OID properly accruable in any period with respect to the Discount 
Bonds and as to other federal tax consequences and the treatment of OID for purposes of state and local 
taxes on, or based on, income.] 

AGREEMENT BY THE STATE 

Under the Act, the State of Florida pledges to the holders of any bonds issued thereunder, including 
the Phase 1 Bonds, that it will not limit or alter the rights of the District to own, acquire, construct, 
reconstruct, improve, maintain, operate or furnish the projects subject to the Act or to levy and collect taxes, 
assessments, rentals, rates, fees, and other charges provided for in the Act and to fulfill the terms of any 
agreement made with the holders of such bonds and that it will not in any way impair the rights or remedies 
of such holders. 

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT 

The Act provides that the Phase 1 Bonds issued by community development districts are legal 
investments for savings banks, banks, trust companies, insurance companies, executors, administrators, 
trustees, guardians, and other fiduciaries, and for any board, body, agency, instrumentality, county, 
municipality or other political subdivision of the State, and constitute securities that may be deposited by 
banks or trust companies as security for deposits of state, county, municipal or other public funds, or by 
insurance companies as required or voluntary statutory deposits. 

SUITABILITY FOR INVESTMENT 

In accordance with applicable provisions of Florida law, the Phase 1 Bonds may initially be sold 
by the District only to "accredited investors" within the meaning of Chapter 517, Florida Statutes and the 
rules promulgated thereunder. The limitation of the initial offering to accredited investors does not denote 
restrictions on transfer in any secondary market for the Phase 1 Bonds. Investment in the Phase 1 Bonds 
poses certain economic risks. No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the 
District or the Underwriter to give any information or make any representations, other than those contained 
in this Limited Offering Memorandum, and, if given or made, such other information or representations 
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by either of the foregoing.  

ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES 

The remedies available to the Owners of the Phase 1 Bonds upon an event of default under the 
Indenture are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and 
delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, including the federal 



57 

bankruptcy code, the remedies specified by the Indenture and the Phase 1 Bonds may not be readily 
available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of 
the Phase 1 Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the remedies provided in the various legal 
instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws 
affecting the rights of creditors enacted before or after such delivery. 

LITIGATION 

The District 

There is no litigation of any nature now pending or, to the knowledge of the District threatened, 
seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds, or in any way 
contesting or affecting (i) the validity of the Phase 1 Bonds or any proceedings of the District taken with 
respect to the issuance or sale thereof, (ii) the pledge or application of any moneys or security provided for 
the payment of the Phase 1 Bonds, (iii) the existence or powers of the District or (iv) the validity of the 
Assessment Proceedings. 

The Developer 

The Developer has represented that there is no litigation of any nature now pending or, to the 
knowledge of the Developer, threatened, which could reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse 
effect upon the completion of the Phase 1 Project or the development of the lands in the District as described 
herein, materially and adversely affect the ability of the Developer to pay the Phase 1 Assessments imposed 
against the land within the District owned by the Developer or materially and adversely affect the ability of 
the Developer to perform its various obligations described in this Limited Offering Memorandum. 

CONTINGENT FEES 

The District has retained Bond Counsel, District Counsel, the District Engineer, the Methodology 
Consultant, the Underwriter (who has retained Underwriter's Counsel) and the Trustee (who has retained 
Trustee's Counsel), with respect to the authorization, sale, execution and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds. 
Except for the payment of fees to District Counsel, the District Engineer and the Methodology Consultant, 
the payment of fees of the other professionals is each contingent upon the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds.  

NO RATING 

No application for a rating for the Phase 1 Bonds has been made to any rating agency, nor is there 
any reason to believe that an investment grade rating for the Phase 1 Bonds would have been obtained if 
application had been made. 

EXPERTS 

The Engineer's Report attached as APPENDIX C to this Limited Offering Memorandum has been 
prepared by England Thims & Miller, Jacksonville, Florida, the District Engineer. APPENDIX C should 
be read in its entirety for complete information with respect to the subjects discussed therein. Governmental 
Management Services, LLC, St. Augustine, Florida, as Methodology Consultant, has prepared the 
Assessment Methodology set forth as APPENDIX D attached hereto. APPENDIX D should be read in its 
entirety for complete information with respect to the subjects discussed therein. As a condition to closing 
on the Phase 1 Bonds, both the District Engineer and the Methodology Consultant will consent to the 
inclusion of their reports in this Limited Offering Memorandum. 



58 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

This District will covenant in a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the proposed form of which is 
set forth in APPENDIX F attached hereto, to provide its annual audited financial statements to certain 
information repositories as described in APPENDIX F, commencing with the audit for the District fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2020. Attached hereto as APPENDIX E are copies of the District's most recent 
audited financial statements for the District's fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and September 30, 
2019 and the District's most recent unaudited financial statements for the period ended [_________, 2020. 
Two years of audited financial statements have been included as required by Florida Administrative Rule 
69W-400.003(h) due to the District's previous default on the payment of principal and interest on its 
Original 2007 Bonds. See "THE DISTRICT – Outstanding Indebtedness and Prior [and Existing] Bond 
Defaults" for more information regarding such defaults. The audited financial statements, including the 
auditor's report including therein, have been included in this Limited Offering Memorandum as publicly 
available documents and consent from the auditor was not requested. Further, the auditors have not 
performed any services related to, and therefore are not associated with, the preparation of this Limited 
Offering Memorandum. The Phase 1 Bonds are not general obligation bonds of the District and are payable 
solely from the Phase 1 Pledged Revenues. 

Beginning October 1, 2015, or by the end of the first full fiscal year after its creation, each 
community development district in Florida must have a separate website with certain information as set 
forth in Section 189.069, F.S., including, without limitation, the district's proposed and final budgets and 
audit. The District currently has a website, and more information regarding the District's website may be 
obtained by contacting the District Manager at the address set forth under "THE DISTRICT – District 
Manager and Other Consultants."  

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS 

Section 517.051, Florida Statutes, and the regulations promulgated thereunder requires that the 
District make a full and fair disclosure of any bonds or other debt obligations that it has issued or guaranteed 
and that are or have been in default as to principal or interest at any time after December 31, 1975 (including 
bonds or other debt obligations for which it has served only as a conduit issuer such as industrial 
development or private activity bonds issued on behalf of private business). With the exception of the 
defaults on the 2007 Bonds described below, the District is not and has never been in default as to principal 
and interest on its bonds or other debt obligations. 

The District [is / was] in default as to principal and interest on its 2007 Bonds. See "THE DISTRICT 
– Outstanding Indebtedness and Prior [and Existing] Bond Defaults" herein for more information.  

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The District and the Developer will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the "Disclosure 
Agreement"), the proposed form of which is set forth in the attached APPENDIX F, for the benefit of the 
Phase 1 Bondholders (including owners of beneficial interests in such Bonds), to provide certain financial 
information and operating data relating to the District and Assessment Area 3, Phase 1, by certain dates 
prescribed in the Disclosure Agreement (the "Reports") with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
("MSRB") through the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA"). The specific 
nature of the information to be contained in the Reports is set forth in "APPENDIX F: PROPOSED FORM 
OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT." Under certain circumstances, the failure of the 
District or the Developer or any other future obligated party to comply with their obligations under the 
Disclosure Agreement constitutes an event of default thereunder. Such a default will not constitute an event 
of default under the Indenture, but such event of default under the Disclosure Agreement would allow the 



59 

Phase 1 Bondholders (including owners of beneficial interests in such Bonds) to bring an action for specific 
performance. 

The District has previously entered into continuing disclosure undertakings in connection with its 
Prior Bonds. [TO BE UPDATED: A review of filings made pursuant to those obligations during the five 
years immediately preceding the issuance of the Phase 1 Bonds indicates that certain filings were filed late 
and that notice of such late filings was not always provided. Such late filings include, but are not limited 
to, District audited financial statements and notices of payment delinquencies in regards to the 2007 Bonds.] 
The District fully anticipates satisfying all future disclosure obligations required pursuant to its Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement and the Rule.  

The Developer has previously entered into continuing disclosure agreements in connection with 
the District's Prior Bonds. In the past five years, the Developer has not failed to comply in all material 
respects with its prior undertakings to provide continuing disclosure information pursuant to the Rule. In 
addition, since acquiring the lands within the District, the Developer has been providing certain information 
with respect to the lands it owns in the District through voluntary filings on EMMA. 

The District will appoint the District Manager to serve as dissemination agent under the Disclosure 
Agreement for the Phase 1 Bonds.  

UNDERWRITING 

FMSbonds, Inc. (the "Underwriter") has agreed, pursuant to a contract with the District, subject to 
certain conditions, to purchase the Phase 1 Bonds from the District at a purchase price of $________ (par 
amount of the Phase 1 Bonds, less an original issue discount of $________ and an Underwriter's discount 
of $________). The Underwriter's obligations are subject to certain conditions precedent and the 
Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all of the Phase 1 Bonds if any Phase 1 Bonds are purchased.  

The Underwriter intends to offer the Phase 1 Bonds to accredited investors at the offering prices 
set forth on the cover page of this Limited Offering Memorandum, which may subsequently change without 
prior notice. The Phase 1 Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers, banks and others at prices lower 
than the initial offering prices, and such initial offering prices may be changed from time to time by the 
Underwriter. 

VALIDATION 

Bonds issued pursuant to the terms of the Master Indenture have been validated by a judgment of 
the Circuit Court of the Seventh Judicial Circuit of Florida in and for St. Johns County, Florida, rendered 
on November 16, 2007. The period of time during which an appeal can be taken from such judgment has 
expired without an appeal having been taken.  

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters related to the authorization, sale and delivery of the Phase 1 Bonds are subject 
to the approval of Akerman LLP, Jacksonville, Florida, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed 
upon for the Underwriter by its counsel, GrayRobinson, P.A. Tampa, Florida. Certain legal matters will be 
passed upon for the District by its counsel, Hopping Green & Sams, P.A., Tallahassee, Florida. Certain 
legal matters will be passed upon for the Developer by its counsel, Feldman & Mahoney, P.A., Clearwater, 
Florida.  



60 

Bond Counsel's opinion included herein is based on existing law, which is subject to change. Such 
opinion is further based on factual representations made to Bond Counsel as of the date hereof. Bond 
Counsel assumes no duty to update or supplement its opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may 
thereafter come to Bond Counsel's attention, or to reflect any changes in law that may thereafter occur or 
become effective. Moreover, Bond Counsel's opinion is not a guarantee of a particular result, and is not 
binding on the Internal Revenue Service or the courts; rather, such opinion represents Bond Counsel's 
professional judgment based on its review of existing law, and in reliance on the representations and 
covenants that it deems relevant to such opinion. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Any statements made in this Limited Offering Memorandum involving matters of opinion or 
estimates, whether or not expressly so stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no 
representations are made that any of the estimates will be realized. 

The references herein to the Phase 1 Bonds and other documents referred to herein are brief 
summaries of certain provisions thereof. Such summaries do not purport to be complete and reference is 
made to such documents for full and complete statements of such provisions. 

This Limited Offering Memorandum is submitted in connection with the limited offering of the 
Phase 1 Bonds and may not be reproduced or used, as a whole or in part, for any purpose. This Limited 
Offering Memorandum is not to be construed as a contract with the purchaser or the Beneficial Owners of 
any of the Phase 1 Bonds. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]  



61 

AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL 

The execution and delivery of this Limited Offering Memorandum has been duly authorized by the 
Board of the District. 

 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: __________________________________ 
   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 



A-1 
 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

COPY OF MASTER INDENTURE AND  
PROPOSED FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE 



B-1 
 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
 



C-1 
 

 

 
APPENDIX C 

 
ENGINEER'S REPORT  

 



D-1 
 

 

 
APPENDIX D 

 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 

 



E-1 
 

 

APPENDIX E 
 

DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



F-1 
 

 

 
APPENDIX F 

 
PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

 



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (this "Disclosure Agreement") dated as of 
___________, 2020 is executed and delivered by the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "Issuer" or the "District"), Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company (the "Developer"), and Governmental Management Services, LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company, as dissemination agent (the "Dissemination Agent") in connection with 
the Issuer's Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (the 
"Bonds"). The Bonds are secured pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2017 
(the "Master Indenture") and a Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of ___________ 1, 
2020 (the "Eighth Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Master Indenture, the 
"Indenture"), each entered into by and between the Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association, a 
national banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of 
America and having a designated corporate trust office in Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"). The Issuer, the Developer and the Dissemination Agent covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Purpose of this Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement is being 
executed and delivered by the Issuer, the Developer and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit 
of the Beneficial Owners (as defined herein) of the Bonds and to assist the Participating 
Underwriter (as defined herein) of the Bonds in complying with the Rule (as defined herein). The 
Issuer has no reason to believe that this Disclosure Agreement does not satisfy the requirements 
of the Rule and the execution and delivery of this Disclosure Agreement is intended to comply 
with the Rule. To the extent it is later determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, a 
governmental regulatory agency, or an attorney specializing in federal securities law, that the Rule 
requires the Issuer or other Obligated Person (as defined herein) to provide additional information, 
the Issuer and each Obligated Person agree to promptly provide such additional information. 

The provisions of this Disclosure Agreement are supplemental and in addition to the 
provisions of the Indenture with respect to reports, filings and notifications provided for therein, 
and do not in any way relieve the Issuer, the Trustee or any other person of any covenant, 
agreement or obligation under the Indenture (or remove any of the benefits thereof) nor shall 
anything herein prohibit the Issuer, the Trustee or any other person from making any reports, 
filings or notifications required by the Indenture or any applicable law. 

2. Definitions. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Disclosure Agreement 
shall have the meaning assigned in the Rule or, to the extent not in conflict with the Rule, in the 
Indenture. The following capitalized terms as used in this Disclosure Agreement shall have the 
following meanings: 

"Annual Filing Date" means the date set forth in Section 3(a) hereof by which the Annual 
Report is to be filed with each Repository. 

"Annual Financial Information" means annual financial information as such term is used 
in paragraph (b)(5)(i)(A) of the Rule and specified in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure Agreement. 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

DRAFT-1 
GrayRobinson, P.A. 
October  16, 2020 



2 

"Assessment Area" shall mean that portion of the District lands subject to Assessments, 
being more particularly described in the Limited Offering Memorandum as the Phase 1 
Assessment Area. 

"Assessments" shall mean the non-ad valorem special assessments pledged to the payment 
of the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and being more particularly described in the Limited 
Offering Memorandum as the Phase 1 Assessments. 

"Audited Financial Statements" means the financial statements (if any) of the Issuer for the 
prior Fiscal Year, certified by an independent auditor as prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles or otherwise, as such term is used in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule 
and specified in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure Agreement. 

"Audited Financial Statements Filing Date" means the date set forth in Section 3(a) hereof 
by which the Audited Financial Statements are to be filed with each Repository if the same are not 
included as part of the Annual Report.  

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which, (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, 
to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons 
holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the 
owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes. 

"Bond Year" means the annual period beginning on the second day of [November] of each 
year and ending on the first day of [November] of the following year. 

"Business Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which banks 
located in the city in which the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee is located are 
required or authorized by law or executive order to close for business, and (b) a day on which the 
New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

"Disclosure Representative" shall mean (i) as to the Issuer, the District Manager or its 
designee, or such other person as the Issuer shall designate in writing to the Dissemination Agent 
from time to time as the person responsible for providing information to the Dissemination Agent; 
and (ii) as to each entity comprising an Obligated Person (other than the Issuer), the individuals 
executing this Disclosure Agreement on behalf of such entity or such person(s) as such entity shall 
designate in writing to the Dissemination Agent from time to time as the person(s) responsible for 
providing information to the Dissemination Agent.  

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer or an entity appointed by the Issuer to act in 
the capacity as Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated 
in writing by the Issuer pursuant to Section 8 hereof. Governmental Management Services, LLC 
has been designated as the initial Dissemination Agent hereunder. 

"District Manager" shall mean Governmental Management Services, LLC, and its 
successors and assigns. 

"EMMA" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal securities 
disclosures located at http://emma.msrb.org/. 



3 

"EMMA Compliant Format" shall mean a format for any document provided to the MSRB 
(as hereinafter defined) which is in an electronic format and is accompanied by identifying 
information, all as prescribed by the MSRB. 

"Financial Obligation" means a (a) debt obligation, (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation, or (c) guarantee of an obligation or instrument described in either clause (a) or (b). 
Financial Obligation shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement 
has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the period commencing on October 1 and ending on September 
30 of the next succeeding year, or such other period of time provided by applicable law. 

"Limited Offering Memorandum" shall mean that Limited Offering Memorandum dated 
___________, 2020, prepared in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 6(a) of this Disclosure 
Agreement. 

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

"Obligated Person(s)" shall mean, with respect to the Bonds, those person(s) who either 
generally or through an enterprise fund or account of such persons are committed by contract or 
other arrangement to support payment of all or a part of the obligations on such Bonds (other than 
providers of municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities), which 
person(s) shall include the Issuer, and for the purposes of this Disclosure Agreement, the 
Developer and its affiliates for so long as such Developer or its affiliates, successors or assigns 
(excluding residential homebuyers who are end users) are the owners of District Lands responsible 
for payment of at least 20% of the Assessments.  

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean FMSbonds, Inc.  

"Quarterly Filing Date" shall mean for the quarter ending: (i) March 31, each May 1; (ii) 
June 30, each August 1; (iii) September 30, each November 1; and (iv) December 31, each 
February 1 of the following year. The first Quarterly Filing Date shall be ___________ 1, 2021.  

"Quarterly Report" shall mean any Quarterly Report provided by any Obligated Person 
(other than the Issuer) pursuant to, and as described in, Section 5 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

"Repository" shall mean each entity authorized and approved by the SEC (as hereinafter 
defined) from time to time to act as a repository for purposes of complying with the Rule. The 
Repositories approved by the SEC may be found by visiting the SEC's website at 
http://www.sec.gov/info/municipal/nrmsir.htm. As of the date hereof, the Repository recognized 
by the SEC for such purpose is the MSRB, which currently accepts continuing disclosure 
submissions through its EMMA web portal. As used herein, "Repository" shall include the State 
Repository, if any. 



4 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same has and may be amended 
from time to time. 

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

"State" shall mean the State of Florida.  

"State Repository" shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the 
State as a state repository for the purposes of the Rule. 

3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) Subject to the following sentence, the Issuer shall provide the Annual 
Report to the Dissemination Agent no later than March 31st following the close of the Issuer's 
Fiscal Year (the "Annual Filing Date"), commencing with the Annual Report for the Fiscal Year 
ending September 30, 2020. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as 
separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided 
in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report, and may be submitted 
in accordance with State law, which currently requires such Audited Financial Statements to be 
provided up to, but no later than, nine (9) months after the close of the Issuer's Fiscal Year (the 
"Audited Financial Statements Filing Date"). The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination 
Agent to, provide to the Repository the components of an Annual Report which satisfies the 
requirements of Section 4(a) of this Disclosure Agreement within thirty (30) days after same 
becomes available, but in no event later than the Annual Filing Date or Audited Financial 
Statements Filing Date, if applicable. If the Issuer's Fiscal Year changes, the Issuer shall give 
notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 6. 

(b) If on the fifteenth (15th) day prior to each Annual Filing Date or the Audited 
Financial Statements Filing Date, as applicable, the Dissemination Agent has not received a copy 
of the Annual Report or Audited Financial Statements, as applicable, the Dissemination Agent 
shall contact the Disclosure Representative by telephone and in writing (which may be via email) 
to remind the Issuer of its undertaking to provide the Annual Report or Audited Financial 
Statements, as applicable, pursuant to Section 3(a). Upon such reminder, the Disclosure 
Representative shall either (i) provide the Dissemination Agent with an electronic copy of the 
Annual Report or the Audited Financial Statements, as applicable, in accordance with Section 3(a) 
above, or (ii) advise the Dissemination Agent in writing that the Issuer will not be able to file the 
Annual Report or Audited Financial Statements, as applicable, within the times required under this 
Disclosure Agreement, state the date by which the Annual Report or the Audited Financial 
Statements for such year, as applicable, will be provided and instruct the Dissemination Agent that 
a Listed Event as described in Section 6(a)(xvii) has occurred and to immediately send a notice to 
the Repository in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

(c) If the Dissemination Agent has not received an Annual Report by 12:00 
noon on the first (1st) Business Day following the Annual Filing Date for the Annual Report or the 
Audited Financial Statements by 12:00 noon on the first (1st) Business Day following the Audited 



5 

Financial Statements Filing Date for the Audited Financial Statements, then a Listed Event as 
described in Section 6(a)(xvii) shall have occurred and the Dissemination Agent shall immediately 
send a notice to the Repository in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the Annual Filing Date the name, 
address and filing requirements of the Repository; and 

(ii) promptly upon fulfilling its obligations under subsection (a) above, 
file a notice with the Issuer stating that the Annual Report or Audited Financial Statement has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date(s) it was provided and listing all 
Repositories with which it was filed. 

(e) All documents, reports, notices, statements, information and other materials 
provided to the MSRB under this Disclosure Agreement shall be provided in an EMMA Compliant 
Format. 

4. Content of Annual Reports.  

(a) Each Annual Report shall be in the form set in Schedule A attached hereto 
and shall contain the following Annual Financial Information with respect to the Issuer: 

(i) All fund balances in all Funds, Accounts and subaccounts for the 
Bonds and the total amount of Bonds Outstanding, in each case as of December 31st following the 
end of the most recent prior Fiscal Year.  

(ii) The method by which Assessments are being levied (whether on-
roll or off-roll) and the amounts being levied by each method in the Assessment Area for the 
current Fiscal Year, and a copy of the assessment roll (on roll and off roll) for the Assessments 
certified for collection in the Assessment Area for the current Fiscal Year. 

(iii) The method by which Assessments were levied (whether on-roll or 
off-roll) and the amounts levied by each method in the Assessment Area for the most recent prior 
Fiscal Year. 

(iv) The amount of Assessments collected in the Assessment Area from 
the property owners during the most recent prior Fiscal Year. 

(v) If available, the amount of delinquencies in the Assessment Area 
greater than one hundred fifty (150) days, and, in the event that delinquencies amount to more than 
ten percent (10%) of the amounts of the Assessments due in any year, a list of delinquent property 
owners. 

(vi) If available, the amount of tax certificates sold for lands within the 
Assessment Area, if any, and the balance, if any, remaining for sale from the most recent Fiscal 
Year. 



6 

(vii) The amount of principal and interest to be paid on the Bonds in the 
current Fiscal Year. 

(viii) The most recent Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer. 

(ix) In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this 
Disclosure Agreement, a description of such amendment or waiver in the next Annual Report, and 
in each case shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment 
or waiver and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change in accounting principles, on the 
presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the Issuer. In addition, 
if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial 
statements: (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 
Section 6(b); and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a 
comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial 
statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the 
basis of the former accounting principles. 

To the extent any of the items set forth in subsections (i) through (vii) above are included 
in the Audited Financial Statements referred to in subsection (viii) above, they do not have to be 
separately set forth (unless Audited Financial Statements are being delivered later than March 31st 
after the close of the Issuer's Fiscal Year pursuant to Section 3(a) hereof). Any or all of the items 
listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, including limited offering 
memorandums and official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which 
have been submitted to the MSRB or the SEC. If the document incorporated by reference is a final 
limited offering memorandum or official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The 
Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference. 

(b) The Issuer and each Obligated Person agree to supply, in a timely fashion, 
any information reasonably requested by the Dissemination Agent that is necessary in order for 
the Dissemination Agent to carry out its duties under this Disclosure Agreement. The Issuer 
acknowledges and agrees that the information to be collected and disseminated by the 
Dissemination Agent will be provided by the Issuer, Obligated Persons and others. The 
Dissemination Agent's duties do not include authorship or production of any materials, and the 
Dissemination Agent shall have no responsibility hereunder for the content of the information 
provided to it by the Issuer, an Obligated Person or others as thereafter disseminated by the 
Dissemination Agent. 

(c) Any Annual Financial Information containing modified operating data or 
financial information is required to explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the modification and 
the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided. 

5. Quarterly Reports. 

(a) Each Obligated Person (other than the Issuer), or the Developer on behalf 
of any other Obligated Person that fails to execute an Assignment (as hereinafter defined), shall 
provide an electronic copy of the Quarterly Report to the Dissemination Agent no later than fifteen 
(15) days prior to the Quarterly Filing Date. Promptly upon receipt of an electronic copy of the 



7 

Quarterly Report, but in any event no later than the applicable Quarterly Filing Date, the 
Dissemination Agent shall provide a Quarterly Report to the Repository. 

(b) Each Quarterly Report shall be in the form set in Schedule B attached hereto 
and contain an update of the following information to the extent available:  

(i) The number and type of lots planned in the Assessment Area subject 
to the Assessments. 

(ii) With respect to lots owned in the Assessment Area by the Obligated 
Person: the total number of lots owned, the number of lots under contract but not closed with a 
homebuilder and the name of such homebuilder, the number of lots closed with a homebuilder, the 
number of lots not under contract with a homebuilder. 

(iii) The number and type of lots developed in the Assessment Area. 

(iv) The number and type of lots platted in the Assessment Area. 

(v) With respect undeveloped and unplatted lands owned in the 
Assessment Area by the Obligated Person, a description of the status for lot development within 
such lands. 

(vi) The cumulative number and type of homes closed with homebuyers 
(delivered to end users) in the Assessment Area. 

(vii) The number and type of homes under contract and not closed with 
homebuyers in the Assessment Area in such quarter. 

(viii) With respect to the Assessment Area, material changes to (1) builder 
contracts, (2) the number or type of lots planned to be developed, (3) permits/approvals, and (4) 
existing mortgage debt of the Obligated Person or the incurrence of new mortgage debt by the 
Obligated Person. 

(ix) Any sale, assignment or transfer of ownership by the Obligated 
Person of lands in the Assessment Area to a third party which will in turn become an Obligated 
Person hereunder. 

(c) If an Obligated Person sells, assigns or otherwise transfers ownership of real 
property in an Assessment Area (a "Transferor Obligated Person") to a third party (a "Transferee"), 
which will in turn be an Obligated Person for purposes of this Disclosure Agreement as a result 
thereof (a "Transfer"), the Transferor Obligated Person hereby agrees to use its best efforts to 
contractually obligate such Transferee to agree to comply with the disclosure obligations of an 
Obligated Person hereunder for so long as such Transferee is an Obligated Person hereunder, to 
the same extent as if such Transferee were a party to this Disclosure Agreement (an "Assignment"). 
The Transferor Obligated Person shall notify the District and the Dissemination Agent in writing 
of any Transfer within five (5) Business Days of the occurrence thereof. Nothing herein shall be 
construed to relieve the Developer from its obligations hereunder except to the extent a written 



8 

Assignment from a Transferee is obtained and delivered to the Dissemination Agent and then only 
to the extent of such Assignment. 

6. Reporting of Listed Events. 

(a) This Section 6 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any 
of the following Listed Events:  

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on the Series 2020 Reserve Account reflecting 
financial difficulties; 

(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties;* 

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 
perform;* 

(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service 
of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) 
or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(vii) Modifications to rights of Bond holders, if material; 

(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(ix) Defeasances; 

(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Bonds, if material; 

(xi) Rating changes;*  

(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer 
or any Obligated Person (which is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the 
appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer or any Obligated Person in 
a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal 
law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of 
the assets or business of the Issuer or any Obligated Person, or if such jurisdiction has been 
assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject 
to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order 
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 

 
* Not applicable to the Bonds at their date of issuance. 



9 

authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 
Issuer or any Obligated Person); 

(xiii) Consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving 
the Issuer or any Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer 
or any Obligated Person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive 
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any 
such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;  

(xiv) Appointment of a successor or additional Trustee or the change of 
name of the Trustee, if material;  

(xv) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or Obligated 
Person, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other 
similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or Obligated Person, any of which affect 
security holders, if material; 

(xvi) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of 
terms, or other similar events under the terms of the Financial Obligation of the Issuer or Obligated 
Person, any of which reflect financial difficulties;  

(xvii) Failure to provide (A) any Annual Report or Audited Financial 
Statements as required under this Disclosure Agreement that contains, in all material respects, the 
information required to be included therein under Section 4(a) of this Disclosure Agreement, or 
(B) any Quarterly Report that contains, in all material respects, the information required to be 
included therein under Section 5(b) of this Disclosure Agreement, which failure shall, in all cases, 
be deemed material under federal securities laws; and 

(xviii) Any amendment to the accounting principles to be followed in 
preparing financial statements as required pursuant to Section 4(a)(ix) hereof. 

(b) The Issuer shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any 
of the above subsection (a) Listed Events to the Dissemination Agent in writing in sufficient time 
in order to allow the Dissemination Agent to file notice of the occurrence of such Listed Event in 
a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after its occurrence, with the exception 
of the Listed Events described in Section 6(a)(xvii) and (xviii), which notice will be given in a 
timely manner. Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence 
pursuant to subsection (d) below. Such notice by the Issuer to the Dissemination Agent shall 
identify the Listed Event that has occurred, include the text of the disclosure that the Issuer desires 
to make, contain the written authorization of the Issuer for the Dissemination Agent to disseminate 
such information, and identify the date the Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent 
to disseminate the information (provided that such date is in compliance within the filing dates 
provided within this Section 6(b)).  

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained in Section 6(b) above, each Obligated 
Person other than the Issuer shall notify the Issuer and the Dissemination Agent of the occurrence 
of a Listed Event described in subsections (a)(x), (xii), (xiii), (xv) or (xvi) that has occurred with 



10 

respect to such Obligated Person in compliance with the notification and filing requirements 
provided in Section 6(b).  

(d) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Issuer to report the 
occurrence of a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall immediately file a notice of such 
occurrence with each Repository.  

7. Termination of Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement shall 
terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. 

8. Dissemination Agent. Upon termination of the Dissemination Agent's services as 
Dissemination Agent, whether by notice of the Issuer or the Dissemination Agent, the Issuer agrees 
to appoint a successor Dissemination Agent or, alternatively, agrees to assume all responsibilities 
of Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement for the benefit of the Holders of the 
Bonds. If at any time there is not any other designated Dissemination Agent, the District shall be 
deemed to be the Dissemination Agent. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be Governmental 
Management Services, LLC. The acceptance of such designation is evidenced by the execution of 
this Disclosure Agreement by a duly authorized signatory of Governmental Management Services, 
LLC. Governmental Management Services, LLC, may terminate its role as Dissemination Agent 
at any time upon delivery of sixty (60) days prior written notice to the District and each Obligated 
Person. The District may terminate the agreement hereunder with the Dissemination Agent at any 
time upon delivery of sixty (60) days prior written notice to the Dissemination Agent and each 
Obligated Person. 

9. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Agreement, the Issuer and the Dissemination Agent may amend this Disclosure Agreement, and 
any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is 
supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws, acceptable to the Issuer, to 
the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings herein 
to violate the Rule if such amendment or waiver had been effective on the date hereof but taking 
into account any subsequent change in or official interpretation of the Rule.  

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the 
Issuer shall describe such amendment and/or waiver in the next Annual Report and shall include, 
as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on 
the type (or, in the case of a change in accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial 
information or operating data being presented by the Issuer.  In addition, if the amendment relates 
to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements: (i) notice of such 
change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 6(b); and (ii) the 
Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative 
form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on 
the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 
principles. 

Notwithstanding the above provisions of this Section 9, no amendment to the provisions 
of Section 5(b) hereof may be made without the consent of the each Obligated Person, if any. 



11 

10. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed 
to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination 
set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any 
other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to 
that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that 
which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer shall have no obligation 
under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual 
Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

11. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer, the Disclosure Representative, any 
Obligated Person or the Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure 
Agreement, the Trustee may (and, at the request of any Participating Underwriter or the Beneficial 
Owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds 
and receipt of indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee, shall), or any beneficial owner of a Bond may 
take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific 
performance by court order, to cause the Issuer, the Disclosure Representative, any Obligated 
Person or a Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement. A default under this Disclosure Agreement by any Obligated Person shall 
not be deemed a default by the Issuer hereunder and no default hereunder shall be deemed an Event 
of Default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event 
of any failure of the Issuer, the Disclosure Representative, any Obligated Person, or a 
Dissemination Agent, to comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to compel 
performance. 

12. Duties of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such 
duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement between the District, the Developer 
and such Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall have no obligation to notify any 
other party hereto of an event that may constitute a Listed Event. The District, each Obligated 
Person and the Disclosure Representative covenant that they will supply, in a timely fashion, any 
information reasonably requested by the Dissemination Agent that is necessary in order for the 
Dissemination Agent to carry out its duties under this Disclosure Agreement. The District, the 
Developer and the Disclosure Representative acknowledge and agree that the information to be 
collected and disseminated by the Dissemination Agent will be provided by the District, Obligated 
Person(s), the Disclosure Representative and others. The Dissemination Agent's duties do not 
include authorship or production of any materials, and the Dissemination Agent shall have no 
responsibility hereunder for the content of the information provided to it by the District, any 
Obligated Person or the Disclosure Representative as thereafter disseminated by the Dissemination 
Agent. Any filings under this Disclosure Agreement made to the MSRB through EMMA shall be 
in an EMMA compliant format. 

13. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
Issuer, the Developer, the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, the Participating Underwriter and the 
Owners of the Bonds (the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, Participating Underwriter and 
Owners of the Bonds being hereby deemed express third party beneficiaries of this Disclosure 
Agreement), and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 



12 

14. Tax Roll and Budget. Upon the request of the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee 
or any Bondholder, the Issuer, through its District Manager, if applicable, agrees to provide such 
party with a certified copy of its most recent tax roll provided to the St. Johns County Tax Collector 
and the Issuer's most recent adopted budget.  

15. Governing Law. The laws of the State of Florida and Federal law shall govern this 
Disclosure Agreement and venue shall be any state or federal court having jurisdiction in St. Johns 
County, Florida. 

16. Counterparts. This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several counterparts 
and each of which shall be considered an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. A scanned copy of the signatures delivered in a PDF format may be relied upon 
as if the original had been received. 

17. Trustee Cooperation. The Issuer represents that the Dissemination Agent is a bona 
fide agent of the Issuer and the Issuer instructs the Trustee to deliver to the Dissemination Agent 
at the expense of the Issuer, any information or reports readily available to and in the possession 
of the Trustee that the Dissemination Agent requests in writing. 

18. Binding Effect. This Disclosure Agreement shall be binding upon each party to 
this Disclosure Agreement and upon each successor and assignee of each party to this Disclosure 
Agreement and shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, each party to this Disclosure 
Agreement and each successor and assignee of each party to this Disclosure Agreement. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, as to the Developer or any assignee or successor thereto that 
becomes an Obligated Person pursuant to the terms of this Disclosure Agreement, only successor 
or assignees to such parties who are, by definition, Obligated Persons, shall be bound or benefited 
by this Disclosure Agreement. 

[Signature Page Follows] 



13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Disclosure Agreement as 
of the date and year set forth above. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, AS ISSUER 

[SEAL] 
 

By:        
 Chairperson 

Board of Supervisors 
ATTEST: 

By:      
 Secretary 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, 
LLC, AS DEVELOPER  

  

 
By: _____________________________________ 
 _________________, Manager 
 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES, LLC, and its successors and assigns, 
AS DISSEMINATION AGENT 

 

By:   
Name:    
Title:    

CONSENTED TO AND AGREED TO BY: 

DISTRICT MANAGER 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES, LLC, AS DISTRICT 
MANAGER 

By:   
Name:   
Title:   



14 

Acknowledged and agreed to for purposes of 
Sections 11, 13 and 17 only: 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS 
TRUSTEE 

By:   
Name:   
Title:   



15 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE  
TO FILE [ANNUAL REPORT] 

[AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS][QUARTERLY REPORT] 
 

Name of Issuer:  Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Name of Bond Issue: $_________ original aggregate principal amount of Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 1) 

 
 
Obligated Person(s):   Six Mile Creek Community Development District;  
   _____________________.  
 
Original Date of Issuance: ___________, 2020 

CUSIP Numbers:  _________ 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the [Issuer][Obligated Person] has not provided an 

[Annual Report] [Audited Financial Statements] [Quarterly Report] with respect to the above-
named Bonds as required by [Section 3] [Section 5] of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement dated 
___________, 2020, by and between the Issuer, the Developer and the Dissemination Agent 
named therein. The [Issuer][Obligated Person] has advised the undersigned that it anticipates that 
the [Annual Report] [Audited Financial Statements] [Quarterly Report] will be filed by 
_______________, 20____. 
 
Dated: ______________ 
 
      ________________, as Dissemination Agent 
 

By:        
Name:        
Title:        

 
 
 
cc: Issuer 
 Trustee 
 



16 

SCHEDULE A 
 
FORM OF DISTRICT'S ANNUAL REPORT (Due 3/31) 

1.  Fund Balances 
 

Combined Trust Estate Assets Quarter Ended – 12/31 
Acquisition and Construction Fund  
Revenue Fund  
Reserve Fund  
Prepayment Fund  
Other  

Total Bonds Outstanding  
TOTAL  

 
2.  Assessment Certification and Collection Information 
 

1. For the Current District Fiscal Year ‒ Manner in which Assessments are collected (On Roll vs. 
Off Roll) 

 
 $ Certified 

On Roll $__________ 
Off Roll $__________ 
TOTAL  $__________ 

 
2. Attach to Report the following: 

 
A. On Roll ‒ Copy of certified assessment roll for the District's current Fiscal Year 
 
B. Off Roll ‒ List of folios and ownership for all off roll Assessments, together with par and 

annual Assessment assigned to each folio 
 
3.  For the immediately ended Bond Year, provide the levy and collection information 
 

Total Levy $ Levied $ Collected % Collected % Delinquent 
On Roll $__________ $__________ ___% ___% 
Off Roll $__________ $__________ ___% ___% 
TOTAL     

 
4.  If available, the amount of delinquencies in the Assessment Area greater than one hundred fifty 
(150) days, and, in the event that delinquencies amount to more than ten percent (10%) of the amount 
of the Assessments due in any year, a list of delinquent property owners 
  
5.  If available, the amount of tax certificates sold for lands within the Assessment Area, if any, and 
the balance, if any, remaining for sale from the most recent Fiscal Year 
 
6.  The amount of principal and interest to be paid on the Bonds in the current Fiscal Year 
 
 



17 

SCHEDULE B 
 

FORM OF OBLIGATED PERSON'S QUARTERLY REPORT 

Bond Information 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Date of Quarterly Report _____________ 
Bond Series 2020 
Area/Project Phase 1 of Assessment 

Area 3 
NOTE:  IF MORE THAN ONE ASSESSMENT AREA, INFORMATION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR EACH AREA 

 

1.  Unit Mix For Land Subject To Assessments 
  Ownership Information 

Type Number of Lots/Units Developer Owned Builder Owned Homeowner Owned 
     

Total     

2.  For Lots owned by Obligated Person (if applicable) 

Type 
# of Lots Owned by 
Obligated Person 

# of Lots Under Contract With 
Builders (NOT CLOSED) 

# of Lots NOT 
Under Contract 

Name of 
Builder 

Expected 
Takedown Date(s) 

      
Total      

3.  Status of Land Subject to Assessments 

A. Lots developed (cumulative, not quarterly activity), by phase or sub-phase: 
 Area 3 

Total  

B. Lots platted (cumulative, not quarterly activity), by phase or sub-phase: 
 Area 3 

Total  

C. For lots not developed, and platted, provide brief description on status of lot development for land area securing the 
Bonds: 

1. When do you anticipate lots will be developed (for each phase or sub phase)? 
2. When do you anticipate lots will be platted (for each phase or sub phase)? 
3. Provide total amount of money spent on land development to date (include money funded with bonds and with other sources) 

D. Homes Closed with End-Users: 
 CUMULATIVE 

Total  

E. Homes Sold To End Users (AND NOT CLOSED): 
 QUARTER ONLY 

Total  

4.  Development Changes and Status Updates 

1. Material changes to Builder Contracts (i.e., change of terms or cancellation of contract, change of takedown dates)? 
2. Any bulk sales of land within the District to other developers or builders? 
3. Any material changes to the number or type of lots planned to be developed in the Assessment Area? 
4. Any materially adverse changes or determinations to permits/approvals for the Assessment Area which necessitate changes to the 

development plans? 
5. Incurrence of any new or modified mortgage debt on the land owned by the Obligated Person in the Assessment Area (amount, rate, 

and term)? 
6. Sale, assignment or transfer of ownership of real property in the Assessment Area to a third party, which will in turn be an Obligated 

Person? 
 
*This report contains statements, which to the extent they are not recitations of historical fact, constitute "forward-looking statements." In this respect, the words 
"anticipate", "estimate", "expect", and "belief", and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements may be subject to risks and 
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-looking statements. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into to be effective the ___ 

day of October, 2020, by and between: 

 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local 

unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 

Statutes, and located in St. Johns County, Florida, and with an address of c/o 

Governmental Management Services, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 

World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 ("District"), and 

 

AVID TRAILS, LLC, a foreign limited liability company, whose address is 22 

North Union St., Lambertville, NJ 08530 (“Contractor,” and together with the 

District, “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 

constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure improvements and 

recreational facilities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide the 

services identified in the attached Exhibit A and described herein and Contractor represents that 

it is capable of providing such services and desires to contract with the District to do so in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 

constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure improvements and 

recreational facilities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 

and authority to enter into and be bound by this agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual 

covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 

incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the 

Contractor are to provide the construction work and services described in Exhibit A, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein (“Project”).  The Project shall be provided in accordance with the 

Plans attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein.  Contractor represents that it has had 

an opportunity to review and inspect such plans. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the 

means, manner, and methods by which its duties, obligations, and responsibilities are met.  

2



Contractor shall report directly to the District Manager or his/her designee.  The District may 

require Contractor to provide shop drawings, or other evidence as the District requires, assuring 

the District that the Project will be provided to the District’s satisfaction.  Contractor shall use all 

due care to protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage.  

Contractor agrees to initiate the repair of any damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and 

work within forty-eight (48) hours (and complete such repair within a reasonable time). 

 

3. SHOP DRAWINGS. Contractor is and shall be responsible for planning and 

performance of the services necessary to complete the Project under this Agreement.  Where 

shop drawings and/or finish samples are required for i) fabrication of Contractor furnished 

equipment; ii) installing Contractor furnished material or equipment; or iii) planning and 

performance of the Project under this Agreement, such drawings and/or finish samples shall be 

submitted by and at the expense of the Contractor before fabrication, installation or performance 

as commenced. 

 

If the drawings show variations from the requirements of this Agreement, the Contractor 

shall describe such variations in writing, separate from the drawings, at the time of submission.  

If the District approves any such variation(s), it shall issue an appropriate Agreement 

modification, except that, if the variation is minor and does not involve a change in price or in 

time of performance, a modification need not be issued. 

 

By approving and submitting shop drawings and samples, the Contractor represents that 

it has determined and verified all field measurements, filed construction criteria, materials and 

other similar data, and that it has checked and coordinated each shop drawing with the 

requirements of the Project and of this Agreement.   

 

4. TIMING.  The Contractor shall commence the Project on December 1, 2020 and 

shall be obligated to fully complete the Project within 90 days.  It shall be District’s obligation to 

obtain and pay for any permits required to commence work.  Upon the District’s request, 

Contractor shall furnish such evidence as the District requires concerning ability to timely 

complete the Project.  Contractor must coordinate its work with others performing work for the 

District as the District directs.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that time is of the essence 

for the completion of the Project and shall work overtime or extra shifts, without the right for any 

additional compensation, as necessary to meet or maintain construction schedules.  

 

5. COMPENSATION.  The total cost to complete the Project is $170,522.00.  

Compensation for completion of the Project shall be as follows: 1) payment in the amount of 

$76,735.00 shall be due upon execution of the Agreement; 2) payment in the amount of 

$76,735.00 shall be due upon substantial completion of the Project; and 3) payment in the 

amount of $17,052 shall be due upon final completion of the Project.   

 

Upon substantial completion, which shall mean that the Project is deemed 

sufficiently completed to the point where the District can use it for its intended purpose, 

Contractor shall submit to the District an invoice and supporting documentation for the services 

satisfactorily performed by Contractor to substantially complete the Project (“Payment 

Application”).  The District agrees to remit payment for said services within twenty-five (25) 



days of receipt of an appropriate Payment Application from Contractor.  Contractor shall include 

with its Payment Application unconditional releases of lien from all subcontractors, suppliers 

and lienors corresponding to payments made and an executed waiver and release of lien upon 

progress payment in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.  Payment Applications and all 

supporting data shall be prepared by Contractor and submitted in writing for the District’s 

approval, covering the amount and value of services satisfactorily performed by Contractor.  

Contractor acknowledges that payment for services does not constitute acceptance of the specific 

services or the Project.  The submission by Contractor of its Payment Application shall be a 

representation by Contractor that all work indicated therein as complete is complete and has been 

completed in accordance with this Agreement. 

  

 Approval of Contractor’s Payment Application for the total amount then outstanding 

under this Agreement (“Final Payment Application”), shall be approved by the District upon 

final completion, which shall occur upon the following conditions being satisfied: i) District 

Engineer’s certification that the Project is satisfactorily complete;  ii) completion of any 

applicable punchlist; iii) assignment of all manufacturer’s or subcontractor’s warranties on 

material or equipment installed; iv) final waivers/releases of lien from all vendors, 

subcontractors and materialmen which have provided labor and/or materials for performance of 

the services necessary to complete the Project which shall accompany Contractor’s Final 

Payment Application; v) completion of any required as-built plans; and vi) execution of a wavier 

and release of lien in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D.  

 

6. CHANGE ORDERS.  Contractor understands that the Project may be reduced, 

enlarged or otherwise modified in scope.  If any additional services are proposed beyond those 

identified in this Agreement, Contractor shall perform them but only after receiving a written 

change order from the District or the District Manager’s designee.  Contractor shall not perform 

any service omitted from the Agreement by deductive change order. Contractor shall cooperate 

with and assist the District in preparing and determining the scope of any change order.  In the 

event this is a unit price Agreement, Contractor’s compensation shall be adjusted for the added 

or deducted services proposed by the change order in accordance with the unit prices established 

in this Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is not a unit price agreement, Contractor’s 

compensation shall be adjusted for the added or deducted services proposed by the change order 

as reasonably determined by the District in conference with the Contractor.  All change orders 

shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E.  

 

7. WARRANTY AND COVENANT.  The Contractor warrants to the District that 

all materials furnished under this Agreement shall be new, and that all services and materials 

shall be of good quality, and free from faults and defects. Neither final acceptance of the Project, 

nor final payment therefore, nor any provision of the Agreement shall relieve Contractor of 

responsibility for defective or deficient materials or services.  If any of the services or materials 

provided under this Agreement are found to be defective, deficient or not in accordance with the 

Agreement, Contractor shall correct, remove and replace it promptly after receipt of a written 

notice from the District and correct and pay for any other damage resulting therefrom to District 

property or the property of landowner’s within the District. The Contractor shall assign all 

manufacturer’s warranties to the District. 

 



Contractor hereby covenants to the District that it shall perform the services necessary to 

complete the Project: (i) using its best skill and judgment and in accordance with generally 

accepted professional and design standards and practices for projects of similar design and 

complexity as the development occurring within the District; (ii) in compliance with all 

applicable federal, state, county municipal, building and zoning, land use, environmental, public 

safety, non-discrimination and disability accessibility laws, codes, ordinances, rules and 

regulations, including, without limitation, all professional registration (both corporate and 

individual) for all required basic disciplines that it shall perform; and (iii) in an expeditious and 

economical manner consistent with the best interest of the District.  Contractor hereby covenants 

to the District that any work product of the Contractor shall not call for the use of, nor infringe, 

any patent, trademark, services mark, copyright or other proprietary interest claimed or held by 

any person or business entity absent prior written consent from the District.  

 

8. INSURANCE  AND BONDS.  Until final completion, all risk of loss to the work 

at the Project shall be assumed by Contractor.  Contractor shall purchase and maintain, in a 

company or companies acceptable to District and lawfully authorized to do business in the 

jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance upon all of the work at the Project 

site to the full insurable value thereof.  This insurance shall be on an all-risk policy form and 

shall include interests of District, Contractor, Subcontractors and sub-Subcontractors in the Work 

and shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and physical loss or damage 

including, without duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief. 

Each policy obtained by Contractor shall contain a provision that the policy will not be 

cancelled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to 

District. 

Contractor, for the protection and benefit of District and any and all of its assignees, 

trustees, beneficiaries, agents and employees and any other party identified in Paragraph 26 

(collectively the “Indemnitees”) shall specifically procure, pay for, and maintain, in full force 

and effect until final payment (unless otherwise designated), at no expense to District, the 

following policies of insurance to be written by an insurer acceptable to District in its sole 

discretion, who is qualified to do business in the State of Florida and which shall, at a minimum, 

afford the following types and limits of coverage: 

a.  Broad Form Commercial General Liability insurance written on 

an occurrence basis (including Premises/Operations Liability, Products and Completed 

Operations Liability, Independent Contractors Liability, Contractual Liability, Broad 

Form Property Damage Liability, Explosion, Collapse and Underground Hazard Liability 

and Personal Injury Liability) (“CGL”) in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property 

damage and in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) total 

aggregate liability; 

b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance in the statutory amounts and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00); 



c. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance to cover owned, 

long-term leased, hired, and non-owned automobiles (including medical payments and 

uninsured motorists coverages) in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury and One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for property damage; 

d. Umbrella Liability Insurance providing coverage in excess of the 

limits specified above (except Workers’ Compensation Insurance) in a minimum amount 

of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and in the aggregate; and 

e. Such other insurance as District may reasonably require. 

If Contractor fails to purchase and maintain any insurance required herein, District may, 

but shall not be obligated to, upon five (5) days’ written notice to Contractor, purchase such 

insurance on behalf of Contractor and shall be entitled to be reimbursed by Contractor promptly 

upon demand or deduct the amount of such premiums from the Contract Sum. 

Contractor’s equipment shall be insured by Contractor with no obligation or liability 

extending to District.  Contractor is solely responsible for any loss or damage to the machinery, 

equipment or tools owned or used by Contractor or Subcontractors in connection with the Work 

and must carry insurance at its own expense to cover such risk of loss.   

 

9. SUBCONTRACTORS.  By appropriate agreement, written where legally 

required for validity, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor, to the extent of the services 

to be performed by the subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of this Agreement, 

and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the 

responsibility for safety of the subcontractor’s services, which the Contractor assumes toward the 

District. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the District under 

the Agreement with respect to the services to be performed by the subcontractor so that 

subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights.  Where appropriate, the Contractor shall 

require each subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with sub-subcontractors.  The 

Contractor shall make available to each proposed subcontractor, prior to the execution of the 

subcontract agreement, copies of the Agreement to which the subcontractor will be bound, and, 

upon written request of the subcontractor, identify to the subcontractor terms and conditions of 

the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Agreement. Subcontractors 

will similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective 

proposed sub-subcontractors. 

 

10. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  [Reserved.] 

 

11. ACCEPTANCE BY LOCAL GOVERNMENTS.  Contractor acknowledges 

that all work may be subject to inspections, tests, and approvals by the District, city, county, 

federal, state, other governmental entity, or utility company inspectors and that all or some 

portion of the work may be conveyed to another governmental entity or utility company.  No 

work is complete until it passes final inspection / approval by the District as well as the 

applicable city, county, federal state, other governmental entity, or utility company.  Contractor 

shall provide at its expense any written warranties, certifications, bonds or other documentation 



as may be required in connection with the conveyance of any work, or as may be otherwise 

required, by any city, county, federal, state, other governmental entity or utility company. 

 

12. CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS.  PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, 

FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE 

NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 

558, FLORIDA STATUTES. 
 

13. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES.    Pursuant to Section 287.133(3)(a), Florida Statutes: 

 

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 

following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a 

public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a 

public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property 

to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 

supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public 

entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of 

the threshold amount provided in s. 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a 

period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. 

 

Contractor represents that in entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been placed on 

the convicted vendor list within the last 36 months and, in the event that the Contractor is placed 

on the convicted vendor list, the Contractor shall immediately notify the District whereupon this 

Agreement may be terminated by the District. 

 

14. TRENCH SAFETY.    Pursuant to Section 553.60, Florida Statutes, and in the 

event that the Project requires excavation to exceed a depth of 5 feet, the Contractor shall 

provide at the time of the execution of this Agreement the following: 

 

(a) A reference to the trench safety standards that will be in effect during 

the period of construction of the project. 

(b) Written assurance by the contractor performing the trench excavation 

that such contractor will comply with the applicable trench safety 

standards. 

(c) A separate item identifying the cost of compliance with the 

applicable trench safety standards. 

 

Further, Contractor agrees that it shall: 

 

 (a) As a minimum, comply with the excavation safety standards which 

are applicable to a project. 

(b) Adhere to any special shoring requirements, if any, of the state or 

other political subdivisions which may be applicable to such a project. 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0287/Sections/0287.017.html


(c) If any geotechnical information is available from the owner, the 

contractor, or otherwise, the contractor performing trench excavation shall 

consider this information in the contractor’s design of the trench safety 

system which it will employ on the project. This paragraph shall not 

require the District to obtain geotechnical information. 

 

15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood and agreed that at all times 

the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 

and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District.  Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 

employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, 

subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor.  The Parties 

acknowledge that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes.  Contractor 

shall hire and pay all of Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not 

employees of District and at all times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and 

control.  In particular, District will not: i) withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor's 

payments; ii) make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor's 

behalf; iii) withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) make disability 

insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) obtain workers' compensation insurance on 

behalf of Contractor. 

 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  In performing its obligations under this 

Agreement, Contractor and each of its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations, and orders of any public or governmental authority having appropriate jurisdiction, 

including all laws, regulations and rules relating to immigration and/or the status of foreign 

workers.  Contractor shall initiate, maintain, and supervise all safety precautions and programs in 

connection with its obligations herein. Contractor shall ensure that all of Contractor's employees, 

agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor observe 

Contractor's rules and regulations of safety and conduct. Contractor shall take all reasonable 

precautions for the safety of and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury 

or loss to all of its employees, agents and subcontractors performing its obligations herein and 

other persons who may be affected, and any material, equipment and other property.  Contractor 

shall remedy all damage or loss to any property caused in whole or in part by Contractor, its 

employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor, or by 

anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable. Consistent with Section 26 provided for herein, 

Contractor shall indemnify District for all damage or losses it may incur or be exposed to 

because of Contractor or any of its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions contained herein. 

 

17. DEFAULT; INTERFERING THIRD PARTIES.  A default by either party 

under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which 

may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific performance.  The 

District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement against any 



interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s 

right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.  

 

18. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In the event that either Party is required to enforce this 

Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the prevailing party 

shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

 

19. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 

this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 

District and the Contractor. 

 

20. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized 

by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District and the 

Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 

Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 

instrument.  

 

21. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 

Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 

postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties at the addresses first set forth above.  

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 

actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 

delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 

time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business 

day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, 

Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as 

business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on 

behalf of the District and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be 

sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to 

which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties 

and addressees set forth herein. 

 

22. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 

between the District and the Contractor as an arm’s length transaction.  The Parties participated 

fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel.  In the case of a 

dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are deemed 

to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 

interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 

 

23. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 

the District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to 

or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 

Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 

corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by 

reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 



provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 

the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 

representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 

24. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 

Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the 

other. 

 

25. CHOICE OF LAW; VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained 

herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  

Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement 

shall be in St. Johns County, Florida. 

 

26. INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the District and its officers, staff, and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses and 

costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the 

negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of the indemnifying party and 

persons employed or utilized by the indemnifying party in the performance of the construction 

contract.  To the extent required by law to render this section enforceable, the obligations under 

this section shall be limited to no more than $2,000,000.00, which amount Contractor agrees 

bears a reasonable commercial relationship to this Agreement and was part of the bid documents.  

Nothing in this section is intended to waive or alter any other remedies that the District may have 

as against the Contractor.   

 

27. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 

as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited waiver 

of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in 

Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred 

under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law. 

 

28. TERM.  This Agreement shall become effective as of the date first above written, 

and shall terminate upon completion of the Project set forth herein and in any amendment hereto, 

unless cancelled earlier, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

29. TERMINATION.  The District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 

at any time and upon written notice, whether due to Contractor's failure to perform in accordance 

with the terms of this Agreement or for any or no reason.  Contractor shall have the right to 

terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice mailed to the District at the 

address written above stating a failure of the District to perform in accordance with the terms of 

this Agreement and giving the District an opportunity to cure such failure.  The District’s 

liability upon termination of this Agreement shall be limited to paying for the reasonable value 

of labor and materials physically incorporated into the Project up to the date of the notice of 

termination, less any offsets.  Furthermore, the parties acknowledge and agree that the payment 

made upon the execution of this Agreement was to allow Contractor the ability to purchase 



materials to complete the Project.  Should the District terminate this agreement, the District shall 

be entitled to retain ownership of all materials purchased by Contractor with such payment.   

 

30. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 

specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 

inventions, reports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when 

developed and shall be considered work for hire. 

 

31. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Contractor shall allow access to all documents, papers, 

letters, or other materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or 

received by the District in conjunction with this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to comply with 

all applicable public records laws, including but not limited to Section 119.0701 of the Florida 

Statutes, the terms of which are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

32. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 

provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 

portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 

unenforceable. 

 

33. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 

of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

34. MERGER CLAUSE; CONFLICTS.  This instrument shall constitute the final 

and complete expression of the agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of 

this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between this document and Exhibit A, this document 

shall control. 

 

 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Agreement to be 

effective on the day and year first written above. 

WITNESS SIX MILE CREEK CDD 

_________________________ __________________________________________ 

Signature of Witness  Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

_________________________ 

Print Name 

WITNESS AVID TRAILS, LLC 

_________________________ By:___________________________________   

Signature Of Witness  Print:_________________________________ 

Its:___________________________________ 

_________________________ 

Print Name 

Exhibit A: Proposal for Work 

Exhibit B: Plans for the Project 

Exhibit C: Form of Partial Payment Lien Release 

Exhibit D: Form of Final Payment Lien Release  

Exhibit E: Form of Change Order 

Justin Lax
President & Managing Partner

Carrie Russell

Jay Hoeschler



EXHIBIT A 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A -~ AVID TRAILS 

PROPOSAL 
Trai1Mar1< 2020 Trails and Trail Amenity Construction 

For. 
By 
Project: 
Date: 

Six Mile Creek COD 
Ju-stin La.x. President. Avid Trails. LLC 
TrsilMark 2020 Bike & Multi-use Trail Construction and TraiJs Sign.age 
October t. 2020 

Th.3nk you for the op;,onunity to submit a propos3I for the tie\d design. construction and project 
maMgement of TrailMark's 2020 TrniJs and Trail Related Amenity program 

SUMMARY: 

This propos3I includes the following items. 

1. Finsl thggi ng and construction of approximately 11,500 linear feet of natural surface bicycle and 
multi-use single track. including natl\-e soil tread. shell rock tread, and sssoci.3ted eanhen trail 

festures as shown in the fm:il plan seL This portion of construc:t:ion also includes the flagging. 
clearing and tread creation for ap;,ro.ximatel}i2,100 of the furure Skills R>rest bic:,cle skiJls trail 
loo;,s. 

2 . Trail system signage production. instal.btion and project m:magement 

1. Bike & Multi -use Trail Construction $137,286 

Avid Trni1s wiU com;>lete tie\d layout and construc:t:ion of roughly t tSOO line.st feet of natur:il surface 
bicycle and multi-u:ie sing!e track trail on the nonh side of Trail Mark Dr. per provided phns. This 
includes rou9l ly8.5oo ft. of mtive soiJ trail in the woods and 3,000 ft. of aggregate (shell rock) trail in 
so&3ed. ~eve!oped areas. 

Trai1s wiU be constructed using sustainable trai1 building best practices for optima) grade, slope. 

draim~e and user experienoe. The fm.al surface wi)) be roughly 48-. wide, with a 6' wi~ over:ill corri~or 

cleared of ~et:ition . The Avid ere'"' wiJ) u:ie a combination of mechanized equipment and hand labor 
to com;,lete aU clearing. sc:atteri.ng of vegetation, Ue3d construction. 6ml smoothing and re
natur:iliz:ttion. Where necessary, Avid Trails wi)) import mate rial (shell rod< or other loc:il)y sourced soil) 
for the crestion of earthen features such ss berms.and rollers :ilong the trail tresd. The fi.nished pt'OOuct 

will be fun for mountain bikers. hikers.and trai1 ruMers alike. 

43S .659 .~979 I AV I OT RAILS . COM 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In adcition to the prim:iry trail Avid wiU fbg and construct ap;,roxi.mately 2 ., 00 addition:il ft of Skills 
Forest trni1 tre3d as shown in provided ptans. This tread creation wiU be in preparation for the future 
addition of pre-manufactured and site-0Ui1t skills features. 

2. Trai:ls Sign.age S25,736 

Avid Trai1s wiU overree the complete production and implementation of ph3se 1 trail signage at 
Trai1Mark by Signt:ilk Graphix. lncludes production, materi:ils. ptject man:i~ement and field 
observation for :ill signs specified in sign plan. Sign specifications are as follows: 

Sign A (Q.y. i)= Trail map sigoo~eoonstructed from cypresss"xs"x10· posts. wire grid and 
alumnacore panel with UV di9 t.3) prints and acrylic cover double face. 
Sign B (Qty. 4)= Tr:iil map sign.a~ :fXA' alumnacore p.3ne1 with UV digit:il prints and ac:ry)icc:over to 
be installed on kiosk. 
Sign C (Qty. 6): wsy6.nding sign:ige 4MX4~x.to' posts with 1/4" aluminum fsoes(2 sided) with digital 

prints b min:ited in graffiti resistant 00\'ers. 

Sign D (Qty. 30): trail markerdirectionil with ~i"X4MX6' ~ts and alumnacore tq> plates and 
direct:i003] plates. 
Sign E (Qty. 10)= trai1 m:irkerdirectionslwith 4•x,1°xOposts and :ilumnacore top ~ tesand 
direct:i003] plates. 
Sign F: (Qty. 8) interpreth-e sign mounted onto 4~14·xo posts at 3-f back he ight. ful) color print 
laminated unto 3/8~ :iluminum and covered in \;raffrti resistant cove.ring. 

Fees and Terms 

T0t:1l Project Fees: 
Lodging Budget (to be billed at net): 
Totah 

Terms: 

Upon signing: 
Substantiil com;,letion: 
Ret:iin:i~e: 

Justin Lax 
President 

By, 

Client Ap;,,rov:il 

u6 3,022 

$7,500 

tl? 0 ,522 

Date 

43S .659 .~979 I AV I OT RAI L S. COM 



 

EXHIBIT B 

PLANS 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGN TYPE QTY

Trailhead Kiosk 1

Interpretive Display 8

Directional Sign 5

Trail Marker 25 - 30

Quarter Mile Post* 9

*Quarter mile markers are proposed for  
Riding Bear Path.

Trails Signage Plan

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

TRAILMARK 



TrailMark Signage Count   |  St. Augustine, FL

Tr
ai

l S
ig

na
g

e 
an

d
 W

ay
fi

nd
in

g
C

o
m

m
un

it
y 

o
f 

Tr
ai

lm
ar

k

Lambertville, PA
El Segundo, CA
Park City, UT
Avon, CO

03.20.20

A

DRAWN BY: JH

VERSION: 1.0

SHEET:

435-659-4979
AvidTrails.com

G
re

en
p

o
in

te
 H

o
ld

in
g

s,
 S

t.
 A

ug
us

ti
ne

 F
L

DATE:

SCALE:  3/4” = 1 FT

5"5" 4"

4" 4"

4'
-1

3/
32

"

4'-8 5/8"

4'-7"

1'-8"

2'
-4

"

4'-0"

3'
-0

"

8'
-0

"

8'
-0

"

3'
-7

 7
/3

2"

1'
-8

 1
5/

32
"

4"
4"

4"

5x5 TREATED CYPRESS POSTS
GROUND FOOTINGS PER CODE

3/8” ALUMACORE 
SIGN FACE SIZES 
VARY BY CONTENT

DIRECTIONAL POSTS
AND MILEAGE MARKER FACES
ARE 1/8” ALUMACORE
SIZES 3/3/4” X VARIOUS DEPTH 

INTERPRETIVE 
DISPLAY FACES ARE 
FULL COLOR PRINT 
WITH UV INKS. 
SIZES TBD BY
CONTENT

ALL CEDAR POSTS FEATURE 
45 DEGREE BEVEL DETAIL

SIGN A: TRAILHEAD MAP + POSTS
DOUBLE FACED
QTY: 1

SIGN C: DIRECTIONAL
DOUBLE FACED
QTY: 6

SIGN D: TRAIL MARKER
UP TO 4 FACES
QTY: 30

SIGN E: QUARTER-MILE MARKER
TWO FACES
QTY: 10

SIGN F: INTERPRETIVE DISPLAY
SINGLE FACE
QTY: 8

SIGN B: 36x48 MAP ONLY
QTY: 4
SINGLE FACED
(to be intalled on kiosk 
constructed by others)

- ~~ r 
1/ 

~ 

- ,____ 

I I I I I I I I I 
......_ -

- ~0[1 ~ ~ [KlQD[ill~ -
......_ -

- -
......_ -

- -

......_ -
I I I I I I I I I 

1 
, 
I 

~ r 
>---

/ 
@XI~~ 
~ (?£(g(3 

~~ 
~ 
~m~ 

7 ----
./ -- -

- -

-

---
/ I 

I I , 
□~~wm~ [ID□0~~v 

@~~ ~[ID @®~~~1r w~ 

---- i---

--

_/p 

----~ 

~ 

-~ AVID TRAILS 



.-. .. 
I ......... 

·, .... ....... . ' ..... 
I ....... I .... , .. 
: ......... 

I 
I 
I 

I 

PROJECT 

CLIENT 

DATE 

Trailmark 

03.24.2020 DRAWNBY ZDP VERSION 
01 

Avid 
TRAILS 

BIKE TRAIL 
Bike Optim· ,□cATl□N ized Trail 

SHEET 

WEB 

EMAIL 

PHONE 

St Joh . ns County, Florida 

www.avidtrails.com 

info@avidtrails.com 

435.659.4979 



LEGEND 

• 

-

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

01 
...... _ --

Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

............ __ 

TILE 05 

HTLE 

PROJECT 

BIKE TRAIL - TILE REFERENC~ 
Bike Optimized Trail 

CLIENT Trailmark ,ocATl□ N St Johns County, Florida 

l" ~ 500 Feet 11 6,000 

DATUM 

-~-----------=---:-:--:-=~:;~~~~;~; SCALE 
State Plane Florida East 2011 [US Feet] 

pp: J:ECT~IO~N _______ _::::_~~=~:;~~~;;;-;~ 
500 North American Datum 1983 --.:0~----------= 

01 
DATE DRAWN BY 

03.09.2020 ZDP 

1,000 

VERSION 

E9 
SHEET 

1/8 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 

EMAIL 

www.avidtrails.com 

info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



X 492,766 
Y 2,035, 650 

............ 
............ ...... _ -------------...... ............ 

............ .......... .......... 
........ ------------.... .......... -..... __ _ 

LEGEND 

• 

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

--- Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

- Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

TrTLE 

BIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 01 

PROJECT 

Bike Optmized Trail 
CLIENT 

Trailmark 
LOCATION 

St Johns County, Florida 

DATE DRAWN BY 

03.24.2020 ZDP 
VERSION SHEET 

01 2 / 8 

PROJECTION 

State Plane Florida East 2011 [US Feet] 

DATUM 

North American Datum 1983 

SCALE 

l" ~ 100 Feet I 11,200 

0 100 200 

E9 
D5CLAIMER 

This product is for informational purposes and 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the data and information sources to 

are 
warranties of any either 

or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 
www.avidtrails.com 

EMAIL 
info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



I 

\ 
\ 
I 
I 
l...._ ..... , 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

' ..... _ ----.......... .......... .......... .......... .......... ..... _ -----, 
' ' 

' Rollers ', 
,.__ (Alt Line) , 

--:::::::====:::::-----, ' 
'~ ' X: 494, ' \ 

Y: 2,0 35,345 ............... \ , .......... 
\ ,, I 
\ ~, I 

l ', / ', ' // ' / 'v X: 494,941 ,_ / ----
Y: 2,035,155 ---✓ 

LEGEND 

• 

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

--- Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

- Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

TrTLE 

BIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 02 

PROJECT 

Bike Optmized Trail 
CLIENT 

Trailmark 
LOCATION 

St Johns County, Florida 

DATE DRAWN BY 

03.24.2020 ZDP 
VERSION SHEET 

01 3 / 8 

PROJECTION 

State Plane Florida East 2011 [US Feet] 

DATUM 

North American Datum 1983 

SCALE 

l" ~ 100 Feet I 11,200 

0 100 200 

E9 
D5CLAIMER 

This product is for informa t ional purposes and 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the data and information sources to 

are 
warranties of any either 

or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 
www.avidtrails.com 

EMAIL 
info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



NOTE: THIS TRAIL ALIGNMENT WILL BE 
CONSTRUCTED DURING CURRENT SCOPE,  
BUT FEATURES INDICATED WILL NOT BE 

INSTALLED AT THIS TIME

. . 
Wooden Berm Y: 2,0 35,0 

' it Decisi i 

~ 

X: 495, 287 
Y: 2,035,075 

~Speed Platform 
X: 495,299 
Y: 2,035,056 

~Advanced 
JI' Drop Zone 

X: 495,3 40 
Y: 2,03 5,026 -.. Drop Zone 

Snake Ladder 
Rock Garden!.----:-;::::::.===:::::::::::::----

4/ 6-Pack Rollers 
w/Table Top 
X: 495.400 
Y: 2,03 4,98 4 

' ' ' ' \,-~~--

X: 495,52 5 
Y: 2,035, ~ 

Pass-Thru 
Shade Pavilion 

\ , __ _ 

X: 49. 68 
Y: 2,035,083 • I 
I 

# 

-------------

, __ _ 

--- ........ 

BIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 03 

0 

Bike Optmized Trai l 

Trail mark 

St. Johns County, Flor ida 

03.24 .2020 

01 

ZDP 

4/8 

State Plane Florida East 2011 (US Feet) 

North American Datum 1983 

1 • = 50 Feet 11 600 

50 100 

E9 
This product 1s for 1nformat1onal purposes and may not have 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, engineering, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the primary data and information sources to 
ascertain the usability of the information. The maps are 
distnbuted 'AS- IS' without warranties of any kind, either 
expressed or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
of su1tab1hty to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

www.av idt rails.com 

info@avidt rails.com 

435.659.4979 



----------.......... -... ...... ' ,, 
, Roller ,, 

"'-, Table Top (Alt Line) ---~ :..' d!IBlil!II"' 
' ~~-----------------,, ---....._ _______ ~ 

X: 49 6 ,113 
Y: 2 ,035 ,179 

X 4 96,242 
Y 2 ,035 ,181 

X 496 ,540 
Y 2,0 35,245 

LEGEND 

• 

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

--- Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

- Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

TrTLE 

BIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 04 

PROJECT 

Bike Optmized Trail 
CLIENT 

Trailmark 
LOCATION 

St Johns County, Florida 

DATE DRAWN BY 

03.24.2020 ZDP 
VERSION SHEET 

01 5 / 8 

PROJECTION 

State Plane Florida East 2011 [US Feet] 

DATUM 

North American Datum 1983 

SCALE 

l" ~ 100 Feet I 11,200 

0 100 200 

E9 
DUL.AIMER 

This product is for informational purposes and 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the data and information sources to 

are 
warranties of any either 

or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 
www.avidtrails.com 

EMAIL 
info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



X 497,088 
Y 2,035,556 

LEGEND 

• 

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

--- Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

- Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

TrTLE 

BIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 05 

PROJECT 

Bike Optmized Trail 
CLIENT 

Trailmark 
LOCATION 

St Johns County, Florida 

DATE DRAWN BY 

03.24.2020 ZDP 
VERSION SHEET 

01 6 / 8 

PROJECTION 

State Plane Florida East 2011 [US Feet] 

DATUM 

North American Datum 1983 

SCALE 

l" ~ 100 Feet I 11,200 

0 100 200 

E9 
D5CLAIMER 

This product is for informational purposes and 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the data and information sources to 

are 
warranties of any either 

or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 
www.avidtrails.com 

EMAIL 
info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

LEGEND 

• 

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

--- Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

- Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

rnLEBIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 06 

PROJECT 

Bike Optmized Trail 
CLIENT 

Trailmark 
LOCATION 

St Johns County, Florida 

DATE DRAWN BY 

03.24.2020 ZDP 
VERSION SHEET 

01 7/8 

PROJECTION 

State Plane Florida Central 2011 [US Feet] 

DATUM 

North American Datum 1983 

SCALE 

l" ~ 100 Feet I 11,200 

0 100 200 

E9 
D5CLAIMER 

This product is for informational purposes and 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the data and information sources to 
ascertain the of the information. The are 
distributed "AS-IS" warranties of any either 

or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 
www.avidtrails.com 

EMAIL 
info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



X 499,173 
Y 2,035,14 0 

LEGEND 

• 

Trail - Natural Surface 

Trail - Aggregate Surface 

Bike Feature 

--- Wetland Boundary (ACOE) 

- Wetland (SJWMD) 

Upland Buffer (SJWMD) 

TrTLE 

BIKE TRAIL ALIGNMENT 
TILE 07 

PROJECT 

Bike Optmized Trail 
CLIENT 

Trailmark 
LOCATION 

St Johns County, Florida 

DATE DRAWN BY 

03.24.2020 ZDP 
VERSION SHEET 

01 8 / 8 

PROJECTION 

State Plane Florida East 2011 [US Feet] 

DATUM 

North American Datum 1983 

SCALE 

l" ~ 100 Feet I 11,200 

0 100 200 

E9 
D5CLAIMER 

This product is for informational purposes and 
been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, or 
surveying purposes. Users of this information should review 
or consult the data and information sources to 

of the information. The are 
warranties of any either 

or implied, including but not limited to warranties 
to a particular purpose or use 

Avid 
TRAILS 

WEB 
www.avidtrails.com 

EMAIL 
info@avidtrails.com 

PHONE 435.659.4979 



 

EXHIBIT C 

 

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 

UPON PARTIAL PAYMENT 

 

 The undersigned lienor (“Lienor”), with offices at _______________________________,  

and in consideration of payment in the amount of $___________________________, hereby waives and 

releases its lien and/or right to claim a lien – or seek further payment – for labor, services, or materials furnished 

to the Meadow View at Twin Creeks Community Development District (“District”) for all work provided 

pursuant to the agreement (“Agreement”) dated _________________ 20__, between the Lienor and District, 

and for the period from the effective date of the Agreement and through _______________.  

 

 This waiver and release does not cover any retention, labor, services, or materials furnished after the 

date specified.   

 

 Acknowledged this _____ day of                           , 20__. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

        [Contractor/Lienor] 

 

ATTEST 

       ___________________________________ 

________________________    [signature] 

[signature]       

       By:________________________________ 

             [print name] 

________________________ 

[print name]      Its:________________________________ 

              [print title] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT D 

        

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 

UPON FINAL PAYMENT 

 

 The undersigned lienor (“Lienor”), with offices at _______________________________,  

and in consideration of the final payment in the amount of $___________________________, hereby waives 

and releases its lien and right to claim a lien – or seek further payment – for labor, services, or materials 

furnished to the Meadow View at Twin Creeks Community Development District for all work provided 

pursuant to the agreement (“Agreement”) dated _________________ 20__, between the Lienor and District.  
 

Acknowledged this _____ day of                          , 20__. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

        [Contractor/Lienor] 

 

ATTEST 

       ___________________________________ 

________________________    [signature] 

[signature]       

       By:________________________________ 

             [print name] 

________________________ 

[print name]      Its:________________________________ 

              [print title] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          



 

EXHIBIT E 

Change Order 
No. ___________ 

Date of Issuance:  Effective Date:  

    
Project: Owner: Owner's Contract No.: 

Contract: Date of Contract: 

Contractor: Engineer's Project No.: 

  

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description:   

  

  

Attachments:  (List documents supporting change):  

  

  

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:  CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES: 

Original Contract Price:  Original Contract Times:   Working days    Calendar days 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change 

Orders No.____________ to No.____________: 

 [Increase] [Decrease]  from previously approved Change Orders 

No.____________ to No.____________: 

   Substantial completion (days):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days):   

        

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:  Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order:  [Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:  Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

RECOMMENDED:  ACCEPTED:  ACCEPTED: 

By:    By:    By:   

Engineer (Authorized Signature)  Owner (Authorized Signature)  Contractor (Authorized Signature) 

Date:    Date:    Date:   

     

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable):   Date:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

I 



CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into to be effective the ___ 

day of October, 2020, by and between: 

 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local 

unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 

Statutes, and located in St. Johns County, Florida, and with an address of c/o 

Governmental Management Services, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 

World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 ("District"), and 

 

AVID TRAILS, LLC, a foreign limited liability company, whose address is 22 

North Union St., Lambertville, NJ 08530 (“Contractor,” and together with the 

District, “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 

constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure improvements and 

recreational facilities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide the 

services identified in the attached Exhibit A and described herein and Contractor represents that 

it is capable of providing such services and desires to contract with the District to do so in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 

constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure improvements and 

recreational facilities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 

and authority to enter into and be bound by this agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual 

covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 

incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the 

Contractor are to provide the construction work and services described in Exhibit A, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein (“Project”).  The Project shall be provided in accordance with the 

Plans attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein.  Contractor represents that it has had 

an opportunity to review and inspect such plans. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the 

means, manner, and methods by which its duties, obligations, and responsibilities are met.  

2



Contractor shall report directly to the District Manager or his/her designee.  The District may 

require Contractor to provide shop drawings, or other evidence as the District requires, assuring 

the District that the Project will be provided to the District’s satisfaction.  Contractor shall use all 

due care to protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage.  

Contractor agrees to initiate the repair of any damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and 

work within forty-eight (48) hours (and complete such repair within a reasonable time). 

 

3. SHOP DRAWINGS. Contractor is and shall be responsible for planning and 

performance of the services necessary to complete the Project under this Agreement.  Where 

shop drawings and/or finish samples are required for i) fabrication of Contractor furnished 

equipment; ii) installing Contractor furnished material or equipment; or iii) planning and 

performance of the Project under this Agreement, such drawings and/or finish samples shall be 

submitted by and at the expense of the Contractor before fabrication, installation or performance 

as commenced. 

 

If the drawings show variations from the requirements of this Agreement, the Contractor 

shall describe such variations in writing, separate from the drawings, at the time of submission.  

If the District approves any such variation(s), it shall issue an appropriate Agreement 

modification, except that, if the variation is minor and does not involve a change in price or in 

time of performance, a modification need not be issued. 

 

By approving and submitting shop drawings and samples, the Contractor represents that 

it has determined and verified all field measurements, filed construction criteria, materials and 

other similar data, and that it has checked and coordinated each shop drawing with the 

requirements of the Project and of this Agreement.   

 

4. TIMING.  The Contractor shall commence the Project on December 1, 2020 and 

shall be obligated to fully complete the Project within 90 days.  It shall be District’s obligation to 

obtain and pay for any permits required to commence work.  Upon the District’s request, 

Contractor shall furnish such evidence as the District requires concerning ability to timely 

complete the Project.  Contractor must coordinate its work with others performing work for the 

District as the District directs.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that time is of the essence 

for the completion of the Project and shall work overtime or extra shifts, without the right for any 

additional compensation, as necessary to meet or maintain construction schedules.  

 

5. COMPENSATION.  The total cost to complete the Project is $112,012.00.  

Compensation for completion of the Project shall be as follows: 1) payment in the amount of 

$50,405.50 shall be due upon execution of the Agreement; 2) payment in the amount of 

$50,405.50 shall be due upon substantial completion of the Project; and 3) payment in the 

amount of $11,201 shall be due upon final completion of the Project.   

 

Upon substantial completion, which shall mean that the Project is deemed 

sufficiently completed to the point where the District can use it for its intended purpose, 

Contractor shall submit to the District an invoice and supporting documentation for the services 

satisfactorily performed by Contractor to substantially complete the Project (“Payment 

Application”).  The District agrees to remit payment for said services within twenty-five (25) 



days of receipt of an appropriate Payment Application from Contractor.  Contractor shall include 

with its Payment Application unconditional releases of lien from all subcontractors, suppliers 

and lienors corresponding to payments made and an executed waiver and release of lien upon 

progress payment in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.  Payment Applications and all 

supporting data shall be prepared by Contractor and submitted in writing for the District’s 

approval, covering the amount and value of services satisfactorily performed by Contractor.  

Contractor acknowledges that payment for services does not constitute acceptance of the specific 

services or the Project.  The submission by Contractor of its Payment Application shall be a 

representation by Contractor that all work indicated therein as complete is complete and has been 

completed in accordance with this Agreement. 

  

 Approval of Contractor’s Payment Application for the total amount then outstanding 

under this Agreement (“Final Payment Application”), shall be approved by the District upon 

final completion, which shall occur upon the following conditions being satisfied: i) District 

Engineer’s certification that the Project is satisfactorily complete;  ii) completion of any 

applicable punchlist; iii) assignment of all manufacturer’s or subcontractor’s warranties on 

material or equipment installed; iv) final waivers/releases of lien from all vendors, 

subcontractors and materialmen which have provided labor and/or materials for performance of 

the services necessary to complete the Project which shall accompany Contractor’s Final 

Payment Application; v) completion of any required as-built plans; and vi) execution of a wavier 

and release of lien in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D.  

 

6. CHANGE ORDERS.  Contractor understands that the Project may be reduced, 

enlarged or otherwise modified in scope.  If any additional services are proposed beyond those 

identified in this Agreement, Contractor shall perform them but only after receiving a written 

change order from the District or the District Manager’s designee.  Contractor shall not perform 

any service omitted from the Agreement by deductive change order. Contractor shall cooperate 

with and assist the District in preparing and determining the scope of any change order.  In the 

event this is a unit price Agreement, Contractor’s compensation shall be adjusted for the added 

or deducted services proposed by the change order in accordance with the unit prices established 

in this Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is not a unit price agreement, Contractor’s 

compensation shall be adjusted for the added or deducted services proposed by the change order 

as reasonably determined by the District in conference with the Contractor.  All change orders 

shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E.  

 

7. WARRANTY AND COVENANT.  The Contractor warrants to the District that 

all materials furnished under this Agreement shall be new, and that all services and materials 

shall be of good quality, and free from faults and defects. Neither final acceptance of the Project, 

nor final payment therefore, nor any provision of the Agreement shall relieve Contractor of 

responsibility for defective or deficient materials or services.  If any of the services or materials 

provided under this Agreement are found to be defective, deficient or not in accordance with the 

Agreement, Contractor shall correct, remove and replace it promptly after receipt of a written 

notice from the District and correct and pay for any other damage resulting therefrom to District 

property or the property of landowner’s within the District. The Contractor shall assign all 

manufacturer’s warranties to the District. 

 



Contractor hereby covenants to the District that it shall perform the services necessary to 

complete the Project: (i) using its best skill and judgment and in accordance with generally 

accepted professional and design standards and practices for projects of similar design and 

complexity as the development occurring within the District; (ii) in compliance with all 

applicable federal, state, county municipal, building and zoning, land use, environmental, public 

safety, non-discrimination and disability accessibility laws, codes, ordinances, rules and 

regulations, including, without limitation, all professional registration (both corporate and 

individual) for all required basic disciplines that it shall perform; and (iii) in an expeditious and 

economical manner consistent with the best interest of the District.  Contractor hereby covenants 

to the District that any work product of the Contractor shall not call for the use of, nor infringe, 

any patent, trademark, services mark, copyright or other proprietary interest claimed or held by 

any person or business entity absent prior written consent from the District.  

 

8. INSURANCE  AND BONDS.  Until final completion, all risk of loss to the work 

at the Project shall be assumed by Contractor.  Contractor shall purchase and maintain, in a 

company or companies acceptable to District and lawfully authorized to do business in the 

jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance upon all of the work at the Project 

site to the full insurable value thereof.  This insurance shall be on an all-risk policy form and 

shall include interests of District, Contractor, Subcontractors and sub-Subcontractors in the Work 

and shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and physical loss or damage 

including, without duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief. 

Each policy obtained by Contractor shall contain a provision that the policy will not be 

cancelled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to 

District. 

Contractor, for the protection and benefit of District and any and all of its assignees, 

trustees, beneficiaries, agents and employees and any other party identified in Paragraph 26 

(collectively the “Indemnitees”) shall specifically procure, pay for, and maintain, in full force 

and effect until final payment (unless otherwise designated), at no expense to District, the 

following policies of insurance to be written by an insurer acceptable to District in its sole 

discretion, who is qualified to do business in the State of Florida and which shall, at a minimum, 

afford the following types and limits of coverage: 

a.  Broad Form Commercial General Liability insurance written on 

an occurrence basis (including Premises/Operations Liability, Products and Completed 

Operations Liability, Independent Contractors Liability, Contractual Liability, Broad 

Form Property Damage Liability, Explosion, Collapse and Underground Hazard Liability 

and Personal Injury Liability) (“CGL”) in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property 

damage and in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) total 

aggregate liability; 

b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance in the statutory amounts and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00); 



c. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance to cover owned, 

long-term leased, hired, and non-owned automobiles (including medical payments and 

uninsured motorists coverages) in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury and One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for property damage; 

d. Umbrella Liability Insurance providing coverage in excess of the 

limits specified above (except Workers’ Compensation Insurance) in a minimum amount 

of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and in the aggregate; and 

e. Such other insurance as District may reasonably require. 

If Contractor fails to purchase and maintain any insurance required herein, District may, 

but shall not be obligated to, upon five (5) days’ written notice to Contractor, purchase such 

insurance on behalf of Contractor and shall be entitled to be reimbursed by Contractor promptly 

upon demand or deduct the amount of such premiums from the Contract Sum. 

Contractor’s equipment shall be insured by Contractor with no obligation or liability 

extending to District.  Contractor is solely responsible for any loss or damage to the machinery, 

equipment or tools owned or used by Contractor or Subcontractors in connection with the Work 

and must carry insurance at its own expense to cover such risk of loss.   

 

9. SUBCONTRACTORS.  By appropriate agreement, written where legally 

required for validity, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor, to the extent of the services 

to be performed by the subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of this Agreement, 

and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the 

responsibility for safety of the subcontractor’s services, which the Contractor assumes toward the 

District. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the District under 

the Agreement with respect to the services to be performed by the subcontractor so that 

subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights.  Where appropriate, the Contractor shall 

require each subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with sub-subcontractors.  The 

Contractor shall make available to each proposed subcontractor, prior to the execution of the 

subcontract agreement, copies of the Agreement to which the subcontractor will be bound, and, 

upon written request of the subcontractor, identify to the subcontractor terms and conditions of 

the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Agreement. Subcontractors 

will similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective 

proposed sub-subcontractors. 

 

10. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  [Reserved.] 

 

11. ACCEPTANCE BY LOCAL GOVERNMENTS.  Contractor acknowledges 

that all work may be subject to inspections, tests, and approvals by the District, city, county, 

federal, state, other governmental entity, or utility company inspectors and that all or some 

portion of the work may be conveyed to another governmental entity or utility company.  No 

work is complete until it passes final inspection / approval by the District as well as the 

applicable city, county, federal state, other governmental entity, or utility company.  Contractor 

shall provide at its expense any written warranties, certifications, bonds or other documentation 



as may be required in connection with the conveyance of any work, or as may be otherwise 

required, by any city, county, federal, state, other governmental entity or utility company. 

 

12. CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS.  PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, 

FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE 

NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 

558, FLORIDA STATUTES. 
 

13. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES.    Pursuant to Section 287.133(3)(a), Florida Statutes: 

 

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 

following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 

proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a 

public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a 

public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 

work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property 

to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, 

supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public 

entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of 

the threshold amount provided in s. 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a 

period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 

vendor list. 

 

Contractor represents that in entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been placed on 

the convicted vendor list within the last 36 months and, in the event that the Contractor is placed 

on the convicted vendor list, the Contractor shall immediately notify the District whereupon this 

Agreement may be terminated by the District. 

 

14. TRENCH SAFETY.    Pursuant to Section 553.60, Florida Statutes, and in the 

event that the Project requires excavation to exceed a depth of 5 feet, the Contractor shall 

provide at the time of the execution of this Agreement the following: 

 

(a) A reference to the trench safety standards that will be in effect during 

the period of construction of the project. 

(b) Written assurance by the contractor performing the trench excavation 

that such contractor will comply with the applicable trench safety 

standards. 

(c) A separate item identifying the cost of compliance with the 

applicable trench safety standards. 

 

Further, Contractor agrees that it shall: 

 

 (a) As a minimum, comply with the excavation safety standards which 

are applicable to a project. 

(b) Adhere to any special shoring requirements, if any, of the state or 

other political subdivisions which may be applicable to such a project. 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0287/Sections/0287.017.html


(c) If any geotechnical information is available from the owner, the 

contractor, or otherwise, the contractor performing trench excavation shall 

consider this information in the contractor’s design of the trench safety 

system which it will employ on the project. This paragraph shall not 

require the District to obtain geotechnical information. 

 

15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood and agreed that at all times 

the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 

and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District.  Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 

employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, 

subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor.  The Parties 

acknowledge that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes.  Contractor 

shall hire and pay all of Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not 

employees of District and at all times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and 

control.  In particular, District will not: i) withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor's 

payments; ii) make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor's 

behalf; iii) withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) make disability 

insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) obtain workers' compensation insurance on 

behalf of Contractor. 

 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  In performing its obligations under this 

Agreement, Contractor and each of its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations, and orders of any public or governmental authority having appropriate jurisdiction, 

including all laws, regulations and rules relating to immigration and/or the status of foreign 

workers.  Contractor shall initiate, maintain, and supervise all safety precautions and programs in 

connection with its obligations herein. Contractor shall ensure that all of Contractor's employees, 

agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor observe 

Contractor's rules and regulations of safety and conduct. Contractor shall take all reasonable 

precautions for the safety of and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury 

or loss to all of its employees, agents and subcontractors performing its obligations herein and 

other persons who may be affected, and any material, equipment and other property.  Contractor 

shall remedy all damage or loss to any property caused in whole or in part by Contractor, its 

employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor, or by 

anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable. Consistent with Section 26 provided for herein, 

Contractor shall indemnify District for all damage or losses it may incur or be exposed to 

because of Contractor or any of its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions contained herein. 

 

17. DEFAULT; INTERFERING THIRD PARTIES.  A default by either party 

under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which 

may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific performance.  The 

District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement against any 



interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s 

right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.  

 

18. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In the event that either Party is required to enforce this 

Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the prevailing party 

shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

 

19. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 

this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 

District and the Contractor. 

 

20. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized 

by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District and the 

Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 

Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 

instrument.  

 

21. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 

Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 

postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties at the addresses first set forth above.  

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 

actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 

delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 

time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business 

day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, 

Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as 

business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on 

behalf of the District and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be 

sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to 

which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties 

and addressees set forth herein. 

 

22. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 

between the District and the Contractor as an arm’s length transaction.  The Parties participated 

fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel.  In the case of a 

dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are deemed 

to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 

interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 

 

23. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 

the District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to 

or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 

Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 

corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by 

reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 



provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 

the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 

representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 

24. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 

Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the 

other. 

 

25. CHOICE OF LAW; VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained 

herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  

Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement 

shall be in St. Johns County, Florida. 

 

26. INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the District and its officers, staff, and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses and 

costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the 

negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of the indemnifying party and 

persons employed or utilized by the indemnifying party in the performance of the construction 

contract.  To the extent required by law to render this section enforceable, the obligations under 

this section shall be limited to no more than $2,000,000.00, which amount Contractor agrees 

bears a reasonable commercial relationship to this Agreement and was part of the bid documents.  

Nothing in this section is intended to waive or alter any other remedies that the District may have 

as against the Contractor.   

 

27. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 

as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited waiver 

of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in 

Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred 

under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law. 

 

28. TERM.  This Agreement shall become effective as of the date first above written, 

and shall terminate upon completion of the Project set forth herein and in any amendment hereto, 

unless cancelled earlier, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

29. TERMINATION.  The District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 

at any time and upon written notice, whether due to Contractor's failure to perform in accordance 

with the terms of this Agreement or for any or no reason.  Contractor shall have the right to 

terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice mailed to the District at the 

address written above stating a failure of the District to perform in accordance with the terms of 

this Agreement and giving the District an opportunity to cure such failure.  The District’s 

liability upon termination of this Agreement shall be limited to paying for the reasonable value 

of labor and materials physically incorporated into the Project up to the date of the notice of 

termination, less any offsets.  Furthermore, the parties acknowledge and agree that the payment 

made upon the execution of this Agreement was to allow Contractor the ability to purchase 



materials to complete the Project.  Should the District terminate this agreement, the District shall 

be entitled to retain ownership of all materials purchased by Contractor with such payment.   

 

30. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 

specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 

inventions, reports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when 

developed and shall be considered work for hire. 

 

31. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Contractor shall allow access to all documents, papers, 

letters, or other materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or 

received by the District in conjunction with this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to comply with 

all applicable public records laws, including but not limited to Section 119.0701 of the Florida 

Statutes, the terms of which are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

32. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 

provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 

portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 

unenforceable. 

 

33. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 

of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

34. MERGER CLAUSE; CONFLICTS.  This instrument shall constitute the final 

and complete expression of the agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of 

this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between this document and Exhibit A, this document 

shall control. 

 

 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Agreement to be 

effective on the day and year first written above. 

WITNESS SIX MILE CREEK CDD 

_________________________ __________________________________________ 

Signature of Witness  Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

______________________ 

Print Name 

WITNESS AVID TRAILS, LLC 

_________________________ By:___________________________________   

Signature Of Witness  Print:_________________________________ 

Its:___________________________________ 

_________________________ 

Print Name 

Exhibit A: Proposal for Work 

Exhibit B: Plans for the Project 

Exhibit C: Form of Partial Payment Lien Release 

Exhibit D: Form of Final Payment Lien Release  

Exhibit E: Form of Change Order 

Justin Lax
President & Managing Partner

Jay Hoeschler

Carrie Russell



EXHIBIT A 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSAL 
TrailMar1< 2020 Trails and Trail Amenity Construction 

R>r: 

By 
Pro)eC< 

Date: 

StxMJleCreekCOO 
Justin Lax, President. Avid Trat1s. LLC 
T r:ulMark 2020 Tratls and Tratl Amenity Construc00n 
September 28, 2020 

A -~ AVID T RAILS 

Thank you for the q,ponuntty to submit a prq,osil for the field design, construcnon and project 
management of Tra!lM.ark"s 2020 Tratls and Tr:ul Related Amenny program. 

SUMMARY: 

This proposl) tndudes the following Items. 

t. Com;,lete lnst3Uauon of Avtd Ach-enture Tra!l tncludtng Kempon features as shown 1n provtded 
exhtbtts. includes feature purchase and tnstilb uon, fa)) 1.0ne excavauon and engtnee.red wood 
tibet tnstilbuon, shell rock tr:u) tre3d tnstill.3uon and aU assoaated pro,ect msnsgement 

2. Trat1head gatewsy tnst:tll and project m:mageme-nt 

1. Avid Adventur e Trail S90,940 

Avid Trads wtU o-.·ersee and mansge the complete Ach-enture Trad 1nst:ill 1ncludtng purchsstng of 
Kom;>3n Robinia equipment. tnstil!3aon of eight stations by Komp:m, and lnst3lbuon of the Adventure 
Trad shell rock p.3th by the Avid. 

Scope tncludes the followtng. Complete detatl In 202009-28 TratlMark Adwmture Trail Kompartpdf. 

Kompan F,qutpment. Purchase & Freight (qt;t 8) 
lnstallatton of Kompan F.qutpmem, tncludtrrg EWFloH zones:
Shell rock advent!Jre trail uead install (1,600 LI): 

Subtotal: 

"43S.659 4979 I AVIO TRA ILS.COM 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Trailhead Gateway S21,072 

Includes proJeCl m:1n.3ge-ment. permttsand tnstalhuon of P3!nted pergola Tratlhe3d Gate-w.iy. lnst:ill to 
be completed by Be-nt Coostrucuon wtth Avtd Trails project m:1n.3ge-ment and oo-s1te observauon. 

Fees and Terms 

Total Proj ect Fees : 

Terms;: 

Upon signing: 
Subst:inual comp1euon: 
Retatnage: 

Jusun Lax 
President 

Clte-nt Ap;,roval 

$ 112.,0 12 

'5'}.40$5() 

'5'}.40$5() 

$11,20 1 

Date 

435.659 4979 I AVIO TRA ILS.COM 



 

EXHIBIT B 

PLANS 

 

 

 

 

 



TrailMark Adventure Trail   |  Kompan Features

WOBBLE
BRIDGE

STILTS

TURBO
CHALLENGE

WATER
LILIES

PARKOUR
ONE

BALANCE
NET

BALANCE
POLES

CRAWLING
PYRAMID

Item no. NRO826-0801

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 13'1"x13'3"x4'11"
Age group 5 - 12
Play capacity (users) 6
Color options

The Crawling Pyramid is a hit with children. The 
hap-hazardly placed beams is a magnet for 
their eagerness to climb and explore the unit. 
The inclined and horizontal beams invite a 
number of classic playground games, all 
cantered around balancing such as The Ground 
is Lava or tag. With its inclined layout, the 
Crawling Pyramid constantly challenges the 

sense of balance in children. The sense of 
balance is fundamental for all other senses. It 
makes it possible to run, to sit still, concentrate 
and learn, but it also gives children the 
confidence that they can manage the world and 
adjust, when they are at the edge of loosing 
balance. The many horizontal beams of the 
Crawling Pyramid invites a break and 

socializing. This is important for children's 
social-emotional skills and forming friendships.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 9/25/2020

12 1 2 4

Crawling Pyramid
NRO826

Item no. NRO817-1001

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 7’6” x 1’8” x 8’6”
Age Group 5-12
Play Capacity 2 children
Color Options

The Balance Poles are wonderful climbing, 
sitting and meeting ropes that children will want 
to try out repeatedly. One of the reasons is that 
they move when children climb upon them and 
when they are balancing. Children love the 
responsive play more than anything. They will 
balance across the four ropes of the Balance 
Poles and train their balance and 

proprioception while doing so. Balance and 
proprioception are fundamental skills for 
confidently managing the body in its 
surroundings. This is important for instance 
when navigating street traffic safely. But it also 
plays an important role for children's self 
confidence. Balancing across the Balance 
Poles with friends also trains turn-taking and 

negotiation. These are important social-
emotional skills that are basic to the ability to 
form friendship and relate to peers. All in all, so 
much more than play.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 2/24/2020

4 8 4 2

5

BALANCE POLES
NRO817

Item no. NRO831-1001

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 9’10” x 4’1” x 3’3”
Age Group 5-12
Play Capacity 3 children
Color Options

The Balance Net is a social attraction in the 
playground: a meeting point all made of net. 
The Balance Net offers a welcome break from 
all of the wilder action in the playground. It is a 
popular point to retreat to, for meeting and 
talking. This appeals to older and younger 
children alike. The Balance Net allows for 
different body positions: lying, seated, standing, 

and crawling. This always attracts children. 
When crawling along the net, children train 
important motor skills such as cross-
coordination, which is important for cross -modal 
perception. This supports cognitive and 
intellectual skills such as learning to read. 
Thanks to the slightly moving net, the child will 
have to adjust body movements constantly. 

This stimulates proprioception and the sense of 
balance. These are fundamental in the child's 
ability to navigate the world confidently and 
securely.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 2/24/2020

1 1 4

BALANCE NET
NRO831

Item no. NRO856-1003

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 15’2” x 7’10” x 5’7”
Age Group 5-12
Play Capacity 4 children
Color Options

The Balance Combination appeals to children, 
with the simple play message of balancing. The 
variation of balance is the great attraction: the 
steps on the one beam motivate jumping or 
balancing from one to the next. The solid beam 
on the next pole has an additional rope support, 
to cater for those who are less confident. When 
walking or jumping from pole to pole, children 

train their proprioception and sense of balance. 
Balance and proprioception are fundamental for 
confidently managing the body in its 
surroundings. This is important for instance 
when navigating street traffic safely. Balancing 
across the Balance Combination with friends 
also trains turn-taking and negotiation. These 
are important social-emotional skills that are 

basic for the ability to form friendship and relate 
to peers.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 2/24/2020

2 1 1 2

4

PARKOUR 1
NRO856

Item no. NRO884-1021

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 8'9"x4'11"x8'8"
Age group 5 - 12
Play capacity (users) 4
Color options

Turbo challenge can carry its name with great 
pride: here is the play attraction that will make 
children come back again and again. With its 
responsive turning character, there is no end to 
the fun on the Turbo Challenge. The side bars 
offer a nice entry point and a point to take a 
break and watch your friends. But the Turbo 
Challenge is the main thrill. Children cooperate 

and take turns while spinning, hanging from 
legs or arms. This trains the upper body 
muscles as well as proprioception and spatial 
awareness, important for confidently navigating 
your body in the world. The upper body 
muscles and cores of children are constantly at 
work when playing in the Turbo Challenge, but 
cooperation and turn-taking skills are also used 

when children hang together from the rings.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 9/25/2020

2 6 4 2

4 4

TURBO CHALLENGE
NRO884

Item no. NRO806-0601

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 3’9” x 8’1” x 3’7”
Age Group 5-12
Play Capacity 3 children
Color Options

The Stilts are a playground classic that appeal 
to children repeatedly. The Stilts have a basic 
play message: balance through without 
touching the ground. The Stilts invite jumping or 
balancing from one to the next. They can also 
be used as individual seats and cater to 
meeting in groups. The Stilts support children 
who are developing their skills, thanks to their 

foot-steps and inclination: children can always 
lean to the side to regain balance. When 
balancing from stilt to stilt, children train their 
proprioception and sense of balance. Balance 
and proprioception are fundamental in 
confidently managing the body in space. 
Crossing the Stilts with friends trains turn-taking 
and negotiation. These are important social-

emotional skills that are basic to the ability to 
form friendships and relate to peers.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 30-01-2020

6 3 1 2

STILTS
NRO806

Item no. NRO810-1001

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 12'6"x4'1"x4'7"
Age group 5+
Play capacity (users) 3
Colour options

The Wobble Bridge attracts children to try out 
their balancing skills. The horizontal logs are 
responsive to every movement, training 
important physical skills such as using balance 
and muscles in feet, legs, core and arms to 
adjust equilibrium. For less trained bridge-
walkers, the side beams add support. Walking 
the Wobble bridge is a highly social experience 

also, children feel the movements of all the 
other children on the bridge from the horizontal 
and vertical carrier chains. This feature adds to 
the physical challenge of keeping the balance 
when going over the bridge. It additionally 
encourages children to cooperate and negotiate 
with each other as well as take turns. These are 
important social-emotional life skills, when 

making friends.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 5/27/2020

9 3 1 7

Wobble bridge
NRO810

Item no. NRO820-0603

General Product Information

Dimensions LxWxH 7’1” x 3’6” x 1’1”
Age Group 5-12
Play Capacity 2 children
Color Options

The Water Lilies Balance Posts appeal to 
children, and encourage physical make believe 
games with rules, for example, pretending the 
ground is water, and trying to stay out of the 
water. The Water Lilies invite jumping or 
balancing from one to the next. They can also 
be used as individual seats and are perfect for 
group conversation. The Water Lilies support 

children who are less confident, thanks to their 
width. When balancing from water lily to water 
lily, children train their proprioception and sense 
of balance. Balance and proprioception are 
fundamental skills for confidently managing the 
body in its surroundings. This is important for 
instance when navigating street traffic safely. 
Crossing the Water Lilies with friends trains 

turn-taking and negotiation. These are 
important social-emotional skills that are basic 
for the ability to form friendship and relate to 
peers.

Data is subject to change without prior notice.1 / 2/24/2020

5 1 3

WATERLILIES BALANCE POST - 5 PCS
NRO820

Feature locations are 
conceptual. 

Actual locations to be 
field-placed.

A -~ 
AVID TRAILS 



2

L

-

1

.

0

2

L

-

1

.

0

1

L

-

1

.

0

1

L

-

1

.

0

TRAIL

HEAD

1

-

EAST ELEVATION
- 1/2" = 1'-0"

DRAWING NUMBER

L-1.0

DRAWING TITLE

DESIGN

DEVELOPMENT

OWNER/APPLICANT

PREPARED BY

NORTH

DRAWN BY

TDG

SCALE

AS NOTED

REVISIONS

PROJECT

TRAILMARK

GATEWAY KIOSK

DATE

3.24.2020

DRAFT - NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

805 TRAILMARK DRIVE

ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092

2

-

SOUTH ELEVATION
- 1/2" = 1'-0"

3

-

LAYOUT PLAN
- 1/4" = 1'-0"

.... 

I 1 

I 

I 
' I 

I I 
' 

I 
I 

I 

' I 

• • • 
I 

' ' ' ' ) 

--I 

•~ 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

~1 ;\, I I 
L _ _J 

~i r,n 
--i . ---\ \ _ _) 

,-, ', I~- /~\ • r ',_ I \ 

1? 

n· 
(Y 

LL 

(Y; c__: 

J, 
-I -" 
:--) 1.) 

-' !, 111 

' 

C:::: 
O <C 
I LJ 

' :o (_) 

/ I 

I 

I 

I 

I/ 
I 

L_ 

.--[< :TIIIC Tf'[[ -r, fl]✓ /!,Ill, T'F'. 

I 

' ' ' 

~-TRA LI [t[; .1 Cit~[ 
--TR!. I lii1F cIr;.1;1,,, 

~ --"-..C.,.~-.;.' _;_.· '~ _;__;_L_;_:__c__,.j__ ______ ± - " I I '.';I :,e CT {/ ~ L 

9'?1'¥43 
TKAILM.I\RK 

\ 

I 

I I 
I I 

~ r I 

1 ••·• B::LJ:1, rT1 . 

~------ 13 SIJ7 fC1~T ;\~Ii, TY-. f''.J cT 
11 r 8E.A.l!IS :, =osTS 

TF;i', LHc,i\[ S .i\~E BOTf-Sl:1ES 
rT:ir=c HATC ,- IIC 
'',l:;J.J = =po:~R.i\\l 

,~-- __ ..u,TI,kc'---1------- f' /: We e kl ·, =U :: I eel S ';1 IL·/ e 
BFAC E-, rr. 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

L __ 

-----: 0,I\IF::;01.1 ',P n ,-- '1 'T 
'11'1'1 11 I ' ' II·-.·. 111 . , \ ,., ,._ "I" \1 .. , I 

---- Fl I 'f-ED GFi!Dc 

DEC2\/fOSEC: ~RA IITE f,A.TH A IC: F'tl_f-ELD r _fa 

• ---. . 
I 

fASlll•F ,IR-lf /lllfi!.A.I< 

I l!c L 

_) 

... 

·:_o 
I 

C·I 

• • 
' _J 

::::r::: -
' -

-

: ~I 

' 'l 
-

C/7 

,-r· 
_Ll .- ... 

• • 
• • 

l!lf li!,I f'..)()fll\; :; 

-1cc._c___ - [T:I F' [D ::c, -,=, 
~~,~--~~,----~,----,-/_j ,-==L 07 1,CTT'., 

T I I ;,: 1 7 1.,CTIWA.L =1 
~,-'--~~-----'~~---~_[_--~----1-_J 

-

~-+-- .1 JI ID lJl'Jr',-R 
- ~ff I -'I 

~-~-?xg RA=TF=s 

• 

• 

• • 

I - \' 

" T Ir'. 
1\I-

[\'-.___J L____// 

' 

r.. 

' 

-

==!=a, I/ 

~~ p 

C sup:]oF:- AR\/' Y-'. 
iJIG_[D DCcRD DC- I S[i[S 

w~ Hlllflll H Ii, Wi\i/A.il 
~ STRJ:TIOII WITH _CC 111: 

_\/-F[i :,Ti!,lr CLEA? =cL i!,F3C .A.Tc 
-sc F' ii S n,J-I 1111,1 

-~ ~, 
• - .~. ·=---~w~,~~~:;--{c--~ I-;o ~c -CST•--

c lvPciiJ\I ,- fl CIFF F,c,':,= 
........ · ;,,,,,,,..,,. 

~ -

7 I 

'OI.C'I I 00II1.J:; le. 

-----!------ 1 ?1 // A ,!f;JsH:::1 :?F:AJE ' 

' I I 
I 
I 
I 
I , 
I , 
L __ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
1~1'-:J" 

I 
L __ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

, I 

- _ _J 

Avid 
TRAILS '" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
  KIOSK

AutoCAD SHX Text
  KIOSK

AutoCAD SHX Text
  TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
  TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECOMPOSED GRANITE PATH AND TRAILHEAD PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
±20" HIGH SEAT WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILHEAD SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED UNDERSTORY TREE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL MAP SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8X8 POST, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOOTING, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILHEAD SIGNAGE, BOTH SIDES. PRINTED TO MATCH EXISTING SIGNAGE PROGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDERCOATED STEEL SIGNAGE BRACKET, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6X6 SUPPORT ARM, TYP. POCKET INTO 8X8 BEAMS AND POSTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8X10 BEAM, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X8 RAFTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOFING SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIP EDGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLID UNDERLAYMENT - T&G OR SHEET PLYWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIMPSON STAND OFF BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERSTORY TREE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8X8 POST, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOOTING, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BULLETIN BOARD, WOOD/AZEK CONSTRUCTION WITH LOCKING UV-RESISTANT CLEAR POLYCARBONATE ACCESS PANELS BOTH SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6X6 SUPPORT ARM, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8X10 BEAM, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X8 RAFTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOFING SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIP EDGE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLID UNDERLAYMENT - T&G OR SHEET PLYWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIMPSON STAND OFF BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLED BOARD BOTH SIDES TO SHED WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRAIGE BOLTS THROUGH POST TO SUPPORT BULLETIN BOARD, 4 EACH POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL BRACKETS (IF REQ'D BY STRUCTURAL ENG), TYP.



 

EXHIBIT C 

 

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 

UPON PARTIAL PAYMENT 

 

 The undersigned lienor (“Lienor”), with offices at _______________________________,  

and in consideration of payment in the amount of $___________________________, hereby waives and 

releases its lien and/or right to claim a lien – or seek further payment – for labor, services, or materials furnished 

to the Meadow View at Twin Creeks Community Development District (“District”) for all work provided 

pursuant to the agreement (“Agreement”) dated _________________ 20__, between the Lienor and District, 

and for the period from the effective date of the Agreement and through _______________.  

 

 This waiver and release does not cover any retention, labor, services, or materials furnished after the 

date specified.   

 

 Acknowledged this _____ day of                           , 20__. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

        [Contractor/Lienor] 

 

ATTEST 

       ___________________________________ 

________________________    [signature] 

[signature]       

       By:________________________________ 

             [print name] 

________________________ 

[print name]      Its:________________________________ 

              [print title] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT D 

        

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 

UPON FINAL PAYMENT 

 

 The undersigned lienor (“Lienor”), with offices at _______________________________,  

and in consideration of the final payment in the amount of $___________________________, hereby waives 

and releases its lien and right to claim a lien – or seek further payment – for labor, services, or materials 

furnished to the Meadow View at Twin Creeks Community Development District for all work provided 

pursuant to the agreement (“Agreement”) dated _________________ 20__, between the Lienor and District.  
 

Acknowledged this _____ day of                          , 20__. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

        [Contractor/Lienor] 

 

ATTEST 

       ___________________________________ 

________________________    [signature] 

[signature]       

       By:________________________________ 

             [print name] 

________________________ 

[print name]      Its:________________________________ 

              [print title] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          



 

EXHIBIT E 

Change Order 
No. ___________ 

Date of Issuance:  Effective Date:  

    
Project: Owner: Owner's Contract No.: 

Contract: Date of Contract: 

Contractor: Engineer's Project No.: 

  

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description:   

  

  

Attachments:  (List documents supporting change):  

  

  

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:  CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES: 

Original Contract Price:  Original Contract Times:   Working days    Calendar days 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change 

Orders No.____________ to No.____________: 

 [Increase] [Decrease]  from previously approved Change Orders 

No.____________ to No.____________: 

   Substantial completion (days):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days):   

        

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:  Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order:  [Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:  Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 

    Substantial completion (days or date):   

 $    Ready for final payment (days or date):   

        

RECOMMENDED:  ACCEPTED:  ACCEPTED: 

By:    By:    By:   

Engineer (Authorized Signature)  Owner (Authorized Signature)  Contractor (Authorized Signature) 

Date:    Date:    Date:   

     

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable):   Date:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

I 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



CHANGE ORDER 
TrailMark Interpretive Panel Creative |  September 10, 2020 
For:   Six Mile Creek CDD 
Project:  Change Order / Add On for TrailMark Phase 1 Trails Design Development  
  Scope from January 2020 
   
This change order covers time and materials to create and produce 8 interpretive display panels 
for TrailMark trail system. Content may include topics such as Fort Picolata, Lower Creek Tribe, 
history of kayaks, local vegetation, animals in the area, Six Mile Creek ecosystem, age of the 
great live oak in Oak Hammock, etc. Final recommended topics will be presented to client for 
approval before proceeding to detailed design. 

 Creative Task per Display 

 Research   2 hours 
 Art Direction   3 hours 
 Copywriting   2 hours 
 Production Art  2 hours 
 Printer Supervision  1 hour 

 Fee for 8 Displays:   $14,200.  

Stock Photography Allowance 

 $100 per Display x 8  $800. 

 Total Fees:   $15,000. 

Does not include display printing and fabrication, which is covered under signage budget. 

Justin Lax 
President

By:

Client Approval Date

A -~ 
AVID TRAILS 

435.659.4979 I AVIDTRAILS.COM 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



TRAILMARK PHASE 9A, 9B, & 9C
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA

Notice is hereby given that the Six Mile Creek Community Development District
(“District”) will receive proposals for the following District project:

TRAILMARK PHASE 9A, 9B, & 9C

The contract will require contractors to provide construction services for the
TRAILMARK PHASE 9A, 9B, & 9C project as more particularly described in the Project
Manual and in accordance with the plans and specifications.

The Project Manual will be available via download beginning Monday, November 2, 2020
at 3:00pm at: _______________________. The Project Manual will include, but not be limited
to, the Request for Proposals, proposal and contract documents, and construction plans and
specifications. The Project Manual will not be available for pickup at the offices of England-Thims
& Miller, Inc.

There will be a mandatory pre-proposal conference held at the offices of England, Thims
& Miller, Inc., (“District Engineer”) 14775 Old St. Augustine Rd., Jacksonville, FL 32258
(“Engineer’s Office”) on Tuesday, November 10, 2020 at 2:00 pm. Failure to attend may
preclude a Proposer from responding to this Request for Proposal.

Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria included in the Project Manual.
The District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, make modifications to the
work, award the contract in whole or in part with or without cause, provide for the delivery
of the project in phases, and waive minor or technical irregularities in any Proposal, as it
deems appropriate, if it determines in its discretion that it is in the District’s best interests to
do so. Any person who wishes to protest the Project Manual, or any component thereof, shall file
with the District a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) hours after the Project Manual
is made available, together with a protest bond in a form acceptable to the District and in the
amount of $10,000, and shall file a formal written protest with the District within seven (7)
calendar days after the date of timely filing the initial notice of protest. Filing will be perfected
and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District Engineer. Failure to timely file a notice
of protest or failure to timely file a formal written protest shall constitute a waiver of any right to
object to or protest the contents of the Project Manual. The formal written protest shall state with
particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based.

Firms desiring to provide construction services for the referenced project must submit one
(1) original and eight (8) copies of the required proposal no later than Tuesday, December 1, 2020
at 3:00 pm at the office of England-Thims & Miller, 14775 Old St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville,
FL 32258 (“District Engineer’s Office”), with an electronic copy in PDF included with the
submittal package on a CD, thumb drive, or other compatible media device. Proposals shall be
submitted in a sealed opaque package, shall bear the name and address of the Proposer on the



outside of the package and shall identify the name of the project. If the proposal is sent through
the mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate envelope
with  a  notation  “RESPONSE  TO  PROPOSAL  FOR  SIX  MILE  CREEK  COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ENCLOSED” on the face of it. Address responses to: Six Mile
Creek Community Development District, c/o District Engineer, England-Thims & Miller, 14775
Old St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, FL 32258. The District will conduct a special public
meeting on Tuesday, December 1, 2020 at 3:00 pm at the England-Thims and Miller office to
open the proposals. No official action will be taken at the meeting. The meeting is open to the
public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law including but not
limited to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities
Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise
the District Manager’s Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting the
District Manager’s Office. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay
Service at 1 (800) 955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Manager’s Office. Each
proposal shall remain binding for a minimum of ninety (90) days after the proposal opening.

The successful Proposer will be required upon award to furnish a payment and performance
bond for one hundred percent (100%) of the value of the contract, with a Surety acceptable to the
District, in accordance with Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.

Any and all questions regarding the Project Manual or this project shall be directed in email
only to John Zachary Brecht, P.E. at brechtz@etminc.com no later than Monday, November 23,
2020 at 5:00pm. No phone inquiries please.

Proposals received after the time and date stipulated above will be returned un-opened to
the proposer. Any proposal not completed as specified or missing the required proposal documents
as provided in the Project Manual may be disqualified.

Six Mile Creek Community Development District
District Engineer



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



EVALUATION CRITERIA
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA

PERSONAL (10 POINTS)

E.g., geographic location of firm’s headquarters or permanent office in relation to the project; capabilities and
experience of key personnel, including the project manager and field supervisor; present ability to appropriately
staff and manage this project; evaluation of existing work load; proposed staffing levels, etc.

PROPOSER’S EXPERIENCE (20 POINTS)

E.g., past record and experience of the respondent in similar community infrastructure projects; volume of work
previously performed by the firm; past performance for this District and other community development districts in
other contracts; character, integrity, reputation of respondent, etc.

UNDERSTANDING SCOPE OF WORK (10 POINTS)

Extent to which the proposal demonstrates an understanding of the District’s needs for the services requested.

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY (10 POINTS)

Extent to which the proposal demonstrates the adequacy of Proposer’s financial resources and stability as a
business entity, necessary to complete the services required.

PRICE (25 POINTS)

Points available for price will be allocated as follows:

15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the lowest cost proposal (i.e., the summation of the unit
price extensions using quantity estimates provided, the allowances shown, plus the proposal contractor’s fee) for
completing the work.  All other Proposers will receive a percentage of this amount based upon the difference
between the Proposer’s bid and the low proposer.

10 Points are allocated for the reasonableness of unit prices and balance of proposer.

SCHEDULE (25 POINTS)

Points available for schedule will be allocated as follows:

15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the proposal with the most expedited construction schedules
(i.e. the fewest number of days) for completing the work.  All other Proposals will receive a percentage of this
amount based upon the difference between the Proposer’s timeline and the most expedited construction schedules.

10 Points will be allocated based on the Proposer’s ability to credibly complete the project within the Proposer’s
schedule without a premium cost for accelerated work and demonstrate on-time performance. These points will
also take into account the demonstration of Proposer’s understanding (through presentation in the proposal of a
milestone schedule) of how to meet the required substantial and final completion dates and the delivery approach
outlined in the Project Manual.

TOTAL POINTS (100 POINTS)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



August 19, 2020 
 
 
 
James Oliver, District Manager 
Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL  32092 
 
The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
You have requested that we audit the financial statements of Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (the “District”), which comprise governmental activities and each major 
fund for the General Fund as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020 which collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements.  We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our 
understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter for the year ending September 
30, 2020 and thereafter if mutually agreed upon by both parties.  
 
Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements. 
 
The Responsibilities of the Auditor 
 
We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and "Government Auditing Standards" issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards.  Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial to 
the financial statements.   

Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 

600 Citrus Avenue 
Suite 200 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

7721461-6120 II 461-1155 
FAX: 7721468-9278 

Member AICPA 

Fort Pierce I Stuart 

Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms 
Private Companies practice Section 

Member FICPA 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
August 19, 2020 
Page 2  
 
 
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  However, 
we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have 
identified during the audit.   
 
We will also communicate to the Board any fraud involving senior management and fraud that 
causes a material misstatement of the financial statements that becomes known to us during 
the audit, and any instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations that we become aware 
of during the audit.   
 
The funds that you have told us are maintained by Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District and that are to be included as part of our audit are listed below: 
 

1. General Fund  
2. Special Purpose Entity Fund 
3. Debt Service Fund 
4. Capital Projects Fund 

 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
August 19, 2020 
Page 3  
 
 
The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial 
Reporting Framework 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands that 
it has responsibility:  

 
1. For the preparation and fair presentations of the financial statements in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
  

2. To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued or 
available to be issued, and to disclose the date through which subsequent events were 
evaluated in the financial statements. Management also agrees that it will not evaluate 
subsequent events earlier than the date of the management representation letter 
referred to below; 
  

3. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 
 

4. To provide us with: 
a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of 
the audit; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
As part of our audit, we will request certain written confirmation concerning representations 
made to us in connection with the audit including, among other items:  

 
1. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this letter; 

and  
 

2. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
August 19, 2020 
Page 4  
 
 
Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that Six MIle Creek Community 
Development District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities, and for 
informing us about all known material violations of such laws or regulations. In addition, 
management is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to 
prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the 
entity involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, and 
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Management is 
also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the entity received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators, or others. Management is also responsible for providing planned corrective actions 
on auditors’ recommendations included in the audit report, if any. 
 
The Board is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud within the entity, 
and its knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity. 
 
Records and Assistance 
 
If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District’s records, the availability of appropriate audit evidence, or indications of a significant risk 
of material misstatement of the financial statements because of error, fraudulent financial 
reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment, prevent us from 
completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any course of 
action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion, issuing a 
report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 
 
During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should 
be reflected in the Six Mile Creek Community Development District books and records. The 
District will determine that all such data, if necessary, will be so reflected.  
 
The assistance to be supplied, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts, 
has been discussed and coordinated with Teresa Viscarra. The timely and accurate completion 
of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of our audit 
report. The audit should be completed and filed with the Auditor General within nine (9) months 
after the end of the fiscal year. If the information is timely provided, the District shall receive a 
draft by May 15, 2021, and if the draft is timely reviewed by management, the District shall 
receive the final audit by June 15, 2021. 
 
Other Relevant Information 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, a copy of our most recent peer review 
report has been provided to you, for your information.  
 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
August 19, 2020 
Page 5  
 
 
Either party may unilaterally terminate this agreement, with or without cause, upon thirty (30) 
days written notice subject to the condition that the District will pay all invoices for services 
rendered prior to the date of termination. 
 
Fees, Costs and Access to Workpapers 
 
Our fees for the services described above are based upon the value of the services performed 
and the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement, plus direct expenses.  
Invoices for fees will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms 
of this engagement.  Billings are due upon submission.  Our fee for the services described in 
this letter for the year ending September 30, 2020 will not exceed $5,315 unless the scope of 
the engagement is changed, the assistance which Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District has agreed to furnish is not provided, or unexpected conditions are encountered, in 
which case we will discuss the situation with you before proceeding.  All other provisions of this 
letter will survive any fee adjustment.  The two annual renewals must be mutually agreed and 
approved by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
In the event we are requested or authorized by Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
or are required by government regulation, subpoena, or other legal process to produce our 
documents or our personnel as witnesses with respect to our engagement for Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District, Six Mile Creek Community Development District will, so long 
as we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our 
professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in 
responding to such requests. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, 
& Frank and constitutes confidential information, except as provided in the public records 
addendum attached hereto. However, you acknowledge and grant your assent that 
representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other government audit 
staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access to the audit 
documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the audit documentation for a 
period of at least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period if we are 
requested to do so by the cognizant or oversight agency. Additionally, see attached addendum 
regarding public records. 
 
Access to requested documentation will be provided under the supervision of Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines, & Frank audit personnel and at a location designated by our Firm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
August 19, 2020 
Page 6  
 
 
Information Security – Miscellaneous Terms 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank is committed to the safe and confidential treatment of 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District’s proprietary information. Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines & Frank is required to maintain the confidential treatment of client information in 
accordance with relevant industry professional standards which govern the provision of services 
described herein. Six Mile Creek Community Development District agrees that it will not provide 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank with any unencrypted electronic confidential or 
proprietary information, and the parties agree to utilize commercially reasonable measures to 
maintain the confidentiality of Six Mile Creek Community Development District’s information, 
including the use of collaborate sites to ensure the safe transfer of data between the parties. 
 
If any term or provision of this arrangement letter is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, 
such term or provision will be deemed stricken and all other terms and provisions will remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District’s financial statements.  Our report will be addressed to the Board of Six 
Mile Creek Community Development District. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified 
opinion will be expressed.  Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify 
our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the 
engagement.  
 
In addition to our report on Six Mile Creek Community Development District’s financial 
statements, we will also issue the following types of reports: 
 

• Reports on internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements. We will report on any internal control findings and/or 
noncompliance which could have a material effect on the financial statements; 

• Management letter required by the Auditor General, State of Florida; and 
• Attestation reports required by the Auditor General, State of Florida. 

 
This letter and any addendums hereto constitute the complete and exclusive statement of 
agreement between Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank and Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and all other communications, 
with respect to the terms of the engagement between the parties. 
 
 
 
 
 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
August 19, 2020 
Page 7  

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and 
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our 
respective responsibilities. 

Sincerely, 

BERGER, TOOMBS, ELAM, GAINES & FRANK 
J. W. Gaines, CPA 

Confirmed on behalf of the addressee: 

_______________________________________ 

___________________________ ___, _______ 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 

audit
BTEGF



Judson B. Baggett 
MBA, CPA, CVA, Partner 

Marci Reutimann 
CPA, Partner 

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Control 

1't 6815 Dairy Road 
Zephyrhills, FL 33542 

') (813) 788-2155 
~ (813) 782-8606 

To the Partners October 30, 2019 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL 
and the Peer Review Committee of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL, (the firm), in effect for the year ended May 31, 2019. Our peer review 
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews 
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System 
Review as described in the Standards may be found at aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes 
an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm's Responsibility 

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate 
engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when 
appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any. 

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control, and the firm's 
compliance therewith based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing 
Standards, including a compliance audit under the Single Audit Act. 

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL, in effect for the year ended May 31, 2019, has been 
suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and 
reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a 
rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail. Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL has 
received a peer review rating of pass. 

~ 
Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FICPA) 

National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts (NACVA) 



ADDENDUM TO ENGAGEMENT LETTER BETWEEN BERGER, TOOMBS, 
ELAM, GAINES AND FRANK AND SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(DATED AUGUST 19, 2020) 

Public Records.  Auditor shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 
119.0701, Florida Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, 
and specifically shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the
services or work set forth in this Agreement; and

b. Upon the request of the District’s custodian of public records, provide the
District with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be
inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided
by law; and

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following
completion of the Agreement if the Auditor does not transfer the records to
the District; and

d. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all
public records in possession of the Auditor or keep and maintain public
records required by the District to perform the service or work provided for
in this Agreement.  If the Auditor transfers all public records to the District
upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall destroy any duplicate
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records
upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable
requirements for retaining public records.  All records stored electronically
must be provided to the District, upon request from the District’s custodian
of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information
technology systems of the District.

Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating 
to this Agreement must be made directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701(3), 
Florida Statutes.  If notified by the District of a public records request for records not in 
the possession of the District but in possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide 
such records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 
reasonable time.  Auditor acknowledges that should Auditor fail to provide the public 
records to the District within a reasonable time, Auditor may be subject to penalties 
pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes.   



 
IF THE AUDITOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE AUDITOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE 
AUDITOR MAY CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS FOR THE DISTRICT AT: 
 

GMS-SF, LLC 
135 WEST CENTRAL BLVD., SUITE 320 
ORLANDO, FL 32801 
TELEPHONE: 407-841-5524 
EMAIL:  JOLIVER@GMSCFL.COM 

 
 
Auditor: J.W. Gaines District: Six Mile Creek CDD 
 
By:    _________________________            By:    ________________________ 
 
Title:  Director                                              Title: ________________________ 
 
Date:  August 19, 2020                Date: ________________________ 

audit
J



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Mtg. Agendas\21Oct20.doc 10/15/2020 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

October 21, 2020 

1. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 45 
(Ph 9B Construction Documents-Collector Road & Pump Station)

2. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 46 
(Proposal Documents and RFP Process for Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C)

3. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 47 
(Phase 10 Construction Documents)

4. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 48 
(Phase 11 Construction Documents)

5. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 49 
(Phase 12 Construction Documents)

6. Ratification of Requisitions 27 – 29 (2020 Bond Series)

7. Consideration of Requisitions 30 – 43 (2020 Bond Series)

8. Consideration of Requisitions 25 - 26 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6)

9. Consideration of Requisitions 4 - 5 (Phase 9 Bond Series-Developer Funded)

10. Ratification of Change Order No. 4 – Trailmark Phase 1 

Scott A. Wild 

District Engineer 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. 



20-211-99

C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Work Authorizations\Work Auth No. 44.doc 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 45 
Phase 9B Construction Documents

(Additional Collector Road and Pump Station) 

Scope of Work 

England, Thims & Miller, Inc. (ETM) shall provide general consulting engineering services for the Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District as directed by the Board of Supervisors or their designee.  General consulting services 
shall include, but not be limited to: 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions 

ETM will modify the existing site plan to incorporate the additional collector road and pump station.  ETM will also 
incorporate any subsequent owner requested revisions. 

FEE……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $1,500.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 

Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification 

Based upon the final approved site plan resulting from Task I, ETM will modify the existing MDP, and process the 
revised MDP for approval.  Also includes meetings with St. Johns County (SJC) staff, as necessary. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$3,500.00 

Task III – Construction Plan Preparation 

ETM will prepare construction plans for the additional 800 L.F. +/- of collector road and pump station in accordance 
with St. Johns County and St. Johns River Water Management District Regulations. 

FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..……………HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $27,000.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 

Task IV – SJC Plan Approval (Development Review Committee) 

ETM will process the construction plans revised in Tasks IV and V as necessary for approval.  Also includes meetings 
with SJC staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$3,500.00 

Task V – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 

ETM will prepare the permit applications and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for the revised construction plans. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………………………$4,000.00 

Task VI – SJRWMD Permit Modification 

If necessary, ETM will process a permit modification to address the revised lots. 

FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $5,500.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 



20-211-99 

C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Work Authorizations\Work Auth No. 44.doc 

Task VII – Plat Coordination 

ETM will coordinate with the surveyor for the preparation of the plat(s) for the modified plans, and coordinate the plat 
processing.  Also includes processing of 12 lot plat prepared by Clary and Associates, Inc. 

FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $10,000.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 

Basis of Estimated Fee (12 Months) 

Principal – CEO/CSO/President........................................................  $265.00/Hr. 
Principal – Vice President  ................................................................  $245.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineer .................................................................................  $195.00/Hr. 
Engineer ............................................................................................  $157.00/Hr. 
Project Manager ...............................................................................  $180.00/Hr. 
Assistant Project Manager  ..............................................................  $147.00/Hr. 
Senior Planner ...................................................................................  $182.00/Hr. 
Planner ..............................................................................................  $149.00/Hr. 
CEI Project Manager……………………………………………………………………$165.00/Hr. 
CEI Senior Inspector……………………………………………………………………$148.00/Hr. 
CEI Inspector  ....................................................................................  $120.00/Hr. 
Senior Landscape Architect..............................................................  $168.00/Hr. 
Landscape Architect .........................................................................  $150.00/Hr. 
Senior Graphics Technician……………………………………………………….  $149.00/Hr. 
GIS Programmer ...............................................................................  $160.00/Hr. 
GIS Analyst  .......................................................................................  $133.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineering Designer / Senior LA Designer ........................  $151.00/Hr. 
Engineering/Landscape Designer  ...................................................  $131.00/Hr. 
CADD/GIS Technician  ......................................................................  $121.00/Hr. 
Administrative Support  .....................................................................  $84.00/Hr. 
Accountant……………………………………………………………………………….. $102.00/Hr. 

Cost such as subconsultants, printing, telephone, delivery service, mileage and travel shall be invoiced at direct costs plus 
15%. 

Approval 

Submitted by:  _____________________________________ Date:_________________ 
England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

Approved by: ______________________________________ Date: ________________ 
 Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

August 20, 2020

8/20/2020



20-246
Page 1 of 3 

C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Work Authorizations\Work Auth No. 45 Trailmark Phases 9A 9B 9C 

RFP Construction Services.doc 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 46 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS AND RFP PROCESS 
FOR  

TRAILMARK PHASES 9A, 9B and 9C 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

Scope of Work 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. shall provide consulting engineering services associated with the Improvement Plan 
for the Six Mile Creek Community Development District construction improvements.  Consulting services shall 
include preparation of proposal documents and RFP process coordination including but not limited to: 

Proposal Documents and RFP Process (Hourly) 

CDD board meeting draft documents and approval 

Draft Request For Proposals documents for CDD approval 

Request for Proposals / advertisement 

Proposal evaluation criteria/ points 

Minimum contractor qualifications 

Mandatory pre bid meeting requirement 

CDD board review and approval of RFP process 

Coordinate CDD board selection of evaluation committee 

Prepare final RFP front end documents and coordinate processing 

Request for Proposals / advertisement 

Proposal evaluation criteria (points) 

Contractor's Minimum qualifications statement 

Coordinate Mandatory pre bid meeting requirement 

Preparation of RFP project manual documents 

Instructions to Proposers 

Contractor's Proposal/Bid, coordination with Engineer for  Scope of Work, etc. 

Proposal attachments 

Subcontractor list 

Trench Safety Act 

Form of bid bond, payment bond, performance bond 

Contractor's qualifications statement 

Contractor's public entity crime statement 

Proposal evaluation criteria 

Draft Contract 

General Conditions 

Special Conditions 

Technical specs. 

Coordination with Engineer and HGS to review documents 

RFP process 

Set up FTP and provide RFP documents to proposers 

Prepare and coordinate RFP and mandatory pre bid meeting advertisement 

Conduct Pre Bid meeting 

Receive contractor's RFI’s and coordinate with Engineer for clarifications 

Prepare and distribute addendums 

Receive contractor's proposals 

Coordinate Bid opening process 



20-246
Page 2 of 3 

C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Work Authorizations\Work Auth No. 45 Trailmark Phases 9A 9B 9C 

RFP Construction Services.doc 

Evaluation committee process 

Review and coordinate with Engineer and evaluate contractor's proposals 

Distribute contractor's proposals to evaluation committee  

Prepare and coordinate with District Manager to run ad for Evaluation Committee Meeting 
Coordinate with District Manager and coordinate with Engineer and District Counsel to conduct evaluation 
    Committee Meeting 

Summarize Evaluation Committee results and prepare for presentation to CDD board 

CDD board coordination 
Coordinate with District Manager, District Counsel and coordinate with Engineer and CDD board to 
     select contractor 

Contractor coordination 

Issue Notice of Intent to Award to contractor 

Monitor Protest period 

Issue Notice of Award and transmit contract and instructions to contractor 

Coordinate with contractor to execute contracts 

Coordinate with CDD chairman and CDD staff to execute contract 

Coordinate Payment and Performance bonds recording 

Issue Notice to Proceed to contractor 

ESTIMATED FEE ......................................................................................................................................HOURLY 
(Budget Estimate - $20,000.00) 

FEE SUMMARY 
Task Description  Fee Type Fee Amount 

Proposal Documents and RFP Process Hourly $ 20,000.00 
Work Authorization No. 45 Total $20,000.00 

ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC. 
HOURLY FEE SCHEDULE - 2020 

Principal – CEO/CSO/President ...................................................... $265.00/Hr. 

Principal – Vice President  ............................................................... $245.00/Hr. 

Senior Engineer ................................................................................. $195.00/Hr. 

Engineer ............................................................................................. $157.00/Hr. 
Project Manager ................................................................................ $180.00/Hr. 

Assistant Project Manager  ............................................................... $147.00/Hr. 

Senior Planner ................................................................................... $182.00/Hr. 

Planner ............................................................................................... $149.00/Hr. 
CEI Project Manager………………..……………………………$165.00/Hr. 

CEI Senior Inspector…………………………………..…………$148.00/Hr. 

CEI Inspector  ................................................................................... $120.00/Hr. 

Senior Landscape Architect ............................................................. $168.00/Hr. 
Landscape Architect ......................................................................... $150.00/Hr. 

Senior Graphics Technician…………………………………….  $149.00/Hr. 

GIS Programmer ............................................................................... $160.00/Hr. 

GIS Analyst  ...................................................................................... $133.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineering Designer / Senior LA Designer ...................... $151.00/Hr. 

Engineering/Landscape Designer  ................................................... $131.00/Hr. 

CADD/GIS Technician  ................................................................... $121.00/Hr. 

Administrative Support  ..................................................................... $84.00/Hr. 
Accountant……………………………………………………….. $102.00/Hr. 



20-246
Page 3 of 3 

C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Work Authorizations\Work Auth No. 45 Trailmark Phases 9A 9B 9C 

RFP Construction Services.doc 

Expenses shall be invoiced in accordance with previously approved General Consulting Services Contract and 
District Policy.   

Approval 

Submitted by:     Date:  
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC. 

Approved by:     Date:    
      SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

9/23/2020

9/24/2020

~ 



ETM No.: 20-276 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 47 

Phase 10 Construction Documents 

Scope of Work 
England-Thims & Miller, Inc. (ETM) shall provide general consulting engineering services for the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District as directed by the Board of Supervisors or their designee. General 
consulting services shall include, but not be limited to: 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions 
ETM will modify the existing site plan to incorporate Owner requested revisions into the existing master 
plan.  ETM will also incorporate any subsequent revisions. 

FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $4,500.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 

Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification 

Based upon the final approved site plan resulting from Task I, ETM will prepare an incremental MDP, 
and process the revised MDP for approval. Also includes meetings with St. Johns County (SJC) staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$7,500.00 

Task III – Construction Plan Preparation (Collector Road) 

ETM will prepare construction plans for the additional 400 L.F. of collector road, in accordance with St. 
Johns County and St. Johns River Water Management District Regulations. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………$8,000.00 

Task IV – Construction Plan Preparation 

ETM will prepare construction plans for the 74 – 63’ lots in accordance with St. Johns County and the 
St. Johns River Water Management District Regulations. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$37,000.00 

Task V – Landscape Design (Code Design) 

ETM shall prepare a complete landscape design package for the project consistent with St. Johns County 
regulations.  This task shall include the following tasks: 

• Preparation of code minimum landscape plans for submittal to St. Johns County
• Address comments from St. Johns County
• Graphics necessary to depict proposed landscaping
• Preparation of calculations necessary to demonstrate code compliance
• Coordination with County staff

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$4,900.00 



Work Authorization No. 47 
Page 2 of 3 

Task VI – SJC and SJCUD Plan Approval 

ETM will process the construction plans prepared in Tasks III and IV for approval by SJC and SJCUD. Also 
includes meetings with SJC and SJCUD staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$12,500.00 

Task VII – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 

ETM will prepare the necessary permit applications and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for the 
construction plans, and process with FDEP. 

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$5,000.00 

Task VIII – SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit 

ETM will prepare the necessary permit application and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for this 
phase, and process with SJRWMD. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………$14,400.00 

Cost such as subconsultants, printing, telephone, delivery service, mileage and travel shall be invoiced at 
direct cost. 

FEE SUMMARY 

HOURLY LUMP SUM FEE 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions $ 4,500.00 
Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification $ 7,500.00 
Task III – Construction Plan Preparation (Collector Road) $  8,000.00 
Task IV – Construction Plan Preparation $ 37,000.00 
Task V – Landscape Design (Code Design) $   4,900.00 
Task VI – SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval $ 12,500.00 
Task VII – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits $   5,000.00 
Task VIII – SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit $ 14,400.00 

SUBTOTAL FEE SUMMARY $ 4,500.00 $ 89,300.00 
TOTAL FEE SUMMARY $ 93,800.00 



Work Authorization No. 47 
Page 3 of 3 

ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC. 
HOURLY FEE SCHEDULE - 2020 

Principal – CEO/CSO/President.........................................  $265.00/Hr. 
Principal – Vice President  ................................................  $245.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineer ................................................................  $195.00/Hr. 
Engineer ...........................................................................  $157.00/Hr. 
Project Manager ...............................................................  $180.00/Hr. 
Assistant Project Manager  ...............................................  $147.00/Hr. 
Senior Planner ..................................................................  $182.00/Hr. 
Planner .............................................................................  $149.00/Hr. 
CEI Project Manager…………………………………………………………$165.00/Hr. 
CEI Senior Inspector…………………………………………………………$148.00/Hr. 
CEI Inspector ....................................................................  $120.00/Hr. 
Senior Landscape Architect ..............................................  $168.00/Hr. 
Landscape Architect .........................................................  $150.00/Hr. 
Senior Graphics Technician…………………………………………….  $149.00/Hr. 
GIS Programmer ...............................................................  $160.00/Hr. 
GIS Analyst .......................................................................  $133.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineering Designer / Senior LA Designer  ..........  $151.00/Hr. 
Engineering/Landscape Designer  ....................................  $131.00/Hr. 
CADD/GIS Technician .......................................................  $121.00/Hr. 
Administrative Support ......................................................  $84.00/Hr. 
Accountant…………………………………………………………………….. $102.00/Hr. 

Approval 

Submitted by: 
England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

Approved by: 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Date: 

Date: 



ETM No.:  20-267

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 48

Phase 11 Construction Documents 

Scope of Work 
England-Thims & Miller, Inc. (ETM) shall provide general consulting engineering services for the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District as directed by the Board of Supervisors or their designee. General 
consulting services shall include, but not be limited to: 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions 
ETM will modify the existing site plan to incorporate Owner requested revisions into the existing master 
plan.  ETM will also incorporate any subsequent revisions. 

FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $7,500.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 

Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification 

Based upon the final approved site plan resulting from Task I, ETM will prepare an incremental MDP, 
and process the revised MDP for approval. Also includes meetings with St. Johns County (SJC) staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$7,500.00 

Task III – Construction Plan Preparation (Collector Road) 

ETM will prepare construction plans for the additional 800 L.F. of collector road, in accordance with St. 
Johns County and St. Johns River Water Management District Regulations. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………$16,000.00 

Task IV – Construction Plan Preparation 

ETM will prepare construction plans for the 168 – 43’ and 53’ lots in accordance with St. Johns County 
and the St. Johns River Water Management District Regulations. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$84,000.00 

Task V – Landscape Design (Code Design) 

ETM shall prepare a complete landscape design package for the project consistent with St. Johns County 
regulations.  This task shall include the following tasks: 

• Preparation of code minimum landscape plans for submittal to St. Johns County
• Address comments from St. Johns County

• Graphics necessary to depict proposed landscaping
• Preparation of calculations necessary to demonstrate code compliance
• Coordination with County staff

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$7,400.00 



Work Authorization No. 48
Page 2  of 

3

Task VI – SJC and SJCUD Plan Approval 

ETM will process the construction plans prepared in Tasks III and IV for approval by SJC and SJCUD. Also 
includes meetings with SJC and SJCUD staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$12,500.00 

Task VII – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 

ETM will prepare the necessary permit applications and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for the 
construction plans, and process with FDEP. 

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$5,000.00 

Task VIII – SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit 

ETM will prepare the necessary permit application and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for this 
phase, and process with SJRWMD. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………$19,200.00 

Cost such as subconsultants, printing, telephone, delivery service, mileage and travel shall be invoiced at 
direct cost. 

FEE SUMMARY 

HOURLY LUMP SUM FEE 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions $ 7,500.00 

Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification $ 7,500.00 
Task III – Construction Plan Preparation (Collector Road) $ 16,000.00 
Task IV – Construction Plan Preparation $ 84,000.00 
Task V – Landscape Design (Code Design) $   7,400.00 
Task VI – SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval $ 12,500.00 
Task VII – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits $   5,000.00 
Task VIII – SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit $ 19,200.00 

SUBTOTAL FEE SUMMARY $ 7,500.00 $151,600.00 
TOTAL FEE SUMMARY $159,100.00 



Work Authorization No. 48
Page 3  of 

3

ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC. 
HOURLY FEE SCHEDULE - 2020 

Principal – CEO/CSO/President.........................................  $265.00/Hr. 
Principal – Vice President  ................................................  $245.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineer ................................................................  $195.00/Hr. 
Engineer ...........................................................................  $157.00/Hr. 
Project Manager ...............................................................  $180.00/Hr. 
Assistant Project Manager  ...............................................  $147.00/Hr. 
Senior Planner ..................................................................  $182.00/Hr. 
Planner .............................................................................  $149.00/Hr. 
CEI Project Manager…………………………………………………………$165.00/Hr. 
CEI Senior Inspector…………………………………………………………$148.00/Hr. 
CEI Inspector ....................................................................  $120.00/Hr. 
Senior Landscape Architect ..............................................  $168.00/Hr. 
Landscape Architect .........................................................  $150.00/Hr. 
Senior Graphics Technician…………………………………………….  $149.00/Hr. 
GIS Programmer ...............................................................  $160.00/Hr. 
GIS Analyst .......................................................................  $133.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineering Designer / Senior LA Designer  ..........  $151.00/Hr. 
Engineering/Landscape Designer  ....................................  $131.00/Hr. 
CADD/GIS Technician .......................................................  $121.00/Hr. 
Administrative Support ......................................................  $84.00/Hr. 
Accountant…………………………………………………………………….. $102.00/Hr. 

Approval 

Submitted by: 
England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

Approved by: 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Date: 

Date:   10/9/2020

10/9/2020



20-277

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 49     

Phase 12 Construction Documents 

Scope of Work 
England-Thims & Miller, Inc. (ETM) shall provide general consulting engineering services for the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District as directed by the Board of Supervisors or their designee. General 
consulting services shall include, but not be limited to: 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions 

ETM will modify the existing site plan to incorporate Owner requested revisions into the existing master 
plan.  ETM will also incorporate any subsequent revisions. 

FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..HOURLY 
(NOT TO EXCEED = $7,500.00 WITHOUT FURTHER AUTHORIZATION) 

Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification 

Based upon the final approved site plan resulting from Task I, ETM will prepare an incremental MDP, 
and process the revised MDP for approval. Also includes meetings with St. Johns County (SJC) staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$7,500.00 

Task III – Construction Plan Preparation 

ETM will prepare construction plans for the 164 – 43’, 53’ and 63’ lots in accordance with St. Johns 
County and the St. Johns River Water Management District Regulations. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$82,000.00 

Task IV – Lift Station Design 

Design and prepare construction documents for a regional sanitary sewer pump station including: 

a. System Analysis
b. Pump Design
c. Wet Well Design
d. Mechanical Systems
e. Electrical and Electrical Controls
f. Forcemain Design
g. Review Design and Calculations with St. Johns County Utility Department

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$15,200.00 



Task V – Landscape Design (Code Design) 

ETM shall prepare a complete landscape design package for the project consistent with St. Johns County 
regulations.  This task shall include the following tasks: 

• Preparation of code minimum landscape plans for submittal to St. Johns County

• Address comments from St. Johns County
• Graphics necessary to depict proposed landscaping
• Preparation of calculations necessary to demonstrate code compliance
• Coordination with County staff

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$7,400.00 

Tsk VI – SJC and SJCUD Plan Approval 

ETM will process the construction plans prepared in Tasks III and IV for approval by SJC and SJCUD. Also 
includes meetings with SJC and SJCUD staff. 

LUMP SUM FEE……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$12,500.00 

Task VII – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 

ETM will prepare the necessary permit applications and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for the 
construction plans, and process with FDEP. 

LUMP SUM FEE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$5,000.00 

Task VIII – SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit 

ETM will prepare the necessary permit application and associated calculations, exhibits, etc. for this 
phase, and process with SJRWMD. 

LUMP SUM FEE…………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………$19,200.00 

Cost such as subconsultants, printing, telephone, delivery service, mileage and travel shall be invoiced at 
direct cost. 

FEE SUMMARY 

HOURLY LUMP SUM FEE 

Task I – Site Plan Revisions $ 7,500.00 

Task II – Master Development Plan (MDP) Modification $ 7,500.00 
Task III - Construction Plan Preparation $ 82,000.00 
Task IV – Lift Station Design $ 15,200.00 
Task V – Landscape Design (Code Design) $   7,400.00 
Task VI – SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval $ 12,500.00 
Task VII – FDEP Water and Sewer Permits $   5,000.00 
Task VIII – SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit $ 19,200.00 

SUBTOTAL FEE SUMMARY $ 7,500.00 $148,800.00 
TOTAL FEE SUMMARY $156,300.00 



ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC. 
HOURLY FEE SCHEDULE - 2020 

Principal – CEO/CSO/President.........................................  $265.00/Hr. 
Principal – Vice President  ................................................  $245.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineer ................................................................  $195.00/Hr. 
Engineer ...........................................................................  $157.00/Hr. 
Project Manager ...............................................................  $180.00/Hr. 
Assistant Project Manager  ...............................................  $147.00/Hr. 
Senior Planner ..................................................................  $182.00/Hr. 
Planner .............................................................................  $149.00/Hr. 
CEI Project Manager…………………………………………………………$165.00/Hr. 
CEI Senior Inspector…………………………………………………………$148.00/Hr. 
CEI Inspector ....................................................................  $120.00/Hr. 
Senior Landscape Architect ..............................................  $168.00/Hr. 
Landscape Architect .........................................................  $150.00/Hr. 
Senior Graphics Technician…………………………………………….  $149.00/Hr. 
GIS Programmer ...............................................................  $160.00/Hr. 
GIS Analyst .......................................................................  $133.00/Hr. 
Senior Engineering Designer / Senior LA Designer  ..........  $151.00/Hr. 
Engineering/Landscape Designer  ....................................  $131.00/Hr. 
CADD/GIS Technician .......................................................  $121.00/Hr. 
Administrative Support ......................................................  $84.00/Hr. 
Accountant…………………………………………………………………….. $102.00/Hr. 

Approval 

Submitted by: 
England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

Approved by: 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Date: 

Date: 



Date of 

Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

9/30/2020 27 Dock Medics of Florida, LLC Trailmark Kayak Launch - Invoice 82720 11,950.00$                        

9/30/2020 28 St. Johns County SJC Inspection Fee - Application SUBCON 2020000008 13,960.00$                        

9/30/2020 29 Sterling Specialities, Inc. Trailmark Whisper Creek Dog Park - Invoice 10979 (50% Deposit) 24,750.00$                        

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE RATIFIED 50,660.00$                 

Date of 

Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/21/20 30 Hopping Green & Sams Professional Services related to Project Construction-Invoice 117762 164.50$                             

10/21/20 31 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Application for Payment No. 6 370,458.52$                      

10/21/20 32 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Application for Payment No. 7 509,838.99$                      

10/21/20 33 Avid Trails, LLC Trail Construction - Invoice 2020-02 50,405.50$                        

10/21/20 34 Avid Trails, LLC Trail Construction - Invoice 2020-01 76,735.00$                        

10/21/20 35 Environmental Services, Inc. Environmental Services related to Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Invoice TE17017 3,000.00$                          

10/21/20 36 Environmental Services, Inc. Environmental Services related to Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Invoice TD98913 3,750.00$                          

10/21/20 37 Avid Trails, LLC Trail Construction - Invoice Trailmark 08 7,564.00$                          

10/21/20 38 ETM East Parcel Phase 1-CEI Services (WA#42) Invoice 194692 9,814.39$                          

10/21/20 39 ETM Trailmark East Parcel-Phase 2 Preliminary Engineering (WA#44) Invoice 194668 17,588.35$                        

10/21/20 40 Avid Trails, LLC Trail Construction - Invoice Trailmark 07 7,500.00$                          

10/21/20 41 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 - Invoice 8192 5,152.00$                          

10/21/20 42 Carlton Construction, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Parks - Application for Payment No. 1 7,355.03$                          

10/21/20 43 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 - Invoice 8229 3,440.00$                          

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED 1,072,766.28$            

Date of 

Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/21/20 25 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 and 4D Lot Fill - Application for Payment No. 5 242,841.14$                      

10/21/20 26 ETM Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) Invoice 194693 3,422.01$                          

2017 NW PARCEL SUBACCOUNT (PHASE 6 ONLY) REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED 246,263.15$               

Date of 

Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/21/20 4 ETM Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#37) Invoice 194659 32,635.50$                        

10/21/20 5 Clary & Associates, Inc. Phase 9 Maps and descriptions of 7 conservation easements - Invoice 2020-527 4,450.00$                          

PHASE 9 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED 37,085.50$                 

TOTAL REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED OCTOBER 21 1,406,774.93$            

2019 Phase 9 Bond Series (Developer Funded)

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE RATIFIED

PHASE 9 BOND ACCOUNT (DEVELOPER FUNDED)

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6 Only)

2016 A/B Bond Series

Wednesday, October 21, 2020

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2020 Bond Series

2017 NW PARCEL SUBACCOUNT (PHASE 6 ONLY) TO BE APPROVED

10-14-20 PENDING REQ LIST



ENCOUR 
TITLE : Sleeves 

PROJECT: Trailmark Phas e 1 

TO: Gre gg Kem - Chairp erson 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

Item 

1 

2 

3 

4 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Desaiption 

Sleeves (per attached) 

Original Contract Amount 

Cont ract Adjustme nt from this Ch an ge 

Contract Adjustment from previous Ch an ges(s) 

Revised Contract Total 

AGREED: 

Vallencourt Construc tion Corn :my, Jnc. 

By: At;Jk) 
Stan Batesr Vice Pres ident 

8/ 9/20 0 

Co. Inc. 

DA TE: 8/19/2020 

Qty. Units 

1.00 LS 

VCC JOB #: 2020-04 

No.: 4 

Unit Price 

$69,742.16 $ 

$ 

$ 

Total $. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

D .t : 8/ 8/ 0 0 

Total 

69,742.16 

~ ,,742.16 

6,035,140 .14 

69,742 .16 

2,236 .09 

6,107,118.39 



Sleeve# Length 3" Irrigation 4" lrriration 4" Comcast 4" ATT 2" FPL 3" FPL 4" Teco 4" Misc 

1 88 88 t 
l t 88 88 88 

., z 54 54 54 54 54 

3- 5., L 5., 59 59 59 

4 42 42 
5 43 43 43 43 

SA 44 44 
6 I 59 59 I r 59 59 59 
7 51 t t i 51 51 51 51 
8 60 60 
9 69 69 69 69 
10 63 63 

11 65 65 
llA I 55 ! 55 
12 51 t 51 51 ~ 51 102 

13 51 51 51 51 51 
14 55 55 55 55 
15 51 51 51 102 
16 67 134 67 
17 41 41 
18 42 . t 42 
19 47 47 47 47 
20 55 55 55 55 55 
21 51 51 51 51 
22 66 66 66 66 , .. 
_ .:, 52 t 52 52 s·2 

24 r 52 t 52 52 104 104 

25 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 
26 54 54 54 108 
27 55 55 55 55 
28 52 52 
2g 58 58 58 58 116 58 58 
30 54 54 54 54 54 
31 70 70 70 70 
32 56 56 56 56 
33 50 50 so so 
34 56 56 56 56 
35 57 57 57 57 
36 52 52 52 52 
37 50 50 50 so so 
38 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 
39 59 59 
40 26 26 52 26 
.11 zs . 28 zg 28 
42 31 31 31 

Tota l 616 85 1212 1212 2046 888 692 701 
Unit Price $ 9.07 $· 10.34 $ 10.34 $ 10.34 $ 7.70 $ 9:07 $ 10.34 $ 10.34 
Subtotal $ 5,587.12 $ 878.90 $ 12,532.08 $ 12,532.08 $ 15,754.20 $ 8,054.16 $ 7,155.28 $ 7,248.34 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Alex Boyer 

October 2020 

Facility Manager Report 

 

 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   2 

 
To: Six Mile Creek CDD          Board of Directors          Via E-mail 
      Jim Oliver                          District Manager             Via E-mail 
      Wes Haber                        District Attorney               Via E-mail 
      Scott Wild                          District Engineer             Via E-mail 
 
 

 

Amenities 
 

Overview 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Facility Usage 
& Updates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
The Amenities at Trailmark have been getting a lot of usage as 
summer ends and kids go back to school. We do have some Cardio 
Equipment in the Fitness Center that is starting to show some age. 
New preventative maintenance process have been put in place. 
Monthly Facility Reports have been logged. 
 
 

 

 

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

Nov 19

Dec 19

Jan 20

Feb 20

Mar 20

Apr 20

May 20

Jun 20

July 20

Aug 20

Sept 20

Nov
19

Dec
19

Jan
20

Feb
20

Mar
20

Apr
20

May
20

Jun
20

July
20

Aug
20

Sept
20

Pool Side Gate 90 90 58 40 13 0 0 104 344 739 405

Play Area/Camphouse 270 150 200 357 88 0 0 97 943 2105 683

Front Pool Gate 136 104 184 94 31 0 0 90 1126 1765 408

Fitness Center Front/Back
Doors

1363 1000 1432 1456 180 0 0 270 1789 1634 1676

Amenity Count

669

2619.89

614.5

2349.22

731.4

2883.9

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

Hours Ran Miles Ran

Treadmill Satistics

Treadmill 1 Treadmill 2 Treadmill 3 Treadmill 4

■■■ ---------■■■ 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   3 

Welcome 
Center 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Amenity 
Pool/Camp 

House 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fitness Center 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Outdoor 
Amenities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• The welcome center had 76 Prospective Buyers in Aug and 
82 in September. 

 
 
 
 

• The Camp house is starting to get busy again. We hosted in 
the last few weeks Two private rentals, Family movie night, 
Trivia Night & Happy Hour, Teen Bingo, and Resident 
hosted Jazz Event.  

 
 
 

• Multiple items in the Fitness Center currently have 
workorders. All items have been scheduled for service. 

 
 
 
 

• New EZ Dock kayak launch was installed.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August Sept

Canoe 1 1

Canoe 2 1

Tandem Kayak 3 2 1

Tandem Kayak 4 1 1

Single Kayak 5 2 4

Single Kayak 6 1 3

1 1

2

11 1

2

4

1

3

#
 R

e
n

ta
ls

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th

Kayak/Canoe Rental

r;.;----------t----------l'------------1 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   4 

New 
Project/Proposals 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New 
Projects/Proposals 

continued 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Maintenance 
Projects 

Completed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1.   Board Approval for holiday lights and decorations 
agreement for Amenities with M&G Holiday Lighting for 
$9,863.21 

2.  Board Approval for Verbal Bi-annual preventative 
maintenance agreement with ACE Door/Hardware for 
Annual total of    $350 plus parts. 

3. Board Approval for pressure washing agreements for 
Welcome center Parking lot/Walkway, Camp 
House/Playground walkway, Exterior Welcome Center & 
Breezeway, Exterior Fitness Center, Exterior Camp House, 
Kayak Launch, Exterior Fitness Center and Welcome Center 
windows with All About Water LLC total $ 2,100 

4.  Board Approval of pressure washing Outdoor amenity 
walkway and gutter cleaning agreement with First Coast 
Home Pros total $1,356 

5. Board Approval for Quarterly HVAC preventative 
maintenance agreement for all 3 units on site with 
Waychoff’s AC for $1200 per year or not NTE.  

6. Proposal of all future vendor contracts have an end date for 
evaluation.  

 
 
 

• Fixed the spring closer on two pool gates. 

• fixed seat on the air rower 

• fixed kayak launch stairs 

• Fixed Camp house wifi 

• Serviced the ADA lift chair 

• Replaced the broken nylon single tri attachment with new 
metal D rings 

• Fix the Motion Sensors in the Fitness Center 

• Fixed the AC unit in the Fitness Center 

• Fixed the lock latch in women’s restroom in the camp house 

• Fixed the gate latch for garbage gates 

• Cleaned off the pool deck and beds of large limbs  

• Replaced cable on the press machine 

• Fixed the glider on the smith machine  

• Sprayed Pool Deck for algae & mold 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   5 

Lifestyles 

 
Events Updates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other: 
Attachments 

 
 
 

• Holiday Decorating contest 

• Pumpkin Patch contest 

• Outdoor movie night and costume parade 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Six Mile Creek Action Sheet 

• Holiday Lighting Estimates 

• Pressure washing & Gutter Cleaning Estimates 
   

 



Six Mile Creek CDD
Action Items Checklist

Activity Quote 1 Quote 2 Quote 3 Quote 4 Owner Board Approvial

New Holiday Decoration Contract M & G Estimate $9,863.21 Southeast works INC $13,525.96 N/A

Quarterly HVAC Prevenative Maintance David Gray Heating & Air ($222.33 monthly) $2668 total Waychoff's AC $300 per quarterly Visit $1200 total Comfort Zone NF pending

Pressure Washing Welcome Center Outdoor amenity 

Walkway
First Coast Home Pros $599 N/A Krystal Klean $1000 Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing  Main Parking Lot/Walkway First Coast Home Pros $109 All About Water LLC $275 Covered Above Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Camp House interior/ exterior pavers only
First Coast Home Pros $699 All About Water LLC $275 Krystal Klean $300 steam clean ($1100 clear Sealer) Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Camp House Walkway/Playground First Coast Home Pros $329 All About Water LLC $275 Krystal Klean $1250 Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Building exterior Welcome 

Center/Breezeway
First Coast Home Pros $599/$429 All About Water LLC $360/$150 Krystal Klean $550 Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Building Exterior Fitness Center First Coast Home Pros $689/$459 All About Water LLC $285/$100 Krystal Klean $500/$125 Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Breezeeway Pavers First Coast Home Pros $299 N/A N/A Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Building Exterior- Full Exterior/Interior 

Camp House
First Coast Home Pros $819 All About Water LLC $350 exterior only Krystal Klean $400 exterior only $200 interior High Dusting Riverside Management did not respond

Gutter Cleaning Welcome Center/Breezeway First Coast Home Pros $289 N/A N/A Riverside Management did not respond

Gutter Cleaning Fitness Center First Coast Home Pros $199 N/A N/A Riverside Management did not respond

Gutter Clearning Camp House First Coast Home Pros $269 N/A N/A Riverside Management did not respond

Chandelier Cleaning Camp House Coach Lights First Coast Home Pros $409 N/A N/A Riverside Management did not respond

Chandelier Cleaning Camp House Celing Fans First Coast Home Pros $149 N/A N/A Riverside Management did not respond

Pressure Washing Kayak Launch N/A All About Water LLC $300 Krystal Klean $300 Riverside Management did not respond

Window Cleaning Front Welcome Center Exterior First Coast Home Pros $199 All About Water LLC $100 Krystal Klean $25 Riverside Management did not respond

Window Cleaning Front Fitness Center Exterior First Coast Hess Pros $289 All About Water LLC $100 Krystal Klean $500/$125 Riverside Management did not respond

Touch up Paint on Trim N/A N/A Krystal Klean $45/hr Riverside Management did not respond

Prevenative Maintenace Door/Hardware ACE $175 plus parts



Page 1 of 2

M&G Holiday Lighting
4845 Belle Terre Pkwy 

Palm Coast, FL  32164 US

mgbusinessventures@gmail.com

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
Trail Mark - Evergreen Lifestyles Management 
10301 Deerwood Park Blvd., Suite 3200 
Jacksonville, FL  32256

ESTIMATE 1944
DATE 09/30/2020

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Outline the West side of building in C7 
WW Lights to gutter line and facia (all 
elevations, see exhibit)

1 522.50 522.50

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install 60” pre-lit wreath to the west 
side of building (see exhibit)

1 363.83 363.83

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install C7 WW Lights to the facia and 
gutter line of the South building at p-lot 
(all elevations, see exhibit)

1 855.00 855.00

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install WW C7 lights to Mid building (all 
elevations, see exhibit)

1 427.50 427.50

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install 60” pre-lit wreathto Mid building 
(See exhibit)

1 363.83 363.83

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install C7 Lighting to the East building 
gutter line and facia (all elevations, see 
exhibit)

1 712.50 712.50

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install C7 WW Lights to the gutter line 
and facia of the Back building (all 
elevations, see exhibit)

1 1,011.75 1,011.75

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install C7 WW Lights to the facia and 
gutter line of the North side of the back 
building (all elevations, see exhibit)

1 451.25 451.25

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Wrap 4 small trees at main entrance in 
WW Mini lights

1 1,253.16 1,253.16

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install WW C7 Stake lighting to the 
south building landscape lines

1 380.00 380.00

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

Install WW C7 Stake lighting to the East 
building landscape lines (see exhbit)

1 546.25 546.25

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install

FRONT ENTRANCE SIGN - Install 
Stake Lighting following the landscape 
lines at the neighborhood sign (see 
exhibit)

1 1,187.50 1,187.50

Holiday Lighting - New Install 2, 36” pre-lit wreaths to either 1 259.14 259.14

& 

HOLIDAY & EVENT 

LIGHTING 



Page 2 of 2

Install side of the neighborhood sign (will 
need confirmed power at this location)

Shipping Shipping of new product 1 120.00 120.00

Miscellaneous - Wire - 
Plugs, Supplies, etc

Miscellaneous - Wire - Plugs, Supplies, 
etc

1 184.00 184.00

Removal Removal of Lights and Decor at the 
end of the season

1 475.00 475.00

Equipment charges Boom Rental for Install and Removal 1 600.00 600.00

Storage Storage of Holiday lights and decor till 
the next season

1 150.00 150.00

We require a payment of 50% to confirm and schedule the installation.  Let us 
know if you have any questions

TOTAL $9,863.21

Accepted By

Accepted Date

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



West Side of Building 



Back Building 

• 

..., . 
• 



South Building at P-LOT 

- - Jt-.~ilit~ 
,~ ~. \\ • 

-



East Side Building 

·de Buifaing 
.. 

- -- - -~ • 



-~.\ •1 .... , , ... ' ., 

" 

------ -----

------

i.---------- -----c..-------------

south Building P
L01 

• 

-



North Side Building 

-



MID Building 

60'' Wreath 

2, 5x7 shrubs 
, x7 shrub to.. . .;,--~-----__.--, 

to be r 



SOUTHEAST WORKS, Inc. 

4656 Collins Road - Unit 4 
Jacksonville, FL 32244 

Office: (904) 579-4422 
Fax: (904) 579-3885 

John Spencer Cell: (352) 601-0892 

Wednesday , September 16, 2020 

Mr . Boyer 

Attached is the quote for the 2020 Christmas Holiday Season for the Community of Trailmark (Six Mile Creek CDD). 
As discussed previously, with your Community's acceptance of another FIVE-YEAR lease, we can retain the same 
basic cost you had from the past Seasons through 2019 for the entry AND the amenities Center. 

The first "tier" of discounts is THIRTY PERCENT ( 30 % ) for early decision . The second AND third "tier" of 
discounts are a combined Customer Loyalty and acceptance of the five-year lease . This combined total is another 
TWENTY PERCENT ( 20 % ). 

The DISCOUNTED Total DOES include Materials; Installation; Maintenance throughout The Season; Return 
For Takedown; and Storage Until Next Season. This estimate, with discounts, is valid until September 30, 2020. 

** With the virus and other issues plaguing ALL of us, we are attempting to "ease the pain" of the issues our 
Customers are experiencing. Because you are an existing Customer, this is a special pricing for the 2020 Season. It 
is almost the same cost you have had with us for the last five years. It is predicated on entering into a FIVE-YEAR 
Lease - Guaranteeing your Community NO increase(s) in cost for FIVE YEARS. 

Various documents requiring signatures are attached, including the FIVE-YEAR Lease. Please fill out, and/or initial and/or 
sign ALL highlighted areas and return all to me, OR ... Contact me and I will set up a mutually convenient time 
to meet with you to collect all pertinent paperwork .. 

Mr . Boyer, please let me know ASAP so that I may assure a position on our schedu le 

We thank the Community of Trailmark for their patronage the last five years and sincerel y look forward to many more 
years of being of service to you! 

Page 1 of 1 



Christmas Decor by Southeast Works, Inc. 

4656-4 Collins Road, Jacksonville, FL 32244 
Phone: (904) 579-4422 - Fax: (904) 579-3885 

John Spencer: (352) 601-0892 

Holiday & Enmt Decorator 

INVOICE: TRAILMARK-003 DATE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2020 

BILL TO 

Six Mile Creek ( CDD ) 
Trailmark Community 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
ATTENTION: Alex Boyer 

Location ofService(s) 
Various - As Listed Below 

DESCRIPTION TOTAL PRICE 

2020 Decor Season 

Install Premium LED Lighting to 
Amenities Center Welcome Center Front Fascia and 

Building ends as in prior years 

Amenities Center 

Amenities Center 

Main Entry 

Main Entry 

Light Four ( 4) Ligustrum Trees at 
Welcome Center 

Light TWO ( 2) Oaks in Plant Beds at 
Amenities Center 

Install Four ( 4) Lighted Three-Foot 
Wreaths On Four ( 4) Posts 

Install Ground Lighting ( Stakes ) 

As per Original Schedule "A" 

$ 8960.36 

$ 3630.00 

$ 2472.00 

$ 1920.44 

$ 2340.00 

Sub-Total: 

Lease AND 
Loyalty Discount 

Grand Total: 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Discounted 

$ 6272.25 

$ 2541.00 

$1730.40 

$1344.31 

$1638.00 

$13,525.96 

< $ 2705.19 > 

$10,820.76 



Chrlstm. s 
Deco 

Southeast Works, Inc. 
4656-4 Collins Road 

Jacksonville, FL 32244 

PROFESSIONAL 1 1J,isiOHS 

Phone: (904) 579-4422 
Fax: (904) 579-3885 

EACH OFFICE INDEPENDENTLY OWNED AND OPERATED John Spencer 
Cell: (352) 601-0892 

AGREEMENT#: TRAILMARK-002 

Commercial Multi-Year Service Agreement - ( FIVE ( 5 ) YEAR ) 
Date: September 16, 2020 

Primary Phone: (904) 568-2568 Alternate Phone ( Cell ): _________ _ 

This agreement entered into by and between Southeast Works, Inc, OBA Christmas Decor (herein after "Installer " and Six 
Mile Creek CDD herein after "Customer") . Witnessed that the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

The term of this agreement schedule, with respect to each item of installation listed herein and/or per itemized listing marked 
Attachment "A" and/or proposal or email dated September 20, 2017. 

Season 1 2020 08 TBA Season 2 2021 08 TBA Season 3 2022 08 TBA 
Yr. Mo. Date Yr. Mo. Date Yr. Mo. Date 

Season 4 2023 08 TBA Season 5 2024 08 TBA 
Yr. Mo. Date Yr. Mo. Date 

Is for a term of FIVE ( 5) Christmas Seasons. Commencing September 2020 and Ending January 2025. 

ARTICLE II. STATEMENT OF WORK 

Installer shall install, maintain, remove and then store decorations and/or lights for customer listed above. Items and 
decorations to be installed are those approved on Attachment "A" and/or proposal or email dated September 20. 2017 
which totals the monetary amounts listed in this agreement. 

Location(s) of Installation: 
Installation Address(es): 

805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Trailmark Community 

Email Address: _________________ _ 

Locations of Installation Areas Outlined on itemized listing provided to Customer. 
Such details to be reduced to writing and signed by the Customer before installation begins 

( Acceptance of this agreement constitutes proof of delivery of Itemized Listing) 

In consideration of multiple discounts extended by installer, installation of the lighting, at the sole discretion of the Installer , 
shall be started in the month of October of the renewing year . At the Customer's request , daytime decor - ( Greenery 
(Garland, Trees and wreaths)) - will be installed in the month of November with the date also being at the sole discretion 
of the Installer. 

Page 1 of 5 
16 September 2020 



Installer shall not be liable for delays of installation caused by weather, delays beyond their control, or acts of God. 

Removal shall be started in the first full work week in January, in the year following each contracted Holiday Season. 
Installer cannot guarantee a specific day and/or time for removal. While Installer will make every attempt to have all 
Customer's decor removed during the month of January, Installer shall not be liable for delays ofremoval caused by weather, 
delays beyond their control, or acts of God. 

ARTICLE III. PAYMENTS 

A. Customer shall pay to installer for the performance of this agreement, a total sum of 
$ 10,820.76 the first year which shall constitute total compensation to installer for this first year, 
except as noted in the accompanying documents, if any. Storage charges are included in quoted prices , 
unless otherwise stated within this contract or accompanying documents . No refunds apply. 

B. Customer shall pay to installer for the performance of this agreement, a total sum of 
$ 10,820.76 the second year which shall constitute total compensation to installer for this second year, 
except as noted in the accompanying documents , if any. Storage charges are included in quoted prices , 
unless otherwise stated within this contract or accompanying documents. No refunds apply. 

C. Customer shall pay to installer for the performance of this agreement , a total sum of 
$ 10,820.76 the third year which shall constitute total compensation to installer for this third year , 
except as noted in the accompanying documents , if any. Storage charges are included in quoted prices , 
unless otherwise stated within this contract or accompanying documents. No refunds apply. 

D. Customer shall pay to installer for the performance of this agreement, a total sum of 
$ 10,820.76 the fourth year which shall constitute total compensation to installer for this third year , 
except as noted in the accompanying documents , if any. Storage charges are included in quoted prices, 
unless otherwise stated within this contract or accompanying documents . No refunds apply . 

E. Customer shall pay to installer for the performance of this agreement, a total sum of 
$ 10,820.76 the fifth year which shall constitute total compensation to installer for this third year , 
except as noted in the accompanying documents , if any. Storage charges are included in quoted prices , 
unless otherwise stated within this contract or accompanying documents . No refunds apply . 

PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE AS FOLLOWS: 

50% Of Total money is due with acceptance of contract with FULL balance being due within TEN ( 10) DAYS 
of installation being performed. Upon approval of Christmas Decor by Southeast Works , Customer may elect to 
pay subsequent years in SIX (6) monthly installments beginning on or about March 15th of each year , with the 
FULL amount(s) being paid in full by August 15th of same year. All payments not received by due date may 
incur a late charge of 1 ½ % per month - ( 18% APR). 

Payment may be made in the form of : Cash; Personal Check ; Cashier ' s Check; Postal Money Order; Visa, 
MasterCard, and Discover credit cards. If payment is made by credit card, and Customer is not on our six-month 
payment plan , Christmas Decor will automatically process payment in the month of August each year of lease 
following notification from our office. 

* Please Make All Checks Payable To Southeast Works* 

Page 2 of 5 
16 Septembe r 2020 



NOTICE: CONFIRMATION OF INSTALLATION- Name of person or persons, if any, in addition to signer 
of this agreement that are authorized to accept installation as completed: 

A: Title: ------------- -----------
B: _____________ Title:----------: 

ARTICLE IV. WARRANTY 

Installer warrants that all work shall be performed in a workmanlike manner. This warranty shall remain in force 
for the term of this agreement. There are no verbal warranties, expressed or implied. Installer makes no 
warranties of the condition of the decorations resulting from normal wear and tear. However, it is the installer's 
practice to replace all C-9 bulbs annually as required and replace garland or mini-lights as needed according to 
stipulations of each individual contract. 

ARTICLE V. INSURANCE 

Installer shall obtain a policy of insurance insuring the installer and customer against liability for loss suffered by 
third parties with respect to the installation in the amount of $500,000.00. If customer wishes to have any 
additional parties added to installer's Certificate of Insurance, there will be an added charge. The added charge 
is based on our insurance company's rate at the time of the request. Any and all other insurance required by the 
customer shall be the customer's responsibility and expense. Customer will be responsible for all acts of 
vandalism. 

ARTICLE VI. SITE PREPARATION AND PLOT PLAN 

The location specifics for the installation shall be furnished by the customer and must be first approved by the 
installer's Foreman as the feasibility for such installations. Customer is responsible for bringing the appropriate 
power source to the point of installation. Further, customer is responsible for securing any permission and permits 
necessary for proper installation from owners, lessees, lessors, city, state or other governmental authority. 
Installer is given permission to install decoration, lights or hardware items included but not limited to face plates, 
cable, screw/bolt anchors, anchor plates, clips, guy wires etc. Hardware items must be left in place between 
seasons unless otherwise indicated here. 

When trees and/or shrubs are included in Decor package(s) and growth occurs between Seasons, a modest adjustment to annual 
charges may occur when additional material and/or labor is required. _____ _ 

Customer Initials 

ARTICLE VII. SUBCONTRACTORS AND ASSIGNMENTS 

Installer has the option to assign all or part of its rights and obligations under the terms of this agreement. Any 
such assignment shall not relieve customer of its duty of performance under any of the terms or conditions of this 
agreement. Installer is obligated to see that all conditions are fulfilled. 

Page 3 of 5 
16 September 2020 



ARTICLE VIII. CONFLICT OF APPLICABLE LAW 

If any paragraph or provision of this agreement is declared contrary to public policy or unenforceable in law or 
equity, then in that event, that portion shall be deleted from this agreement, and the remaining portions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

ARTICLEIX. DEFAULT 

If, after the first year of a multi-year contract, Customer wishes to cancel the contract as to future years of service, 
Customer will be obligated to pay sixty-five percent (65%) of the contract amount for such future years. Said 
amount to be due in full within thirty (30) days after Customer provides written notice of cancellation which must 
be provided no later than August 15th of the year of the cancellation. 

ARTICLE X. LITIGATION COSTS 

In the event of litigation in order to collect any and all sums due under this Agreement, Customer will be liable 
for all costs and Attorney fees incurred by Installer in collecting said sums. 

ARTICLE XI. SERVICE CALL 

Under this particular lease, there will NOT be a charge for service calls unless caused by property power issues, 
vandalism or theft ... There will be no charge for our normal bi-weekly (two times per month) service calls for up 
to the initial three months from the date of the seasonal installation. All required bulb or product replacements 
are performed free of charge during the three-month season. Any calls for service other than those covered above 
- ( If any ) - will be billed out at our standard hourly rate of $ 125.00 for a man and a truck with a one-hour 
minimum. Any extended installations requiring service will be calculated on an individual basis, plus bulb 
replacement. 

ARTICLE XII. 

All materials, supplies, decorations and lights will be owned by the installer. The installer or customer has to 
right to accept or reject an extension of this arrangement at the end of this contract upon newly agreed-on terms 
and conditions. 

ARTICLE XIII. 

Service performance disputed by the customer shall be in writing and be mailed via certified postage to the 
contractor. The contractor shall reply in writing to the customer and/or the customer's authorized agent or property 
manager specifying what remedial action has/will be taken to be in compliance with the contract. 

The contractor shall have fourteen days in which to correct discrepancies. Corrected contractual deficiencies shall 
not be considered material in termination for cause under the contract. 

ARTICLE XIV. ADDITIONAL ITEMS 

Customer signature below acknowledges receipt of an itemized listing of Decor areas and a copy of this lease 
contract. 

Any photos, graphical representations and/or verbal depiction(s) are for the sake of clarity and actual finished 
product may differ. 

Page 4 of 5 
16 September 2020 



* REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION (Signature) * 

EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT ON DATE SET FORTH BY THEIR SIGNATURES BELOW: 

Installation Company: 

Southeast Works, Inc. 

D/B/ A Christmas Decor 

4656-4 Collins Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32244 

~ 
Chrlstm s 

Decor 
PROFESSIONAL ,,-, 

By: _____________ _ 
Representative 

Print Name 

Title: _______________ _ 

DATE: ____________ _ 

Customer: 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
( Trailmark Community ) 

By:------------------' 
Customer Signature 

Print Name 

Title: _______________ _ 

Witnesses ( If Required ) 

By: _____________ _ By: ______________ _ 

Print Name Print Name 

By:---------------- By:---------------

Print Name Print Name 

If Witnesses Are Required, Each Witness May Attest For BOTH Parties 

* Please Make All Checks Payable to Southeast Works, Inc. * 

Page 5 of5 
16 September 2020 Holiday & Event Decorators 



* REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION (Signature) * 

EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT ON DATE SET FORTH BY THEIR SIGNATURES BELOW: 

Installation Company: 

Southeast Works, Inc. 

D/B/ A Christmas Decor 

4656-4 Collins Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32244 

~ 
Chrlstm a s 

Decor 
PROFESSIONAL "> 

By: _____________ _ 
Representative 

Print Name 

Title: ________________ _ 

DATE: ____________ ___.; 

Customer: 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
( Trailmark Community) 

By:------------------' 
Customer Signature 

Print Name 

Title: _______________ _ 

Witnesses ( If Required ) 

By:-----------------
By: ______________ _ 

Print Name Print Name 

By: _____________ _ By: ______________ _ 

Print Name Print Name 

If Witnesses Are Required, Each Witness May Attest For BOTH Parties 

* Please Make All Checks Payable to Southeast Works, Inc. * 

Page 5 of5 
16 September 2020 Holiday & Event Decorators 



SOUTWOR-01 LSTRATTON 

ACORD " CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 9/16/2020 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER m~m;~cT Lori A. Stratton 

JP Perry Insurance, Inc ll)gN:o, Ext): (904) 482-1696 I tffc, No):(904) 900-2222 3342 Kori Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 1~1!~ss: lstratton@jpperry.com 

INSURER/Sl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: Western World Insurance Companv 13196 

INSURED INSURER B: Old Dominion Insurance Company 40231 

Southeast Works, Inc., dba: Christmas Decor INSURERC: 
P.O. Box 2497 INSURERD: 
Orange Park, FL 32067 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· REVISION NUMBER· 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

1~1: TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS ,ucn ••n,n T TT 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

I CLAIMS-MADE CK] OCCUR NPP8688046 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PRE"'"'ES /Ea orr, rrencel $ 500,000 

MED EXP (Anv one oersonl $ 10,000 
-

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 
-

2,000,000 
~ 'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 

POLICY □ ~r8r □ LOG PRODUCTS · COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accid~ntl $ 1,000,000 

X ANY AUTO B1P7932U 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 BODILY INJURY /Per oersonl $ 
OWNED - SCHEDULED 

f--
AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS BODILY INJURY /Per accident\ $ 

X HIRED X NON-OWNED IP~~~~~d1;,~t?AMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS ONLY 
$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
~ 

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION$ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I OTH-
STATUTE ER AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

□ N/A 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE· EA EMPLOYEE $ 

If yes. describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

Six Mile Creek COD ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
805 Trailmark Drive 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I 
~~13~~ 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



~ 
Chrlstm As 

Decor 

Phone: (904) 579-4422 

Fax: (904) 579-3885 

Southeast Works, Inc. 
4656 Collins Road- Unit 4 

Jacksonville, FL 32244 

Welcome To Our Decor Family! 
Your Christmas Lighting & Holiday Decorations will soon be installed! 

Shortly, you will be enjoying YOUR Christmas Decor throughout the Holiday season. 

The first Decor in our decorating area was performed in the 2000 Holiday Season and since that time, we 
have consistently strived to protect against potential issues during installation and use time proven 
techniques to aid in this endeavor . However , issues do arise. Heavy rain, high winds , moisture , and other 
related outdoor elements are beyond anyone's control. Here are a few tips that can help keep everything 
working and looking great. If these tips don't help, just call us. We will be out within 48hrs. 

Sprinklers: To prevent your automatic or timed sprinkler system from soaking your light strands and 
tripping a GFCI, we recommend that you reset the timer on your sprinkler system so that watering occurs 
while the holiday lights are off (such as in the early morning). 

Timers: Should you experience erratic behavior from your lighting, please check the timer to ensure that 
it is plugged in and connected to power. Remember , your timer(s) must be powered at all times to keep 
proper synchronization. So please make sure that th timer is NOT plugged into an outlet connected to a 
switch that can be inadvertently turned on and off. Disruption of power to the timer will throw it out of 
sync. 

GFCI "Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter" Outlet Trips: A GFCI is installed in most homes as a 
protection system that shuts down the flow of electricity to an electrical outlet when it senses a ground 
in the line. Some GFCI are incorporated within particular outlets, while others may be manufactured 
within a breaker inside the electric panel. When outdoor holiday lights become excessively wet this 
will often cause the GFCI to trip. Should a GFCI circuit trip. it will need to be reset to restore power 
to the outlet. 

Wait until the rain or sprinkler system has stopped and the light strands have had a chance to dry 
out before attempting to reset the GFCI. Should you decide to plug your lights into an alternate GFCI 
protected outlet, please remember that you must still reset the previous circuit to restore the flow of 
electricity to that outlet. 

Note: If you are using a timer. it will need to be reset by Christmas Decor personnel as well, after 
resetting the GFCI to ensure the lights go on and off at the desired times. If the above tips don't help, 
just call us, and we will have a service tech out within 48hrs. If you can get that call in by early morning, 
sometimes it may be possible to have it done that day. DO NOT wait until the end of the day on Friday(s) , 
to ensure you will have lights for the weekend. 

As much as we endeavor to make our services non-invasive, when installing greenery such as garland, 
wreaths and sprays, it is necessary to utilize anchors that are placed in the structure. Customer 
realizes this is a required procedure and authorizes this installation. YES ____ NO ___ _ 

If we are highlighting windows, Customer must remove screens prior to service. 

Customer acknowledges receipt of above notice(s): _________________ _ 

Date: _________________ _ 

Page 1 of 1 
8 March 2020 



Christmas Decor Policies, Terms and Conditions 

Christmas Decor's service is comprised of the design, installation , and takedown of holiday decorations. All lighting and decorations remain the prop
erty of the service provider. This is a service agreement only and no goods are being sold. 

Lighting and Decorations: Christmas Decor warrants the quality of our decorations and workmanship as provided below. Should you 
have any problems with the decorations, we want to correct them as soon as possible . We recommend that you turn the lights on for several hours 
over the first three or four evenings to test the lighting program. This will allow us to make corrections as soon as possible in order to maximize 
your enjoyment of the decorations . Repairs needed due to vandalism , extraordinary weather conditions, and customer added lights are not war
ranted and will be billed as additional services. 

Maintenance: Christmas Decor will gladly service any non-working decorations within reason. Individual bulbs will vary in length of operation 
and some will expire before others . We cannot reasonably change every bulb when it expires, however, we can perform service when several have 
~~- . . 

Billing Issues and Quality of Service: In the event that you have a question concerning our billing please contact our office within 
30 days. Otherwise, we will assume that all billings are correct. Christmas Decor will provide quality workmanship and commercial-grade materi 
als. However, we request that all questions regarding workmanship or materials must be addressed within 72 hours of the service, or before the 
next service is to be performed, whichever comes first. 

Terms and Conditions: A deposit may be required at the time your order is placed . Full payment for every item and service is due according 
to the invoice terms on the date of service. In the event payment is not made within terms on invoice, a time-price differential (Finance Charge) of 
18% (eighteen percent) per annum, but in no event in excess of the maximum amount allowed at law, shall be assessed and due on the unpaid 
balance from the due date until payment is received in full by the Christmas Decor service provider. Payments received will be applied first to any 
outstanding FINANCE CHARGE and the remainder to the unpaid balance on the account. In the event the purchaser fails to make payments as 
required, your account shall be considered to be in default and the purchaser shall be responsible for costs of collection and reasonable attorneys 
fees , as allowed by law. 

Incentive Discounts: You may be eligible for one of our incentive programs. Elf Dollar incentives apply only to a renewal contract for the 
decorating season immediately following and shall not apply to reinstallation items but rather to add-on decor items or other holiday products of
fered by your service provider. Renewal contract must include at least 70% of the prior years service value for Elf Dollars to apply. Elf Dollars will 
continue to accrue if not used. Multi-year incentives apply when you initially contract for two or more years. Mul~ ar service cont~~~l~ off~ ~ 
best, locked rates. If you elect this option, this contract will apply to the following decoration season(s): ZO~- g(- 2.b2:l~ -,c0".6-t" 

Initials A customer is only eligible for one of these two in-
centive programs. The percentage discount for an incentive will be determined at the time a contract is executed and stated on the front page and 
applies only to pre-tax services. A Prepay Incentive is available if a percentage for a prepay incentive has been listed on the front of this form . To 
take advantage of this option, full payment must be received prior to the early installation incentive date expressed on the front of this proposal. 

Installation and Removal: Holiday decorations shall be installed and removed at your request if possible . Customers designating times 
are given priority based upon first-in-time notice. All services are subject to weather conditions and demand. The service provider retains sole dis
cretion as to the timing of services and no breach occurs based on dates of services . 

Limited Warranty and Limitation of Liability and Remedies: BOTH PARTIES TO TH is CONTRACT AGREE THAT IN THE 
EVENT OF THE FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION OF THE LIGHTING AND/OR DECORATIONS PROVIDED, THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REM
EDY AVAILABLE TO THE CUSTOMER SHALL BE THE REFUND OF THE COST OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
OR THE REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF THE LIGHTING AND/OR DECORATIONS , TO BE DETERMINED SOLELY AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE SERVICE PROVIDER . 

BOTH PARTIES AGREE THAT THE CHRISTMAS DECOR SERVICE PROVIDER WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL DAM
AGES OF ANY NATURE CAUSED TO THE PROPERTY OF THE CUSTOMER BY ANY FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION OF THE LIGHTING AND 
DECORATIONS PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. SOME STATES MAY NOT ALLOW FOR THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF INCI
DENTAL AND CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATION AND EXCLUSIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU. 

BOTH PARTIES AGREE THAT ANY CLAIM BY THE CUSTOMER THAT THE WORKMANSHIP OR MATERIAL USED ARE DEFECTIVE OR NON
CONFORMING MUST BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CHRISTMAS DECOR SERVICE PROVIDER IN WRITING WITHIN 72 
HOURS OF THE SERVICE AND FAILURE TO DO SO RESULTS IN A COMPLETE AND FINAL WAIVER OF ALL CLAIMS . 

Arbitration: ANY AND ALL DISPUTES THAT MAY ARISE BETWEEN THE PARTIES SHALL BE SETTLED BY ARBITRATION IN ACCOR· 
DANCE WITH STATE LAW WHERE THE SERVICE PROVIDER IS LOCATED. THE ARBITRATORS AWARD SHALL BE FINAL AND BINDING ON 
ALL PARTIES AND JUDGMENT MAY BE ENTERED BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION IN THE COUNTY OF THE SERVICE 
PROVIDER WHERE ALL ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS SHALL BE CONDUCTED THROUGH THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION CENTER, OR ITS 
SUCCESSOR. 

I have read, understand and agree to the above policies, terms, and conditions. Customer has the right to rescind this contract by giving written 
notice to the service provider within three days from the date below. 

Customer Date 



904.383.7721

Estimate
Account #:
Estimate #:

42149
64570

Monday-Friday 8:30A-5:00P

Call or Email!

Best Cleaning Service

September 09, 2020
Evergreen Lifestyles Management

805 Trailmark Dr
Alex Boyer

Saint Augustine FL 32092

Mobile  (904)568-2568            
Email  aboyer@evergreen-lm.com

Other Specialty Cleaning Services

House Cleaning Services

We accept personal checks, money orders, or cash.

Payment in full is due immediately upon completion of service.

Using a credit card or bank account.
A $5.00 convenience fee applies to online payments.

OR

Detailed Cleaning
Maintenance Cleaning

Move Out Cleaning
Move In Cleaning

Carpet Cleaning
Tile, Stone & Grout Cleaning

Upholstery Cleaning
Air Duct & Dryer Vent Cleaning

Window Cleaning
Pressure Washing

Item Qty Description Amount

WC-O-199 Window Cleaning - Outside - Front Exterior Welcome Center Windows - $199
*"Front Exterior" = Sections in front of fence

$199.00

WC-O-289 Window Cleaning - Outside - Front Exterior Fitness Center Windows - $289
*"Front Exterior" = Sections in front of fence

$289.00

WC-O-549 Window Cleaning - Outside - Camp House Windows (Both Sides) - $549 $549.00

PW-WW-599 Pressure Washing - Welcome Center Walkway - $599 $599.00

PW-WW-109 Pressure Washing - Parking Lot Island Walkway - $109 $109.00

PW-P-699 Pressure Washing - Interior/Exterior Camp House Pavers - $699 $699.00

PW-WW-329 Pressure Washing - Camp House/Playground Walkway - $329 $329.00

PW-BE-599 Pressure Washing - Building Exterior - Full Exterior Welcome Center with Breezeway - $599 $599.00

PW-BE-689 Pressure Washing - Building Exterior - Full Exterior Fitness Center - $689 $689.00

PW-BE-429 Pressure Washing - Building Exterior - Front Exterior Welcome Center with Breezeway - $429
*"Front Exterior" = Sections in front of fence

$429.00

PW-BE-459 Pressure Washing - Building Exterior - Front Exterior Fitness Center - $459
*"Front Exterior" = Sections in front of fence

$459.00

PW-PA-299 Pressure Washing - Breezeway Pavers - $299 $299.00

PW-BE-819 Pressure Washing -  Building Exterior - Full Exterior/Interior Camp House - $819 $819.00

GC-RDF-289 Gutter Cleaning - Remove Debris & Flush - Welcome Center/Breezeway - $289 $289.00

GC-RDF-199 Gutter Cleaning - Remove Debris & Flush - Fitness Center - $199 $199.00

GC-RDF-269 Gutter Cleaning - Remove Debris & Flush - Camp House - $269 $269.00

CC-CL-409 Chandelier Cleaning - Camp House Coach Lights (20) - $409 $409.00

CC-CF-149 Chandelier Cleaning - Camp House Ceiling Fans (9) - $149 $149.00

$0.00
Subtotal: $7,382.00

Tax:
Total: $7,382.00

Thank you for considering First Coast Home Pros.  Our goal is to
be the best service company you've ever invited to your home.
In keeping with that idea, each of our services is backed by The
100% Guarantee.  If you are not satisfied for any reason, we'll
make it right or you don't owe us a dime.

Angie's List

Super Service

Award Winners

Every Year

Since 2009

8775 Arlington Expy • Jacksonville FL 32211 • 904.383.7721 • service@firstcoasthomepros.com

First Coast 
Home Pros 

First Coast ti, Home Pros 

bt:. 



Page 1 of 1

All About Water, LLC
1608 N.Summer Ridge Ct. 

St.Augustine, FL  32092

904-826-5355

http://www.allaboutwaterstaug.com

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
Trailmark 
C/O Evergreen Lifestyles Management

ESTIMATE 1211
DATE 09/10/2020

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

105 Softwash welcome center and 
entrance canopy

1 360.00 360.00

105 Softwash wash fitness center 1 285.00 285.00

105 Softwash wash camp house (cover all 
lighting fixtures that are not water 
proof)

1 350.00 350.00

105 Pressure wash camp house pavers 1 275.00 275.00

105 Pressure wash walkway and kayak 
deck at Kayak launch

1 300.00 300.00

105 Softwash front only of welcome center/ 
breezeway

1 150.00 150.00

105 Softwash front only of Fitness Center 1 100.00 100.00

105 Window cleaning at front of Welcome 
center

1 100.00 100.00

105 Window cleaning at front of fitness 
center

1 100.00 100.00

105 Pressure wash parking lot and amenity 
walkway

1 275.00 275.00

105 Pressure wash parking lot and 
playground walkway

1 275.00 275.00

Thank you for the opportunity to bid our services TOTAL $2,570.00

Accepted By

Accepted Date



 

PO Box 51289  

Jacksonville Beach FL 32240 

(904) 220-3337,  

Info@krystalklean.com

 

Estimate

ESTIMATE # 40595466

DATE

PO #

CUSTOMER

Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

Alex Boyer 

805 Trailmark Drive  

Saint Augustine, FL, 32092 

(904) 568-2568 

aboyer@evergreen-lm.com

 

SERVICE LOCATION

Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

Six Mile Creek CDD c/o Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

805 Trailmark Drive  

Saint Augustine, FL, 32092 

(904) 568-2568 

aboyer@evergreen-lm.com

DESCRIPTION Facility Cleaning/Pressure Washing

Description Qty Rate Total

Kayak Launch 

-Pressure Wash Flat Surface on Kayak Launch: $300 

-Cleaning process uses moderate heat and regulated pressure to remove organic build-

up.  

-Krystal Klean will pressure wash each type of substrate to determine amount of

pressure used for cleaning. 

-Pressure will be regulated depending on surface conditions 

-Some heavy stains may not be fully removable from concrete surfaces. 

-Please review any specific concerns with your Krystal Klean estimator so we arrive

prepared to meet your needs. 

-Technicians work safely to protect customer property and the surrounding

environment.  

*Krystal Klean cannot be help responsible for preexisting surface conditions such as

holes, Heavy grease stains, or Surface abrasion from previous equipment access 

1.00 $300.00 $300.00

Welcome Center and Breeze Way 

1.) Pressure Washing the parking lot and amenity walkway: $1,000 

2.) Soft Washing full exterior of welcome center/breezeway: $550 

3.) Soft Washing exterior front side only on welcome center/breeze way: $200 

4.) Window Cleaning Exterior Glass on front entrance side only: $25 

5.) Touch up paint on trim/exterior: $45/ hr 

-Pressure wash surfaces with moderate heat, regulated pressure, and a balanced anti-

microbial solution to remove organic build-up. Some stains may not be fully removable

from surfaces being cleaned.  

-Please review any specific concerns with your Krystal Klean estimator so we arrive

prepared to meet your needs. 

-Technicians work safely to protect customer property and the surrounding

environment.  

-Technicians will inspect surfaces to identify potential water intrusion points and give

1.00 $1,775.00 $1,775.00

1

l1l$Nfi1J, l3ll!liW 1' 



recommendations for waterproofing, painting, or sealing. Cleaning methods may be

adjusted depending on surface conditions.

Fitness Center 

1.) Soft Wash full exterior: $500 

2.) Soft wash exterior front side only: $125 

3.) Window Cleaning exterior glass on front entrance side only: $50 

4.) Touch up paint: $45/ hr 

-Pressure wash surfaces with moderate heat, regulated pressure, and a balanced anti-

microbial solution to remove organic build-up. Some stains may not be fully removable

from surfaces being cleaned.  

-Please review any specific concerns with your Krystal Klean estimator so we arrive

prepared to meet your needs. 

-Technicians work safely to protect customer property and the surrounding

environment.  

-Technicians will inspect surfaces to identify potential water intrusion points and give

recommendations for waterproofing, painting, or sealing. Cleaning methods may be

adjusted depending on surface conditions.

1.00 $675.00 $675.00

Camp House 

1.) Pressure Wash parking lot Walkway/ playground walkway: $1,250 

2.) Soft Wash full outside Exterior of camp house: $400 

3.) General Cleaning interior/ ceiling Dusting system (High dusting): $200 

4. ) Steam clean pavers: $300 

*Option to apply clear sealer: $1,100 

Sherwin Williams CONFLEX 7% Siloxane Water Repellent 

-Pressure wash surfaces with moderate heat, regulated pressure, and a balanced anti-

microbial solution to remove organic build-up. Some stains may not be fully removable

from surfaces being cleaned.  

-Please review any specific concerns with your Krystal Klean estimator so we arrive

prepared to meet your needs. 

-Technicians work safely to protect customer property and the surrounding

environment.  

-Technicians will inspect surfaces to identify potential water intrusion points and give

recommendations for waterproofing, painting, or sealing. Cleaning methods may be

adjusted depending on surface conditions.

1.00 $2,150.00 $2,150.00

    Estimate Total: $4,900.00

CUSTOMER MESSAGE

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you! 

Terms of payment: The total amount stated is due upon completion.  Where applicable, credit cards will be charged for the total amount upon 

completion based on the credit card information provided in advance.  All late payments (over 30 days) may bear interest at the highest rate 

permissible under Florida law calculated daily and compounded monthly.  Customer shall also be responsible for paying all reasonable costs 

incurred in collecting any late payments, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees.  

2



Proposal

Date
To Trailmark Living CDD 6 Mile Creek Phone Fax

Strt Email aboyer@evergreen-lm.com

C,S,Z Location Clubhouse and Gym

Subject:

Procedure: David Gray Heating & Air, Inc. proposes to perform the following work:

1. Brush & Clean Coils

2. Clean Out Drain Pan

3. Flush Condensate Drain Line

4. Check Refrigerant Pressure

5. Check/Tighten Electrical Connections

6. Lubricate Motors

7. Check Thermostat Operation & Calibration

8. Check Compressor Amperage

9. Check Fan Motor Amperage

10. Visually Inspect System Components

11. Check Safety Controls

12. Check Electric Heat Element

13. Check Defrost Controls

14. Replace Air Filters (Customer Provided)

15. Install Drain Pan Cleaner in each system every 6 months (additional at price noted)

16. Install Belt in Dual Circuit Split System every 6 months (additional at price noted)

16. Electronic Leak Search as needed

Yearly Total: 

Note:

Does Not Include Refrigerant 

2 Man Labor Rate: $120 first 30 minutes, plus $56 each additional 15 minutes

1 Man Labor Rate: $70 first 30 minutes, plus $29 each additional 15 minutes

After Hours Rate availablue upon request

R410a will be charged at $50 per pound and weighed with a digital scale (prices subject to change)

R22 will be charged at $100 per pound and weighed with a digital scale (prices subject to change)

Belts - $40 per each

Drain Pan Pad Cleaner - $25 per each

Payments to be made as follows: Upon Completion of Work

All materials to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner and in compliance with applicable regulations and codes. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon 

written orders, and will become an extra charge over and beyond the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessary insurance. Our workers

fully covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance.

This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within  10  days.

Acceptance of Proposal  The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Customer agrees to pay all charges, including reasonable attorney's fees, plus court costs and interest on accounts which must be turned over to an attorney for collection or suit.

Date Signature

Printed Name

Saint Augustine, FL 32092

805 Trailmark Drive

904-568-2568

6491 Powers Avenue

JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32217

PHONE (904) 724-7211   FAX (904) 724-5925

CAC1817886

September 3, 2020

Quarterly Preventative Maintenance Plan on Heating and Air System                                                                                    

(2 Split Systems and 1 Dual Circuit Split System)

$2,668.00

$222.33Monthly Payment: 

-

mailto:aboyer@evergreen-lm.com


From: Rachael H
To: Alex Boyer
Subject: Waychoffs AC
Date: Thursday, October 8, 2020 7:39:02 PM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 
 
 

                                 
 

 

Commercial Maintenance: $125 per unit plus cost of filters
                                                                    If multiple systems or quarterly visits $99
per visit plus cost of filters
 
Thank you for choosing Waychoff’s Air Conditioning.  All services are performed by NATE certified
service technicians and backed by our commitment to our customers.  Call us at 904-880-5525 to
schedule your appointment today.

 
Benefits

ü Energy Savings - Systems lose 8% efficiency a year, resulting in a 30% increase in energy usage.
ü Clean Air - Poor Indoor Air Quality contributes to 95% of all respiratory illness, including headaches, dry
eyes, nasal congestion, coughing, allergic reactions, trigger asthma, fatigue, dizziness, nausea, & loss of sleep.

 
Inclusions

 
                We start with the safety items:

Inspecting and tightening all your electrical connections.. A loose connection is why ac systems catch
on fire.
Inspect blower assembly to make sure motor is free from debris and spins freely. This will prolong the
life of the motor.
Heating section… We check the heat strip to ensure it is working correctly and safely.  Heat strips are
like the little electric wire heaters.  We make sure they are working as designed.
We  inspect your evaporator coil   and cabinet  to make sure no bio growth  is  forming and creating a
harmful indoor air quality issue.
We measure your refrigerant levels to make sure your compressor does not over heat.
We  remove  leaves  from  outdoor  unit.  This  keeps  your  system  from  forming  rust  and  corroding  the

■ 

Way_!holl's 
g 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 
Ll:J 
c.., 

;:; 
- "'-1 

-r 1-S.1 ~ "@ 

mailto:rachael.h@waychoffsac.com
mailto:aboyer@evergreen-lm.com



system. 
We measure heating and cooling efficiency.  To make sure you are getting what you are paying for.
We clean the outdoor coil  to ensure proper airflow across  the coil. This  is  the cause of high electric
bills.
We even wash and wax the outdoor unit to protect it from UV rays.
We clean and flush out the drain line and add treatment.
We inspect your filters to ensure there is proper airflow.
We even check your ductwork and attic insulation to make sure your system is not running too much.
We want to save you as much money as possible to make your home comfortable.

               We take your safety serious, and extend the life of your system.
 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited Financial	Reporting
September	30,	2020

• • • • • • • • • • • • 

• • • • ••••• 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 



Totals
  Debt Capital (Memorandum Only)
 General Service Projects 2020

ASSETS:  
Cash $46,695 --- --- $46,695
Assessment Receivable $12,251 --- --- $12,251
Prepaid Expenses $28,683 --- --- $28,683
Investments:
Custody Account $343 --- --- $343
Series 2007

Reserve --- $34,598 --- $34,598
Construction --- --- $2,176 $2,176

Series 2015
Reserve --- $160,313 --- $160,313
Revenue --- $89,723 --- $89,723

Series 2016A
Reserve --- $444,150 --- $444,150
Revenue --- $358,825 --- $358,825
Construction --- --- $287,686 $287,686
Cost of Issuance --- --- $2,570 $2,570

Series 2016B
Reserve --- $138,650 --- $138,650
Revenue --- $68,650 --- $68,650
Interest --- $4,336 --- $4,336
Prepayment --- $149,438 --- $149,438
Construction --- --- $1 $1

Series 2017A
Reserve --- $703,838 --- $703,838
Revenue --- $422,316 --- $422,316
Construction --- --- $0 $0
Construction - NW Parcel --- --- $397,876 $397,876

Series 2017B
Reserve --- $42,934 --- $42,934
Revenue --- $28,812 --- $28,812
Prepayment --- $524,787 --- $524,787
Interest --- $3 --- $3
Construction --- --- $2 $2

Series 2020
Reserve --- $414,875 --- $414,875
Revenue --- $4 --- $4
Capitalized Interest --- $94,669 --- $94,669
Construction --- --- $1,490,408 $1,490,408
Cost of Issuance --- --- $15,750 $15,750

Due from Capital Projects $392 --- $956 $1,348
Due from Debt Service $9,923 --- $9,923
Due from Developer $3,500 --- --- $3,500
Due from General Fund --- $30,926 $4,153 $35,079
TOTAL ASSETS $91,863 $3,721,768 $2,201,578 $6,015,209

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $26,918 --- $1,185,335 $1,212,253
Due to Debt Service 2015 $2,055 --- --- $2,055
Due to Debt Service 2016A $4,325 --- --- $4,325
Due to Debt Service 2017A $261 --- --- $261
Due to Capital Projects $5,153 $9,923 $956 $16,032
Deferred Revenue $28,683 --- --- $28,683
FUND BALANCES:  
Unrestricted for Debt Service Series 2007 --- $34,598 --- $34,598
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2015 --- $252,091 --- $252,091
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016A --- $797,376 --- $797,376
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016B --- $361,074 --- $361,074
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017A --- $1,160,622 --- $1,160,622
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017B --- $596,536 --- $596,536
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2020 --- $509,547 --- $509,547
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2007 --- --- $2,176 $2,176
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016A --- --- $293,453 $293,453
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016B --- --- $1 $1
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017A --- --- $152,569 $152,569
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017B --- --- $2 $2
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2020 --- --- $567,086 $567,086
Unassigned $24,468 --- --- $24,468

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $91,863 $3,721,768 $2,201,578 $6,015,209

Governmental Fund Types

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet
September 30, 2020

1



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20  THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $546,665 $546,665 $552,968 $6,303
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $200,682 $200,682 $200,682 $0

 Developer Contributions $240,847 $240,847 $240,425 ($422)  

Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $3,098 $3,098 *

Interest $0 $0 $85 $85
   

TOTAL  REVENUES $988,194 $988,194 $997,258 $9,064

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisors Fees $12,000 $12,000 $7,400 $4,600
FICA Expense $0 $0 $474 ($474)
Engineering Fees $16,000 $16,000 $11,303 $4,697
Arbitrage $3,600 $3,600 $1,200 $2,400
Trustee Fees $21,550 $21,550 $12,391 $9,159
Dissemination $5,000 $5,000 $5,850 ($850)
Attorney Fees $22,000 $22,000 $17,254 $4,746
Annual Audit $5,315 $5,315 $5,315 $0
Assessment Administration $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Management Fees $29,000 $29,000 $29,000 ($0)
Information Technology $2,400 $2,400 $1,200 $1,200
Telephone $250 $250 $323 ($73)
Postage $1,500 $1,500 $1,117 $383
Insurance $6,400 $6,400 $5,922 $478
Printing & Binding $2,250 $2,250 $2,513 ($263)
Travel Per Diem $600 $600 $0 $600
Legal Advertising $2,500 $2,500 $7,355 ($4,855)
Bank Fees $750 $750 $814 ($64)
Other Current Charges $250 $250 $1,938 ($1,688)
Office Supplies $250 $250 $290 ($40)
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $136,790 $136,790 $116,833 $19,957

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE:
Property Insurance $19,600 $19,600 $20,354 ($754)
Electric $32,000 $32,000 $37,900 ($5,900)
Water & Sewer $8,000 $8,000 $0 $8,000
Landscape Maintenance $263,995 $263,995 $280,886 ($16,891)
Landscape Contingency $50,000 $50,000 $22,314 $27,686
Irrigation Maintenance $20,000 $20,000 $17,800 $2,200
Lake Maintenance $22,000 $22,000 $20,100 $1,900
Lake Contingency $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
Security Patrol $40,000 $40,000 $53,886 ($13,886)
Street Sweeping $12,000 $12,000 $2,625 $9,375
General Maintenance $9,000 $9,000 $9,306 ($306)
Dog Park - General Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $1,766 $3,234

TOTAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE $491,595 $491,595 $466,937 $24,658

September 30, 2020

2



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20  THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

AMENITY CENTER
Utilities
     Telephone $8,200 $8,200 $5,155 $3,045
     Electric $15,000 $15,000 $13,803 $1,197
     Water/Irrigation $16,000 $16,000 $19,110 ($3,110)
     Cable $0 $0 $0 $0
     Gas $1,500 $1,500 $449 $1,051
     Trash Removal $2,500 $2,500 $2,080 $420
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $1,200 $1,200 $419 $781
     Security Monitoring $12,400 $12,400 $13,521 ($1,121)
     Access Cards $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $43,680 $43,680 $44,056 ($376)
     Landscape Maintenance $26,165 $26,165 $26,165 ($0)
     Landscape Seasonal (Annuals & Pinestraw) $8,000 $8,000 $0 $8,000
     Landscape Contingency $8,000 $8,000 $3,890 $4,110
     Field Management/Administrative $59,104 $59,104 $59,105 ($1)
     Pool Maintenance $16,680 $16,680 $16,560 $120
     Pool Repairs $5,000 $5,000 $16,231 ($11,231)
     Pool Chemicals $12,000 $12,000 $0 $12,000
     Janitorial Services $13,740 $13,740 $13,831 ($91)
     Janitorial Supplies $3,000 $3,000 $3,193 ($193)
     Facility Maintenance $15,000 $15,000 $12,488 $2,512
     Fitness Equipment Lease $13,784 $13,784 $13,784 ($0)
     Pest Control $1,500 $1,500 $1,080 $420
Pool Permits $1,000 $1,000 $350 $650
Repairs & Maintenance $8,000 $8,000 $10,349 ($2,349)
Maintenance Reserves $20,000 $20,000 $0 $20,000
New Capital Projects $12,000 $12,000 $0 $12,000
Special Events $10,000 $10,000 $8,946 $1,054
Holiday Decorations $10,856 $10,856 $10,856 $0
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $3,000 $3,000 $2,827 $173
Office Supplies $500 $500 $0 $500
Operating Supplies $9,300 $9,300 $9,717 ($417)
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $1,700 $1,700 $0 $1,700

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $359,809 $359,809 $307,967 $51,843

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $988,194 $988,194 $891,737 $96,457

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $105,522

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 ($81,053)

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $24,468

  

September 30, 2020

3



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $364 $364
Gain on Cancellation of Bonds $0 $0 $8,760,206 $8,760,206
Other Income $1,283,552 $1,283,552 $0 ($1,283,552)

TOTAL REVENUES $1,283,552 $1,283,552 $8,760,571 $7,477,019

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2007
Debt Service Obligation $1,283,552 $1,283,552 $0 $1,283,552

 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,283,552 $1,283,552 $0 $1,283,552

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $8,760,571

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Debt Service Costs $0 $0 ($8,892) ($8,892)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 ($8,892) ($8,892)

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $8,751,679

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 ($8,717,081)

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $34,598

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Reserve $34,598  
$34,598  

September 30, 2020

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

4



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Roll $231,438 $231,438 $216,873 ($14,565)
Interest Income $2,250 $2,250 $1,876 ($374)

TOTAL REVENUES $233,688 $233,688 $218,749 $686,125

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $62,900 $62,900 $62,900 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $85,000 $85,000 $85,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $62,900 $62,900 $62,775 $125
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $210,800 $210,800 $220,675 ($9,875)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $22,888 ($1,926)

Fund Balance - Beginning $82,084 $254,016

Fund Balance - Ending $104,972 $252,091

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2015
Reserve $160,313  
Revenue $89,723
Due from General Fund $2,055

$252,091  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

5



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $509,446 $509,446 $450,032 ($59,414)
Interest Income $1,250 $1,250 $595 ($655)

TOTAL REVENUES $510,696 $510,696 $450,626 ($60,070)

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016A
Special Call - 11/1 $10,000 $10,000 $30,000 ($20,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $169,850 $169,850 $169,850 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $168,913 $168,913 $168,128 $784
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $398,763 $398,763 $422,978 ($24,216)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $111,934 $27,648

Fund Balance - Beginning $287,605 $769,728

Fund Balance - Ending $399,539 $797,376

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016A
Reserve $444,150  
Revenue $358,825
Assessment Receivable $4,325
Due to Debt Service 2017A ($9,923)

$797,376  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

6



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $199,163 $199,163 $70,466 ($128,697)
Assessments - Prepayments $0 $0 $199,491 $199,491
Transfer In $0 $0 $892,329 $892,329
Interest Income $700 $700 $266 ($434)

TOTAL REVENUES $199,863 $199,863 $1,162,553 $962,690

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016B
Special Call - 11/1 $55,000 $55,000 $60,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $99,581 $99,581 $99,581 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $99,581 $97,819 $97,819 $0
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $40,000 ($40,000)
Special Call - 07/7 $0 $0 $930,000 ($930,000)
Premium on Special Call (1%) $0 $0 $9,300 ($9,300)
Interest Expense - 07/7 $0 $0 $10,017 ($10,017)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $254,163 $252,400 $1,246,717 ($994,317)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($54,300) ($84,164)

Fund Balance - Beginning $164,693 $445,239

Fund Balance - Ending $110,394 $361,074

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016B
Reserve $138,650  
Revenue $68,650
Interest $4,336
Prepayment $149,438

$361,074  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

7



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $704,394 $704,394 $708,734 $4,340
Interest Income $1,000 $1,000 $773 ($227)

TOTAL REVENUES $705,394 $705,394 $709,507 $4,113

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017A
Interest Expense - 11/1 $264,872 $264,872 $264,872 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $170,000 $170,000 $170,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $261,791 $261,791 $261,791 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $696,663 $696,663 $696,663 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $8,731 $12,845

Fund Balance - Beginning $442,789 $1,147,778

Fund Balance - Ending $451,520 $1,160,622

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017A
Reserve $703,838  
Revenue $422,316
Assessment Receivable $24,546
Due to Debt Service $9,923

$1,160,622  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

8



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $212,949 $212,949 $35,786 ($177,163)
Assessments - Prepayments $0 $0 $1,067,261 $1,067,261
Interest $1,250 $1,250 $177 ($1,073)

TOTAL REVENUES $214,199 $214,199 $1,103,224 $889,025

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017B
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $105,930 $105,930 $43,201 $62,729
Interest Expense - 2/3 $0 $0 $6,888 ($6,888)
Special Call - 2/3 $0 $0 $515,000 ($515,000)
Interest Expense - 05/1 $105,930 $29,291 $29,291 $0
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $25,000 ($25,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $211,860 $135,221 $624,381 ($489,159)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $2,339 $478,843

Fund Balance - Beginning $107,314 $117,693

Fund Balance - Ending $109,653 $596,536

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017B
Reserve $42,934  
Revenue $28,812
Prepayment $524,787
Interest $3

$596,536  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

9



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Bond Proceeds $1,401,872 $1,401,872 $1,401,872 $0
Interest Income $5 $5 $5 ($0)

TOTAL REVENUES $1,401,877 $1,401,877 $1,401,877 ($0)

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2020
Interest Expense - 11/1 $0 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $0 $0 $0 $0
Transfer Out $892,329 $892,329 $892,329 ($0)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $892,329 $892,329 $892,329 ($0)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $509,548 $509,547

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $509,548 $509,547

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2020
Reserve $414,875  
Revenue $4
Capitalized Interest $94,669

$509,547  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

10



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $20 $20

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $20 $20

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $20

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $20

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2,157

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2,176
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2,176  
$2,176

September 30, 2020

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

11



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $243,422 $243,422
Interest Income $0 $0 $240 $240

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $243,661 $243,661

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $192,277 ($192,277)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $192,277 ($192,277)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $51,384

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $51,384

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $242,068

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $293,453
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Constuction $287,686
Cost of Issuance $2,570  
Due from General Fund $4,153
Due to Capital Projects Series 2017A ($956)

$293,453

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

12



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $1

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $1
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $1
$1

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

13



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $188,163 $188,163
Interest $0 $0 $823 $823

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $188,986 $188,986

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $180,097 ($180,097)
Capital Outlay - Construction NW Parcel $0 $0 $838,029 ($838,029)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $1,018,125 ($1,018,125)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($829,139)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 ($829,139)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $981,708

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $152,569
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $0
Construction - NW Parcel $397,876
Due from Capital Projects Series 2016A $956
Contracts Payable ($246,263)

$152,569

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

14



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2
$2

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

15



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/30/20 THRU 9/30/20 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Bond Proceeds $0 $0 $5,618,128 $5,618,128
Interest $0 $0 $29 $29

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $5,618,157 $5,618,157

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $4,679,538 ($4,679,538)
Capital Outlay - Cost of Issuance $0 $0 $371,533 ($371,533)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $5,051,071 ($5,051,071)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $567,086

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $567,086

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $567,086
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $1,490,408
Cost of Issuance $15,750
Contracts Payable ($939,072)

$567,086

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2020

16



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Revenues:

Special Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $14,743 $170,417 $266,953 $0 $9,052 $260 $83,262 $2,184 $6,098 $0 $0 $552,968
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $0 $0 $88,091 $50,171 $0 $0 $12,251 $0 $0 $37,920 $0 $12,251 $200,682
Developer Contributions $240,425 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $240,425
Miscellaneous Revenue $60 $0 $125 $612 $280 $250 $0 $16 $225 $650 $325 $555 $3,098
Interest $0 $0 $1 $12 $24 $31 $13 $2 $2 $1 $0 $0 $85

Total Revenues $240,485 $14,743 $258,634 $317,748 $304 $9,333 $12,523 $83,279 $2,410 $44,668 $325 $12,806 $997,258

Expenditures:

Administrative
Supervisor Fees $600 $0 $600 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,800 $0 $800 $800 $7,400
FICA Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $138 $0 $0 $77 $138 $0 $61 $61 $474
Engineering Fees $896 $1,411 $0 $1,095 $938 $1,312 $1,501 $712 $3,439 $0 $0 $0 $11,303
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 $600 $0 $0 $1,200
Trustee Fees $0 $0 $0 $4,310 $0 $0 $0 $8,081 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,391
Dissemination $767 $417 $417 $417 $417 $617 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $717 $5,850
Attorney Fees $2,143 $960 $2,332 $1,761 $1,826 $1,318 $1,538 $1,650 $1,529 $877 $1,322 $0 $17,254
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,315 $0 $0 $0 $5,315
Assessment Administration $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
Management Fees $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $29,000
Information Technology $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $1,200
Telephone $14 $0 $25 $0 $43 $36 $39 $0 $0 $0 $166 $0 $323
Postage $93 $84 $159 $209 $46 $20 $25 $20 $42 $231 $139 $49 $1,117
Insurance $5,922 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,922
Printing & Binding $98 $281 $11 $233 $452 $221 $29 $159 $177 $466 $1 $386 $2,513
Travel Per Diem $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Legal Advertising $157 $0 $72 $4,622 $0 $476 $121 $485 $153 $1,041 $0 $229 $7,355
Bank Fees $37 $38 $52 $96 $58 $86 $57 $71 $97 $67 $90 $64 $814
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,400 $0 $0 $538 $0 $0 $0 $1,938
Office Supplies $13 $13 $1 $13 $15 $18 $1 $14 $20 $165 $2 $16 $290
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $18,432 $5,719 $6,184 $15,272 $8,249 $8,020 $6,244 $15,202 $16,780 $6,380 $5,513 $4,838 $116,833

Operation & Maintenance
Property Insurance $20,354 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,354
Electric $3,080 $2,936 $3,196 $3,060 $3,152 $3,409 $3,175 $3,368 $3,162 $3,237 $3,158 $2,967 $37,900
Water & Sewer $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $43,853 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $22,408 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $280,886
Landscape Contingency $0 $425 $1,200 $2,455 $10,444 $0 $6,250 $0 $0 $0 $1,540 $0 $22,314
Irrigation Maintenance $4,147 $0 $0 $2,789 $0 $2,072 $0 $0 $3,458 $0 $5,334 $0 $17,800
Lake Maintenance $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $20,100
Lake Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Security Patrol $3,258 $3,474 $3,333 $3,653 $3,973 $5,076 $4,868 $4,863 $5,801 $4,761 $5,691 $5,133 $53,886
Street Sweeping $0 $0 $0 $500 $500 $625 $500 $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,625
General Maintenance $3,405 $980 $577 $824 $0 $0 $1,108 $2,413 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,306
Dog Park - General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $1,343 $423 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,766

Total Operation & Maintenance $81,115 $31,375 $31,443 $36,418 $41,207 $35,265 $39,038 $34,282 $35,558 $31,136 $38,862 $31,237 $466,937

17



Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Amenity Center
Utilities
     Telephone $570 $312 $431 $429 $304 $450 $448 $466 $349 $457 $474 $465 $5,155
     Electric $1,279 $1,371 $1,450 $1,250 $1,251 $819 $613 $1,098 $1,132 $1,289 $1,159 $1,091 $13,803
     Water/Irrigation $975 $1,664 $2,978 $2,514 $2,935 $1,828 $856 $2,506 $769 $743 $614 $728 $19,110
     Cable $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Gas $35 $43 $45 $42 $52 $36 $24 $34 $38 $38 $37 $25 $449
     Trash Removal $207 $149 $149 $177 $177 $177 $177 $175 $174 $172 $172 $172 $2,080
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $419
     Security Monitoring $2,128 $1,064 $1,064 $1,254 $1,064 $1,064 $1,064 $1,064 $532 $1,064 $1,064 $1,096 $13,521
     Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $3,864 $3,528 $3,696 $3,696 $3,192 $4,340 $4,340 $3,360 $3,360 $3,960 $3,360 $3,360 $44,056
     Landscape Maintenance $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $26,165
     Landscape Contingency $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $1,470 $220 $3,890
     Field Management/Administrative $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $59,105
     Pool Maintenance $1,390 $1,390 $1,390 $1,390 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $16,560
     Pool Repairs $0 $0 $0 $330 $0 $911 $8,675 $1,494 $0 $4,791 $30 $0 $16,231
     Pool Chemicals $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Janitorial Services $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,236 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $13,831
     Janitorial Supplies $584 $530 $0 $108 $139 $436 $23 $614 $0 $431 $328 $0 $3,193
     Facility Maintenance $4,452 $1,598 $270 $2,762 $0 $1,625 $0 $0 $826 $293 $198 $464 $12,488
     Fitness Equipment Lease $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $1,149 $13,784
     Pest Control $0 $0 $270 $0 $0 $270 $0 $0 $270 $0 $0 $270 $1,080
Pool Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350 $0 $0 $0 $350
Repairs & Maintenance $418 $551 $240 $658 $1,459 $3,692 $902 $1,419 $474 $537 $0 $0 $10,349
Maintenance Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $553 $544 $2,750 $706 $352 $990 $0 $287 $148 $0 $612 $2,004 $8,946
Holiday Decorations $0 $10,856 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,856
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $1,161 $190 $374 $150 $232 $0 $0 $150 $0 $0 $285 $285 $2,827
Office Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Operating Supplies $855 $793 $625 $101 $4,759 $275 $0 $98 $27 $576 $1,558 $50 $9,717
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Amenity Center $28,125 $34,239 $25,387 $25,221 $26,944 $28,034 $28,152 $23,795 $19,479 $25,382 $22,170 $21,038 $307,967

Total Expenditures $127,672 $71,333 $63,014 $76,911 $76,401 $71,320 $73,434 $73,278 $71,817 $62,898 $66,545 $57,114 $891,737

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $112,813 ($56,590) $195,619 $240,837 ($76,097) ($61,987) ($60,911) $10,001 ($69,407) ($18,230) ($66,220) ($44,308) $105,522

Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

18



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
Developer Contributions/Due to Developer

Funding Prepare Check# Received Payment Total General General General Capital 2017 Capital Over and
Request Date Date Amount Funding Fund Fund Fund (Due to (Due to (short)

# Request Portion (FY19) Portion (FY20) Portion (FY21) Developer) Developer) Balance Due

16 8/30/19 1795 10/4/19 $61,328.97 $61,328.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $61,328.97 $0.00 $0.00
17 9/11/19 1795 10/419 $48,483.34 $48,483.34 $48,483.34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
18 9/25/19 WIRE 11/4/19 $37,512.87 $37,512.87 $6,236.87 $31,276.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
19 9/26/19 1830 12/13/19 $68,021.35 $68,021.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $68,021.35 $0.00 $0.00

AJE#1 9/30/19 N/A N/A $0.00 $0.00 ($102,399.00) $102,399.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 10/14/19 WIRE 11/4/19 $76,579.69 $76,579.69 $20,149.88 $56,429.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 10/31/19 1830 12/13/19 $35,177.54 $35,177.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,177.54 $0.00 $0.00
3 12/19/19 1854 1/6/20 $54,233.89 $54,233.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $54,233.89 $0.00 $0.00
4 1/2/20 1856 1/21/20 $32,670.00 $32,670.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,670.00 $0.00 $0.00
5 1/17/20 1861 2/3/20 $50,855.88 $50,855.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,855.88 $0.00 $0.00
6 2/25/20 WIRE 4/10/20 $49,601.84 $49,601.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,601.84 $0.00 $0.00
7 4/20/20 WIRE 5/27/20 $316,971.51 $316,971.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $316,971.51 $0.00
8 8/28/20 WIRE 9/28/20 $32,259.42 $32,259.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,259.42 $0.00
9 9/4/20 WIRE 9/28/20 $79,003.14 $79,003.14 $0.00 $50,320.14 $28,683.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Due to Developer $942,699.44 $942,699.44 ($27,528.91) $240,424.95 $28,683.00 $351,889.47 $349,230.93 $0.00

Total Developer Contributions FY20 $240,424.95

*FY19 column does not include Funding Requests #1-15 on FY19 summary schedule.

19



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

259A 3/5/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #1 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 70,172.00$        
260A 3/5/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #2 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 90,000.00$        
261A 4/1/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Trailmark Phase 2A Fire Hydrant 3,382.40$          
262A 6/23/20 ETM Surveying & Mapping, Inc. Invoice #18624 - Trailmark Phase 4C Platting 1,980.00$          
263A 7/10/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #3 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 7,579.54$          
264A 7/10/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #4 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 18,639.11$        
265A 8/25/20 Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement for MODCP Application Fee 132.00$             
266A 8/25/20 Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement for ROW Permit Fee 392.00$             

TOTAL 192,277.05$      

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest 34.96$               

10/30/19 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 573799 Utility Reimbursement 73,628.48$        
11/1/19 Interest 30.41$               
12/1/19 Interest 38.22$               
1/2/20 Interest 39.50$               
2/3/20 Interest 39.39$               

2/14/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 576202 Utility Reimbursement 58,127.41$        
3/2/20 Interest 35.80$               
4/1/20 Interest 11.94$               
4/1/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 578604 Utility Reimbursement 36,712.06$        
5/1/20 Interest 1.77$                 
6/1/20 Interest 2.05$                 
7/1/20 Interest 1.18$                 

7/29/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 581107 Utility Reimbursement 74,953.78$        
8/3/20 Interest 1.06$                 
9/1/20 Interest 1.22$                 

TOTAL 243,659.23$      

236,303.89$      
243,659.23$      

(192,277.05)$    

287,686.07$      

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

21



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest -$                  
11/1/19 Interest -$                  
12/1/19 Interest -$                  
1/2/20 Interest -$                  
2/3/20 Interest -$                  
3/2/20 Interest -$                  
4/1/20 Interest -$                  
5/1/20 Interest -$                  
6/1/20 Interest -$                  
7/1/20 Interest -$                  
8/1/20 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.20$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.20$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

22



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

10/4/19 231A Arc Surveying and Mapping, Inc. Inv# 12042 - Phase 1 Sketch & Legal 850.00$             
10/4/19 232A North Florida Landscape Inv# 21771 - Trailmark Berm Planting 9,678.35$          
10/4/19 233A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 191237 - East Parcel Phase I Construction (WA#38) 25,319.22$        
10/4/19 234A ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 740319 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phase 9 4,500.00$          
10/4/19 235A North Florida Landscape Inv# 21762 - Trailmark Phase 5A - Grasses & Plants 20,981.40$        

12/13/19 236A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 191534 - Phase 5 CEI Services & Plat Coordination (WA#30) 114.14$             
12/13/19 237A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 191504 - East Parcel Phase 1 Construction (WA#38) 65,907.21$        
12/13/19 237A1 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. inv# 191858 - East Parcel Phase 1 Construction (WA#38) 7,035.04$          
12/13/19 238A Weyhaeuser NF Company Inv# 104176-17 - Mitigation Bank Credit/Deposit - Reservation & Sales Agreement 1,000.00$          
12/13/19 238A1 ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 754865 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phase 2 & 3 9,000.00$          
12/13/19 239A ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 745931 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phase 9 1,000.00$          
12/13/19 239A1 North Florida Landscape inv# 21802 - Phase 5A - Additional Sod on Back Creek - 22,000 sq. ft. 11,042.50$        
12/13/19 240A ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 753540 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phase 1 4,600.00$          
12/13/19 241A ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 760969 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phase 1 800.00$             
12/13/19 242A ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 760367 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phase 2 & 3 2,700.00$          

1/6/20 243A North Florida Landscape Inv# 21795 Final Billing - Trailmark Phase 5A 5,938.79$          
1/6/20 247A Clary & Associates Inc. Inv# 2019-674 - Tree Survey - Trailmark East Parcel Unit 1 32,500.00$        
1/6/20 248A Environmental Services Inc. Inv# TC5628 - Consultation Services - Trailmark/Pacetti Road 2,886.00$          
1/6/20 249A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 192151 - Proposal Documents/RFP Process (WA#39) 450.00$             
1/6/20 250A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 192500 - Proposal Documents/RFP Process (WA#39) 11,977.60$        
1/6/20 251A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 192495 - Site Plan Revisions (WA#37) - Phase 9 245.00$             
1/6/20 252A Hopping, Green & Sams Inv# 111514 - Review Draft Scoring & Proposals - Trailmark Phase 6/East Parcel 1 236.50$             

1/21/20 253A St. Johns Mitigation Bank Purchase of .66 State Basin 5 UMAM Credits - Trailmark East Parcel 1 32,670.00$        
2/3/20 254A Hopping, Green & Sams Inv# 111964 - Review RFP Documents - Draft Engineer's Report 602.00$             
2/3/20 255A Environmental Services Inc. Inv# TC55341 - Construction Services - Trailmark/Pacetti Road 3,900.00$          
2/3/20 256A Environmental Services Inc. Inv# TC97831 - Construction Services - Trailmark/Pacetti Road 2,339.85$          
2/3/20 257A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 192800 - East Parcel Phase 1 Construction Documents (WA#38) 20,190.78$        
2/3/20 258A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 192820 - Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#37) 19,014.54$        
2/3/20 259A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 192826 - Trailmark Ph 6 & East Parcel Ph 1 - RFP Process (WA#39) 4,808.71$          

4/10/20 260A Hopping, Green & Sams Inv# 112585 - Project Construction Services 2,335.00$          
4/10/20 261A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 193106 - Trailmark Phase 6 East Parcel 1 Construction Documents (WA#39) 2,056.50$          
4/10/20 262A England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 193102 - Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#37) 10,950.34$        
4/10/20 264A Arc Surveying and Mapping, Inc. Inv# 12332 - Revise Trailmark Phase Line 175.00$             
4/10/20 265A Arc Surveying and Mapping, Inc. Inv# 12314 - Sketch & Legal Phase 5 1,375.00$          
4/10/20 266A Avid Trails, LLC Trailmark-04 - Trailmark Phase 1 Trails Design Development Agreement Deposit 13,510.00$        
4/10/20 267A Environmental Services Inc. Inv# TD24463 - Cultural Resource Assessment Survey East & South Parcel 19,200.00$        

TOTAL 351,889.47$      

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest -$                  
10/4/19 Developer Contributions Check #1795 FY19 Funding Requests #16 61,328.97$        
11/1/19 Interest -$                  
12/1/19 Interest -$                  

12/13/19 Developer Contributions Check #1830 FY19 Funding Request #19 & FY20 Funding Request #2 103,198.89$      
1/2/20 Interest -$                  
1/6/20 Developer Contributions Check# 1854 FY20 Funding Request #3 54,233.89$        

1/21/20 Developer Contributions Check #1856 FY20 Funding Request #4 32,670.00$        
2/3/20 Developer Contributions Check #1861 FY20 Funding Request #5 50,855.88$        
3/2/20 Interest -$                  

4/10/20 Developer Contributions Wire FY20 Funding Request #6 49,601.84$        
5/1/20 Interest -$                  
6/1/20 Interest -$                  
7/1/20 Interest -$                  
8/3/20 Interest -$                  
9/1/20 Interest -$                  

TOTAL 351,889.47$      

0.23$                 
351,889.47$      

(351,889.47)$    

0.23$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

23



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

5/29/20 17 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Pay App#1 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 52,188.88$        
5/29/20 18 England-Thims &  Miller, Inc. Invoice #194262 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 990.15$             
5/29/20 19 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Pay App#2 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 190,497.89$      
5/29/20 20 Clary & Associates, inc. Invoice #2020-3 - Set control points for Phase 6 3,337.50$          
6/23/20 21 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Pay App#3 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 95,952.00$        
6/23/20 22 England-Thims &  Miller, Inc. Invoice #194453 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 1,414.00$          
8/12/20 23 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Pay Appl#4 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 247,384.97$      
8/25/20 24 England-Thims &  Miller, Inc. Invoice #195103 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 1,774.01$          

TOTAL 593,539.40$      

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest 146.55$             
11/1/19 Interest 126.22$             
12/1/19 Interest 122.16$             
1/2/20 Interest 126.25$             
2/3/20 Interest 125.92$             
3/2/20 Interest 104.27$             
4/1/20 Interest 46.99$               
5/1/20 Interest 8.13$                 
6/1/20 Interest 8.19$                 
7/1/20 Interest 3.53$                 
8/3/20 Interest 3.01$                 
9/1/20 Interest 2.06$                 

TOTAL 823.28$             

990,591.83$      
823.28$             

(593,539.40)$    

397,875.71$      

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A-NW Parcel

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

24



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest -$                  
11/1/19 Interest -$                  
12/1/19 Interest -$                  
1/2/20 Interest -$                  
2/3/20 Interest -$                  
3/2/20 Interest -$                  
4/1/20 Interest -$                  
5/1/20 Interest -$                  
6/1/20 Interest -$                  
7/1/20 Interest -$                  
8/3/20 Interest -$                  
9/1/20 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.88$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.88$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

25



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

7/2/20 2 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194452 (WA#42) 2,025.00$          
7/2/20 3 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194382 (WA#44) 7,325.00$          
7/2/20 4 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #115116 - Project Construction 1,912.49$          
7/2/20 5 Vallencourt Construction Application #2 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 219,796.43$      
7/2/20 6 Vallencourt Construction Application #3 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 324,556.62$      
7/2/20 7 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TD64658 4,323.62$          
7/2/20 8 ECS Florida, LLC Invoice #808643 2,200.00$          
7/2/20 9 Greenpointe Holdings Invoice #2020-East - East Parcel Reimbursements 565,798.59$      

7/16/20 10 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194261 (WA#42) 1,515.23$          
7/16/20 11 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194065 (WA#37) 4,904.45$          
7/16/20 12 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #114580 - Project Construction 3,298.00$          
7/16/20 13 Clary & Associates, inc. Invoice #2020-4 3,750.00$          

14 -$                  
7/22/20 15 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. invoice #8153 15,010.00$        
8/6/20 16 Vallencourt Construction Application #5 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 1,337,156.82$   

8/12/20 17 Vallencourt Construction Application #4 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 1,206,510.33$   
8/25/20 18 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TD9273 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 3,750.00$          
8/25/20 19 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #115765 - Construction Services 1,081.00$          
8/25/20 20 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8171 20,168.00$        

21 -$                  
22 -$                  

8/25/20 23 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice # 195099 - East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities (WA#41) 6,390.00$          
8/25/20 24 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #195100 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 5,041.98$          
8/25/20 25 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #195064 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2 (WA#44) 2,930.76$          
8/25/20 26 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #116541 - Construction Services 1,022.00$          

TOTAL 3,740,466.32$   

Fiscal Year 2020
7/1/20 Interest 0.86$                 
8/3/20 Interest 19.19$               
9/1/20 Interest 9.17$                 

TOTAL 29.22$               

5,230,844.77$   
29.22$               

(3,740,466.32)$ 

1,490,407.67$   Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2020

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 6/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

26



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



GROSS ASSESSMENTS 1,683,766$       581,557$            228,094$          473,316$          400,800$          
NET ASSESSMENTS 1,582,740$       546,664$            214,408$          444,917$          376,752$          

2015 2016A 2017A
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 34.54% 13.55% 28.11% 23.80% 100%

11/19/19 1 6,634.88$                      265.39$        127.39$           -$                    6,242.10$         2,155.96$           845.60$            1,754.69$         1,485.85$         6,242.10$         
11/25/19 2 1,075.44$                      59.15$          20.33$             -$                    995.96$            344.00$              134.92$            279.97$            237.08$            995.96$            
11/26/19 3 37,676.82$                    1,507.05$     723.40$           -$                    35,446.37$       12,242.84$         4,801.79$         9,964.17$         8,437.57$         35,446.37$       
12/13/19 4 464,864.92$                  18,595.61$   8,925.39$        -$                    437,343.92$     151,054.49$       59,245.43$       122,939.73$     104,104.27$     437,343.92$     
12/19/19 5 59,542.11$                    2,337.53$     1,144.09$        -$                    56,060.49$       19,362.77$         7,594.32$         15,758.91$       13,344.50$       56,060.49$       
1/14/20 6 309,908.75$                  12,396.20$   5,950.25$        -$                    291,562.30$     100,702.89$       39,496.91$       81,959.73$       69,402.77$       291,562.30$     
1/29/20 7 506,818.18$                  17,269.13$   9,790.98$        -$                    479,758.07$     165,703.94$       64,991.12$       134,862.58$     114,200.43$     479,758.07$     
1/30/20 1-INT -$                               -$              -$                 1,582.68$            1,582.68$         546.64$              214.40$            444.90$            376.74$            1,582.68$         
3/30/20 8 27,355.80$                    613.94$        534.84$           -$                    26,207.02$       9,051.66$           3,550.17$         7,366.93$         6,238.25$         26,207.02$       
4/14/20 2-INT -$                               -$              -$                 751.41$               751.41$            259.53$              101.79$            211.23$            178.86$            751.41$            
5/6/20 9 246,300.56$                  315.32$        4,919.70$        -$                    241,065.54$     83,261.78$         32,656.29$       67,764.82$       57,382.65$       241,065.54$     

6/10/20 10 6,451.36$                      -$              129.03$           -$                    6,322.33$         2,183.67$           856.46$            1,777.24$         1,504.95$         6,322.33$         
7/10/20 3-INT -$                               -$              -$                 19.75$                 19.75$              19.75$                -$                 -$                 -$                 19.75$              
7/13/20 11 17,956.66$                    -$              359.13$           -$                    17,597.53$       6,078.02$           2,383.87$         4,946.76$         4,188.87$         17,597.53$       

TOTALS 1,684,585.48$               53,359.32$   32,624.53$      2,353.84$            1,600,955.47$  552,967.95$       216,873.07$     450,031.65$     381,082.80$     1,600,955.47$  

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC $528,333.67 $200,682.43 $327,651.24

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES
 RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2017A&B
12/13/19 10/15/19 1830 50,170.61$          50,170.61$       50,170.61$         -$                 

1/6/20 1/1/20 1854 50,170.61$          50,170.61$       50,170.61$         -$                 
12/10/19 4/1/20 513704 276,249.97$        115,206.72$     37,920.00$         77,286.72$       
4/23/20 7/1/20 WIRE 50,170.60$          12,250.61$       12,250.61$         -$                 
Multiple 9/30/20 WIRE 101,571.88$        300,535.12$     50,170.60$         250,364.52$     

528,333.67$        528,333.67$     200,682.43$       327,651.24$     

SIX MILE CREEK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS - FY2020

TAX COLLECTOR

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS

20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



  

Fund Date Check No.'s Amount
General Fund 8/14/20 3140-3144 5,854.52$                          

8/21/20 3145-3148 802.97$                             
9/4/20 3150-3163 7,428.72$                          
9/11/20 3164-3167 4,529.99$                          
9/18/20 3168-3177 5,522.72$                          
9/21/20 3178-3188 108,199.72$                      
9/22/20 3189-3192 30,433.80$                        
9/24/20 3193-3196 1,852.72$                          
10/7/20 3197-3216 28,407.12$                        
10/14/20 3217-3222 1,624.86$                          

194,657.14$                      

Payroll August 2020
Gregg Kern 50023 184.70$                             

Michael Veazey 50024 184.70$                             
Robert Weatherly 50025 184.70$                             

Rose Bock 50026 184.70$                             
738.80$                             

September 2020
Gregg Kern 50027 184.70$                             

Michael Taylor 50028 184.70$                             
Michael Veazey 50029 184.70$                             

Rose Bock 50030 184.70$                             
738.80$                             

196,134.74$             

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register

August 13, 2020 to October 16, 2020



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/14/20 00027 7/28/20 29256599 202008 330-53800-41000                                     *               16.05
AMENITY INTERNET-AUG20

AT&T                                                               16.05 003140
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00110 8/04/20 AAAO5056 202008 320-53800-51000                                     *            1,396.00

CONTROL ACCESS KEY FOBS
COMMUNITY CONTROLS                                              1,396.00 003141

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00077 7/23/20 I52609   202007 320-53800-46000                                     *              360.00

PRESSURE TEST/INST. COIL
DAVID GRAY HEATING & AIR, INC.                                    360.00 003142

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00014 8/06/20 21957    202008 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,264.30

ELECTRICAL AND IRRIGATION
8/06/20 21957    202008 330-53800-46600                                     *              675.00

PINE TREE REMOVAL/ANNUALS
8/13/20 21960    202008 320-53800-46600                                     *              770.00

DEAD PINE TREE RMVD MODEL
8/13/20 21960    202008 320-53800-46600                                     *              770.00

DEAD PINE TREE RMVD POND
8/13/20 21960    202008 330-53800-46600                                     *              575.00

OAK TREE RMVD AMENITIES
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                     4,054.30 003143

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/20 00034 8/06/20 21101409 202007 330-53800-43200                                     *               28.17

801 TRAILMARK DR-JUL20
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                   28.17 003144

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/21/20 00027 8/08/20 904 940- 202008 330-53800-41000                                     *              193.32

FIRE ALARM LINE0687 AUG20
AT&T                                                              193.32 003145

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/21/20 00139 8/09/20 AE080920 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/09/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     160.00 003146

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/21/20 00038 8/10/20 350459ES 202007 330-53800-43200                                     *                9.65

GAS CHARGE 07/01-08/04/20
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                 9.65 003147

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/21/20 00118 7/01/20 12299643 202007 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00

MTHLY LAWN TREATMENT-JUL
8/01/20 12530561 202008 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00

MTHLY LAWN TREATMENT-AUG
BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              440.00 003148

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/04/20 00027 8/23/20 15909444 202009 330-53800-41000                                     *                 .11
REGULAR VIDEO COST RECOVR

AT&T                                                                 .11 003149
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00040 8/31/20 PW90037  202009 330-53800-43300                                     *              171.96

TRASH REMOVAL 09/01-09/30
ADVANCED DISPOSAL                                                 171.96 003150

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00105 6/26/20 I20-1642 202006 320-53800-46000                                     *              212.50

TRBLSHT/LUBE FITNESS DOOR
ACE DOOR & WINDOW, INC.                                           212.50 003151

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00139 8/07/20 AE080720 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/07/20
8/21/20 AE082120 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/21/20
8/28/20 AE082820 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/28/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     480.00 003152

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00138 8/26/20 CM082620 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/08/20
8/26/20 CM082620 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/18/20
8/26/20 CM082620 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/23/20
8/26/20 CM082620 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 08/25/20
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                640.00 003153

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00141 7/31/20 JUL-241  202007 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,375.00

MTHLY POOL SERVICE JUL20
CROWN POOL CLEANING, INC                                        1,375.00 003154

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00077 8/24/20 I53200   202008 320-53800-47500                                     *              128.00

BROKN BLOWR BLT/ORDR 2NEW
DAVID GRAY HEATING & AIR, INC.                                    128.00 003155

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00066 8/11/20 23031    202008 320-53800-47400                                     *              150.00

FITNESS CTR PREVENT.MAINT
ALWAYS IMPROVING LLC                                              150.00 003156

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00145 9/03/20 ND090320 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              250.00

REFUND-CAMP HOUSE RESERVE
NICHOLAS DREGER                                                   250.00 003157

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/04/20 00068 8/24/20 IN-13703 202009 330-53800-34600                                     *            1,095.82
UPGRADE/FIX/RPLC CAMERAS

PRO-VIGIL, INC.                                                 1,095.82 003158
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00137 8/26/20 RN082620 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *               80.00

SECURITY SRVC - 08/16/20
8/26/20 RN082620 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SRVC - 08/24/20
8/31/20 RN083120 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SRVC - 08/29/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             480.00 003159

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00004 9/01/20 3303963- 202009 310-51300-48000                                     *               89.75

NOT OF FY21 MEETING DATES
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS, LLC                                           89.75 003160

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00024 8/19/20 556887-1 202008 330-53800-43100                                     *              581.40

805 TRAILMARK DR AUG20
8/19/20 556887-1 202008 330-53800-43100                                     *               32.52

295 BACK CREEK DR AUG20
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                     613.92 003161

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00039 8/01/20 3929B    202008 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES AUG20
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003162

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/20 00117 8/14/20 21288340 202008 330-53800-51000                                     *               66.66

DUNKN COFFEE/CUP/FILE/PAD
W.B. MASON CO.,INC.                                                66.66 003163

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00027 8/28/20 29256599 202009 330-53800-41000                                     *               25.30

AMENITY INTERNET-SEP20
AT&T                                                               25.30 003164

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00139 9/06/20 AE090620 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 09/06/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     160.00 003165

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00005 8/04/20 35324-12 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *               68.46

596 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
8/04/20 52068-78 202008 330-53800-43000                                     *               56.45

801 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
8/04/20 62363-50 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *            2,821.83

000 PACETTI RD
8/04/20 65107-18 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *               12.86

975 TRAILMARK DR #IRR

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/04/20 68881-76 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *              139.94
990 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP

8/04/20 88213-81 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *               15.93
1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS

8/04/20 96815-95 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *               29.82
2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY

8/04/20 96904-98 202008 330-53800-43000                                     *            1,102.18
805 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY

8/05/20 93295-44 202008 320-53800-43000                                     *               69.63
404 BLOOMFIELD WAY #PUMP

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                           4,317.10 003166
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/11/20 00034 9/04/20 21101409 202008 330-53800-43200                                     *               27.59

801 TRAILMARK DR - AUG20
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                   27.59 003167

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00027 8/19/20 15632743 202009 330-53800-41000                                     *              112.04

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC SEP20
8/21/20 25729549 202009 330-53800-41000                                     *              124.35

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-SEP20
AT&T                                                              236.39 003168

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00118 9/01/20 12727729 202009 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00

MTHLY LAWN TREATMENT-SEP
BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              220.00 003169

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00141 8/31/20 AUG-243  202008 330-53800-46501                                     *                7.88

INST SCUM GUTTER GRATE
8/31/20 AUG-243  202008 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,375.00

MTHLY POOL SERVICE AUG20
CROWN POOL CLEANING, INC                                        1,382.88 003170

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00077 6/30/20 I52103   202006 320-53800-47500                                     *              476.00

LEAK SRCH/EVAP COIL RPLC
8/27/20 I53289   202008 320-53800-47500                                     *               70.00

SVC CALL FOR AMENETIES
DAVID GRAY HEATING & AIR, INC.                                    546.00 003171

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00038 9/08/20 354538ES 202008 330-53800-43200                                     *                9.69

GAS CHARGE 08/04-09/02/20
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                 9.69 003172

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00031 9/01/20 617864   202009 320-53800-52000                                     *            1,148.68

FITNESS LEASE PMT #48
MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.                                1,148.68 003173

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/18/20 00028 8/11/20 95       202007 320-53800-47500                                     *              293.35
DEEP CLEAN CAMP HOUSE

8/11/20 95       202007 320-53800-46900                                     *              206.66
TOILET PAPER/TRASH/P.TWL

9/01/20 96       202009 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00
JANITORIAL SERVICES SEP20

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,645.01 003174
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00137 9/17/20 RN091720 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *               80.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/15/20
9/17/20 RN091720 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *               80.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/16/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             160.00 003175

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00004 9/08/20 3305758- 202009 310-51300-48000                                     *              139.12

NOT.OF MEETING 09/16/20
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS, LLC                                          139.12 003176

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/20 00084 9/01/20 20-34966 202009 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALRM MONTR SEP
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 003177

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00019 8/28/20 11510    202009 300-15500-10000                                     *           22,465.00

FY21 PROPERTY INSURANCE
8/28/20 11510    202009 300-15500-10000                                     *            6,218.00

FY21 GEN.LIAB/PUBLIC OFFC
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                    28,683.00 003178

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00001 9/01/20 130      202009 310-51300-34000                                     *            2,416.67

MANAGEMENT FEES SEP20
9/01/20 130      202009 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

INFORMATION TECH SEP20
9/01/20 130      202009 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

DISSEMINATION FEE SEP20
9/01/20 130      202009 310-51300-51000                                     *               16.02

OFFICE SUPPLIES SEP20
9/01/20 130      202009 310-51300-42000                                     *               49.37

POSTAGE SEP20
9/01/20 130      202009 310-51300-42500                                     *              385.65

COPIES SEP20
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,384.38 003179

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00025 9/01/20 23460808 202008 320-53800-34500                                     *            3,931.34

SECURITY SERVICES AUG20
GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION                                    3,931.34 003180

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/21/20 00002 7/31/20 116540   202006 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,528.50
TRAFFIC LGHT/PHASE2/MTG

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                            1,528.50 003181
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00014 8/28/20 21969    202008 320-53800-46300                                     *            4,070.00

RELOCATE MAINLINE-SLEEVE
9/01/20 21964    202009 320-53800-46200                                     *           20,975.00

LNDSCPE-COMMON AREA SEP20
9/01/20 21964    202009 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,180.42

LNDSCPE-AMENITIES SEP20
9/01/20 21964    202009 320-53800-46200                                     *              487.50

LNDSCPE-RIGHT OF WAY SEP
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                    27,712.92 003182

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00039 9/01/20 4029B    202009 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES SEP20
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003183

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 99999 9/21/20 VOID     202009 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003184

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00033 8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37

MANAGEMENT FEES AUG20
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00

ONSITE PERSONNEL AUG20
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 330-53800-41000                                     *               10.08

IPAD VERIZON MTHLY FEE
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 330-53800-46500                                     *               21.89

POOL GRATE REPLACEMENT
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-51000                                     *                7.22-

RETURN KEYS & WASP SPRAY
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *               60.00

GIFT CERTIFICATES-EVENT
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *               40.59

CHALK THE WALK PRIZES
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *               16.92

CHALK THE WALK PRIZES
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *                9.99

CHALK THE WALK PRIZES
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *               24.99

CASE - MINI POPCORN BAGS
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 330-53800-51000                                     *               76.67

VASAGLE TREE BOOKSHELF
8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *               39.99

CASE OF 40 - POPCORN

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   7
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-51000                                     *               25.89
NEW KEYS & RINGS-ACE HDWR

8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
ADULT TRIVIA NIGHT

8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
FAMILY TRIVIA NIGHT

8/31/20 SMCCDD08 202008 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
TEEN BINGO NIGHT

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                             9,025.16 003185
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00079 7/31/20 2020-384 202009 300-13100-10100                                     *           23,900.00

PHASE 9 TREE SURVEY
CLARY & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                       23,900.00 003186

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00022 7/31/20 195007   202009 300-13100-10100                                     *            3,859.42

PHASE 9 CONSTRUCTION WA37
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                     3,859.42 003187

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/21/20 00127 8/05/20 821965   202009 300-13100-10100                                     *            4,500.00

PH9 GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES
ECS FLORIDA, LLC                                                4,500.00 003188

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/20 00055 9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10100                                     *            2,072.84

FY18 DEBT SERVICE SER2015
9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10100                                     *            5,647.39

FY20 DEBT SERVICE SER2020
SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O USBANK                                   7,720.23 003189

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/20 00055 9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10200                                     *            1,071.29

FY18 DEBT SERV SER2016A
9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10200                                     *           11,718.86

FY20 DEBT SERV SER2016A
SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O USBANK                                  12,790.15 003190

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/20 00055 9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10600                                     *            9,923.42

FY20 DEBT SERV SER2017A
SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O USBANK                                   9,923.42 003191

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/20 00055 9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10500                                     *            1,000.00

REFUND REQ.238A SER2017A
9/22/20 09222020 202009 300-20700-10500                                     V            1,000.00-

REFUND REQ.238A SER2017A
SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O USBANK                                        .00 003192

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/20 00027 9/08/20 904 940- 202009 330-53800-41000                                     *              192.72

FIRE ALARM LINE0687 SEP20
AT&T                                                              192.72 003193

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   8
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/24/20 00002 8/31/20 117109   202007 310-51300-31500                                     *              876.50
BOND CLOSE DOC/BDGT/JLAC

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                              876.50 003194
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/20 00137 9/23/20 RN092320 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              120.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/18/20
9/23/20 RN092320 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/21/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             320.00 003195

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/20 00146 9/10/20 8273     202009 320-53800-47500                                     *              463.50

SVC CALL-RPLC 2 GATE CLSR
ST AUGUSTINE FENCE INC                                            463.50 003196

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00027 9/19/20 15632743 202010 330-53800-41000                                     *              112.04

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-OCT20
9/21/20 25729549 202010 330-53800-41000                                     *              124.35

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-OCT20
AT&T                                                              236.39 003197

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00040 9/30/20 PW91370  202010 330-53800-43300                                     *              171.87

TRASH REMOVAL 10/01-10/31
ADVANCED DISPOSAL                                                 171.87 003198

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00139 9/19/20 AE091920 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 09/19/20
9/28/20 AE092820 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 09/28/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     320.00 003199

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00118 10/01/20 12850688 202010 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00

MTHLY LAWN TREATMENT-OCT
BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              220.00 003200

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00138 10/01/20 CM100120 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 09/19/20
10/01/20 CM100120 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 09/27/20
10/01/20 CM100120 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 09/30/20
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                480.00 003201

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00141 9/30/20 SEPT-248 202009 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,375.00

MTHLY POOL SERVICE SEP20
CROWN POOL CLEANING, INC                                        1,375.00 003202

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE   9
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/07/20 00096 9/28/20 11       202009 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00
REV.AMORT SER2015 11/01

9/28/20 11       202009 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00
REV.AMORT SER2017B 11/01

9/28/20 11       202009 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00
REV.AMORT SER2016B 11/01

DISCLOSURE SERVICES LLC                                           300.00 003203
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 99999 10/07/20 VOID     202010 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003204

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00033 9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37

MANAGEMENT FEES SEP20
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00

ONSITE PERSONNEL SEP20
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 330-53800-41000                                     *               10.08

IPAD VERIZON MTHLY FEE
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               80.00

FIVE BELOW-BINGO PRIZES
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               30.00

CINO PIZZA-TRIVIA PRIZES
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               75.49

TARGET-FAM TRIVIA PRIZES
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               12.75

GATE-FAM TRIVIA ICE BAG
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              252.52

PUBLIX-TRIVIA SNACKS/DRNK
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-51000                                     *               12.76

ACE TURNER-OFFICE SUPPLY
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               18.99

PUBLIX-ADULT TRV.BUD LGHT
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              171.90

PUBLIX-ADULT TRIV.ALCOHOL
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              217.02

PUBLIX-ADULT TRIV PRIZES
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-51000                                     *               37.26

PERCEP.KAYAK-PEDAL RPLCMT
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               92.92

DOLLAR TREE-TRIVIA PRIZES
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *                9.59

DOLLAR TREE-TRIVIA PRIZES
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              131.84

MARSHALS-TRIV.PRIZE FOOD
9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              182.15

AMAZON-STORAGE BINS

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE  10
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *               76.79
PUBLIX-TEEN EVT DRNK/SNCK

9/30/20 SMCCDD09 202009 320-53800-47200                                     *              402.50
ICEBUSTERS-ICE CREAM TRCK

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                            10,099.93 003205
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00005 10/02/20 35324-12 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *               20.40

596 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
10/02/20 52068-78 202009 330-53800-43000                                     *               57.08

801 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
10/02/20 62363-50 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *            2,821.83

000 PACETTI RD
10/02/20 65107-18 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *               13.04

975 TRAILMARK DR #IRR
10/02/20 88213-81 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *               16.44

1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS
10/02/20 96815-95 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *               30.28

2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY
10/02/20 96904-98 202009 330-53800-43000                                     *            1,033.93

805 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                           3,993.00 003206

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00053 9/03/20 9028416  202009 330-53800-46800                                     *              270.00

QTRLY PEST CONTROL SEP20
FLORIDA PEST CONTROL & CHEMICAL CO.                               270.00 003207

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00066 9/23/20 23331    202008 320-53800-47400                                     *              135.00

SHIP/HANDLE CABLE FOR RPR
9/23/20 23331A   202009 320-53800-47400                                     *              185.00

RPLC CBLE ON TRAINR/BENCH
ALWAYS IMPROVING LLC                                              320.00 003208

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00025 10/01/20 23460968 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *            3,532.58

SECURITY SERVICES SEP20
GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION                                    3,532.58 003209

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00068 9/21/20 IN-14005 202010 330-53800-34600                                     *            1,095.82

UPGRADE/FIX/RPLC CAMERAS
PRO-VIGIL, INC.                                                 1,095.82 003210

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00028 9/22/20 98       202008 320-53800-46900                                     *              327.81

GYM WIPES/TOWEL/TRSH/TP
10/01/20 99       202010 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00

JANITORIAL SERVICES OCT20
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,472.81 003211

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE  11
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/07/20 00137 9/30/20 RN093020 202009 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00
SECURITY SRVC - 09/26/20

10/05/20 RN100520 202010 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00
SECURITY SRVC - 10/05/20

ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             360.00 003212
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00147 10/01/20 75161    202010 320-53800-47500                                     *              425.00

SVC CALL-2 FAUCET LOW PRS
10/05/20 75280    202010 320-53800-47500                                     *            1,297.00

INST.SENSOR FAUCET/MX VLV
ROLLAND REASH PLUMBING INC                                      1,722.00 003213

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00024 9/19/20 556887-1 202009 330-53800-43100                                     *              695.32

805 TRAILMARK DR SEP20
9/19/20 556887-1 202009 330-53800-43100                                     *               32.45

295 BACK CREEK DR SEP20
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                     727.77 003214

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00039 10/01/20 4129B    202010 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES OCT20
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003215

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/07/20 00084 10/01/20 20-35357 202010 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALRM MONTR OCT
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 003216

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/20 00027 9/28/20 29256599 202010 330-53800-41000                                     *               16.05

AMENITY INTERNET - OCT20
AT&T                                                               16.05 003217

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/20 00139 10/08/20 AE100820 202010 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 10/08/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     160.00 003218

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/20 00005 10/02/20 68881-76 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *               16.01

990 TRAILMARK DR # PUMP
10/05/20 93295-44 202009 320-53800-43000                                     *               49.27

404 BLOOMFIELD WAY # PUMP
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                              65.28 003219

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/20 00066 10/05/20 23418    202009 320-53800-47400                                     *              100.00

SHIP/CABLE FOR PRESS RPR
10/05/20 23418A   202010 320-53800-47400                                     *              110.00

REPLACE CABLE ON PRESS
ALWAYS IMPROVING LLC                                              210.00 003220

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/16/20          PAGE  12
*** CHECK DATES 08/13/2020 - 10/16/2020 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/14/20 00031 10/01/20 617898   202010 320-53800-52000                                     *            1,148.68
FITNESS LEASE PMT #49

MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.                                1,148.68 003221
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/20 00034 10/06/20 21101409 202009 330-53800-43200                                     *               24.85

801 TRAILMARK DR - SEP20
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                   24.85 003222

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                194,657.14

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              194,657.14

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



SIX MILE CREEK Page: 1 of3 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34TT1-8588 

Issue Date: Jul 28, 2020 

Account Number: 292565993 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
att .com/paperless 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att .com/autopay today. 

Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with my AT&T. Go to 
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up. 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Payment, Jul 15- Thank you! 

Remaining balance 

Service summary 

Q TV 

S Internet 

Total services 

Total due 
Please pay by Aug 18, 2020 

Page2 

Page2 

Ways to pay and manage your account 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

.cJ. att.com/pay 

$25.30 

-$25.30 

$0.00 

$0:00 

$16.05 

$16.05 

$16.05 

J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.Z000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post. 

Total due 

$16.05 
Please pay by: 
Aug 18,2020 

~ ·-------------

SIX MILE CREEK 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Please pay $16.05 by Aug 18, 2020 



1. AT&T U-verse TV BV-Deluxe 
(AT&T Connected Communities) 

2. HD Technology Fee 
{AT&T Connected Communities) 

3. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

4. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

5. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

Total for TV - U-verse TV 

~ Internet 

Monthly charges 

1. Internet 25M / SM 
(Promotional Offer) 

2. Static IP 8 

Surcharges & fees 

3. Cost Assessment Charge 

Total for Internet 

Jul 29 - Aug 28 

Important information 

Late payment fee 
A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 
present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 
be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 

:,un,eu61s Jap1OH lLino:.i:.iv >1ues 

·pa1npatps uaaq 
se1.1 i\edOlff'\l +e'-1+ spa1;aJ a:i1OAUJ J no,\ JO auo a6ed IJ+Un +uawi\ed 

+1wqns Ol anu1+uo:, ·paJ,Ja a)ie+ Ol i\edo:inv JOJ. sapk> 6u1111q 2-L 
a>1ei p1no::, iuaw11OJua JnOA ·111q i\w uo pais11 Jaqwnu aJe:i Jawoisn::, 

illjl 6u111e:.i ,\q JO wo:.i·i:,e·MMM :ie 1 '81'V' 6UJAJ!l0U Aq UOJleZ(JOlj+ne 
1a:iue::, ue::, I 'lLino:>Je >jueq ALU LUOJJ AauoLU 6u1pnpap i\11e:.i1u0Jpa1a 

Aq Al4lUOLU ll!q ALU Aed Ol 1 '81 Ir/ ilZ!JO4+ne I 'AedOlJl\;f UJ ilOJUil I Ji 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$15.00 

$1.05 

$16.05 

save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay atatt.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

U-verse closed-captioning issues 
For closed-captioning issues, you may contact us immediately at 
ClosedCaptioning@att.com or 800.288.2020 or in writing at AT&T Closed 
Captioning, ATTN: Mr. Timmermans, Associate Director, 1010 Pine Street, 11E
X-04, St. Louis, MO 63101. 

Legal notification 
For information on upcoming U-verse TV programming changes 
please consult the Legal Notices published in USA Today on the 
first and third Tuesday of each month or our websiteatt.com/U
verseprogrammingchanges. 

2102.031.306807.01.02.0000000 Nf\JNNNNNY 008137.008137 

889B-~Ll1>8 7::1 an07:) lNIVS 
311Nn 3/\V Nllll'NH 80P~ 

378VAVd SlNn0:)0\t 
>133tl:) 371~ XIS 

h I •I I •I 1 • 11 II• 1,1 II ,I 1ll 111111111111 I I• 11 iii• 1 •I I I• 111III1111111 
OS 68£'0 AV~ L0090£'C:89~'~8·c:o~C: 

-



~~ community 
.. ;, controls. 
2480 South 3850 West, Suite A 
Salt Lake City, UT. 84120-7225 
Phone# 801-972-4331 

t ~ I§ (C '}-:' Vi{ r r::: rR'l w ....::::!= _:,,11.:, _ 

I AUG l 2 2020 

j G ,1S-CF1 LLC _ j 
Date 

Fax# 801-972-1202 

I BillTo 

Trailmark Drive 
Six Mlle Creek CDD 
c/o Evergreen Lifestyles Management 
135 W. Central Blvd suite 320 
Orlando, FL 32801 

P.O. Number Tenns 

V-David Net30 

Quantity Item Code 

Due Date 

9/3/2020 

1 ORDENTJOHN Order Entered John 

Rep Ship 

JRL 8/3/2020 

Description 

200 PROSURLAS Programming and laser etching 
PROSURLAS 

8/4/2020 

Ship To 

Trailmark Drive 
Derek Gilbert 
805 Trailmark Drive 
Office Before 5:00 PM 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

Via Fax 

FedEx 

Price Each 

0.00 
0.90 

200 CARHIDFOB-B ... HID Controlled Access Key Fob - Blank -Additional 6.01 
Print/Programming Line Required 
CARHIDFOB-BLANK 

1 FREIGHT · Shipping 14.00 
l FREIGHT Shipped On: 8/4/2020 11:00:00 AM 0.00 

Total Shipment Weight: 2.30 
Pack: 

Tracking#: 395474227724 

APPROVED 
By Ronald D. Freeman II at 9:33 am, Aug 13, 2020 

Our Federal Employer Identification number is: 87-0503711 

All balances past due over 30 days will be subject to a finance charge of 1.5% 
a month and a late fee. ANY QUESTIONS CALL 800-284-2837 Opt #3. 

RETURN POLICY: 
Products you receive that are incorrect will need to be returned within 90 days 
in the same packaging to our office. If packages of new product are received .. Q after 90 days, we WIii issue a 25 Yo restocking fee to your account. Any special 
orders correctly ordered & returned will also be issued restocking fee of 25%. 
Used products cannot be returned for credit. 

Community Controls collects sales tax in certain states. In most states, 
purchases are not tax exempt merely because they were made over the 
internet or because a seller does not collect sales tax in those states. You 
should review purchases made from us to determine if any sales or use tax is 
owed and pay any tax owed to the appropriate tax authority . 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax (0.0%) 

Total 

Payments/Credits 

Balance Due 

Invoice 

Invoice# 

AAA.O505692 

Phone 

Amount 

0.00T 
180.00T 

1,202.00T 

14.00T 
0.00T 

$1,396.00 

$0.00 

$1,396.00 

$0.00 

$1,396.00 

Please _remit payment to: - - r 

Community Controls 
oui- 3~ o - S3ioc-

2480 South 3850 West Suite A 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84120-7225 

/.\ r. · s::. kE-( FoG 



i:>fiVI D G RA Y 
HEATI NG C. AIR 

APPROVED 

David Gray Heating and Air, INC. 
6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville, FL 32217 

By Ronald D. Freeman II at 11 :49 am, Aug 12, 2020 

Bill to 

Phone: (904) 724-7211 
Fax: (904) 724-5925 
www.davidgrayonline.com 

Invoice 152609 

Location Address 
Six Mile Creek COD *E* 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
Unit E 
St Cloud FL 34771 ~ 

~ (C; ~ '1 \VJ~ I Trailmark Living00002 
- · 805 Trailmark Dr 

AUG l !. ~{l2U Saint Augustine FL 32092 

BY:-------------
Work Order#: 1008850 

Item 
48 - Commercial Service 

Transaction Date: 7/23/2020 

Description 
When I arrived the system was flat, and 
then removed the evaporator coil from the 
air handling unit and installed the new coil. 
I then pressure checked the system with 
'nitrogen and found a small leak in the line 
set that was not associated with the coil 
and repaired that also. And then pressure 
check the system again and found no 
discrepancies .,evacuated The system 
then charged .I didn't charge the system to 
11 • sub cooling unit is operating and 
cooling properly at this time this job is 
completed. 

Comm Labor 1 Man first 30 min Commercial Single Tech Labor 1st 30 
minutes 

Comm Labor 1 Man each 15 Commercial Labor each additional 15 
min minutes 

Quantity 

10 

Terms: CC ON FILE 

Invoice 152609 

Price Amount 
$0.00 $0.00 

$70.00 $70.00, 

$29.00 $290.00' 

Subtotal: $360.00 

Tax: $0.00 

Total: $360.00 

Payments: $0.00 

Balance Due: $360.00 

Total due subject to final approval and may vary based on verifications of GPS and material costs. All accounts due and payable 10 days 
from invoice date . If payment is not made within 30 days, the total will be charged to any credit card you have on file . After 30 days, 
invoice may be sent to collections and customer agrees to pay court costs, collection costs, and attorney's fees if suit and/or collection 
becomes necessary . 

Page 1 of2 



f'.iVID G Rfi 
Ef:iiTIN G C. R 

David Gray Heating and Air, INC. 
6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville, FL 32217 

Acceptance 

Phone: (904) 724-7211 
Fax: (904) 724-5925 
www.davidgrayonline .com 

I acknowledge and accept the initial service fee and 
agree to pay upon completion. I add itionally certify that 
I am fully authorized to approve this work and commit 
to payment. I accept the services performed by David 
Gray Heating and Air, Inc. are to my satisfaction. 

Total due subject to final approval and may vary based on verifications of GPS and material costs . All accounts due and payable 10 days 
from invoice date. If payment is not made within 30 days, the total will be charged to any credit card you have on file . After 30 days, 
invoice may be sent to collections and customer agrees to pay court costs , collection costs , and attorney's fees if suit and/or collection 
becomes necessary. 

Page 2 of2 



North Florida Landscape Co 
2585 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

BillTo 

Invoice# 

21957 

Sixmile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin Avenue , Unit E 

APPROVED 
By Ronald D. Freeman JI at 1:16 pm, Aug 07, 2020 

St. Cloud, FL 34 771 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail.com 

Date Phone# 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 8/6/2020 904-388-9354 

Quantity Description Rate Amount 

Irrigation Services: Electrical and irrigation as per attached 1,264.30 1,264.30 
estimate 
Landscape Services: Pine tree removal and annuals at 675.00 675.00 
Amenities Center as per attached estimate 06 [-o.?O-5§jCX)~ 1 4 (o(p{j) 

,.:-;:,;i ' ~~, r©~ 
~UG ~ 1 ~'20 

t'i:---- --------
_____ ...,_ 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape Total $1,939.30 



QT! _ 
4 

1 

1.5 

2.5 

4 

3 

3 

10 

KEY 

······- ., 

N~..:.rth Florida l~d'ltap~ 

2.585 Pacetti Rd. 

Saint Au_gustine, Fl. 32092 

l-904 -388-9354 

ITEM 
Pine tree removal 

~aint Augustine Motor wo~ 

Reprogram yPD 

~ -~tationc~ 
Decoders 

. ···- -

~ 

solenoids - ........... . 

T~oubl~hootp!1ffip #L_ 
Flats Annuals 

.Estimate: 

by: __ Robe.!f: "Ciai.g_~ Hal'm'!8 
Estimate for: TrailMsrk 

• · .. 

_Jufy 
SIZE 

l34 .19x 1S% 

Mullf.() Systems 

_ _ __ El~trical meeti~s and troublesboo~ 

2" valve solenoids 

150 at 2.25 each Amenities center 

iTotal 

-- ... 

COST " _ EXTEND 
' $_ 75.0() __ i $ . 300.0Q_ 

; $ 154.30 i $ 

$ 75.00 ! $ 

. $ 75.00 $ 
-----···-·-· --- . 

i $_ 120.00 ! $ 

s 3s_'.oo s 
$ ]5.00 1 t 

:- $ 

, s 

154.30 

112.50 

187.50 

480.00 

105.00 

225.00 

375.00 

1.939.30 



North Florida Landscape Co 
2585 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bill To 

Sixmile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, Fl. 34771 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Quantity Description 

Landscape Services: Dead Pin tree removed next to model 
home !X)I · 3 2u - ~ S ~ 0 • '1&(,0D 
Landscape Services : Dead Pine tree removed next to Pond 
Landscape Services: Oak tree removed nest to Amenities 
Center ool -?/st.., -s- ·,-6C()· tJ 1,(&.(_l.J 

APPROVED 
By Ronald D. Freeman ti at 10:02 am, Au g 13, 2020 

ool • '3 • ~ 3'600-'--/(e':lOC/ 1~©~TIW~1 
AUG 1 3 ·tlLU 

13 ~{: -------------

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Invoice# 

21960 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail .com 

Date Phone# 

8/13/2020 904-388-93S4 

Rate Amount 

770.00 770.00 

770.00 770.00 
575.00 575.00 

Total $2,115.00 



... 
'o 

WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 
801 TRAILMARK DR 

ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Your Account Summary 
Previous Amount Due 

Payment(s) Received Since Last Statement 

Current Month's Charges 

Total Amount Due 

$28.68 

-$28.68 

$28.17 

$28.17 

By. -------·------
Amount not paid by due date may be assessed a late payment charge and an additional deposit. 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 
peoplesgas .com I f ti 'P 8• di in 

Statement Date: 08/06/2020 
Account:211014091725 

Current month's charges: $28.17 
Total amount due: $28.17 
Payment Due By: 08/27/2020 

Go paperless! 
Goodbye clutter. Hello convenience. 

There's never been 
a better time to 
go paperless. 

It's touch-free and · 
good for the environment. ( 

\ 

Learn more and sign up > peop/Hqas.com/paperl.ss 

Save Energy with Natural Gas. 
Save more with our rebates. 
Find rebate criteria and steps to redeem at peoplesgds .com/bizrebates 

\
. "l<)--S~irO -ll~2t1 ◊ r!l~~-i 

oo ..<Iii'·'' 
To ensure prompt credit, please return stub portion of this bill with your payment. Maka checks payable to TECO. \1::5 \\'' 

~ TEC C>,· 
~ PEOPLES GAS 
• AN EMERA COMPANY 

WAYS TO PAY YOUR BILI. 

·•o• 
•□ .. mail phone online pay agent 

See reverse side for more in.formation 

00001033 01 AB 0.41 34771 FTECO108072001100610 00000 06 01000000 019 05 29806 002 

111• 1111 • 11 •111· 11· • 1111 I 11 ·11111 ·, 11•1 • 1111, I 1111 ,hi· 1·1 • • 1 lh I 
WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 
1408 HAMLIN AVE, UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD, FL 34771-8588 

Account:211014091725 

Current month's charges: $28.17 
Total amount due: $28.17 
Payment Due By: 08/27/2020 

Amount Enclosed $. ______ _ 

688420317131 

MAIL PAYMENT TO: 
TECO 
P.O. BOX31318 
TAMPA, FL 33631-3318 

688420317131211014 □91725 □ 0 □□□□□□28173 Page 1 of4 



"1. .... E C C> , 
PEOPLES C:iAS 
AN EME:RA COMPANY 

Account: 211014091725 
Statement Date: 08/06/2020 
Current month's charges due 08/27/2020 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 

If_. 'i->8•1 in 

Details of Current Month's Charges - Service from - 07/02/2020 to 08/04/2020 

Service for: 801 TRAILMARK DR, ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Meter 
Number 

SHD95922 

Read Date 

08/04/2020 

Customer Charge 

Distribution Charge 

Swing Service Charge 

Florida Gross Receipts Tax 

Natural Gas Service Cost 

Current 
Reading 

254 

Total Current Month's Charges 

Previous 
Reading 

246 

= Measured 
Volume 

8CCF 

8.4 THMS @ $0.45856 

8.4 THMS @ $0.03880 

Rate Schedule: Small General Service - Transportation 

x BTU x Conversion = 

1.045 1.0000 

$23.76 

$3.85 

$0.33 

$0.23 

$28.17 

$28.17 

Total Used 

8.4 Therms 

Billing 
Period 

34 Days 

Peoples Gas Usage HistorJ 

Therms Per Day 
(Average) 

~i-0.2 
JUL--•0.3 

JUN-0,1 

MAY 0.0 
APR-0.2 MAR _______ o_a 

FEB---•0.4 

JAN ----•o.s DEC ____ 0.4 

NOV-0.2 

OCT-0.1 

SEP 0.0 

AUG 0.0 
2019 

Page3 of 4 



-

Monthly Statement 

Bill - At-A-Glance 

Previous Bill 

Payment Received 7-29 Thank You! 

Adjustments 

Balance 

Current Charges 

Total Amount Due 

Amount Due in Full by 

Billing Summary 

Onl ine; att .com/myatt 

Plans and Services 
1 800-321-2000 
PIN: 3592 

Repair Service: 
1 866 620-6900 

AT&T Long Distance Service 
1 800 321-2000 

Total Current Charges 

Page 

News You Can Use Summary 

191.32 

191.32CR 

.00 

.00 

193.32 

$193.32 

Aug 30,2020 

167.15 

26.17 

193.32 

• PREVENT DISCONNECT • CARRIER INFORMATION 
• PAPERLESS BILLING • FEE DESCRIPTIONS 
• COST ASSESSMENT CHRG 
•AT&T RELAY SERVICE 

• DD NOT CALL 

See 'News You Can Use' for additional information. 

Rlt\lrn bottom portion with your check In the enctotld ...,..ope , 

DUE BY: Aug 30, 2020 $193.32 

1 of 2 SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GRP 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34TT1-85U3 

Page 
Account N_umher 

Billing Date 
904 940-0687 001 0562 JJvytJ 
Aug 8, 2020 

RECEIVED 
Web Site att.com 

AUG I 7 2020 

BY: _____ _ 

Plans and Services 

Manthl Ser,ice - Au I tbra Se 7 
1. Bus Local Call Unlimited A 

Business Line 
Three-Way Calling 
Remote Activation of Call 
Forwarding 
Enhanced Caller ID Anonymous 
Call Blocking 

Additions and Changes ta Senice 
This section of your bill reflects charges and credits resulting 
from account activity. 
Item 
No. Description 
Activity on Jun 3D.2821 
Charges for 904 941-Blil7 

Quantity 

Your bill reflects a charge 
for a change in rates for: 
(Monthly Charges are prorated from 
Jul 1, 2020 through Aug 7, 20201 

2. Federal Universal Service Fee 

Surcharges anll Other Fees 
Item 
No. Description 

3. Cost Assessment Charge 
4. Federal Universal Service Fee 
5. Federal Subscriber Line Charge 

Total SurchargH and DIiier Faes 

Government Faes and Tax■s 
Item 
No. Description 

6. Federal Excise Tax 
7. FL - State Communications Tax 
8. FL - Local Communications Tax 
9. Telecommunications Access 

System Act Surcharge 
10. Emergency 911 Service 

Total Government Fees and Taxes 

Total Plans and Services 

AT&T Long Distance Service 

MonthlJ SelYice 

Charges far 9114 940-1617 
Type of Service 

11. Bus Unlimited Gig 111 Plan Monthly Fee 
Local S..rvlcas provided by AT&T florlda. 

Quantity 
1 
1 

Quantity 

Monthly 
Rate 

.45 

Period 
07/17-08/16 

Amount After Sep 8, 2020 

132.00 

Amount 
Billed 

.55 

7.50 
1.72 
6.50 

15.72 

4.16 
11.03 
3.17 
.12 

.40 
11.88 

167.15 

20.00 

$208.32 

Billing Date Aug 8, 2020 Account Number 904 940-0687 001 0562 
SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GRP 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Please include your account number on your check. 

Make checks payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105262 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5262 

I 11111 I 1111I111111ll111111I11111111h 111111111 I 11 I• 11111 I h 1111 I I 

3900 90494006870014 4001500999920 0560200000000000000000019332 



SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GRP 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

Page 
Account Number 

Billing Data 

2of2 
904 940-0687 001 0562 
Aug 8, 2020 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

AT&T 

AT&T Long Distance Service 

Surcharges and Olhar Feas 

1. Federal Universal Service Fee 
2. Federal Regulatory Fee 

Total Surcharges and Other Fees 

Government Fees and Taxes 

3. FL- State Communications Tax 
4. FL- Local Communications Tax 

Total Government Feas and Taxes 

2.99 
.90 

3.89 

1.77 
.51 

2.2B 

Total AT&T Long Distance Service 26.17 

News You Can Use 

PREVENT DISCONNECT 
Thank you for l>eing a valued customer. Please Ile aware that all charges must be 
paid each month to keep your account current and prevent collection activities. We 
are required to inform you that certain charges must be paid in order ta prevent 
interruption of local service. THESE CHARGES ARE ALREADY INCLUDED IN THE 
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE AND ARE $193.32. Also, neglecting to pay for remaining 
charges may result in interruption or removal of these remaining services or further 
collection action, but will not result in disconnection of your local service. For more 
information, call the Plans and Services number listed in the Billing Summary 
section on page 1. 

CARRIER INFORMATION 
Our records indicate that you have selected AT&T Long Distance Service or a 
company that resells their services as your primary local toll carrier and AT&T Long 
Distance Service or a company that resells their services as your primary long 
distance carrier. Please contact us if this does not agree with your records. 

PAPERLESS BILLING 
Want to stop receiving paper l>ills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? 
Enroll at an.com/paperless. 

FEE DESCRIPTIONS 
The Administrative Expense Fee recovers a portion of AT&T's internal costs 
associated with the Federal Communications Commission's Universal Service 
Fund and related programs. The Federal Regulatory Fee recovers amounts paid to 
the federal government for regulatory casts and telecommunications services for 
the hearing impaired, and casts associated with local number portability 
administration. These fees are not taxes or charges that the government requires 
AT&T to collect from its customers. 

COST ASSESSMENT CHRG 
AT&T charges you this monthly per line amountto recover its ongoing costs 
incurred for property taxes and supporting the administration of local number 
portability, a government program that enables customers to retain their 
telephone number when changing service providers. This fee is not a tax or 
charge that the government requires AT&T to collect from its customers. 

DD NOT CALL 
If your business makes outbound telephone solicitations, you must comply with 
National Do-Nat-Call laws and regulations [47 C.F.R. 64.1200 and 16 C.F.R. 3101 and 
any applicable state laws. 

AT&T RELAY SERVICE 
Dial 711 is a Telecommunications Relay Service far customers with hearing and 
speech lass. AT&T offers products and services far customers with visual, 
hearing, speech or physical loss. Far mare information, please go to 
an.com/accessibility or call AT&T's Disability and Aging Center at 1-800-772-3140. 
You can also go online at realpageslive.com (choose a Directory or enter zip code 
or city name; select Table of Contents; and then click on Community Pages!. 

IMPORTANT DSL UPDATE 
Effective October 1, 2020, AT&T will no longer accept new DSL Internet orders and 
you will not be able to move your DSL service to a new address or make any 
speed changes ta your DSL service. For questions about this change, please call 
the number an your bill. 

OZODB AT&T lntelleclual Property. All rights rasarved. 

4197.005.043742.01 .01 .0000000 NNNNNYNY 016305.016305 

88S8-LLL17£ 7:1 an01:> .LNlv'S 
3 .LINn 3/\'v' NlllAl'v'H 8017 L 

&ID .LN31Al.1S3/\NI >1331:l:> 37I1"1 XIS 

I• 1h 11• 111 I 11111' 11111111111111III1111111 II• 1111111 I' 111 I ,I 11 h I 
JW 6WO S'v' L Z17L£17'£6L"S'l6L17 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

0 MULTIPLE DAYS WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SATURDAY) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE SAME INVOICE" * 

*PLEASE r::ILL IN ALL YELLOW BOXES** 

**INVOICES ARE DUE EACH MONDAY BY 8AM - SEND TO RMNELSON@SJSO.ORG* * 

REMIT PAYMENT TO: BILL TO: INVOICE# 

Adam Eminisor Six Mile Creek COD SERVICE DATE: S/9/20 

I 475 West Town P1ace, Suite 114 INVOICE DATE: 
I St. Augusttne, FL 32092 TOTAL DUE: ~160.00 

*BLUE BOXES PAYROU USE ONLY* DUE DATE: UPON RECEIPT 

DATE CAD# TIMEIN TIMEOUT 
TOTAL 

TOTAL DUE 
HOURS 

Sunday, August 9, 2020 SJS020CAD151325 6:30 PM 10:30 PM 4 $160.00 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

ACTIVITY / COMMENTS: HOURRATE S40.00 4 5160.00 
I conducted traffic enforcement throughout the neighborhood. Multiple vehicles were stopped for speeding. 

~ 

I patrolled the new construction area along with the amenity center . 

~ 

APPROVED 
By Ronald D. Freeman II at 9:18 am, Aug 13, 2020 

~l&CCJ&Il'WiJ;~ 
AUG 1 3 ~tlttl 

BY: _____________ 

revised 2-10-2020 



A Florida NaturaJ Gas· 
P.O. Box 934726 
AUanta. GA 31193•4726 

Phone: 877-436-4427 Fax: 844-393-9006 

Email: customerservice@onlyfng .com 

Invoice 

Billing Group#: 37224 ________ __J 

MDG2020 00000089 00 

1•1•1111•11•11l••111111,t•11•111•1•11•111•1•ll1ll1•11•~ 1 
,. Six Mile Creek Community Development District CEIVED 

Accounts Payable 

Description 

1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
St Cloud, FL 34771-0000 

INSIDE FERC FGT 23 
Fuel 

Transportation 

Customer Charge 

Sales Taxes 

AUG 1 7 2020 

BY: _ ____ _ 

Term 

07/01/20, 08/04/20 
O?i5T /20 - 08/04720 

Commodity Charges Sub Total: 

Transportation Charges Sub Total: 

Miscellaneous Charges Sub Total: 

Pre-Tax Sub Total: 

Taxes Sub Total: 

Total Current Charges: 

Invoice Date: 

Invoice#: 

Due Date: 

current Charges: 

Last Payment: 

Payment Date: 

Prior Balance Due: 

Total Amount Due: 

Therm 

840 
0.25 

8.65 

Simplify your life by signing up for FNG's Paperless Billing and AutoPay It's easy and convenient. Enroll online at 
OnlyFNG.com. Thank you for your business . 

Please detach and remit this portion with your payment 

August 10, 2020 

350459ES 

September 02, 2020 

$9.65 

$9.69 

July 21, 2020 

$0.00 

$9.65 

Billing Group#: 31224 1 
-------~ :Six Mile Creek Community Dev 

Make Checks Payable To: Florida Natural Gas 
Please Include your BIiiing Group#onyour check . 

Invoice Date: August 10, 2020 ! :Accounts Payable Wire/ACH Payment To: 

Cost 

$2.85 
$0.09 

$2.94 

$0.76 

$0.76 

$5.95 

$5.95 

$9.65 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$9.65 

Invoice#: I 
:.1408 Hamlin Ave 

350459ES . :Unit E 
Bank: Wells Fargo~ankAtlanta GA ____ _ 

Due Date: 

Current Charges: 

Last Payment: 

Payment Date: 

I I.
St Cloud, FL 34771-0000 

September 02, 2020 . 

_$9_.6_5 ____ __.!! 

_$9_.6_9 ____ __.I L_ __ -

July 21, 2020 I 

ABA# : 121000248 -- -- ... - ·- --------------
Acct Name: Florida Natural Gas 

· - Account #: 2000036933330 

Ft-'~ ~ Prior Balance Due: $0.00 1 

$9.65 1 
Mail Payment To: 

Total Amount Due: 

Amount Paid: 

Florida Natural Gas 
P.O. Box 934726 
Atlanta , GA 31193-4726 

~ 
* * 



Florida Natural Gas' Phone: 877-436-4427 Fax: 844-393-9006 

Email: custom erservice@onlyfng.com 

Account Detail 

I Service Address: 801 Trailmark Dr I City , State: 

I Utility : TECO - Peoples Gas I Utility Account #: 

!Current Charges 

Description 

INSIDE FERC FGT 23 
Fuel 
Totals : 

Description 

Transportation 
Totals: 

Description 

Customer Charge 

Totals: 

Description 

Florida State Tax 100% Exempt 

St. Johns County Tax 100% Exempt 

Totals : 

Total Account Charges: 

Natural Gas • Commodity 

Term Therm 

07/01/20 • 08/04/20 
07/01/20 • 08/04/20 

Transportation Charges 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Taxes 

8.40 
0.25 
8.65 

Units 

8.40 

St Augustine, FL 

211014091725 

Price 

$0.3400 
$0.3400 

Price 

$0.0901 

Page 2 of2 

Invoice#: 350459ES 

Cost 

$2.85 
$0.09 

$2.94 

Cost 
$0.76 
$0.76 

Cost 

$5.95 

$5.95 

Cost 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$9.65 



Bug Out 
PO Box 600730 
Jacksonville , FL 32260-0730 
904-743-8272 

Invoice # 12299643 

Invoice 
Date: 

7/1/2020 

Wednesday 

Bill-To: 766527 

Six Mile Creek COD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 

Six Mile Creek COD Location: 766527 
Trailmark Amenities Center 
805 Trailmark Dr 

Saint Cloud, FL 34771-8588 Saint Augustine, FL 32092-7634 

! Service Description Quantity 

Lawn Service Recurring 1.00 

APPROVED t 
By Alex Boyer at 3:48 pm, Aug 21, 292ffl~ 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 

JlL 

AMT PAID 
TOTAL 

Price 

220.00 

$220.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$220.00 

AMOUNT DUE $220.00 

Bill-To: Six Mile Creek COD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
Saint Cloud, FL 34771-8588 

Bug Out 
PO Box 600730 
Jacksonville, FL 32260-0730 
904-7 43-8272 

766527 

PO Number: 

Terms: DUE AT SERVIC 

7/1/2020 

Invoice#: 12299643 

;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
~ 

---;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
-~ == -== ---
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
~ 



Bug Out 
PO Box 600730 
Jacksonville, FL 32260-0730 
904-743-8272 

Invoice# 12530561 

Invoice 
Date: 

8/1/2020 

Saturday 

Bill-To: 766527 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 

Six Mile Creek CDD Location: 766527 
Trailmark Amenities Center 
805 Trailmark Dr 

Saint Cloud, FL 34771-8588 Saint Augustine, FL 32092-7634 

! Service Description Quantity 

Lawn Service Recurring 1.00 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 3:49 pm, Aug 21, 2020 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 
AMT PAID 
TOTAL 

Price 

220.00 

$220.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$220.00 

AMOUNT DUE $220.00 

Bill-To: Six Mile Creek CDD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
Saint Cloud, FL 34771-8588 

Bug Out 
PO Box 600730 
Jacksonville, FL 32260-0730 
904-7 43-8272 

766527 

PO Number: 

Terms: DUE AT SERVIC 

8/1/2020 

Invoice#: 12530561 

iiiiiiiiiiiiiii 
!!!!!!!!!!!!!! 

-
iiiiiiiiiiiiiii = iiiiiiiiiiiiiii -iiiiiiiiiiiiiii --!!!!!!!!!!!!!! 
iiiiiiiiiiiiiii 
iiiiiiiiiiiiiii = -
iiiiiiiiiiiiiii 
iiiiiiiiiiiiiii 
!!!!!!!!!!!!!! 



SIX MILE CREEK CDD Page: 1 of2 
C/O GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES 

Issue Date: Aug 23, 2020 

1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Account Number: 159094442$.t("lC 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
att.com/paperless 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today. 

Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with my AT&T. Go to 
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up. 

Service summary 

0 TV Page2 

e Internet Page2 

Total services 

Total due 
Please pay by Sep 15, 2020 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

J:l att.com/pay 

$0.11 

$0.00 

$0.11 

$0.11 

J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post. 

Total due 

$0.11 
Please pay by: 
Sep 15, 2020 

'(· 

1t-l~ 
'3')0·S;5 ·l\\ 

SIX MILE CREEK COD Please pay $0.11 by Sep 15, 2020 
C/O GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FOR AUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Account number: 159094442 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

11111111 •I• 111111111•11111111111I'111111111111111111111• 111 h 1111 

410040560001590944423000000000000000000000 □11000005 

-



..... 
~ AT&T ·~ 

Service activity 

Q TV - U-verse TV 

Monthly charges 

1. AT&T U-verse TV BV-Deluxe 
(AT&T Connected Communities) 

2. HD Technology Fee 
(AT&T Connected Communities) 

3. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

4. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

5. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

Surcharges & fees 
6. Regulatory Video Cost Recovery Fee 

Total for TV - U-verse TV 

- 1_1, ... - ·-=-

~ Internet 

Monthly charges 

1. Internet 12 
(Promotional Offer) 

Total for Internet 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Aug 24 - Sep 23 

Aug 24 - Sep 23 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 
present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 
be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 
save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay at att.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

Printed on Recyclable Paper 

·pa1npa4:is uaaq 
se4 ,(edo:in-11 ietfl spa1,aJ a:>!OAU! mo/4 ,o auo a6ed 11:iun lUaw/4ed 

l!LLiqns o:i anunuo) ·pa,,a a)le+ o:i Aedo+n1;t JOJ sapAJ 5uuuq z-~ 
a)fel p1no:> :iuaLU11OJua JnOA ·1uq ALU uo pa:isu Jaqwnu aJeJ Jawo:isn:i 

alJl 6uu1e:i Aq Jo wo:>·ne·MMM :ie l '8lv' 6u1,(,1:iou Aq uo1:ie21Jo4:ine 
1a:>ue::, ue::, 1 ·:iuno:i:ie )!Ueq ALLI LUOJJ AaUoLU 6uJpnpap r:11e:i1u0Jpa1a 

Aq -'14:J.UOLU 1uq ALLI ,(ed Ol 1'81 v' 82!JO4lne I 'o\edo:in1;1 LI! IIOJua 1,1 

Page: 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.11 

$0.11 

$0.00 

$0.00 

U-verse closed-captioning issues 

2 of 2 

Aug 23, 2020 

159094442 

For closed-captioning issues, you may contact us immediately at 
ClosedCaptioning@att.com or 800.288.2020 or in writing at AT&T Closed 
Captioning, ATTN: Mr. Timmermans, Associate Director, 1010 Pine Street, 11E
X-04, St. Louis, MO 63101. 

Legal notification 
For information on upcoming U-verse TV programming changes 
please consult the Legal Notices published in USA Today on the 
first and third Tuesday of each month or our website att.com/U
verseprogrammingchanges. 

AT&T U-verse5
M TV, AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 

Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

6793.036.374849.01 .01 .0000000 NNNNNNNY 018359.018359 

9998-~LLt,£ 7:1 on078 lNl\fS 
3 llNn 3A\f Nl7V>JVH eot,~ 

S3::llAl::13S 
1N3V>J3':JVNVV>J 7VlN3V>JNl::13AO':J 0/8 

008 >133l::l::l 37111\1 XIS 

1111111111 PI 1111111 I rl 111111' P 11111 I Ii I u I I 11111111111111111 I It 
oJ 69£'0 AV ~ avevLc·me~·gc·caL9 

~:-i m 

■ 



-
ADVANCED DISPOSAL 

Advanced sT JoHNs couNTY - Pw 

0 - 1 15so PHILIPS HWY 
ISposa JACKSONVILLE FL 32256 

Pay By Phone: 1-877-720-1583 
Phone PIN: 2020035480000 

Advanced Disposal is a company bringing fresh ideas and 
solutions to ·a clean environment. How can we further help 
your business or home become greener and cleaner? Visit 
us ·at www.AdvancedDlsposaLcom. 

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED 

000748 000000019 

•11hI111111, 1, 1, 1.1111I111' II' •1111111 I I•• II I •I I 11IIII11111 ••'·I ~ 
Should you have q1,.1astions libout charges, plMse see the 
back ofthis invoice, .call your service representative or go fo 
www .AdvancedDisoosaLcom. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMNT DIST 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Thank you for your business! 

-- -

Account Information Previous Balance $171.62 
Account Number PW003548 08/10/20 LOCKBOX AUTOMATED -$171.62 

Site Number 0000 Payments and Adjustments -$171.62 
Invoice Date August31,2020 
Invoice Number PW0000090037 TRAILMARK AMENITY CENTER (0001) 

Account Summar~ 805 TRAILMARK DR ST AUGUSTINE, FL 

Previous Balance $171.62 
Payments/Adjustments -$171.62 
Current Invoice Amount $171 .96 Date Description Reference Qw Unit Price Amount 

1.00 • 4.00YD:COMM FL TRASH (001) 

I Amount Due 
08/31/20 TRASH STANDARD 1.00 109.00 109.00 

$171.96 SERVICE: 

Due Date Upon Receipt 09/Q.1 /20~/20 

Invoice Breakdown 
08/31/20 ENERGY CHARGE 1.00 10.82 10.82 

Current $171.96 
08/31/20 ENVIRONMENTAL CHARGE 1.00 26.16 26.16 

30 days - past due $0.00 
60 days - past due $0.00 SI Johns South Comm FF 145.98 7.30 
90 days - past due $0.00 SITE TOTAL 153.28 

It's easy being Green ... sign up 08/31/20 CADMIN FEE SC93397 1.00 7.00 7.00 
for ebill and auto pay al 

http://www.AdvancedDisposal.com/billpay 
08131/20 COMPLIANCE AND SC93398 1.00 10.79 10.79 

BUSINESS IMPACT 

Contact Us CHARGE 

(904) 783-7000 
Jacksonvi lleFL@AdvancedDi sposal .com St Johns South Comm FF 

-

~Lto 
3Jo·S]b ·43J 

-

PW 200820I001.txt-1495-000000019 

Online Bill Pay 
Great for regular payments. 

How to Pay Your BUI 

Pay by Mail • 
Bestfor sending a regular check 

17.79 0.89 

Pay by Phone 
Good for a one time payment 

Vis.it WWW;advanceddisposat,corn/blll'pay 
to enroll in online blil pay methods. 

Please man your check made. payable.to 
Advanced Disposal to address liSted .below. 

Call 1-877-720-1583 to mskeyour payment 
by phone. 

With the Advaneed Disposal online bill 
payment system, you are able to: 

• Make a. one-lime payment 

• Setup your account.-for automatic 
recurring payments 

If you would like assistance, please contact 
us at_ 1-800•3S5-2108 and we will be happy 
to ~ .sl.~t you iJl getting S6lt up. 

@~~ 
ADVANCED DISPOSAL 
ST JOHNS COUNTY - PW 
7580 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE FL 32256 

Please Send All Correspondence to Above Address 

Please do not send corraspondence to this 
addrsss. 

Ple~se a~lst us t>y Including ttv~ 
ntmlttanc;e portion (the perforatQd bottom 
section of your Invoice) along with your 
cheef< or money or(jerto ensure your 
payment is.posted quickly and accurately. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT 

To ensure fastest service, please have your 
Phone PIN ready, whi .ch -can be found at 
the fop of your invoice. 

We accept MasterCard, Visa,.Amerlcan 
Express and Discover; An automated voice . 
sentlce. will process your payment. This 
option .is ideal for making slngle payments. 

□ 
Please check box for address change 
and print new address on reverse side . 

Due Date: Upon Receipt 

Customer Billing Address: 
IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW. CHECK CARD USING FOR PAYMENT 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMNT DIST 
1408 HAMLIN AVENUE CARD NUMBER 

SIGNATURE 

ACCOUNT# 

PW003548 

INVOICE TOTAL 

$171.96 

AMOUNT PAID 

EXP. DATE 

INVOICE# 

PW0000090037 

BALANCE DUE 

$171.96 

O v1sA 

0 MASTERCARD 

0 AMERICAN EXP. 

0 DISCOVER 

AMT. ENCLOSED 

UNITE 
ST CLOUD, FL 34471 

Remit Payment To: 
(Please do not send CASH via mail) 

Advanced Disposal 
St Johns County - PW 
PO BOX 7 43019 
ATLANTA GA 30374-3019 

I 111111111 I I• 1111 •I• •I 111111111111 • •I 1111 I I I II 111 I I I,, u I II I h 111 

PW 003548 DODO 083120 0000090037 00017196 00017196 5 

• 



Advanced 
Disposal 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMNT DIST 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Current Charges (Continued) 

Current Charges 
Amount Due 

___ P_W:...:=2008201001.txt-1497-000000019 

Account Information 

Account Number 
Site Number 
Invoice Date 
Invoice Number 

PW003548 
0000 

August31,2020 
PW0000090037 

Page 3 of 3 

$171.96 
$171.96 



06/26/20 

AC 
Invoice NO. 

120-16425 

DOOR& 
WINDOW 
SERVICE, Inc. 

9123 Hare Ave. 
Jacksonville, Fla 32211 

Ph 904 727-6811 
CBC035180 

INVOICE 

SINCE 
1985 

Fx 904 727-6813 "Our Success Hinges On Your Satisfaction" 

BILL TO 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
805 Trailmark Dr. 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

QTY 

SHIP TO l 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
805 Trailmark Dr. 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

DESCRIPTION 

Site Inspection Scheduled: June 26th with Gary 
1 Per Gary: trouble shoot and lubricated on site 1-1/2 hrs 

Reason for Call: 
*Fitness Center front door has key fob system and it sounds like it is trying to work but doesn't unlock 
the door every time 
*Lynzi is thinking its the motor/power supply again 

APPROVED 
By Ronald D. Freeman II at 1:21 pm, Aug 18, 2020 

Total I 
Unless otherwise noted: 

Payments/Credits Alann reconnection, caulking, painting, trash and old door removal are not included in the 
above price. 
Invoice due on completion of work listed. A late fee will be added to all past due 
invoices.Not responsible for condition of used or customer supplied locks (call backs are 
subiect to service fee if customer sunnlied locks) 

I Balance Due 

\V\VW.ACEDOOR.COM REP: 

$212.50 

$0.00 

$212.50 

GSH 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

· REMITi>AYMENTTO: 
Adam Eminisor 

DAlt 

Friday, Aug~sft, 20:ib SJSO20CAD149864 5:45 PM 9:45 PM 4 
SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS.: . HOUR RATE 40 .00 4 

11 patrolled the neighborhood amenity center , construction areas , and the kayak launch for any suspicious 
ctivity. 

APPROVED SY: ____________ _ 

By Alex Boyer at 1 :50 pm, Aug 

Security Patrol 

revised 2-10-2020 

$160.00 

160.00 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

._MULTIPLE DAYS WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SATURDAY) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE SAME tNVOICE*"' 
**PLEASE FILL IN ALL VELUtW Bct,XES•• 

**INV01CES ARE DUE EACH M8NDAY IV SAM-SEND Tm RMNELS0N@}SJS0.0RG** 
REMIT PAYMENT TO: 
Adam Eminisor 

*BLUE BOXES PAYR0 

DATE CAil> # 

Friday, August 21, 2020 SJSO20CAD159278 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 
-----------SJ-S0_1_9_CA_D __ _ By Alex Bf>ffr at 12:08 pm, All§ 26, 211211 

SJSO19CAD Securit atrol 
SJSO19CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 4 
I conducted traffic enforcement throughout the neighborhood. Multiple vehicles were stopped for speeding. 

I patrolled the new construction area along with the amenity center. I located a juvenile playing in the new 

construction area at the front of the community and advised him he needed to leave the area. 

revised 2-10-2020 

l411q 
S-Ltlr.-l-0 )t(v}; 

J20-5J8-:>4S 

OECEIVrE~ ' n AUG 2 5 2020 u 
BY: _ ____ _ 

160.00 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 
TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Adam Eminisor 

St. Augustine, Fl 3219 
*BLUE BeXES PAYR8 

DATE CAD# 

Friday, August 28, 2020 SJSO20CAD163907 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.QO 
I conducted traffic enforcement throughout the neighborhood. Multiple vehicles were stopped for speeding. 

I patrolled the new construction area along with the amenity center . 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 11 :20 am, ~ ~ " J/1,i 

Security patrol 

revised 2-10-2020 

-t¼W\ 
>-tlvri~ J-<JVJ 

1io ,_s Jg-Jl\S, 

~

E CEIVE [r\: 
rl ,, 

SEP O 2 2020 ~ 
BY: ____ _ 



Christopher Mobley 

DATE 

Saturday , August 8, 2020 

Tuesday, August 18, 2020 

Sunday, August 23 , 2020 

ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

- I 

•BLUE BeXES PAV 

CAI!># 

SJSO20CAD150537 5:00 PM 

SJSO20CAD157338 5:00 PM 

SJSO20CAD160650 5:00 PM 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

TeTALIIUE 

9:00 PM 4 $160.H 
9:00 PM 4 $160.H 
9:00 PM 4 $1il.H 

ACTIVITY/ COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 12 $480.00 

~on ducted foot patrols of the amenity center area, pool area, park area. I conducted patrols on every street 

in thee nti re neighborhood with no issues to report. Monitored traffic entering/exiting the neighborhood. 

~on ducted traffic enforcement on Trail mark Drive and Weathered Edge Drive. Focused efforts for 

1t-respassing enforcement at the dead end ofTrailmark Drive and kayak launch. No issues to report. 

revised 2-10-2020 

-'4(]3 

$au r .'t j .5-cr vJ 

320 \) 7 b · J LtS 

h 
~ ~ BY: ________ _ 



Christopher Mobley 

DATE 

Tuesday , August 25, 2020 

ACTIVITY/ COMMENTS: 

ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

•BLUE NXES PAYR 

CAil># 

SJSO20CAD162013 4 :00 PM 8 :00 PM 

HOUR RATE $40 .00 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

4 

4 

T8TALBUE 

$16t.0i 

$160.0 i 

~onducted foot patrols of the amenity center area, pool area, park area. I conducted patrols on every street 
in the entire neighborhood with no issues to report. Monitored traffic entering/exiting the neighborhood. 

Conducted traffic enforcement on Trail mark Drive and Weathered Edge Drive. Focused efforts for 
~respassing enforcement at the dead end ofTrailmark Drive and kayak launch. No issues to report. 

BY: 

revised 2-10-2020 



CROWN 
I ;l•I•IH IU?I 
3002 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207 

904-858-4300 11 ACCOUNTING@CROWNPOOLSINC.COM 

BillTo 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
C/O EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT 
805 TRAILM-\RK DR 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Quantity Description 

I MONTHLY POOL SERVICE FOR.!!:!!, Y 

tt\L\l 
·y) b ~Ji \l\ , S 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

7/31/2020 JUL-241 

APPROVES 
By Alex Boyer at 8:27 am, Sep 04, 2020 

Amenity-Pool Maint 

Terms 

Due upon receipt 

Rate Serviced 

1,375.00 7/3 1/2020 

Total 

OECEIVtE ? n SEP 04 2020 u 
BY: 

Amount 

1,375.00 

$1,375.00 

Customer Total Balance $2,757.88 



David Gray Heating and Air, INC. 
6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville, FL 32217 

Bill to 
Six Mile Creek COD *E* 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
Unit E 
St Cloud FL 34771 

Work Order# : 1009874 Transaction Date: 8/24/2020 

Comm Labor 1 Man each 15 Commercial Labor each additional 15 
min minutes 

Comm Labor 1 Man first 30 min Commercial Single Tech Labor 1st 30 
minutes - The a 49 blower belt which 
belongs to the 7 1/2 ton train air handler 
unit is broken in many places. Secured 
power to the unit and checked the police 
on the motor and the blower wheel and 
found no grooving or any other 
discrepancies.A new a 49 blower belt is 
needed to be ordered, please order two so 
we can leave one here as a spare. This job 
is completed. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 1 :44 P' 

Amenity- Facility Maintenance 

2 

Phone: (904) 724-7211 
Fax: (904) 724-5925 
www.davidgrayonline .com 

Invoice 153200 

Location Address 
Trailmark Living00002 
805 Trailmark Dr 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

Terms: CC ON FILE 

Invoice 153200 

$29.00 $58.00 

$70.00 $70.00 

Subtotal : $128.00 

Tax: $0.00 

Total: $128.00 

Payments : $0.00 

Balance Due : $128.00 

Total due subject to final approval and may vary based on verifications of GPS and material costs. All accounts due and payable 10 days 
from invoice date . If payment is not made within 30 days, the total will be charged to any credit card you have on file. After 30 days, 
invoice may be sent to collections and customer agrees to pay court costs, collection costs, and attorney's fees if suit and/or collection 
becomes necessary . 

Page 1 of2 



David Gray Heating and Air, INC. 
6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville , FL 32217 

Phone: (904) 724-7211 
Fax: (904) 724-5925 
www.davidgrayonline .com 

Acceptance 
I acknowledge and accept the initial service fee and 
agree to pay upon completion. I additionally certify that 
I am fully authorized to approve this work and commit 
to payment. I accept the services performed by David 
Gray Heating and Air, Inc. are to my satisfaction . 

Total due subject to final approval and may vary based on verifications of GPS and material costs . All accounts due and payable 10 days 
from invoice date . If payment is not made within 30 days, the total will be charged to any credit card you have on file. After 30 days, 
invoice may be sent to collections and customer agrees to pay court costs, collection costs, and attorney's fees if suit and/or collection 
becomes necessary. 

Page 2 of 2 



Allways Improving LLC dba Fitness Pro 
1400 Village Square Blvd #3-293 

Tallahassee, FL 32312 

(850) 523-8882 

tracy@wearefitnesspro.com 

www .wearefitnesspro.com 

BlLL TO 

TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 

COMMUNITIES 

INVOICE# 

I 23031 

Six Mile Creek COD 

C/O GMS 1408 Hamlin Unit E 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 

DATE 

! 08/11/2020 

TOTAL DUE 

I $1so.oo 

Invoice 

··········~ 

i SHIP TO 

Lynzi Chambers 

TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 

COMMUNITIES 
TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 

COMMUNITIES 
805 Trailmark Drive 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

DUEOATE TEAMS 

l Net 15 j'08/26/2020 

PLEASE DETACH TOP PORTION AND RETURN WITH YOUR PAYMENT . 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 9:59 am, Aug 28, 2020 Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies 

DAT!: ....... rPRODUCT/SERVICE 

08/05/2020 PM 
Aug 5, 2020: Preventative Maintenance: Cleaned, Lubed, Calibrated, Inspected 
and Tested. Calibrated cardio- Tests good. Treated water in water rower. 
Inspected strength and found cable bad on functional trainer. 
SERVICE REQUEST 27811 - AUGUST QUARTERL V PM 

BALANCE DUE 

r-

www .wearefitnesspro.com 

1<100 ~ ~ n-m 
TallattaSlff, R. &»12 
116().Q-

QTY, 

1.50 

AMOUNT 

150.00 

$150.00 



Page _1_ of 1 

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

-tl-\1..\,~ 
Nicholas Dreger 
(Payable to) 

91 Pondside Lane, St. Augustine, FL 32092 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

D Association 0 Vendor 

BILtTO . . . · . ' 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

= ,,,/ £ 
""" ,. ~ DESCRIPTION 

Refund- Camp House Reservation 

Check #171 

Mail to 91 Pondside Lane, St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Authorized bf.' 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

GL C0DE 

09/03/2020 

1 

ASAP 

AMOUNT 
- -

$250.00 

$250.00 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE $ $250 -------



® PRO-VIGIL 
Pro-Vigil, Inc. 
4646 Perrin Creek 
STE 280 
San Antonio TX 78217 

Six Mile Creek, CDD 
1408 Hamlin Ave., Unit E 
St. Cloud FL 34771 
United States 

Sales Order #SO-16169 Net 15 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 12:32 · 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 

8/24/2020 

Six Mile Creek, CDD 
805 TrailMark Drive 

IN-137033 

St. Augustine FL 32092 
United States 

9/8/2020 Six Mile Creek CDD 

24-AUG-20 TO 20-
SEP-20 

CU-20794:1 

mJI ~ ,f'~4'L1~ff:.~AIF4:°.P':lf~ P_., ~~~~I~ ~~ ~ llJ'.~~ ~t ... ~~,.,.~~.u~~~~~,£?.1.w......-~,,s,~~,~ ~~ ,/1 
1 S50005 Upgrade - Synology 4-Bay NAS 1 Unit at $35.27 

DiskStatlon DS916+ (4-Bay) 

1 S10032 Fixed- Damage Waiver 1 Unit at $85.78 

1 S10023 Fixed - Guaranteed Protection 1 Unit at $64.47 

Plan (GPP) 

1 S50016 Upgrade- Axis M3025-VE 7 Units at $9.70 

Network Camera 

1 S10034 Fixed - IP Camera Hosting Fixed 3 Units at -$10.93 

S10021 Fixed - Live Monitoring (12 Hours 6 Units at -$33.88 

per Day) 

S10129 Fixed - Carefree Maintenance 1 Unit at $81.96 

and Replacement 

1 S10034 Fixed - IP Camera Hosting Fixed 3 Units at $49.17 

1 S10021 Fixed - Live Monitoring (12 Hours 6 Units at $137.68 

per Day) 

1 S50017 Upgrade - Axis C3003-E Network 1 Unit at $22.92 

Horn Speaker 

II II I Ill 1111111111111111 1111 Ill 
IN-137033 

$35.27 

t,5 $85.78 

vef•Jt I ~,)(JjJ!c ~t\J $64.47 

:3JO·S b 
$67.90 

$-32.79 

$-203.28 

$81.96 

$147.51 

$826.08 

$22.92 

Subtotal 

/ 

Balance Due 

$35.27 

$85.78 

$64.47 

$67.90 

$-32.79 

$-203.28 

$81.96 

$147.51 

$826.08 

$22.92 

$1,095.82 

$0.00 
I' 

, ~!,09$'.82 
''/, 

$1,095.82 

1 of 2 



@) PRO -VIGIL 
Pro-Vigil, Inc. 
4646 Perrin Creek 
STE 280 

Invoice 
-~~ ~1~• - a; 
8/24/2020 

San Antonio TX 78217 

We're pleased to announce that we've adopted a new solution that allows you to 
submit payment online. Simply click the link below to pay via credit card or ACH. 
We're looking forward to the transition and hope you enjoy the simplified process. For 
questions about invoices please call 866-616-1318 from 8 am to 5 pm CT, M-F, or 
email AR@pro-vigil.com . 

For non-electronic payments please remit to: 
Lockbox Remittance (Check): 
PRO-VIGIL INC. 
PO. BOX 677107 
DALLAS TX 75267 - 7107 

II I I I Ill II II llll 111111111111111 
IN-137033 

IN-137033 24-AUG-20 TO 20-
SEP-20 

2 of 2 



ST JOHNS COUN1YSHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

**MULTIPLE DAYS WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SATURDAY) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THESAME INVOICE** 
**PLEA.SE FILL IN All YELL8W B@xes•• 

••mvfJICES ARE fl)UE EACH MONIJAY BY 8AM -SEND Tlt ftMNB.SeN@SJSG.ltRG .. 
"'"R_E_M-IT_P_A_Y_M_EN_T_T_O_: -------, 11"' 

Robert M. Nelson 

*BLUE BGXES PAYRO 

DATE CAB# 

Sunday , August 16, 2020 SJSO20CAD155805 

Monday , August 24 , 2020 SJSO20CAD 161015 

SJS020CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

ACTIVl1Y / COMMENTS: 

raffle Stops- 5 

olf cart violations- 0 

eathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - 0 

Citizen Assist-0 

12 :00 PM 2 :00 PM 

8 :45 AM 1:45 PM 

HOUR RATE $40.00 

2 

5 

7 

TcrTALBUE 

$8€>.00 
$200.00 

$280. H 

l I 1 

B ~ BY: ___________ _ 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. 

NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

#-lJ1 
Sa.vr: ~J JrvL 

32o·SJb-3ll5 

revised 2-10-2020 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 
TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

*"'MULTIPLE DAYS WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SATURDAY) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE SAME INVOICE** 
**PLEASE FIU tN ALL YEUCDW BCDXES** 

*"'INVOICES ARE IUE EACH MftNDAY BY 1AM - SEND Tft RMNELSCDN@SISS.ftRG** 
, ~ 

REMIT PAYMENT TO: p 
Robert M. Nelson 

St. Augustine, FL 3209 

*BLUE B8XES PAYRG 

DATE CAD# 

Saturday, August 29, 2020 SJS020CAD164487 

SJS020CAD 

SJS020CAD 

SJS020CAD 

SJS020CAD 

SJS020CAD 
SJS020CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: 
Traffic Stops - 7 

Golf cart violations - 0 

W eathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - 0 

Citizen Assist - 0 

9:30 AM 2:30 PM 

HOUR RATE $40.00 

5 

5 

TG>TALDUE 

$201.00 

2QQ,Q0 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK GATE/CONSTRUCTION 

SITES. NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 10:57 am, A 

ft \'3'? 
Sttvr;~) Srvt, -

Security patrol 

E IE"" 11
IT=~ 

AUG ~~•-~-J 
BY: ___ _ _ _ 

-:J2J) ~_) lll· ?4.S 

revised 2-10-2020 



Tue, Sep 1, 2020 
8:51:16AM 

Acct: 
Phone: 
E-Mail: 
Client: 

Ad Number: 
Start: 

Placement: 
Copy Line: 

Lines 
Depth 
Columns 

Price 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 

15653 
9049405850 
tviscarra@gmscfl.com 
SIX MILE CREEK COO C/0 GMS LLC 

Send Payments to: 
The St. Augustine Record 

One News Place 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 

Name: SIX MILE CREEK COO C/0 GMS LLC 
Address: 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

City: SAINT AUGUSTINE State: FL 

0003303963-01 Caller: SARAH SWEETING Paytype: BILL 
09/01/2020 Issues: 1 Stop: 09/01/2020 
SA Legals Rep: Melissa Rhinehart 

Zip: 32092 

NOTICE OF MEETINGS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT The Board of Supervisors of the Six 

58 
5.00 

1 

$89.75 

James Oliver 
OlstrktM~ 

0003303963 Sepwmber 1, 2020 



THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 
Affidavit of PubJication 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

•ACCT: 15653 
AD# 0003303963-0I 

PO# 

PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY UlROUGH SATURDAY 
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORlDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MELISSA 
RHINEHART who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. Augustine 
Record, a daily newspaper published at St. Augustine in St. Johns County, 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a NOTICE OF 
MEETING in the matter of BOS REG MTG /PUB SCHEDULE was 
published in said newspaper on 09/01/.2020. 

Affiant further says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper published at 
St. Augustine, in St Johns County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
heretofore has been continuously published in said St. Johns County, Florida 
each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in 
the City of St. Augustine, in said St Johns County, Florida for a period of one 
year preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and 
affianHurtber says ~he h~she has·neitlier paid nor promised··any person, firm· 
or corporation any discount, rebate, commission, or refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 

fi.l physical presence or 
[ 'J online notarization 

this_ day <SEP O 1 2020 

tfc;/;f!L_L; 
by ___________ who is personally known to 
me or who has produced as identification 

(Sig/a ture ofNota 

NOTICB OFllll!BTINGS 
SIXMD.EClUIEK 

COMMUNl'lYDEVELOPMBNT 
DlSl'lUCl' 

'lbe Board of Supervlson of the Six Mile 
Crecli. Com~ Devel~eat Dis
trict wlU hold !Iii regularly ,chedaled 
publk: meetings tor Flam\ Yeu 2021 
at lllO a Benol•••uioe 
Wi>r&l Ra ts00Sowla 
./4ot!J ... , Jllorldtz 

:!~.. ~~~ 
Octobet 21, 21Y.l0 

December 16, 2020 
Fob~ 17, 2021 

Apri12l,2021 
Jtme 9, 2®1 ~Dd Wedoesday) 

AlllUlt18,2Gal 

The meetfags are open to 1he imbllc and 
will be eonducwd in aocorcfanoe with 
lhe )ll'O\iilons oi Florida Law £at Com
mw1ilf Devdwment Dbtricl.l. A c,opy 
of' the agenda !or the mm(nga may be 
obtained Crom the Dlslriel Manager, 
•?-11 West Town Place, 8ul1e n,, SI. Au
gwtlne, Plorida 32092 (lllld phone 
(90+) ~O). 'Ibo meetlnp !,WI)' 
be continued to a claM, Ume, and pl
to be specified ou the ...,.,n1 al the 
meetln~ There may be ~°"• 
when one or more Supervls<Bs will par
tlclpale by teleplu,ne. 

Any pelSOd ~•hfng spooial .....,mmo
clatli>ns at the meetings betause of a 

t~COl\~~~rl~ 
(90+) 94CM860 at leaat two calendu 
clays prior to tbe mee!fng. lf you are 

r:~~ ~r J:~::: 
955-8710, for aid In ,:ontacllng 1he Dls
trlc1 Offite. 

Each pel'I'.!" who cleclclcs to ap~ any 
action taken at the meetings Ii adriaeil 
that P?n will need a record of the 
proceedings and that ec:ordlnsl)-, the 
JW>non may need to ensure that a ..,,rl,a
tim record" of Uk, -oroceediJiD Is IJl8de, 
incl11dlru! lhe testlmll!lY ud l!Yidenee 
upon wliJd, S1ICh appeal ls t11 be based. 

James Oliver 
Dl$lrld Manager 

00113803963 Sepwrnbor 1, 2020 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 
Phone (904) 209-2700 

Fax (904) 209-2718 
Toll Free (877) 837-2311 

PO Drawer 3006 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Account Number: 
556887-132900 

Service Address: 
805 TRAILMARK DR 

Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days In BIiiing Cycle: 31 
Deposit Amount: $ 0.00 
Deposit Date: 
Geo Code: WGV 

Meter Number: 77848570 
Present Read Date: 08/19/2020 
Previous Read Date: 07/19/2020 
Current Reading: 
Previous Reading: 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 

523219 
519285 

39.34 

Statement Date 
08/19/2020 

Current Charges Due Date 
09/18/2020 

Current Month Activity 

Services Dates Service Description Units Amount 

7/19/20 
8/3/20 

Consumption Fees 

Consumption Fees 

~24 
'31o S3b~'1~, 
Avj<-8 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You -710.81 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
Base Rate 
0 - 40,000 Gallons 

Water Total 

Wastewater Rates 
Base Rate 
0 + Sewer Gallons 

Wastewater Total 

Past Due Balance 
Current Charges 

103.84 1.00 
3.29 39.34 

39.34 

121.92 1.00 
5.75 39.34 

39.34 

Amount Now Due / Credits 

RECEIVED 

AUG 2 42020 

BY: ____ _ 

103.84 
129.43 

121.92 
226.21 

7041 

Total 

710.81 

0.00 

233.27 

348.13 

0.00 
581.40 
581.40 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2019, SJCUD detected 14 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/W aterReport/NorthW est. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www. sjcutility. us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

---- _____ .,, __ .,,_,.._,.._,.. ____ ,.. _________________________________________________________________________________ ··- ' ·---------- ---------- ----·-· .... - ................ ··---- --- -·-- ·-- -- .. - - . . ...... - __ - - - - - - - ·---- ---- - -_-.-- - -.- - - -· - ,- - .... ·---·· ·····--······-· .. , ..... ----- ---- ······-········----------- ---· 

Please detach and return with your payment. FL29539F 

ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

**********AUTO**MIXED MDC 300 

•II I 1111111111 • 11 • t 1111 I I I I Ii 111 t • I 111111111 t 111 I 11 t 11 • 1111111 I I 1 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 3451 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Account Number I Date Due 
556887-132900 I 09/18/2020 

Past Due Current Amount After Due 
Amount Charoes/Credits Now Due Date Pav 

0.00 581.40 581.40 590.12 
Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

111111111111111111111111!111111111111111111 

Please write your account number on your check and remit to: I 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

• 11 ••I 11111 • 111111 • • • 1111I 11 I I I 11h 11111 I• I 111111 • 111111111 •I• I I I 

□□□□□□ 1329 □□□□□□□ 0556887 □□□□□ 005814 □ 0 □□ 000 □ 59012 
D Check for Address Change 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 
Phone(904)209-2700 

Fax(904)209-2718 
Toll Free (877) 837-2311 

PO Drawer 3006 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDI\IISION 

Account Number: 
556887-135864 
Service Address: 
295 BACK CREEK DR 

Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days in BIiiing Cycle: 
Deposit Amount : $ 
Deposit Date: 
Geo Code: 

Meter Number: 
Present Read Date: 
Previous Read Date: 
Current Reading: 
Previous Reading: 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 

31 
0.00 

WGV 
86147234 

08/19/2020 
07/19/2020 

24 
22 

0.02 

7043 

Statement Date Current Charges Due Date 

08/19/2020 09/18/2020 

Current Month Activity 

Services Dates Service Description Units Amount Total 

7/19/20 
8/3/20 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You 

32.48 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
32.45 

3.29 
1.00 
0.02 

-32.48 
0.00 

32.45 
0.07 

Base Rate 
Consumption Fees O - 13,000 Gallons 

Water Total 0.02 32.52 

0.00 Past Due Balance 
Current Charges 32.52 
Amount Now Due / Credits 32.52 

RECEIVED 

AUG 2 4 2020 

BY: _ _ ___ _ 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2019, SJCUD detected 14 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/WaterReport/NorthWest. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www.sjcutility.us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

Please detach and return with your payment. FL29539F 

Account Number I Date Due 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 Past Due 

556887-135864 
Current 

Charaes/Credits 

I 09/18/2020 
Amount After Due 

Date Pav ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

111111111l1111l1111111111111111"1•111111111111111111l111111IIIII 
SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISltil-J 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 3451 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Amount NnwDue 
0.00 32.52 32.52 37.52 

Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

Please write your account number on your check and remit to : I 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

111111111 h I 11111 I I I I 11111 I 11III111111111111111111111111111111 • I 1 

aaaa □□ 13S864aaaaaas568870 □□□□□□ a32s2 □ 0 □□□□□□3752 

D Check for Address Change 



Bill To 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-16 7 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/oELM 
10301 Deerwood Park Blvd, Ste 3200 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Quantity Description 

~onthly Lake Service& 13 Waterways 

tt]~ 
~UJ10 
JU·SJt• ~hY 

Invoice 

Date Invoice# 

8/1/2020 3929B 

APPROVEII 
By Alex Boyer at 10:01 am, Aug 28, 2020 

Lake Contract V 
I i 
BY=----~ 

P.O. No. Terms Project 

Net30 

Rate Amount 

1,675.00 1,675.00 

Please note that our remittance address has changed. 
Our new remittance address is: 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-167 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Total $1,675.00 



W.B.MASON CO., INC. 
59C8nin1St 
Brockton, MA 02301 

Address Service Requested 
8B8-WB-MASON www.wbmason.com 

120061 AB 0.419 E0082X !0103 08498416919 S2 P7612423 0001:0001 

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT SIX Ml 
805 TRAILMARK DR 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092-7634 

Important Messages 

Invoice Number 
Customer Number 
Invoice Date 
Due Date 
Order Date 
Order Number 
Order Method 

Delivery Address 

(Page 1) 

PM 

212883404 
C2689219 

08/14/2020 
09/13/2020 
08/13/2020 

S106329262 
REPWEB 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mile 
CreekCOD 
805 TrailMark Drive 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

W.B. Mason Federal ID#: 04-2455641 

Sign up for Paperless Invoicing at wbmason.com/paperless. Your Registration Code: 5638323931 

Looking for an easier way to see and pay bills? 

Visit WWW.WBMASON.COM/ACCOUNTSTATEMENT.aspx to access your account, go paperless, review 
invoices and account statements, and link your checking account or credit card to make fast secure 

payments. 

ITE:MNUMBER DESCRIPTION 

GMT0646 KCUP, DUNKIN, DECAF, 24/BX, SUM 
DXE5338CDPK CUP,HOT,60Z,PERFECTOUCH,COFFEE HAZE,50/PK 
AVE72311 FILE,QCK,NONSTK, 12X9X15,ClR 
UNV20630 PAD lGL RULO PERF L TR WE 120-360\ 

QTY U/M UNIT PRICE 

1 BX 11.99 
1 PK 4.19 
8 PK 4.77 
1 DZ 8.99 

SUBTOTAL; 
TAX & BOTTLE DEPOSITS TOTAL: 

ORDER TOTAL: 
Total Due: 

To ensure proper credit, please detach and return below portion with your payment 

W.B. MASON CO., INC. 
59 Centre St w Brockton, MA 02301 
Address Service Requested 
888-WB-MASON www.wbmason.com 

Remittance Section 
Customer Number 
Invoice Number 
Invoice Date 
Terms 
Total Due 

EXT PRICE 

11.99 
4.19 

38.16 
8.99 

63.33 
3.33 

66.66 
66.66 

C2689219 
212883404 
08/14/2020 

Net30 
66.66 

Amount Enclosed $ ________ _ 

)001:0001 

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT SIX Ml 
805 TRAILMARK DR . 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092-7634 

W.B. MASON CO., INC. 
PO BOX 981101 
BOSTON, MA 02298-1101 

(26892192128834042128834 □ 4 □□□□□□□□66663 



~ 

R AT&T 
':._? 

SIX MILE CREEK 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Page: 1 of3 

Issue Date: Aug 28, 2020 

Account Number: 2925659935<.rlO 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
att.com/paperless 

Total due 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today. $25.30 
Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with my AT&T. Go to 
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up. Please pay by: 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Payment, Aug 24 - Thank you! 

Remaining balance 

Service summary 

[], Account charges 

t:) TV 

~ Internet 

Total services 

Total due 
Please pay by Sep 21, 2020 

Page2 

Page2 

Page2 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

$16.05 

-$16.05 

$0.00 

$9.25 
Last bill $0.00, Difference +$9.25 

$0.00 
Last bill $0.00 

$16.05 
Last bill $16.05 

$25.30 

$25.30 

Sep 21, 2020 

#'2it 
AlY\ll\;~ ~t.vnil-Si,p10 

310.S>9·41 

What's changed? 

< Late payment fee 

~~~~a: ,,_, 
BY: ________ .,"____________ ho..., 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

.D. att.com/pay J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post. 

SIX MILE CREEK 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FORAUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Please pay $25.30 by Sep 21, 2020 

Account number: 292565993 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

1 I 11 II 11111 •I I 11 11 I 111111111 I lhl 111,11111111111 l'I I I 1111111' 111 I 

410040560002925659932000000001605000000002530000009 



Service activity 

Q Account charges 

Activity since last bill 
1. Late Payment Fee 

Total for Account charges 

t::J TV - U-verse TV 

Monthly charges 
1. AT&T U-verse TV BV-Deluxe 

(AT&T Connected Communities) 

2. HD Technology Fee 
(AT&T Connected Communities) 

3. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

4. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

5. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired 5TB 

Total for TV - U-verse TV 

~ Internet 

Monthly charges 
1. Internet 25M / SM 

(Promotional Offer) 

2. Static IP 8 

Surcharges & fees 
3. Cost Assessment Charge 

Total for Internet 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Jul 29 - Aug 28 

Aug20 

Aug 29 - Sep 28 

Aug 29 - Sep 28 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Important information continues ... 

·pa1np,u.ps uaaq 
se4 Aedoinv W4l spa 1JaJ aJ!OAU! mo/4 JO auo a6ed 11iun iuaLUfi:ed 

,1LUqns oi anu1iuo::, -paJJa a)tel oi /4edoinv JOJ sap,<;:, 6u1mq z-L 
a)tel p1no:, iuaLUI/OJua JnOA ·mq ALU uo pais11 Jaqwnu aJe:i Jawoisn:i 

a4i 6ut11e:i ,<;q Jo wo:i·iie ·MMM :ie .L'8.LV 6ut¼tiou ,{q uo1+ezpo1.nne 
1a:iue:i ue:i 1 ·iuno:i:ie )!Ueq ,{w WOJJ /4auow 6u1pnpap /411e:i1u0Jpa1a 

,<;q A14lUOlU ll!Q AlU /4ed Ol .L '8.L \I azpo1.nne I 'AedO+nv UJ IIOJUa I ,II 

Page: 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

$9.25 < One-time charge 

$9.25 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$15.00 

$1.05 

$16.05 

Electronic check conversion 

2 of3 
Aug 28, 2020 

292565993 

Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received . If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 
present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 
be destroyed once processed . If your check Is returned unpaid you agree to 

7862.011.143201.01 .02.0000000 NNNNNNNY 009581.009581 

889B-(LL1>£ ld an010 lNIVS 
3 llNn 3/\V Nllll'IVH 801>( 

378VAVd SlNnooov 
:>l33t!O 3711/11 XIS 

•II,.,,' 11 '1,., ,, 11, 1• 11111 • 1• 11111111 II h I I I I• I., 1 I It 1 ., • 11111 t 1 

OS 6(t,'0 av ( (02:£1>(. (i::9' ~ ( 'l99L 

-



I 

I 

... 
R AT&T 
~ 

... Important information continued 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may. be presented electronically. If you want to 
save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay at att.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

U-verse closed-captioning issues 
For closed-captioning issues, you may contact us immediately at 
ClosedCaptioning@att.com or 800.288.2020 or in writing at AT&T Closed 
Captioning, ATTN: Mr. Timmermans, Associate Director, 1010 Pine Street, 11E
X-04, St. Louis, MO 63101. 

Legal notification 
For information on upcoming U-verse TV programming changes 
please consult the Legal Notices published in USA Today on the 
first and third Tuesday of each month or our website att.com/U
verseprogrammingchanges. 

AT&T U-verse5
M TV, AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 

Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

Printed on Recyclable Paper 

Page: 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

3 of 3 
Aug 28, 2020 

292565993 

-



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 
TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

**MULTIPLE DAYS WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SATURDAY) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE SAME INVOICE** 
**PLEASE FILL IN ALL YELLOW 1MtXES0 

**INV@ICES ARE DUE EACH MONDAY BY BAM - SEN9 TO RMNEI.SE)N@SJSO.@RG** 
REMIT PAYMENT TO: 

AA WM 

Adam Eminisor 

32 Mosaic Park Avenue 

Saint Augustine, FL, 32092 
' 

$160.00 
*BLUE BGXES PAYRCI 

DATE CA9# TGTALOUE 

Sunday, September 6, 2020 SJSO20CAD171112 6:00 PM 10:00 PM 4 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 
SJSO19CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 4 
I conducted traffic enforcement throughout the neighborhood. Multiple warnings were written for multiple 

t raffic violations. I handed out a fold cart safety brochure. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 9:28 a 

Security patrol 

~~~~7,~~n 
lil u 
BY--· - --- - -

revised 2-10-2020 

$160.00 

160.00 



• FPL. I 27 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 8 1302 3 

6224 1302353241202436486000000 

--0008 073750 SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

,I 111·111111h •11 I I I 1h •11 • • 11· 1 I· 1h111• I II I 1111111111 • 111 I 11 • 11 
FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number : _::'f.i)ti:il:'anfflitnf .®: (i~:.: .. : :_:_ .'tile.V(iilia .. ~sJm~fb. :::. : :_ . .'Ah'ittint:'el'ltlt®d:,_-:·, 

35324-12024 $68.46 Sep 23 2020 $ 

Your electric statement 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 596 TRAILMARK DR# PUMP 

Account number: 35324-12024 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill 

Additional 
activity 
(+or-) 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
New 

charges 
(+) 

· ::: 'ti::it~I: : 
:~fuq;!;!1'it,: 

--1 

Payments 
(-) 

88.90 88.90 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KJ82919 

Current reading 
Previous reading 
kWh used 

Energy usage 

kWh this month 
Service days 
kWh per day 

Last 
Year 
820 
33 
24 

42803 
- 42161 

642 

This 
Year 
642 
29 
22 

'"'The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $14.23 

( $!:.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

FPL. 

$41.90 

·:1 
(=) ¥:~r.mrf ·:: 

.. ·.·.· ... d .. .: .... -........... : .. . 

0.00 0.00 68.46 $68.46 Sep 23 2020 I 

Enroll now in FPL Budget Billing when you pay 
$62.24 by your due date instead of 

$68.46. Make your bills easier to manage with 
more predictable payments. Learn more at FPL.com/BB 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

66.75"" 
1.71 

88.90 
88.90CR 

$0.00 

$68.46 

Total amount you owe $68.46 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply . 

RECEIVED 

SEP 8 2020 

BY: _____ _ 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0002 073750 
I 27 4904 13025206878125054650□ 0000 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 8 1302 0 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILllY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number :}rntalJtm~o:rif"• nit~:.·,:.:.·, :·.:.·_:Ni!ilil'tchar:'. e,ifdm!::u:·: ·:· ·: :·:·. Air:ijjut'it::enia:foii.ed' :.:.:: 

52068-78125 $56.45 Sep 23 2020 

Your electric statement Account number: 52068-78125 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 801 TRAILMARK DR# AMENITY 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill 

68.46 

Payments 
(-) 

68.46 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KL87133 

Current reading 21763 
Previous reading - 21255 
kWh used 508 

Energy usage 

kWh this month 
Service days 
kWh per day 

Last 
Year 
603 
33 
18 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

This 
Year 
508 

29 
17 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $11.26 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

• 

$33.16 

Additional 
activity 
(+or-) 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

New 
charges 

(+J 

0.00 0.00 56.45 $56.45 Sep 23 2020 

Enroll now in FPL Budget Billing when you pay 
$49.04 by your due date instead of 

$56.45. Make your bills easier to manage with 
more predictable payments. Learn more at FPL.com/BB 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

55_04 ..... 

1.41 

68.46 
68.46CR 

$0.00 

Total new char -e-s ------ -------------~ $5_6_.4_5_ 

Total amount you owe $56.45 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

R,ECEIVE0 

SEP 8 2·020 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 

FPL. __________________ .;;:o;.:,an:::lin:.:;e:a.=at: www.FPL.com 



0003 073750 
I 27 1302623635026763812820000 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

A A 8 1302 6 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number :":':f~atam®nt: · .o:o.,:ow~t . ·: ,:· .:~ :,i:itf ... ijsjru~fb. //: ,_-_-_:Aooi:i~rifel'itlP$®'·. . 

62363-50267 $2,821.83 Sep 23 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 62363-50267 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 000 PACETTI RD 

Statement date: 
Next bill date: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill 

2,821 .83 

Total kWh used 

Energy usage 

kWh this month 
Service days 
kWh per day 

Payments 
(-) 

2,821.83 CR 

1885 

Last This 
Year Year 

5658 
33 

171 

1885 
29 
65 

**The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 
Non-fuel energy charge: 

$0.031530 per kWh 
Fuel charge : $0.021490 per kWh 

G 
F=PL. 

.··· · · · · ·· · · ··· · · ···· .· · ·: ············•,•:-:···· .·· ·· ······· 

Additional 
activity 
(+ or-) 

0.00 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New 
charges 

(+) 

2,821.83 

- t:pfm 
::, :~ffi®.¢' 

: .. :: ::4f4t~'.:::: 
$2,821.83 

New charges (Rate: SL-1 STREET LIGHTING SERVICE) 

Electric service amount 2,819.2~ 
Gross receipts tax 2.57 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

Sep 23 2020 

2,821.83 
2,821.83CR 

$0.00 

$2,821.83 

$2,821.83 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

- ch·arges and energy usage are based on the facilities contracted . Facility, 
energy and fuel costs are available upon request. 

RECEIVE :.) 

SEP 8 ZGt.0 

BY: ___ _ _ 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL .com 



0004 073750 

1302 000276 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Detail of Rate Schedule Charges for 
Street Lights 

Account Number: 62363-50267 
Service From: 08-04-2020 

Service To: 09-02-2020 
Service Days: 29 

KWH/Day: 65 

Service Address: 000 PACETTI RD, SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

+ 

COMPONENT OWNER/ RATE/ 
CODE WATTS LUM ENS MAINT QUANTITY UNIT KWH USED AMOUNT 

C861204 39 3292 F 145 1,885 
Energy .400000 58.00 
Non-energy 

Fixtures 6.370000 923.65 
Maintenance 1.290000 187.05 

PMF0001 145 
Non-energy 

Fixtures 8.480000 1,229.60 

UCNP 9,345 
Non-energy 

Maintenance .040530 378.75 

Energy sub total 58.00 
Non-energy sub total 2,719.05 

Sub total 1,885 2,777.05 

Energy conservation cost recovery .70 

Capacity payment recovery charge .34 
Environmental cost recovery charge .66 

Fuel charge 40.51 
Electric service amount 2,819.26 

2.57 Gross receipts tax 

RECEI VED 

• F=PL. 

SEP Bl 020 

BY: 

Total 1,885 2,821.83 

• F - FPL OWNS & MAINTAINS E - CUSTOMER OWNS & MAINTAINS R - CUSTOMER OWNS. FPL RELAMPS 
H - FPL OWNS & MAINTAINS FIXTURE, CUST OWNS OTHER 

Print Date: Se,ptember 02, 2020 
Page 1 



j 

l 

I 27 1302651071816376821000000 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 8 1302 7 II 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

0002 062467 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

111111·1h·1l·11lh1·llllllh·111·111111·lll111·111rH··11lll·I 
FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILllV 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number ,'.':'fijtatam~f: u.u,:~w.lii':':·. ,·. ',:,,_]~e.W,'mtat· iii$.':dW: ti :;:·.-:: ': :" :Afuo.®b:ini:ili:i:setf.':·:: 

65107-18163 $12.86 Sep 24 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 65107-18163 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 975 TRAILMARK DR# IRR 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

18.78 18.78 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KJ68816 

Current reading 12204 
Previous reading - 12182 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 158 
Service days 33 
kWh per day 4 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

22 

This 
Year 

22 
29 

1 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $0.49 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: $1.43 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

• F=PL. 

Additional 
activity 
(+or-) 

0.00 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

New 
charges 

(+) 

12.86 $12.86 I Sep 24 2020 

Amount of your last bill 18.78 
Payment received - Thank you 18.78CR 
Balance before new charg-es ________________ $0.00 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 
Total new char e_s _________ ___ _ 

Total amount you owe 

12.54-
0.32 

$12.86 

$12.86 

- Payment received after November 25, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

OECE~VE .~ 
11 SEP O 8 2020 u 
BY: ____ _ _ 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0005 073750 
I 27 1302688817602864993100000 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 8 1302 6 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number :·:,:f<itan,nw.unt::·.-_w.:~:_· ·:·:·: : ._._Jile'lif::Clf. ·,·. e.s:'wif .. : :_·_:_:: :_:_·_:Ar:oour.rtiil:iw.l:olS~tf.".· 

68881-76028 $139.94 Sep 23 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 68881-76028 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 990 TRAILMARK DR# PUMP 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

130.33 130.33 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KJ43593 

Current reading 41198 
Previous rea_di_n-=-g _ ____ - _3_97_5_9 
kWh used 1439 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 945 
Service days 33 
kWh per day 28 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

This 
Year 
1439 

29 
49 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $31.89 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

l=PL. 

$93.93 

Balance 
Additional before 

activity 
(+ or-) 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 0.00 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New 
char~ts 

(+ 

139.94 

:: , ,._. -t:Pt~1> ·:·,:: I . . . ,~il ·_: ,,· -.-.. · .. 
. :~@>Jifit./ :' : . . · ,~Mf:9-1:l;t . 
: ·· Y:~rtr~: . : · _ · ... ?lUf~Y-,°. -: · · 
........•.... ·:~......... . :~ .. · ........ . 

$139.94 Sep 23 2020 

130.33 
130.33CR 

$0.00 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

136.44♦* 

3.50 

$139.94 

$139.94 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

RECEIVED 

BY: 

SEP 8 2020 

-- ----

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



G 
FPL. 0006 073750 

I 27 1302882138148323951 □□□□□□ 

Please request changes on the back . 
Notes on the front will not be detected . 

L 8 1302 2 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number : . ::rotaf.'amouaL ·Qu: !Wi.e:::: _-. :':. _:H~\i!f . . ai' .. ·: jf~: .·. / .. : : : :·: A:'iril:)W!:ltenc!~ectt _-: 

88213-81483 $15.93 Sep 23 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 88213-81483 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

16.44 16.44 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KJ39626 

Current reading 00573 
Previous reading - 00517 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 20 
Service days 33 
kWh per day 0 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

56 

This 
Year 

56 
29 

1 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $1.24 

( $0.022150 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: $3.67 

( $0.055270 per kWh) 

G 
FPL. 

······ ···.·············· ·····••.•.•············ ············· 

Additional 
activity 
(+or-) 

0.00 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New 
charges 

(+J 

15.93 $15.93 Sep 23 2020 

16.44 
16.44CR 

$0.00 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

15.53 .... 

0.40 

$15.93 

$15.93 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply . 

RECEIVED 

SEP 8 ?O~O 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0002 062467 
I 27 1303932954405123696000000 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 8 1303 2 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number :.:'ftitaUun®nt:l'm::fflili::::_-:·:: ,··_-: .. ··:::<: .· :··~if®Etb···:_-·_: 0:':·:An'ltiurit:eooJtisi:id:·.·_-:: 

93295-44051 $69.63 Sep 24 2020 $ 
- ~ - - - - - - -

Your electric statement Account number: 93295-44051 
For: Aug 05 2020 to Sep 03 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 404 BLOOMFIELD WAY #PUMP 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 03 2020 
Oct 05 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

128.01 128.01 

Meter reading - Meter ACD0232 

current reading 
Previous reading 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 407 
Service days 33 
kWh per day 12 

CR 

16531 
- 15876 

655 

This 
Year 

655 
29 
23 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $14.51 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

• FPL. 

$42.76 

•:tQi~J:: 
··· ·· · · · · · ··-· · ···.·-···· · ·-··· · ••,•·-::·•:-··· · · 

·'l .:~~ Balance 
Additional before 

activity 
(+or-) 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 0.00 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New 
char~es 

(+ 

69.63 

:afuciunt::· 

YtJf~: 
................... 

$69.63 

·W.1'~w-. 
Sep 24 2020 

128.01 
128.01 CR 

$0.00 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 
Total new char_g_e_s __ __________ _ 

Total amount you owe 

67.89** 
1.74 

$69.63 

$69.63 

- Payment received after November 25, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply . 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0007 073750 
I 27 130296815954367289200□□□□ 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 8 1302 7 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

96815-95436 $29.82 Sep 23 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 96815-95436 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your Additional 
last bill Payments activity 

(-) (+or-) 

33.05 33.05 CR 0.00 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

New 
charges 

(+) 

29.82 

. -%tal 
:-.: ·. ~m®.6.f . 
: -:i:~f i~r~, -· 

$29.82 Sep 23 2020 ~-----~---- -~ ______ .__ _____ _._ _____ ~-------'- --
Meter reading - Meter ACD4547 

Current reading 10326 
Previous reading - 10115 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 256 
Service days 33 
kWh per day 8 

'"'The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

211 

This 
Year 

211 
29 

7 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $4.68 

( $0 .0221.$0 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0 .065270 per kWh) 

G 
FPL. 

$13.77 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

29.or .. 
0.75 

33.05 
33.0SCR 

$0.00 

Total new char ges'-------------------- ~$"'2""9.:.c.8=-2-

Total amount you owe $29.82 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

RECEIVEu 

SEP 8 2020 

BY: _ _ _ 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0008 073750 
I 27 13 □ 2969 □4981278812 □ 11 □□□□ 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected . 

L 8 1302 8 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILllY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number ::.=1:~titf:attlijUiit: ··ou:~:.:::: :·_\:Ni!ili.(cbai". e$,:~:b: .= :_:,-, :: .. :.AooPl:ltit.:Mci®.ei:f' .. : 

96904-98127 $1, 102.18 Sep 23 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 96904-98127 
For: Aug 04 2020 to Sep 02 2020 (29 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 805 TRAILMARK DR# AMENITY 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Sep 02 2020 
Oct 02 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

1,220.92 1,220.92 CR 

Meler reading - Meter KU32264 

Current reading 
Previous reading 
kWh constant 
kWh used 

Demand reading 
kW constant 
Demand kW 

Energy usage 

kWh this month 
Service days 
kWh per day 

Last 
Year 

17520 
33 

530 

08400 
- 08157 
x 60 

14580 

0.56 
x 60.00 

34 

This 
Year 

14580 
29 

502 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $26.50 
Fuel : $323.09 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 

Non-fuel: 
( $0.023610 per kWh) 

Demand: 
( $11.20 per kW) 

G 
l=PL. 

$344.24 

$380.80 

Balance 
Additional before New 

activity 
(+or-) 

new charges 
(=) 

char1es 
(+ 

0.00 0.00 1,102.18 $1,102.18 I Sep 23 2~ 

Amount of your last bill 1,220.92 
Payment received - Thank you 1,220.92 CR 
Balance before new charge-s----------------~ $0- .-00-

New charges (Rate: GSD-1 GENERAL SERVICE DEMAND) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

1,074.63 .... 
27.55 

$1,1~ 

$1,102.18 

- Payment received after November 24, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

~p ~2020 

~=-=-==---·--

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 . 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at www.FPLcom 



-~ T EC C> . 
~. PEOPLES GAS 

.. AN EMERA COMPANY 

WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 

801 TRAILMARK DR - fh>J10 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Your Account Summary 
Previous Amount Due 

Payment(s) Received Since Last Statement 

Current Month's Charges 

Total Amount Due 

$28.17 

-$28.17 

$27.59 

$27.59 

~~~~R~~ 
BY: _____ _ 

Amount not paid by due date may be assessed a late payment charge and an additional deposit. 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 
peoplesgas.com j f "# 'P 8• I in 

Statement Date: 09/04/2020 
Account: 211014091725f'.tuj2.() 

Current month's charges: $27.59 
Total amount due: $27.59 
Payment Due By : 09/25/2020 

Go paperless! 
Goodbye clutter. Hello convenience. 

There•s never been 
a better time to 
go paperless. 

It's touch-free and 
good for the environment. 

______ ) 

Learn more and sign up> peoplesqas,com/paperless 

To ensure prompt credit, please return stub portion of this bill with your payment. Make checks payable to TECO. 

TE C C> . 
~. PEOPLES GAS 

.. AN EMERA COMPANY 

WAYS TO PAY YOUR BILL 

•o• • 01 
mail phone online pay agent 

See reverse side for more information 

00001877 01 AB 0.41 34771 FTEC0109052000445810 00000 05 01000000 019 05 30088 002 

11111111• 1111111 • 1· • 111· 1 ·1111111 • • 111• 111111111· 11111111 I· 11 r11 
WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 
1408 HAMLIN AVE, UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD, FL 34771-8588 

Account:211014091725 

Current month's charges: $27.59 
Total amount due: $27 59 
Payment Due By: 09/25/2020 

Amount Enclosed $. ______ _ 

600000294150 

MAIL PAYMENT TO: 
TECO 
P.O. BOX31318 
TAMPA, FL 33631-3318 

6000002941502110140917250000000027599 Page 1 of 3 



}J,?]' T EC C>. 
~ PEOPLES GAS 
., AN EMERA COMPANY 

Contact Information 
Residential Customer Care 
813-223-0B00 (Tampa) 
863·-299-0800 (Lakeland) 
352-622-0111 (Ocala) 
954-453-0777 (Broward) 
305-940-0139 (Miami) 
727-826-3333 (St Petersburg) 
407-425-4662 (Orlando) 
904-739-1211 (Jacksonville) 
877-832-6747 (All other counties) 

Commercial Customer Care 

866-B32-6249 

Mail Payments to 
TECO 

Hearing Impaired/TTY 
7'11 

P.O. Box 31318 
Tampa, FL 33631-3318 

Natural Gas Outage 
877-832-67 4 7 

All Other Correspondence 
F'eop!es Gas 
P.O. Box 111 

Natural Gas Energy 
Conservation Rebates 
877-K~2-6747 

Tampa, FL 33601-0111 

Understanding Your Natural Gas Charges 
BTU - British thermal unit - a unit of heat measurement. 
Budget Billing - Optional plan takes the highs and lows oul oi 
monthly natural gas tiills. This "leveling'' billing plan averages your iast 
12 monthly billing periods so you can pay about the 1::arne amount for 
your se!Vice eacl1 rnonH1. 

Buried Piping Notification - FetJeral regulations l8quire that Peoples 
Gas notify our customers who own buried piping of tt1e following: 1 l 
When excavating ne,1r buried g,:is piping. the piping should be 
located in advance: 2) The qa:,; supplier does not own or maintain the 
customer's buried piping: 3) Buriecl piping that is not 1m1intained rnay 
be subject to corro';ion and/or leakage. Buried piping should be 
inspected periodically t:lnd any unsaffl conditions rep;;iimd. Licenseid 
plumbr,rs, heating and air condi1ioning contractors, or Peoples Gas 
can conrluct im;pections. 

Conversion Factor•· Thi;s factor is used to ac1just for Viilriatiom; from 
standard delivery pressure and standard delivery tempmature where 
;:ipplicable. 

Customer Charge - A fixed monthly amount to cover ttie cost oi' 
providing gas servb,, This charge' is billed monthly regardless if any 
gas is used. 

Distribution Charge•~ Covers the Gosts of moving gas from its source 
to your premise, other than the cost of gas itself. 

Estimated - If Peopk,s Gas was unable to read your gas metf,I", 
"ESTIMATED" will appear. Your Qi'.lS use has bt'len estimated based on 
previous usage. The meter is scheduled to be read next month, amj 
any difference between the estimate and nctual use will be adjusuid 
l'lCCOJ"din~Jiy. 
Florida Gross Receipts Tax-· A tax is imposed on gross ruceipts 
from utility services that are lielivere1J to retail customers in Flc;rida, in 
accordance with Chapter 203 of the Florida Statutes. Th0 tax is levieci 
on utility companies, which collect the tax from all customers. unless 
exempt, and remit to the stat0. 

Florida State Tax - A privile~)O tax imposed on every person wl"10 
engages in the business of selling or renting tangible personal 
property at retail in the state, in accordance with Chapter 21 :~ of the 
Florida statutes. 

For more information about your bill, please visit peoplesgas.com. 

Your payment options are: 

Franchise Fee - A fee levied by a municipality for the r'ight to utilize 
public property for the purpose of providing gas service. Like wxes, 
the fee is collect1,d by Peoples Gas and is paid to the municipality. 
Late Payment Charge -- The late payment c;harge is 1,f_j% oi the 
past due amount. 

Main Extension Charge - A fl;:it monthly fee to recover U1e cost of 
extending mains to a particular area when the cost exceeds the 
maximum allowable construction cost. 
Measured Volume - Your natur:.:il gas usage in CCF (one hundreci 
cubic feet) or MCF (one tho;;s::md cubic feet). These are the 
$landcJrd units of gas rneasurement. 
Municipal Public Service Tax-· In addition to the Franchise Fee, 
many municipalities levy a \ax on the gas you use. It is collected by 
Peoples Gas and paid to the niunicip:.:ility. 

PGA Charge - Purchased Gas t,djustnmnt - the cost of gas 
purchased for you by Peoples G;~s and delivered to your premises. 

Rate Schedule - The amount (rate) you pay depends on your 
customer category. The cost of providin9 service varies with tt1e 
customer group. 
Share - A program co-sponsored by Peoples Gas and tt1e 
Salvation Arrny where customers can help pay the energy bills of 
customers in need. A one-time contribution cen be made, or your 
monthly eleded contribution will appear on your bill. Your 
contribution is tax deductible and is matched by Peoples Gas. 

Swing Charge - Covers the costs that are incurred by Peoples Gas 
to balance the difference between a customer's actual daily usage 
ancl tt1e gas delivered by your r,1as supplier (pool manager). 
Therm .. A unit of heat equal to one huncired thousarid (100,000) 
BTUs. 
Total Amount Due-· This month's charges will be past due <1fter 
the date shown. THIS DATE: DOES NOT EXTEND THE DATE ON 
ANY PREVIOUS BALANCE:. It is important that you pay your bill 
before this date in order to avoid interruption of service. 

• Schedu!e free one-time or recurring payments at peoplesgas.com usin!) a checkino or savings account. 
• M@il your payment in tho enclosed envelope. Please allow sufficient tirne for delive1y. 
• Pay in person at a local paymen1 agent. For., listing of authorized payment agents, visit peoplesgas.com or c,111 Customer Care at the 

number listfld abcvo. 
• Pay by credit or cJebi! cord using KUBRA EZ-PAY at peoplesgas.com or call 866-689-6469. 

(A convenienee f1:10 will be charged to your bank account or crerJit carc'L) 

When making your ptiyment, please have your bill or account number available. 

Please note: If you choc,se to pay your bill at a locntion n~it listeo on our wobsit.1 or provided by Peoples Gas, you are paying someone who 
not authorized to act as a payment agent of Peoples Gas. You b(:Jar the risk that this unauthorized party will relay the payment to Peoples Gas 
and do so in a tirnely fashion. Peoplo~ Gas is not responsible for payments made to unauthorized agents, including their failure to deliver or 
tirnely deliver the payment to us. Such failures may result in late payment charges to your account or i:;ervice disconnection. 

Por favor, visite peoplesgas.com par;~ ver est,:l inforrn.Ki6n en fJspaiiol. 
Page2 of 3 



•-

~ 
~ 

T ECC>. 
~. PECJPLES GAS 

.. AN EMERA COMPANY 

Account: 211014091725 
Statement Date: 09/04/2020 
Current month's charges due 09/25/2020 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 

If W IJ>S•• in 

Details of Current Month's Charges - Service from - 08/05/2020 to 09/02/2020 

Service for: 801 TRAILMARK DR, ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Meter 
Number 

Current 
Reading 

Previous 
Reading = Measured 

Volume 

Rate Schedule: Small General Service - Transportation 

x BTU x Conversion = Billing 
Period 

SHD95922 

Read Date 

09/02/2020 261 254 7CCF 1.048 1.0000 

Total Used 

7.3 Therms 29 Days 

Customer Charge 

Distribution Charge 

$23.76 

$3.35 

$0.28 

$0.20 

Peoples Gas Usage History 

Swing Service Charge 

Florida Gross Receipts Tax 

Natural Gas Service Cost 

7.3 THMS @ $0.45856 

7.3 THMS @ $0.03880 
Therms Per Day 

sE• (Average) 2020 ___ 0,3 

$27.59 
AUG - 0.2 

JUL 0.3 

JUN - 0.1 

Total Current Month's Charges $27 ,59 MAY 0.0 
A•R - 0.2 
MAR 

FEB 0.4 
JAN 

oec---- o.4 

Important Messages 

Scam Warning 

NOV- 0.2 
ocr - 0.1 
SE• 0.0 
2019 

Peoples Gas will never call and ask for credit card or debit card numbers. Be wary of anyone demanding payment over the phone and 
never give credit or debit card information over the phone. As Peoples Gas resumes normal billing practices, customers with a past
due bill may receive a call from us as a reminder to make payment on your bill. If you're facing a hardship due to COVID-19, we urge 
you to visit peoplesgas.com/updates for help to avoid disconnection for non-payment. If you have questions, please call Peoples Gas at 
888-223-0800 (residential) or 866-832-6249 (business) weekdays from 7:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Need something? Here's where to go for answers 
We want to make doing business with us as easy as possible for you. If you haven't done so already, please visit tecoaccount.com to 
register for your on line account access. You can manage your account, enroll in programs, view and pay your bill and more, all from the 
device of your choice. For details about natural gas safety, solutions, programs and rebates, please visit peoplesgas.com. Should you 
think of anything else you'd like to ask us, please contact us by calling 877-832-6747. We're here for you. 

0.5 

Page 3 of 3 

0.8 



--· SIX MILE CREEK CDD Page: 1 of2 

AT&T 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Issue Date: Aug 19, 2020 

Account Number : 156327439.StnUl 
I 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
att.com/paperless 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today. 

Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with my AT&T. Go to 
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up. 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Payment, Aug 10 - Thank you! 

Remaining balance 

Service summary 

S Internet 

Phone 

Total services 

Total due 
Please pay by Sep 26, 2020 

Pagez 

Page2 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

J:l att.com/pay 

$121.29 

-$121.29 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$112.04 

$112.04 

$112.04 

J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

~ 
Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post. 

Total due 

$112.04 
Please pay by: 
Sep 26, 2020 

RECEIVED 

SEP 142020 

BY: ------
,, 

R AT&T SIX MILE CREEK CDD Please pay $112.04 by Sep 26, 2020 

'-:..? 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FOR AUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Account number : 156327 439 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to : 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

I I•• 111111 • 11 I 1111 I 11 I 1111 h 1111• I 11 • 1• ,11111111, 11, I I I I I I I 111 I I I 

41 □□ 4 □ 56 □□□1563274392□□□□□□ 012129□□□□□□□112 □ 4 □ 0000 □ 



Service activity 

e Internet 

Monthly charges 
1. Internet 12 

(Promotona/ Offer) 

2. Internet Equipment Fee 
(Promotional Offer) 

Total for Internet 

Phone 

Monthly charges 

1. Phone Unlimited N. America 904.295.8161 

2. Non-Published Quantity -1904.295.8161 
(Comp//mentary Rate) 

3. Phone 904.295.8162 

Surcharges & fees 
4. Cost Assessment Charge 

5. FL County 911 Service Fee 

6. Federal Universal Service Charge 

Government taxes & fees 
7. FL Gross Receipts Tax 

8. FL Local Communications Tax 

9. FL State Communications Tax 

Total for Phone 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Aug 20 - Sep 19 

Aug 20 - Sep 19 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 

Printed on Recyc/ob/e Paper 

·paInpa4:is uaaq 
se4 AedOln\l leljl spa1JaJ a)!OflU! moA JO auo a5ed uiun iuawAed 

l!Wqns Ol anU!lUO) ·paJJa a)!el Ol AedO+n\l JOJ sapA:i 5uuuq 2-~ 
a)lel PIOO) lUaw11OJua JnOA ·111q AW uo pa+S!I Jaqwnu aJe:> JaWOlSO:l 

aljl 6u111e:i 11q JO WO:l"lle"MMM le l '81 \I 6U!AJ!lOU 11q UO!+eZ[JOl.jlne 
1a:iue:i ue:i 1 ·+uno:i:ie >jueq Aw WOJJ Aauow 6u1pnpap 1111e:i1u0JpaIa 

Aq Al4lUOW ll!G IIW 11ed Ol 1'81\1 a21Jo4+ne I 'lledo+nv LI! IIOJUa I JI 

+uaw11OJua 11edO+n\l 

Page: 2 of 2 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

Aug 19,2020 

156327439 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$55.00 

$0.00 

$30.00 

$2.08 

$0.80 

$14.61 

$2.36 

$2.13 

$5.06 

$112.04 

present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 
be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 
save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay at att.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

AT&T U-verse5t,1 TV, AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 
Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

8235.003.024984.01.01.0000000 NNNNNNNY 001073.001073 

889lHLl178 7:1 an010 lNIVS 
3 llNn 3AV NlllfNH BOPL 

aao >t33t!O 3711/'J XIS 

1111111t11111111111111I1111111 I• 111111 •I 1111111111111'111I1111 I 11 
OJ 6WO BV L 1786172:"176"8"982:8 



,... 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROU 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Page: 1 of2 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

Aug 21, 2020 

257295491$cp1D 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
att.com/paperless 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today. 

Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with my AT&T. Go to 
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up. 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Payment, Aug 10 - Thank you! 

$133.60 

-$133.60 

Total due 

$124.35 
Please pay by: 
Sep 26, 2020 

tl:2l+-

Remaining balance $0.00 
pi.,lll/~Jlllt.1t,{1:, J,v(,,• .>t plO 
']]0 -t"}t·'-\\ 

Service summary 

$ Internet 

J Phone 

Total services 

Total due 

Page2 

Page2 

$74.90 

$49.45 

$124.35 

$124.35 

RECEIVED 

SEP 142020 

BY: __ ___ _ 

Please pay by Sep 26, 2020 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

.cJ. att.com/pay J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post. 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROU 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FOR AUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Please pay $124.35 by Sep 26, 2020 

Account number: 257295491 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

11111111I111111111111111111111h111 I 1111• 111•11111111111 I• I •I 1111 

410040560002572954917000000013360000000012435000000 



-

Service activity 

@ Internet 

Monthly charges 

1. Internet SOM/ 10M 
(Promotional Offer) 

Surcharges & fees 

2. Cost Assessment Charge 

Total for Internet 

Phone 

Monthly charges 

1. Phone Unlimited N. America 904.940.0697 
(Promotional Offer) 

Surcharges & fees 

2. Cost Assessment Charge 

3. FL County 911 Service Fee 

4. Federal Universal Service Charge 

Government taxes & fees 

5. FL Gross Receipts Tax 

6. FL Local Communications Tax 

7. FL State Communications Tax 

Total for Phone 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Aug 22 - Sep 21 

Aug 22 - Sep 21 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 
present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 

Printed on Recyclable Paper 

·pa1npat.ps uaaq 
se4 Aedo:inv :ie4:i. s:pa[J,aJ aJ1011u1 moA JO auo afied [!+Un :iuawAed 

11wqns o:i anu1:i.uo) ·:paJJa a)le+ 01 Aedo:inv JOJ sapAJ 6u!1[1q 2-~ 
a)le+ p[noJ :i.uaw1101ua 1noA ·1l!q i\w uo pa:isu 1aqwnu a1e:, 1awo:isn:, 

a4:i fiurneJ i\q JO WOJ'Ue'MMM :ie 1 '81\1 fiLI!i\J!lOU i\q uo1:iezpo4:ine 
1a:,ueJ ueJ 1 ·iuno:iJe )ILieq ,\w WOJJ ,\auow 6u1pnpap i\11e:i1uo1:pa1a 

Aq A14:iuow 111q Aw Aed o:i 1 '81 \1 azpo4:ine I 'Aedo+n\f U! 1101ua I JI 

Page: 2of2 

Issue Date: Aug 21, 2020 

257295491 Account Number: 

$70.00 

$4.90 

$74.90 

$37.50 

$0.92 

$0.40 

$6.44 

$1.03 

$0.93 

$2.23 

$49.45 

Usage summary 

904.940.0697 

Minute allowance (unlimited) 

Used 

be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 
save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay at att.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

AT&T U-verse
5t,,1 

TV, AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 
Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

8279.001.002712.01 .01 .0000000 NNNNNNNY 005423.005423 

8999-~LLt,£ l::l anolO lNIVS 
3 llNn 3AV Nlll"IVH OOt>~ 

nOl:::10 1N3Vll1S3ANI >1331:lO 3lllAI XIS 

,111.111111.1111111, 11111111 h h 1111, 11, 11,111,111,, 1,1,, 111111 I• 
obawo 8V ~ G~Ll'£n'6LG9 

I 



6RLO�FRPSDFWLRQ�ZDV�QRWLFHG�LQ�WKH�ODZQ�WRGD\��7R�KHOS�WKH�RYHUDOO�KHDOWK�RI�WKH�WXUI��ODUJH�DUHDV�QHHG�WR�EH�FRUH�DHUDWHG�WR�EUHDN�XS�VRLO�DQG�SURYLGH�PRUH
R[\JHQ�WR�WKH�WXUI�JUDVV��$IWHU�WKLV�SOHDVH�DSSO\�����RI�DQ�LQFK�RI�VDQG�WR�DUHDV�WR�DOORZ�DLU�SRFNHWV��7KLV�ZLOO�KHOS�ZLWK�JURZWK�DQG�UHFRYHU\��<RX�FDQ�DOVR�XVH�D
SLWFK�IRUN�LQ�VPDOOHU�DUHDV�WR�EUHDN�XS�FRPSDFWHG�DUHDV�DQG�WKHQ�DSSO\�WKH�OLJKW�FRDW�RI�VDQG�WR�WKH�DUHDV�DQG�UHSHDW�LI�QHHGHG��6DQG�ZRQ
W�FRPSDFW�OLNH�VRLO
DQG�ZLOO�OHDYH�DLU�SRFNHWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VRLO��6RPH�ODZQV�PD\�QHHG�DHUDWLRQ�RQ�D�\HDUO\�EDVLV�GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�VRLO�W\SH��UDLQIDOO�DQG�GUDLQDJH�LVVXHV�

,QVSHFWLRQ�5HSRUW

,192,&(���
:25.�'$7(�

��������
������

%XJ�2XW
32�%R[�������
-DFNVRQYLOOH��)/������������
������������

/LFHQVH���
%XJ�2XW�1R�&RPPLVVLRQ

7LPH�,Q�
7LPH�2XW�

������������30
������������30

7HFKQLFLDQ�6LJQDWXUH

&XVWRPHU�6LJQDWXUH

������/2&$7,21

������������

6L[�0LOH�&UHHN�&''
7UDLOPDUN�$PHQLWLHV�&HQWHU
����7UDLOPDUN�'U
6DLQW�$XJXVWLQH��)/������������

3KRQH�
������������0RELOH�

������%,//�72

������������

6L[�0LOH�&UHHN�&''
�����+DPOLQ�$YH
8QLW�(
6DLQW�&ORXG��)/������������

3KRQH�
������������0RELOH�

3XUFKDVH�2UGHU $PRXQW6HUYLFH�'HVFULSWLRQ 4XDQWLW\7HUPV
'8(�$7�6(59,&(1RQH ����������/DZQ�6HUYLFH�5HFXUULQJ

6XEWRWDO

������7RWDO�'XH�
����

������
7D[

*(1(5$/�&200(176���,16758&7,216
6HSWHPEHU�ELOO

7R�YLHZ�\RXU�VHUYLFH�KLVWRU\�DQG�PDNH�D�SD\PHQW�RQOLQH��FOLFN�KWWSV���EXJRXW�P\VHUYLFHDFFRXQW�FRP��

,I�\RX�KDYH�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�DERXW�\RXU�,QVSHFWLRQ�5HSRUW�DQG�,QYRLFH�RU�QHHG�DVVLVWDQFH�ORJJLQJ�LQWR�\RXU�DFFRXQW�RQOLQH��SOHDVH�FRQWDFW�\RXU�ORFDO�EUDQFK�

7KDQN�\RX�IRU�FKRRVLQJ�XV�IRU�\RXU�SHVW�PDQDJHPHQW�QHHGV�

5HYLHZHG5HVSRQVLELOLW\6HYHULW\&21',7,216���2%6(59$7,216 5HSRUWHG
2SHQ

&RPPHQW�

:H�SHUIRUPHG�\RXU�ODZQ�VHUYLFH�WRGD\��:H�DSSOLHG�IHUWLOL]HU�WR�KHOS�NHHS�WKH�WXUI�JUHHQ�DQG�KHDOWK\��:H�DOVR�DSSOLHG�DQ�LQVHFWLFLGH�WR�VXSSUHVV�DQ\�WXUI
GDPDJLQJ�LQVHFWV�DQG�ZHHG�FRQWURO�WR�VXSSUHVV�EURDGOHDI�ZHHGV�LQ�\RXU�ODZQ��3OHDVH�PDNH�VXUH�WR�ZDWHU�WKLV�WUHDWPHQW�LQWR�WKH�VRLO�ZLWKLQ�WKH�QH[W����KRXUV
XQOHVV�\RX�UHFHLYH�UDLQIDOO��:DWFK�IRU�GURXJKW�VWUHVVHG�DUHDV�DQG�LQFUHDVH�WKH�UXQWLPHV�IRU�WKDW�]RQH�RQO\�DV�QHHGHG��:DWHU�ZHHNO\�E\�IROORZLQJ�WKH�6W��-RKQV
5LYHU�:DWHU�0DQDJHPHQW�'LVWULFWV�ZDWHULQJ�RUGLQDQFH��2GG�QXPEHUHG�KRPHV�ZDWHU�:HGQHVGD\�DQG�6DWXUGD\��0DUFK�1RYHPEHU��DQG�6DWXUGD\�RQO\��'HFHPEHU�
)HEUXDU\���(YHQ�QXPEHUHG�KRPHV�ZDWHU�7KXUVGD\�DQG�6XQGD\��0DUFK�1RYHPEHU��6XQGD\�RQO\��'HFHPEHU�)HEUXDU\���$OORZ�WKUHH�ZHHNV�IRU�IXOO�UHVXOWV�DIWHU
HDFK�DSSOLFDWLRQ�

/DZQ�6HUYLFH�3HUIRUPHG
���������/DZQ

&RQGLWLRQ�
$FWLRQ�

/RZ 30�&RPSDQ\ ���������

&RPPHQW�

7RGD\�VRPH�JUDVV\�ZHHGV�ZHUH�QRWLFHG�LQ�WKH�ODZQ��:H�UHFRPPHQG�UHPRYLQJ�WKH�ZHHGV�DQG�UH�VRGGLQJ�WKH�DUHDV��'XH�WR�WKH�ODFN�RI�SURGXFWV�RQ�WKH�PDUNHW
DYDLODEOH�WR�FRQWURO�JUDVV\�ZHHGV�ZH�GR�QR�JXDUDQWHH�WKHP�LQ�RXU�SURJUDP�

*UDVV\�:HHGV�3UHVHQW
���������/DZQ

&RQGLWLRQ�
$FWLRQ�

/RZ &OLHQW ���������

&RPPHQW�

7UDIILF�GDPDJH�FDQ�EH�FDXVHG�E\�PDQ\�GLIIHUHQW�WKLQJV��0RVW�FRPPRQ�DUH�SHWV�WKDW�UXQ�WKH�VDPH�URXWH�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�WXUI�RU�FKLOGUHQ�SOD\LQJ�RQ�WKH�VDPH
VHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�ODZQ�RQ�D�UHJXODU�EDVLV��7KH�DUHD�RI�WXUI�ZLOO�ORRN�PDWWHG�GRZQ�DQG�WKH�VRLO�ZLOO�EH�YHU\�FRPSDFWHG��:H�UHFRPPHQG�UHGLUHFWLQJ�WKH�FDXVH�RI�WKH
WUDIILF�DQG�DHUDWH�WKH�DUHD�IRU�EHWWHU�UHVXOWV�

+HDY\�7UDIILF�'DPDJH
���������/DZQ

&RQGLWLRQ�
$FWLRQ�

/RZ &OLHQW ���������

&RPSDFWHG�6RLO
���������/DZQ

&RQGLWLRQ�
$FWLRQ�

/RZ &OLHQW ���������

&RQVXPHU�1RWLILFDWLRQ�V��$SSOLFDWLRQ�6WDWHPHQWV���7UHDWHG�$UHD�V���'R�QRW�DOORZ�XQSURWHFWHG�SHUVRQV��FKLOGUHQ��RU�SHWV�WR�WRXFK��HQWHU��RU�UHSODFH
LWHPV�RU�EHGGLQJ��WR�FRQWDFW�RU�WR�HQWHU�WUHDWHG�DUHD�V��XQWLO�GU\���9HQWLODWLRQ�5HRFFXS\LQJ��9DFDWH�DQG�NHHS�DUHD�V��FORVHG�XS�WR����PLQXWHV�DIWHU
WUHDWPHQW��WKHQ�YHQWLODWH�DUHD�V��IRU�XS�WR���KRXUV�EHIRUH�UHRFFXS\LQJ���([WHULRU�$SSOLFDWLRQV�7UHDWPHQW��'R�QRW�DOORZ�JUD]LQJ�RI�IHHG��ODZQ��RU�VRG
FOLSSLQJV�WR�OLYHVWRFN�DIWHU�WUHDWPHQW�DSSOLFDWLRQV���'R�QRW�WDPSHU�ZLWK�URGHQWLFLGH�RU�RWKHU�SHVW�EDLW�SODFHPHQWV��7+$1.�<28�)25�$//2:,1*�86�72
6(59(�<28�

3ULQWHG��������� 3DJH� ���

Amenity-Landscape Contingency



,QVSHFWLRQ�5HSRUW

,192,&(���
:25.�'$7(�

��������
������

%XJ�2XW
32�%R[�������
-DFNVRQYLOOH��)/������������
������������

5HYLHZHG5HVSRQVLELOLW\6HYHULW\&21',7,216���2%6(59$7,216 5HSRUWHG

&RPPHQW�

6RLO�FRPSDFWLRQ�ZDV�QRWLFHG�LQ�WKH�ODZQ�WRGD\��7R�KHOS�WKH�RYHUDOO�KHDOWK�RI�WKH�WXUI��ODUJH�DUHDV�QHHG�WR�EH�FRUH�DHUDWHG�WR�EUHDN�XS�VRLO�DQG�SURYLGH�PRUH
R[\JHQ�WR�WKH�WXUI�JUDVV��$IWHU�WKLV�SOHDVH�DSSO\�����RI�DQ�LQFK�RI�VDQG�WR�DUHDV�WR�DOORZ�DLU�SRFNHWV��7KLV�ZLOO�KHOS�ZLWK�JURZWK�DQG�UHFRYHU\��<RX�FDQ�DOVR�XVH�D
SLWFK�IRUN�LQ�VPDOOHU�DUHDV�WR�EUHDN�XS�FRPSDFWHG�DUHDV�DQG�WKHQ�DSSO\�WKH�OLJKW�FRDW�RI�VDQG�WR�WKH�DUHDV�DQG�UHSHDW�LI�QHHGHG��6DQG�ZRQ
W�FRPSDFW�OLNH�VRLO
DQG�ZLOO�OHDYH�DLU�SRFNHWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VRLO��6RPH�ODZQV�PD\�QHHG�DHUDWLRQ�RQ�D�\HDUO\�EDVLV�GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�VRLO�W\SH��UDLQIDOO�DQG�GUDLQDJH�LVVXHV�

&RPPHQW�

<285�/$:1�,6�6+2:,1*�6,*16�2)�7(03(5$785(�675(66��7+,6�,6�:+(1�7+(5(�,6�$��'5$67,&�)/8&787,21�,1�285�2876,'(��7(03(5$785(6��(,7+(5
)520�'$<�72�'$<�����)�21(�'$<�$1'����)�7+(�1(;7��25�)520�'$<7,0(�72�1,*+7�����)�'85,1*�7+(�'$<�$1'����)�$7�1,*+7���7+,6�&21',7,21
:,//�&$86(�<285�785)�%/$'(6�72�7851�&2/256��620(�:,//�7851�<(//2:�$1'�620(�:,//�7851�9,2/(7�$1'�7+(�&2/25�&+$1*(�:,//�+$33(1
9(5<�6325$',&�$1'�:,//�127�$33($5�,1�$1<��&(57$,1�3$77(51��7+,6�:,//�127�+$50�<285�785)�,1�$1<�:$<�$1'�7+(5(�,6�127�$�&+(0,&$/�),;
)25�7+,6�&21'7,21�

7(03(5$785(�675(66
���������/DZQ

&RQGLWLRQ�
$FWLRQ�

/RZ 7%' ���������

352'8&76�$33/,&$7,21�6800$5<
1RQH�1RWHG�

3HVW�7RWDOV3(67�$&7,9,7< ��$UHDV ��'HYLFHV
1RQH�1RWHG�

'(9,&(�,163(&7,21�6800$5<

$5($�&200(176
1RQH�1RWHG�

'(9,&(�,163(&7,21�(;&(37,216
1RQH�1RWHG�

,163(&7,21�'(7$,/
1RQH�1RWHG�

352'8&76�$33/,('
1RQH�1RWHG�

&RQVXPHU�1RWLILFDWLRQ�V��$SSOLFDWLRQ�6WDWHPHQWV���7UHDWHG�$UHD�V���'R�QRW�DOORZ�XQSURWHFWHG�SHUVRQV��FKLOGUHQ��RU�SHWV�WR�WRXFK��HQWHU��RU�UHSODFH
LWHPV�RU�EHGGLQJ��WR�FRQWDFW�RU�WR�HQWHU�WUHDWHG�DUHD�V��XQWLO�GU\���9HQWLODWLRQ�5HRFFXS\LQJ��9DFDWH�DQG�NHHS�DUHD�V��FORVHG�XS�WR����PLQXWHV�DIWHU
WUHDWPHQW��WKHQ�YHQWLODWH�DUHD�V��IRU�XS�WR���KRXUV�EHIRUH�UHRFFXS\LQJ���([WHULRU�$SSOLFDWLRQV�7UHDWPHQW��'R�QRW�DOORZ�JUD]LQJ�RI�IHHG��ODZQ��RU�VRG
FOLSSLQJV�WR�OLYHVWRFN�DIWHU�WUHDWPHQW�DSSOLFDWLRQV���'R�QRW�WDPSHU�ZLWK�URGHQWLFLGH�RU�RWKHU�SHVW�EDLW�SODFHPHQWV��7+$1.�<28�)25�$//2:,1*�86�72
6(59(�<28�

3ULQWHG��������� 3DJH� ���



CROWN 
1:I•I•I!ilac-J 
3002 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207 

904-858-4300 11 ACCOUNTING@CROWNPOOLSINC.COM 

Bill To 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
C/O EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT 
805 TRAILMARK DR 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Quantity Description 

r 

ql,)O\ 1 INSTALLED SCUM GUTTER GRATE AS PER CODE 

3'30Jlb·4h~ 1 MONTHLY POOL SERVICE FOR AUGUST 

-\i )4 \ 

Invoice 
Date Invoice # 

8/31/2020 AUG-243 

APPROVEfl 
By Alex Beyer at 8:28 am, Sep 04, 2020 

Amenity-Pool Maint .. ,EcE: 01 .. :,-:-
1 

SEP O 4 2020 ~ 
BY-· _____ _ 

Terms 

Due upon receipt 

Rate Serviced Amount 

7.88 8/19/2020 7.88 
1,375.00 8/31/2020 1,375.00 

Total $1,382.88 

Customer Total Balance $2,757.88 



David Gray Heating & Air, Inc 

6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville, FL 32217-2821 

Bill To 

Six Mile Creek CDD *E* 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
UnitE 
St Cloud, FL 34771 

P.O. Number Terms 

CC ON FILE 

Rep 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer al 

Amenity- Facility Maintenance 

Ship To 

805 Trailmark Dr 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 

Ship Via F.O.B. 

6/30/2020 

. : . : : ._ Description 
4 Comm Labor 1 Ma... Commercial Labor each additional 15 minutes 

Date Invoice# 

6/30/2020 152103 

Project 

Trailmark Living00002 

29.00 116.00 
. C. l .Comm Labor 1 Ma.: . .. , Commercial Single Tech Labor 1st 30 minutes . . .; ., .. :) 70.00 · 70.00 

: ... ~ . . . :: :: . .... ·.: :-::-: :. ::.::·.:: r:=1~~~~~:%~~~J%=n~:!:.:tt :: .: :. . •:i: .:· . .. 
1 Electronic Leak Sea... Electronic Leak Search 

,.: .. :. -~:.:_:.-:-:.::;;i J~:'_$Jt?A..--: .. ~~-_.: ___ : ::~':.: J~~~P~~ ~~JQa.~.er ~~~4.:.:.::.::.-.. ,.:..;_,.:_.·.•.:.::........ . . -.·.:::.:: .. -::.:·._::: :. 
1 Refrigerant Repair~ ... EPA Verification, Balance Refrigerant Charge per 

Manufacturer Specification 
.......... ·. :" _::.;..; .< .. :,.,:.:•.•-•::. :: ; . :-" .. ::. -.-_ .. _._ -.·.i·.• ,s.ues Tax: .. . .. : .. · · ... -.:.:: ........... . 

~'+ti-IA 
1·'310 ·.SJ~·U'l-S 

Phone# Fax# Total 

904-724-7211 

95.00 
. . J9Q.OO 

95.00 

· 0.00 

$476.00 



David Gray Heating and Air, INC. 
6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville, FL 32217 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 1 

Phone: (904) 724-7211 
Fax: (904) 724-5925 
www.davidgrayonline.com 

Amenity- Facility Maintenance 

Bill to 
Six Mile Creek CDD *E* 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
Unit E 
St Cloud FL 34771 

Work Order #: 1009989 Transaction Date: 8/27/2020 

Comm Labor 1 Man first 30 min Commercial Single Tech Labor 1st 30 
minutes ...... I left voicemails with Alex, 
David, and Lindsay. No one called me back 
I was only 15 minutes away and drove to 
location. When I arrived I had called them 
again with the exception of David and I was 
able to access the left side of the 
clubhouse where the big air handler 
is.There was an aerobics class/yoga class 
going on on the right side building and one 
of the women that were sponsoring it had 
the key to let me into the left side. Once 
inside I still need a key to access the 
mechanical room. I still have not received 
any callbacks from anybody at the 
management. Job needs to be 
rescheduled. Billed for time. 

Invoice 153289 

Location Address 
Trailmark Living00002 
805 Trailmark Dr 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

Terms: CC ON FILE 

Invoice 153289 

$70.00 $70.00 

Subtotal: $70.00 

Tax: $0.00 

Total: $70.00 

Payments: $0.00 

Balance Due: $70.00 

Total due subject to final approval and may vary based on verifications of GPS and material costs. All accounts due and payable 1 O days 
from invoice date. If payment is not made within 30 days, the total will be charged to any credit card you have on file. After 30 days, 
invoice may be sent to collections and customer agrees to pay court costs, collection costs, and attorney's fees if suit and/or collection 
becomes necessary . 

Page 1 of 2 



David Gray Heating and Air, INC. 
6491 Powers Avenue 
Jacksonville, FL 32217 

Phone: (904) 724-7211 
Fax: (904) 724-5925 
www.davidgrayonline .com 

Acceptance 
I acknowledge and accept the initial service fee and 
agree to pay upon completion. I additionally certify that 
I am fully authorized to approve this work and commit 
to payment. I accept the services performed by David 
Gray Heating and Air, Inc. are to my satisfaction . 

Total due subject to final approval and may vary based on verifications of GPS and material costs . All accounts due and payable 10 days 
from invoice date . If payment is not made within 30 days, the total will be charged to any credit card you have on file . After 30 days , 
invoice may be sent to collections and customer agrees to pay court costs, collection costs, and attorney's fees if suit and/or collection 
becomes necessary. 

Page 2 of 2 



Phone: 877-436-4427 Fax: 844-393-9006 6 Florida Natural Gu 
P.O. Box 934726 
Atlanta, GA 31193-4726 

Emai!: customerservice@onlyfng .com 

Invoice 

MDG2020 00000220 00 

1111' 111111111 • 1 •11II11•111111 • 1 • • 111 II 11•111111•1• 1111• Ill M 111 

a Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Accounts Payable 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
St Cloud, FL 34771-0000 

Description 

INSIDE FERC FGT 23 
Fuel 

Transportation 

Customer Charge 

Sales Taxes 

$Si 
~JO SJ& ,\.\11 

Ck)~e 

Term 

.QMW20 - 09/02/20 
08/04/20 - 09/02/20 

Commodity Charges Sub Total: 

Transportation Charges Sub Total: 

Miscellaneous Charges Sub Total: 

Pre-Tax Sub Total: 

Taxes Sub To'litl: 

Total Current Charges: 

Billing Group#: 

Invoice Date: 

Invoice#: 

Due Date: 

Current Charges: 

Last Payment: 

Payment Date: 

Prior Balance Due: 

Total A mount Due: 

Therm 

7.30 
0.22 

7.52 

Simplify your life by signing up for FNG's Paperless Billing and AutoPay. It's easy and convenient. Enroll online at 
OnlyFNG .com. Thank you for your business. 

Please .detach and remit this"portion with your payment 

37224 

September 08, 2020 

354538ES 

October 01 , 2020 

$9 .69 

$9.65 

August 25 , 2020 

$0 .00 

$9.69 

Billing Group #: 37224 1 
-------~ 'Six Mile Creek Community Dev 

I Make Checks Payable To: Florida Natural Gas 
Please Include your BIiiing Group #on your check. 

Invoice Date: September 08, 2020 j :Accounts Payable Wire/ACH Payment To: 

Cost 

$2.99 
$0.09 

$3.08 

$0.66 

$0.66 

$5.95 

$5.95 

$9.69 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$9.69 

Invoice#: 
1408 Hamlin Ave 

354538ES j Unit E 
Bank: Wells Fargo Bank Atlanta GA __ _ 

Due Date: 

Current Charges: 

Last Payment: 

Payment Date: 

~ Prior Balance Due: 

Total Amount Due: 

Amount Paid: 

I ::•:_st Cloud, FL 34771-0000 
_o_ct_o_be_r_0_1'-, 2_02_ 0 _ __,, 

$9.69 Ii 
$9.65 IL __ _ 

August 25, 2020 I 
$0.00 I 
$9.69 I 

ABA# : 121000248 

Acct Name: Florida Natural Gas 

Account#: 2000036933330 

Mail Payment To: 

Florida Natural Gas 
P.O. Box 934726 
Atlanta, GA 31193-4726 

* * 



Florida Natural Gas' 
Phone : 877-436-4427 Fax: 844-393-9006 
Email : customerservice@onlyfng .com 

Account Detail 

I Service Addreu: 801 Trailmark Dr I City, State: 

I Utility: TECO - Peoples Gas I Utility Account#: 

jcurrent Charges 

Description 

INSIDE FERC FGT 23 
Fuel 

Totals: 

Description 

Transportation 

Totals: 

Description 

Customer Charge 

Totals: 

Description 

Florida State Tax 100% Exempt 

St Johns County Tax 100% Exempt 

Totals: 

Total Account Charges: 

Natural Gas• Commodity 

Term Therm 

08/04/20 - 09/00./20 
08/04/20 - 09/00./20 

Transportation Charges 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Taxes 

7.30 
0.22 

7,52 

Units 

7.30 

St Augustine, FL 

211014091725 

Price 

$0.4100 
$0.4100 

Price 

$0,0902 

Page2 of 2 

Invoice # : 354538ES 

Cost 

$2.99 
$0.09 
$3,08 

Cost 

$0.66 
$0 ,66 

Cost 

$5,95 
$5,95 

Cost 

$0,00 

$0 ,00 

$0,00 

$9.69 



Municipal Asset Management, Inc. 
25288 Foothills Drive North 
Suite 225 
Golden, CO 80401 
(303) 273-9494 INVOICE 

INVOICE NO: 
DATE: 

0617864 
9/1/2020 

To: Six Mile Creek Community Development Dist 
1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E 
St Cloud, FL 34771 ~~~~t:::~ 

BY:-~ ----·-·· 

.... 

DUE DATE RENTAL PE"IOD 

1om2020 

PMT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

48 'Lease payment for Tax-Exempt Lease Purchase Agreement dated 
October 10, 2016 for the purchase of fitness equipment 

i 

APPROVED 
By Alex 'f!Joyer at 12:38 pm, Sep 1t 

Amenity-Fitness Equipment Lease 

AMOUNT 

1,148.68 

TOTAL DUE $1,148.68 

Please detach coupon and return with ·check payable to MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC. and remit to address above. 

If you have any questions concerning this invoice, 
call: Municipal Asset Management, Paul Collings, (303) 273-9494. 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Invoice# Due Date Total Due Amount Enclosed 

0617864 10/7/2020 $1,148.68 

Six Mile Creek Community Development Dist 
1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E 

Municipal Asset Management, Inc. 
25288 Foothills Drive North 
Suite225 St Cloud, FL 34n1 Golden, CO 80401 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W, 
Building 300, Sutte 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Slx Mile Creek 
475WeslTown Place Suite 114 
SL Augustine, FL 32092 

Description ~'2.t hJ. 
Faclllty Maintenance July 1, 2020-July 31, 2020 32b·3?i u~ 
Maintenance Supplies ,'2..o ·51\ ,l\{,C\ 

RECEIVED 

AUG 172020 

BY: _ __ __ _ 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice #: 95 
lnvolce Date: 8/11/2020 

Due Date: 8/11/2020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

293.35 293.35 
206.66 208.66 

$500.01 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $500.01 



RMS 

~ 

7/23/20 

TOTAL 

MILES 

11.2!!!:1 

8 

8 

30 

TAAILMARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMl:NT DISTRICT •SIX MILE CREEK 
MAltffENANCE 131LJ.ABl.E HOURS 
FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2020 

Employeo Dascrlptlon 

S.A. Oeep olean oemp house 

'MIieage Ii R1lmburgable per secl!on 112.061 Florida Statutes Mileage Rate 2009-0.445 

TM-SIX MILE CREEK 



MAINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES 

Period Entllng 08105/20 

DISTRICT QAif SUPPLIES 
SMC 
SIX MILE CREEK 

7ll/20 
7ll/20 
7127/20 
7J27J20 
7127120 
7127120 
8/4/20 

Paper Towels 12 rolls 
Trash Bags 42 gallon 60ct 
ToUet Paper 12 rolls (3) 
1S galon Trash Bags 150ct 
42 gallon Trash Bags a2ct 
Paper Towels 12 rolls 
rol!et Paper 18 rolls (2) 

TOTAL 

~ EMPLOYEE 

28.42 F.S. 
29.87 F.S. 
41.30 F.S. 
16.07 F.S. 
20.67 f.S. 
19.52 F.S. 
52.83 F.S. 

$206.66 



Rive,1'$lde Management Services, Inc 
9655 Flt>rida Mining Bfvd. W. Invoice 

---- .Build.Ing 300,Slli .... te...,3 ..... 05 ..... · _ _ _ ·--·•---·- ·- ______ ___ __ _ 
Jacksonville, FL 31257. 

am tot 
Six Mile Creek 
415 We~stTown Place Suite 114 
St Augustine, fl 32092 

Pe.scrtption -\4.'23 Hours/Qty 

ln.voict #: 96 
tnvoJct Oa.te: 911/2020 

Pue Date: 9/1/2020 
Ca$&: 

P.O. Number: 

1,145.00 1,145.00 

Total $1., 145.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $1, 145.00 



Robert M. Nelson 

DATE 

Tuesday , September 15, 2020 

Wednesday , September 16, 2020 

Traffic Stops - 4 

Golf cart violations - 0 

ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

*BLUE BEl>XES PAYREI> 

SJSO20CAD177105 

SJSO20CAD177856 5:00 PM 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

7:00 PM 2 

APPROVED I 

Weathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - O 

Citizen Assist - 0 

By Alex Boyer at 9:13 am, Sep 17, 2020 ! 

Security patrol 

Observed construction workers attempt to steal bicycle from sidewalk. Bicycle was turned into 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK 

GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

tt1J? 
Sec.vri~ S<vl -
52.0 :S'Jg .Jljj 

~~~~~=u 
BY: _____ _ 

revised 2-10-2020 



Tue, Sep 8, 2020 
9:26:40AM 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 

Acct: 15653 
Phone: 9049405850 
E-Mall: Mscarra@gmscfl.com 
Client: SIX MILE CREEK COD C/0 GMS LL( 

Send Payments to: 
The St. Augustine Record 

One News Place 
St Augustine, FL 32086 

Name: SIX-MILE CREEK COD C/0 GMS LLC 
Address: 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

City: SAINT AUGUSTINE State: FL 

Ad Number: 0003305758-01 Caller: SARAH SWEETING Paytype: BILL 
Start: 09/08/2020 l88Ue&: 1 Stop: .09/08/2020 

Placement: SA Legals Rep: Melissa Rhinehart 

Zip: 32092 

Copy Line: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPEF 



Tue, Sep 8, 2020 
9:26:40AM 

Lines 
Depth 
Columns 

Price 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 

91 
7.75 

1 

$139.12 

Send Payments to: 
The St. Augustine Record 

One News Place 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 

SIX MILE C.RRBK COMMUNITY 
DRVELOPNENT DIBIR.tcr 

NOTICE OF SPECIALHnnnNG OF 
11IE BOARDOFSUPBllVJSORS 

Notla, is henibr ghon that the Six Mlle 
Cniok Oummunll)' Dc,\~t Dlil
lru:t (•D1atrt.1K) wlll mMt on Wednes, 
~. September 181 2.020 &l 2:00 
p.m, Yb, '7.oosn to holll a special meetln_g 
of the Dom! of SUpervbon ("Boord") 
when, the Boord ~c:oosider any buai
nou thot niaypropor comr belln It. 

In light of tbe OOVI 19 publio health 
emergency, the moetlng will be <011-
ductecl remotely, pursuant to Zoom 
comm1111ications modla tedlnology 
a.Id/or by tclopbooo pur1uant to Execu• 
tl\'e Orders 2o-62, 20-119 and 2o-ll2 ls
sued by Governor DeSantls on Matth 9, 
2020, March 20, 2020 and April 29, 
2020 'Exooullve Orders; respectlve)y, 
incl • <'l<lfllllOllS or supple-
me , o.ud punuant ID Section 
120 )2, Plorlda Statttta. Any-
one wishing 10 participate In the mee\.
lng and obtain tarorniallan ahoo1 how 

:~m=~~~~'i:' 
CDD.c!om or amtaa Ow, offi<'e of the 
Dlatrk:t M~r, cJo Gov,,mmental 
Ma1U1gtment l'ioot, U.C. at (90~) 
9f<HIBSO or!.J.~&mlllf&Jml to ob
tain acceas lnlonnotloll. 

The District fully ena,uragt,1 public por
tklpation In • safe and elllch,nt nw,ner. 
Toward that ,nd, partlc.lpams SR 
strongly encot1raged ID mbmit qu<s· 
tlons and co,nmenls to the District 
M~t,y """'?4 (9~~ 840-6850 "" email Jollver .I~ by 6:00 
p.m. on osday, Scpl<?mber 15, 2020 iTI 
advance of the tn'1<--iln1 lo filcllit&te tl1e 
Doerd'• consideration uf such questions 
and comments during the n~linJ· 

~1118~~=1,.'° a!:J.."r.: ~ 
the {'N>YUlona or Florida law lbr com
munity cbw~~nt districts. A copy 
of the •11eooa l'or the m«>liag may be 
obtained from lbe Dlslri<l Manag<r, a.I 
*'7& Wesl Town Place, Suite Iii, SI. Au
gmtlne, l'lorldn 32092 or b)' <allin_g 
{904) 1140-58/IO), and 11 expected to RI
so be ••'llllable \lJ\ the Plslrict'• website 
at www.slxmllcJ1lli,k~dcl,eom. The 
meeting mll)' he contlntted to a date, 
time, and pl1K'I' to he ~llled on the 
~ at audl moet111g. 11,tn, may be 
occall!ons whca out ot more Super,,!
..,... will partlclpate by telephone. 

Any person ~uh1nJ 111ectal aeoommo
d.i,tfun• at the mcetmg b_u.., of• di .. 
abllil)' or plzyllcal impairment should 
c:omact the District Managor'• om... al 
leRII fbny-<,ll!hl (48) hOllfR prior to the 
'"'-"'llnP.- 1r you .,., hearing .or speech 
impaired, pleue cont.<!t the Floricfa R<.'
lay Setvlce ~djaling 7-1-1, or l-800-
955·877l {TIT) I 1-800-955-8770 
(Vo!~), for aid in eontsctlng the D!s
lri<t "Maflll&"r's Qf!h,c. 

Each ptn1<1n who decldel lo ODDW any 
decision mau by the nnarcf wllb tt
sprct to anr. mattn cmulderod at the 
mooting Is aiMffd that pcnon wlll ntod 
a ,.....,r\l r.,r proc.-.dlngs and that ae
oordb)gly, lbe pom>n may need to en
au,e Ina\ a """'8tltn rteoro of the Jll'O· 
tttdl11p Is made, Including 11,e testi
mony and nklL'IWC! UJIUII whlcll such 
appeal L, to bo based. 

If )'OU nr• 1mable tn )llll'tlcipl>le by tel•· 
~•• or by ZOQ}ll, l,!HM eantact the m~:. ~l\'!;f~~.::.~rco~ <?!~~~ 
SC<'Olllnoodatlous. 

Jnn..,.0111-er 
District Manapr 

OOO/l!I05758 Sepl1!mber 8, 2020 



THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 
Affidavit of Publication 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE. FL 32092 

ACCT: 15653 
AD# 0003305758-01 

PO# 

PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STA TE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MELISSA 
RHINEHART who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. Augustine 
Record, a daily newspaper published at St. Augustine in St. Johns County, 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a NOTICE OF 
MEETING in the matter of SPECIAL MTG OF BOARD 9/16/10 was 
published in said newspaper on 09/08/2020. 

Affiant further says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper published at 
St. Augustine, in St. Johns County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
heretofore has been continuously published in said St. Johns County, Florida 
each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in 
the City of St. Augustine, in said St. Johns County, Florida for a period of one 
year preceding the first pubJication of the attached copy of advertisement; and 
affiant further says the he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, finn 
or corporation any discount, rebate, commission, or. refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Sworn to ( or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 

~hysical presence or 
[ ] online notarization 

SEP O 8 2020 
this __ day of ___ _ 

who is personally known to 
me or who has produced as identification 

SIX llOLECRBBK COMMUNJT!( 
DlWBLOPMENTDJS111IC1' 

NOTICEOF9PHClALMRlffiNG 011 
THBBOARD O.llSl.!PlmmOllS 

Notloo ls hereby givon that Ibo Six Mlle 
Creek Commimll¥ Development Dl&
trkt ("l>lmlct") wtll meet on Wodnc,
day, SOPl<!nibn 16 S020 at 2100 
p.m. via Zoom to bolii upeclal mee1hig 
of the Baud of~ ("Board") 
where the Board~c:om!der any busi
nwi that m!',Y p er came be&>re IL 

In ligl,t of the -19 public heallh 
emergency, the meeting wlll be con
du<:ted remotely. plll'Swmt to Zoom 
communications media tecbnolllgy 
arul./or by telephone punuant to Execu
live Orders 20-n, 20-6!) and 20-112 ls
sued by Govonlor DeSanlis on Mud, 9, 
2020, March 20. 2020 an/I AptlJ 29, 
20.20 ("Executl..e Ordets") mpectl\'09', 
Including llfiY extensfoos or Sllpple• 
menls tliereof, and pumiant to Sei:lkm 
120.54{6)(1,)2~ Ploriila Statutea, Any
one wlslimg lo participate ln the meet
Ing end obtain mfbniialion about h..w 
the ttlHtinf will occur slwuld mer lo 
tht, Dislri~• website, www.slxnrilecreek 
COD.com or contact the mlka of the 
District Manager, efo Governmental 
Management Semces, LLC. at (91K-) 
940-5850 or Joliver@gmsnCcom to i»
lain aa:e.ss lnfmmatlon. 

'llto Distrk,t fully encourages public par
ticipllllon in auf'e Mil elllclent manner. 
Towaro. that end, partlcipults &M 

strongly encour,ged toto 5t:11tm: 
04 !K0-5860 or 

e COIII by 5:00 
p.m. ·15,20:Wln 
iidVllllt<I o e mee to facl!ltate the 
Boatd'II coasidomtlon a£ ouch queotlom 
and eo'llllllenls during them~\l, 

~,::tdt:Jf1"1n"' ~ce -= 
the provisions of Florida law for com· 
mwiity cwn)opment districts. A copy 
of the uenda for the meeting may b& 
obtalne<f limn the Dllllrict Minoge: at 
i76 Wes\ Town PI....., Suite Ui, SL Au-
gustine, Florida 32092 or aillln_g 
(904) 910-Ji&O), and Is to al-
so be availthle on the s webslffl 
atwww• c The 
meeting may be continued to a &rte, 
time, aiid puwe to be ~ on the 
r,coid at such meoillng. There may be 
OCCA6lons wlum oru, or more Buperl'l-

.An~p':!,i:=qgby~ -
elations at the meeting because of a dis• 
ability or plt)'lllcal biipalnttent should 
contact the Dllllrld Manager's Office at 
!em foey-eldit (ff) houm prior to tho 
meetln~. lt)'Oll am hearing_oqpeech 
impaired, please llOlltaet the Florida R.,. 
lay SeMce by dialing N•l. or 1-ll00-
96S-871l (1Tll} / 1-800,.,9SS.8'170 
{Vol<e), for ald In eontaollng the Di .. 
lrict Manager's Office. 

Each J1CfS011 who decides to aill"',aj any 
decision made by the Board with re
spect to an)' matler ct)ll$ldered at tile 
meeling is ailrised that porson will need 
a n,coiil cf pmoeedlngs and llu,t ac• 
.,.,,-dinm,, ~ per$Oll may njteif to en• 
mre tliili a verbatim record of the pro
ceedings Is ma.de, :Including the testi
mo~ and evidence upon which such 
IIJ)l)eiol Is to be based. 

Tfi are w,abla to p,l!'llclpate by tele• 
ne or by ZOOM,--o1easii contact the 

istrlct Mlj.llQer's office at <soi) 940-
5850 nr 11lver@gmsnf.com for further 
eccommo atlous. 

JamcsOll\'$" 
District Manager 

0003305'758 September 8, 2020 



' 

Security Engineering And Designs, Inc. 
3 139 Waller Street 
Jacksonville, FL 32254 

Voice: 904-371-4931 

Fax: 904-371-4939 

Sold To: 
Trailamrk Amenity Center (6 MILE CREEK) 
1408 HAMLIN AVENUE. 
UNITE 
ST. CLOUD, FL 34771 

Customer ID,:'A-33 1 S-5F 

Customer PO 

Description 
MONTHLY FIRE ALARM MONITORING SERVI CE --

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 12:34 pm, Sep 08,~, 

Security Monitoring 

Site Address: 

Trailamrk Amenity Center 
805 Trailmark Dr. 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

-u:~4 
~-5J&~u, 
~ 1/ 

Invoice 
Invoice Numbe 

20-34966 

Invoice Date 
9/1/20 

Page 
1 

34. 95 

l 

---- ···--·----~-...... ,.,....,.,,, /,., --- --- -~----.... ..,,., ... L~ -------J 

Service Department: 371-4931 
Monitoring Center: 800-318-9486 
Installation: 371-4931 

Please include invoice number on payment 

20-34966 

Subtota 

Sales Ta 
Total Invoice AmoL 

Payment Receive 

TOTAL 

34.95 

34.95 

0.00 

34. 95 



~91§ce & Risk Advisors 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
219 E Livingston St 
Orlando, FL 32801 

100120193 

x ----- Please detach and return wit!, payment 

Customer: Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Transaction 

11510 10/01/2020 Renew policy 

.. 
i 

BY=-- •~--- _ 

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: 

Florida Insurance Alliance 
Package - Renew policy 
Due Date: 8/28/2020 

~ \~ 
.ptc)l.;.).<___,z..L-.) IV'\Sl-V"u'~ 

(-u.-n. 1.-..; ,.Jo /:Vu-bli c., o{-fc 

JDO·\S_')·' 

Egis Insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95th St Oak/awn, IL 60453 

(321 )233-9939 

INVOICE 
Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District 
187 

Kristina Rudez 

lnvoice#11510 

Thank You 

28,683.00 

Otii 

$ 28,683.00 

Thank You 

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors, LLC 
Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021 

~;.;__,;:..,;_;;,...:,_;:..:..:;.::;,;_....:.;:::..;.;.""" 

Chicago, IL 60689-4002 sclimer@egisadvisors.com 08/28/2020 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Six Mile Creek COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Management Fees -September 2020 
lnfonnation Technology-September 2020 
Dissemination Agent Services - September 2020 
Office Supplies 
Postage 
Copies 

9lD •.}\'51 }l\ 
1S\ 
J\~ 
SI 

U1. 
\.,\1,) 

Hours/Qty 

Invoice 

Invoice #: 130 
Invoice Date: 9/1/20 

Due Date: 9/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

16.02 
49.37 

385.65 

Amount 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

16.02 
49.37 

385.65 

Total $3,384.38 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,384.38 



BillTo 

GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION 

Lie# B000 1267 
528 S. Edgewood Ave. Suite 1 
JACKSONVILLE , FL 32205 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
(Trailmark) 
1408 Hamlin Ave. 
Unit E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Security patrol 

P.O. No. Terms 

Due on receipt 

Quantity Description Rate 

Securicy Service.)08/01 /2020-08 /31 /2020 

16 8/1/2020-8/2/2020 4tU 
40 8/3/2020-8/9/2020 ctu~1[) 40 8/10/2020-8/16/2020 
40 8/17/2020-8/23/2020 'J21J Jlt JGl) 
40 8/24/2020-8/30/2020 

9 8/31/2020 
1 Cell Phone 

1,112 Mileage 

Phone# Fax# E-mail Total 

904-384-8071 904-389-9931 akoon@giddenssecurity.com 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

9/1/2020 23460808 

Project 

Amount 

17.50 280.00 
17.50 700.00 
17.50 700.00 
17.50 700.00 
17.50 700.00 
17.50 157.50 
60.00 60.00 

0.57 633.84 

$3,931.34 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7500 

================================= STATEMENT================================= 

Six Mile Creek CDD . 
July 31, 202.0... ......... CEIVE1' . ' 
~ ~ 111 Number 116540 

c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Billed through 06/30/2020 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 J2¼f AUG 1 7 2020 
3\0·Sl1·Jl) 

BY: ____ _ 
General Counsel 
SIXCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
06/05/20 WSH Confer with Kern and review and revise re-opening policies for Phase 2. 

06/05/20 SSW 

06/10/20 WSH 

06/12/20 WSH 

06/15/20 LMG 

06/17/20 WSH 

06/18/20 WSH 

06/19/20 WSH 

06/24/20 WSH 

06/26/20 SSW 

06/26/20 WSH 

06/28/20 KSB 

06/29/20 WSH 

Research physical quorum and public comment requirements and guidance 
pursuant to Governor's Executive Order and Task Force Report for Phase 2 
Re-opening. 

Prepare for and participate in conference call to discuss agenda for June 
meeting. 

Confer with Chambers and Oliver regarding amenity facility rentals. 

Research and analyze implications of Phase 2 reopening plan for amenities 
operation; develop best practices related to same. 

Prepare for board meeting; confer with Oliver. 

Prepare or and participate in board meeting. 

Prepare agreement for use of amenity facilities during COVID; confer with 
Chambers regarding same. 

Review correspondence from county regarding traffic light installation; prepare 
notices for budget and O&M assessments and confer with Sweeting and Oliver 
regarding same; confer with Chambers and Kern regarding agreement for 
fitness trainer use of district facilities. 

Review Executive Order 20-150 regarding extension of waiver of physical 
quorum requirement for local government public meetings; prepare and 
circulate correspondence to District Managers regarding same. 

Review audit and prepare language for note regarding status of 2007 bonds 
and assessments securing the bonds. 

Research and prepare correspondence to property appraiser regarding release 
of tax roll. 

Review revised budget and confer with Viscarra regarding same. 

0.70 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

0.90 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

1.40 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.70 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.20 hrs 



Six Mile Creek COD - General C Bill No. 116540 

06/30/20 JLK Review Phase 2 EO; prepare and review categories of reopening expansions; 
confer with in house lawyers on various nuances for same; multiple calls with 
district managers and amenity managers; multiple calls with FIA on same; 
review, edit and transmit COVID waivers and license agr~ements for use of 
same; review, edit and transmit reservation language and screening 
questionnaires; review PPE requirements promulgated by local jurisdictions; 
confer regarding COVID notification process. 

06/30/20 KFJ Research status of budget and assessment hearing documents. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Gentry, Lauren M. 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILUNG SUMMARY 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Gentry, Lauren M. 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
0.10 hrs 
0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
5.70 hrs 

0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
0.10 hrs 
0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
5.70 hrs 

180 /hr 
125 /hr 
200 /hr 
180 /hr 
180 /hr 
235 /hr 

180 /hr 
125 /hr 
200 /hr 
180 /hr 
180 /hr 
235 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

Page 2 

0.30 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

$f·,528.50 

$54.00 
$25.00 
$20.00 
$54.00 
$36.00 

$1,339.50 

$1,528.50 

----------------
$1,528.50 

$54.00 
$25.00 
$20.00 
$54.00 
$36.00 

$1,339.50 

$1,528.50 
---------------

$1,528.50 



North Florida Landscape Co 
2585 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bill To 

Sixmile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin A venue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

~\\\ Quantity Description 

32.0-S]~·Ll(,7 ~Landscape Services: TrailMark: Common Area - September 
"3]0-S3g ·46l Landscape Services: TrailMark: Amenities Center -

. Seutember 
'320-SJ5·l{Q. Landscape Services: TrailMark: Right-of-way in unsold lots 

- ~tember 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 1 

Common Area $20,975 
(ROW) O&M Landscape $487 .50 
Amenities Center $2180.42 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Invoice# 

21964 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail.com 

Date 

9/1/2020 

Rate 

20,975.00 
2,180.42 

487.50 

Total 

Phone# 

904-388-9354 

Amount 

20,975.00 
2,180.42 

487.50 

$23,642.92 



North Florida Landscape Co 
2585 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bill To 

Sixmile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, Fl. 34 771 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Quantity Description 

Landscape Services: Relocate Mainline 
160' Sch 40 sleeve@ $10.00 
160' 2" sleeve, Sch 40@ $2.00 
160 1" sleeve, Sch 40 @ $1.25 
200' 3" mainline @$4.00 
200' Hunter 2 Wire irrigation wire @ $2.00 
New Zone and Labor 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 11 :fJ?, 

&M Irrigation Maintenance 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Invoice# 

21969 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail.com 

Date 

8/28/2020 

Rate 

0.00 
1,600.00 

320.00 
200.00 
800.00 
400.00 
750.00 

Total 

Phone# 

904-388-9354 

Amount 

0.00 
1,600.00 

320.00 
200.00 
800.00 
400.00 
750.00 

$4,070.00 



Bill To 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-167 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Invoice 

Date Invoice# 

9/1/2020 4029B 

·::ayer at 1:23 P"'1 Aug 31, 2020 
,, ._,_,-,c/,-

Six Mile Creek CDD 
Teresa Viscarra 
GMS 

Lake Contract 

P.O. No. Terms Project 

Net 30 

Quantity Description Rate Amount 

Monthly Lake Service- 13 Waterways 1,675.00 1,675.00 

1t1ct 
:no·Sl~· L{Gl{ 

Please note that our remittance address has changed. 
Our new remittance address is: 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-1 6 7 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Total $1,675.00 



Evergreen Lifestyles Management, LLC 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
321-558-6500 

BILL TO 
ACCT# 110059890 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
Teresa Viscarra 
Governmental Management Services-CF, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, L 34771 
VENDOR DESCRIPTION 
Monthly Mgt Fee ll I'>\ eVl ~ . ~ • ~_I ~ 
Personnel Hours 120 Payroll Hours for August 2020 
ELM-Verizon IPad monthly service (321-320-5443) 
AMEx"Varlous Purchase Event and Office Supplies 
Fast Trivia Adult and Family TrM~ N1sht 
Fast Trivia (Two) Bingo Nights 

OTHER COMMENTS 

s~-SJ'l-1~1 
37,-0 -Ss<t -12--2, 
JJ:>¢ . ~ $ 5' ,' I 

Please include the account number 110059890 on your check 
Please send all payments to our new address: 

2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 

INVOICE 
DATE: 8/31/ 2020 
INVOICE# SMCCDD0820N 

AMOUNT 
Mgt Fee s 4,925.37 - ,-
Payroll s 3,360.00 _ ,_ 

Entertainment s 10.08 ,_ 

s 309.71 ,_ 
s 280.00 

s 140.00 

' 

·-

Subtotal s 9,025.16 

TOTAL Due $ 9, 02~.16 

Make all checks payable to 
.__ _______________________________ ~ Evergreen Lifestyles Management, LLC 

If you have any questions about this invoice, please contact Melinda Archer 
marcher @ever qreen-l m ,com 



Page _1_ of 
9 

--------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management LLC 
(Payable to) 

2100 S. Hiawassee Road, Orlando FL 32852 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

0 Association D Vendor 

BILL TO : . · -

Name and No. of Association: 

Bill Back to Six Mile Creek COD: 

POOLWEBAQUATICTECH 2078777900 ME 

Evergreen 

Pool Grate 
Replacement 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

8/24/2020 

8242020 

ASAP 

Pool · J1-~ · s~<t· -----

- - -- -- Maitenance _ J.f1l { __ E.89 ✓ 

Return for non 5 i, o · "5"3 " -
working Opera~ing 5 , 

TURNER ACE HDWR-WGV ST AUGUSTINE FL keys/wasp spray Supphes -7.22 " 
bt ¥".f-- 6.-L:h (..;(,..,~ - F~ u..~ fi£A.-<;.,.;:..v~ r c11a11< theWa11<- · . ---- -

THE WINEY WENCH Oubo SAINT AUGU Tl FL JN.' __e · Special Events 60.00 J 
----- ---- · - -- ---- -- -Cha1'f1knm:evlf~....-k -~ -. -- - l\o,,, 
WALGREENS #11165 000 SAINT AUGUSTI FL Wim .e . Special Events A 40.59 J 

.. ClianPr~e ~K-- - .- - - "" 
Amazon Marketplace .Jl!J' P. . Special Events ,s., 16.92 ✓ 

Chi1Wfil ~ili<-·· ---- - ---,------- J 

Amazon Marketplace a e a Special Events ______ _ _ ________ ___ ..-1,J.inner..E.rize_ i'.) 9.99 

Amazon Marketplace 

Amazon Marketplace 

Amazon Marketplace 

TURNER ACE HDWR-WGV ST AUGUSTINE FL 

Authorized by: 

Approved by: 

Popcorn Bags Special Events 111 24.99 ✓ 

Bookshelf Office Supplies J3~ -;'3q ~ 51 76.67 J 

Popcorn 

New Keys & 
Rings 

Special Events ]71--o 'S3<l -~71.. 39.99 ✓ 

Operating 
Supplies 

'1-.1.,t) ··n~ -";;7 
./ 25.89 .1 

Please remember to attach all receipts I 

TOTAL DUE $ 309.71 



811712020 
Poolweb • The Leader ll'I Low-Coat Pool Supplies 

Customer Support 

Search Keyword or Part# 

Shop Departments v 

FREE SHIPPING ON All ORDERS OVER $59 

Thank you! Your order has been 
placed successfully. 

Your order # is 129378579. You will receive an order coajirmation email with details of 
your order and a link to track its progress. 

SKU ltem 

SP10198A Gutter/Dack Grate Only with Screws 2-3/8 Inches Wide - White 

Payment Metho d 

Credit Card 

Billing Address 

Evergree~L M 
Lynzf Chambers 

,_ :Hflw#.~ .coavcneckoutlonepag1ucceu1 

Price QTY Total 

$3.65 4 $14.60 

Subtotal: $14.60 

Tax: $1.34 

Shipping: $5.95 

Grand Total: $21.89 



THANK vnu FOR SliOPPING AT 
TURNER ACE HARDWARE ~lGV 

6205 STATE ROAD 16 
ST , AUGUSTINE Fl 32094 

(904) 907-2424 

PlfASE REMIT PAYM~NI 131M Alll\NIC fllVO 
JACKSONVILlE, Fl 32225 

08/17/20 2:52PM 402 ~ALL 

56051 113 -1 EA 3, 59 EA 0 
HOUSE KEY Vil PK/250. -J,59 
Orts: 878720/4 07/22/20 TX: 
7415144 1 EA 3.99 EA S 
FOAM WASP & IIORNEl 17,501. 3. 99 
Regular Pr1ce: 4.99 
You Saved 1.00 
560511'8 -2 EA 3.59 EA D 
HOUSE KEY Yll PK/250, -7, 18 
Orig: B78720/4 07/22/20 TX: 

SUB-TOTAL:$ 6, /13 TAX: $ - .44 
lUTAI ; $ -7.22 

BC AMT: $ -7.22 

BK CARD#: XXXXXXXXXXXl007 
MID:~****'**2885 T1D:*'*61Z0 
AUfH: 0 AMT: $ -7.22 
Host reference #: 191015 Bat# 
MANUAL 
CARD TYPE:AM EXPRESS EXPR: XXXX 
TxnID/Va !Code: 278036 

Bank card USU$ -7,22 

Ill llll II llllllllllllllllllll 1111 
==» JRNL#891015/4 

CUST N0:•4 
«= 

Name : X __ ___ -- ·-----
I agree to pay above total amount 
acco1dlno to card 1ssudr agreement 
cmerchant agreement 1f credit voucher) 
Acct: CASH CUSTOMER ST 4 

Cu5tomer Copy 

•OU SAYED t .89 lW St()P?ING Acl 
TURNEJI ACE AAROWARE WGV 

Scctsonal 1t811:S ,ue non-reflR!able. 
~etJal Orders are riorMef.tlddble. 

lliA!lK '!I.LI H,P. ~:t1llt'I-l tlu 1\ I 
llJkNtl ALL ttAtlliNARt wnv 

t.LO<.. ~ I A I r ktlAD 1 C 
SI A\J,;U',11 NI: fl J1,l::<0l 

t':J•l4) ri01 24i4 

,-·11,N m~uf f'AYMtNI I JlM ArLANiC ~I yl) 
J;1C~ '/JI~\/ ll I f. , FL 3!.225 

tit /~LI 20 J :t1t,!'M -lU4 SAi f 

!·,bU~ 118 1 ft, :f.3 ~O tA 
IIOIJSE ~(Y Yl I P~, 611 $Ht I' 
59JU037 J , EA 
KEYKRAFT!.R #91:., BRAS , 
5935937 2 f 

$6.3' 
$1.'.)9 l:A 

LI) llN :,i--L I I'\ I klfl, 
5U744 1 [,1 

$]. 18 
$1. 11~ LA 

l\li.V ~CHLAGE :'iC4-Aft 

SUB TOTAL·$ 24.31 TAX: $ 
ful~i t 

'.' : I,. p 

BK CARD#, XXXXIIXXX,( 1Ull7 
MTD:4 HH+~2885 Tl0:H-~b170 

$1 .Y'l 

1 ~tl 
2::..tlY 
L'.l.b'.i 

AUTH· 898037 AMl. $ 2~ 89 
Host 1efere11ce ff : 178720 8dt# 

Aulhor I lni;J Nel11or · AN ; 

Chip Read 
CARti 1 YIJE: Al~ [I.Pi f., · lXPR • X 
AID : ~0000000 50101l0 I 
T\'R : 00000080ll0 
IAD : 064C JJ03b0AU02 
rs1 : faoo 
ARC : 00 
MODI: : Issuer 
CVM · No CVM 
Name : AHERlCAll [XH(E.i 
ATC :0083 
AC : 153O7587CE4D~6FC 
r 1mtD/Va !Code: 4 7969 

Bani-. card 

Ill llllll IIIIIIIIIIUlllllllll Ill 
:~>> JRNL#B78720/4 ~<~~ 

CU~l NO·:i:4 

IHA~ 'iOU :.lNlI CH-'MflfN::l 
FOR YtlJR PA'ff<ilNAGE 



ltl lllffi 'f iolNUI 
~Ill WII 11 l1AI I Ill VIJ 

~AUii AUliU~l l~ I I ;~ 
t ~(.J fl( ,'ill,; 

Sale 
XUWXXXXX1007 
Al'IEX 

Total:$ 

08'14120 

E ntrr rtthed: OuP 

60.00 

lnvn: -
APPrvd: Onlme 

AIHlt:AN I •l'Rl :.S 
A If I; AOOUOOliifdSel UllUl 
TSJ: 1--1300 
IVH:111,l~ 

IIIANI< YIAJ! 

13:U:q3 
fvir,r Code: 835315 

Batch": 227001 

Wat[9~ 
#11165 5445 STATE ROAD 16 
SAINT AUGUSTINE~ Fl 32092 

904-940-:J556 

244 6984 0021 08/14/2020 1:54 PM 

HERS~~~O~fiij5~5~KS KING SZA 30t,gg SALE 
REGULAR PRICE 2.29 or 2/4.00 
REWARDS SAVINGS 0.30 
RETURN VALUE 1.99 

BROOKSIDE DK CHOC CVRD POMGRNT 72 SALE 
06843738908 A 3.99 
REGULAR PRICE 4.99 or 2/9.00 
REWARDS SAVINGS 1.00 
RETURN VALUE 3.99 

GODIVA GOLDMRK GFT BX llPC 4.6702 
03129013295 A 9.99 
RETURN VALUE 9.99 

GHIRARDELLI MLK CHOC W/CRML 3.50Z 
74759960764 A 3.49 
RETURN VALUE 3.49 

(C) HALLMARK TISSUE WHITE 10SH 
76379508782 A 1 • 99 
RETURN VALUE 1.99 

H/MARK BAG BUNDLE 3 LG SOLID B 
76379553858 A 7,99 
RETURN VALUE 7.99 

JACK LINKS ORGNL STEAK BITE 1.502 
01708288600 4. 98 
2@ 2.49 
RETURN VALUE 2.49 ea 

SOUR PATCH WTRMLN THTR BOX 3.SOZ 
07046208251 A 1.00 
1 @ 1.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1.00 

MARS M&MS MC THEATER BOX 3.lOZ 
04000049752 A 1 . 00 
1 @ 1.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1 .00 

JOLLY RANCHER GUMMS ASRT BX 3.SOZ 
01070085840 A 1.00 
101.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1,00 

HERSHEY REESE PIECES THTR BOX 402 
03400011470 A 1.00 
1@ 1.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1.00 

POINT CPN $20,00+ PURCH 

SUBTOTAL 38.42 
SALES TAX A=6.5~ 2.17 

TOTAL 40.59 
AMEX ACCT 1007 40.59 
CHANGE .00 



8/24/2020 Amazon.com - Order 114-0748567-8228211 

Final Details for Order #114-0748567-8228211 
Print this Rage for y:our records. 

Order Placed: August 12, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-0748567-8228211 
Order Total: $26.91 

Shipped on August 13, 2020 

Items Ordered 
1 of: Unicorn Adventure Scratch and Sketch: An Art Activity Book for Creative Kids of All 
Ages, Lee Nemmers 
Sold by: Amazon.com Services LLC 

Condition: New 

1 of: Paint by Sticker Kids: Zoo Animals: Create 10 Pictures One Sticker at a Time!, 
Workman Publishing 
Sold by: Amazon.com Services LLC 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
One-Day Shipping 

Items Ordered 

Shipped on August 13, 2020 

1 of: Komidea DIY Oil Painting, Paint by Number Kits for Kids Beginner, Lovely Owl 
BxBinch 
Sold by: Komidea (seller r;irofile) 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
One-Day Shipping 

Price 
$9.99 

$5.90 

Price 
$9.99 

Payment information 

Payment Method: 
American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Item(s) Subtotal: $25.88 
Shipping & Handling: $0.00 

Billing address Total before tax: $25.88 

https:l/www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_b _invoice_o05?ie=UTF8&orderl D=114-07 48567-8228211 1/2 



8/24/2020 

Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Credit Card transactions 

Amazon .com - Order 114-0748567-8228211 

Estimated tax to be collected: $1.03 

Grand Total: $26.91 

AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 13, 2020: $16.92 
AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 13, 2020: $9.99 

To view the status of your order, return to Order Summarv... 

Conditions of Use I Privacy Notice © 1996-2020, Amazon.com, Inc. or its affiliates 

https://www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_ b _invoice_ o05?ie=UTF8&order1D=114-07 48567-8228211 2/2 



8/24/2020 Amazon.com - Order 114-1498436-6385812 

amazon.com· 
..... ··"'"' 

Final Details for Order #114-1498436-6385812 
Print this i:2age for v.our records. 

Order Placed: August 7, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-1498436-6385812 
Order Total: $76.67 

Shipped on August 8, 2020 

Items Ordered Price 
1 of: VASAGLE Tree Bookshelf, 8-Tier Floor Standing Bookcase, with Wooden Shelves for $71.99 
Living Room, Home Office, Rustic Brown ULBC11BX 
Sold by: Songmics Direct (seller 12rofile) I Product question? Ask Seller 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
One-Day Shipping 

Payment information 

Payment Method: Item(s) Subtotal: $71.99 
Shipping & Handling: $0.00 American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Billing address 
Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Credit Card transactions 

Total before tax: $71.99 
Estimated tax to be collected: $4.68 

Grand Total: $76.67 

AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 8, 2020: $76.67 

To view the status of your order, return to Order Summa[Y... 

Condit ions of Use I PrivacY. Notice © 1996-2020, Amazon.com, Inc. or Its affiliates 

https://www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_b_invoice_o06?ie=UTF8&orderlD=114-1498436-6385812 1/1 



8/24/2020 Amazon.com - Order 114-3587539-2778615 

ama,;on.com· 
" -

Final Details for Order #114-3587539-2778615 
Print this 1:2age for your records. 

Order Placed: August 6, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-3587539-2778615 
Order Total: $64.98 

Shipped on August 8, 2020 

Items Ordered Price 
1 of: 4108 Great Northern Popcorn Premium 8 Ounce Popcorn Portion Packs, Case of 40 $39.99 
Sold by: Amazon.com Services LLC 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
Amazon Day Delivery 

Items Ordered 

Shipped on August 10, 2020 

1 of: 1 oz. Popcorn Bag, Burst Design, 1000 per Case 
Sold by: Snappy Popcorn Co. (seller 1:1rofile) 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
Amazon Day Delivery 

Payment information 

Payment Method: 
American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Price 
$24.99 

Item(s) Subtotal: $64.98 
Shipping & Handling: $0.00 

Billing address 
Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Total before tax: $64.98 
Estimated tax to be collected: $0.00 

Grand Total:$64.98 

Credit Card transactions AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 10, 2020: $24.99 
AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 8, 2020: $39.99 

https:f/www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_b _invoice_ o07?ie=UTF8&orderID= 114-3587539-2778615 1/2 



Page _1_ of 2 --------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

John Harrell 
(Payable to) 

1119 Romaine Circle E, Jacksonville, FL 32225 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

D Association 0 Vendor 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

l_tl~i-m_l~nltl.:"I 

Trivia Night- Adult 

Trivia Night- Family 

52....,i> -53i lf1L 

Bill back to Six Mile Creek CDD 

Please print in Jacksonville corporate office for pick up by 

7/28/2020 

AuthNizeh y: 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

(g_!,OCIJ!) 

07.29.20 

73020 

ASAP 

'·!Iil!J•.•ar 

140 

140 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE $ 280.00 



FAST JAXTRIVIA.com 

Jacksonville, Florida 
(904) 233-7792 
john@fastjaxtrivia.com 

TO 

JOB 

Trivia Host 

DESCRIPTION 

Trivia Nights 

John Harrell 
FastJAXTRIVIA.com 
Jacksonville, Florida 

Jacksonville's Bes! Trivia 
Shows! 

INVOICE NO. 
DATE 
DATE OF SERVICE 

PAYMENT TERMS 

Due on day of service 

170 
7/17/2020 
8/29/2020 

QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL 

INVOICE 

2.00 $140.00 $280.00 

TOTAL DUE 

Make all checks payable to John Harrell 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT! 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$280.00 



Page _1_ of 2 --------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

John Harrell 
(Payable to) 

1119 Romaine Circle E, Jacksonville, FL 32225 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

D Association 0 Vendor 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

, ~ ~-.ll:.rn.!Jll -
Bingo Night- Teen 

3 Z.,<> -}"3'i ·f-7--z.. 

Bill back to Six Mile Creek COD 

Authorizeb y: 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

~~ 

08.27.20 

82720 

ASAP 

,., ... 1,111~,r 

140 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE $ 140.00 



FAST JAXTRIVIA.com 

Jacksonville, Florida 
(904) 233-7792 
john@fastjaxtrivia.com 

TO 

JOB 

Bingo Host 

DESCRIPTION 

Bingo 

John Harrell 
FastJAXTRIVIA.com 
Jacksonville, Florida 

Jocksonville's Best Trivia 
Shows! 

INVOICE NO. 220 
DATE 
DATE OF SERVICE 

PAYMENT TERMS 

Due on day of service 

8/27/2020 
9/25/2020 

QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL 

INVOICE 

1.00 $140 .00 $140.00 

TOTAL DUE 

Make all checks payable to John Harrell 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT! 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$140.00 



Clary & Associates, Inc .. 
3830 Crown Point Road Suite A• Jacksonville, Florida 32257 • (904)260-2703 

INVOICE NO: 2020-384 
DATE: 07/31/20 

4544 
SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, #114 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

ORDERED BY: GREGG KERN 

PHASE 9-DEVELOPER FUNDED LIST 

PAGE 1 

DELIVER TO: 
PER CONTRACT, SEE FILE FROM 
ETM FOR LIMITS 

------- - · u-- - -- -- --~-- ---- ----- -- -- ---------

TREE SURVEY 

DESCRIPTION: 06/12/20 W.O. NO. 2020-384 

SUBDIVISION: TRAILMARK UNIT 9 
SECTION 38 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS TRAILMARK DR 

ST. JOHNS FL ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF PHASE 9: TREE SURVEY OF UPLANDS AND 

IMPACTED WETLANDS 

Minus a credit of 

27,650.00 

TOTAL DUE $~00 

-$3750.00 

TOTAL DUE= $23,900.00 

PAYMENT DUE 10 DAYS FROM RECEIPT 
PLEASE REFER TO INVOICE NUMBER WHEN MAKING PAYMENT 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

3 CY--> • 1 3 ( -I;:, I 

July 31, 2020 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

19200.00000 
0195007 

Project 19200.00000 Six Mile Creek COD-Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#-37) 

f!2L8JJ!~U'!.'.~tr.Yl~t!!..m.n.ct_e1!~Jbt~l.!Q~~M!x.~l~t~~o_ ______________________________________________ _ 
Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Current 
0.00 

Task 02-07 Lump Sum Services 

Task 

2. MDP Modification 
3. Construction Plan Preparation 
4. Landscape Design(Code Design} 
5. SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval 
6. FDEP Water & Sewer Permits 
7. SJRWMD ERP 

Total Fee 

Task XP Expenses 
Consultants 

W.W. Gay Fire & Integrated Systems, Inc 
Total Consultants 

Expenses 

Reproductions 
Delivery/ Messenger Svc 

Total Expenses 

Contract 
Amount 

7,500.00 
76,050.00 

7,400.00 
12,500.00 
5,000.00 

19,200.00 
127,650.00 

Total Fee 

Prior 
7,372.00 

To-Date 
7,372.00 
7,500.00 

128.00 

Total this Task 0.00 

Percent Earned Previously Current 
Complete To Date Billed Billed 

98.00 7,350.00 7,125.00 225.00 
98.00 74,529.00 74,529.00 0.00 
98.00 7,252.00 7,030.00 222.00 
50.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 0.00 
50.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 
90.00 17,280.00 14,400.00 2,880.00 

115,161.00 111,834.00 3,327.00 

3,327.00 

Total this Task $3,327.00 

1.0 times 

400.00 
400.00 

60.72 
71.70 

132.42 

Total this Task 

400.00 

132.42 

$532.42 

Invoice Total this Period ~ 



Outstanding Invoices 

Number 
0194659 
Total 

Date 
7/2/2020 

Balance 
32,635 .50 
32,635.50 

Total Now Due 

En9land· Thim~ & millczr,lnc. 
ENGll>U~S • PLINNERS •SURVEYORS• OIS •LINDSCAPEAAC/!llECTS 

14n5CldSI.Alipl"'l\lod•Jocbonvk,Flo<'da3225a•l~IIO'-Ml·8990•1ax90<-141·9486 

CA-oooo258' LC-0000316 

$36,494.92 

Page 2 



~ 
PLEASE REMIT TO: 

ECS·FLORIDA, llC 
14026 THUNDERBOLT P-L.ACEt SUITE 600 
CHANTILLY, VA 20151 

PROJECT NAME: TrailMark Phase 9 Pond Berm Stability 

St. Johns,. FL. 

TO; Mr. Gregg Kem 
Six Mile Creek Community Development 
c!o Scott \f\/ild, P .E. - England-Thims & M 
14775 Old Saint Augustine Road 

PLEASE DETACH ANO RETURN DUPLICATE COPY WITH YOUR REMITTANCE 

CUSTOMER CODE PROJECT NO. 

513005 

Please Pay 
This Amount; . 

Subtotal: 

tnvoice T otar - Ptease Remit => 

ff you have any questions regarding this invoice, 
please contact Chris Egan at 904.886 .5015 

"' BUDGET SUMi'.\'fARY * 

i Budget EsHnll.?f-.,: 

~reviously Invoiced: $0.00 

~4,500.00 

$0.00 

Amt. This Invoice: 

Amt Remaining : 

I 
A FINANCE CHARGE OF 1,5% PER MONTH (18% ANNUALLY} WILL SE ADDED TO ALL INVOICES UNPAID AFTER 30 DAYS 

I 
I 



CHECK REQUEST FORM 

DISTRICT/ASSOCIATION: >-h' x m/tx {,,1,e ,_g u\n 

AMOUNT REQUESTED: $ 7 7 ,Z {J . 2 3 

REQUESTED BY: J [}jj Ca...._J 

ACCOUNT# 3 l>1> - M 7- /0/ 0 J 

APPROVED BY: A. ~ov~~~ ' 

SIGNATURE: _ -~ ---',,C=== ::;;...._ _____ _ 
.~.,· 



SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS - FY2018 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS $ 481,416 $ 114,362 $ 241,989 $ 125,066 
NET ASSESSMENTS $ 452,531 $ 107,500 $ 227,470 $ 117,562 

2015 2016A 
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL 

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 23.76% 50.27",& 25.98" 100% 

11/6/17 1 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
11/15/17 2 $ 18,378 .05 $ 735.12 $ 352.86 $ $ 17,290.07 $ 4,107.30 $ 8,691.03 $ 4,491.74 $ 17,290.07 
11/28/17 3 $ 242,670.28 $ 9,706.67 $ 4,659.27 $ $ 228,304.34 $ 54,234 .28 $ 114,759.56 $ 59,310.50 $ 228,304 .34 
12/11/17 4 $ 64,669.58 $ 2,586.79 $ 1,241.66 $ $ 60,841.13 $ 14,452.97 $ 30,582.43 $ 15,805.73 $ 60,841 .13 
12/27/17 5 $ 41,818 .80 $ 1,672.76 $ 802.92 $ $ 39,343.12 $ 9,346 .06 $ 19,776.23 $ 10,220.83 $ 39,343 .12 

1/4/17 INT $ $ $ $ 22.62 $ 22.62 $ 5.37 $ 11.37 $ 5.88 $ 22.62 
1/24/18 6 $ 84,609 .34 $ 3,384.39 $ 1,624.50 $ $ 79,600.45 $ 18,909 .29 $ 40,012.00 $ 20,679.16 $ 79,600 .45 
2/26/18 7 $ 12,846.42 $ 341.03 $ 250.11 $ $ 12,255.28 $ 2,911.27 $ 6,160.24 $ 3,183.76 $ 12,255 .28 
3/13/18 8 $ 8,955.04 $ 89.56 $ 177.31 $ $ 8,688.17 $ 2,063.90 $ 4,367.20 $ 2,257.07 $ 8,688 .17 
4/18/18 9 $ 6,933.78 $ $ 138.68 $ $ 6,795.10 $ 1,614.19 $ 3,415.63 $ 1,765.28 $ 6,795 .10 
5/16/18 10 $ 285.80 $ $ $ $ 285.80 $ 67.89 $ 143.66 $ 74.25 $ 285.80 
6/18/18 11 $ 547 .86 $ $ 10.96 $ $ 536.90 $ 127.54 $ 269 .88 $ 139.48 $ 536 .90 
7/10/18 INT $ $ $ $ 6.88 $ 6,88 $ 1.28 $ 6.88 $ 3.25 $ 11.41 
9/17/18 12 $ $ $ $ 8.31 $ 8.31 $ 1.97 $ 5.4 $ 2.83 $ 10.28 
10/30/18 EXCESS $ 4,123.73 $ $ $ $ 4.123.73 $ 979 .60 r-2 ,072.84 1,071.29 $ 4,123.73 

TOTALS $ 485,838.68 $ 18,516.32 $ 9,258.27 37.81 $ 458,101.90 $ 108,822 .93 $ 230,274.43 $ 119,011.04 $ 458,108.41 

3 0-C ~2o1 ~ I.JI OU 



SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS - FYZDZD 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS $ 1,683,766 $ 581,557 $ 228,094 $ 473,316 400,800 
NET ASSESSMENTS $ 1,582,740 $ 546,664 $ 214,408 $ 444,917 376,752 

2015 2016A ZD17A 
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL 

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 34.54% 13.55% 28.11% 23.80% 100% 

11/19/19 $ 6,634.88 $ 265.39 $ 127.39 $ $ 6,242.10 $ 2,155.96 $ ~ 1,754.69 $ 1,485.85 s 6,242.10 
11/25/19 $ 1,075.44 $ 59.15 $ 20.33 $ $ 995.96 $ 344.00 $ ~$ 279.97 $ 237.08 s 995.96 
11/26/19 3 $ 37,676.82 $ 1,507.05 $ 723.40 $ $ 35,446.37 $ 12,242.84 $ ,4,80~ 9,964.17 $ 8,437.57 s 35,446.37 
12/13/19 4 $ 464,864.92 $ 18,595.61 $ 8,925.39 $ $ 437,343.92 $ 151,054.49 $ 5~.3 $ 122,939.73 $ 104,104.27 $ 437,343.92 
12/19/19 $ 59,542.11 $ 2,337.53 $ 1,144.09 $ s 56,060.49 $ 19,362.77 $ 7,594.32 $ 15,758.91 $ 13,344.50 $ 56,060.49 
1/14/20 6 $ 309,908.75 s 12,396.20 $ 5,950.25 $ $ 291,562.30 $ 100,702.89 $ 39,496.91 $ 81,959.73 $ 69,402.77 $ 291,562.30 
1/29/20 7 $ 506,818.18 $ 17,269.13 $ 9,790.98 $ $ 479,758.07 $ 165,703.94 $ 64,991.12 $ 134,862.58 $ 114,200.43 $ 479,758.07 
1/30/20 1-INT $ $ $ $ 1,582.68 $ 1,582.68 $ 546.64 $ 214.40 $ 444.90 $ 376.74 s 1,582.68 
3/30/20 8 $ 27,355.80 s 613.94 s 534.84 $ $ 26,207.02 $ 9,051.66 $ 3,550.17 $ 7,366.93 $ 6,238.25 $ 26,207.02 
4/14/20 2-INT s s s $ 751.41 $ 751.41 $ 259.53 $ 101.79 $ 211.23 $ 178.86 $ 751.41 
5/6/20 9 s 246,300.56 $ 315.32 $ 4,919.70 $ $ 241,065.54 $ 83,261.78 $ 32,656.29 s 67,764.82 $ 57,382.65 $ 241,065.54 
6/10/20 10 s 6,451.36 s $ 129.03 s s 6,322.33 $ 2,183.67 $ 856.46 $ 1,777.24 $ 1,504.95 $ 6,322.33 
7/10/20 3-INT $ s $ $ 19.75 s 19.75 $ 19.75 $ $ $ $ 19.75 
7/13/20 11 $ 17,956.66 $ s 359.13 $ $ 17,597.53 $ 6,078.02 $ 2,383.87 $ 4,946.76 $ 4,188.87 $ 17,597.53 

TOTALS $ 1,684,585.48 $ 53,359.32 $ 32,624.53 2,353.84 $ 1,600,955.47 552,967.95 216,873.07 $ 450,031.65 $ 381,082.80 $ 1,600,955.47 

i, '5, &J-f'1. 3 '9 
DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC $528,333.67 $200,682.43 $327,651.24 
3cn:i · 7,o7- IO I 

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES 
RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2017A&B 
12/13/19 10/15/19 1830 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 

1/6/20 1/1/20 1854 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 
12/10/19 4/1/20 513704 $ 276,249.97 $ 115,206.72 $ 37,920.00 $ 77,286.72 
4/23/20 7/1/20 WIRE $ 50,170.60 $ 12,250.61 $ 12,250.61 $ 
4/23/20 9/30/20 WIRE $ 101,571.88 $ 186,712.64 $ 37,920.00 $ 148,792.64 

$ 528,333.67 $ 414,511.19 $ 188,431.83 $ 226,079.36 



CHECK REQUEST FORM 

DISTRICT/ASSOCIATION: ¾ C;-,v fbr le (4 tel;,. UJ t) DATE: 2/.z.2/2_u 

AMOUNT REQUESTED: 1J / :?._ ,7"'1cJ. /_r ------------

REQUESTED BY:_✓i=--..... LJ.:a......a..""""'·,('---C.....__,;_a_'::::'-...,:::2- ----

ACCOUNT# J t> o - h , - I o .2-.o u __,;;.._;;;...._ '--=,. _ ____,;;. _ ____;;;._ ___ _ 

DEscR1PT10N oF NEED:---=5;,__H..:..7--=~::....._~L...i.\,aS;.:__t~ 1_· - ~-k~L-=<1~.1..1..'c...::.&:;,.__.,,.::;A.::.L...asw;£<~ s~s:=~::....;,.,;:='-::;__------



SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS - FY2018 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS $ 481,416 $ 114,362 $ 241,989 $ 125,066 
NET ASSESSMENTS $ 452,531 $ 107,500 $ 227,470 $ 117,562 

2015 2016A 
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL 

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 23.76% 50.27% 25.98% 100% 

11/6/17 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
11/15/17 $ 18,378.05 $ 735.12 $ 352.86 $ $ 17,290.07 $ 4,107.30 $ 8,691.03 $ 4,491.74 $ 17,290.07 
11/28/17 $ 242,670.28 $ 9,706.67 $ 4,659.27 $ $ 228,304.34 $ 54,234.28 $ 114,759.56 $ 59,310.50 $ 228,304.34 
12/11/17 4 $ 64,669.58 $ 2,586.79 $ 1,241.66 $ $ 60,841.13 $ 14,452.97 $ 30,582.43 $ 15,805.73 $ 60,841.13 
12/27/17 s $ 41,818.80 $ 1,672.76 $ 802.92 $ $ 39,343.12 $ 9,346.06 $ 19,776.23 $ 10,220.83 $ 39,343.12 

1/4/17 INT $ $ $ $ 22.62 $ 22.62 $ 5.37 $ 11.37 $ 5.88 $ 22.62 
1/24/18 6 $ 84,609.34 $ 3,384.39 $ 1,624.50 $ $ 79,600.45 $ 18,909.29 $ 40,012.00 $ 20,679.16 $ 79,600.45 
2/26/18 7 $ 12,846.42 $ 341.03 $ 250.11 $ $ 12,255.28 $ 2,911.27 $ 6,160.24 $ 3,183.76 $ 12,255.28 
3/13/18 8 $ 8,955.04 $ 89.56 $ 177.31 $ $ 8,688.17 $ 2,063.90 $ 4,367.20 $ 2,257.07 $ 8,688.17 
4/18/18 9 $ 6,933.78 $ $ 138.68 $ $ 6,795.10 $ 1,614.19 $ 3,415.63 $ 1,765.28 $ 6,795.10 
5/16/18 10 $ 285.80 $ $ $ $ 285.80 $ 67.89 $ 143.66 $ 74.25 $ 285.80 
6/18/18 11 $ 547.86 $ $ 10.96 $ $ 536.90 $ 127.54 $ 269.88 $ 139.48 $ 536.90 
7/10/18 INT $ $ $ $ 6.88 $ 6.88 $ 1.28 $ 6.88 $ 3.25 $ 11.41 
9/17/18 12 $ $ $ $ 8.31 $ 8.31 $ 1.97 $ 5.48 $ ~$ 10.28 
10/30/18 EXCESS $ 4,123.73 $ $ $ $ 4,123.73 $ 979.60 $ 2,072.84 $ 1,071.29 $ 4,123.73 -TOTALS $ 48S,838.68 $ 18,516.32 $ 9,258.27 $ 37.81 $ 458,101.90 $ 108,822.93 $ 230,274.43 $ 119,011.04 $ 458,108.41 

300 '2.o7- /w -z. 



SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS • FY2020 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS 1,683,766 $ 581,557 228,094 $ 473,316 400,800 
NET ASSESSMENTS 1,S82,740 $ 546,664 214,408 $ 444,917 376,752 

2015 2016A 2017A 
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL 

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 34.54% 13.55% 28.11% 23.80% 100% 

11/19/19 s 6,634.88 s 265 .39 s 127.39 s s 6,242. 10 s 2,155.96 s 84S.60 $~ 1,485.85 s 6,242.10 
11/2S/19 2 s 1,075 .44 $ S9.1S s 20.33 s s 995 .96 s 344 .00 s 134,92 

$~ 
237.08 $ 995.96 

11/26/19 3 $ 37,676.82 $ 1,507.05 $ 723 .40 s $ 35,446.37 $ 12,242.84 $ 4,801 .79 $ 9,964.17 8,437.57 $ 35,446 .37 
12/13/19 4 $ 464,864 .92 $ 18,595 .61 s 8,925.39 $ $ 437,343.92 s 151,054.49 $ 59,245 .43 $ 122,939. $ 104,104.27 $ 437,343 .92 
12/19/19 s $ 59,542 .11 $ 2,337 .53 s 1,144.09 s $ 56,060.49 s 19,362.77 $ 7,594 .32 $ 15,758.91 $ 13,344.50 $ 56,060.49 
1/14/20 6 s 309,908.75 s 12,396.20 s 5,950.25 s s 291,562.30 s 100,702.89 s 39,496 .91 $ 81,959.73 $ 69,402.77 s 291,562.30 
1/29/20 7 s 506,818.18 s 17,269.13 s 9,790.98 s s 479,758.07 s 165,703.94 s 64,991.12 $ 134,862.58 s 114,200.43 $ 479,758.07 
1/ 30/20 1-INT s s $ s 1,582.68 s 1,582.68 s 546,64 s 214 .40 $ 444.90 $ 376.74 $ 1,582.68 
3/30/20 8 $ 27,355.80 $ 613.94 $ 534.84 $ s 26,207.02 $ 9,051.66 s 3,550.17 s 7,366.93 $ 6,238.25 $ 26,207.02 
4/14/20 2-INT $ $ $ $ 751.41 $ 751.41 $ 259.53 s 101.79 $ 211,23 $ 178.86 $ 751.41 
5/6/20 9 $ 246,300.56 s 315.32 s 4,919.70 $ $ 241,065.54 s 83,261.78 $ 32,656.29 s 67,764.82 $ 57,382.65 $ 241,065.54 

6/10/20 10 s 6,451.36 s $ 129.03 $ s 6,322.33 $ 2,183.67 $ 856.46 $ 1,777.24 $ 1,504.95 $ 6,322.33 
7/10/20 3-INT $ $ $ $ 19.75 $ 19.75 $ 19.75 s $ $ s 19.75 
7/13/20 11 $ 17,956.66 s s 359.13 $ $ 17,597.53 $ 6,078.02 $ 2,383.87 s 4,946.76 $ 4,188.87 $ 17,597 .53 

TOTAlS 1,684,585.48 53,359 .32 $ 32,624.53 2,353.84 $ 1,600,955.47 552,967.95 216,873 .07 450 ,031.65 381,082 .80 $ 1,600,955 .47 

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS f> II , "7 '~ · $' <,, 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC $528,333.67 $200,682.43 $327,651.24 3ov · h>7- lu'Z.-

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES 
RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2017A&B 

12/13/19 10/15/19 1830 s 50,170.61 s 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 s . 
1/6/20 1/1/20 1854 s 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 

12/10/19 4/1/20 513704 $ 276,249.97 s 115,206.72 $ 37,920.00 s 77,286.72 
4/23/20 7/1/20 WIRE $ 50,170.60 s 12,250.61 s 12,250.61 s 
4/23/20 9/30/20 WIRE $ 101,571.88 s 186,712.64 s 37,920.00 s 148,792 .64 

$ 528,333.67 $ 414,511.19 $ 188,431.83 $ 226,079.36 



CHECK REQUEST FORM 

DISTRICT/Assoc1ATION: '--£.,' x /h, l .: Ctr J C 1\b:, 

AMOUNT REQUESTED: $ 9, 92 3, j/ 2 
I 

REQUESTED BY: ✓ 0J ~ 

ACCOUNT# ,3 0o -- 2o7- lo t- f )u 

APPROVED BY: A. Lovera 

SIGNATURE:- ~--------,,.- -s:=- -·------

' 



SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS • FY2020 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS 1,683,766 581,557 228,094 473,316 400,800 
NET ASSESSMENTS 1,582,740 546,664 214,408 444,917 376,752 

2015 2016A 2017A 
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL 

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 34.54% 13.55% 28.11% 23.80% 100% 

11/19/19 $ 6,634.88 $ 265.39 $ 127.39 $ $ 6,242.10 $ 2,155.96 $ 845.60 $ 1,754.69 $~ 6,242.10 
11/25/19 2 $ 1,075.44 $ 59.15 $ 20.33 $ $ 995,96 $ 344.00 $ 134.92 $ 279.97 $ ~ 995.96 
11/26/19 3 $ 37,676.82 $ 1,507.05 $ 723.40 $ $ 35,446.37 $ 12,242.84 $ 4,801.79 $ 9,964.17 $ <ii,43UZ-4 35,446.37 
12/13/19 4 $ 464,864.92 $ 18,595.61 $ 8,925.39 $ $ 437,343.92 $ 151,054.49 $ 59,245.43 $ 122,939.73 $ 104,104.27 $ 437,343.92 
12/19/19 5 $ 59,542.11 $ 2,337.53 $ 1,144.09 $ $ 56,060.49 $ 19,362.77 $ 7,594.32 $ 15,758.91 $ 13,344.50 $ 56,060.49 
1/14/20 6 $ 309,908.75 $ 12,396.20 $ 5,950.25 $ $ 291,562.30 $ 100,702.89 $ 39,496.91 $ 81,959.73 $ 69,402.77 $ 291,562.30 
1/29/20 7 $ 506,818.18 $ 17,269.13 $ 9,790.98 $ $ 479,758.07 $ 165,703.94 $ 64,991.12 $ 134,862.58 $ 114,200.43 $ 479,758.07 
1/30/20 1-INT $ $ $ $ 1,582.68 $ 1,582.68 $ 546.64 $ 214.40 $ 444.90 $ 376.74 $ 1,582.68 
3/30/20 8 $ 27,355.80 $ 613.94 $ 534.84 $ $ 26,207.02 $ 9,051.66 $ 3,550.17 $ 7,366.93 $ 6,238.25 $ 26,207.02 
4/14/20 2-INT $ $ $ $ 751.41 $ 751.41 $ 259.53 $ 101.79 $ 211.23 $ 178.86 $ 751.41 
5/6/20 9 $ 246,300.56 $ 315.32 $ 4,919.70 $ $ 241,065.54 $ 83,261.78 $ 32,656.29 $ 67,764.82 $ 57,382.65 $ 241,065.54 
6/10/20 10 $ 6,451.36 $ $ 129.03 $ $ 6,322.33 $ 2,183.67 $ 856.46 $ 1,777.24 $ 1,504.95 $ 6,322.33 
7/10/20 3-INT $ $ $ $ 19.75 $ 19.75 $ 19.75 $ $ $ $ 19.75 
7/13/20 11 $ 17,956.66 $ $ 359.13 $ $ 17,597.53 $ 6,078.02 $ 2,383.87 $ 4,946.76 $ 4,188.87 $ 17,597.53 

TOTALS $ 1,684,585.48 $ 53,359.32 $ 32,624.53 $ 2,353.84 $ 1,600,955.47 552,967.95 $ 216,873.07 450,031.65 $ 381,082.80 $ 1,600,955.47 

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS ~ '7 ,?Z3·.,./z 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC $528,333.67 $200,682.43 $327,651.24 "3.::>1:> --Zi>, .. ,.,c.,, 
DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES 

RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2017A&B 
12/13/19 10/15/19 1830 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 

1/6/20 1/1/20 1854 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 50,170.61 $ 
12/10/19 4/1/20 513704 $ 276,249.97 $ 115,206.72 $ 37,920.00 $ 77,286.72 
4/23/20 7/1/20 WIRE $ 50,170.60 $ 12,250.61 $ 12,250.61 $ 
4/23/20 9/30/20 WIRE $ 101,571.88 $ 186,712.64 $ 37,920.00 $ 148,792.64 

$ 528,333.67 $ 414,511.19 $ 188,431.83 $ 226,079.36 



CHECK REQUEST FORM 

DISTR1cr/ASsoc1AT10N: t G' 1e /hr Ze C1 Le.R: C-iJ r~ DATE: 9 /2.:z./ 2iJ ------'-----

AMOUNT REQUESTED: @ ~. Cc O - C:U 

REQUESTED BY: ., fl ',S ~ 
-<..> 

ACCOUNT# , 715/> -d, b 7- /o ,C:b i) 
I 

DESCRIPTION OF NEED: 

APPROVED BY: A£=. ~•r· 
SIGNATURE: ~ ~~'¥----= =- -------,, 



AT&T 

Monthly Statement 

Bill-At-A-Glance 

Previous Bill 

Payment Received 8-25 Thank You! 

Adjustments 

Balance 

Current Charges 

Total Amount Due 

Amount Due in Full by 

Billing Summary 

Online: att.com/myatt 

Plans and Services 
1 800-321-2000 
PIN: 3592 

Repair Service: 
1 866 620-6900 

AT&T Long Distance Service 
1 800 321-2000 

Total Current Charges 

Page 

News You Can Use Summary 

193.32 

193.32CR 

.00 

.00 

192.72 

$192.72 

Sep 30,2020 

166.55 

26.17 

192.72 

• PREVENT DISCONNECT • CARRIER INFORMATION 
• PAPERLESS BILLING • FEE DESCRIPTIONS 
• COST ASSESSMENT CHRG 
See "News You Can Use• for additional information. 

Return bottom portion with your check in the encloaed enV810pic. 

DUE BY: Sep 30, 2020 $192.72 

~ 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GRP 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL34771-8588 

RECEIVED 

SEP 2 12020 

BY: ____ _ 

Plans and Services 

Mo■thl Service • Sa 8 thru Oct 7 
1. Bus Local Call Unlimited A 

Business Line 
Three-Way Calling 
Remote Activation of Call 
Forwarding 

Page 
Account Nu11ber 

Billing Date 

Web Site 

Enhanced Caller ID Anonymous 
Call Blocking 

Surcharges and Other Fees 
Item 

1 of 2 :!:LP')J) 
904 940-0687 001 0562 
Sep 8, 2020 

au.com 

No. Description 
2. Cost Assessment Charge 

Quantity 
1 7.50 

1.72 
6.50 

15.72 

3. Federal Universal Service Fee 
4. Federal Subscriber Line Charge 

Total Surcharges and Other Fees 

Gover■menl Fees and Taxes 
Item 
No. Description 

5. Federal Excise Tax 
6. FL - State Communications Tax 
7. FL- Local Communications Tax 
8. Telecommunications Access 

System Act Surcharge 
9. Emergency 911 Service 

Total Go111mment Fees and Tax:es 

Total Plans and Services 

AT&T Long Distance Service 

Moathly Service 
Charges for 904 94D-Dli87 

Type of Service 
10. Bus Unlimited Gig 111 Plan Monthly Fee 

Surcha1rges and Other Fees 
11. Federal Universal Service Fee 
12. Federal Regulatory Fee 

Total Surcharges and Other Fees 

Gover■menl Fees and Taxes 
13. FL- State Communications Tax 
14. FL- Local Communications Tax 

Total Government Fees and Taxes 

Total AT&T Long Distance Service 

Local Services provided by AT&T Florida. 

1 
1 

Period 
08/17-09/16 

4.16 
10.99 
3.16. 
.12 · 

.40 
18.83 

166.55 

20.00 

2.99 
.90 

3.89 

1.77 
.51 

2.28 

26.17 

@ Printed on Recyclable Paper 

Amount After Oct 8, 2020 $207.72 

~ ~ AT&T 
Billing Date Sep 8, 2020 Account Number 904 940-0687 001 0562 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GRP 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINTGLOUD FL 34771-8588 

'--.._» 
Please include your account number on your check. 

Make checks payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105262 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5262 

II 1lh 11111I11111111111111 Ill' 11I111 Ill I I I llh "I ,11111111111 I 111 

3900 90494006870014 2001500999920 0560200000000000000000019272 



--

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GRP 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

Page 

Account Number 
Billing Date 

2 of 2 

904 940-0687 001 0562 
Sep 8, 2020 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

AT&T 

News You Can Use 

PREVENT DISCONNECT 
Thank you for being a valued customer. Please be aware that all charges must be 
paid each month to keep your account current and prevent collection activities. We 
are required to inform you that certain charges must be paid in order to prevent 
interruption aflocal service. THESE CHARGES ARE ALREADY INCLUDED IN THE 
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE AND ARE $192.12-Also, neglecting to pay for remaining 
charges may result in interruption or removal of these remaining services or further 
collection action, but will not result in disconnection of your local service. Far mare 
information, call the Plans and Services number listed in the Billing Summary 
section on page 1. 

CARRIER INFORMATION 
Our records indicate that you have selected AT&T Lang Distance Service or a 
company that resells their services as your primary local toll carrier and AT&T Long 
Distance Service or a company that resells their services as your primary long 
distance carrier. Please contact us if this does not agree with your records. 

PAPERLESS BILLING 
Wantto stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? 
Enroll atan.com/paperless. 

FEE DESCRIPTIONS 
The Administrative Expense Fee recovers a portion of AT&T's internal costs 
associated with the Federal Communications Commission's Universal Service 
fund and related programs. The Federal Regulatory Fee recovers amounts paid to 
the federal government for regulatory costs and telecommunications services for 
th.e hearing impaired, and costs associated with local number portability 
administration. These fees are not ta,ces or charges that the government requires 
AT&T to collect from its customers. 

COST ASSESSMENT CHRG 
AT&T charges you this monthly per line amauntto recover its ongoing casts 
incurred for property taxes and supporting the administration of local number 
portability, a government program that enables customers to retain their 
telephone number when changing service providers. This fee is not a ta,c or 
charge thatthe government requires AT&T to collect from its customers. 

1Cl2008 AT&T lnt•ll•ctual Property. All rights rasarvad. 

9489.009.093661.01 .01 .0000000 NNNNNNNY 014091.014091 

8898·LLL17£ 1:1 an01::i lNl'liS 
3 llNn 3A'li Nllll\l'vH 8O17L 

dl:!81N311\11S3ANI )1331::1::l 37111\1 XIS 

111 uh 11111111111 I Ip 1II 111 I 111 I 11 h 11' Iii 1111111111111 • • h 11111 
JW 6L17"O 8'1' L L99£6'LL17"6'68176 

I 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222. 7500 

================================= STATEMENT================================= 

August 31, 2020 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Bill Number 117109 
Billed through 07/31/2020 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 

General Counsel 
SIXCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
07 /02/20 WSH Respond to auditor inquiry; confer with Chambers regarding waivers. 

07/09/20 KFJ 

07 /10/20 KFJ 

07 /13/20 WSH 

07/16/20 WSH 

07/17/20 WSH 

07/20/20 WSH 

07/21/20 WSH 

07/21/20 KFJ 

07/22/20 KFJ 

07/28/20 KFJ 

Confer with Haber regarding bond closing documents. 

Correspond with ban counsel regarding recorded closing documents; confer 
with Haber. 

Review correspondence and confer with Oliver regarding farmer's market. 

Review and finalize O&M assessment notices. 

Review correspondence from newspaper regarding publication of notice; confer 
with Sweeting regarding same; prepare correspondence to Oliver and Mossing 
regarding request from JLAC. 

Review response to JLAC regarding audit finding; confer with Mossing regarding 
same. 

Review public records request. 

Prepare budget hearing documents; confer with Haber. 

Research general election candidate information. 

Confer with Haber regarding bond closing documents; prepare disclosure of 
public financing. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

2.50 hrs 
2.40 hrs 

125 /hr 
235 /hr 

0.50 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

a.so hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.90 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

1.00 hrs 

$876.50 

$312.50 
$564.00 

$876.50 



Six Mile Creek CDD - General C Bill No. 117109 Page 2 

--======---=-========-===-=======--===-=============================================--= 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 

Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

2.50 hrs 

2.40 hrs 

125 /hr 

235 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

$876.50 

$312.50 

$564.00 

$876.50 

$876.50 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

••MULTIPLE DAYS WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SA11JRDAV) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE SAME INVOICE"* 
**PliASE FILL IN All YELLOW B@X6S,.. 

*INVe!CES ARE BUE EACH M@NBAY BY 8AM-SEN9 Te RMNELSeN@SJS8,eRG*• t------------- " REMIT PAYMENT TO: 
Robert M. Nelson 

DATE CAE># TOTAlfi>UE 

Friday, September 18, 2020 SJSO20CAD179228 5:00 PM 8:00 PM 3 $120.H 
Mond a , September 21, 2020 SJSO20CAD180667 6:30AM 11 :30AM 5 $2H.H 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 
SJSO20CAD 
SJSO20CAD 
SJSO20CAD 

ACTIVITY/ COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40 .00 8 $320 .M 

olf cart violations- 0 #lJ'1-
SRw,-i~ ~rve, -

eathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - 0 22..i :51~ -~ 

Citizen Assist-0 
SEP 2 3 2020 i' , 

t, 

Responded to a call for service in the neighborhood. 
BY:----

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. 

NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

revised 2-10-2020 



St Augustine Fence & Outdoor Construction 
4701 State Road 16 St Augustine, FL 32092 
904-687-6087 Office 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

License # BL-5361 9/10/2020 8273 
www .outdoorconstruction.net 

Bill To APPR@VED 
6 Mile Creed CDD 
805 Trailmark Drive 

By Alex Boyer at 1 :30 pm, Sep 17, 2020 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 
Amenity-Facility MaintenancenEc fE:~'\'r~ 

#14(, ,• i 
:Qo·tkS· 411~ u··,, SEP 11 2029 ii 

I t 
BY: ____ _ 

Description Amount 

( 1 )- Service Call 463.50 

Repair (2) Gate Closures 
* Remove The Existing Gate Closures on (2) Gates 
* Install (2) New Gate Closures 

* Will Bill Upon Completion * 

Customer must assume responsibility for placement of fence unless all appropriate survey pins are 
uncovered. St Augustine Fence Inc. will assist in locating pins if survey is provided. All material will Total $463.50 
remain property of St Aug.Fence Inc until paid in full. Payment Terms: 50% Deposit and Balance Due on 
Completion . There is a 3% Service Charge to pay by credit card. By execution of this document , Buyer 

Payments $0.00 acknowledges that he/she has read and understands the terms and conditions set forth. St Augustine Fence 
Inc. is not responsible for damage to underground obstructions such as utilities,sprinkler lines, pipes, etc. 
Customer will be charged $35.00 for returned checks for payment. Customer is responsible for any legal Balance Due 
fees due to non payment. Cancelled orders will be subject to a 50% restocking fee. Customer is $463.50 
responsibl e for invoices not paid within terms & will be charged a 1.5% monthly service charge . 

Please remit payment to: E-mail Web Site 

4701 SR 16 
St Aul!ustine. FL 32092 estimates @staugoutdoorconstruction.net www.outdoorconstruction.n et 



SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROU 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Page: 1 of2 
Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

Sep 21, 2020 

257295491 OcRO 

Please pay immediately to avoid interruption of service and additional fees. If service is 
suspended due to non-payment then service is restored, a Restoral Fee of up to $35 will be 
charged on your next bill. 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
attcom/paperless 

Auto Pay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today . 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Past due - please pay immediately 

Service summary 

~ Internet 

Phone 

Page2 

Page2 

Total services - due Oct 13, 2020 

Total due 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

.D. att.com/pay 

$124.35 

$124.35 

$74.90 

$49.45 

$248.70 

J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post 

Total due: $248.70 

Total due 

$248.70 

Due immediately: $124.35 

Due Oct 13, 2020: $124.35 

.. --'.., 

c::T O 2 2020 
H .... 

:tr29-
f0'rwlll/t!A~'-fr.tf t..,,.,-Oc.i 2.0 

J ]O -.fJl, ·lf t 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROU 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE Due immediately: $124.35 Due Oct 13, 2020: $124.35 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FOR AUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Account number: 257295491 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

111111 II I h I I I I I h 11111 I ,I 111 I 111 ill Ii I h I,, I• 11111 I' I II I 11 I I 11 I I ' 

410040560002572954917000000012435000000024870000005 



... 
R AT&T 
"- ._? 

Service activity 

~ Internet 

Monthly charges 

1. Internet SOM/ 10M 
(Promotional Offer) 

Surcharges & fees 

2. Cost Assessment Charge 

Total for Internet 

Phone 

Monthly charges 

1. Phone Unlimited N. America 904.940.0697 
(Promotional Offer) 

Surcharges & fees 

2. Cost Assessment Charge 

3. FL County 911 Service Fee 

4. Federal Universal Service Charge 

Government taxes & fees 

5. FL Gross Receipts Tax 

6. FL Local Communications Tax 

7. FL State Communications Tax 

Total for Phone 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Sep 22 - Oct 21 

Sep 22 - Oct 21 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 
present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 

Printed on Recyclable Paper 

·pa1npa4:is uaaq 
se4 iledo+nif 1-e41-spa1JaJ a:iJOALI! Jno-4: JO auo a6ed 111-un :i.uaw,';ed 

1-1wqn\ 01-anuquo) ·paJJa a)!e+ 01-iledo+nif JOJ sapilJ 6u1111q 2-L 
il>Jel p1no::> 1-uaw110Jua JnOA ·111q ,<;w uo pa:,su Jaqwnu aJe:i Jawo:,sn:i 

a41-6uu1e:i ilq JO wo::i·ne·MMM 1-e l '81 if 6U!AJ.!lOU ilq uo11-eZJJ041-ne 
1a:iue:i ue:i I ·1-uno:i:ie )jueq ilw WOJJ ilauow 6u1pnpap i\11e:i1u0Jpa1a 

i\q i\141-uow 111q AW ,';ed Ol 1'81 it azpo4:i.ne I 'AedO+n'o' LI! IIOJUa I JI 

--

Page: 2 of 2 

Issue Date: Sep 21, 2020 

257295491 Account Number: 

$70.00 

$4.90 

$74.90 

$37.50 

$0.92 

$0.40 

$6.44 

$1.03 

$0.93 

$2.23 

$49.45 

be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 
save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay atatt.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

AT&T U-verse 5
M TV,AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 

Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

2770.024.228054.01 .01 .0000000 NNNNNNNY 006767.006767 

8898·lLLI,£ l::l ano1::i .iNIVS 
3 .ilNn 3/\\1 NlllNVH 80vl 

nol::18 .iN31N.iS3J\NI )1331:l:J 3711N XIS 

11 I h I I 11 I h I II IP 11 I II I 111111 h 11111III111111111111I1111111 • • 11 • 

ob 68£"0 J\V l v908c':c':"1,9l l"vc':"0LLZ 

■ 



SIX MILE CREEK COD 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Page: 1 of2 
Issue Date: Sep 19, 2020 
Account Number: 156327439 

Please pay immediately to avoid interruption of service and additional fees. If service is 
suspended due to non-payment then service is restored, a Restoral Fee of up to $35 will be 
charged on your next bill. 

Total due 

$224.08 Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
att.com/paperless 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today. 

Due immediately: $112.04 

Due Oct 11, 2020: $112.04 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Past due - please pay immediately 

Service summary 

@ Internet 

J Phone 

Page2 

Page2 

Total services - due Oct 11, 2020 

Total due 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

J:J. att.com/pay 

$112.04 

$112.04 

$0.00 

$112.04 

$224.08 

J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

RECEIVED 

SEP 2 8 20?0 

~21,, 
Aicifll-/ tkiurr1,lt )rve, • Oc_t 20 

330-sJt ·41 

... Return this portion with your check in the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post 

R AT&T 
~ 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FOR AUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Total due: $224.08 
Due immediately: $112.04 Due Oct 11, 2020: $112.04 

Account number: 156327439 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

11•11111 •II •h 111' 111111•111111111 I I I• 11' 1111111111111 II I I' I 11111 

41 □□ 4 □ 56 □□□ 15632743920000 □ 00112 □ 4 □ 00 □ 0 □□224080 □ 0006 

i 
' 



Service activity 

~ Internet 

Monthly charges 
1. Internet 12 

(Promotonal Offer) 

2. Internet Equipment Fee 
(Promotional Offer) 

Total for Internet 

Phone 

Monthly charges 
1. Phone Unlimited N. America 904.295.8161 

2. Non-Published Quantity - 1 904.295.8161 
(Complimentary Rate) 

3. Phone 904.295.8162 

Surcharges & fees 
4. Cost Assessment Charge 

5. FL County 911 Service Fee 

6. Federal Universal Service Charge 

Government taxes & fees 
7. FL Gross Receipts Tax 

8. FL Local Communications Tax 

9. FL State Communications Tax 

Total for Phone 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Sep 20 - Oct 19 

Sep 20 - Oct 19 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 

Printed on Recyclable Paper 

·pa1npatps uaaq 
se4 Aed□ln\f le4l spa1,1aJ a::it□AU! Jnoi\ ,10 auo a6ed n:i.un waw,{ed 

l!Wqns Ol anU!lUO) ·pa,!,!a a)lel Ol AedO+nv JOJ sap/\:, 6U!ll!Q 2-L 
a)le, p1no::i lUaUJll□Jua mo;. ·111q AUJ uo palS!I Jaqwnu aJe::i JaW□lSn::J 

a416u111e::i ,<q Jo UJO::J'lWMMM le 1 '81\f fiLI!AJ!lOU ,<q uo1:i.ezpotnne 
1a::iue::i ue::i 1 ·wno::i::,e >1ueq ,{w woJ,1 i\auoUJ 6u1pnpap i<11e::i1u0Jpa1a 

i\q 1114:i.uoUJ ll!Q i\UJ i\ed Ol 1'81\f azpotnne 1 'i\ed□ln\f U! 110Jua 1,11 

Page: 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$55.00 

$0.00 

$30.00 

$2.08 

$0.80 

$14.61 

$2.36 

$2.13 

$5.06 

$112.04 

2of2 
Sep 19, 2020 

156327439 

present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 
be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 
save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay at att.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

AT&T U-verse5
M TV, AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 

Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

2308.026.256258.01 .01 .0000000 NNNNNNNY 004897.004897 

8899·lLLl,£ 1::1 ano10 lNIVS 
3 llNn 3AV NllltWH 901,l 

aao >133ll:) 371lt'J XIS 

11I11111111111.111111111111111 II 1111I I I• II I II•• 1 h 11 • •1'•I1111111 
OJ 68£'0 AV l 89c99c'96cl'9c'90E:G 

-



Advanced ADVANCED DISPOSAL 
ST JOHNS COUNTY - PW 

Disposal 7580 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE FL 32256 

RECEIVED 

SEP 2 9 2020 

Pay By Phone: 1-877-720-1583 
Phone PIN: 2020035480000 

Ad\Janced Disposal is a company bringing fresh ideas and 
-------➔-'-~' iE'' t11,s to a clean environment. How can we further help 

your business or home become greener and cleaner? Visit 

us at www .. AdvancedDlsposatcom. 

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED 

000753 000000024 

ll11111111111111•1•1•h111111111•11•1111•111111111••11•111111111• ~ 

Should yoµ have qUe$tions about charges, pl1:1as13 see the 
back of this invoice, call your service representative or go to 
www.AdvancedDlsposal;com. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMNT DIST 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Thank. you for your business! 

---
Account Information Previous Balance $171.96 
Account Number PW003548 09/10/20 LOCKBOXAUTOMATED -$171.96 
Site Number 0000 Payments and Adjustments -$171.96 
Invoice Date September 30, 2020 

I Invoice Number PW0000091370 TRAILMARK AMENITY CENTER (0001) 

r 
Account SummaQl 
Previous Balance $171.96 

805 TRAILMARK DR ST AUGUSTINE, FL 

Payments/ Adjustments -$171.96 
Current Invoice Amount $171 .87 Date Description Reference ~ Unit Price Amount 

1.00-4.00YD:COMM FL TRASH (001) 

09/30/20 TRASH STANDARD frtJ' R.t,-1o~rA 
1.00 109.00 109.00 

Amount Due $171.87 SERVICE : 

Due Date Upon Receipt 10/01/20.:1.QQ.1/20 330-)'.)t ·l\3] 

Invoice Breakdown 
09/30/20 ENERGY CHARGE 1.00 10.74 10.74 

$171.87 
09/30/20 ENVIRONMENTAL CHARGE 1.00 26.16 26.16 

Current 
30 days - past due $0 .00 
60 days - past due $0.00 St Johns South Comm FF 145.90 7.29 
90 days - past due $0.00 SITE TOTAL 153.19 

It's easy being Green ... sign up 09/30/20 CADMIN FEE SC95601 1.00 7.00 7.00 
for ebill and auto pay at 

http:/fwww.AdvancedDisposal .com/billpay 
09/30/20 COMPLIANCE AND SC95602 1.00 10.79 10.79 

Contact Us 
(904) 783-7000 

JacksonvilleFL@AdvancedDisposal.com 

PW 2009211001 .txt-1505-000000024 

Online Bill Pay 
Great for regular payments 

Vitli www.,dvanc:tddl11posal.c:om/b,1l1pay tq 
enrol) In onllne_ t.,111 pay m11th!!fla: · 

With the Advtinced Oiaposar onllne bill o,yment 
system. you ere able-lo:_ 

• Make a one-time payment 

• Setup your account-for. automatic recurring 
paymeots 

If you would lika assistance, please contact us 
at.1-800-355-2108 and Yi$ w!IU,e. happy to assist 
IYQ.u In getting set up. 

BUSINESS IMPACT 

CHARGE 

St Johns South Comm FF 

How to Pay Your Bill 

Pay by Mail A. 
Bestfor sending a regular check· ~ 
Please mail your check made payable to 
Advaneed Oispaial to address uste_d below, 

Pleiase do not $end correiipondeoc:e to tl:ll$ 
eddren. 

Fllease_ assi.st UJ by lncludl _llll the famlt:tence 
portion (the perforated bottom section of yo.ur 
!nV(ilca) along With )'QI.Ir check or money-orderto 
ensure your payment Is posted qulck~y and 
accurately. 

17.79 

Pay by Phone 
Good for a one tirnepayment 

C.all 14177~7204581 to make your payment by 
i'>l'lone. 

ITQ en,ure fastest s11rv1ca, please have your 
Phone PIN ready, \1/hich can be found at the top 
of your invoice. 

We accept Mas1erCard,Vlsa, American Express 
an,;! Dlacover .. A_n automt1ted voice service Wi_ll 
process your payment. This option Is ideal far 
making single payments. 

0.89 

o~DiSp)UA PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT Printed on recycled paper 0 

ADVANCED DISPOSAL 
ST JOHNS COUNTY - PW 
7580 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE FL 32256 

Please Send All Correspondence to Above Address 

□ 
IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW. CHECK CARD USING FOR PAYMENT 

CARD NUMBER AMOUNT PAID O v1sA 

0 MASTER CARD 

SIGNATURE EXP. DATE □ AMERICAN EXP 

0 DISCOVER 

ACCOUNT# INVOICE# AMT. ENCLOSED 
PW003548 PW0000091370 

INVOICE TOTAL BALANCE DUE 

$171.87 $171.87 

Please check box for address change 
and print new address on reverse side. 

Due Date: Upon Receipt 

Customer Billing Address: 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMNT DIST 
1408 HAMLIN AVENUE 
UNITE 
ST CLOUD, FL 34471 

Remit Payment To: 
(Please do not send CASH via mail) 
Advanced Disposal 
St Johns County - PW 
PO BOX 743019 
ATLANTA GA 30374-3019 

•11 •I 11111111• 1111 •I 111111111 I• 1 I• II•• 111 • • 111hI111111111•
111111 

PW 003548 0000 093020 0000091370 00017187 00017187 0 



0 
Advanced 
Disposal 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMNT DIST 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Current Charges (Continued) 

Current Charges 
Amount Due 

PW200921 I001.txt-1507-000000024 

Account Information 

Account Number PW003548 
Site Number 0000 
Invoice Date September 30, 2020 
Invoice Number PW0000091370 

Page 3 of 3 

$171.87 
$171.87 

I 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Adam Eminisor 

~BLUE BGXES PA YR8 

DATE CAD# 

Saturday , September 19, 2020 SJS020CAD179701 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 4 $160.00 
I patrolled the neighborhood to include the amenity center and construction zones. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 8:55 am, S 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 

revised 2-10-2020 

nec;Er'l' r::-
i ~ SEP 3 0 2020 LJ 

±l:13C( 
Sicur(tltJ StNj 

12(1) •~3&; ·J4S 

BY: _____ _ 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Adam Eminisor 

*BLUE B0XES PAVRS 

DATE CAO# 

Monday, September 28, 2020 SJS020CAD185624 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

SJS019CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40 .00 4 
I patrolled the neighborhood to include the amenity center and construction zones. Multiple traffic stops 

were conducted for speeding. Heavy presence was shown in the areas of bus stops. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 8:54 am, 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 

OECE~VE~ 
• ; ,., I: J~ SEP 3 0 2020 u 
BY:, ___ ~_ 

revised 2-10-2020 

$160 .00 



Six Mile Creek COD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
Saint Cloud, FL 34771-8588 

l Service Description 

Lawn Service Recurring 

Bill-To : Six Mile Creek COD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
Saint Cloud, FL 34771-8588 

Bug Out 
PO Box 600730 
Jacksonville, FL 32260-0730 
904-7 43-8272 

Bug Out 
PO Box 600730 
Jacksonville , FL 32260-0730 
904-7 43-8272 

Invoice# 12850688 

Invoice 
Date: 

10/1/2020 

Thursday 

Bill-To: 766527 

Six Mile Creek COD Location: 766527 
Trailmark Amenities Center 
805 Trailmark Dr 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092-7634 

Quantity 

1.00 

SUBTOTAL 
TAX 
AMT PAID 
TOTAL 

Price 

220.00 

$220.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$220.00 

AMOUNT DUE $220.00 

if-\\& 
Ai¼t1 ii.w/\ ~'('UAh,,t"t -Oe,t 

330 S)5·4t~ 

766527 

PO Number: 

Terms: DUE AT SERVIC 

10/1/2020 

Invoice #: 12850688 

;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
~ = ~ 
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; === === ~ 
~ 
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; -
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
~ === ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; = -
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 
~ 
~ 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 
TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

**MULTIPLE DA\'S WORKED IN ONE WEEK (SUNDAY-SATURDAY) SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE SAME INVOICE** 
•*PLEASE AU IN All VEll©W B8XES** 

"'*INW>ICES ARE BUE EACH MeNOAY BY SAM-SEND T@ RMNaSGN@SJS8.0RG** 
REMITPAYMENTTO: . ~- lflrmfll ir= i,l;~:,i;m=i~~~ 

Christopher Mobley 

DATE CAI># 

Saturday, September 19, 2020 SJS020CAD179822 5:00 PM 9 :00 PM 4 

Friday , September 27, 2019 SJS020CAD184749 6:00 AM 10 :00 AM 4 $168.01 

Wednesday , September 30, 2020 SJS020CAD187104 5:00 PM 9 :00 PM 4 $168.00 

ACTIVITY/ COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40 .00 12 

Al I three dates: Conducted foot patrols of the amenity center area, pool area, park area. I conducted patrols 
on every street in the entire neighborhood with no issues to report. Monitored traffic entering/exiting the 

neighborhood. Conducted traffic enforcement on Trail mark Drive and Weathered Edge Drive. Focused 
efforts for trespassing enforcement at the dead end ofTrailmark Drive and kayak launch. No issues to 

report. 

revised 2-10-2020 

-\\:.IJS' 

Suvr,'~ ~''I! 

3u, .s Jr J t..u ~ 
~.=. -tr, ~"= F"' r - . rl.,... t._,,,-s-. __ . -

. i OCT O 1 2020 
BY: ____ _______ - -



CROWN 
l;l•l•1W[U'£1 
3002 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207 

..___9_o4_-s_s_s-_43_o_o ___.I I ACCOUNTING@CROWNPooLsINc.coM 

Bill To 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
C/O EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT 
805 TRAILMARK DR 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Quantity Description 

I _M:ONLHLYEOOL SERVTC}1 FOR SEPTEMBER 2o 

-it lL\\ 
3JO,.J,?f' ·4(S 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

9/30/2020 SEPT-248 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 8:52 am, Oct 05, 2020 

Amenity-Pool Maintenance 

Terms 
BY: __ *_ 

Due upon receipt 

Rate Serviced Amount 

1,375.00 9/30/2020 1,375.00 

Total $1,375.00 

Customer Total Balance $1,375.00 



Bill To 

Disclosure Services LLC 

1005 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/o GMS, LLC 

Description 

Amortization Schedule 
Series 2015 11-1-20 Prepay $5,000 

dute' . /' 
fi9:J!xepay $525 000 

-"""""-""-= 
dule 

Series ~ -20 Prepay $150,000 
-t\:otC. 
-niv . lf tvt.1 A-
'3 l 0:5i J ·JI J 

Phone# E-mail 

865-717-0976 tcarter@disclosureservices.info 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

9/28/2020 II 

~-~ SEP 2 9 2020 ~ 
BY: _____ _ 

Terms Due Date 

Net30 10/28/2020 

Amount 

100.00 

100.00 

Total $300.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $300.00 



Evergreen Lifestyles Management, LLC 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 

Orlando , FL 32835 
321-558-6500 

BILL TO 
ACCT# 110059890 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
Teresa Viscarra 
Governmental Management Services-CF, LLC 

1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, L 34771 ... ~.,.,1,. • . ......... 

.,, 
Personnel Hours 120 Payroll Hours for September 2020 On~i~ Pc,cA~ Y1( J .. -.nu ;~ JJU .Yuts-
AMf:X Charges ---

e,'. 

OTHER COMMENTS 

Please include the account number 110059890 on your check 

Please send all payments to our new address: 

2100 S Hiawassee Rd 

·, 

. 
Sd)..1) .•. -

, 

' 

INVOICE 
DATE: 
INVOICE# SMCCDD0920N 

•··· . 
·, -·~ 4.:41§:''17 

n6' •~7~ 12 Payroll s 3,360.00 ...,..,._ ..... ;1~' s- JO.QI 
s 1,143.04 

s 66t-" 

·-.. 
I: 

·. 

." ,' 

. 
' 

"" 

Subtotal s 10,099.93 

TOTAL Due 

Orlando, FL 32835 Make all checks payable to 

'------ -- --- - ----------------------~ Evergreen Lifestyles Management, LLC 

If you have any questions about this invoice , please contact Melinda Archer 

marche r@ever g reen -l m .com 



Page _1_ of 8 
-------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management LLC 
(Payable to) 

2100 S. Hiawassee Road, Orlando FL 32852 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

0 Association 0 Vendor 

Name and No. of Association: 

r • 
~ill Back to Six Mile Creek CDD: 

FIVE BELOW 913 00000 JACKSONVILLE FL 

CINO'S PIZZA 0000 SAINT AUGUSTI FL 

TARGET.COM 3991 BROOKLYN PARK MN 

GATE 1224/GATE PTRO ST. AUGUSTINE FL 

PUBLIX #1239 0000012 SAINT AUGUST! FL 

TURNER ACE HDWR-WGV ST AUGUSTINE FL 

PUBLIX #1239 0000012 SAINT AUGUSTI FL 

PUBLIX #1239 0000012 SAINT AUGUST! FL 

PUBLIX #1239 0000012 SAINT AUGUST! FL 

SP* PERCEPTION KAYA GREENVILLE SC 

ABC FINE WINE/SPIRIT ST AUGUSTINE FL 

DOLLAR TREE 00000019 ST AUGUSTINE FL 

MARSHALLS #194 00000 ST AUGUSTINE FL 

Evergreen 

Teen Bingo Prizes 

Family Trivia -
Prizes 

Family Trivia -
Prizes 

Family Trivia - Ice 

Family Trivia 
Drinks/Snacks 

Office Needs 

Adult Trivia -
Prizes 

Adult Trivia -
Prizes 

Adult Trivia -
Prizes 

Kayak Pedal 
Replacement 

Adult Trivia -
Prizes 

Adult Trivia -
Prizes 

Adult Trivia -
Prizes 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Office Supplies 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Operating 
Supplies 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Special Events 

9.24.2020 

9242020 

ASAP 

:120 JJa · !:! 1-2 80.00 -

30.00 -

75.49 -

12.75 -

252.52-

32-02~ · ~, 12.76 -

18.99-

171.90 -

217.02 -

->20 &"5 g-· S't 37.26 -

92.92,.. 

9.59 -

131.84 -



Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE S 1,143.04 
Authorized by: 

Approved by: 

Page 2 of 8 



0 
return receipt 

1111111111111111 I II I Ill II II IIII I II Ill 
202563991020722877 

order number: 1067186007501 

receipt id: 2-0256-3991-0207-2287-7 
vcd: 756-258-444 
release id: 98597443715374 

Return by December 21, 2020 

M&M's Peanut Milk Chocolate Candies - 3.1 oz 

055-02-3791 - $0.99 

Sour Patch Watermelon Gummy Candy -
3.5oz 

055-02-5023- $0.99 

Nerds Rainbow Tiny Tangy Crunchy Candy -
5oz 

055-02-1434- $0.99 

Crunch Buncha Crunch Milk Chocolate 
Candy - 3.2oz 

055-02-0605 - $0.99 

Dots Assorted Fruit Flavored Gumdrops -
6.5oz 

055-02-1441 - $0.99 

M&M's Milk Chocolate Candies - 3.1oz 

055-02-3790 - $0.99 

Skip-Bo Card Game 

087-00-0009- $7.99 

UNO Card Game 

087-00-0025 - $5.49 

Sorry Board Game 

087-10-1130- $9.99 

Sour Patch Kids Soft & Chewy Candy - 3.5oz 

Page 3 of 8 



--- -- I I -- ...,..,..VV 

Skittles Original Theater Box Bite Size 
Candies - 3.5oz 

055-02-0551 - $0.99 

Guess Who? Game 

087-10-0292 - $9.99 

Trouble Board Game 

087-10-1128 - $9.99 

Perfetti Vanmelle Airheads Theater Box -
3.3oz Set 

055-02-0152 - $0.99 

Pressman The Oregon Trail Game 

087-10-2911 - $12.79 

Return by September 22, 2021 

Y Weave Mini Cube Storage Basket Gray -
Room Essentials™ 

002-07-1379 - $2.00 

Page 4 of 8 



Perception Kayaks 

Order #EP2036 

Thank you Lynzi! 

Your order is confirmed 

We've accepted your order, and we're getting it ready. Come back to this page for updates 

on your shipment status. 

Othe1· tracking number· 
7zr072530346501565 

Order updates 

You'll get shipping and delivery updates by email. 

Customer information 

Contact information 

aboyer@evergreen-LM.com 

Shipping address 

Alex Boyer 

805 Trailmark Drive 

St. Augustine FL 32092 

Payment method 

ending with 1007 - $37.26 

Billing address 

Lynzi Chambers 

2100 South Hiawassee Road 

Orlando FL 32835 

Page 5 of 8 



SM.c Ob -,. 

1' 

t • I 

' 00 

CIN0'S 
PIZ ZA 

CINO'S PIZZA 
2 'NIOWN1'Lr1u 

Alfil Allr.ll lll(I JI ,l lll<I? 
9U 10H4:> 

toftfK W\, 11'1 I IIM)•, li<// l'ffff I tJIII 

lh 11 • 1111 'ittppoth1ign1.t1 lw , I~,~ ,~ • 
I 1• ottt lmt1P W1 I UV Vtlp I, l 

Tnpltd\<r«oi 1.ir.t-hnnlc u ,11 v.• I ,,1 11 •- ~ 
ttCWw WI tl•d' 

ToGo 



f t., I 

I I vou "111~hl .Uk, 

f,ct SiJ,;c:;(l 4 
h11 If ½ ; I 

V,•1 '.,i·,&11 4 ,, l.Cl~' I 
,. .... t t f . 
,,~J d 'i ~:!1•1 I~ 

• ,I 

1,,\, ' 
t -~ --



..... 

I,. 

V fRI I IAI 

Mar halls 
,)EA81d~ &ti S , 

17% I.JS 1-fIGHH.'t' t .:iflull! 
3T AU~JMINf., fl ]2i 4 

904-806-1246 

Custol!l81: tynz1 Chambers 

REGUtAR SALE. 
fil DECORATI\IE. IEX 0'34726938 
80 fABLF T(P 095040800 
80-TABLE fll' 094745834 
80 r ABH r<J> 029320598 
BO r #.81 l f(ll OCM7 45834 
80· rABu TOP 029320590 
80 TABlt.-HF 002894554 
85-~n Foou 005368896 
85-~[T F{XI) WJ23222l 
85-GCke(fl FOOO ~148551 
85-G(fflffT f(nj 095148566 
S-/-~ fIDIJSDI 010832547 
82-00URMET Hn!JSEW 020832603 
82-GOORMEl lWSEti 020832603 
85-~ FOO) OCJ4g71()00 
85-GnEMET FOCD 09-4971017 

Subtotal 
FL 6.SOOt Sates •ait 
Total 

tt31.84 
$0 .00 

$131.84 

N-lEX $131.8.t 
· · · •• -- - TRANSAt:TIOti RECORD 
**********"'1007 
PIJRChASL 
EXPIRES*•/.,._ CHIP 
i\UTH# 85270!:, 
A IO AOOIJOOOOzOO 1 oan 1 

r~,., r , ,., ;r11•• : = -('{ 



Page _1_ of 5 
--------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management LLC 
(Payable to) 

2100 S. Hiawassee Road, Orlando FL 32852 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

0 Association 0 Vendor 

Name and No. of Association: 

1J~•.:-•11•-1~ 

Bill Back to Six Mile Creek CDD 

Bins for Events/Storage 

Teen Event - Drinks/Snacks 

Teen Event - Ice Cream Truck 

Evergreen 

Amazon 

Publix 

Ice busters 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

C'l••tllJ:ii 

<J1()~•'-l'l2 

Special Events 

Special Events 

Special Events 

$ 

$ 

$ 

9.30.2020 

9302020 

ASAP 

-(!1 ,',lflll~lr 

182.15 

76.79 

402 .50 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

Lynzi Chambers TOTAL DUE $ 661.44 
Authorized by: 

Approved by: 



10/1/2020 Amazon.com - Order 114-4509684-4496205 

ae~on.com· PAge 2 of 5 

Final Details for Order #114-4509684-4496205 
Print this 129.ge for v.our records. 

Order Placed: September 16, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-4509684-4496205 
Order Total: $182.15 

Shipped on September 23, 2020 

Items Ordered 
1 of: Sterilite 64-Quart latching Storage Box (18 Pack) 
Sold by: Amazing Savings. (seller profile) 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
Standard Shipping 

Price 
$182.15 

Payment information 

Payment Method: Item(s) Subtotal: $182.15 
American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Billing address 
Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Shipping & Handling: $0.00 

Total before tax: $182.15 
Estimated tax to be collected: $0.00 

Grand Total: $182.15 

Credit Card transactions AmericanExpress ending in 1007: September 23, 2020: $182.15 

To view the status of your order, return to Order Summa[Y-. 

Conditions of Use I PrivacY. Notice© 1996-2020, Amazon.com, Inc. or its affiliates 

https://www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_b_invoice_o03?ie=UTF8&order1D=114-4509684-4496205 1/1 



.30 

Voided l UJat 

CUAYAJ<l YBRBA T~ 
You saved -O .lO 

Tot.al 
Tottt 

F0RGIVEN 
Sdv rnqs Su111111ary 

Payment 

l l avlGQb 

. 
7, 
7. 
1 . 

2. 9 

3 .2, 

) . 29 

- 2.69 

76 .79 
76,?Q 
76.79 

.oo 

.02-

s . 9 
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
• 
• 

'OU.I" S i VlhQ S at tutiii:K 
5.8!) 

• 
• 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

PR.ES'l'Ot 
Trace ti 091260 
Reference t: 2010389971 
Acct f: XXXXXXXXXXXX1007 
Purchase American Express 
Amount: $76,79 
Autb f: 859177 

f 

F 

CREDIT CARD 
A0000000250l0801 
Entry Method: 
Mode: 

PURCHASE 
AMERICAN EXPRESS 

Chip Read 
Issuer 

Your casbie~ was Ginger J 
09/25/2020 14:11 S1239 RI09 2508 C0273 
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

Pages ofS 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Wurstbusters v;a sa uare 
Lvnzi Chambers 
Receipt from Wurstbusters 
Friday, September 25, 2020 8:44:32 PM 

Square automatically sends receipts to the email 

address you used at any Square seller. Learn more 

Custom Amount 

Purchase Subtotal 

Duval - included, $22.90 

Tip 

Total 

$350.00 

$350.00 

$52.50 

$402.50 

Page 3 of 5 



Wurstbusters 

4651 Salisbury Rd, #400 

JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256 

904-999-9033 

AMEX 1007 (Swipe) Sep 25 2020 at 5:44 PM 

#bftO 

Auth code : 543834 

[~ 
LYNZI CHAMBERS 

Run your own business? 

Start using Square and process $1,000 in 

sales for free. 

Get Started with Square 

Receipt Settings 

Not your receipt? Turn off automatic receipts 
Manage preferences 

© 2020 Square, Inc. Privacy Policy 

1455 Market Street, Suite 600 

San Francisco , CA 94103 

© Mapbox © OpenStreetMap Improve \bis map 

Page 4 of 5 



I 27 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1302 1 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

0008 081251 

1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

11111111111 • 1· r I lh 111111 r11•1 I ·1 h 1111111 hi 11111· 11111 1111111 

Account number 

35324-12024 

Your electric statement 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 596 TRAILMARK DR# PUMP 

Amount 
of your 
last bill 

68.46 

Payments 
(-) 

68.46 CR 

Additional 
activity 
(+or-) 

0.00 

$20.40 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

Meter reading - Meter KJ82919 

Current reading 
Previous reading 
kWh used 

42909 
- 42803 

106 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

1302353241202410402000000 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number: 35324-12024 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

New 
charges 

(+) 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

20.40 $20.40 Oct 23 2020 

68.46 
68.46CR 

$0.00 
Energy usage 

Last This New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 
Year 

kWh this month 782 
Service days 29 
kWh per day 26 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Year 

106 
30 

3 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $2.35 

( $0.022160 per kWhj 
Non-fuel: $6.92 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

• F=PL. 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char es 

Total amount you owe 

19.89 .... 

0.51 

$20.40 

$20.40 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

Please have your account numoer ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
o Ii e at: .F Leo 



0002 081251 
I 27 4853 1302520687812508075000000 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1302 0 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number 

52068-78125 

Your electric statement Account number: 52068-78125 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 801 TRAILMARK DR# AMENITY 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

56.45 56.45 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KLB7133 

Current reading 22278 
Previous reading 
kWh used 

Energy usage 

kWh this month 
Service days 
kWh per day 

Last 
Year 
562 

29 
19 

- 21763 
515 

This 
Year 
515 

30 
17 

""'The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $11.41 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

G 
l=PL. 

$33.62 

Balance 
Additional before New 

activity 
(+or-) 

new charges 
(=) 

char1es 
(+ 

0.00 0.00 57.08 $57.08 [ Oct 23 2020 

Enroll now in FPL Budget Billing when you pay 
$48.53 by your due date instead of 

$57 .08. Make your bills easier to manage with 
more predictable payments. Learn more at FPL.com/BB 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

55.65 .... 

1.43 

56.45 
56.45CR 

$0.00 

$57.08 

Total amount you owe $57.08 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



G 
FPL. 0003 081251 

I 27 

Please request changes on the back . 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

A A 5,8 1302 6 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Account number 

62363-50267 

Your electric statement 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 000 PACETTI RD 

Amount 
of your 
last bill 

2,821.83 

Payments 
(-) 

2,821.83 CR 

1885 

Additional 
activity 
(+or-) 

0.00 

$2,821.83 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

Total kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

This 
Year 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

5945 1885 Balance before new charges 

1302623635026763812820000 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Oct 23 2020 $ 

Account number: 62363-50267 

Statement date: 
Next bill date: 

New 
charges 

(+) 

2,821.83 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

$2,821.83 

:fife-vii 
. ~r~~~ ,., 
. :~~:~y: 
.· .......... · .... ·.: ... ··· 

Oct 23 2020 

2,821.83 
2,821.83CR 

$0.00 kWh this month 
Service days 
kWh per day 

29 
205 

30 
63 

New charges (Rate: SL-1 STREET LIGHTING SERVICE) 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 
Non-fuel energy charge: 

$0.031530 per kWh 
Fuel charge : $0.021490 per kWh 

Electric service amount 2,819.26...., 
Gross receipts tax 2.57 

Total new char ges $2,821.83 

Total amount you owe $2,821.83 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

- Charges · and energy usage are based on the facilities contracted . Facility, 
energy and fuel costs are available upon request. 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
,:,. Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
~~ Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
~ To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 

Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
FPL~· ____________________ O..,......nl_in_e_a_t __ : .,.... www.FPL.com 



0004 081251 

1302 000264 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Detail of Rate Schedule Charges for 
Street Lights 

Account Number: 62363-50267 
Service From: 09-02-2020 

Service To: 10-02-2020 
Service Days: 30 

KWH/Day: 63 

Service Address: 000 PACETTI RD, SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

* 
COMPONENT OWNER/ RATE/ 

CODE WATTS LU MENS MAINT QUANTITY UNIT KWH USED AMOUNT 

C861204 39 3292 F 145 1,885 
Energy .400000 58.00 
Non-energy 

Fixtures 6.370000 923.65 
Maintenance 1.290000 187.05 

PMF0001 145 
Non-energy 

Fixtures 8.480000 1,229.60 

UCNP 9,345 
Non-energy 

Maintenance .040530 378.75 

Energy sub total 58.00 
Non-energy sub total 2,719.05 

Sub total 1,885 2,777.05 

Energy conservation cost recovery .70 

Capacity payment recovery charge .34 
Environmental cost recovery charge .66 

Fuel charge 40.51 
Electric service amount 2,819.26 

Gross receipts tax 2.57 

Total 1,885 2,821.83 

* F - FPL OWNS & MAINTAINS E - CUSTOMER OWNS & MAINTAINS R - CUSTOMER OWNS, FPL RELAMPS 
H - FPL OWNS & MAINTAINS FIXTURE, GUST OWNS OTHER 

Print Date: October 02, 2020 
Page 1 



• FPL. 0005 081251 
I 27 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1302 6 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

65107-18163 

Your electric statement 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 975 TRAILMARK DR # IRR 

Amount 
of your Additional 
last bill Payments activity 

(-) (+or-) 

12.86 12.86 CR 0.00 

$13.04 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

Meter reading - Meter KJ6BB16 

Current reading 
Previous reading 

12228 
- 12204 

24 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

kWh used Balance before new charges 

13□ 2651071816364 □ 31 □□□□□□ 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Oct 23 2020 $ 

Account number: 65107-18163 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

New 
char~,es 

(+ 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

13.04 $13.04 [ Oct 23 2020 

12.86 
12.86CR 

$0.00 
Energy usage 

Last This New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 
Year 

kWh this month 572 
Service days 29 
kWh per day 19 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Year 
24 
30 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $0.53 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: $1.56 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

• FPL. 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new charges 

Total amount you owe 

12.71 .... 
0.33 

$13.04 

$13.04 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

i OCT O 6 20ZO 
BY: ___ _ 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0006 081251 I 27 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1302 5 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

88213-81483 

Your electric statement 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 

Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS 

Amount 
of your Additional 
last bill Payments activity 

(-) (+or-) 

15.93 15.93 CR 0.00 

$16.44 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

13□2882138148354461 □□□□□□ 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Oct 23 2020 $ 

Account number: 88213-81483 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

New 
char~ts 

(+ 

16.44 $16.44 Oct 23 2020 

Meter reading - Meter KJ39626 

Current reading 
Previous reading 

00635 
- 00573 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

15.93 
15.93CR 

kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 18 
Service days 29 
kWh per day 0 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

62 

This 
Year 

62 
30 

2 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $1.37 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: $4.04 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

• F=PL. 

Balance before new charges 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

16.03** 
0.41 

$0.00 

Total new char_gw.c.e.c...s _______ ____________ ~$1~6~.44~_ 

Total amount you owe $16.44 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply . 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



0007 081251 I 27 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1302 9 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

96815-95436 

Your electric statement 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY 

Amount 
of your Additional 
last bill Payments activity 

(·) (+or-) 

29.82 29.82 CR 0.00 

$30.28 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

1302968159543698203000□□□ 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Oct 23 2020 $ 

Account number: 96815-95436 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

New 
char1es 

(+ 

30.28 $30.28 Oct 23 2020 

Meler reading - Meter ACD4547 

Current reading 10542 Amount of your last bill 29.82 
Previous reading 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 225 
Service days 29 
kWh per day 8 

- 10326 
216 

This 
Year 
216 

30 
7 

'""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $4.79 

I $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

I $0.065270 per kWh) 
$14.11 

Payment received - Thank you 29.82 CR 
-B-a-la-n-ce- b-ef-o-re- n-ew_ c_h_a-rg_e_s---------- -------=- :i;o~.00 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

29.52 .... 
0.76 

$30.28 

$30.28 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

R
E(P"i!-./';"'p• ··-,-

~1.t...;;.r· .. ~) ... ~~: 

OCT O 6 2020 
BY: .. _______________ __ _ '" 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
,,. customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
~~ Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
~ To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 

Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
___ F=_P_L_. ____________________ o= nl:;;in""e_a:a:t::.,: ,__... www.FPL.com 



0008 081251 
I 27 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected . 

L 5,8 1302 5 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

96904-98127 

Your electric statement 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address : 805 TRAILMARK DR# AMENITY 

Amount 
of your Additional 
last bill Payments activity 

(-) (+or-) 

1,102.18 1,102.18 CR 0.00 

$1,033.93 

Balance 
before 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 

Meter reading - Meter KU32264 

Current reading 
Previous reading 

08631 
- 08400 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

kWh constant 
kWh used 

X 60 
13860 

Balance before new charges 

13 □ 2969 □ 49812753933 □1 □□□□ 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to : 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILllY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Oct 23 2020 $ 

Account number: 96904-98127 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

New 
charges 

(+) 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

.. •,: 

·,·, 

··-···-·•·•···· ·····' 

1,033.93 $1,033.93 Oct 23 2020 

1,102.18 
1,102.18CR 

$0.00 

New charges (Rate: GSD-1 GENERAL SERVICE DEMAND) 
Demand reading 0.52 
kW constant X 60.00 
Demand kW 31 

Energy usage 
Last This 
Year Year 

kWh this month 16260 13860 
Service days 29 30 
kWh per day 560 462 

'"'The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $26.50 
Fuel: $307.14 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel : 

( $0.023610 per kWh) 

Demand: 
( $11.20 per kW) 

• F=PL. 

$327.24 

$347.20 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

1,008.08-H 
25.85 

$1,033.93 

$1,033.93 

- Payment received after December 23, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 
Online at: www.FPL.com 



l!lORIIA :··: 
l'f!EST · . 

C!!!!'1~!; , .. 
SIX MILE CREEK CD 
805 TRAILMARK DR 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 3 

._,_.,...,,....,.,_ .a.•~v-..u~~.A..£.,-. ... -._. WQUUJ 

{904) 824-7217 
www.flapest.com 

RT. ~y ACCOUNTNO. 

10 13 , SI0365-

... DATE S~RVICED 

1 09/ .3 /20 

~latttt6tc cpagt Conuoj 
DIRECTED BY GRADUATE ENTOMOLOGISTS 

cs CK CG INVOICE NO. ~N 
V 

,r 

902841 6 JJ/~Y 
RECEIVE L 

PREVIOUS BALANCE ... TODAY'S CHARGE .~Dlli 
D .0 11 270.0 ( 

2092-7634 SEP 21 2020 
9 0 4 - 9 5 5 - 0 5 4 8 •PAYMENTS OR OTHER CHARGES MADE AFTER 8 / 2 0 / 2 0 
ST JOHNS ~E NOT INCLUDED IN BALANCES ABOVE. • / 

TODAY'S SERVICE: 2~ peeled/ treated around windows, eaves--:- ~rn'ins acted/ treated for control of rats tr Inspected/ treated around 
r facings and all entry points. / or mice. garage and utility room. 

Inspected I trea!sd around perimeter of structure. Cobweb cleaning. 

coMMENrs: '11¾NJ< l-(ov 

PLEASE PAY THE TECHNICIAN AT THE TIME OF SERVICE OR RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT 

PO Box 3046 
Saint Augustine 
(904)824-7217 

www.flapest.com 

FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
805 TRAILMARK DR 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-7634 
904-955-0548 

O~:tNj!l BILL P~~ IS EASY1 

Sl&CURE, Mm "FEE FREE"! 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 11 :57 am, Sep 25, 2020 

Amenity-Landscape Contingency 

Payment Information 
D I'm enclosing a check or money order, payable to 

Florida Pest Control & Chemical Co. 

Card number _______________ _ 

Expires. _____________ _ 

Cardholder,_,_ _ _,,,,.. __ __,,_~----::--
(pfease print name exactly as it appears on rard) 

Signature. _____________ _ 

Phone'1--....----------------"----
E-ma,!.:-il......., ____________ _ 

Invoice No. 902841 6 

Account No. SI0365 - 1 

Amount En-clo_s_ed_ S _ __ ______ -~-.,,,. -::.-:,.-:,.-:,_-:._-::,.-:.,-:.,-:.,-:.-



Allways Improving LLC dba Fitness Pro 
1400 Village Square Blvd #3-293 

Tallahassee, FL 32312 

Invoice 
APPROVED 

(850) 523-8882 

tracy@wearefitnesspro.com 

www.wearefitnesspro.com 

By Alex Boyer at 9:01 a 

Amenity- Fitness center repairs 
·· BILL fo 

TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 

COMMUNITIES 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

C/O GMS 1412 South Narcoossee Rd. 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 

SHIPTO 

Lynzi Chambers 
TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 

COMMUNITIES 
TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 

COMMUNITIES 

805 Trailmark Drive 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 
. .,...... ·-··· 

1 INVOICE# 0ATE TOTAL DUE DUE DATE · TERMS 

1400 Vhlaga Squor• 1113-2'3 
r~ , Fl.~12 
850-52-2 

ENCLOSED 

! __ 23_3_3_1 _-_·· --- ---'-I_0_9/_2_3!_20_2_o _ _ _j!'-$_3_20_._6o ____ __;_i 1_0_10_8_12_0_20 _ _ __,j_N_e_i _1-5 _ _ _ _ __c_ ___ _ _ _ 

DATE 

08/05/2020 

08/05/2020 

09/18/2020 

09/19/2020 

PLEASE DETACH TOP PORTION AND RETURN WITH YOUR PAYMENT. 

; PRODUCT!SERVICE 

Shipping/ Handling 
Aug 5, 2020: Shipping and Handling Estimate: 
PARTS 
Aug 5, 2020: Parts for Repair: Cable 

CS1 
Sep 18, 2020: Commercial Labor: Replaced cable on functional trainer and 
roller on bench 

PARTS 
Sep 19, 2020: Parts for Repair: Roller for bench 
SERVICE REQUEST 27836 - FUNCTIONAL TRAINER NEEDS CABLE 
BENCH NEEDS ROLLER 

Service Request Details/Notes: CXT-200 
160806-027 454 

BALANCE DUE 

www.wearefitnesspro .com 

QTY AMOUNT· 

.. 20.00 !711~ 

115.oop 
i 

110.00 

),is 
75.00 ) 



GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION 

Lie# B0001267 
528 S. Edgewood Ave. Suite 1 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32205 

Bill To 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
(Trailrnark) 
1408 Hamlin Ave. 
UnitE 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Quantity 

Security Service,9/l/2020-9/30/2020 

31 9/1/2020-9/6/2020 
37 9/7 /2020-9/13/2020 

Description 

~'2,_s 
S'iplO 

3 9/7/2020 (Holiday) 
40 9/14/2020-9/20/2020 '120-~lb J4.! 
40 9/21/2020-9/27 /2020 
10 9/28/2020-9/30/2020 

1 Cell Phone 
1,119 Mileage 

Phone# Fax# E-mail 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

10/1/2020 23460968 

.tt!fB,gyer at 2:45 pm, Oct 01, 2020 
,,:,,,✓,.;, 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 
I 

OCT O 1 202~ 

BY: 
P.O. No. Terms Project 

Due on receipt 

Rate Amount 

17.50 542.50 
17.50 647.50 
23.25 69.75 
17.50 700.00 
17.50 700.00 
17.50 175.00 
60.00 60.00 

0.57 637.83 

Total $3,532.58 

904-384-8071 904-389-9931 akoon@giddenssecurity.com 



APPROVED 

® PRO -VIGIL 
By Alex Boyer at 2:4S 

Amenity- Security Monitoring Invoice 
I I IJ Pro-Vigil, Inc. 

4646 Perrin Creek 
STE 280 

9/21/2020 IN-140055 21-SEP-20 TO 18-
OCT-20 

San Antonio TX 78217 

Six Mile Creek, CDD 
1408 Hamlin Ave., Unit E 
St. Cloud FL 34771 
United States 

Six Mile Creek, COD 
805 TrailMark Drive 
St. Augustine FL 32092 
United States 

Sales Order #S0-16169 Net 15 10/6/2020 Six Mile Creek COD 

1 S50005 Upgrade - Synology 4-Bay NAS 1 Unit at $35.27 

DiskStation DS916+ (4-Bay) 

1 S10032 Fixed- Damage Waiver 1 Unit at $85.78 

1 S10023 Fixed - Guaranteed Protection 1 Unit at $64.47 

Plan (GPP) 

1 S50016 Upgrade- Axis M3025-VE 7 Units at$9.70 

Network Camera 

1 S10034 Fixed - IP Camera Hosting Fixed 3 Units at -$10.93 

1 S10021 Fixed - Live Monitoring (12 Hours 6 Units at -$33.88 

per Day) 

1 S10129 Fixed - Carefree Maintenance 1 Unit at $81.96 

and Replacement 

1 S10034 Fixed - IP Camera Hosting Fixed 3 Units at $49.17 

1 S10021 Fixed - Live Monitoring (12 Hours 6 Units at $137.68 

per Day) 

1 S50017 Upgrade - Axis C3003-E Network 1 Unit at $22.92 

Horn Speaker 

II I I I Ill II II IIII IIII Ill Ill II Ill 
IN-140055 

0' 

CU-20794:1 

$35.27 $35.27 

$85.78 $85.78 

$64.47 $64.47 

$67.90 $67.90 

$-32.79 $-32.79 

$-203.28 $-203.28 

$81.96 $81.96 

$147.51 $147.51 

$826.08 $826.08 

$22.92 $22.92 

Subtotal $1,095.82 

Tax Total $0.00 
, /ff'" 

Total $1,095.82 
,/ff 

Balance Due $1,095.82 

1 of 2 



@J PRO -VIGIL Invoice 
Pro-Vigil , Inc. 
4646 Perrin Creek 
STE 280 

~.·4il....H · Jlf·t::'°"";:~ ~ r ~w~v~ ~ ~.DW.Ja fiftffli'I~ ~~ 
\Y~ .-l'Jio>.Jti":lllt.,,~ _,~ ~IS~ _,,a,~ ; 
9/21/2020 

San Antonio TX 78217 

We're pleased to announce that we've adopted a new solution that allows you to 
submit payment online. Simply click the link below to pay via credit card or ACH. 
We're looking forward to the transition and hope you enjoy the simplified process. For 
questions about invoices please call 866-616-1318 from 8 am to 5 pm CT, M-F, or 
email AR@pro-vigil.com . 

For non-electronic payments please remit to : 
Lockbox Remittance {Check): 
PRO-VIGIL INC. 
P.O. BOX 677107 
DALLAS TX 75267 - 7107 

II I I I Ill II II llll 111111111111111 
IN-140055 

IN-140055 21-SEP-20 TO 18-
OCT-20 

2 of 2 



Rlverside Management Service$, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd, W. 
Buifdlng 300, Suite 305 
Jao.ksonville, FL 32:ffi7 

Bill To: 
S.ix Mile Creek 
475 West Town Praca Suite 114 
St. Au,gustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Maintenance Supplies 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 98 
lnvo1ce Oate: 9/22/2020 

Due Date: .. 9/22/2020 
C.ase! 

P,O, Number: 

~ ~ SEP 2 5 2020 
BY: ____ _ 

Rate Amount 

321.81 327.81 

$327.81 

P:aymentsJCredits $0.00 

Balance Due $327.81 ' 



MAINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES 

Period Ending 09/05120 

DISTRICT .QAig SUPPLIES 
SMC 
SIX MILE CREEK 

8/11/20 
8/13120 
8120/20 
8/20/20 
8/20/20 
8/26120 
8125120 
8/25120 

Multifold Pape, Towels Case ol 16 packs of 250 towels (2) 
Pine Sol 
Tolet Paper 12 rola (2) 
42 gar.on Trash Bags 50cl 
A11Wick 5pk 
Pap er Towels 6 rolls 
Gym & Fitness Wipes 800wlpes (4) 
Tolfol Paper 12 rolls (2) 

EB!!ai EMPLOYEE 

88.31 
11.48 
27.53 
29.87 
12.04 
18.37 

112.69 
27.53 
0.00 

F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 

TOTAL S327.81 

, 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Bullding 300, Suite 305 
Jaok$onville, 'FL 32257 

8JHT9: 
SJx Mile Creek 
475 W~sl 'Town Place Sult~ 114 
$1, Augustine, FL 3;.!092 · · 

Descr1pthm 

Jallitorial Service$ • Octo.ber 2020' 

Hours/Qty 

Invoice 

Invoice #': 99 
Invoice Pate: 10/1/2020 

Due Date: 10/1/2020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

OCT O 7 2020 

1,145.00. 1,145.00 

Total $1, 14.5.00 

Ptlym,ents/Cre:dlts $0.00 

BatanceDue $1,145 .. 00 

~n...J 

\ t:) J s I '2,0 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

Robert M. Nelson 

*BLUE BOXES PA YR& 

DATE 

Saturday, September 26, 2020 SJSO20CAD184008 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 
SJSO20CAD 

rrraffic Stops - 4 

Golf cart violations -0 

Weathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - 0 

Citizen Assist - 0 

Arrest made during a traffic stop on 9/26/20. 

7:30 AM 11:30 AM 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK 

GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 3:0tJ p111, 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 

revised 2-10-2020 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

4 

TeTALBUE 

$168.00 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

Robert M. Nelson 

St. Augustine, FL 3209 

*BLUE B8XES PAYRO 

DATE CAlil # 

Monday , October 5, 2020 SJSO20CAD190026 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

SJSO20CAD 

Traffic Stops - 5 

Golf cart violations - 0 

Weathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - 0 

Citizen Assist - 0 

Arrest made during a traffic stop on 9/26/20. 

7 :00 AM 12 :00 PM 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK 

GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

~,3i 

APPROVED $ewr;ty ~l, -

By Alex Boyer at 11 :54 am,, .. '3~b·SJ~-')uS 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 

revised 2-10-2020 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

CEIPT 

T&TALDUE 

5 $200.08 



APPROVED 

RQLLAN 
By Alex Boyer at' Oct 06, 2020 

· Invoice 

Z..;.:t R EASH PLUMBIN G 
Amenity- Facility Maintenance -------r---------, 

A 

11606 Columbia Park Dr E 
Jacksonville, FL 32258 

P 904-260- 7059 F 904-260-0916 

Bill To 

Date Invoice# 

10/1/2020 75161 

Job Location 

6 Mile Creek 
805 Trailmark Dr 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 II 

~

ECE~VEfr 
OCT O 6 2023 ~ 

BY: ____ _ _ 

Terms P.O. No. Due Date 

10/1/2020 

Item Description 

SERVICE CALL Called out for two sensor faucet not working low pressure. Both faucet have 
good 
pressure going to them.I took the faucets apart and found some kind of trash 
or 
maybe sand in them. I get not get anymore pressure out of them. I gave them 
a price of 
486.00 each for the faucets. I talk to Alex Boyer and he gave me the approval 
to order 
new faucets. I will return when the faucet come in and install them. 

Please call office to update credit card information. Need eve code. 
Sales Tax 

Total 
Visit Us at Rollandreash plumbin g.com 

Payments 

Email Us at accountin g@rolland plumbin g.com This invoice Due 

Qty 

Sales and use taxes 
included as applicable 

State of Florida 
CFC057171 

Amount 

425.00T 

0.00 

$425.00 

$0.00 

$425.00 



APPROVED 

RQLLAN 
~~ REASH PLUMBING 

11606 Columbia Park Dr E 

Amenity- Facility Maintenance Date 

Jacksonville, FL 32258 

P 904-260- 7059 F 904-260-0916 

Item 

Bill To 

6 Mile Creek 
805 Trailmark Dr 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Terms P.O.No. 

Description 

SERVICE CALL Install two Kholer sensor faucets. 
Took off front cover to expose water lines 
and mount. Replaced both mems and family 
restroom faucets. Installed mixing valve on 
family restroom faucet. Tested both. 
Sales Tax 

Visit Us at Rollandreash plumbin g.com 

Email Us at accountin g@rolland plumbin g.com 

Sales and use taxes 
included as applicable 

10/5/2020 

Job Location 

Due Date 

10/5/2020 

Qty 

Total 

Payments 

This invoice Due 

State ofFlorida 
CFC057171 

Invoice# 

75280 

Amount 

1,297.00T 

0.00 

$1,297.00 

$0.00 

$1,297.00 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 
Phone (904) 209-2700 

Fax (904) 209-2718 
Toll Free (877) 837-2311 

PO Drawer 3006 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Account Number: 
556887-132900 
Service Address: 5-<,(V) 805 TRAILMARK DR 

Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days in Billing Cycle: 31 
Deposit Amount: $ 0.00 
Deposit Date: 
Geo Code: WGV 
Meter Number: 77848570 
Present Read Date: 09/19/2020 
Previous Read Date: 08/19/2020 
Current Reading: 528314 
Previous Reading: 523219 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 50.95 

6963 

Statement Date Current Charges Due Date 

09/19/2020 

Current Month Activity 

Services Dates Service Description 

8/19/20 
9/9/20 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
Base Rate 

Consumption Fees O - 40,000 Gallons 
40,001 - 80,000 Gallons 

Water Total 

Wastewater Rates 
Base Rate 

Consumption Fees O + Sewer Gallons 
Wastewater Total 

Past Due Balance 
Current Charges 
Amount Now Due / Credits 

RECEI"'f,✓ED 

SEP 2 8 2020 

103.84 
3.29 
4.11 

121.92 
5.75 

10/19/2020 

Units Amount 

-581.40 

1.00 103.84 
40.00 131.60 
10.95 45.00 
50.95 

1.00 121.92 
50.95 292.96 
50.95 

Total 

581.40 

0.00 

280.44 

414.88 

0.00 
695.32 
695.32 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2019, SJCUD detected 14 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/WaterReport/NorthWest. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www.sjcutility.us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

Please detach and return with your payment. FL29539F 

Account Number I Date Due 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 Past Due 

Amount 

556887-132900 
Current 

Charaes/Credits 

I 10/19/2020 
Amount After Due 

Date Pay ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

.......... Auro··MIXED AADC 300 

h I h Iii 1'1111111111111 II II, II 11lll1 l'I I ll1l1111 h•111111 •111•111 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNIT E 3428 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Now Due 
0.00 695.32 695.32 705.75 

Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

111111111111~111111111111 
Please write your account number on your check and remit to: I 

ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

111•1111l1ll1111•1111111•111•1l11111l11111•111ll111111l1111111111 

□□□□□□ 1329 □ 0 □□□□□□ 556887 □□□ 000069532 □□□□□□□ 7 □ 575 
D Check for Address Change 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 
Phone (904) 209-2700 

Fax (904) 209-2718 
Toll Free (877) 837-2311 

PO Drawer 3006 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Account Number: 
556887 -135864 

Service Address: 
295 BACK CREEK DR .).tpl.tJ 

Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days in Billing Cycle: 31 
Deposit Amount: $ 0.00 
Deposit Date: 
Geo Code: WGV 

Meter Number: 86147234 
Present Read Date: 09/19/2020 
Previous Read Date: 
Current Reading: 
Previous Reading: 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 

08/19/2020 
24 
24 

0.0 

6965 

Statement Date Current Charges Due Date 

09/19/2020 10/19/2020 

Current Month Activity 

Services Dates Service Description Units Amount Total 

8/19/20 
9/9/20 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You 

32.52 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
Base Rate 

Consumption Fees O - 13,000 Gallons 
32.45 

3.29 

-32.52 
0.00 

1.00 32.45 
0.00 

Water Total 32.45 

0.00 Past Due Balance 
Current Charges 32.45 
Amount Now Due / Credits 32.45 

RECEIVED 

SEP 2 S 2020 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2019, SJCUD detected 14 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/WaterReport/NorthWest. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www.sjcutility.us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

Please detach and return with your payment. FL29539F 

Account Number I Date Due 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 Past Due 

55688 7-135864 
Current 

CharQes/Credits 

I 10/19/2020 
Amount After Due 

ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

•I 11 hll 11111111 •" 111111111111111111 Mll111•1• ,., 11111111•11111 
SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISlfm 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 3428 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Amount Now Due Date Pav 
0.00 32.45 32.45 37.45 

Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

11111111 H 1111111111 ~111111111 
Please write your account number on your check and remit to: I 

ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

111 • 1' •'II I 1 • • 1'' 1 • • 1111111111 I•• 11111111 • 1 • 111111 I 11111111111111 

□□□□□□ 135864 □□□□□□ 556887 □□□□□□□□ 3245 □□□□□□□□ 3745 
D Check for Address Change 



Bill To 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-167 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
Teresa Viscarra 
GMS 

Dc.,lc--1.o 
JLO -j] b · 4~ '-\ 

Quantity 

Monthly Lake Servicej 13 Waterways 

Description 

Invoice 

Date Invoice# 

10/1/2020 4129B 

APPROVED 
By Alex Beyer at 10:23 am, Sep 30, 2020 

~ 

Lake Contract 

~~~~~=v 
BY: __ _ __ _ 

P.O. No. Terms Project 

Net30 

Rate Amount 

1,675.00 1,675.00 

Please note that our remittance address has changed. 
Our new remittance address is: 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 1 04-16 7 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Total $1,675.00 



Security Engineering And Designs, Inc. 
3 139 Waller Street 
Jacksonville , FL 32254 

Voice: 904-371-4931 

Fax: 904-371-4939 

Sold To: 
Trailamrk Amenity Center (6 MILE CREEK) 
1408 HAMLIN AVENUE. 
UNIT E 
ST. CLOUD, FL 34771 

Customer ID:I'A-3315-SF 

Customer PO Pavment Terms 

Net 10 Days 

Description ----
~ONTHLY FIR E ALARM MONI~OEING SERVICE 

%64 
Cbt' 
31o·SJB ·31-( 

Service Department: 371-4931 
Monitoring Center: 800-318-9486 
Installation: 371-4931 

Please include invoice number on payment 

20-35357 

nECE~,_;Fr 
I ' • ~l OCT O 6 2020 ~ 
BY: ____ _ 

Site Address: 

Trailamrk Amenity Center 
805 Trailmark Dr. 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Sales Rep ID 

Subtota 

Sales Ta 

Total Invoice AmOL 

Payment Receive 

TOTAL 

-i=-
--t 

I 

Invoice 
Invoice Numbe 

20-35357 

Invoice Date 
10/1 /20 

Page 
1 

Due Date -~ 

10/11/20 

Amount 

34. 95 

34. 95 

34. 95 

0.00 

34. 95 



...-... 
R AT&T 

SIX MILE CREEK Page: 1 of3 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Issue Date: Sep 28, 2020 

~ Account Number: 292565993 od- X) 

'";;;t--=1-- ex, 
001- l 30 - 53<J'1)0 -~-do 

Want to stop receiving paper bills and enjoy the convenience of paperless billing? Enroll at 
au.com/paperless 

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever you want. Go to 
att.com/autopay today. 

Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with myAT& T. Go to 
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up. 

Account summary 

Your last bill 

Payment, Sep 17 - Thank you! 

Remaining balance 

Service summary 

c:J TV 

$ Internet 

Total services 

Total due 
Please pay by Oct 19, 2020 

Page2 

Page2 

Ways to pay and manage your account: 

□ myAT&Tapp 
iPhone and Android 

n att.com/pay 

$25.30 

-$25.30 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$16.05 

$16.05 

$16.05 

J Ordering, billing or support 
800.321.2000 
TTY: 800.651.5111 

Return this portion with your check In the enclosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post 

Total due 

$16.05 
Please pay by: 
Oct 19, 2020 

I !t;• 0 9 2020 
Li ~ 
BY: 

SIX MILE CREEK 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Please pay $16.05 by Oct 19, 2020 

1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

0 CHECK FOR AUTOPAY 
(SEE REVERSE) 

Account number: 292565993 
Please include account number on your check 

Make check payable to: 

AT&T 
PO BOX 105251 
ATLANTA GA 30348-5251 

I I ti Ir,, 1111111111I11111111111' 1 I 111 I• 111111111111111111 I' 111 h 11 

41 □□ 4 □ 56 □□□ 2925659932□□0000002530000000001605000009 



AT&T 

Service activity 

Q TV - U-verse TV 

Monthly charges 

1. AT&T U-verse TV BV-Deluxe 
(AT&T Connected Communities) 

2. HD Technology Fee 
(AT&T Connected Communities) 

3. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired STB 

4. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired STB 

5. Receiver Fee 
100% Off Wired STB 

Total for TV - U-verse TV 

~ Internet 

Monthly charges 
1. Internet 25M / SM 

(Promotional Offer) 

2. Static IP 8 

Surcharges & fees 

3. Cost Assessment Charge 

Total for Internet 

Important information 

Late payment fee 

Sep 29 - Oct 28 

Sep 29 - Oct 28 

A late payment fee of $9.25 will be assessed if payment is not received on or 
before the due date. 

Electronic check conversion 
Paying by check authorizes AT&T to use the information from your check 
to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account. Funds may 
be withdrawn from your account as soon as your payment is received. If 
we cannot process the transaction electronically, you authorize AT&T to 
present an image copy of your check for payment. Your original check will 
be destroyed once processed. If your check is returned unpaid you agree to 
pay such fees as identified in the terms and conditions of your agreement, 
up to $30. Returned checks may be presented electronically. If you want to 

·pa1npal.ps uaaq 
se4 Aedoinv iell+ spa1J.aJ a:i1011u1 JnoA J.O auo a6ed l!+Un +Ui3LUAed 

l!LUqns oi anu1iuo) ·:paJ.J.a a)1e+ oi Aedoinv JOJ sapki fiuunq 2-L 
<l)je'.). p1no:, lUi3LUI/OJUi3 JnOA 'll!G /\LU uo pa'.).5!1 Ji3QLUnu aJe:, Ji3LUO'.).sn:, 

01.jl 6u111e:, ,c;q JO LUO:rne'MMM W HW;I 6U!/\J!l0U Aq uo1iez1,04ine 
1a:iue:, ue:, 1 ·iuno:,:,e )1Ueq ALU LUOJJ. 11auoLU 6u1pnpap 1111e:i1u0Jpa1a 

/IQ AlljlUOLU ll!Q /ILU 11ed O'.). 1 '81 'r/ aZJJOlj'.).ne I 'AedO+nv UJ IIOJUi31 J.I 

Page: 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$15.00 

$1.05 

$16.05 

2of 3 
Sep 28, 2020 

292565993 

save time and stamps, sign up for AutoPay atatt.com/autopay using your 
checking account. It's easy, secure, and convenient! 

U-verse closed-captioning issues 
For closed-captioning issues, you may contact us immediately at 
ClosedCaptioning@att.com or 800.288.2020 or in writing at AT&T Closed 
Captioning, ATTN: Mr. Timmermans, Associate Director, 1010 Pine Street, 11E
X-04, St. Louis, MO 63101. 

Legal notification 
For information on upcoming U-verse TV programming changes 
please consult the Legal Notices published in USA Today on the 
first and third Tuesday of each month or our websiteatt.com/U
verseprogrammingchanges. 

3963.005.058639.01.02.0000000 NNNNNNNY 005613.005613 

8898-~Llj,£ 7:1 an010 lNl\fS 
3 l.lNn 3AV Nllll\JVH 801>~ 

3l'aVAVd Sl.Nnooov 
)l33t:l0 3llll\l XIS 

111 p • 11 • I 11•111111111111111111111111 I II I II I• 1111111 i 1111, ilh 111 

osawo 'aV ~ oc999·9zz·g·c96£ 

t·!.M':I 
~ 



-

AT&T U-verse 5
M TV, AT&T Internet and AT&T Phone provided by AT&T 

Florida. 
© 2020 AT&T Intellectual Property. All rights reserved. 

Printed on Recyclable Paper 

Page: 

Issue Date: 

Account Number: 

3 of3 
Sep 28, 2020 
292565993 

I 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE -ir/Ji 
TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Adam Eminisor 

St. Augustine , FL 32092 

*BLUE BOXES PAYROLL USE ONL 

DATE CAD# TIME IN ' 

Thursday, Octobe r 8, 2020 SJSO20CAD192010 8 :15 AM 12 :15 PM 4 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

SJSO19CAD 

ACTIVITY COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 4 
I patrolled the neighborhood to include the amenity center, construction zones, and Kayak launch. Multiple 
t raffic stops were conducted for multiple traffic violations. 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 2:28 prt, Oot If~,? 

O&M- Security Patrol 

J:,.:i11:1,rr---
~~,. '.. ...---~-~ 

I OCT O 8 2020 u 
BY:_ 

~---------·---

revised 2-10-2020 

$160.00 



13D2b888176D28 □ 1Db1D□ D □□□ 

Please request changes on the back. 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1302 0 II 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

0002 067471 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to: 1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 

SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

h··111·1111·1h·11·11l1 .. l·1·1··l·l11·ll1111•111 1"111'll·11•111 
FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Oct 26 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 68881-76028 
For: Sep 02 2020 to Oct 02 2020 (30 days) 
Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address: 990 TRAILMARK DR# PUMP 

Statement date: 
Next meter reading: 

Oct 02 2020 
Nov 03 2020 

Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

139.94 139.94 CR 

Meter reading - Meter KJ43593 

Current reading 41255 
Previous reading 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 1146 
Service days 29 
kWh per day 39 

- 41198 
57 

This 
Year 

57 
30 

1 

""'The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $1.26 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: $3.73 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 

fj 

Balance 
Additional before 

activity 
(+or-) 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 0.00 

New 
charges 

(+) 

16.01 $16.01 I 

ti ~1 
.· · .··.•·.· 'i 

0ct 26 2020 I 

Amount of your last bill 139.94 
Payment received - Thank you 139.94CR 
Balance before new charges - -------------- ----=$..,..o."""o..,..o-

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

15.61,,... 

0.40 

$16.01 

$16.01 

- Payment received after December 28, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

C O 8 2020 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 
Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages: 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 

F=PL. Print date: Oct 5, 2020 Online at: www.FPL.com --- ----:=====~ ·1 



27 

Please request changes on the back . 
Notes on the front will not be detected. 

L 5,8 1303 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

13039329544051 7294000000 

Make check payable to FPL in U.S. funds 
and mail along with this coupon to : 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILllY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Account number /.T:oiai :amount/·o,fowiif.' : .. : : .'.·:New':d-Jar:. eifi:iue:::b···: ... : ·. : :Am6i:ii:itendose,f.': .: 

93295-44051 S. f ,1.0 $49.27 Oct 26 2020 $ 

Your electric statement Account number: 93295-44051 
For: Sep 03 2020 to Oct 05 2020 (32 days) 

Customer name: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
Service address : 4~ LOOMFIELD WAY # PUMP 

Statement date : 
Next meter reading: 

Oct 05 2020 
Nov 04 2020 

.--------,----- - ---,------ -r-------.----- ---,~...,.."'·· ,.,,.,., ~,.....,,'""""..,...__,.,.......,........,~""';,;>""'1 
Amount 
of your 
last bill Payments 

(-) 

69.63 69.63 CR 

Meter reading - Meter ACD0232 

Current reading 16959 
Previous reading - 16531 
kWh used 

Energy usage 
Last 
Year 

kWh this month 1146 
Service days 29 
kWh per day 40 

""The electric service amount 
includes the following charges: 

428 

This 
Year 
428 

32 
13 

Customer charge: $10.62 
Fuel: $9.48 

( $0.022160 per kWh) 
Non-fuel: 

( $0.065270 per kWh) 
$27.94 

Balance 
Additional before 

activity 
(+or-) 

new charges 
(=) 

0.00 0.00 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New 
charges 

(+) 

49.27 

t~i.: 
· . . :1mti~M.t 
. Y:"t.:r~· 

$49.27 

-:New: 
·,c~~iM~:•· 
~~JW 

Oct 26 2020 

69.63 
69.63CR 

$0.00 

New charges (Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS) 

Electric service amount 
Gross receipts tax 

Total new char ges 

Total amount you owe 

48.04** 
1.23 

$49.27 

$49.27 

- Payment received after December 28, 2020 is considered LATE; a late payment 
charge of 1 % will apply. 

~ 
.,--,~;' ~ ,, .. -... _, ,.....,_...-;~ ... ~ 

~ 

OCT O 8 2020 
BY: ______ _ I....· 

Please have your account number ready when contacting FPL. 
Customer service: 1-800-375-2434 G Outside Florida: 1-800-226-3545 
To report power outages : 1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
Hearing/speech impaired: 711 (Relay Service) 

r-_F=_P_L_. -~-------~-----~---....; o;..;;n;;;.;li"'n.c..e ...;;;a;,;;;t:__ www.FPL.com 



Allways Improving LLC dba Fitness Pro"" Invoice 
1400 Village Square Blvd #3-293 ,,-----------"~'---"------..,.,,.., 

Tallahassee, FL 32312 APPROVED 
(850) 523-8882 
tracy@wearefitnesspro.com 
www.wearefitnesspro.com 

; B!tLT-0 .. 

By Alex Boyer at 9:38 am, Oct 

Amenity-Fitness Center Repairs 
SHIP TO 

Alex Boyer 

1400Vlloge 5quo .. A-ffl 
TallahauN, R. 32312 
~ 

TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 
COMMUNITIES 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/O GMS 1412 South Narcoossee Rd. 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Trailmark Greenpointe Communities 

TRAILMARK GREENPOINTE 
COMMUNITIES 

, !NVO!CE# 

i 23418 / '' 

DATE 

09/25/2020 

09/25/2020 

10/04/2020 

805 Trailmark Drive 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

DAT!E 

· -r·1 010512020 
TOTAL DUE 

i $210.00 

DUEOATE 

['1012012020 

TERMS 

i Net 15 

PLEASE DETACH TOP PORTION AND RETURN WITH YOUR PAYMENT. 

PRODUCT !SERVICE 

Shipping/ Handling 
Sep 25, 2020: Shipping and Handling Estimate: 
PARTS CXJ 1 -320 - 538' 00 -1n-w.,o 
Sep 25, 2020: Parts for Repair: cable 
CS1 
Oct 4, 2020: Commercial Labor: Replaced cable on press tests good 
SERVICE REQUEST 28290 - MUL Tl PRESS NEEDS CABLE 

Service Request Details/Notes: CG9503 
0620-16-00104 

Ord 125198 

BALANCE DUE 

www .wearefitnesspro.com 

- ENCLOSIED 

QTY 

1 

CE r· 

AMOUNT 

15.00 

85.00 

110.00 

$210.00 

•. OCT 1 2 20i.:J 
BY: ___ _ _ 



Municipal Asset Management, Inc. 
25288 Foothills Drive North :It 31 

5 
~bo _ $.;).oOO 

Suite 225 C>o 1-3~ ~S> 
Golden, CO 80401 
(303) 273-9494 

To: Six Mile Creek Community Development Dist 
1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E 
St Cloud, FL 34771 

DUE DATE RENTAL PERIOD 

1117/2020 

PMTNUMBER DESCRIPTION 

INVOICE 
INVOICE NO: 

DATE: 

0617898 "" 
10/1/2020 

RECEIVE_~) 

OCT 12 20?.0 

BY: __ _ _ _ 

AMOUNT 

49 Lease payment for Tax-Exempt Lease Purchase Agreement dated 1,148.68 
October 10, 2016 for the purchase of fitness equipment 

TOTAL DUE $1,148.68 

Please detach coupon and return with check payable to MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC. and remit to address above. 

If you have any questions concerning this invoice, 
call: Municipal Asset Management, Paul Collings, (303) 273-9494. 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Invoice# Due Date Total Due Amount Enclosed 

0617898 11/7/2020 $1,148.68 

Six Mile Creek Community Development Dist 
1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E 

Municipal Asset Management, Inc. 
25288 Foothills Drive North 
Suite 225 

St Cloud, FL 34771 Golden, CO 80401 



WHISPER CREEK AMENJ1Y CTR-PHASE3 
801 TRAILMARK DR 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Your Account Summary 
Previous Amount Due 

Payment(s) Received Since Last Statement 

Current Month's Charges 

Total Amount Due 

RECEIVED 

OCT 1 3 2020 

BY: _____ _ 

$27.59 

-$27.59 

$24.85 

$24.85 

Amount not paid by due data may ba assassad a late payment charge and an additional deposit. 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 
peoplesgas.com I f ~ ff) 8• i in 

Statement Date: 10/06/2020 
Account: 211014091725 set :l(} 

Current month's charges : $24.85 
Total amount due : $24 .85 
Payment Due By: 10/27/2020 

If you smell rotten eggs, a gas leak could be nearby. 
Get to a safe location and call us at 877·832-6747. 

We're here 24/7 to answer your call about leaks or 
other natural gas emergencies. 
peoplesgas.com/safety 

Save Energy with Natural Gas. 
Save more with our rebates. 
Find rebate criteria and steps to redeem at peoplesgas.com/bizrebates 

To ensure prompt credit, please return stub portion of this bill with your payment. Make checks payable to TECO. 

WAYS TO PAY YOUR SILL r.J•o• 
•□ .. mail phone online pay agent 

See reverse side for more information 

00001712 01 AB 0.41 34771 FTEC0110062023505110 00000 05 01000000 018 05 28926 DOZ 

•1111111 111 • 1 ·,III· I ti h I h', · 111• 11·,111111111 ·11, .. 111· 11· 1h ·I 
WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 
1408 HAMLIN AVE, UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD, FL 34771-8588 

Account: 211014091725 

Current month's charges: $24.85 
Total amount due : $24.85 
Payment Due By: 10/27/2020 

Amount Enclosed $ _______ _ 

677309254603 

MAIL PAYMENT TO: 
TECO 
P.O. BOX31318 
TAMPA, FL 33631-3318 

6773□92546032110140917250000□0 □024850 Paga 1 of4 



L?51'T EC C>. 
~. PEOPLES GAS 

., AN EMERA COMPANY 

Contact Information 
Residential Customer Care 
813-223-0800 (Tampa) 
863-299-0800 (Lakeiancl) 
352-622-0111 (Ocala) 
954-453-0777 (Broward) 
305-940-0139 (Miami) 
727-826-3333 (St. Petersburg) 
407-425-4662 (Orlando) 

Commercial Customer Care 

866-832-6249 

Mail Payments to 

TECO 

Hearing Impaired/TTY 
711 

P.O. Box 31318 
Tampa, FL 33631-3a18 

Natural Gas Outage 
877-832-6747 

All Other Correspondence 

Peoples Gas 
P.O. Box 111 

904-739-1211 (.Jacksonville) 
877-832-6747 (All other counties) 

Natural Gas Energy 
Conservation Rebates 

877-832-6747 

Tampa, FL 33601-0111 

Understanding Your Natural Gas Charges 
BTU - British thermal unit- a unit of heat meosurement. 
Budget Billing - Optional plan iakes the highs and lows out of 
monthly natural gas bills. This "leveling" billing plan averages your last 
12 monthly billing periods so you can pay about the same amount for 
your xervicEJ r~ach month. 

Buried Piping Notification - Federal regulations require that Peoples 
Gas notify our customers who own buried piping of the following: 1) 
When excavating near buried gas piping, the piping should be 
located in advance; 2) The gas supplier does not own or maintain tt1e 
customer's buried piping; 3) Burieci piping that is not maintained may 
be subject to corrosion and/or leakage. Buried piping should be 
inspected periodically and any unsafe conditions repaired. Licensed 
plumbers, heating and air conditioninQ contractors, or Peoples Gas 
can conduct inspections. 
Conversion Factor - This factor is used to adjust for var•iations from 
standard delivery pressure and standard (foli•1ery temperature whEml 
applicable. 
Customer Charge - A fixed monthly amount to cover the cost of 
providing gas service. This charge is billed monthly regardless if any 
gas is used. 

Distribution Charge - Covers the costs of moving gas from its source 
to your premise, other than the cost of gas itself. 

Estimated - If Peoples Gas was unable to refid your gas meter, 
"ESTIMATED" will appea1. Your nas usn has been estimated based on 
previous usage, The meter is scheduled to be read next month, and 
any difference between the estimate and actual use will be adjusted 
accord in~J ly, 
Florida Gross Receipts Tax - A tax is imposed on gross receipts 
from utility services that are delivered to retail customers in Florida, in 
accordance with Chapter 203 of the Florida Ste1tutes. The tax is levied 
on utility cornpanios, which collect the tax from all customers, unless 
exempt, and remit to !ht~ state. 

Florida State Tax- · A privilege tax imposed on every person who 
engages in the business of selling or renting tangible personal 
property at retail in the state, in accordance with Chapter 212 of the 
Florida Statutes. 

For more information about your bill, please visit peoplesgas.com. 

Your payment options are: 

Franchise Fee - A fee levied by a municipality for the right to utilize 
public property for the purpos1~ ot providing gas service. Like taxes, 
ihe fee is collected by People5 Gas find is paid to the municipality. 
Late Payment Charge - Tl,e late payment charge is 1.5% of the 
past due amount. 

Main Extension Charge - A flat month Iv fee to recover the cost of 
extending mains to a particular arna when the cos! excc,eds the 
maximum allowable construction cost. 
Measured Volume - Your naltJral gas usagi; in CCF (one hundred 
cubic feet) or MCF (one thousand cubic feet). These are 1he 
standard units of gas measurement. 
Municipal Public Service Tax - In adciition to the Franchise Fee, 
many municipalities levy a tax on U1e gas you use. It is collected by 
Peoples Gas and paid to the municipality. 

PGA Charge - Purchased Gas Adjustment - 1t1e cost of gas 
purchased for you by Peoples Gas and deliwired to your premises. 

Rate Schedule -· The amount irate) you pay depends on your 
customer category. The cost of providing service varies with the 
customer group. 
Share - A program co-sponsored by Peoples Gas and the 
Salvation Anny where customms can help pay the energy bills of 
customers in need. A one-time contribution can be made, or your 
monthly elected contribution will appear on your bill. Your 
contribution is tax duductible and is matched by Pe0ples Gas. 

Swing Charge - Covers the costs that are incurred by Peoples Gas 
to balance the difference between a customer's actual daily usage 
anJ the g,is clelivemci by your gas supplier (pooi manag,ir). 
Therm -A unit of heat equal to one hundred thousm1d (100,000J 
BTUs. 
Total Amount Due .. Tbis month's charges will be past due after 
the date shown. TH!S DATE DOES NOT EXTEND THE DATE ON 
Al'N PREVIOUS BAl.ANCE. It is important that you pay your bill 
before thi:'< date in order to avoid interruption of service. 

• Sch,:dule fr<-w one-time or recurring payments at peoplesgas.com using a checking or savings account, 
• Mail your payment in the enclosed envelopfl, Please allow sufficient time for delivery. 
• Pay in person at a local payment agent. For a listing of authorized payment agents, visit peoplesgas.com or call Customer Care at ihe 

number listed above. 
• Pay by credit or debit card using KUBRA El-PAY at peoplesgas.com or call 866-689-6469. 

(A conveniencP. fee will be charged to your bank account or credit card,) 

When making your payment. plea!'.e have your bill or account number available. 

Please note: It you choose to pay your bill at a location not listed on our website or provided by Peoples Das, you are paying someone who is 
not authorized to act as a payment agent of F>eoples Gas, You bear the risk that this unauthorized party wiil relay the payment to Peoples Gas 
and do so in a timely fashion. Peoples Gas is not responsible for payments nmde to unauthorized agents, including thoir fail urn to deliver or 
timely deliver the payment to us. Such failures rnay result in late payment charges to your account or service disconnection. 

Par favor, visite peoplesgas.com para ver esta informaci6n en espafiol. 
Page2 of 4 



.. 
a 

"' II 

"' ~ 
a, .... 

I 
g 

-"'T ECC> . 
~. PEOPLES C:i\AS 

., AN EMERA COMPANY 

Account: 211014091725 
Statement Date: 10/06/2020 
Current month's charges due 10/27/2020 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 

If <p s• . in 

Details of Current Month's Charges - Service from - 09/03/2020 to 10/02/2020 

Service for : 801 TRAILMARK DR, ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Meter 
Number Read Date 

SHD95922 10/02/2020 

Customer Charge 

Distribution Charge 

Swing Service Charge 

Florida Gross Receipts Tax 

Natural Gas Service Cost 

Current 
Reading 

263 

Total Current Month's Charges 

Important Messages 

Don't get "tricked" by scammers. 

Previous 
Reading 

261 

= Measured 
Volume 

2CCF 

2.1 THMS @ $0.45406 

2.1 THMS @ $0.03880 

Rate Schedule: Small General Service • Transportation 

x BTU x Conversion = 

1.048 

$23.76 

$0 .95 

$0.08 

$0.06 

1.0000 

$24.85 

Billing 
Period Total Used 

2.1 Therms 30 Days 

Peoples Gas Usage History 

Therms Per Day 
ocr (Average) 
2020 - 0-1 
SEP ___ 0.3 

AUG- 0.2 

JUL--• 0.3 

IMY 0.0 
APR Q.2 

MAR 0.8 
FEB 0.4 

JAN ----• 0.6 
DEC---• 0.4 
NOV- 0.2 

OCT 0.1 
2019 

October is National Cybersecurity Awareness Month. Scammers never stop and are always looking for new ways to take advantage of 
those who let their guard down. The latest tactic - scammers are now requesting payment through mobile applications. Visit our Natural 
Gas Blog at peoplesgasblog.com/stay-alert to learn more about this latest scam . 

Page 3 of4 



We're in neighborhoods inspecting 
natural gas meters 
Safety is our top priority and our team members and contractors 
are taking that priority all the way to your street. During a three-year 
cycle, we check the protective coating on meters and other above
ground equipment in our system and, if needed, treat with a special 
paint to help resist corrosion. We also identify anything that may 
need repairs. We'll reach out to you closer to the time when we will 
be working in your area. 

When we visit your neighborhood to conduct inspections, we will 
access your meter, so please don't be alarmed if a team member or 
contractor is on your property. All team members and contractors 
working for Peoples Gas are required to carry photo identification 
cards. If someone claiming to be a Peoples Gas representative 
visits your business, request to see an ID badge. If you have any 
questions or would like to verify someone's identity, please call us at 
on-sa2-6747 . 

Thanks for letting Peoples Gas fuel your business. 
We're proud to serve you! 

Page4 of 4 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

Payee 

1 England-Thlms & Miller, Inc. 
Inv# 195007 - Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#37) - July 2020 

2 Clary & Associates, Inc. 

Funding Request FY20 #8 
August 28, 2020 

Construction 
Fund 

$ 3,859.42 

Inv# 2020-384 - Phase 9 - Tree Survey of Uplands & Impacted Wetlands - June 2020 $ 23,900.00 

3 ECS Florida, LLC 
Inv# 821965 - Phase 9 Pond Berm Stability - Geotechnical Services - July 2020 

Please make check payable to: 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
UnitE 
St.Cloud, FL 34n1 

$ 4,500.00 

Total: $ 32 ,259.42 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/O GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

July 31, 2020 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

19200.00000 
0195007 

Project 19200.00000 Six Mile Creek COD-Phase 9 Construction Documents (>/'/Aff.37) 

fr2t0JJl~u'l'.%t'Yl~tttt'1<!.0J!gJbt~l!iq~~Jx.~1.t~l~-----------------------------------------------
Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Current 
0.00 

Task 02-07 Lump Sum Services 

Task 

2. MOP Modification 
3. Construction Plan Preparation 
4. Landscape Design(Code Design) 
5. SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval 
6. FDEP Water & Sewer Permits 
7. SJRWMD ERP 

Total Fee 

Task XP Expenses 
Consultants 

W.W . Gay Fire & Integrated Systems, Inc 
Total Consultants 

Expenses 
Reproductions 
Delivery / Messenger Svc 

Total Expenses 

Contract 
Amount 

7,500.00 
76,050.00 

7,400.00 
12,500.00 
5,000.00 

19,200.00 
127,650.00 

Total Fee 

Prior 
7,372.00 

To-Date 
7,372.00 
7,500.00 

128.00 

Total this Task 0.00 

Percent Earned Previously Current 
Complete To Date Billed Billed 

98.00 7,350.00 7,125.00 225.00 
98.00 74,529.00 74,529.00 0.00 
98.00 7,252.00 7,030.00 222.00 
50.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 0.00 
50.00 2,500.00 2,500 .00 0.00 
90.00 17,280.00 14,400.00 2,880.00 

115,161.00 111,834.00 3,327.00 

3,327.00 

Total this Task $3,327.00 

1.0 times 

400.00 
400.00 

60.72 
71.70 

132.42 

Total this Task 

400.00 

132.42 

$532.42 

Invoice Total this Period ~ 



Outstanding Invoices 

Number 
0194659 
Total 

Date 
7/2/2020 

Balance 
32,635.50 
32,635.50 

Total Now Due 

England· Thim) & milieu.Inc. 
BlGll,l;ERS• P\A~NcF.S • SURVE'IORS •OIS • UMDSCAPE ARCIIITECTS 

14nSadSlA",jllatMibd•- .Rooi!l32258•tol-- •lu-4S5 

CA<Xl001"' LC-0000311 

$36,494.92 

Page 2 



Clary & Associates, Inc. 
3830 Crown Point Road Suite A • Jacksonville, Florida 32257 • (904)260-2703 

INVOICE NO: 2020-384 
DATE: 07/31/20 

4544 
SIX MILE CREEK COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, #114 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

ORDERED BY: GREGG KERN 

PHASE 9-DEVELOPER FUNDED LIST 

PAGE 1 

DELIVER TO: 
PER CONTRACT, SEE FILE FROM 
ETM FOR LIMITS 

-------- - ---- -· --- -------------- - ---- - --- --

TREE SURVEY 

DESCRlPTION: 06/12/20 W.O. NO. 2020-384 

SUBDIVISION: TRAILMARK UNIT 9 
SECTION 38 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS TRAILMARK bR 

ST. JOHNS FL ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF PHASE 9: TREE SURVEY OF UPLANDS AND 

IMPACTED WETLANDS 

Minus a credit of 

27,650.00 

TOTAL DUE $~00 

-$3750.00 

TOT AL DUE = $23,900.00 

PAYMENT DUE 10 DAYS FROM RECEIPT 
PLEASE REFER TO INVOICE NUMBER WHEN MAKING PAYMENT 



PLEASE REMIT TO: 

ECS·FLORIDA, LLC 
14026 THUNDERBOLT PL.Ace, SUl,TE 600 
CHANTILL Y1 VA 20151 

PROJECT NAME: Trai!Mark Phase 9 Pond Berm Stability 

St. Jo.tm&:,. FL. 

TO: Mr. Gregg Kem 
Six Mile Creek Community Development 
c/o Scott Wild, P.E. - England-Thims & M 
14775 Old Saint Aug,ustlne Road 

i tnvcice T otat - Pre.ase Remit => 

I "you have any questions regarding this Invoice, 
J please contact Chris Egan at 904.886.5015 

i< BUDGET SUMTutARY -t· 

1 Budgel Estimate: 

Rreviously Invoiced: 

Amt. This Invoice: 

Amt. Remaining: 

i 
I 
I 

$0.00 

$4 ,500.00 

$0.00 

Subtotat 

$4,500.001 

i
t 

I; .. _ 
•. 

t 
[ .• 

. 

t 
f' 

A FINANCE CHARGE OF 1.5% PER MONTH (18% ANNUALLY} WILL Sc ADDED iO ALL INVOfCES UNPAID AFTER 30 DAYS 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Paiee 

Crown Pools, Inc. 
Inv# AUG-243 - Monthly Pool Maintenance - August 2020 

EGIS Insurance Advisors, LLC 
Inv #11510 - FY2021 Insurance Premium 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management LLC 
Inv# SMCCDD0820N - Facility Management/Reimbursable Expenses - August 2020 

Giddens Security Corporation 
Inv# 23460808 - Monthly Security Services - August 2020 

Governmental Management Seivices 
Inv# 130 - Monthly Management Services - September 2020 

Hopping, Green & Sams 
Inv# 116540 - Monthly General Counsel - June 2020 

North Florida Landscape Co. 
Inv# 21964 - Monthly Landscape Contract - September 2020 
Inv# 21969 - Monthly Irrigation Repairs - August 2020 

Riverside Management Services, Inc. 
Inv# 95 - Facility Maintenance - July 2020 
Inv# 96 - Monthly Janitorial Services - September 2020 

Security Engineering and Designs, Inc. 
Inv# 20-34966 - Monthly Fire Alarm Monitoring Services - September 2020 

Sitex Aquatics 
Inv# 4029B - Monthly Lake Maintenance - September 2020 

Please make check payable to: 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
Unit E 
St.Cloud, FL 34771 

Funding Request FY20-#9 
September 4, 2020 

General General 
Fund Fund 

FY2020 FY2021 

$ 1,382.88 

$ 28,683.00 

$ 9,025.16 

$ 3,931.34 

$ 3,384.38 

$ 1,528.50 

$ 23,642.92 
$ 4,070.00 

$ 500.01 
$ 1,145.00 

$ 34.95 

$ 1,675.00 

50 320.14 28 683.00 

Total: ! 79 ,003.14 



CROWN 
l:%•I•IOl:r+J 
3002 PHILIPS HWY 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207 

904-858-4300 11 ACCOUNTING@CROWNPOOLSINC.COM 

Bill To 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
C/O EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT 
805 TRAILMARK DR 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Quantity Description 

L\ l,.SO\ 1 INSTALLED SCUM GUTTER GRATE AS PER CODE 

310,>1~·4&1 1 MONTHLY POOL SERVICE FOR AUGUST 

1;l )4 \ 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

8/31/2020 AUG-243 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 8:28 am, Sep 04, 2020 

i' 

Amenity-Pool Maint IEc r.::r~---
u-. il -.·.,1 .· .. 

~ 

SEP O 4 2020 -~ 
BV: _ __ _ _ _ 

Terms 

Due upon receipt 

Rate Serviced Amount 

7.88 8/19/2020 7.88 
1,375.00 8/31/2020 1,375.00 

Total $1,382.88 

Customer Total Balance $2,757.88 



INVOICE 
Customer Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District 
Acct# 187 

Kristina Rudez 

Page 1 of 1 

. payment lntormatton .· • 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
219 E Livingston St 
Orlando, FL 32801 

Invoice ~wnmary 
Payment Amount 
Payment for: 
100120193 

Please detach and return w:t ll payment x - -- -- ------
Customer: Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Invoice!· Effective , , Transaction 

11510 10/01/2020 Renew policy 

ij I , . 

,~ 

l BY: ___ 

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: 

Description 
Policy #100120193 10/01/2020-10/01/2021 
Florida Insurance Alliance 
Package - Renew policy 
Due Date: 8/28/2020 

~ '~ 
Pro,;k..t'Z-..J-.) 

C-v...n . 1,._; ~ /'.:i)u.-bli c.. 

_JD O · \5) ·\ 

Egis Insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95th St Oak/awn, IL 60453 

' 

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors, LLC (321 )233-9939 Date 

• $ 28,683.00 

I nvoice#11510 

Thank You 

. ,. .•:. Amount 

28,683.00 

, .. :• Total '•(.· -

$ 28,683.00 

Thank You 

~ .. 

Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021 
08/28/2020 

Chicago, IL 60689-4002 sclimer@egisadvisors.com 



Evergreen Lifestyles Management, LLC 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
321-558-6500 

BILL TO 
ACCT# 110059890 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
Teresa Viscarra 
Governmental Management Services-CF, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, L 34771 
VENDOR DESCRIPTION 
~ nthll Mst Fee 
Personnel Hours 120 Payroll Hours for August 2020 
gy.1-Verizon !Pad monthly service 321-320-5443) 
AMEX Various Purchase Event and Office Supplies 
Fast Trivia Adult and Family Trivia Night 
Fast Trivia (Two) Bingo Nights 

I 

OTHER COMMENTS 

Please include the account number 110059890 on your check 
Please send all payments to our new address: 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 

INVOICE 
DATE: 8/31/2020 
INVOICE# SMCCDD0820N 

AMOUNT 
¥gt fee s 4,925.37 
Payroll s 3,360.00 

Entertainment s 10.08 
s 309.71 
s 280.00 
s 140.00 

·-

11 

,_ 

Subtotal s 9,025.16 

TOTAL Due 9,025.16 

Make all checks payable to 
.__ _ _ ________________ ___ ___________ ____,Evergreen Lifestyles Management, LLC 

If you have any questions about this invoice, please contact Melinda Archer 
marcher @ever qreen - lm.com 



Page _ 1_ of 
9 

--------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management LLC 
(Payable to) 

2100 S. Hiawassee Road, Orlando FL 32852 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

0 Association 0 Vendor 

Name and No. of Association: 

Bill Back to Six Mile Creek COD: 

POOLWEBAQUATICTECH 2078777900 ME -------

Evergreen 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

Pool Grate Pool 

Return for non 
Operating 

8/24/2020 

8242020 

ASAP 

21.89 ✓ 

working 
TURNER ACE HDWR-WGV ST AUGUSTINE FL keys/wasp spray Supplies -7.22 ,1 

b• :f' -f-- Gn1( ;'---ffek,- r.::+u.-ia.e. P"'-'n..:+i·,""') tuih--1-Cfiall<TheWall<--:. . 60.00 ✓ 
THE WINEY WENCH 0000 SAINT AU GUSTI FL Wi LPrize Special Events --_,.cnatlf~1ewa-~------ 1 WALGREENS #11165 000 SAINT AUGUST! FL Winr erJ? . Special Events 40.59 ---------- ----- ---c~~~-~~~k------
Amazon Ma ketplace Special Events 16.92 ✓ 

r . ·-c~We&Jlk- ------ - - v 
Amazon Marketplace Special Events 9.99 - ------------ ----- - ._ Wlnner.P..cize _______ _ 
Amazon Marketplace 

Amazon Marketplace 

Amazon Marketplace 

TURNER ACE HDWR-WGV ST AUGUSTINE FL 

Authorized by: 

Approved by: 

Popcorn Bags Special Events 

Bookshelf Office Supplies 

Special Events 

24.99 " 

76.67 J 

39.99" Popcorn 

New Keys & 
Rings 

- -------
Operating 
Supplies 25.89 J 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE $ 309.71 



8117/2020 Pootweb - The Leade, in low-Cost Pool Supplies 

Customer Support 

Search Keyword or Part# Q 

Shop Departments v 

FREE SHIPPING ON ALL ORDERS OVER $59 

Thank you! Your order has been 
placed successfully. 

Your order # is 129378579. You will receive an order cotifirmation email with details of 
your order and a link to track its progress. 

SKU Item 

SP1019BA Gutter/Deck Grate Only with Screws 2-318 Inches Wide-White 

Payment Method 

Credit Card 

Billing Add,ess 

Evergreen-LM 
Lynzl Chambers 

hll;lf /fWww.poolweb.COm/eneckout/onepegelsuccus/ 

Price QTY Total 

$3.65 4 $14.60 

Subtotar: $14.60 

Tax: $1.34 

Shipping: $5.95 

Grand Total: $21.89 



lHANK VDU FOR SHOPPlN(i AT 
TURNER ACE HARDWARE ~JGV 

6205 SlAfE ROAD 16 
ST. AUGUSTINE Ft 32094 

(904) 91)7-2424 

11LEASE REMIT PAYM~N·1 13lb4 AllANIC Bl VO 
JACKSONVIll. E, Fl 32?25 

08/ 17 /20 2: 52PM 402 ::;AL( 

56051 Hl -1 EA 3 • 59 EA 0 
HOUSE KEY Yl 1 PK/250. -:i. ~9 
Orig: 878720/4 01122120 rx: 
7415144 1 F.A 3.99 EA S 
FOAM WASP & HDRNEl 17 .501 3. 99 
Regular Price: 4.99 
You Saved 1 • 00 
560511:8 -2 EA 3.59 EA D 
HOUSE KEY Yl 1 PK/250. -7, 1 B 
Orig: 878720/4 07/22/20 TX: 

SUB-TOTAL:$ 6. 713 TAX: $ - .44 
TuTAI: $ -7.22 

BC AMT: $ -7.22 

BK CARD#: XXXXXXXXXXX1007 
MID: *******:i,2885 TIO: ***61 t'O 
AUTH: 0 AMT:$ -7,22 
Host reference #:191015 Bat# 
MANUAL 
CARD TYPE:AM EXPRESS EXPR: XXXX 
TxnID/ValCode: 278036 

USO$ -7,22 

1111111111111111111111111111111111 

=>> JRNL#B91015/4 
CUST N0:*4 

Name : X __ ---·--· ·----· r agree to pay above total amount 
acco,dlno to card issuer agreement 
(merchant agreement lf cred1t voucher) 
Acct: CASH CUSTOMER ST 4 

C1.1Stomer Copy 

't'(lJ SAVED $ . .89 ISY Sl(PPING Al 
TURNER AC£ ttA.'tOOARE WGV 

St?.isonal Heas iue non-refllldallle. 
~,ecfal Orders are '10fl•ref:.inddble. 

lf!At-w Vl,ll I UP ~:luJ~•l•ltlli Al 
I URNU, Ill f tlAllllNARl M,v 

t.t11• :ii Ai F lii.ll\ll 16 
s I . i\lJ1,u~; I Hff FL '3Lm•4 

l \)1l4) rJJ/ 24t4 

1 ;J,N m~u, l-'11YMtNl Hl64 AfLANrt l:l1~u 
J.i1:r<;ow111.f.. F1. 3,ms 

11// 't..2/20 );,11,JJM '104 SAlf 

~bU'i 1 ltl i [ A 
HDIJSE K [ Y ~ 11 p~, L:11 
5930037 3 LA 
KEYKRAFTER 11% 8~:AS , 
5935937 2 ti 
CfJ UN ~t-1 : I 1·.[ 1 fdti.:· 
50244 l ht 
KEY i:iGHLAllf. :iC4·ACt 

rJ ~,9 tA 
$1fl,77 

~; d £A 
$8.31 

$1 ':)<! EA 
$3. lo 

ii, I.;;,; l:A 
$1.Y9 

SUB lOTAI :$ 24.31 (AX: $ 1.58 
2:..d':l !01~1. t 

BK CARl1#: J\XM~J\XXXAX 1 Ull 7 
MID:**H'l'~-lC*.!885 TID;+*;i.bl?l'J 
AUTH: B98037 AMl: $ 25.89 
Host retere11cf.: h: I 7!J72(J Aah 

Allthor1zln1::1 Nt!l\'lor\..: AMl1 

Ch1p Read 
CARD 1 YPf: : At,, [.(?~ES~ [XPR · ~ ~xx 
AID: A00000llU151JJ0!lU1 
TVR : 000000B0ll0 
!AD : u64Cul0J60AU0t 
fSI : FBOO 
ARC : no 
MOOE : Issuer 
CVM · No CVM 
Name : AMfRlCAN txf'RESS 
ATC :0083 
AC : 153015~7C~4tl~FC 
rxnlD/ValGode: 24796~ 

Ban~ card 

111111111m1111111m11111111111 

:::» JRNL#878720,'4 <.<-:: 

CU~l N0:*4 

I HAU\t 1'UU : HIZ I CH~r RS 
FOO VilUR PATRONAGE 



Iii WINI, ~llUf 
~ti Uilll ! I 1W I Ill Vil 

~AHII AUtiU!..llril 11 l2Ul1<! 
C xit. l ilt ;;11~ 

lla11tl< II•. J.lqi, 
11•• • l,01ol 111, $<'1,· 
T.,,. Iii: 081 

Sale 
XXXXX.XXXX.XX1007 
MX 
Total:$ 

08114t20 

Entrr Method: Ch1P 

60 . 00 

lnvU: 00000'l 
Awrvd: Online 
Rct, u-,.,J Rd 11 ,1ttlUllOOl 

AMHHLAN l oli'Rl l>S 
A lt i: Auau(t001f60J IJ!All 
TS1: f800 
IVR. IAAJ~ 

TflANI< ~w, 

13: 11:~3 
~ Code. 835315 

Batohll: 221001 

w~~ 
#11165 5445 STATE ROAD 16 
SAINT AUGUSTINE,i. FL 32092 

904-940-0556 
244 6984 0021 08/14/2020 1:54 PM 

HERSHEY REESESTKS KING SZ 30Z 
99 

SALE 
03400000203 A 1 . 
REGULAR PRICE 2.29 or 2/4.00 
REWARDS SAVINGS 0.30 
RETURN VALUE 1.99 

BROOKSIDE DK CHOC CVRD POMGRNT 7Z E 
06843738908 A 3.99 SAL 
REGULAR PRICE 4,99 or 2/9.00 
REWARDS SAVINGS 1.00 
RETURN VALUE 3.99 

GODIVA GOLDMRK GFT BX 11PC 4.6702 
03129013295 A 9.99 
RETURN VALUE 9.99 

GHIRAROELLI MLK CHOC 1'1/CRML 3.50Z 
74759960764 A 3.49 
RETURN VALUE 3.49 

(C) HALLMARK TISSUE vlHITE 10SH 
76379508782 A 1.99 
RETURN VALUE 1 .99 

H/MARK BAG BUNDLE 3 LG SOLID B 
76379.553858 A 7. 99 
RETURN VALUE 7.99 

JAOK LINKS ORGNL STEAK BITE 1.5oz 
01708288600 4, 98 
2@ 2.49 
RETURN VALUE 2.49 ea 

S0UR PATCH \ffRMLN THTR BOX 3. 502 
07046208251 A 1 , 00 
1@ 1 .69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1.00 

MARS M&MS MC THEATER BOX 3.10Z 
04000049752 A 1 . 00 
1 @ 1.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1 .00 

JOLLY RANCHER GUMMS ASRT BX 3.50Z 
01070085840 A 1 .00 
1@ 1.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1.00 

HERSHEY REESE PIECES THTR BOX 402 
03400011470 A 1.00 
1@ 1.69 or 4/4.00 
RETURN VALUE 1.00 

POINT CPN $20.00+ PURCH 

SUBTOTAL 38.42 
SALES TAX A=6.5% 2.17 
TOTAL 40.59 
AMEX ACCT 1007 40.59 
CHANGE .00 



8/24/2020 Amazon.com - Order 114-0748567-8228211 

amazon.com· .... ~, 

Final DetaUs 'for Order #114-0748567-8228211 
Print this i:2age for v.our records. 

Order Placed: August 12, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-0748567-8228211 
Order Total: $26.91 

Shipped on August 13, 2020 

Items Ordered 
1 of: Unicorn Adventure Scratch and Sketch: An Art Activity Book for Creative Kids of All 
Ages, Lee Nemmers 
Sold by: Amazon.com Services LLC 

Condition: New 

1 of: Paint by Sticker Kids: Zoo Animals: Create 10 Pictures One Sticker at a Time!, 
Workman Publishing 
Sold by: Amazon.com Services LLC 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
One-Day Shipping 

Items Ordered 

Shipped on August 13, 2020 

1 of: Komidea DIY Oil Painting, Paint by Number Kits for Kids Beginner, Lovely Owl 
8x8inch 
Sold by: Komidea (seller 12roflle) 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
One-Day Shipping 

Price 
$9.99 

$5.90 

Price 
$9.99 

Payment information 

Payment Method: 
American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Item(s) Subtotal: $25.88 
Shipping & Handling: $0.00 

Billing address Total before tax: $25.88 

https://www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_b_invoice_o05?ie=UTF8&order1D=114-07 48567-8228211 1/2 



8/24/2020 

Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Credit Card transactions 

Amazon .com - Order 114-0748567-8228211 

Estimated tax to be collected: $1.03 

Grand Total:$26.91 

AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 13, 2020: $16.92 
AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 13, 2020: $9.99 

To view the status of your order, return to Order Summa[Y.. 

Conditions of Use I Privacy~ © 1996-2020, Amazon.com, Inc. or its affiliates 

https:/lwww.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo _ dt_b_invoice _ o05?ie=UTF8&order1D=114-07 48567-8228211 2/2 



8/24/2020 Amazon .com - Order 114-1498436-6385812 

amazon.com· 
...... It: .,i,.7 

Final Details for Order #114-1498436-6385812 
Print this P-age for y:our recor ds. 

Order Placed: August 7, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-1498436-6385812 
Order Total: $76.67 

Shipped on August 8, 2020 

Items Ordered Price 
1 of: VASAGLE Tree Bookshelf, 8-Tier Floor Standing Bookcase, with Wooden Shelves for $71.99 
Living Room, Home Office, Rustic Brown ULBC11BX 
Sold by: Songmics Direct (seller 12rofile) I Product question? Ask Seller 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
One-Day Shipping 

Payment information 

Payment Method: Item(s) Subtotal: $71.99 
Shipping & Handling: $0.00 American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Billing address 
Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Credit Card transactions 

Total before tax: $71.99 
Estimated tax to be collected: $4.68 

Grand Total:$76.67 

AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 8, 2020: $76.67 

To view the status of your order, return to Order Summa[Y-. 

Conditions of Use I Privacv. Notice© 1996-2020, Amazon.com, Inc . or its affiliates 

https://www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print. html/ref=ppx_yo _dt_b _i nvoice_o06?ie=UTF8&order1D=114-1498436-6385812 1/1 



8/24/2020 Amazon.com - Order 114-3587539-2778615 

ama~on.com· 
,.. ,,.,...,. 

Final Details for Order #114-3587539-2778615 
Print this r;2age for y:our records. 

Order Placed: August 6, 2020 
Amazon.com order number: 114-3587539-2778615 
Order Total: $64.98 

Shipped on August 8, 2020 

Items Ordered Price 
1 of: 4108 Great Northern Popcorn Premium 8 Ounce Popcorn Portion Packs, Case of 40 $39.99 
Sold by: Amazon.com Services LLC 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
Amazon Day Delivery 

Items Ordered 

Shipped on August 10, 2020 

1 of: 1 oz. Popcorn Bag, Burst Design, 1000 per Case 
Sold by: Snappy Popcorn Co. (seller 12rofile) 

Condition: New 

Shipping Address: 
Lynzi Chambers 
805 Trailmark Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
United States 

Shipping Speed: 
Amazon Day Delivery 

Payment information 

Payment Method: 
American Express I Last digits: 1007 

Price 
$24.99 

Item(s) Subtotal: $64.98 
Shipping & Handling: $0.00 

Billing address 
Lynzi Chambers 
2100 S Hiawassee Rd 
Orlando, FL 32835 
United States 

Total before tax: $64.98 
Estimated tax to be collected: $0.00 

Grand Total:$64.98 

Credit Card transactions AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 10, 2020: $24.99 
AmericanExpress ending in 1007: August 8, 2020: $39.99 

https://www.amazon.com/gp/css/summary/print.html/ref=ppx_yo_dt_b_invoice_o07?ie=UTF8&orderlD=114-3587539-2778615 1/2 



Page _1_ of 3 --------

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

John Harrell 
(Payable to} 

1119 Romaine Circle E, Jacksonville, FL 32225 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

D Association 0 Vendor 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

ru~ ·~:.:111u!m 
Trivia Night-Adult 

Trivia Night- Family 

Bill back to Six Mile Creek CDD 

Please print in Jacksonville corporate office for pick up by 

7/28/2020 

AuthNizeb y: 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

~~ 

07.29.20 

73020 

ASAP 

l!l,',{I IIIJ',U 

140 

140 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE $ 280.00 



FAST JAXTRIVIA.com 

Jacksonville, Florida 
(904) 233-7792 
john@fastjaxtrivia.com 

TO 

JOB 

Trivia Host 

DESCRIPTION 

Trivia 

John Harrell 
FastJAXTRIVIA.com 
Jacksonville , Florida 

Jacksonville's Best Trivia 
Shows! 

INVOICE NO. 
DATE 
DATE OF SERVICE 

PAYMENT TERMS 

Due on day of service 

170 
7/17/2020 
8/29/2020 

QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL 

INVOICE 

1.00 $140.00 $140.00 

TOTAL DUE 

Make all checks payable to John Harrell 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT! 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$140.00 



Page _1_ of 2 ------- -

CHECK REQUEST INVOICE 

John Harrell 
(Payable to) 

1119 Romaine Circle E, Jacksonville, FL 32225 
Address, City, State, Zip 

(Mail to) 

D Association 0 Vendor 

Bill TO . · 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

.. lt]~"':•:llrUi!JII 

Bingo Night- Teen 

Bill back to Six Mile Creek CDD 

Authwizeby: 

DATE: 

INVOICE# 

DUE DATE: 

~~ 

08.27.20 

82720 

ASAP 

,~,.•.tt1 ■ 1~1r 

140 

Please remember to attach all receipts! 

TOTAL DUE $ 140.00 



FAST JAXTRIVIA.com 

Jacksonville, Florida 
(904) 233-7792 
john@tastjaxtrivia.com 

TO 

JOB 

Bingo Host 

DESCRIPTION 

Bingo 

John Harrell 
FastJAXTRIVIA.com 
Jacksonville , Florida 

Jacksonville's Best Trivia 
Shows! 

INVOICE NO. 
DATE 
DATE OF SERVICE 

PAYMENT TERMS 

Due on day of service 

220 
8/27/2020 
9/25/2020 

QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL 

INVOICE 

1.00 $140.00 $140.00 

TOTAL DUE 

Make all checks payable to John Harrell 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT! 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$140.00 



BillTo 

GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION 

Lie# B0001267 
528 S. Edgewood Ave. Suite 1 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32205 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
(Trailmark) 
1408 Hamlin Ave. 
UnitE 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

9/1/2020 23460808 

.1/"'.QVE8 
~i/Beyer at 2:51 pm, Sep 61, 2920 

Security patrol 

P.O. No. Terms Project 

Due on receipt 

Quantity Description Rate Amount 

Security Servicej()8/01/2020-08/31/2020 

16 8/1/2020-8/2/2020 -tt:U 17.50 280.00 
40 8/3/2020-8/9/2020 ctu~1[) 17.50 700.00 
40 8/10/2020-8/ l 6/2020 17.50 700.00 
40 8/l 7 /2020-8/23/2020 'J2.I) :>>! ]L!_S 17.50 700.00 
40 8/24/2020-8/3 0/2020 17.50 700.00 

9 8/31/2020 17.50 157.50 
I Cell Phone 60.00 60.00 

1,112 Mileage 0.57 633.84 

Phone# Fax# E-mail Total $3,931.34 

904-384-8071 904-389-9931 akoon@giddenssecurity.com 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Six Mile Creek COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Management Fees - September 2020 
lnfonnation Technology - September 2020 
Dissemination Agent Seivices - September 2020 
Office Supplies 
Postage 
Copies 

JlO ·SI'} J l\ 
15 \ 
JI~ 
SI 
U<. 
\.-t1) 

Hours/Qty 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 130 
Invoice Date: 9/1/20 

Due Date: 9/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

16.02 
49.37 

385.65 

Amount 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

16.02 
49.37 

385.65 

Total $3,384.38 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,384.38 



1-lopping Green c-f Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7500 

================================= STATEMENT================================= 

Six Mile Creek CDD . 
July 31, 202,ll..,. ......... CEIVEll , , 

.l"<.t ~ 111 Number 116540 
c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Billed through 06/30/2020 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 J2\tf AUG 1 7 2020 
310-511-JlS 

BY: ____ _ 
General Counsel 
SIXCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
06/05/20 WSH Confer with Kern and review and revise re-opening policies for Phase 2. 

06/05/20 SSW 

06/10/20 WSH 

06/12/20 WSH 

06/15/20 LMG 

06/17/20 WSH 

06/18/20 WSH 

06/19/20 WSH 

06/24/20 WSH 

06/26/20 SSW 

06/26/20 WSH 

06/28/20 KSB 

06/29/20 WSH 

Research physical quorum and public comment requirements and guidance 
pursuant to Governor's Executive Order and Task Force Report for Phase 2 
Re-opening. 

Prepare for and participate in conference call to discuss agenda for June 
meeting. 

Confer with Chambers and Oliver regarding amenity facility rentals. 

Research and analyze implications of Phase 2 reopening plan for amenities 
operation; develop best practices related to same. 

Prepare for board meeting; confer with Oliver. 

Prepare or and participate in board meeting. 

Prepare agreement for use of amenity facilities during COVID; confer with 
Chambers regarding same. 

Review correspondence from county regarding traffic light installation; prepare 
notices for budget and O&M assessments and confer with Sweeting and Oliver 
regarding same; confer with Chambers and Kern regarding agreement for 
fitness trainer use of district facilities. 

Review Executive Order 20-150 regarding extension of waiver of physical 
quorum requirement for local government public meetings; prepare and 
circulate correspondence to District Managers regarding same. 

Review audit and prepare language for note regarding status of 2007 bonds 
and assessments securing the bonds. 

Research and prepare correspondence to property appraiser regarding release 
of tax roll. 

Review revised budget and confer with Viscarra regarding same. 

0.70 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

0.90 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

1.40 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.70 hrs 

0.10 hrs 

0.20 hrs 



Six Mile Creek CDD - General C Bill No. 116540 

06/30/20 JLK Review Phase 2 EO; prepare and review categories of reopening expansions; 
confer with in house lawyers on various nuances for same; multiple calls with 
district managers and amenity managers; multiple calls with FIA on same; 
review, edit and transmit COVID waivers and license agr~ements for use of 
same; review, edit and transmit reservation language and screening 
questionnaires; review PPE requirements promulgated by local jurisdictions; 
confer regarding COVID notification process. 

06/30/20 KFJ Research status of budget and assessment hearing documents. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Gentry, Lauren M. 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Gentry, Lauren M. 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
0.10 hrs 
0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
5.70 hrs 

0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
0.10 hrs 
0.30 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
5.70 hrs 

180 /hr 
125 /hr 
200 /hr 
180 /hr 
180 /hr 
235 /hr 

180 /hr 
125 /hr 
200 /hr 
180 /hr 
180 /hr 
235 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

Page 2 

0.30 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

$t·,528.50 

$54.00 
$25.00 
$20.00 
$54.00 
$36.00 

$1,339.50 

$1,528.50 

$1,528.50 

$54.00 
$25.00 
$20.00 
$54.00 
$36.00 

$1,339.50 

$1,528.50 

$1,528.50 



North Florida Landscape Co 
2585 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bill To 

Sixrnile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin A venue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, Fl. 34771 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

1\\\ Quantity Description 

320-S]~·l\{,7 ~Landscape Services: TrailMark: Common Area - September 
'3]0-SJ8 ·46l Landscape Services: TrailMark: Amenities Center -

.. fumtember 
fJ20 ·51'' l{Q. Landscape Services: TrailMark: Right-of-way in unsold lots 

- ~tember 

APPROVED 
By Ale:x Boyer at 

Common Area $20,975 
(ROW) O&M Landscape $487.50 
Amenities Center $2180.42 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Invoice# 

21964 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail.com 

Date 

9/1/2020 

Rate 

20,975.00 
2,180.42 

487.50 

Total 

Phone# 

904-3 88-93 54 

Amount 

20,975.00 
2,180.42 

487.50 

$23,642.92 



North Florida Landscape Co 
25 85 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Bill To 

Sixmile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 
St. Cloud, Fl. 34771 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Quantity Description 

Landscape Services: Relocate Mainline 
160' Sch 40 sleeve @ $10.00 
160' 2" sleeve, Sch 40@ $2.00 
160 1" sleeve, Sch 40 @ $1.25 
200' 3" mainline@ $4.00 
200' Hunter 2 Wire irrigation wire @ $2.00 
New Zone and Labor 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 11 :07 . :iJf, 2020 

;:,.:, 

&M Irrigation Maintenance 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Invoice# 

21969 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail.com 

Date 

8/28/2020 

Rate 

0.00 
1,600.00 

320.00 
200.00 
800.00 
400.00 
750.00 

Total 

Phone# 

904-388-9354 

Amount 

0.00 
1,600.00 

320.00 
200.00 
800.00 
400.00 
750.00 

$4,070.00 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Six Mile Creek 
475WestT-0wn Place Solle 1.14 
St. Augtistine, FL 32092 

Description ~ iJ. 
Faclllty Maintenance July 1, 2020 - July 31, 2020 32-0·S.,i u ~ 
Maintenanc.e Supplies :>'2.n -5}~ ,Uf,C\ 

RECEIVED 

AUG I 7 2020 

BY: _____ _ 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 95 
Invoice Date: 8111/2020 

Due Date: 8/11/2020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

293.35 293.35 
206.66 206.66 

$500.01 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $500.01 



RMS 

rum 
7/23/20 

TOTAL 

MILES 

t:l2!!ll 

8 

6 

30 

TAAILMARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT •SIX.MILE CREtm 
f.wtlTENANCE BILLABLE HOURS 
FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2020 

Emploveo Do~crlptlon 

S.A. Oeep olean camp house 

•Mf19age Ii relmburaable per seclfon 112 .061 Florl<la Statutes Mileage Rate 2009-0.4◄ 5 

TM-SIX MIL!: CREEK 



MAINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES 

Period Encllng 08(05120 

DISTRICT Q.AI!;, SUPPLIES 
SMC 
SIX MILE CREEK 

7lll20 
717120 
7127/20 
7/27/20 
7/27/20 
7/27/20 
8/4/20 

Paper Towels 12 rolls 
Trash Bags 42 gallon 50cl 
Toilet Paper 12 rolls (3) 
13 gaVon Trash Bags 150ct 
42 gallon Trash Bags 32ct 
Paper Towers 12 rolls 
Toltet Paper 18 roUs (2) 

TOTAL 

PRICE EMPLOYEE 

26.42 F.S. 
29.87 F.S. 
41.30 F.S. 
16.07 F.S. 
20.67 F.S. 
19.52 F.S. 
52.83 F.S. 

S206.66 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 FforldaMinlng Blvd. W. Invoice 

----~~- -&llldlng 3001 Sulte305 _____________________________ _ 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

BUfTo: 
Six Mile Creek. 
415 W~tTown Place Suite 114 
St. Augustin&, FL 32092 

Description ~Qt', HourstQty 

tnvoi¢'l #: 96 
Invoice Date:· 911/202.0 

Due Date: 9/11202.0 
Case: 

P.O. Number; 

Rate Amount 

1,145,00 1,145.00 

Total $11145.00 

Pa,yments/Credits $0 .00 

Balance Due $1, 145.00 



t 

Security Engineering And Designs, Inc. 
3139 Waller Street 
Jacksonville, FL 32254 

Voice: 904-371-4931 

Fax: 904-371-4939 

Sold To: 
Trailamrk Amenity Center (6 MILE CREEK) 
1408 HAMLIN AVENUE. 
UNITE 
ST. CLOUD, FL 34771 

Customer IDrA-3315-sr 

Customer PO Pavment Terms 
Net 10 Days 

Description. ___ ·~ - -- --
!MONTHLY FIRE ALARM MONITORING SERVICE 
, -----

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 12:34 pm, Sep 08, 

Security Monitoring 

Service Department: 371-4931 
Monitoring Center: 800-318-9486 
Installation: 371-4931 

Please include invoice number on payment 

20-34966 

Site Address: 

Trailamrk Amenity Center 
805 Trailmark Dr. 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

Invoice 
Invoice Numbe 

20-34966 

Invoice Date 
9/1/20 

Page 
1 

·-·--r·-- s-ales Rep ID D~ Date l 
- --·+--- --- --, - -·------... , -- 9/11/20 ----! 

-- - -- ... ---. : _____________ _j 

~~4 
~-5JAjuf> 
~ ·; 

Subtota 
Sales Ta 

Total Invoice AmoL 
Payment Receive 

TOTAL 

Amount 
34. 95 

34.95 

34. 95 

0.00 

34. 95 



Bill To 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-16 7 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Invoice 

Date Invoice# 

9/1/2020 4029B 

,VED 
.. :'.;:'Sayer at 1 :23 pm, Aug 31, 2020 

,• " ';'•u,, 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
Teresa Viscarra 
GMS 

Lake Contract 

P.O. No. Terms Project 

Net30 

Quantrty Description Rc1te Amount 

Monthly Lake Service- 13 Waterways 1,675.00 1,675 .00 

tt-'Jct 
:na5J~·4&4 

Please note that our remittance address has changed. 
Our new remittance address is: 

7643 Gate Parkway 
Suite# 104-16 7 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Total $1,675.00 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. 



Community Development District

 

Construction
Fund

Payee FY2020

1 Clary & Associates, Inc.
Inv# 2020-406 - Phase 9: Topo Survey of Wetland Crossing - June 2020 4,850.00$                 
Inv# 2020-527 - Phase 9: Maps & Descriptions of 7 Conservation Easements - August 2020 4,450.00$                 

2 England-Thims & Miller, Inc.
Inv# 0194659 - Phase 9 Consttruciton Documents (WA#37) - June 2020 32,635.00$                

41,935.00$     

Total: 41,935.00$     

Please make check payable to:                                       

Six Mile Creek CDD
1408 Hamlin Avenue
Unit E
St.Cloud, FL 34771

Six Mile Creek
Funding Request FY20-#10

October 16, 2020



Clary & Associates, Inc. 
3830 Crown Point Road Suite A • Jacksonville , Florida 32257 • (904)260-2703 

INVOICE NO: 2020-406 
DATE: 08/20/20 

4544 

PAGE 

DELIVER TO: 

1 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, #114 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

PER CONTRACT, SEE FILE FROM 
ETM FOR LIMITS 

ORDERED BY: GREGG KERN 

DESCRIPTION: 06/23/20 W.O. NO. 2020-406 

LOT EAST END 
SUBDIVISION: TRAILMARK UNIT 9 
SECTION 38 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS TRAILMAR.K DR 

ST. JOHNS FL ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF PHASE 9: TOPO SURVEY OF WETLAND CROSSING 

AT EASE END OF SITE 

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY 4,850.00 

TOTAL DUE $4, 850.00 

PAYMENT DUE 10 DAYS FROM RECEIPT 
PLEASE REFER TO INVOICE NUMBER WHEN MAKING PAYMENT 



MAP & LEGAL 

Clary & Associates, Inc. 
3830 Crown Point Road Suite A• Jacksonville, Florida 32257 • (904)260-2703 

INVOICE NO: 2020-527 
DATE: 08/27/20 

4544 
SIX MILE CREEK CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, #114 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

ORDERED BY: GREGG KERN 

DESCRIPTION: 08/11/20 

LOT CE'S 
SUBDIVISION: TRAILMARK UNIT 9 

PAGE 

DELIVER TO : 
PER CONTRACT, SEE FILE 
PROVIDED 

W.O. NO. 2020-527 

SECTION 38 TOWNSHIP: 6S RANGE: 28E 
ADDRESS TRAILMARK DR 

ST. JOHNS FL ST. JOHNS 
IN NAME OF PHASE 9: MAPS & DESCRIPTIONS OF 7 

CONSERVATION EASEMENTS 

4,450.00 

TOTAL DUE $4,450.00 

PAYMENT DUE 10 DAYS FROM RECEIPT 
PLEASE REFER TO INVOICE NUMBER WHEN MAKING PAYMENT 

1 



Six Mile Creek CDD
C/O GMS, LLC
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E
St. Cloud, FL  34771

July 2, 2020
Project No: 19200.00000
Invoice No: 0194659

Project 19200.00000 Six Mile Creek CDD-Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#37)
Professional Services rendered through June 30, 2020
          Task 01 Site Plan Revisions
           Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 7,372.00 7,372.00
Contract Limit 7,500.00
Remaining 128.00

   0.00Total this Task

  Task 02-07 Lump Sum Services

Task
Contract
Amount

Percent
Complete

Earned
To Date

Previously
Billed

Current
Billed

2. MDP Modification 7,500.00 95.00 7,125.00 7,125.00 0.00
3. Construction Plan Preparation 76,050.00 98.00 74,529.00 72,247.50 2,281.50
4. Landscape Design(Code Design) 7,400.00 95.00 7,030.00 0.00 7,030.00
5. SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval 12,500.00 50.00 6,250.00 0.00 6,250.00
6. FDEP Water & Sewer Permits 5,000.00 50.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00
7. SJRWMD ERP 19,200.00 75.00 14,400.00 0.00 14,400.00

Total Fee 127,650.00 111,834.00 79,372.50 32,461.50

Total Fee 32,461.50

              $32,461.50Total this Task

  Task XP Expenses
    Expenses

Reproductions 87.71
Delivery / Messenger Svc 26.29
Permits 60.00

Total Expenses 1.0 times 174.00 174.00

          $174.00Total this Task

         $32,635.50Invoice Total this Period

England· Thim) & millC!r,lnc. 
ENGINEERS• PLANNERS• SURVEYORS• GIS • LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

1477501dSt.AugustineRoad•Jacksonville,Florida32258•tel904-642-8990•fax904-646-9485 

CA-00002584 LC-0000316 



Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
0194065 5/1/2020 4,904.45
Total 4,904.45

Total Now Due $37,539.95

 

Page 2

En9IC1nd· Thim)&milla:r,lnc. 
ENGINEERS• PLANNERS• SURVEYORS• GIS • LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

14775 Old S1. Augustine Road• Jacksonville, Flolida 32258, tel 004'642-8990 • fax 904-646-9485 

CA-00002584 LC-0000316 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4. 



Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Payee 

Governmental Management services 
Inv# 131 - FY2021 A!.Sessment Roll Certification Services - October 2020 
Inv# 132 - Management Services - October 2020 

Hopping, Green & Sams 
Inv #117761 - General Counsel - August 2020 

M&G Holiday Lighting 
Inv# 1615 - 50% Down Payment - Holiday Decorations - October 2020 

North Florida Landscape 
Inv# 21990 - Monthly Landscape Contract - October 2020 

Please make check payable to: 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
1408 Hamlin Avenue 
UnitE 
StCloud, FL 34771 

$ 

Funding Request FY21-#1 
October 16, 2020 

General 
Fund 

FY2020 

Total: 

1,322.00 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

General 
Fund 

FY2021 

5,000.00 
3,137.36 

9,863.21 

23,642.92 

$ 42,965.49 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Assessment_fu>II Certification - FY 2021 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice #: 131 
Invoice Date: 9/15/20 

Due Date: 9/15/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

5,000.00 5,000.00 

$5,000.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $5,000.00 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Six Mile Creek COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Management Fees - October 2020 
Information Technology- October 2020 
Dissemination Agent Seivices - October 2020 
Office Supplies 
Postage 
Copies 
Telephone 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 132 
Invoice Date: 10/1/20 

Due Date: 10/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

n~~~e::rui .· n d BY: _____ _ 
Rate 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

0.66 
107.58 

19.05 
76.73 

Am·ount 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

0.66 
107.58 
19.05 
76.73 

$3,137.36 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,137.36 



Hopping Green & Sams.1\1 
Attorneys and Counselors MI·\ 10 ~ ~ I~ be> v ~ \ ~ 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7500 

================================= STATEMENT================================= 

September 30, 2020 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Bill Number 117761 
Billed through 08/31/2020 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 

General Counsel 
SIXCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
08/03/20 WSH Review and respond to correspondence regarding execution of landscape 

maintenance contract. 

08/07 /20 WSH 

08/10/20 WSH 

08/10/20 KFJ 

08/11/20 WSH 

08/11/20 SSW 

08/11/20 KFJ 

08/13/20 WSH 

08/19/20 WSH 

08/21/20 WSH 

08/24/20 WSH 

08/24/20 KFJ 

08/28/20 WSH 

Confer with Fender and Dame regarding recordation of bond documents. 

Prepare for and participate in agenda call. 

Correspond with bond counsel regarding closing list; confer with Haber 
regarding ratification resolution and disclosure of public financing. 

Review and revise budget documents. 

Monitor and review executive orders regarding requirements for budget and 
assessment hearings and waiver of physical quorum requirement for conducting 
same due to COVID-19 public health emergency; research and respond to 
questions regarding same; monitor and review executive orders extending 
waiver of physical quorum requirement for local government public meetings. 

Confer with Haber and correspond with district manager regarding budget 
hearing documents. 

Review and respond to correspondence from Oliver regarding agenda for 
August meeting. 

Prepare for and participate in board meeting. 

Review correspondence regarding lien cancellation agreement and confer with 
Dame and Feldman regarding same; confer with Chambers regarding 
amendment to gym policy. 

Prepare agreement for UPS Pod and neighborhood delivery. 

Prepare UPS agreement; confer with Haber. 

Prepare for and participate in call with Oliver and Perry to discuss assessment 
levels. 

Total fees for this matter 

0.40 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

0.70 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

1.40 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

$1,322.00 



Six Mile Creek CDD - General C 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

Bill No. 117761 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILUNG SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Warren, Sarah S. 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

0.70 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
5.10 hrs 

0.70 hrs 
0.20 hrs 
5.10 hrs 

125 /hr 
180 /hr 
235 /hr 

125 /hr 
180 /hr 
235 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

Page 2 

$87.50 
$36.00 

$1,198.50 

$1,322.00 

$1,322.00 

$87.50 
$36.00 

$1,198.50 

$1,322.00 

$1,322.00 



M&G Holiday Lighting 
4845 Belle Terre Pkwy 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 9:33 am, Oc 

Palm Coast, FL 32164 US 

mgbus inessventures@gmail.com 

50% Down Payment Amenity-Holiday Decorations 
& 

11-!ui 
rp 01 _ 3cl:) ·/,S{t) -l ooDO 

~~~~/:~;L 
BY-·----

INVOICE 

BILL TO 

Trail Mark • Evergreen Lifestyles Management 

10301 Deerwood Park Blvd., Suite 3200 

Jacksonville,FL 32256 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 
Install 

Holiday Lighting - New 

Outline the West side of building in C7 
WW Lights to gutter line and facia (all 
elevations, see exhibit) 

Install 60" pre-lit wreath to the west 
side of building (see exhibit) 

Install C7 WW Lights to the facia and 
gutter line of the South building at p-lot 
(all elevations , see exhibit) 

Install WWC7 lights to Mid building (all 
elevations, see exhibit) 

Install 60" pre-litwreathto Mid building 
(See exhibit) 

Install C7 Lighting to the East building 
gutter line and facia (all elevations, see 
exhibit) 

Install C7 WW Lights to the gutter line 
and facia of the Back building (all 
elevations, see exhibit) 

Install C7 WW Lights to the facia and 
gutter line of the North side of the back 
building (all elevations, see exhibit) 

Wrap 4 small trees at main entrance in 
WW Mini lights 

Install WWC7 Stake lighting to the 
south building landscape lines 

Install WW C7 Stake lighting to the East 
building landscape lines (see exhbit) 

FRONT ENTRANCE SIGN - Install 
Stake Lighting following the landscape 
lines at the neighborhood sign (see 
exhibit) 

Install 2, 36" pre-lit wreaths to either 

Page 1 of2 

INVOICE 

DATE 

TERMS 

DUE DATE 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

HOLIDAY & EVENT 
LIGHTING 

1615 

10/07/2020 

Net30 

11/06/2020 

522.50 

363 .83 

855.00 

427 .50 

363.83 

712 .50 

1,011.75 

451 .25 

1,253 .16 

380.00 

546.25 

1,187.50 

259.14 

522.50 

363 .83 

855.00 

427 .50 

363.83 

712 .50 

1,011.75 

451 .25 

1,253.16 

380.00 

546.25 

1,187.50 

259.14 



Install side of the neighborhood sign (will 
need confirmed power at this location) 

Shipping Shipping of new product 1 120.00 120.00 

Miscellaneous - Wire - Miscellaneous - Wire - Plugs, Supplies, 1 184.00 184.00 
Plugs, Supplies, etc etc 

Removal Removal of Lights and Decor at the 475.00 475.00 
end of the season 

Equipment charges Boom Rental for Install and Removal 600.00 600 .00 

Storage Storage of Holiday lights and decor till 150 .00 150.00 
the next season 

BALANCE DUE $9,863.21 

Page2of2 



North Florida Landscape Co 
2585 Pacetti Rd 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Invoice# 

21990 

APPROVES 
Bill To By Alex Boyer at 3:04 pm, Oct 01, 2020 

Sixmile Creek CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

O&M Landscape $21,462.50 
Amenities- Landscape $2180.42 

St. Cloud , FL 34 771 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

Quantity Description 

1,an.~all.e Services: TrailMark:-Common Area - October 
Landscape Services: TrailMark: Ameni1ieli_Center - October 
Landscape Services: TrailMark: Right-of-wa y in unsold lots 
-Qgober 

•14 
JtQ,J7&·46?. 
'JJO· .S:>i· '-'b 1 

1U)-S1g l-\t2 

Please make check out to North Florida Landscape 

mollylandscapegirl89@gmail.com 

Date Phone# 

10/1/2020 904-388-9354 

Rate 

20,975.00 
2,180.42 

487.50 

~\ 1 
,___ fh..f"'.,. 

'r•~ 

Amount 

20,975.00 
2,180.42 

487.50 

,.,II O :T O 1 2020 
• 

B ;_ ----
L 

Total $23,642.92 


	Board Letter
	Agenda
	III.	Approval of Minutes of the August 19, 2020 Meeting and September 16, 2020 Special meeting
	IV.	Consideration of Resolution 2021-01, Declaring Assessments
	V.	Consideration of Resolution 2021-02, Setting a Public Hearing
	VI.	Consideration of Resolution 2021-03, Bond Delegation Resolution
		VII.	Ratification of Construction Agreement with Avid Trails, LLC
	VIII.	Consideration of Avid Trails Change Order
	IX. A.	Notice of Request for Proposals for Construction Services (TrailMark Phases 9A, 9B & 9C)
	B.	Evaluation Criteria
	X.	Consideration of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank
	XII. B. Engineer Items
	D.	Operations / Amenity Manager - Report
	XIV. A.	Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2020
	B.	Assessment Receipt Schedule
	C.	Check Register
	D. 1. 	FR No. 8 – FY 2020
	2.	FR No. 9 – FY 2020
	3.	FR No. 10 – FY 2021
	4.	 FR No. 1 – FY 2021



